
Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       1                                                                                                              October 27, 2020 

           

County of Inyo 
Board of Supervisors 

Board of Supervisors Room 
County Administrative Center 

224 North Edwards 
Independence, California 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Notices: (1)  In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 
(760) 878-0373.  (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to 
enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an 
agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public 
inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1).               

Note: Historically the Board does break for lunch; the timing of a lunch break is made at the discretion of the Chairperson and at the Board’s convenience. 

 

October 27, 2020 - 8:30 AM 

  
 

 1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here) 
  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – Initiation 
of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of Government Code 
§54956.9: one potential case. 

  
 

  3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS – Regarding employee 
organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant 
Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo 
County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Clint Quilter, Assistant County Administrator Leslie Chapman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Sue Dishion, County Counsel Marshall Rudolph, Health 
and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief Probation Officer Jeff 
Thomson. 

  
 

  4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION – Title: County Administrative Officer. 
  

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  In order to minimize the spread of the COVID-19 virus, Governor Newsom has issued 
Executive Orders that temporarily suspend certain requirements of the Brown Act. Please be advised that the Board 
of Supervisors Chambers are closed to the public, the Board will be conducting its meetings exclusively online.  

Board Members and Staff will participate via Zoom webinar, accessible to the public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. 
Individuals will be asked to provide their name and an email address in order to access the videoconference. 
Anyone who does not want to provide their email address may use the following generic, non-functioning address to 
gain access: donotreply@inyocounty.us.  

Anyone wishing to make either a general public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item prior to the 
meeting or as the item is being heard, may do so either in writing or by utilizing the Zoom "hand-waving feature" 
when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will call on those who wish to speak). Written public comment, 
limited to 250 words or less, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us. 
Your comments may or may not be read aloud, but all comments will be made a part of the record. Please make 
sure to submit a separate email for each item that you wish to comment upon. 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:donotreply@inyocounty.us
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       2                                                                                                              October 27, 2020 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, all open-session items may be considered at any 
time and in any order during the meeting in the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

 

  6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
  

 

  7. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

  8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two minutes) 
  

 

  9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE 
  

 

  10. PRESENTATION - Assemblyman Devon Mathis will present a California State 
Assembly proclamation honoring the late Thaddeus Taylor, former chairman of the 
Inyo County GOP. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS  
  

 

 11. District Attorney - Request Board: 
A) approve job description for Senior Deputy District Attorney; and reclassify the two 
(2) Deputy District Attorney IV to the Senior Deputy District Attorney;  
B) approve the personal services contracts with Dana Crom and David Christensen 
as Senior Deputy District Attorneys, at $10,050 per month effective October 29, 
2020, and authorize the County Administrator to sign;  
C) defund the Assistant District Attorney position; and 
D) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that: 
     1. the availability of funding for one (1) Deputy D.A. I or II exists in the General 
Fund, as certified by the District Attorney and concurred with by the County 
Administrator and Auditor-Controller; 
     2. where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the 
vacancy could possibly be filled through an internal recruitment, but an open 
recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply; 
     3. approve the hiring of one (1) Deputy D.A. I or II at Range 81 ($6,161 - $7,492) 
or Range 83 ($6,477 - $7,869); and 
     4. approve hiring up to a Step E in either Range 81 or 83. 

  
 

CONSENT AGENDA (Approval recommended by the County Administrator) 
  

 

 12. Clerk-Recorder - Request Board authorize payment to Granicus in an amount not to 
exceed $10,772.00 for the annual CRiis ™ Software License Maintenance and 
Support Fee. 

  
 

 13. County Counsel - Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Interest Code 
Biennial Reports from the following Local Agencies: Big Pine Community Services 
District, Big Pine Fire Protection District, Big Pine Unified School District, Darwin 
Community Services District, Independence Fire Protection District, Indian Creek 
Westridge Community Service District, Lone Pine Fire Protection District, Lone Pine 
Unified School District, Mt. Whitney Cemetery District, Owens Valley Unified School 
District, Pioneer Cemetery District, Northern Inyo Healthcare District, Sierra 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       3                                                                                                              October 27, 2020 

Highlands Community Service District, Sierra North Community Service District, 
Southern Inyo Healthcare District, and Starlite Community Service District; and B) 
receive and approve the amended Conflict of Interest Code for the the following 
Districts: Big Pine Unified School District and Southern Inyo Healthcare District.  

  
 

 14. District Attorney - Request Board: A) authorize acceptance of the Inyo County 
Victim/Witness Assistance Program (VW 20 29 0140) Grant from the Governor’s 
Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for Fiscal Year 2020-2021; and B) authorize 
the District Attorney to sign any documentation to accept and utilize the grant on 
behalf of the County. 

  
 

 15. Environmental Health - Request Board approve the contract between the Inyo 
County Environmental Health Department (Subcontractor) and MBC Aquatic 
Sciences (Contractor) for the provision of microbiological laboratory services, 
effective upon execution of the subcontract and Task Orders through August 12, 
2025, and and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

  
 

 16. Public Works - Request Board approve the plans and specifications for the North 
Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project and authorize the 
Public Works Director to advertise and accept bids for the project. 

  
 

DEPARTMENTAL (To be considered at the Board's convenience) 
  

 

 17. Board of Supervisors - Request Board approve a letter to Inyo National Forest 
Supervisor Lesley Yen requesting the reopening of the John Muir Wilderness Area, 
and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 18. Sheriff - Request Board: A) declare ONSOLVE LLC of Ormand Beach, FL a sole-
source provider of CodeRED Emergency Notification System/Integrated Public Alert 
Warning System (IPAWS); and B) ratify and approved payment to ONSOLVE LLC of 
Ormand Beach, FL in the amount of $12,500 for CodeRED Emergency Notification 
System/IPAWS. 

  
 

 19. Health & Human Services - Fiscal - Request Board ratify and approve Amendment 
No. 4 to the four-year agreement with the County of Mono for the provision of 
Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) services to Mono County eligible 
residents, in the total amount not to exceed $144,421 for the period beginning July 1, 
2019 through June 30, 2020 and not exceeding the total four-year amount of 
$429,388 for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

  
 

 20. Health & Human Services - Social Services - Request Board ratify and approve 
the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo's contracted non-
profit consortium, Life Remedies & Celebrations, and SEIU Local 2015, the In Home 
Supportive Services providers bargaining representative, which includes a 
negotiated supplement of $.50 above minimum wage effective January 1, 2021 (or 
as soon as possible thereafter) and an additional $.25 supplement effective July 1, 
2021 (bringing the total supplement to $.75 above minimum wage) for the period of 
September 20, 2021 through September 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s 
approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

  
 



Board of Supervisors AGENDA                                                                                                       4                                                                                                              October 27, 2020 

 21. Clerk of the Board - Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of October 20, 2020. 

  
 

TIMED ITEMS (Items will not be considered before scheduled time but may be considered any time after 
the scheduled time.) 

  
 

 22. 11:30 A.M. - CAPITAL ASSET LEASING CORPORATION - The Board will recess 
and reconvene as the Capital Asset Leasing Corporation (separate agenda). 

  
 

COMMENT (Portion of the Agenda when the Board takes comment from the public and County staff) 
  

 

  23. PUBLIC COMMENT 
  

 

BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF REPORTS  
  
 
 

 
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL  
  

 

  24. Inyo County Public Works - Agenda for the Southern Inyo Airport Advisory 
Committee meeting scheduled for 7 a.m. Wednesday, October 28, 2020 in the Lone 
Pine Death Valley Airport Terminal Building. 

  
 

  25. Inyo County Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Status Report for the Quarter 
Ending September 30, 2020. 

  
 

  26. California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control - Application for fiduciary 
transfer of On-Sale Beer and Wine-Eating Place license involving Cardinal Village 
Operations, Inc. 

  
 

  27. California Fish and Game Commission - Notice of Proposed Emergency Action to 
add Section 749.10, Title 14, California Code of Regulations regarding take of 
Western Joshua Tree. 

  
 

 



 

 -1- 

September 29, 2020 

 

 

RN 20 51505 

 

MEMBER'S RESOLUTION 

 By the Honorable Devon J. Mathis, 26th Assembly 

District; Relative to memorializing 

 

THADDEUS WARSAW TAYLOR III 

 

 WHEREAS, It was with immense sadness and a deep sense 

of loss that word was received of the death on May 19, 2020, of 

Thaddeus Warsaw Taylor III, a distinguished Californian whose 

character and deeds in life merit gratitude and respectful 

acknowledgment by the people of the State of California; and 

 WHEREAS, Born in Riverside on September 7, 1945, 

Thaddeus Taylor attended Arizona State University, and upon 

graduating in 1969 with a degree in history, he joined the 

United States Army, where he was assigned to its Military 

Intelligence Corps as a Counterintelligence Special Agent and 

stationed primarily in the Republic of Korea; and 



 

 -2- 

 WHEREAS, Honorably discharged from the U.S. Army with 

the rank of Captain and two commendations in 1973, Thaddeus 

Taylor went to work as a stockbroker at Dean Witter & Co. in 

California's San Francisco Bay Area, where he met his wife, 

Marie, marrying her in 1976 and moving to Bishop three years 

later, where he opened a Dean Witter office, and the two settled 

in on 40 acres at what they named "Fort Taylor" and raised their 

two children, Dan and Sarah; and  

 WHEREAS, An avid outdoorsman and fly-fisherman who 

actively advocated for protecting the Owens Valley and its 

surrounding environment and water resources, including the 

imperiled wild trout's habitat, Thaddeus Taylor held membership 

in a number of associations and organizations, including serving 

as Inyo County manager for California Trout Inc., an organizer 

of the 40 Acres Homeowners Water Association, an appointee to 

the Inyo County Water Commission, and a member of the Owens 

Valley Committee, and he also served as President of the Rotary 

Club of Bishop and as a Little League baseball coach; and 

 WHEREAS, The high esteem in which Thaddeus Taylor was 

held by his loving family, his numerous friends, and other 

individuals fortunate enough to have known him stands as a 

testament for others who strive for the best in their personal, 



 

 -3- 

professional, and community life, and his memory will live 

forever in the hearts and minds of those people who knew him; 

and 

 WHEREAS, Thaddeus Taylor leaves to mourn his passing 

and celebrate his legacy his son, Daniel Taylor, and his 

daughter, Sarah Musselman; now, therefore, be it 

 RESOLVED BY ASSEMBLY MEMBER DEVON J. MATHIS, That the 

exemplary life and illustrious record of professional and civic 

accomplishments of Thaddeus Warsaw Taylor III be memorialized 

and that his bereaved family and friends be extended heartfelt 

sympathy. 

 Dated this 19th day of May, 2020. 

 

Honorable Devon J. Mathis 

 26th Assembly District 



County of Inyo

District Attorney
 

DEPARTMENTAL - PERSONNEL ACTIONS -
 ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Tom Hardy, District Attorney 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of (1) Personal Service Contract for Sr. Deputy District Attorneys and (2) hiring of Deputy 
District Attorney I or II. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board:
A) approve job description for Senior Deputy District Attorney; and reclassify the two (2) Deputy District Attorney 
IV to the Senior Deputy District Attorney; 
B) approve the personal services contracts with Dana Crom and David Christensen as Senior Deputy District 
Attorneys, at $10,050 per month effective October 29, 2020, and authorize the County Administrator to sign; 
C) defund the Assistant District Attorney position; and
D) consistent with the adopted Authorized Position Review Policy, find that:
     1. the availability of funding for one (1) Deputy D.A. I or II exists in the General Fund, as certified by the 
District Attorney and concurred with by the County Administrator and Auditor-Controller;
     2. where internal candidates may meet the qualifications for the position, the vacancy could possibly be filled 
through an internal recruitment, but an open recruitment is more appropriate to ensure qualified applicants apply;
     3. approve the hiring of one (1) Deputy D.A. I or II at Range 81 ($6,161 - $7,492) or Range 83 ($6,477 - 
$7,869); and
     4. approve hiring up to a Step E in either Range 81 or 83.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
Currently (and historically), the District Attorney’s office has been staffed with four attorneys:  the Elected District 
Attorney, an Assistant District Attorney, and two Deputy District Attorneys.  There was a period of time in the 
1990s when the office had two Assistant DA’s, and one Deputy DA, but the current staffing arrangement has 
been in place since at least 1997.  Except for the elected DA, all DA attorneys have been represented by a 
bargaining unit and enjoyed merit service status.

Having now served as District Attorney for seven years and having managed the operations in the office and 
observed District Attorney’s offices in other jurisdictions, as well as other Inyo County Departments (including 
County Counsel), I believe that it would be beneficial to modify the current organization.

Given that the Assistant District Attorney position has become vacant due to retirement, it is an appropriate time 
to move forward with change.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

This request is to not fill the Assistant DA position, and to offer the current Deputy DA IVs—Dana Crom and 
David Christensen—“at will” employment contracts similar to those enjoyed by County Counsel attorneys.  
Copies of the proposed contracts are attached.  To avoid any net increases in county costs, the additional 
compensation offered to Ms. Crom and Mr. Christensen would be offset by savings from not filling the Assistant 
District Attorney, and recruiting a third Deputy DA at a DA I or II level. If approved, this would provide for two 
“Senior Deputy DAs” on contracts, and one entry level attorney.

This plan has been reviewed by Ms. Crom and Mr. Christiansen and they are anxious to move forward with the 
proposed contracts.  It is my opinion that the reorganization will result in a more effective and flexible operation of 
the District Attorney’s office while still providing the level of criminal prosecution expected by the citizens of Inyo 
County.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The District Attorney would be required to maintain its current attorney staffing arrangements and would begin 
recruiting to fill the vacancy created by the retirement of the Assistant District Attorney.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
While the proposed change will result in a reorganization of Attorney staff positions, there will be no net increase 
in County personnel costs and perhaps a net savings if the new Deputy District Attorney is hired at a Deputy DA I 
range.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Contract with Dana Crom
2. Contract with David Christensen
3. Proposed Job Description: Sr. Deputy District Attorney
 
APPROVALS:
Maureen McVicker Created/Initiated - 10/6/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/6/2020
Maureen McVicker Approved - 10/13/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 10/13/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/13/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/13/2020
Tom Hardy Final Approval - 10/13/2020











































Proposed Job Description

SENIOR DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

THE POSITION:   A Senior Deputy District Attorney is an experienced Deputy District Attorney 
who has attained the highest step for a Deputy District Attorney IV.  A Senior Deputy District 
Attorney is responsible for all duties described in the job description for a Deputy District 
Attorney IV, and also assisting the District Attorney with administering the ongoing activities of 
the District Attorney’s Office and assists in developing and implementing departmental goals 
and objectives within general policy guidelines.  A Senior Deputy District Attorney receives 
administrative direction from the District Attorney and can be called upon to exercise direct 
supervision over professional, para-professional, technical, and clerical personnel.  A Senior 
Deputy District Attorney is an “at will” position subject to specific contractual rights and 
obligations as specifically set forth in an individual  Senior Deputy District Attorney’s contract.

ESSENTIAL JOB DUTIES:   Duties may include, but are not limited, to the following:

Assists in planning, directing, organizing, coordinating, and evaluating the overall activities of 
the District Attorney’s Office consisting of legal, investigative, and support staff in the provision 
of the highest level of legal services to the County’s citizens; manages, directs, monitors, and 
participates in the prosecution of all criminal cases;

Directs, coordinates, monitors, and participates in the full range of legal activities involving the 
investigation and prosecution of the more routine to the most complex criminal cases; prepares 
and presents cases in court;

Directs, coordinates, monitors, and participates in the review of complaints and reports filed by 
arresting officers or complainants; interviews complainants and witnesses in regard to 
prospective criminal complaints; subpoenas witnesses; approves or rejects the filing of 
complaints in such criminal matters; 

Directs, coordinates, monitors, and participates in the research and review of applicable laws, 
case law, and previous court decisions; interprets and applies laws, court decisions, and other 
legal authorities in the preparation of cases, opinions, and briefs; prepares pleadings and other 
papers/legal documentation in connection with trials, hearings and other legal proceedings;

Reviews cases for any assistance required of investigation staff; assigns investigatory staff to 
secure evidence and/or conduct investigations; assembles and evaluates evidence, initiating 
and supervising the work of assigned investigatory staff;



Consults and cooperates with other department managers, judges, and the Attorney General 
on all aspects of criminal action; 

At the direction of the District Attorney, coordinates and oversees the development and 
implementation of the District Attorney’s Office’s policies and procedures to ensure compliance 
and consistency with legal mandates, laws, and guidelines, as well as the directives of the Board 
of Supervisors and the District Attorney;

May be called upon to participate in the development and monitoring of the District Attorney’s 
annual budget; assist in the ongoing administration of the budget’s revenue and expenditure 
transactions, recordkeeping, and fiscal reporting as necessary and as assigned.

Recommends and participates in the appointment of departmental personnel; provides or 
coordinates staff training; conducts performance evaluations as assigned; implements discipline 
procedures as requested; maintains employee morale and high standards necessary for the 
efficient and professional operation of the District Attorney’s Office;

Represents the District Attorney and his or her office to outside agencies and organizations; 
participates in outside community and professional groups and committees; provides technical 
assistance as necessary;

In the absence of the District Attorney, and as directed by the District Attorney, assumes 
responsibility of the Office as needed;

Performs a variety of special assignments and related duties as assigned.

EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS:  Must possess active membership in the California State Bar; plus 
ten years in the general practice of law, or five years as a prosecutor with a District Attorney’s 
Office including at least one year at the level of Deputy District Attorney IV or above, or five 
years of experience with other criminal prosecuting agency including at least one year at a level 
comparable to Deputy District Attorney IV or above.

Knowledge of:   Principles and practices of criminal and juvenile law; practices, principles, and 
methods of legal research; California criminal law and procedures; California code of evidence 
and judicial rules; principles and practice of criminal pleadings; trial and hearing procedures and 
rules of evidence; the State Penal, Welfare, and Institutions Codes; rules of Court and 
precedent decisions impacting the prosecution of misdemeanor and felony cases; all aspects of 
legal administration, including appropriate methods, procedures, and technical expertise; 
public sector law, California and federal statutory and constitutional law, civil and appellate 
procedures and County ordinances and regulations; principles and practices of policy 



development and implementation; principles and practices of leadership, motivation, team 
building, and conflict resolution; principles and practices of business correspondence and 
report writing; responsibilities, power, and statutory limitations of the District Attorney’s 
Office; budgeting procedures and techniques; principles and practices of organizational analysis 
and management; standard and accepted office procedures and computer equipment.

Ability to:     Know and understand all aspects of the job; know laws, regulations, and codes; 
observe performance and evaluate staff and problem solve office-related issues; analyze 
budget and technical reports; explain and interpret policy; analyze and apply legal principles, 
facts, evidence and precedents to legal problems; present law, facts, and arguments clearly and 
logically in written and oral form; investigate, explain, and write reports on criminal law and 
related legal matters; prepare and present legal cases and perform legal research; work with 
various cultural and ethnic groups in a tactful and effective manner; obtain information through 
interview; handle multiple cases; work with interruption; deal firmly and courteously with the 
public; select, train, motivate, and evaluate professional, para-professional, and clerical staff; 
work under time constraints and exacting professional and legal standards; operate and utilize 
a variety of office equipment including computer hardware, software, and peripheral 
equipment at a sufficient level for successful job performance; meet the physical requirements 
necessary to perform required duties in a safe and effective manner for self and others; 
establish and maintain effective working relationships with those contacted in the performance 
of required duties.

Typical Working Conditions:  Most assigned work is normally performed in an office or 
courtroom environment.  May be called upon to respond to crime scenes and to interact with 
witnesses and victims to crimes outside of the office, including remote and outdoor locations.  
Continuous contact with County staff, management, outside legal counsel, the general public, 
and outside organizations/agencies.  This is a Countywide position, and a Senior Deputy District 
Attorney is expected to report to  and perform work at all office and/or court locations within 
Inyo County as needed to complete assigned duties.  There are District Attorney’s offices and 
Courts in Independence and Bishop.  The office to which a Senior Deputy District Attorney is 
expected to report to work on any day will be determined by the District Attorney and court 
schedule.  



County of Inyo

Clerk-Recorder
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Kammi Foote 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval to authorize payment to Granicus for annual Software License Maintenance and Support 
Fee 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board authorize payment to Granicus in an amount not to exceed $10,772.00 for the annual CRiis ™ 
Software License Maintenance and Support Fee.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
AtPac is the sole source provider of the Recorder’s Cashiering and Imaging System (CRiis ™).  The payment of 
this annual CRiis ™ license fee is a requirement of continuing with the Recorder’s Cashiering and Imaging 
System.  CRiis ™ is the cashiering system for the offices of the County Clerk, Recorder and Registrar of Voters.  
CRiis ™  is also the system that facilitates recording land documents into the permanent record, issuance of 
Marriage Licenses and issuance of certified copies of Vital Records.  Southtech Systems, LLC purchased AtPac 
on March 1, 2017 and an Assignment and Novation Agreement was signed by Inyo County, AtPac and 
Southtech Systems, LLC.  On November 9, 2018, Granicus, LLC acquired Southtech Systems with Granicus 
being the Sole Member.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board can deny the payment, which would result in the discontinuation of the Recorder’s Cashiering and 
Imaging System (CRiis ™ ) and the inability to issue Marriage Licenses or to record documents into the 
permanent records as required by State law.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
Sufficient funds to cover this annual payment are contained in the Recorder's Micrographic/Systems budget 
(023401) General Operating Expenses (5311).
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. Granicus Invoice 127537
2. Granicus Operating Agreement and Assignment
 
APPROVALS:
Michele Hartshorn Created/Initiated - 10/14/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/20/2020
Michele Hartshorn Approved - 10/20/2020
Sue Dishion Approved - 10/21/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/21/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/21/2020
Kammi Foote Final Approval - 10/21/2020



Granicus
Dept CH – Box 19634
Palatine, IL 60055 - 9634

Please remit via ACH  to:
Routing #: 022000020 Acct #: 269099115

Invoice

Date 5/31/2020 Invoice # 127357

Sold To
Inyo County CA
P.O. Drawer N
Independence CA 93526
United States

Terms Net 30

P.O. Number

For any questions about your invoice, please contact us at
AR@granicus.com or 1-800-314-0147

Thank you for your business

Bill To
Inyo County CA
P.O. Drawer N
Independence CA 93526
United States

Due Date 6/30/2020

Total $   10,772.00   USD

Amount Due $   10,772.00   USD

Description
CRiis CyberScience Maintenance and Support

CRiis Maintenance and Support

Term Start Date
7/1/2020

7/1/2020

Term End Date
6/30/2021

6/30/2021

Amount
692.00

10,080.00

Total $10,772.00



GRANICUS

w s0uTHlxfi-{
$Y$ THM$

Jonuory 30,2019

Deor Customer:

As you moy know, on November 9,2018, Gronicus, the leoding provider of cloud-bosed government tronsporency,
legisloiive monogement, ond digitol morketing solutions for government ogencies ocross Norlh Americq qnd the United
Kingdom, completed the ocquisition of SouthTech Systems. This ocquisition hos ollowed SoulhTech Systems to expond its

resources ond trqnsilion some of their odministrotive operotions to Gronicus, which will ollow our SouthTech stoff to direci
more of their time ond otlention to working with their Customers ond supporting lheir Cuslomers' doy to doy needs.

We ore committed to providing oll our Customers with best-in-clqss service qnd ore excited thol the exponsion of our
resources will ollow SouthTech to tronsition poyments ond billing to Gronicus's billing deporlment. We wonted to ensure
thot you qll hove the informotion thot you need to help you through this tronsition.

Therefore, pleose updote your records to reflecl lhe poymeni informotion below.

Poymenls vio check cqn be direcled lo:

Gronicus
Dept CH - Box I 9634
Pololine, lL 60055 - 9634

Poymenls vio ACH con be direcled lo:

Rouling #:022000020
Accounl #: 2690?91 l5

lf you hove ony questions regording poyments or billing, pleose contoct the Gronicus teom qt AR.9gfgniEgS.cpm
or (800) 314-0147.

As SouthTech Customers, we wonted to olso welcome you to the Gronicus fomily! Pleose don't hesitote lo contoct us

wilh ony concerns, os well os Gront.Gyulnozoryon@southtechsystems-.c-em or IonjJales@southtec*hsvstgms.com.

Sincerely,

Eric Gibson
CFO, Gronicus

WASFIINGION D.C"
I I52 I5th Slreel NW. Sulle 800
Woshingfon. DC 20005
202.447.7580

DENVER
707 lTth Sfreel" Suite 40ilO
Denver, CO 80202
720.240.9586

SAfNT PAUL
,f08 51. Petar Si, Suite d0O

Soini Puul. fdN 55102
651.726.7389

www.qrc, nrcus.com

U.K.
The Beehive. Ciiy Ploce,
Gctwick, RH6 OPA

0800.032.5769

g



OPERATING AGREEMENT

OF

SOUTHTECH SYSTEMS, LLC

This Operating Agreement (this "Ag1gglqggl") of SouthTech Systems,LLC, a Califomia limited
liability company (the "Company"), is entered into as of January 3,2019, by Granicus, LLC, a Minnesota
limited liability company and sole member of the Company (the "IV[gmbel").

RECITALS

Pursuant to the filing of the "Articles of Organization-Conversion" ("Articles") with the
California Secretary of State, the Company was formed as a Califomia limited liability company on
January 3,2019 under the California Revised Uniform Limited Liability Company Act, as amended from
time to time (the "Act"). The Company was formerly a Califomia corporation and converted to a

California limited liability company in conjunction with the filing of the Articles.

In connection with the transactions contemplated under that certain Securities Purchase and
Contribution Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2018, by and among the Member and other parties

named therein, the Member has acquired all of the membership interests of the Company.

The Member desires to enter into this Agreement, pursuant to which the rights and obligations of
the Member and certain other constituencies of the Company shall be set forth and agreed upon as of the
date hereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby established, the Member hereby agrees as follows:

AGREEMENT

l. Name. The name of the Company is SouthTech Systems, LLC.

2. Purpose. The Company is formed for the object and purpose oi and the nature of the

business to be conducted and promoted by the Company is, engaging in any lawful act or activity for
which limited liability companies may be formed under the Act.

3. Term. The existence of the Company as a California limited liability company
commenced on the date the Articles were filed with the Secretary of State of Califomia and shall continue
until the Company is dissolved by act of the Member or by operation law.

4. Princioal Office Address. The address of the principal office address of the Company is

4181 Flat Rock Drive, Ste. 300, Riverside, California 92505.

5. Registered Asent. The name and address of the registered agent of the Company for
service of process on the Company in the State of Califomia is C T Corporation System at 818 West
Seventh Street, Suite 930, Los Angeles, California 90017, or other such qualified person as the Mentber

shall from time to time select.

6. Member and Membership Interests Ownership. The Member and its percentage

ownership of the Company are set forth in Exhibit A, as amended from time to time in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement.

KE 58239589



7. Management.

(a) All management powers over the business and affairs of the Company shall be

exclusively vested in the Member, and the Member shall conduct, direct and exercise full control over all
activities of the Company.

(b) Unless otherwise restricted by the Company's Articles of Organization, any
action required to be taken at any meeting of the members or any action which may be taken at any
annual or special meeting of such members, may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and
without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken and bearing the dates

of signature of the members who signed the consent or consents, shall be signed by the holders of
outstanding membership interests having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be
necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all membership interests entitled to vote
thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the Company by delivery to its registered office
in the state of Califomia, or the Company's principal place of business, or an officer or agent of the
corporation having custody of the book or books in which proceedings of meetings of the members are
recorded. Any action taken pursuant to such written consent or consents of the members shall have the
same force and effect as if taken by the members at a meeting thereof.

(c) The Member may, from time to time, designate one or more persons to be

tfficers of the Company, No officer need be a resident of the State of California or a member. Any
officers so designated shall have such authority and perform such duties as the Member may, from time to
time, delegate to them. The Member may assign titles to particular officers. Unless the Member
otherwise decides, if the title is one commonly used for officers of a business corporation, the assignment
of such title shall ccnstitute the delegation to such officer of the authority and duties that are normally
associated with that office, subject to any specific delegation of authority and duties made to such officer
by the Member. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall be duly designated and shall
qualiff or until his death or until he or she shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner
hereinafter provided. Any number of offices may be held by the same individual. Any officer may resign
as such at any time. Such resignation shall be made in writing and shall take effect at the time specified
therein, or if no time be specified, at the time of its receipt by the Member. The acceptance of a

resignation shall not be necessary to rnake it effective, unless expressly so provided in the resignation.
Any officer may be removed as such, either with or without cause, by the Member whenever in the

Member's judgment the best interests of the Company shall be served thereby.

8. Allocations of Profits and Losses. The Company's profits and losses shall be allocated to
the Member as determined by the Member.

9. Distributions. Distributions shall be made to the Member at the time and in the aggregate

amounts determined by the Member.

10. Indemnification:Exculpation.

(a) The Company hereby agrees to indemnif, and hold harmless any person (each an

"Indglqni_fied__Person") to the fullest extent permitted under the Act, as the same now exists or may

hereafter be amended, substituted or replaced (but, in the case of any such amendment, substitution or
replacement only to the extent that such amendment, substitution or replacement permits the Company to
provide broader indemnification rights than the Company is providing immediately prior to such

amendment), against all expenses, liabilities and losses (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines,

excise taxes or penalties) reasonably incurred or suffered by such person by reason of the fact that such

person is or was a member of the Company, is or was serving as an officer of the Company or is or was

2



serving at the request of the Company as an officer, director, principal, member, employee or agent of
another corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or other enterprise;
provided that (unless the Member otherwise consents) no Indemnified Person shall be indemnified for any
expenses, liabilities and losses suffered that are attributable to such Indemnified Person's gross

negligence, willful misconduct or knowing violation of law. Expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred
by any such Indemnified Person in defending a proceeding shall be paid by the Cornpany in advance of
the final disposition of such proceeding, including any appeal therefrom, upon receipt of an undertaking
by or on behalf of such Indemnified Person to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that
such Indemnified Person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Company. The Company may, by action
of the Member, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the corporation with the same scope

and effect a.s the foregoing indemnification of members and officers.

(b) Notwithsta.nding anything contained herein to the contrary, any indemnity by the

Company shall be provided out of and to the extent of Company assets only, and the Member shall have
no personal liability on account thereof and shall not be required to make additional capital contributions
to help satisff such indemnity of the Company.

(c) None of the Indemnified Persons shall be liable to the Member or the Company
for mistakes ofjudgment, or for action or inaction, taken in good faith, or for losses due to such mistakes,

action or inaction, or to the negligence, dishonesty, or bad faith ofany employee, broker or other agent of
the Company, provided that such employee, broker or agent was selected, engaged, or retained with
reasonable care. Any party entitledto relief hereundermay consultwith legal counsgl and accountants in
respect of affairs of the Company and be fully protected and justified in any reasonable action or inaction
that is taken in good faith in accordance with the advice or opinion of such counsel or accountants,
provided that they shall have been selected with reasonable care. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing to
the contrary, the provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed so as to relieve (or attemptto relieve)
any person of any liability (i) for conduct which is grossly negligent, reckless, or intentionally wrongful
or criminally unlawful, provided that such person had no reasonable cause to believe that his or its
conduct was unlawful, or (ii) to the extent (but only to the extent) that such liability may not be waived,
modified, or limited under applicable law.

(d) The right to indemnification and the advancement and payment of expenses

confered in this Section 10 shall not be exclusive of any other right which an Indemnified Person may
have or hereafter acquire under any law (common or statutory), agreement, vote of the Member or
otherwise.

I l. Membership Interests Certificates. The membership interests of the Member as provided
on Exhibit A, shall be uncertificated unless otherwise determined by the Member.

12. Pledqee's Rights. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the

Member shall be permitted to pledge or hypcthecate any or all of its membersltip interests, including all
interests, economic rights, control rights, and status rights as a Member, to any lender to the Company or
an affiliate of the Company or any agent a.cting on such lender's behalf, and any transfer of such

mernbership interests pursuant to any such lender's (or agent's) exercise of remedies in connection with
any such pledge or hypothecation shall be permitted under this Agreement with no further action or

approval requiied hereunder, Notwithstancling anything contained herein to the contrary, upon default

under the financing giving rise to any pledge or hypothecation of membership interests, the lender (or
agent) shall have the right, as set forth in the applicable pledge or hypothecation agreement, and without
further approval of the Member and without becoming a member, to exercise the membership voting
rights of the Member granting such pledge or hypothecation. Notwithstanding anything contained herein

to the contrary, and without complying rvith any other procedures set forth in this Agreement, upon the

J



t

exercise of remedies in connection with a pledge or hypothecation, (a) the lender (or agent) or transferee
of such lender (or agent), as the case may be, shall become a rnember under this Agreement and shall
succeed to all of the rights and powers, including the right to participate in the management of the
business and affairs of the Company, and shall be bound by all of the obligations, of a member under this
Agreement without taking any further action on the part of such lender (or agent) or transferee, as the case
may be, and (b) following such exercise of remedies; the pledging Member shall cease to be a member
and shall have no firrther rights or powers under this Agreement. The execution and delivery of this
Agreement by a member shall constitute any necessary approval of such member under the Act to the
foregoing provisions of this Section 12. This Section 12 may not be amended or modified so long as any
of the membership interests are subject to a pledge or hypothecation without the pledgee's (or the
transferee of such pledgee's) prior written consent. Each recipient of a pledge or hypothecation of the
membership interest shall be a third party beneficiary of the provisions of this Section 12.

13. Assignments. The Member may assign, sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of, in whole or
in part, its membership interest in the Company.

14. Additional Members. One or more additional members of the Company may be admitted
to the Company with the consent of the Member.

15. Liabilig of Members. The Member shall not have any liability for the obligations or
liabilities of the Company except to the extent required by the Act.

16. Governing LAw. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed under, the laws of
the State of California, all rights and remedies being governed by said laws.

17. Angd4gt. This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a writing that makes
reference to this Agreement and is signed by the Member.

* {( ,f ,1. {(

4



lN WITNESS WHERBOF, the undercigned, intending to be legally bound hereby, has

duly executed this Limited Liabiliff Company Agreement as of the day ftrst above-wdtten.

SOLE MEMBER:

GRANICUS,

Name:
Officer and Secretary

{southTech SJ'stents, LLC - Litnited Lktbillt! Conpanv
Agreement]

By:

Its:



Hhinit a

Member

Granicus, LLC
707 17th Street, Suite 4000

Denver, CO 80202

Percentage Ownership

t00%



South'l'c*lt 5],$lrtru;, 1111:. 1:'Ai;siililt*"1. irni,l (l,rtrit! i:llrt1,o, lr ttriirtiripll crrr;ur;lliott ititt:
"(-lounty"),

REflITAI..S

Wl'ltrll{F)A$, hssignor is a pirriy to th* Agreen:*ttt (as cletincd halorv); anri

Wl{}:tltliAS" Assignol dcsires to assign the AgL*emen'i, and Assign*e tJ*sires t.o rrssilms

th* Agreemeul, i:ach rxt tlte t*tttrs ilrrd *ontiitions $ct I'ofi'h h*rcin;

F{fiW,'l'ill:l{l1l)ORIi, in c*nsid*r*tinn cf t}re pramiset attd llte tlrutuai e:t:vctltlt:iti

spnlajn*cl irr tiris Assigrrur*nt, ancj firL othor g*r.rd aud vnh;ahl* cr:ttsidettl.ion, tlic-r*.ecip{ a*cl

ajequacy *f r,vhiuh ai:e, hereby "rckr:cwledg*il, Assig,nr;r aucl Assignef agrer: as {''erll*rvs:

1. !)r:liniti*ns. -lhe fi:llowing dcfinitions shall npply tt tltis Assignmcnl.:

ia) Agr*tn:rlrt. 'l'fie lelrttt 
('t4g1'1i'1ti;-'rtl".llr,rll iiir';itt iltr.: ,1111.'1' l. .1f !1.{i, l\i}lrr:lli1'l1l

ielated sr-.nri**sprovicieil t* th6 Cauniy {.Jl*r'k llr:ilrrt"rllt 'l'li,:: l*trt1 ",'\1rrt,.'tnt'l'11",;1l;tli irrL:lLttie

any arlenclrncnls clr niotjifr;atir-rns set Jcrth in r\ppnnclix A, attt*hcd hsl'*to and ntitd* a;ralt
hr,xcof.

itt E$t'*c*ivc llnfe. "l:i,tl'*clive l)at*" sirall nr*an tl"re date af'this Assignm*nt,

ie) {}t!eer'fcrms. 'furns rscd i}url not deJincd in this Assignmeul shall have thc

nreanirrgs assigneei to suclt tern'ts in tlre Agrecm*nt'

'2. Ti:e pnr{ins agre* t*t t}rt foilowixtg t'a**s;

(a) 'ilr* ('*nltly. lrv an<j tlrrrrugl.r the {,'ounlSr {-]lcrk [{cc*rdcr, has clller*d intr: the

Agr,,*ni*irr 
"'iitr 

..rriill'urr as dclirr.:cl ilh,rnu urrd ntiuclrE:d as A;;pr':ndix A anri intorpot.*sd in tliis

Assi gnmer:l by refbrent,:,

ib) -as of Mgrch 1, ?01?, thr:. Assigrul hrrs lrr:nsfr:r'r'cd to thc Assignee ail the $pernling

u*s*i.s ,-,,i'ti',1: Aosigri,.,r by virtrre, of'an ,{grlemcnl ol"h4erger b*tr.'setl thi: Assignot"atlr-{ Asslgtlee'

(r:i 'l'he Assigri** has nccirrir*cl sucti assets a{ the Assignor by f i5111s itf th{:-r ah$vc

ilar:sfbr.

id) Tlre Assignee l:as assumeql ;rll ntrligatiuns ernil lial;ilitics o1'tlie Assignor itnder the

Agrr:*n:et:t b;, viritre ol"th* abcr,* llt*slr:r'

(e) T'he Assigr:r:*. is in n pr:sitir:n to iully ;:*llbrtrr all ohligntion* th*t nirty *xisl rinder tho

"i\grei:m*ni.

(l) lf is r:on:iis!i:ni. r.vilir tire C*uni.y's int*rest to recrignizi: tliet Assignec ns thc strcc*s$ol:

part:' to thi: Agr*etrcnl.

ifi) I:.'",idenc* ot"ihr iil-.t:vc lrrilsler hus bcen fil*d with tlre {Jor"rnty.

..\ S S f $ N lvt li Nl" A I\i gj N {} VA'3'I $N 
^^ 

{,} K'{4fl M}il N 3*

Assillnr:errt irnd Nn"Slior
p"560 (4-r5) liagl' I of 5



{}, il}{: I}:1ti.:11}ll{.:l1l \.vi1h tl(,1j11t.\, r:l'i-ilttilil {'l':r1'n" la ilr* efJ'i*ct Assigrrce,

l. 3:: **lrsiil*r*{i:rn cfl {hes* **cls, f}re gr*nfies:}il$'cc fh*t bv this Assig:rnrrrnt:

(a) The As:;ignnr clon$}"$rs tl:r: lrartrIi:r tu tire Assignt:c, ;,tld lyai1',es an-v claillls nnd righls
i:glrinst i[r* Cir:r.rnti'tlirrt il nur.v has or lna1.'liiir',: iri thc fhture in ciit:n*cLicl1 l{ith lhc Agltcrnenl.

thc oi'iginal pin'lv tr) llie Agt**ttt*tl'i.

{c) "lh* Assignee r;r{ifi*s ali pi'*vii:*s acti*ns tnhen by tlie As*qig,rror'\{ith resil*ct tc tl'rc
Agrecrneit. rvitlr thclame fi:rce anil *fi'i:ct *s il thc a*lirx hns bcetr tali*u by lhc Assignee.

(ilj 'l'ir* t'irurrtl, Lrr,(]guizes rltc Assigrri:e *s th* Assigliili'r$ sticc*ssor ili intr:rcst in and io
fhi.: Ap,r,:*.rrtr':rri. 

'l'h,,: dssipr,rJer'cy tlrit A.';si;it':rtte,rt bi:cot;t*s *ntitlr:d t': ail lights, tilles. nnrl

irlllrrcirg *1'th* r\rsitrrrr'rr iii iurcj iu lhi: A11r'*rnl*ll ils iflth': Atsigu*c \ir*l'cthecriginalparlytotlrc

Ilrr: Alir ('()nl(rlll, :ihirli tt:li't {rr {l11r .\:ls.i111ti:t:.

ii:) lrrr:*pr ns *;xpr*ss1.,- pruviih:d in this Assigur':r*nl, rrnthitrlt, in ii shall hs r:i:ttstrur:cl ns s

rvaiver rif *ny li;4hts *l'tii* Cottnty ng*ittst the ;\ssig,nnr",

f {l :\ll 11i1,1 lrlr:t1tri i:}ltrl rtit}1htr}'rirlll'}*lts prcvicrus}y ntiltl* by Ci:ntnly lollte ;\rt-rigrl*t',;tttcl

ciisclLar1ir,1,,"1 tirus* p;rris ol'{lcunl3,'s llrlip;.riionr;'itncisr llte Agrecttttrttt. A}} pavtlrcnts aild.
r.cinrhuijscrncnt"^ ritrnclc by Countr'rallcr ihc datc rl'tl:is rlssignnittrt ic lhc n*n":e al'cr t* [ht:

Assig,por -thail lrlve the sanr* lirie* arrd *f]-*ct as if maele to lir* As*cigi?e*, atl{i s}rallcottslitut* a

coir:$letc clis*harg*. ct'Cor"inty's obligiitioLrs urider thr: A61x:*mcnt, to thc e xtcnl cl'1]t* ilrulounls
piriii nl reimbursed.

otlr*i tlxlu lhosc: ihal. C*nr;t-v in th* abse,nce a{'tl,is lrnnsl"er m: Assil3lttttent rvcttiil lxtv* b*en
obiigated xd pat- or t'*:imbr"trsc unrler 1he t*nrs ol th* Ag,rcetn*t"tl.

{ili 'i he Assignol gr:nlmrlces pilyalenf *i'all liabilities ancl ti:e pcr{*rnralree r:f all
r,rbii g*i.i oxs lh*{ 1 hc Assr i g,rLc,* :

ill Assurucs \tttLler ltris Asxiglinl*nl; t.tt:

{2) May unr^lr,:r'tlili,: in the lllrirc shoulrl this Aglec*reul }:s r"rtodjljc,cl utrdel'thcjt'
legrrs *nC cc'ndiliols. tl'he 

Assigir<]t witivcs 111;{lr)rJ of, an.{ coltscnts ttl. anv sLrtrir fi.rlurc
rnodilrcn(ioiis.

(i) 'l'Ire Agr*cmr:iit shallrcm*in in firil li:r'i",c lrrd cfir:ct, e;\rnl)l as tlrtriliJictl l.ri'lltis
Assigruirixrt. tliacii pe*1y has *xecuied tliis As.sitrlnnrrlut as o1'Lh* day ,,tt,d 1ri'irl' Jit:,{ rtlrtr'9 r"'t'i{tet'r.

As$il-lnritrrii ;ilr(l No?atiori

P-;{60 ('{- 15) Ilage 2 nt'5 f drttr,l



4, $*venni*rg Lxiv. This Assignri*lr', slrall i:c guverncd i:,1' 1L,, lall,s oi'llir: $tatc *j'
C*lili::'niil. ivilhout regilril tn iis ccrr{1icl ol iarl.s p: lrrri1:les.

5. !:{*aeiings. .,\}l seclion hendinSis *nil i:nplions couleiined in l"his Assigrunent atc tbr
fs{trence only aird sl:;rll not be cansi<jered in construirrg this Assitr;:r.m*nt,

6. Fxlt$n* Agr**m*nf . This A-rsignntf;nl $e1s fcrtFr tlr* *nlir* iigrccnreut l)stwiliJn i\ssiglor
i:nd Assigr:r.e rel;rting; io lh* Agrcemcrt iinrJ .sxp*rsed*s *11 rrilr*r *r'irl ol writtctt ptnvisiotts,

'l . }:'xrtfu*r Asssr*nr*s. i;rum ai'uJ n{}er thi: eiat* al t}ris Assigr:rncnl, Assign*r nlid
Assigiree r;gree t{} clo srr*h lhings,.p*lfi:*:r riuoh rtci.$, anei rnalic. exeoute, aclinorvl*tigc and
del ivcr i;uch <ltcirrr:snl$ as nray t:* r'easrn;+bly n*ccssar',v t:r proper antJ usuai 1s conipJele the
tlnveyanr:d cori.ten:;:iated b3r ti:is Assign*r*nl ilr a:i r-:liiy h*: r*quirr:ri b3'Cr.run{y.

B. {ns*r*n*s il*r{ifi*:r1*s. Fr:r this Assignmcnl and Novfrtion to lt* *fl"ee tiv*, Assignec
shall plovirii: to {:ounty insur*n*t: c*r'{ilir:;rtcs and cnilorserncnls Icr the. irii:ntical lrrrpe and
firrlGunt of cav*r'age curren{ly l'cquireci irucler the. Agr*em*nI.

t. $el',:,rghi*ity. $houlrt the applir:atisru tilurv pmvilirtt ol"this Asriigrrrtr*:rtt to any'
pilr{icr.rl*r {'tu.'tu or ciri:unrslanees b* ibxnrl by a r.:tlLrrl ol *rrttpi:{er;t.jur:isilictit.oti tr: bs invrilitl ex

urrr,nlbrceiible. tlrcrr 1a) tlrr: rraliiJity of oth*r'prryisio:ts r.rf this Assignnrcnt shall rrnt l:;e aff*c.t*d
rr irnpr:ired ther*by ir:C 1tr1 sueh $r*r,ision shnll be crifoL'ccd lo 1he-tnsximuttr extent pcssii:lc so

es {o efiect tir* inletit af'Assignor, Assigr,i:c *r:lil Counlir,

10 Su*e.*sserrsl '$'h$rct-X)$y*v &$cmeii*$ru'ics, $Lrb,iect to litc iertxs erl'th* Agreernerrt, tlris
ArsignnLenf sh*ll be binding upon, iiud inurc-: t* the beneiii *l lhe 1ti:rties her*lc and th*:ir
succissor:s ilnd assigr:s. N, ilrirrg in rhis .{ssignni*nt, rv}:eth*r expr*s$ or iriilrlicd, s}rall h*
oonsinr*d lll girrll ariy p*rs*n or el:lity (other: ih*n Couniy nrtd {i:u-. piuli(rs ltcreto atrd lhi:li
rr::.lprr:r:tirie r,,ic*ssorit irui assigns) nriy'le gal ol ecguitahle right, rernecly ol' clitirn ttttdcr or in
r'*spect Eri'this Assignnient or any c<rtjer"ranls, eo:rditic*ts *r trrrovisians corttnined Jr*rein"

1l i\alirt:s. All lt*:tiLr(r, {.rolt:i,i:.lttir, ilirr.'L:1ions, nltpr*vrls, ittsltttr:litns, l{qiltilif$ ltnrl r'l}tr:r
c*rurnrrrri*irlions r',.:1.,1irrr.linF, thir r\:;si1-1:rrirrrrl rtr the ";ilirt,rtttr:ttt "'iltlll ht'itt writir.16. sli;ill 1:*

{irst olass. c*l'ti{l;d }viih leiurn rccril:t r*ep.r*-ttcd anrlr,vith *pprtpriute poslagr"", ib) liand
dcliver*cl*r'(cl scnt via fir*sirrrilt: (iin facsiuril* numb,:l i.s pr::r,idcd i:el*lv), All
cilli^illl*ni$:]linis scrnt in acccreliln{:c with tl;is Secti*n shall br:c*nre cf'lcctive cn lhe rl,:te ol
reccipt. Frtnr tims,;ir lim$ Assigrrcr, :\ssign** *r {-lounty may designal* a tli}}v acldress {br

ixll'poriils r:r{'ihis Sr:cliolr l'ry no{ice lr-r fhi: r:tircr'-ri$wriolies k: i.his r\ssignmcnl.

I1'tr-r Assig,n*n
Linela lr4-re lnrn, Plesidenl
13100 Nevv Airpr:rt R*arJ, $uil* l0l
Ar:burn. CA ?5602
t5l0) erl-3140.
li<irri;riilrin,,rrl.{r.r;li

Arlii,]rlr]itnl aild l.JD./irliiln

f-560 {4-r1l Page 3 ol5



I

1'1. ;$fisrut n{'{l*u:rf , lirr*h ollAssigtr*r: tnd As*ignc* ltul-inttu'ttr}gcs thilL tlic prinr r'vfilten

c*ns*rrt *f t.nurr(y l* thi* A*uip,nuren1. is r*qtrirrrd un<Jcr thc lct'ttlrr'oJ'{lte Agrt:*ttrctti' (l(lttfity

ifi[f f rr* *i tliir.ci-t',ii'ry n*ri*.fi*laiy otitl''iu Assignnrcnt aitri ,sh*l1 lrrro*c lirc ri6[rl tti crttfot'cc lltis

Assignm*nt.

If i* As*i6ne*

If io County:

A$x i&nrnen t arld Nilva!i0t1

P"5iiCI {4- l5}

Jos* I)*mingucz, lresicirnx
$outhTscir $ystems, ln*
4181 Flatrcck ilriv*, ,$uite 3{Xi
Riv*rsirie, tA f2505
(9si ) 3$4-filfl4
josc,rlcltttir:tur;ic0xt"iullrl*chsyste:r*s'*rxn

Inyo Ccunty
Kammi liocit*, Cl*rk Reoorele#Registr:ar

168 N, ll*lwart{s $t
Indepenil**cs, CA 9352S
(?$0i 878-0220
kli'}j]t. 'r ill\r,*g.lltril'.ri '

ag,e 4 ol'5 [,r]*t*l



'1

I1{ WITNSSS WHAR.SOF, Assignr:r and Assignes hi:ve *ech duly execritecl this Assignmcnt as

t>f th* date first rsferenced above.

,qs$I$N0R /iSSfftt-'lLiti

AtPac,lnc,
I 330t] t{rw Airyort Road,,S$its l{}l
Auburn, CA $5Si)?,

$<:nttr T*ch $ystems, Ine
4181 Fiatrock *rive, Suiie 300
Riverside; CA 925fi5

).

.. - 1^.-_1

Sy: Linda Maclam, Fresidsnt By: Sominguez, i)r*$irirrt r I

$ubject to $s*tion I ? of this Assignm*nt, fl*unty hereby con$snts to the as$i&ftrncnt and
novation describeel in $*erions ? *nd 3 of this Assignment,

CT}TJNTY

Ke*omrnentlecl byl Apprnv*d:

:;. .'s &'.: il. ,t r1 ftl ii . ,

I q. l;.i'l:]-.?'ir
Kammi Foote
ill *rk Rec*rdrr/R*.gi str;l r

.g'a

gFt.*.K -. ,r"il:"
Insert Hame; blar:lc Ttllen$ns
Title: Boa.r:d ChtrlrPereon

Approvntt ss t* Ilorn::

tl{SERT,NAMH
C*unty Attcrney

". .{ 
'i

- I t 'i J t

f i.,\ ir\-"r" {i;..-..{.-/\ }tlv

App*ndix A:
App*tidix 13:

Nar*e
Ileputy County Att*rney

Agleem*nf
Merger *scu:nents

ArniglrJnl:nl Brlrl N{!v[1iufl

I' .56$ t4 " t5) Pag* 5 ol5



4

\

8r 
^g 

|W& 4 -: h

w4 1A Z \ b4
4-J\5^j\-.4 E I I i

irilonc: (S51) 334-S104 ' iar: {9Sl) 354-S107

rvr:b: www,southt€chsy$t6'n$,c0nl

41Si Flat Rock $rive, Srite 300

Riversirle, Cnlit*nia 925il$

R*quest to Ass{gn Vendor Number

f ffective Date r:f Transfer: March 1",20L7

Client: lnya (aunty trspirtffisntt Karnmi Foote, Cl*rk Recarder/ftegistrar

Csmpany with current {ontr;}{t {Assign*r}
AtPar
13*00 New Airport Road, Suits 101

Ailburn, CA $${i0?
Linda Maclarn, CFt)

Fhone: {530} 887"3?58
f -Mail: lnraclam@egovinc.cont

Business Contact$ for Neut eompany

Jose Pominguet, Pr*sid*nt
f, -nail: Jose.dcmingueeS$outhtechsy*te*ts.ccnt

Grant Gyulnai-aryan, Vice Iltesidnnt, CFO

f-mail: r:r.1t'ri rtyitiiirir-ii\i1i:tii1i'..r.!illitt:,lp"y;!3L1;1_,1.Crlu

ecmpany assuming agr€rfi'l*nt {,4ssign*el
$oxthTech Systems, ln*
4181 Flat Rock Sriv*, Suits 300

Rlrrerside, CA 92505
Phone: {95J") 354-61"04

Type af entity: CA farPcratinn
Fed |D f 51-fi564578

{ontacl lnf*rrxatisn tor f{srthtrn Califcr*ia Sffiee

Fred*rick Garci*, G*neral Manag*r
133S0 New Alrpo$ fload, Suite lil1
Auburn, CA 95602
Fhcne: {530) 887-?25e

E " M aiI : fglr-t'g i,1,,', r', ","1ttgggt-l-t

l{obr.:rt Syulnazaryan, Csntracts Manager
f "mail: fii,i, 'ir ,'ftllir,, ;,; i.1!ri'r;'"rtlltlr', lr'." ir rrlli-(Oti.l

Clienr Vendor lD; V003382 To be assigned by Clienti

gostsrn*r Atkn*wledgement ef Req$s$t fur As*lgnrn*nt;

.J,f,:
r .. . ;. tu,. r.. ...:...

l;.i. tr-,i: ; .. : , '- L'

f"'{'ii.lr/ i''.i 1, ".;,,
,';

'. iit" . 1,"lrlr'),:rit I

fz:i..tr* }..lalte

t":,"f ':b I ., i

:tt i

Date

Titkr



County of Inyo

County Counsel
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Marshall Rudolph 
 
SUBJECT:  Special District Conflict of Interest Codes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Interest Code Biennial Reports from the following Local Agencies: 
Big Pine Community Services District, Big Pine Fire Protection District, Big Pine Unified School District, Darwin 
Community Services District, Independence Fire Protection District, Indian Creek Westridge Community Service 
District, Lone Pine Fire Protection District, Lone Pine Unified School District, Mt. Whitney Cemetery District, 
Owens Valley Unified School District, Pioneer Cemetery District, Northern Inyo Healthcare District, Sierra 
Highlands Community Service District, Sierra North Community Service District, Southern Inyo Healthcare 
District, and Starlite Community Service District; and B) receive and approve the amended Conflict of Interest 
Code for the the following Districts: Big Pine Unified School District and Southern Inyo Healthcare District. 
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In even numbered years, Government Code section 87306.5 requires all local agencies in the County with a 
conflict of interest code (Code) to review the Code and revise it as needed. The Code identifies decision makers 
within the Agency that are required to prepare and file with the Clerk/Recorder a Statement of Economic Interest, 
which is frequently identified as a Form 700.

The request to commence the review process is made by Inyo County Counsel. On January 24, 2020, the Office 
of County Counsel notified each district within Inyo County of its obligation to review its conflict of interest code 
and submit the required biennial report on or before October 1, 2020. There still remain nine (9) districts who 
have not submitted their conflict of interest code biennial reports to our office. 

We have received notices in the form of Biennial Reports from all of the agencies identified above and are 
attached hereto. Additionally, in conducting their biennial review, two (2) local agencies made necessary changes 
to their agency's conflict of interest code. 

Your Board is asked to receive the Biennial Reports and approve the Amended Conflict of Interest Codes 
identified herein.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

The Board may decline to approve and/or receive the biennial report or the amended conflict of interest code. 
Such action, however, would be contrary to the Board’s duties as the County’s conflict of interest code approving 
body.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
The recommended action results in no financial impact to the County of Inyo. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Big Pine Community Service District
2. Big Pine Fire Protection District
3. Big Pine Unified School District
4. Darwin Community Service District
5. Independence Fire Protection District
6. Indian Creek Westridge Community Service District
7. Lone Pine Fire Protection
8. Lone Pine Unified School District
9. Mt. Whitney Cemetery District
10. Northern Inyo Healthcare District
11. Owens Valley Unified School District
12. Pioneer Cemetery District
13. Sierra Highlands Community Service District
14. Southern Inyo Healthcare District
15. Starlite Community Service District
 
APPROVALS:
Cori Denault Created/Initiated - 10/9/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/9/2020
Marshall Rudolph Final Approval - 10/12/2020





















































































































County of Inyo

District Attorney
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Tom Hardy 
 
SUBJECT:  Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) – Victim/Witness Assistance Program Grant 
acceptance. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) authorize acceptance of the Inyo County Victim/Witness Assistance Program (VW 20 29 
0140) Grant from the Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) for Fiscal Year 2020-2021; and B) 
authorize the District Attorney to sign any documentation to accept and utilize the grant on behalf of the County.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
This is the (29th) twenty-ninth consecutive year we have applied for and been offered this grant.

For FY 20/21, the awarded grant total is $280,127 for the grant period of October 1, 2020 through September 30, 
2021. The Victim/Witness Assistance Program augments the services provided by the Office of the District 
Attorney including crisis intervention, emergency assistance, resource assistance, follow-up counseling, victim 
compensation, property return, orientation to the criminal justice system, court escort and support, presentation 
to criminal justice, victim service providers and the media, case status reports, notification of family and friends, 
employer notification, restitution assistance, creditor intervention, child care assistance, witness notification, 
funeral arrangement assistance, crime prevention information, temporary restraining order assistance, 
transportation, and court waiting area.

Service is provided to victims of all types of crime upon request, not only crimes prosecuted by the District 
Attorney. Contact is made in person, by letter, telephone and by field visits. The goal of the Victim/Witness 
Assistance Program is to help victims of crime proceed through the criminal justice system and their victimization 
with a sense of understanding and participation in the process with a resulting empowerment to become a 
survivor; no longer a victim.

We respectfully request your consideration of acceptance of this grant, which funds the Victim/Witness 
Coordinator’s and the Victim Advocate’s salaries and benefits at 100%. Further, we are able to fund 
approximately 30% of the Assistant to the District Attorney and 10% of the District Attorney Legal Secretary III 
salaries and benefits to save the general fund.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The Board has approved this CalOES grant for the last 28 years.
 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Without your Board's acceptance of the grant the project would be terminated.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Inyo Sheriff’s Department, Inyo Child and Adult Protective Services, Inyo County Probation Department, Bishop 
Police Department, California Highway Patrol, and Wild Iris Women’s Services.
 
FINANCING:
Grant amount is $280,127.  Budget Number 620420.  The County expends funds and then a claim is made to the 
State for reimbursement quarterly.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. CalOES Approval Letter Part 1 of 2 Dated 9.18.20
2. CalOES Approval Letter Part 2 of 2 Dated 9.18.20
 
APPROVALS:
Maureen McVicker Created/Initiated - 10/5/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/6/2020
Maureen McVicker Approved - 10/6/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/6/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/6/2020
Tom Hardy Final Approval - 10/6/2020





































































































County of Inyo

Environmental Health
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Walt Kruse 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract Between Inyo County Environmental Health Department and MBC Aquatic Services to 
Provide Microbiological Laboratory Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the contract between the Inyo County Environmental Health Department (Subcontractor) 
and MBC Aquatic Sciences (Contractor) for the provision of microbiological laboratory services, effective upon 
execution of the subcontract and Task Orders through August 12, 2025, and and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Inyo County Environmental Health Department operates the Inyo County Water Laboratory. The Laboratory 
performs water quality testing, including Colilert SM9223B, Quanti-tray 2000, Total Coliform and E. coli Bacterial 
Water Sampling. Sample testing has previously been conducted for MBC Aquatic Services from June 1, 2014 
through June 28, 2020. Approval of this Agreement will allow the Water Laboratory to continue providing these 
services. 

The Contract specifies that the Contractor will request water sampling analyses through the issuance of Task 
Orders which will be reviewed by the Subcontractor and signed when accepted. The Contractor will reimburse 
the costs of the laboratory tests and analyses at the negotiated rate of $65 per sample for such analyses 
providing for approximately 20 to 50 samples per week. If sampling fee increases occur during the contract time 
period, the contract specifies that a request for a modification in billing rates be made in writing to MBC.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to authorize this contract but that is not recommended since the staffing and 
supplies have been budgeted. Also, the Contractor would be forced to find an alternative laboratory which would 
present logistical problems for their project due to the remote nature and lack of service available in our county. 
The Environmental Health Department budget would lose approximately $65,000 to $162,500 per year in service 
revenues if the agenda request is not approved.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
None



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
FINANCING:
This is a continuation of budgeted services provided since 2014 for Environmental Health budget 045400, 
included in revenue object code 4723 and expense object code 5201.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Inyo County Environmental Health - LADWP Subcontract
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 10/20/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/20/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/20/2020
Walt Kruse Final Approval - 10/20/2020



SUBCONTRACT 

PLEASE INCLUDE 
THE FOLLOWING 

PROJECT NUMBER 
ON ALL 

CORRESPONDENCE 
AND INVOICES 

20308-2
CONTRACTOR: 

MBC AQUATIC SCIENCES 

3000 RED HILL AVENUE 

COSTA MESA, CA 92626 

(714) 850-4830  FAX  (714) 850-4840 

CLIENT: 

LOS ANGELES DEPT. OF WATER AND POWER 

111 N. HOPE STREET, ROOM 1213 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012 

SUBCONTRACTOR: 

INYO COUNTY EHD 

168 N. EDWARDS STREET 

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0261, WKRUSE@INYOCOUNTY.US 

ATTN:  WALTER L. KRUSE 

BUSINESS SIZE: 

(  )   LARGE         (  )   SMALL         (  )   SDB         (  )   WOSB 

SUBCONTRACT TYPE:  

COST NOT TO EXCEED 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF SUBCONTRACT: $O 

WORK SHALL BE STARTED: PER TASK ORDER 

WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED:  PER TASK ORDER 

THIS IS THE DEFINITIVE SUBCONTRACT AUTHORIZED 

BY THIS NOTICE TO PROCEED DATED: 13 AUGUST 2020 

This Consultant Agreement is entered into by and between MBC Aquatic Sciences (hereinafter called the "Contractor"), a corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and the Individual, Partnership, or Corporation (hereinafter called the 
"Subcontractor" or "Consultant").  The parties hereby agree as follows:  the Subcontractor shall furnish all labor, equipment, and 
material and perform all services set forth in the Statement of Work and all other sections designated in the Table of Contents below. 
This Consultant Agreement consists of this Subcontract and all documents listed in the Table of Contents below all of which shall be 
deemed incorporated into the Subcontract.  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

THIS SUBCONTRACT CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS:

SEC. REV. DESCRIPTION OF CONTENTS NO. REV.  DESCRIPTION OF ATTACHMENTS 

A 

B 

C 

D 

4/14 

4/14 

2/13 

2/13 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

7/2020 

7/2020 

7/2020 

7/2020 

1 – APPROVED RATES 

2- RELEVANT SECTIONS FROM PRIME 

AGREEMENT 

REFER ALL QUESTIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE TO: 
MBC Aquatic Sciences 
3000 Red Hill Avenue 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
(714) 850-4830  Fax  (714) 850-4840 
Attn:  SHANE BECK (SBECK@MBCAQUATIC.COM) 

MAIL INVOICES TO : 

MBC Aquatic Sciences 
3000 Red Hill Avenue 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
(714) 850-4830  Fax  (714) 850-4840 
Attn:  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

CHECK APPROPRIATE BOX: 

 Individual 

 Partnership 

 Incorporated 
            (State: _________) 

Note: If Subcontractor is a Corporation, the following certification MUST BE COMPLETED IN FULL:   

I ____________________________, certify that I am Secretary of the Corporation named as the 

Subcontractor herein, that _________________________  who signed this Subcontract on behalf of 

the Subcontractor was then _________________________ of said Corporation, that said 

Subcontract was duly signed for and on behalf of said Corporation by authority of its governing 

body, and is within the scope of its Corporate powers.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS SUBCONTRACT AS OF THE DATE SHOWN BELOW. 
THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS SUBCONTRACT REMAINS AS ENTERED ABOVE. 

MBC AQUATIC SCIENCES 

SIGNATURE   

TITLE              PRESIDENT 

DATE:_____________________________________________ 

INYO COUNTY 

SIGNATURE  

TITLE  

DATE 
20 October 2020



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 2 

SECTION A - STATEMENT OF WORK 

A1. SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work (“Scope of Work”) to be provided by Subcontractor is subject to Subcontractor 
receiving MBC’s written authorization to perform such services. The general description of services to be 
provided by Subcontractor is as follows: 

 Microbiological laboratory services related to NPDES receiving water monitoring 

Subcontractor will be assigned specific tasks by MBC through the issuance of Task Orders. These Task 
Orders will be for elements of work identified in MBC’s Task Orders with LADWP. Each Task Order will 
identify and designate the Subcontractor’s Scope of Work, period of performance, budget, and project 
schedule. A sample Task Order is provided on the following page. 

MBC may adjust the Scope of Work in the Task Orders at MBC’s convenience by either adding or 
deleting from the services to be performed. If such adjustment increases or decreases the cost or time 
required for Subcontractor’s Scope of Work, adjusted compensation will be mutually agreed upon in 
writing. Additional services provided by Subcontractor will be entitled to additional compensation or 
extension of time only as authorized in writing by LADWP. All services under this Subcontract shall be 
completed prior to August 12, 2025.  
 

A2. SUBCONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

Subcontractor  shall perform the tasks and be responsible for work outlined in each Task Order issued by  
MBC Aquatic Sciences (“MBC”) in accordance with such executed Task Order. 
 

A3. SCHEDULE 

Subcontractor  will adhere to the start and end dates as outlined in the Task Order and in accordance 
with the Scope of Work outlined in A1. 
 

A4. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 

Subcontractor shall start Services as soon as possible upon execution of this Subcontract and execution  
of Task Orders. Subcontractor shall complete all Services by August 12, 2025. Subcontractor shall 
pursue the Services diligently and provide sufficient manpower, materials, tools, and equipment, and shall 
complete the Services by the date stated in this Agreement and the associated Task Orders. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 3 

 

Sample Task Authorization 

Contract No. 20307 

Task Order No. 1A 

Client: Los Angeles Dept. of Water and Power 

Company: Inyo County Water Laboratory 

Address: 168 N Edwards Street, P O Box 427, Independence, CA  93526 

Attention: Kathe Barton 

 

You are hereby authorized to proceed with the following: 

Scope of Work: TBD 

 

Schedule: TBD 

 

Budget: TBD 

Key Personnel: TBD 

Special Provisions: TBD 

Alpha Env. is bound by the terms and conditions of executed Subcontract No. 20308-2. 

Please countersign below and return by email to acknowledge your acceptance of this task. 

 

Sincerely, 

MBC Aquatic Sciences  Inyo County Water Laboratory 

 

 

  

Shane Beck, President  Kathe Barton, Lab Director 

Date:    Date:  

 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 4 

 

SECTION B - COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT 

B1. COMPENSATION 

The compensation payable to Subcontractor will be the amount designated in  each Task Order executed 
by both MBC and Subcontractor and equal to the hourly billing rate for Subcontractor’s personnel 
assigned to perform the services for the actual time they are engaged in performing services for each 
Task Order, plus reasonable reimbursable expenses, not to exceed an agreed upon total Subcontractor 
budget ceiling within a given Task Order. The hourly rate schedule for Subcontractor is included as 
Attachment 1. Any requests for changes (i.e., addition and/or deletion) in Subcontractor personnel, or a 
request for a modification in billing rates promotion(s) of Subcontractor staff, must be made in writing to 
MBC. Such changes are subject to LADWP approval. 

Reimbursable expenses include the actual and reasonable costs (without markup) of required travel and 
subsistence expense of Subcontractor's personnel; reproduction costs; and postage and shipping 
charges for project-related materials in excess of ten dollars. All reimbursable direct costs shall be billed 
at cost and shall not exceed customary standards and be rendered in the performance of the Task Order. 
Reimbursable direct costs shall include: 

1) Travel, including per diem and auto rental, adhering to LADWP's Travel Policy (attached); 

2) Mileage, based at the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) allowable rate for that year, or auto 
 rental for approved field work; 

3) Laboratory tests and analyses; 

4) Freight service; 

5) Reasonable costs incurred for non-office equipment services owned or rented by Subcontractor 
 and 

6) Other direct costs as approved by LADWP or MBC. 

No markup of any kind shall be allowed for labor, travel expenses, reimbursable expenses, or 
subcontracting. 

 B2. INVOICES 

In order to be included in MBC’s monthly invoice to LADWP, Subconsultant’s properly prepared invoice 
must be sent to sbeck@mbcaquatic.com within seven business days following the last Friday of each 
month. Invoices not received by then will be incorporated into MBC’s invoice to LADWP in the 
subsequent billing month and MBC shall not be liable to Subconsultant for any late payment or other fees 
as a result. If any invoice is not prepared in conformance with the reasonable guidelines proscribed by 
MBC, MBC will timely notify Subcontractor of such deficiency.  

Contractor shall pay Subcontractor within seven (7) days of receipt of payment from the Client for 
services rendered hereunder. Such invoices shall be approved by the Contractor before payment.  
Subcontractor shall submit itemized invoices showing days and dates worked and tasks performed by 
Subcontractor, or any of Subcontractor’s employees, and the cost of such services.  Subcontractor will 
provide supporting documentation substantiating incurred expenses and shall accompany invoices 
rendered to MBC. Payments made on such invoices shall relieve Contractor of all further obligations for 
such payments. 
 

B3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES / CHANGES 

All additional services shall be determined in accordance with the Changes clause of the General 
Provisions of this Subcontract. 
 
 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 5 

B4. LIMITATION OF FUNDS 

If at any time Subcontractor has reason to believe that the total cost that it expects to incur in the 
performance of the work will exceed the total not-to-exceed amount set forth in the applicable Task Order, 
Subcontractor shall notify the Contractor's Subcontract Administrator in writing to that effect, giving its 
revised estimate to complete the work under this Contract. 
 
Subcontractor shall not be obligated to perform and the Contractor shall not be obligated to pay costs in 
excess of the total not-to-exceed amount specified unless the Subcontractor is notified in writing that such 
amount has been increased. 
 

B5. FINAL PAYMENT 

The acceptance by Subcontractor of final payment under this contract shall operate as a full release of 
Contractor from any and all payment claims of Subcontractor and its agents for all services performed 
hereunder. 
 

B6. AUDIT 

Contractor’s duly authorized representatives shall have access at all reasonable times to all records, 
documents, files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify Subcontractor's charges to Contractor for 
work performed and invoiced by Subcontractor.  Subcontractor shall retain records, documents, and files 
related to such charges for a period of three (3) years following the date of receipt of samples and will 
make them available during any such audit.  Contractor's representatives shall have the right to 
reproduce any of the aforesaid documents. 
 
If, as the result of an audit hereunder, Subcontractor is determined to have charged Contractor for 
amounts that are not allocable or non-verifiable, Subcontractor shall promptly reimburse Contractor for 
said amounts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 6 

 
 

SECTION C - SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

C1. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND TAXES 

Subcontractor shall have full and exclusive liability for the reporting and payment of any and all taxes and 
contributions for unemployment insurance, retirement benefits, and similar pensions, and annuities that 
may now or hereafter be imposed by the United States, any state, or any local governmental authority, 
whether measured by the wages, salaries, or remuneration paid to persons employed by Subcontractor 
or otherwise, for the Services.  Subcontractor shall comply with all federal and state laws on such 
subjects, including all rules and regulations and shall maintain suitable forms, books, and records. 

C2. GENERAL INSURANCE 

Subcontractor, from time of start of the Services hereunder until completion of the Services, shall provide 
at its own expense and maintain in effect the types and amounts of insurance specified summarized 
below, with terms and with insurance companies satisfactory to the Contractor: 

 Worker’s Compensation / Employer’s Liability ($1,000,000 per occurrence). If the performance of 
this Subcontract requires the use of watercraft or is performed over water, Subcontractor shall 
also provide coverage for liability under U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' 
Compensation Act and liability for admiralty benefits and damages under the Jones Act and 
further provide that a claim "in rem" shall be treated as a claim against the employer. 

 Automobile Liability ($1,000,000 per accident) for owned, non-owned, and hired autos, and 
Additional Insured. 

 General Liability ($3,000,000 per occurrence) including Broad Form Property Damage, 
Contractual Liability, Personal Injury, Premises and Operations, Products/Completed Ops., 
Additional Insured Status, and a Waiver of Subrogation. 

 Professional Liability ($3,000,000 per occurrence) including Contractual Liability and Errors and 
Omissions coverage. 

C3. PRIME CONTRACT PROVISIONS 

The following provisions from the Contract between Contractor and Client are incorporated into this 
Subcontract Agreement. 
 

 5.3.2 Subconsultant Subcontracting 
 Subconsultants may not subcontract or delegate assigned work unless Consultant 
obtains LADWP’s prior written consent. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 7 

 Article VII, Ownership 
 
7.1 Ownership Rights 

 It is understood and agreed that the deliverables are being developed by the Consultant for the 
sole and exclusive use of LADWP and that LADWP shall be deemed the sole and exclusive owner of 
all right, title, and interest therein, including all copyright and proprietary rights relating thereto. All 
work performed by the Consultant on deliverables and any supporting documentation therefor shall 
be considered as "Works-Made-for-Hire" (as such are defined under the U.S. Copyright Laws and 
international treaties) and, as such, shall be owned by and for the benefit of LADWP. LADWP owns 
any and all trademarks, patents, copyrights, and any other intellectual property rights for any and all 
deliverables generated as a result of this Agreement, regardless of the state of completion of said 
deliverables. 
 
 In the event it should be determined that any such deliverables or supporting documentation, or 
parts thereof, do not qualify as a "Works-Made-for-Hire," the Consultant shall and hereby does 
transfer and assign to LADWP for no additional consideration, all rights, title, and interest that it may 
possess in such deliverables and documentation including, but not limited to, all copyrights to the 
work and all rights comprised therein, and all proprietary rights relating thereto. 
 
 Upon request, the Consultant shall take such steps as are reasonably necessary to enable 
LADWP to record such assignment. Further, the Consultant shall contractually require all persons 
performing under this Agreement, including all Subconsultants, to assign to LADWP all rights, title, 
and interest, including copyrights to all such "Works-Made-for-Hire." 
 
 7.1.1 Use of Deliverables 
 LADWP has the right to use or not use the deliverables and to use, reproduce, re-use, alter, 
modify, edit, or change the deliverables as it sees fit and for any purpose. If LADWP determines that 
a deliverable, or any part thereof, requires correction prior to LADWP approval, LADWP has the 
absolute right to use the deliverable until such time as the Consultant can remedy the identified 
deficiency. 
 
 7.1.2 Execution of Ownership Documents 
 The Consultant shall sign, upon request, any documents needed to confirm that the deliverables 
or any portion thereof are "Works-Made-for-Hire" and to effectuate the assignment of its rights to 
LADWP. 
 
 7.2 Warranty Against Infringement 
 
 The Consultant warrants that the performance of the services by the Consultant or its 
Subconsultants of any tier, pursuant to this Agreement, shall not in any manner constitute an 
infringement or other violation of any trademark, copyright, patent and/or trade secret of any third 
party. 
 
 7.3 Survival of Provisions 
 The provisions of this Article VII, Ownership, shall survive termination and expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
 

 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 8 

 Article VIII, Confidentiality and Restrictions on Disclosure 

 8.1 Confidentiality 

All documents, records, and information provided by LADWP or MBC to the Consultant, or 
accessed or reviewed by the Consultant, during performance of this Agreement shall remain the 
property of LADWP. All documents, records and information provided by LADWP or MBC to the 
Consultant, or accessed or reviewed by the Consultant during performance of this Agreement, are 
deemed confidential. The Consultant agrees not to provide these documents and records, nor 
disclose their content or any information contained in them, either orally or in writing, to any other 
person or entity except as required by law. The Consultant agrees that all documents, records, or 
other information used or reviewed in connection with the Consultant's work for LADWP through this 
Agreement with MBC shall be used only for the purpose of carrying out LADWP business and cannot 
be used for any other purpose. The Consultant shall be responsible for protecting the confidentiality 
and maintaining the security of LADWP documents, records, and information in its possession, to the 
extent provided for by law. The provisions of this Article VIII, Confidentiality and Restrictions on 
Disclosure shall survive termination and expiration of this Agreement. 

 

 GC-10, Non Discrimination/Equal Employment Practices/Affirmative Action  
 
A. Non Discrimination and Equal Employment Practices 
The Agreement shall comply with the provisions of Los Angeles Administrative Code Section 
10.8.2, Non-Discrimination Clause and Section 10.8.3, Equal Employment Practices. By affixing 
its signatures on the Agreement that is subject to the Equal Employment Practices Provisions, the 
Consultant shall agree to adhere to the provisions in the Equal Employment Practices Provisions 
for the duration of the Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, the Consultant shall include similar provisions in all subcontracts awarded for work 
to be performed under the Agreement with LADWP and shall impose the same obligations. The 
contract with the Subconsultant that contains similar language shall be made available to LADWP 
upon request. This Subcontractor shall comply with the provisions of Los Angeles Administrative 
Code Section 10.8.2, Non-Discrimination Clause and Section 10.8.3, Equal Employment 
Practices. The Subcontractor shall agree to adhere to the provisions in the Equal Employment 
Practices Provisions for the duration of the Agreement. 
 
B. Affirmative Action Program 
The Agreement shall comply with the provisions of Los Angeles Administrative Code 10.8.4, 
Affirmative Action Program. By affixing its signature on the Agreement that is subject to the 
Affirmative Action Program provisions, the Consultant shall agree to adhere to the provisions in 
the Affirmative Action Program for the duration of the Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, the Consultant shall include similar provisions in all subcontracts awarded for work 
to be performed under the Agreement with LADWP and shall impose the same obligations. The 
contract with the Subconsultant that contains similar language shall be made available to LADWP 
upon request. The Subcontractor shall agree to adhere to the provisions of Los Angeles 
Administrative Code 10.8.4, Affirmative Action Program.  
 

 GC-15 Child Support Policy 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 9 

 The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must fully comply with all applicable State and 
Federal employment reporting requirements for the Consultant’s and any Subconsultant(s )’ 
employees. The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must fully comply with all lawfully served 
Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment in accordance with the 
California Family Code. The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must certify that the principal 
owner(s) thereof (any person who owns an interest of 10 percent or more) are in compliance with 
any Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders or Notices of Assignment applicable to them 
personally. The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must certify that such compliance will be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. Failure of the Consultant and/or any 
Subconsultant(s) to fully comply with all applicablereporting requirements or to implement lawfully 
served Wage and Earnings Assignments or Notices of Assignment or failure of the principal 
owner(s) to comply with any Wage and Earnings Assignments or Notices of Assignment 
applicable to them personally shall constitute a default under this Agreement. Failure of the 
Consultant and/or any Subconsultant(s) or principal owner(s) thereof to cure the default within 
ninety (90) calendar days of notice of such default by LADWP shall subject this Agreement to 
termination. 
 
 The Consultant will contractually require all Subconsultants performing services under 
this Agreement to comply with the provisions of this section. 
 

 GC-26 Bidder Campaign Contribution and Fundraising Restrictions (also from RFP, App. K) 
 In accordance with the City of Los Angeles Charter Section 470(c)(12) and related 
ordinances, bidders may not make campaign contributions to and or engage in fundraising for 
certain elected City officials or candidates for elected City office from the time they submit a bid to 
LADWP until either the contract is awarded or, for successful bidders, 12 months after the 
contract is executed. The bidder's principals and subcontractors performing $100,000 or more in 
work on the contract, as well as the principals of those subcontractors, are also subject to the 
same limitations on campaign contributions and fundraising. 
 
The Consultant shall comply with the City Ethics Commission’s “CEC Form 55” (3 pages) 
affidavit. The affidavit requires bidders to identify their principals, their subcontractors performing 
$100,000 or more in work on the contract, and the principals of those subcontractors. Consultants 
shall also notify their principals and subcontractors in writing of the restrictions and include the 
notice in contracts with subcontractors. Consultants who fail to comply with City law may be 
subject to penalties, termination of contract, and debarment. Additional information regarding 
these restrictions and requirements may be obtained from the City Ethics Commission at (213) 
978-1960 or ethics.lacity.org. 

SP-17, Security Policy and Requirements 

The Consultant is required to adhere to all physical and cyber-related security policies, standards, 
requirements and procedures (collectively, “Security Requirements”), applicable to the project. All 
Consultant personnel, equipment, products, services, and Subconsultants involved with the work must 
adhere to all applicable Security Requirements throughout the duration of the Agreement or any 
extensions or amendments thereof. Security Requirements may be imposed by LADWP policy, or by 
Federal, State or Local laws, regulations or industry practices, including, without limitation, requirements 
that may be imposed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the North American Electric 
Reliability Corporation (NERC), the Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) the Department of 
Energy (DOE), the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS). 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 10 

Inability to meet the Security Requirements may be considered when evaluating the Consultant for 
consideration and award, including extensions or amendments to existing agreements. As security 
regulations and practices change over time, amendments and extensions to existing agreements may 
include additional Security Requirements not present in earlier agreements. 

 City of Los Angeles Responsibility Questionnaire 

 Subcontractor is to fill out completely and submit the Responsibility Questionnaire to contact 
person listed on the cover sheet of this Subcontract. 

. 

 

             
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 11 

SECTION D - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1 DEFINITIONS .............................................. 11 
2 GOVERNING LAW ...................................... 11 
3 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR ................. 11 
4 TAXES, DUTIES, PERMITS, AND FEES .... 11 
5 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND 

TAXES ......................................................... 12 
6 INSURANCE ................................................ 12 
7 LAWS AND REGULATIONS ....................... 13 
8 TIME OF PERFORMANCE ......................... 13 
9 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS ........... 13 
10 WARRANTIES ........................................... 13 
11 CHANGES AND EXTRA WORK ............... 13 
12 OVERTIME ................................................ 14 
13 LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, AND CLAIMS 14 
14 PATENTS AND ROYALTIES ..................... 14 
15 INDEMNIFICATION ................................... 14 
16 SUBCONTRACTOR'S FINAL RELEASE 

CERTIFICATE AND INDEMNIFICATION ... 15 
17 TERMINATION .......................................... 15 
18 SUSPENSION OF WORK ......................... 15 
19 NOTICE OF THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 

AGAINST THE SUBCONTRACTOR .......... 15 
20 NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE ..... 15 
21 DISPUTES ................................................. 16 
22 ASSIGNMENT ........................................... 16 
23 CONFIDENTIALITY OF ALL DRAWINGS, 

SPECIFICATIONS, AND PLANS ................ 16 
24 RELEASE OF NEWS INFORMATION ...... 17 
25 COMMUNICATIONS……………………….17 
26 GRATUITIES .............................................. 17 
27 RIGHTS, REMEDIES AND WAIVER ......... 17 
28 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE ...................... 17 
29 OFFSET ..................................................... 17 
30 SEVERABILITY .......................................... 17 
31 ENTIRE AGREEMENT .............................. 17 
 

1 DEFINITIONS 

As used throughout this Subcontract, the 
following terms and expressions have the 
meanings and interpretation set forth below: 

A. "Subcontract" means this written contract  
executed between Contractor and 
Subcontractor. 

B. "Services" and/or "Work" mean all services, 
labor, material and actions necessary for the 
performance of this Subcontract. 

C. "Prime Contract" means the contract 
between Contractor and Contractor's Client 
in support of which this Subcontract is 
issued, including any amendments thereto. 

D. "Contractor" means the entity identified as 
such on the face page of this Subcontract. 

E. "Subcontractor" means the entity, and all of 
its lower tier subcontractors, identified as 
such on the face page of this Subcontract. 

F. "Client" and/or "Owner" refers to the entity 
identified as Client on the face page of this 
Subcontract. 

G. "Subcontract Administrator" refers to 
Contractor's Procurement Department 
representative assigned to administer this 
Subcontract. 

H. "Subcontract Price" refers to the total price 
as set forth in Paragraph 1, Compensation 
and Payment section of this Subcontract. 

I. "Site", "Worksite" and/or "Jobsite" refer to 
Client’s premises associated with the Prime 
Contract. 

2 GOVERNING LAW 

This Subcontract shall be interpreted and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of California. 

3 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Subcontractor shall be an independent 
contractor in all its operations and activities 
hereunder, and all employees furnished by 
Subcontractor to perform the Services shall be 
deemed to be Subcontractor's employees 
exclusively; and shall be paid by Subcontractor 
for all services in this connection. Subcontractor 
is not authorized to represent Contractor or 
otherwise bind Contractor in any dealings 
between Subcontractor and any third parties. 

4 TAXES, DUTIES, PERMITS, AND FEES 

Subcontractor shall be responsible for all taxes, 
duties, permits, or fees necessary for the 
performance of the Services. 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 12 

5 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE AND 
TAXES 

Subcontractor shall have full and exclusive 
liability for the reporting and payment of any and 
all taxes and contributions for unemployment 
insurance, old age retirement benefits and 
similar pensions, and annuities that may now or 
hereafter be imposed by the United States, any 
state, or any local governmental authority, 
whether measured by the wages, salaries, or 
remuneration paid to persons employed by 
Subcontractor or otherwise, for the Services.  
Subcontractor shall comply with all federal and 
state laws on such subjects, including all rules 
and regulations and shall maintain suitable 
forms, books, and records. 

6 INSURANCE 

Subcontractor, from the time of start of the 
Services hereunder until completion of the 
Services, shall provide at its own expense and 
maintain in effect the following types and 
amounts of insurance with terms and with 
insurance companies satisfactory to the 
Contractor: 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance and 
Employer's Liability Insurance including 
occupational disease in accordance with the 
laws of States or Provinces where the 
Services are to be performed.  Employer's 
Liability Insurance will have a limit of 
$1,000,000 per occurrence. 

If the performance of this Subcontract 
requires the use of watercraft or is 
performed over water, Subcontractor shall 
also provide coverage for liability under U.S. 
Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' 
Compensation Act and liability for admiralty 
benefits and damages under the Jones Act 
and further provide that a claim "in rem" 
shall be treated as a claim against the 
employer. 

B. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, 
including contractual liability, broad form 
property damage, personal injury, premises 
and operations, and Products Completed 
Operations coverage with limits of 
$3,000,000 each occurrence. 

C. Automobile Liability Insurance covering 
owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used 
by Subcontractor with limits of not less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and 
property damage. 

If Subcontractor's Comprehensive General 
Liability Insurance and Auto Liability 
Insurance are combined forming one policy 
and one limit of liability, the limits shall not 
be less than $1,000,000 combined single 
limit. 

D. Professional Liability Insurance, including 
contractual liability and Errors & Omissions 
with a limit of at least $3,000,000 each 
occurrence. 

E. If the performance of this Subcontract 
requires the use of watercraft, Subcontractor 
shall carry, or require the owners of such 
watercraft to carry: 

1. Hull and Machinery (including Collision 
Liability) Insurance in an amount not 
less than the market value of the 
watercraft  (Charterer's and/or Owner's 
Limitation Clause to be deleted) and, 

2. Protection and Indemnity Insurance in 
an amount of $1,000,000. 

F. If the performance of this Subcontract 
requires the use of aircraft, Subcontractor 
shall carry, or require the owners of such 
aircraft to carry: 

1. All Risks Hull Insurance in an amount 
equal to the replacement value of the 
aircraft, and 

2. Bodily Injury Liability, including 
Passenger Liability of $1,000,000 
applicable to any one person and 
$1,000,000 for more than one person in 
any occurrence and $1,000,000 for loss 
of or damage to property in any one 
occurrence. 

G. Other Requirements 

1. Additional Insured: As to insurance set 
out in Paragraphs B, C, E.1, E.2, F.1, 
and F.2, Contractor and Client shall be 
included as an additional insured. 

2. Waiver of Subrogation: All policies 
except for Professional Liability shall be 
endorsed to provide that underwriters 
and insurance companies of 
Subcontractor shall not have any right of 
subrogation against Contractor or Client 
or any of its parents, subsidiaries, 
agents, employees, invitees, servants, 
subcontractors, insurers, underwriters, 
and such other parties as they may 
designate. 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 13 

3. Primary Insurance:  All policies except 
for Professional Liability and Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance shall be 
endorsed to provide that, with respect to 
Subcontractor's Services, 
Subcontractor's insurance shall always 
be primary coverage with respect to any 
insurance that may be maintained by 
Contractor or Client. 

4. Notice of Cancellation: All policies shall 
be endorsed to provide that thirty (30) 
days prior written notice shall be given 
to Contractor in the event of cancellation 
in the policies. 

5. Subcontractor at all times shall waive 
any right of recovery against Contractor 
or Client or any of their parents, 
subsidiaries, affiliates, agents, 
employees, invitees, servants, 
subcontractors, insurers, underwriters, 
and such other parties as they may 
designate for loss or damage covered 
by insurance of the types specified in 
paragraphs B, C, E, and F above and 
the Excess Employers Liability 
Insurance. 

6. Certificates: Subcontractor shall furnish 
Certificates of Insurance evidencing 
insurance required hereunder before the 
start of any Services. 

Certificates of Insurance shall include 
specific reference to compliance with 
Paragraphs G.1, G.2, G.3, and G.4. 

7 LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

A. Subcontractor, its employees, and 
representatives, shall at all times comply 
with any and all applicable laws, ordinances, 
statutes, rules, and regulations, of the 
federal, state, or local government, including 
but expressly not limited to those relating to 
wages, hours, and working conditions.  
Subcontractor shall procure and pay for all 
permits and inspections required by any 
governmental authority for any part of the 
Services. 

B. Subcontractor shall comply with all 
applicable laws, executive orders, and 
regulations concerning nondiscrimination in 
employment (including the Equal 
Opportunity Clause of Section 202, 
Executive Order 11246, dated September 
24, 1965) 38 USC 2012, as amended by 
Section 402 of the Vietnam Veterans 

Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974 and 
Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, where are hereby incorporated herein 
by reference. 

8 TIME OF PERFORMANCE 

Time is of the essence in the performance of 
Subcontractor's obligations under this 
Subcontract; provided, however, Subcontractor 
will not be responsible for any delays in the 
performance of its Services hereunder by 
reason of acts of Contractor, Owner, any third 
party, or other causes beyond Subcontractor's 
reasonable control. In the event of the 
occurrence of any such delay, the period of 
performance or work schedule shall be extended 
or modified accordingly.   

9 PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Anything that may be called for in the 
specifications and not shown on the drawings, or 
shown on the drawings and not called for by the 
specifications, shall be of like effect as if called 
for and shown in both.  In the event of a conflict 
between the drawings and the specifications, the 
specifications shall govern.  If Subcontractor 
discovers any ambiguities or discrepancies, 
Subcontractor shall immediately submit the 
matter to Contractor for determination. 

10 WARRANTIES 

Subcontractor warrants that the Services to be 
performed pursuant to this Subcontract shall be 
performed in accordance with the standards 
customarily provided by an experienced and 
competent organization rendering the same or 
similar services.  Subcontractor shall reperform 
any of said services that were not performed in 
accordance with this standard at no cost to 
Contractor. No other warranty, express or 
implied, is made concerning work performed 
under this Subcontract, including 
Subcontractor’s findings, recommendations, 
specifications, or professional advice. 

11 CHANGES AND EXTRA WORK 

A. Contractor may at any time, by written order 
to Subcontractor, and prior notice, make 
changes in or additions to the specifications 
or drawings, require additional work or 
services, or delete Services covered by this 
Subcontract (collectively "Change").  If any 
such Change causes any increase or 
decrease in the cost of, or the time required 
for performance of this Subcontract, an 
equitable adjustment shall be made in the 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 14 

Subcontract Price or performance schedule, 
or both, and this Subcontract shall be 
modified in writing accordingly.  Any claim 
by Subcontractor for adjustment under this 
clause must be asserted within thirty (30) 
days from the date of receipt by 
Subcontractor of a written order from 
Contractor; provided, however, that 
Contractor may, in its discretion, receive and 
act upon any such claim at any time before 
final payment under this Subcontract.  The 
claim shall be submitted to Contractor's 
designated Subcontract Administrator.  
Subcontractor shall make no additions, 
changes, alterations, or omissions except 
upon the prior written order of Contractor. 

B. No change shall be binding on either 
Subcontractor or Contractor unless issued in 
writing and signed by both parties. 

12 OVERTIME 

Subcontractor shall operate on a straight time 
forty (40) hour work week.  Overtime incurred by 
Subcontractor to maintain the Subcontract 
delivery or completion schedule shall not be 
reimbursed by Contractor. 

13 LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, AND CLAIMS 

With respect to all Services provided by 
Subcontractor pursuant to this Subcontract:  (1) 
no liens or other encumbrances shall be filed by 
Subcontractor;  (2) Subcontractor expressly 
waives and relinquishes any and all rights to 
such liens or encumbrances;  (3) the waiver 
stated in (2) is an independent covenant 
supported by separate consideration included 
within the Subcontract Price; and  (4) 
Subcontractor shall ensure that a clause 
substantially similar to this clause 13 is included 
in all lower tier subcontracts issued hereunder. 

Contractor may, as a condition precedent to any 
payment, require Subcontractor to furnish 
complete waivers or releases of any and all such 
liens, charges, encumbrances, and claims.  
Waivers or releases must be furnished by 
Subcontractor covering all liens, charges, 
encumbrances, and claims as a condition to final 
payment. 

14 PATENTS AND ROYALTIES 

Subcontractor shall defend all suits and claims 
against Owner or Contractor, and shall hold 
each of them free and harmless, and hereby 
indemnifies Owner and Contractor from all 
liability, damages, costs, and royalties, including 

without limitation reasonable attorney fees, from: 
(a) any infringement or alleged infringement of 
any patent, or for the misuse of any patented 
article, by Subcontractor in the performance of 
the Services, or (b) the infringement or alleged 
infringement of any patent by Owner's use or 
operation of the Services following the 
completion thereof by Subcontractor, or (c) the 
unauthorized use or misuse, by Subcontractor 
during the performance of the Services, of any 
confidential information or secret processes. The 
foregoing provisions shall not apply to the extent 
that the Services were supplied in accordance 
with Contractor or Owner’s design or instructions 
where compliance therewith has caused 
Subcontractor to deviate from its normal course 
of performance, were modified by Contractor or 
Owner or were combined by Contractor or 
Owner with items not furnished hereunder and a 
suit or proceeding is brought against Contractor 
or Owner by reason of said design instruction, 
modification or combination. 

15 INDEMNIFICATION 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Subcontractor shall indemnify and hold harmless 
Contractor, its parent and affiliates (and the 
officers, directors, employees), and Client from 
and against any and all liabilities, claims, 
demands, damages, or costs, including, without 
limitation, settlement sums, attorney fees, 
consultant and expert fees (liabilities), to the 
extent caused by violation by Subcontractor of 
any applicable law pursuant to clause 7, and/or 
Subcontractor's grossly negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions in the performance of Services. 
Contractor assumes full and complete 
responsibility for all uses and applications of 
Subcontractor’s recommendations, or work 
under this Subcontract, or failure to use 
recommendations or work, and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law agrees to indemnify and 
hold harmless Subcontractor, its affiliates, 
officers, directors, employees, and stockholders 
against any and all liability, damages, losses, 
claims, demands, actions, causes of action, and 
costs including attorney’s fees and expenses 
(“Claims”) resulting from the death or injury to 
any person or damage to any property or any 
other alleged or actual damages resulting from 
the aforementioned use, application, or nonuse 
of Subcontractor’s recommendations or work 
under this Subcontract. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Contractor’s indemnification 
obligation shall not extend to those Claims that 
arise out of Subcontractor’s gross negligence or 
willful misconduct. 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 15 

16 SUBCONTRACTOR'S FINAL RELEASE 
CERTIFICATE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Not Applicable. 

17 TERMINATION 

A. Default: Should Subcontractor at any time 
refuse or neglect to supply sufficient and 
properly skilled workers, or fail in any 
respect to prosecute the Services or any 
separable portion, with promptness and 
diligence, or fail in the performance of any 
portion of this Subcontract required for the 
satisfactory completion of the Services, or 
become insolvent, Contractor may terminate 
this Subcontract for default, after forty-eight 
(48) hours written notice to Subcontractor to 
correct the deficiency. Contractor may also 
terminate Subcontractor's right to proceed 
with the Services or such part of the 
Services where defaults have occurred. 

B. Convenience: Should the Prime Contract be 
terminated or canceled pursuant to the 
terms thereof, or upon ten (10) days 
advance notice, Contractor may terminate 
this Subcontract by written notice to 
Subcontractor.  Such termination shall be 
effective in the manner specified in the 
notice and shall be without prejudice to any 
claims that Contractor or Owner may have 
against Subcontractor or that Subcontractor 
has against Contractor or Owner. 

C. Upon receipt of a termination notice 
pursuant to paragraphs A or B, above, 
Subcontractor shall, unless the notice 
directs otherwise, immediately discontinue 
the Services. 

D. In the event of a termination for default, 
Subcontractor shall not be entitled to receive 
any further payment, if any may then be 
due, until the Service is completed.  
Contractor may acquire, in the manner 
Contractor considers appropriate, services 
similar to the Services terminated for default.   

E. In the event this Subcontract is terminated 
for convenience, the obligations of this 
Subcontract shall continue as to Services 
already performed, as to obligations entered 
into by Subcontractor, before the date of 
termination and as to obligations not 
reasonably terminable thereafter.  
Subcontractor shall be entitled to relative 
proportions of the agreed Subcontract Price 
for the portions of the Services done before  
the effective date of termination.  

Subcontractor shall not be entitled to any 
profit or fee on unperformed Services. 

F. Subcontractor shall incorporate a 
termination clause substantially the same as 
set forth in this clause, in all purchase orders 
and subtier subcontracts. 

18 SUSPENSION OF WORK 

A. Contractor may at any time suspend 
performance of all or any part of the 
Services by giving not less than five (5) 
working days written notice to 
Subcontractor.  The suspension may be 
continued by Contractor for up to sixty (60) 
days during which period Contractor may at 
any time, by written notice, require 
Subcontractor to resume performance of the 
Services.  If at the end of the sixty (60) day 
period of suspension, Contractor has not 
required a resumption of the Service, that 
portion of the Service that has been 
suspended may be terminated by either 
party pursuant of the provisions of this 
paragraph.  Subcontractor shall be 
compensated in accordance with, and shall 
follow the procedures specified in Clause 
17, paragraphs C and E above. 

B. Contractor, shall not be liable for any 
damages, anticipated profits, or costs 
incurred with respect to suspended Services 
during any period of suspension. 

19 NOTICE OF THIRD PARTY CLAIMS 
AGAINST THE SUBCONTRACTOR 

Subcontractor shall give Contractor immediate 
notice of any suit or action filed, or any claims 
made, against Subcontractor arising out of the 
performance of this Subcontract or any lower-
tier subcontracts.  Subcontractor shall furnish 
immediately to Contractor copies of all 
documents received by Subcontractor pertinent 
to such actions, suits, or claims. 

20 NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE 

Unless otherwise indicated in the Special 
Provisions of this Subcontract, any notice or 
communication shall be considered as having 
been given to Subcontractor or Contractor, if 
mailed by registered mail, postage prepaid, to 
Subcontractor Name and Address or the 
Contractor "Refer All Questions and 
Correspondence To" blocks on the face page of 
this Subcontract, or to the email address 
(sbeck@mbcnet.net). 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 16 

21 DISPUTES 

The parties shall use the following procedures 
as a condition precedent to either party pursing 
other available remedies: 

A. The parties agree to make a good faith effort 
to mutually resolve any dispute as quickly as 
practicable. 

B. If, however, the parties have not so resolved 
the dispute, the parties' representatives shall 
submit the dispute to one of their senior-
level executives (including Presidents, 
Executive Vice Presidents, Senior Vice 
Presidents, and Chief Financial Officers) for 
review and simultaneously notify the other 
party in writing thereof.  A meeting shall be 
held within ten (10) business days after such 
notice of submission attended by such 
senior-level executives of the parties and 
any necessary representatives to attempt in 
good faith to negotiate a resolution of the 
dispute. 

C. If, within ten (10) business days after such 
meeting, the parties have not succeeded in 
negotiating a resolution of the dispute, either 
party may institute suit in the Superior Court 
of the State of California for the County of 
Inyo, or, if mutually agreed to by the parties, 
the dispute shall be settled by arbitration in 
Southern California, in accordance with the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of 
the American Arbitration Association and 
shall be conducted by a single arbitrator, 
licensed to practice law within the State of 
California and established to be a member 
of the American Bar Association's Forum 
Committee on the Construction Industry. 

1. If the dispute is arbitrated, the award of 
the sole arbitrator shall be conclusive 
and binding upon the parties, subject to 
the provisions of the California Code of 
Civil Procedure relating to arbitration, as 
the code now exists, or may be 
amended during the term of this 
Subcontract.  The arbitrator may fix and 
assess expenses of the arbitration 
against either or both parties. 

2. Judgment upon the arbitration award 
rendered by the arbitrator, may be 
entered in a court of competent 
jurisdiction. 

3. The final judgment of the Court (after all 
appeals have been finally determined or 
the time for appeal has expired, without 

an appeal having been made) or in 
absence thereof the decision of the 
arbitrator with respect to any dispute 
shall be binding on Contractor and 
Subcontractor. 

4. During the pendency and conduct of any 
litigation or arbitration, or litigation to 
enforce the award of an arbitrator, at 
Contractor's direction, Subcontractor 
shall continue to perform the Services.  
However, nothing in this paragraph shall 
limit the right of Contractor to complete 
the Services. 

D. The rights and obligations of the parties 
under this provision shall survive completion 
or termination of this Subcontract. 

22 ASSIGNMENT 

Subcontractor shall not subcontract, sublet, or 
assign the Services, or any part thereof, and 
shall not assign any monies to become due, 
without first obtaining the written consent of 
Contractor in each and every instance. 

23 CONFIDENTIALITY OF ALL DRAWINGS, 
SPECIFICATIONS, AND PLANS 

All drawings, specifications, plans, and all other 
information furnished to Subcontractor by 
Contractor or obtained by Subcontractor 
pursuant to its performance of the Services 
under this Subcontract shall be held in 
confidence by Subcontractor and shall not be 
used by Subcontractor for any purpose other 
than for the performance of the Services or as 
authorized in writing by Contractor or Owner.  
Subcontractor acknowledges that all such plans, 
drawings, specifications, and all information 
gathered by Subcontractor in the performance of 
the Services under this Subcontract is the 
property of Contractor or Owner and shall be 
returned to Contractor with any copies made at 
the completion of the Services, save one 
confidential record copy. The foregoing imposes 
no obligation with respect to information which 
(i) is in or subsequently becomes part of the 
public domain through no breach of this 
Subcontract;  (ii) is already in the possession of 
Subcontractor; (iii) is obtained by Subcontractor 
from a third party without a breach of such third 
party’s obligations of confidentiality; (iv) was 
independently developed by Subcontractor; or 
(v) is required by law to be disclosed by 
Subcontractor, provided Subcontractor gives the 
Contractor or Owner notice of such requirement 
prior to such disclosure so that the Contractor or 
Owner, at its expense, may seek a protective 



 LADWP RECEIVING WATER MONITORING 
 

MBC Aquatic Sciences, 3000 Red Hill Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92626 

Page | 17 

order or otherwise prevent or restrict such 
disclosure. 

24 Not Applicable. 

25 COMMUNICATIONS 

All communications to or with Client and/or 
agencies will be through or with knowledge of 
Contractor. Should Client insist on 
communication directly with Subcontractor, 
Subcontractor shall promptly advise Contractor 
of substance of discussions. 

26 GRATUITIES 

Subcontractor warrants that neither it nor any of 
its agents or representatives has offered or 
given any gratuities to Contractor's or Owner's 
employees, agents or representatives to secure 
this Subcontract or to secure favorable 
treatment with respect thereto. 

27 RIGHTS, REMEDIES AND WAIVER 

The rights and remedies provided in this 
Subcontract to Contractor shall be cumulative 
with and in addition to the rights and remedies 
otherwise available at law or elsewhere provided 
for herein.  No failure to exercise or delay in 
exercising on the part of Contractor of any right 
provided by this Subcontract or at law shall 
operate as a waiver thereof. 

NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE 
OTHER PARTY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, OR FOR LOSS OF REVENUE OR 
PROFIT IN CONNECTION WITH THE THIS 
SUBCONTRACT. 

28 ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

In the event of an inconsistency between 
provisions of this Subcontract, the inconsistency 
shall be resolved in the following order: 

(1)    Special Provisions 
 
(2)   Statement of Work- Task Authorizations 
 
(3)    Compensation and Payment 

(4)     General Provisions 

29 OFFSET 

Not Applicable. 

30 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision in this Subcontract is determined 
to be void or unenforceable, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of any other provision. 

31 ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Subcontract, together with all documents, 
specifications, and drawings incorporated herein 
by reference, constitutes the entire agreement 
between Contractor and Subcontractor, and 
there are no terms, conditions, or provisions, 
either oral or written, between the parties other 
than those herein contained, and this 
Subcontract supersedes any and all oral or 
written representations, inducements, or 
understandings of any kind or nature between 
the parties relating to the Services. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

APPROVED RATES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

Analytical Services     

Item  Billing Unit Unit Cost 

Colilert SM9223B 

Quanti‐tray 2000 

Total Coliform & E.Coli 
Bacterial Water Sampling 

 

100 mL Sample 

 

$65 per sample 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

RELEVANT SECTIONS OF PRIME AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

General Conditions (Services)



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A1   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

GC-1 Construction of Provisions and Titles Herein 
GC-2 Applicable Law, Interpretation, Enforcement and Severability 
GC-3 Time of Effectiveness 
GC-4 Integrated Agreement 
GC-5 Force Majeure  
GC-6 Waiver 
GC-7 Independent Consultant 
GC-8 Prohibition Against Assignment or Delegation 
GC-9 Licenses and Certifications 
GC-10 Non-Discrimination/Equal Employment Practices/Affirmative Action Program 
GC-11 Claims for Labor and Materials 
GC-12 Los Angeles City Business Tax Registration Certificate Required 
GC-13 Indemnification Provisions 
GC-14 Insurance 
GC-15 Child Support Policy 
GC-16 Service Contract Worker Retention Ordinance and Living Wage Policy 
GC-17 Americans with Disabilities Act 
GC-18 Retention of Records, Audit, and Reports  
GC-19 LADWP’s Recycling Policy 
GC-20 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
GC-21 Beneficiaries 
GC-22 Consultant’s Successors and Assigns 
GC-23 Attorney’s Fees and Costs 
GC-24 Equal Benefits Ordinance 
GC-25 Contractor Responsibility Program  
GC-26 Bidder Campaign Contribution and Fundraising Restrictions 
GC-27 Municipal Lobbying Ordinance 
GC-28 Iran Contracting Act of 2010  
GC-29 Contractor Performance Evaluation  
GC-30 Errors and Omissions 
GC-31 Safety 
GC-32 Non-Interference 
  



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A2   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

GC-1 Construction of Provisions and Titles Herein 
 
All titles or subtitles appearing herein have been inserted for convenience and shall not 
be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms or provisions 
hereof. The language of this Agreement shall be construed according to its fair meaning 
and not strictly against LADWP or the Consultant. The word “Consultant” herein and in 
any amendment hereto means the Party or Parties identified in this Agreement wherein 
this Exhibit is incorporated by reference; the singular shall include the plural; if there 
shall be more than one Consultant herein, unless expressly stated otherwise, their 
obligations and liabilities hereunder shall be joint and several; use of feminine, 
masculine, or neutral gender shall be deemed to include the genders not used. 
 
GC-2 Applicable Law, Interpretation, Enforcement and Severability 
 
Each Party's performance hereunder shall comply with all applicable laws of the United 
States of America, the State of California, and the City of Los Angeles, including but not 
limited to laws regarding health and safety, labor employment, wage and hours, workers 
compensation, and licensing laws which affect employees. Consultant shall comply with 
new, amended, or revised laws, regulations, and/or procedures that apply to the 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement was made and entered into in the City of Los Angeles and shall be 
governed by, interpreted and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California and the City of Los Angeles, without regard to conflicts of laws principles. All 
litigation arising out of, or relating to, this Agreement shall be brought in a State or 
Federal court in the County of Los Angeles in the State of California. The Parties 
irrevocably agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in the State of 
California and waive any defense of forum non conveniens. 
 
If any part, term or provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid, void, illegal, 
unenforceable, or in conflict with any law of a federal, state or local government having 
jurisdiction over this Agreement, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions 
shall not be affected or impaired thereby. 
 
The provisions of this article shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
GC-3 Time of Effectiveness 
 
Unless otherwise provided, this Agreement shall take effect when all of the following 
events have occurred: 

 
A. This Agreement has been signed on behalf of the Consultant by the 

person(s) authorized to bind the Consultant hereto. 
 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A3   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

B. This Agreement has been approved by the City Council or by the Board, 
inclusive of City Council review period, officer, or employee authorized to 
give such approval. 

 
C. The Office of the City Attorney has indicated in writing its approval of this 

Agreement as to form and legality. 
 
D. This Agreement has been signed on behalf of LADWP by the person 

designated by the Board, officer or employee authorized to enter into this 
Agreement. 

 
GC-4 Integrated Agreement 
 
This Agreement sets forth all of the rights and duties of the Parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof, and replaces any and all previous agreements and 
understandings, whether written or verbal, relating hereto. This Agreement may be 
amended only as provided for in Article X, Amendments and Administrative Changes to 
the Agreement of this Agreement.    
 
GC-5  Force Majeure 
 
If either Party is unable to perform its obligations because of strikes, lockouts, labor 
disputes, embargos, acts of God, governmental regulations, judicial orders, enemy or 
hostile governmental action beyond the reasonable control of the Consultant or its 
Authorized Subconsultants (“Force Majeure”), and such event continues, or is expected 
to continue, for more than thirty (30) days, either Party may suspend unperformed 
services upon notice to the other party in writing, and such party’s performance shall be 
suspended for the period equal to the period of time of such cause for suspension of 
performance. Both parties shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate the effect of a force 
majeure event. This section does not excuse either party’s obligation to pay for services 
provided. 
 
GC-6 Waiver 
 
A waiver of a default of any part, term, or provision of this Agreement shall not be 
construed as a waiver of any succeeding default or as a waiver of the part, term or 
provision itself. A Party’s performance after the other Party’s default shall not be 
construed as a waiver of that default. 
 
GC-7 Independent Consultant 
 
The Consultant is acting hereunder as an independent Consultant and not as an agent 
or employee of LADWP or the City of Los Angeles, and all of the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement shall be interpreted in light of that relationship. The Consultant, 
including Consultant’s Subconsultants, suppliers, employees, and agents, shall not 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A4   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

represent or otherwise hold out itself or any of its directors, officers, partners, 
employees, or agents to be an agent or employee of LADWP for any purpose 
whatsoever. The Consultant shall not be entitled to any LADWP or City of Los Angeles 
benefits, including but not limited to, vacation, sick leave, Workers’ Compensation, or 
pension.   
 
GC-8 Prohibition Against Assignment or Delegation 
 
The Consultant may not, unless it has first obtained the written permission of LADWP:  
 

A. Assign or otherwise alienate any of its rights hereunder, including the right 
to payment; or 

 
B. Delegate, subcontract, or otherwise transfer any of its duties hereunder. 

 
Such permission may be withheld at LADWP’s sole discretion for any reason or no 
reason at all since the award of this Agreement was based upon the personal services 
to be provided by the Consultant. 
 
GC-9 Licenses and Certifications 
 
The Consultant and its officers, agents, and employees shall obtain and maintain all 
licenses, permits, certifications and other documents necessary for the Consultant’s 
performance hereunder and shall pay any fees required therefore. Such licenses, 
permits, certifications shall be specific to the State of California or regional regulatory 
agencies, as applicable to Consultant’s services, work, task, and deliverables pursuant 
to this Agreement. Consultant agrees to immediately notify LADWP of any suspension, 
termination, lapse, non-renewal, or restriction of such licenses, permits, certifications, or 
other documents. 
 
GC-10 Non Discrimination/Equal Employment Practices/Affirmative Action 
 

A. Non Discrimination and Equal Employment Practices  
 
 The Agreement shall comply with the provisions of Los Angeles 

Administrative Code Section 10.8.2, Non-Discrimination Clause and 
Section 10.8.3, Equal Employment Practices. By affixing its signatures on 
the Agreement that is subject to the Equal Employment Practices 
Provisions, the Consultant shall agree to adhere to the provisions in the 
Equal Employment Practices Provisions for the duration of the Agreement. 

  
 Furthermore, the Consultant shall include similar provisions in all 

subcontracts awarded for work to be performed under the Agreement with 
LADWP and shall impose the same obligations. The contract with the 
Subconsultant that contains similar language shall be made available to 
LADWP upon request. 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A5   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

B. Affirmative Action Program 
 
 The Agreement shall comply with the provisions of Los Angeles 

Administrative Code 10.8.4, Affirmative Action Program. By affixing its 
signature on the Agreement that is subject to the Affirmative Action 
Program provisions, the Consultant shall agree to adhere to the provisions 
in the Affirmative Action Program for the duration of the Agreement.   

 
 Furthermore, the Consultant shall include similar provisions in all 

subcontracts awarded for work to be performed under the Agreement with 
LADWP and shall impose the same obligations. The contract with the 
Subconsultant that contains similar language shall be made available to 
LADWP upon request.  

 
GC-11 Claims for Labor and Materials 
 
The Consultant shall promptly pay, when due, all amounts payable for labor and 
materials furnished in the performance of this Agreement so as to prevent any lien or 
other claim under any provision of law from arising against LADWP or City of   
Los Angeles or any of their respective property (including reports, documents, and other 
tangible matter produced by the Consultant hereunder), against the Consultant's rights 
to payments hereunder, and shall pay all amounts due under the Unemployment 
Insurance Act with respect to such labor. 
 
GC-12 Los Angeles City Business Tax Registration Certificate Required 
 
The Consultant represents that it has obtained and presently holds a Business Tax 
Registration Certificate(s) required by the City of Los Angeles Business Tax Ordinance 
(Article 1, Chapter II, Article 21.00 and following, of the Los Angeles Municipal Code). 
For the term covered by this Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain, or obtain as 
necessary, all such Certificates required under said ordinance and shall not allow any 
such Certificate to be revoked or suspended. 
 
GC-13  Indemnification Provisions 
 

A. General Indemnification  
 

The Consultant undertakes and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless 
the City of Los Angeles, the Department of Water and Power, the Board of 
Water and Power Commissioners of the City of Los Angeles, and all of 
their officers and employees, and, at the option of LADWP, defend 
LADWP and any and all of its Board, officers, agents, representatives, 
employees, assigns and successors in interest from and against any and 
all suits and causes of action, claims, charges, damages, demands, 
judgments, civil fines and penalties, or losses of any kind or nature 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A6   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

whatsoever, for death, bodily injury or personal injury to any person, 
including Consultant’s employees and agents, or damage or destruction to 
any property of either party hereto, or third persons in any manner caused 
by the acts, errors, or omissions incident to the performance of this 
contract on the part of the Consultant, or the Consultant’s officers, agents, 
employees, or Subconsultants of any tier, except for the sole negligence 
or willful misconduct of LADWP, its Board, officers, agents, or employees. 

 
B. Intellectual Property Indemnity  

 
Consultant will indemnify, defend at its expense and hold harmless 
LADWP against any loss, cost, expense, liability, and damages paid by 
LADWP as a result of any judgment or settlement as a consequence of 
any infringement claim, demand, proceeding, suit or action (hereinafter 
"Action") against LADWP, its officers, directors, agents, employees, or 
affiliates for any infringement or violation, actual or alleged, direct or 
contributory, intentional or otherwise, of any intellectual property rights, 
including patents, copyrights, trade secrets, trademarks, service marks, 
and other proprietary information or rights (collectively "Intellectual 
Property Rights" hereinafter), (1) on or in any design, medium, matter, 
plant, article, process, method, application, equipment, device, 
instrumentation, software, hardware, or firmware used by the Consultant 
in the construction of the work under this Agreement; or (2) as a result of 
LADWP's actual or intended use under the specifications contained herein 
by LADWP of any product furnished by Consultant (hereinafter 
“Consultant Product”). Consultant Product herein includes, without 
limitation, any hardware, software, firmware, equipment, device, 
instrumentation, design, medium, matter, plant, article, process, method, 
and application. Consultant, however, shall have no liability to LADWP 
herein with respect to any claim of infringement which is based upon the 
combination or utilization of the Consultant Product with machines or 
devices not reasonably anticipated hereunder; or based upon a 
modification by LADWP of the Consultant Product furnished hereunder. 
 
In Consultant's defense of LADWP, negotiation, compromise, and 
settlement of any such infringement action, LADWP shall retain discretion 
in and control of the litigation, negotiation, compromise, settlement, and 
appeals therefrom, as required by the City Charter, particularly Article II, 
Sections 271, 272 and 273 thereof. 
 
In addition, if any part of the Consultant Product (a) becomes the subject 
of an action, (b) is adjudicated as infringing any Intellectual Property right, 
or (c) has its use enjoined or license terminated, Consultant shall, with 
LADWP's consent, do one of the following immediately at its expense: (i) 
procure for LADWP the right to continue using said infringing part of the 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A7   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

product; (ii) replace the product with a functionally equivalent, non-
infringing product; or (iii)  modify the product so it becomes non-infringing. 
 
Exercise of any of the above-mentioned options shall not cause undue 
business interruption to LADWP or diminish the intended benefits and use 
of the Consultant Product by LADWP under the specifications herein. If 
Consultant proves, to LADWP's satisfaction, that none of the options (i), 
(ii), or (iii) are feasible, Consultant shall instead refund the full purchase 
price of the product. 
 
Rights and remedies available to LADWP hereinabove shall survive the 
expiration or other termination of this Agreement. Further, the rights and 
remedies are cumulative of those provided for elsewhere in this 
Agreement and those allowed under the laws of the United States, the 
State of California, and the City of Los Angeles.   
 
This Condition shall survive the expiration or other termination of this 
Agreement. 

 
GC-14 Insurance 
 

A. General Statement 
 
 Acceptable evidence of required insurance, from insurers acceptable to 

LADWP, is required to be submitted by the Consultant and must be 
maintained current by the Consultant throughout the term of this 
Agreement. Said evidence of insurance must be on file with the Risk 
Management Section in order to receive payment under any agreement 
for services rendered, and in order to commence work under this 
Agreement. 

 
B. Applicable Terms and Conditions 
 

1. Additional Insured Status Required 
 
 Consultant shall procure at its own expense, and keep in effect at 

all times during the term of this Agreement, the types and amounts 
of insurance specified on the attached Contract Insurance 
Requirements page. The specified insurance shall by use of City's 
own endorsement form or by other endorsement(s) attached to 
such policies, include the City of Los Angeles, LADWP, the Board, 
and all of their respective officers, employees and agents, their 
successors and assigns, as additional insureds against the area of 
risk described herein as respects Consultant's acts, errors, or 
omissions in its performance of this Agreement, hereunder or other 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A8   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

related functions as agreed upon by the parties and  performed by 
or on behalf of Consultant. Such insurance shall not limit or qualify 
the liabilities and obligations of the Consultant assumed under this 
Agreement. 

 
2. Severability of Interests and Cross Liability Required 
 
 Each specified insurance policy, as applicable, shall contain a 

Severability of Interest and Cross Liability clause and shall apply 
separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is 
brought  and a Contractual Liability Endorsement.  

 
3. Primary and Non-Contributory Insurance Required 
 
 All such insurance shall be Primary and Noncontributing with any 

other insurance held by LADWP where liability arises out of, or 
results from, the acts, errors, or omissions of Consultant, its agents, 
employees, officers, assigns, or any person or entity acting for or 
on behalf of Consultant. Any insurance carried by LADWP which 
may be applicable shall be deemed to be excess insurance and the 
Consultant’s insurance is primary for all purposes despite any 
conflicting provision in the Consultant’s policies to the contrary. 

 
4. Proof of Insurance for Renewal or Extension Required 
 

Within ten (10) days after the expiration date of any of the policies 
required on the attached Contract Requirement page, Consultant 
shall provide documentation showing that the insurance coverage 
has been renewed or extended to LADWP.  

 
5. Submission of Acceptable Proof of Insurance and Notice of 

Cancellation 
 

Consultant shall provide proof to the Risk Manager of all specified 
insurance and related requirements either by use of LADWP's own 
endorsement form(s), by other written evidence of insurance 
acceptable to the Risk Manager, but always in a form acceptable to 
the Risk Manager. The documents evidencing all specified 
coverage shall be filed with LADWP prior to Consultant beginning 
operations hereunder. Said proof shall contain at a minimum, the 
applicable policy number, the inclusive dates of policy coverage, 
the date the protection begins for LADWP, and the insurance 
carrier's name. It shall provide that such insurance shall not be 
subject to cancellation, material reduction in coverage or non-
renewal except after written notice by certified mail, return receipt 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A9   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

requested, to the Risk Management Section at least thirty (30) 
calendar days prior to the effective date thereof. The notification 
shall be sent by electronic means or registered mail to:  

 
Risk Management Section 
Financial Service Organization 
Post Office Box 51111, JFB Room 465 
Los Angeles, California 90051-0100  

 
6. Claims-Made Insurance Conditions 
 

Should any portion of the required insurance be on a "Claims 
Made" policy, the Consultant shall, at the policy inception date 
following each renewal year, provide evidence that the "Claims 
Made" policy has been renewed with a retro-active or extended 
discovery period at a minimum to the policy in place as of the 
effective date of this agreement with the same limits, terms and 
conditions of the expiring policy.  

 
7. Failure to Maintain and Provide as Cause for Termination 
 

Failure to maintain and provide acceptable evidence of the required 
insurance for the required period of coverage shall constitute a 
breach of contract, upon which LADWP may immediately terminate 
or suspend this Agreement.  

  
8. Specific Insurance Requirements 
 

See Exhibit G, Contract Insurance Requirements-LADWP. 
 

GC-15 Child Support Policy 
 
The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must fully comply with all applicable State 
and Federal employment reporting requirements for the Consultant’s and any 
Subconsultant(s)’ employees. The Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must fully 
comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of 
Assignment in accordance with the California Family Code. The Consultant and any 
Subconsultant(s) must certify that the principal owner(s) thereof (any person who owns 
an interest of 10 percent or more) are in compliance with any Wage and Earnings 
Assignment Orders or Notices of Assignment applicable to them personally. The 
Consultant and any Subconsultant(s) must certify that such compliance will be 
maintained throughout the term of this Agreement. 
 
 
Failure of the Consultant and/or any Subconsultant(s) to fully comply with all applicable 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A10   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

reporting requirements or to implement lawfully served Wage and Earnings 
Assignments or Notices of Assignment or failure of the principal owner(s) to comply with 
any Wage and Earnings Assignments or Notices of Assignment applicable to them 
personally shall constitute a default under this Agreement. Failure of the Consultant 
and/or any Subconsultant(s) or principal owner(s) thereof to cure the default within 
ninety (90) calendar days of notice of such default by LADWP shall subject this 
Agreement to termination.  
 
The Consultant will contractually require all Subconsultants performing services under 
this Agreement to comply with the provisions of this section.  
 
GC-16 Service Contract Worker Retention Ordinance and Living Wage Policy 
 
Unless otherwise exempt in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, this 
contract is subject to the applicable provisions of the Service Contractor Worker 
Retention Ordinance (SCWRO), Section 10.36 et seq., and the Living Wage Ordinance 
(LWO), Section 10.37 et seq. of the Los Angeles Administrative Code. The ordinance 
require that unless a specific exemption applies as determined by the awarding 
authority and confirmed by the designated administrative agency, all employers (as 
defined) under contracts primarily for the furnishing of services to or for the City and that 
involve an expenditure or receipt in excess of $25,000 and a contract term of at least 3 
months; lessees; licensees; or certain recipients of City financial assistance, generally 
shall provide the following: 

 
A. Retention by a successor Consultant for a 90 day transition period, the 

employees who have been employed for the preceding 12 months or more 
by the terminated Consultant or Subconsultant, earning no more than 
twice the hourly wage without health benefits available under the LWO 
Section 10.37 et seq. of the Los Angeles Administrative Code; 
 

B. Payment of a minimum initial wage rate to employees as defined in the 
LWO, as may be adjusted each July 1, and provisions of benefits as 
defined in the LWO. 
 

C. Consultant further pledges that the Consultant shall comply with federal 
law proscribing retaliation for union organizing and shall not retaliate for 
activities related to the LWO. Consultant shall require each of its 
Subconsultants within the meaning of the LWO to pledge to comply with 
the terms of federal law proscribing retaliation for union organizing. 
Consultant shall deliver the executed pledges from each such 
Subconsultant to the City within 90 days of the execution of the 
Subconsultant. Consultant’s delivery of executed pledges from each such 
Subconsultant shall fully discharge Consultant’s obligation with respect to 
such pledges and fully discharge the obligation of the Consultant and 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A11   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

Subconsultants to comply with the provision in the LWO contained in 
Section 10.37.6(c) concerning compliance with such federal law. 
 

D. The Consultant, whether an employer, as defined in the LWO, or any 
other person employing individuals, shall not discharge, reduce in 
compensation, or otherwise discriminate against any employee for 
complaining to the City with regard to the employer’s compliance or 
anticipated compliance with the LWO, for opposing any practice 
proscribed by the LWO, for participating in proceedings related to the 
LWO, for seeking to enforce the employee’s rights under the LWO by any 
lawful means, or otherwise asserting rights under the LWO by any lawful 
means, or otherwise asserting rights under the LWO. The Consultant shall 
post the LWO Notice to Employees and the Notice of Prohibition Against 
Retaliation, in a conspicuous place. 
 

E. Any Subcontract entered into by the Consultant relating to this Agreement, 
to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject to these provisions and 
shall incorporate the provisions of the LWO and the SCWRO. 

 
F. Consultant shall comply with all rules, regulations and policies 

promulgated by the designated administrative agency, which may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
Under the provisions of Section 10.36.3(c) and Section 10.37.6(c) of the Los Angeles 
Administrative Code, the City shall have the authority, under appropriate circumstances, 
to terminate this contract and otherwise pursue legal remedies that may be available if 
the City determines that the subject Consultant has violated provisions of the LWO and 
the SCWRO or both. 
 
Where under the LWO Section 10.37.6(e), the designated administrative agency has 
determined (a) that the Consultant is in violation of the LWO in having failed to pay 
some or all of the living wage, and (b) that such violation has gone uncured, the 
awarding authority in such circumstances may impound monies otherwise due the 
Consultant in accordance with the following procedures. Impoundment shall mean that 
from monies due the Consultant the awarding authority may deduct the amount 
determined to be due and owing by the Consultant to its employees. Such monies shall 
be placed in the holding account referred to in LWO Section 10.37.6(d)(3) and disposed 
of under procedures there described through final and binding arbitration. Whether the 
Consultant is to continue work following an impoundment shall remain in the unfettered 
discretion of the awarding authority. The Consultant may not elect to discontinue work 
either because there has been an impoundment or because of the ultimate disposition 
of the impoundment by the arbitrator. 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A12   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

Earned Income Tax Credit 
 
This contract is subject to the provisions of Section 10.37.4(b) of the Los Angeles 
Administrative Code, requiring employers to inform employees of their possible right to 
the federal Earned Income Tax Credit (EITC). Employers must further make available to 
employees the forms required to secure advance EITC payments from employers. 
 
GC-17 Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The Consultant hereby certifies that it will comply with the Americans with Disabilities  
Act 42, U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq., and its implementing regulations. The Consultant 
will provide reasonable accommodations to allow qualified individuals with disabilities to 
have access to and to participate in its programs, services and activities in accordance 
with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act. The Consultant will not 
discriminate against persons with disabilities or against persons due to their relationship 
or association with a person with a disability. Any subcontract entered into by the 
Consultant, relating to this Agreement, to the extent allowed hereunder, shall be subject 
to the provisions of this paragraph. 
 
GC-18 Retention of Records, Audit, and Reports 
 
Consultant shall maintain, and shall cause Consultant’s Subconsultants and suppliers to 
maintain records pertaining to the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, 
in their original form, including but not limited to, reports, documents, deliverables, 
employee time sheets, accounting procedures and practices, records of financial 
transactions, and other evidence, regardless of form (e.g., machine readable media 
such as disk, tape, etc.) or type (e.g., databases, applications software, database 
management software, utilities, etc.), sufficient to properly reflect all fees claimed to 
have been incurred and services performed pursuant to this Agreement (“financial 
records”).  
 
All financial records shall be retained, and shall be subject to examination and audit by 
LADWP personnel or by LADWP’s agents (herein after “Authorized Auditors”), for a 
period of not less than four (4) years following final payment made by LADWP 
hereunder or the expiration date of this Agreement, whichever is later. 
 
Upon thirty days’ written notice to Consultant, LADWP shall have the right to audit the 
financial records of Consultant and its Subconsultants, upon reasonable written notice 
to Consultant, no more than one time per year, at LADWP’s cost. The Authorized 
Auditors shall make good faith efforts not to unreasonably interfere with Consultant’s 
normal business operations. LADWP shall have the right to contract a third‐party audit 
firm to conduct such an audit, provided that such third‐party audit firm agrees to 
Consultant’s standard nondisclosure terms and to utilize standard audit software and 
methodologies. Any information provided by Consultant and its Subconsultants on 
machine readable media (e.g. Access, Excel or ACL) shall be provided in a format 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A13   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

accessible and readable by the Authorized Auditors. Consultant and Subconsultant 
shall not, however, be required to furnish the Authorized Auditors with commonly 
available software. 
 
Examinations and audits will be performed using generally accepted auditing practices 
and principles and applicable City, State and Federal government audit standards. For 
Consultants that utilize or are subject to FAR, Part 30 and 31, et seq. accounting 
procedures, or a portion thereof, examinations and audits will utilize such information. 
 
To the extent that the Authorized Auditor’s examination or audit reveals inaccurate, 
incomplete or non-current records, or records are unavailable, the records shall be 
considered defective, and consistent with standard auditing procedures the Consultant 
will be provided thirty (30) calendar days to review the Authorized Auditor’s examination 
results or audit and respond to LADWP prior to the examination’s or audit’s finalization.  
 
If the Authorized Auditor’s examination or audit indicates an error in billing resulting in 
either an underpayment or overpayment under a previous payment application, the 
identified discrepancy shall be reviewed. The Parties will discuss the best manner in 
which to correct the error within fifteen (15) calendar days of Authorized Auditor’s notice 
to the Parties of the billing error. The Party in error will pay the other Party the amount 
of the discrepancy within fifteen (15) calendar days thereafter. 
 
The Consultant shall contractually require all Subconsultants performing services under 
this Agreement to comply with the provisions of this section by inserting this provision 
GC-18 in each Subconsultant contract and by contractually requiring each 
Subconsultant to insert this provision GC-18 in any of its Subconsultant contracts 
related to services under this Agreement. In addition, Consultant and Subconsultants 
shall also include the following language in each Subconsultant contract:   

 
“LADWP is a third party beneficiary of the foregoing audit provision. The benefits 
of the audit provision shall inure solely for the benefit of LADWP. The designation 
of LADWP as a third party beneficiary of the audit provision shall not confer any 
rights or privileges on the Consultant, Subconsultant or any other person/entity.” 
  

If an examination or audit undertaken pursuant to the Retention of Records, Audit, and 
Reports provision of the General Conditions GC-18 for LADWP Professional Service 
Contracts reveals that LADWP overpayment to the Consultant is more than 5% of the 
billings reviewed, the Consultant shall pay all expenses and costs incurred by the 
Authorized Auditors arising out of or related to the examination or audit. Such 
examination or audit expenses and costs shall be paid by the Consultant to LADWP 
within fifteen (15) calendar days of notice to the Consultant of the costs and expenses.  
 
The provisions of this section shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A14   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

GC-19 LADWP’s Recycling Policy 
 
The Consultant shall submit all written documents on paper with a minimum of thirty 
(30) percent post-consumer recycled content. Existing company/corporate 
letterhead/stationery that accompanies these documents is exempt from this 
requirement. Documents of two or more pages in length shall be duplex-copied (double-
sided pages). Neon or fluorescent paper shall not be used in any written documents 
submitted to LADWP.   
 
GC-20 Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 
 
The Consultant represents that it has obtained and presently has a Tax Identification 
Number (TIN). For the term covered by this Agreement, the Consultant shall maintain, 
or obtain as necessary, a TIN. No payment will be made under this Agreement without a 
valid TIN number. 
 
GC-21 Beneficiaries 
 
This Agreement is intended only for the benefit of the Parties hereto and does not, nor 
shall be interpreted, to create any rights in any nonsignatory to this Agreement. 
 
GC-22 Consultant’s Successors and Assigns 
 
All indemnifications and warranties provided by the Consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement will be assumed by and binding upon the Consultant's successors and 
assigns. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
GC-23 Attorney’s Fees and Costs 
 
Both Parties hereto agree that in any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement, 
each Party shall be responsible for its own attorneys’ fees and costs. The provisions of 
this paragraph shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 
GC-24 Equal Benefits Ordinance 
 
Unless otherwise exempted in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, this 
Contract is subject to the applicable provisions of the Equal Benefits Ordinance (EBO) 
Section 10.8.2.1 of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, as amended from time to 
time. 

 
A. During the performance of the Contract, the Contractor certifies and 

represents that the Contractor will comply with the EBO. The Contractor 
agrees to post the following statement in conspicuous places at its place 
of business available to employees and applicants for employment: 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A15   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

 
“During the performance of a Contract with the City of  
Los Angeles, the CONTRACTOR will provide equal benefits 
to employees with spouses and its employees with 
domestic partners. Additional information about the City of 
Los Angeles’ Equal Benefits Ordinance may be obtained 
from the Department of Public Works, Bureau of Contract 
Administration, Office of Contract Compliance at  
(213) 847-1922.” 
 

B. The failure of the Contractor to comply with the EBO may be deemed to 
be a material breach of the Contract by the Awarding Authority. 
 

C. If the Contractor fails to comply with the EBO, the Awarding Authority may 
cancel, terminate or suspend the Contract, in whole or in part and all 
monies due or to become due under the Contract may be retained by the 
City. The City may also pursue any and all other remedies at law or in 
equity for any breach. 
 

D. Failure to comply with the EBO may be used as evidence against the 
Contractor in actions taken pursuant to the provisions of Los Angeles 
Administrative Code Section 10.40 et seq., Contractor Responsibility 
Ordinance. 
 

E. If the Bureau of Contract Administration determines that a Contractor has set 
up or used its Contracting entity for the purpose of evading the intent of the 
EBO, the Awarding Authority may terminate the Contract on behalf of the 
City. Violation of this provision may be used as evidence against the 
Contractor in actions taken pursuant to the provisions of Los Angeles 
Administrative Code Section 10.40 et seq., Contractor Responsibility 
Ordinance. 
 

GC-25 Contractor Responsibility Program  
 
Unless otherwise exempt in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance, this 
Contract is subject to the provisions of the Contractor Responsibility Ordinance, Section 
10.40 et seq., of the Los Angeles Administrative Code, which requires Contractor to 
update its responses to the responsibility questionnaire within thirty calendar days after 
any change to the responses previously provided if such change would affect 
Contractor’s fitness and ability to continue performing the contract. In accordance with 
the provisions of this Ordinance, by signing this Contract, Contractor pledges, under 
penalty of perjury, to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws in the 
performance of this contract, including but not limited to, laws regarding health and 
safety, labor and employment, wages and hours, and licensing laws which affect 
employees. Violations of the Contractor Responsibility Ordinance shall constitute a 



EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A16   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

material breach of this Agreement and entitle the LADWP to terminate this Agreement 
and otherwise pursue legal remedies that may be available. 
 
The Contractor further agrees to: 
 

A. Notify the awarding authority within thirty calendar days after receiving 
notification that any government agency has initiated an investigation 
which may result in a finding that the Contractor is not in compliance with 
all applicable federal, state and local laws in performance of this contract; 
 

B. Notify the awarding authority within thirty calendar days of all findings by a 
government agency or court of competent jurisdiction that the Contractor has 
violated the provisions of Section 10.40.3(a) of the Ordinance; 
 

C. Ensure that its subcontractor(s), as defined in the Ordinance, submit a 
Pledge of Compliance to awarding authorities; and 

 
D. Ensure that its subcontractor(s), as defined in the Ordinance, comply with 

the requirements of the Pledge of Compliance and the requirement to 
notify Awarding Authorities within thirty calendar days after any 
government agency or court of competent jurisdiction has initiated an 
investigation or has found that the subcontractor has violated Section 
10.40.3(a) of the Ordinance in performance of the subcontract. 

 
GC-26 Bidder Campaign Contribution and Fundraising Restrictions   
 
In accordance with the City of Los Angeles Charter Section 470(c)(12) and related 
ordinances, bidders may not make campaign contributions to and or engage in fundraising 
for certain elected City officials or candidates for elected City office from the time they 
submit a bid to LADWP until either the contract is awarded or, for successful bidders, 
12 months after the contract is executed. The bidder's principals and subcontractors 
performing $100,000 or more in work on the contract, as well as the principals of those 
subcontractors, are also subject to the same limitations on campaign contributions and 
fundraising. 
 
The Consultant shall comply with the City Ethics Commission’s “CEC Form 55” (3 
pages) affidavit. The affidavit requires bidders to identify their principals, their 
subcontractors performing $100,000 or more in work on the contract, and the principals 
of those subcontractors. Consultants shall also notify their principals and subcontractors 
in writing of the restrictions and include the notice in contracts with subcontractors. 
Consultants who fail to comply with City law may be subject to penalties, termination of 
contract, and debarment. Additional information regarding these restrictions and 
requirements may be obtained from the City Ethics Commission at (213) 978-1960 or 
ethics.lacity.org. 
 

http://ethics.lacity.org/


EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A17   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

GC-27 Municipal Lobbying Ordinance 
 
The City of Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 48.01 et seq. requires certain individuals 
and entities to register with the City Ethics Commission and requires public disclosure of 
certain lobbying activities, including money received and spent. Therefore all bidders for all 
construction contracts, public leases, or licenses of any value and duration and bidders for 
goods or service contracts with a value of more than $25,000 and a term of at least 3 
months, shall comply with the City Ethics Commission’s “CEC Form 50” (1 page) affidavit. 
A copy of the City of Los Angeles Municipal Lobbying Ordinance is available for download 
on the following City Ethics Commission’s webpage:  
https://ethics.lacity.org/wp-content/uploads/Laws-Lobbying-MLO.pdf. 
 
Additional information regarding the Municipal Lobbying Ordinance may be obtained from 
the City Ethics Commission at (213) 978-1960 or ethics.lacity.org. 
 
GC-28 Iran Contracting Act of 2010 
 
In accordance with California Public Contract Code Sections 2200-2208, all Consultants 
entering into, or renewing contracts with LADWP for goods and services estimated at 
one million dollars ($1,000,000) or more shall complete, sign, and submit the "Iran 
Contracting Act of 2010 Compliance Affidavit." 
 
GC-29 Contractor Performance Evaluation  
 
Under Division 10, Chapter 1, Article 13, Section 10.39 of the Los Angeles Administrative 
Code, LADWP has established a post‐award contractor evaluation program that requires 
performance monitoring and reporting. The LADWP’s Contractor Performance Evaluation 
Program (CPEP) document can be found on the following webpage: 
https://www.ladwp.com/ladwp/faces/ladwp/partners/p-vendorsandbidders  
 
LADWP will evaluate and record the Contractor’s overall performance to determine 
whether the Contractor is fulfilling its obligations on the current contract and to assess 
the Contractor’s suitability to perform work for LADWP in the future. Contractors are 
required to meet critical contract provisions including, but not limited to, timely shipment 
and delivery of goods, completeness of delivered goods, quality of delivered goods, 
accuracy of billing, and conformance to the terms and conditions of the contract. If such 
conditions are breached, consistent with the terms of the contract, the Director of 
Supply Chain Services may terminate the contract for poor performance and may also 
debar the Contractor from doing business with LADWP for a period up to five years in 
accordance with the LADWP’s Contractor Performance Evaluation Program. 
 
GC-30 Errors and Omissions 
 
Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, approval by LADWP of any 
task or deliverable, or any requested design changes by LADWP, or any part thereof, 

https://ethics.lacity.org/wp-content/uploads/Laws-Lobbying-MLO.pdf
http://ethics.lacity.org/
https://www.ladwp.com/ladwp/faces/ladwp/partners/p-vendorsandbidders


EXHIBIT A 
General Conditions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences   Page A18   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit A – General Conditions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

shall not relieve the Consultant of the responsibility to meet all of the requirements as 
set forth in this Agreement. The Consultant shall have no claim for additional costs due 
to correction of its errors or omissions in said previously approved deliverables or any 
other action that may be necessary to comply with this Agreement, including all 
Exhibits, and authorized Task Orders. 
 
GC-31 Safety 
 
The Consultant shall arrange facility visits with LADWP who shall advise the Consultant 
of appropriate safety and security rules. The Consultant shall adhere to the restrictions 
and instructions of LADWP personnel when visiting any facility.  
 
The Consultant shall do everything reasonable to protect the life, safety, and health of 
persons at the construction site. The Consultant shall furnish and use safety devices 
and safeguards and shall adopt and use practices, means, methods, operations, and 
processes which are reasonably adequate to render safe and healthful employment. 
The Consultant shall be responsible for ensuring that each of the Consultant's 
Subconsultants meets the standards of this Article. 
 
GC-32 Non-Interference 
 
The Consultant's performance of the work under this Agreement shall not interfere 
unnecessarily with the operation of LADWP or any other City department. 

 
 
 

END OF GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Special Provisions  
  



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B1   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

SP-1 RESERVED  
SP-2 RESERVED  
SP-3 RESERVED 
SP-4 Warranty and Responsibility of Consultant 
SP-5 Small Business Enterprise (SBE)/Disabled Veteran Business (DVBE) 

Participation Program 
SP-6 RESERVED 
SP-7 RESERVED 
SP-8 RESERVED  
SP-9 RESERVED 
SP-10 RESERVED 
SP-11 RESERVED 
SP-12 RESERVED 
SP-13 Conflicts of Interest 
SP-14 RESERVED 
SP-15      Background Check Certification Requirement  
SP-16 Confidentiality 
SP-17 Security Policy and Requirements 
SP-18 RESERVED  
SP-19 Safety Compliance Certificate 
SP-20 Data Security 
SP-21 Prompt Payment to Subcontractors 

 
  

 
  



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B2   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

SP-1 RESERVED  
 
SP-2 RESERVED 
 
SP-3  RESERVED  
 
SP-4 Warranty and Responsibility of Consultant 
 
Consultant warrants that the work performed hereunder shall be completed in a manner 
consistent with professional standards practiced among those firms within the 
Consultants profession, doing the same or similar work under the same or similar 
circumstances. 
 
SP-5 Small Business Enterprise (SBE) / Disabled Veteran Business 

Enterprise (DVBE) Participation Program 
 
It is the policy of LADWP to provide SBEs, DVBEs, Emerging Business Enterprises 
(EBEs), Women-Owned Business Enterprises (WBEs), Minority-Owned Business 
Enterprises (MBEs), Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs), Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual, or Transgender Business Enterprises (LGBTBEs), and Other Business 
Enterprises (OBEs) an equal opportunity to participate in the performance of all LADWP 
contracts.  
 
The Contractor shall ensure that all Small Business Enterprise (SBE) and Disabled 
Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) requirements specified in the Contract have been 
met, and acknowledges an overall SBE/DVBE commitment of (15%) to be met over the 
term of contract. 
 
Achievement of the overall SBE/DVBE participation commitment requirement will be 
tracked as an aggregate of all task orders awarded to the Bidder. Participation shall be 
measured by SBE/DVBE work completion and compensation. Bidders are expected to 
meet the overall SBE/DVBE participation commitment once all task orders have been 
issued. 
 
During the term of the Agreement, the Consultant shall utilize each listed Subconsultant 
in Exhibit E and track the amounts paid to each listed Subconsultant. Exhibit E, List of 
Subconsultants is attached hereto and is made part of the Agreement.   
 
Post-Award Documentation: The Consultant or Contractor shall complete and submit 
to LADWP, a form titled “Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report” with its invoice listing 
all Subcontractors utilized during the reporting period including SBEs and DVBEs. The 
form titled “Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report” will be provided by the Contract 
Administrator. 
 
 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B3   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

The Contractor shall cooperate with LADWP personnel in providing such information as 
requested in order to ensure compliance.   
 
LADWP will not process or pay the Contractor’s subsequent invoices if Subcontractor 
Utilization Reports are not submitted in a timely manner or if the Consultant fails to 
cooperate with LADWP personnel by promptly providing any and all information related 
to Subcontractor participation as requested by LADWP. 
 
As part of its “final invoice” the Contractor shall submit an overall project Subcontractor 
utilization report indicating that the overall committed subcontracting commitments were 
achieved. Final payment will not be processed without the overall project Subcontractor 
Utilization Report.  

 
Subcontractor Substitution, Reduction, or Addition: The Consultant shall notify 
LADWP Contract Administrator in writing of any proposal to add, reduce, or substitute a 
Subconsultant in place of a Subconsultant listed in the Consultant’s 
Qualification/Proposal. Prior to such change, the Consultant shall secure the 
acceptance of LADWP. The Consultant shall submit the following information in a form 
similar to that contained in the Consultant’s original Qualification/Proposal.  

 
A. Name of Subconsultant 
 
B. Location and Phone Number of Place of Business 
 
C. Contact Person 
 
D. Subconsultant’s License(s) number and expiration date (if applicable) 
 
E. Current Certification Status (if applicable) 
 
F. The portion of the services that will be performed by each Subconsultant 
 
G. Reason for the change 

 
LADWP will promptly initiate a review of the information submitted on each 
Subconsultant and transmit written notification to the Consultant concerning its decision. 
 
LADWP shall not be responsible for delays incurred by the Consultant because of a 
timely disapproval by LADWP of a Subconsultant proposed by the Consultant, or for the 
late submittal for acceptance of a Subconsultant to LADWP, or because of a 
Subconsultant’s removal from the performance of the Work. 
 
Falsification of Subcontractor Agreement: Falsification or misrepresentation as to 
company name, contract amount, or actual work to be done by the Subcontractor will 
result in sanctions as set forth in applicable local, state, and federal laws. 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B4   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

 
Penalties: A Consultant violating any provision(s) of this program shall, subject to prior 
notice of the alleged violation(s), and an opportunity to be heard and to present 
evidence in its own defense, be deemed in violation of the Contract, and LADWP may: 

 
A. Terminate the contract; or 
 
B. Assess the Consultant a penalty of not more than 10% of the amount of 

the Subcontract(s) involved. 
 
 
SP-6 RESERVED 
 
SP-7 RESERVED 
 
SP-8 RESERVED 
 
SP-9 RESERVED  

 
SP-10 RESERVED 
 
SP-11 RESERVED 
 
SP-12 RESERVED   
 
SP-13  Conflicts of Interest 
 
Consultant will not accept any other contract during the term of the Agreement from any 
other party if such other contract could represent, or could lead to a conflict of interest 
between LADWP, Consultant, or the other party.   
 
Any subcontract entered into pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be subject 
to, and shall incorporate, the provisions of this Article.  
 
SP-14 RESERVED 
 
SP-15 Background Check Certification Requirement  
 
The Consultant shall (1) perform the required background checks of all designated 
principals, employees and/or Subconsultants of the Consultant; and (2) not assign 
principals, employees and/or Subconsultants of the Consultant convicted of any felony 
or offense of moral turpitude, or for whom other derogatory information has been found 
pursuant to criteria set forth in this Agreement or any attachment hereto (including, 
without limitation, Background Check Certification) shall result in irreparable harm to 
LADWP and, at LADWP's option, the immediate termination for breach of contract 
without opportunity to cure, without liability on the part of LADWP. 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B5   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

 
Consultant agrees to submit a statement along with any invoices or billing associated 
with this Agreement which certifies that all work performed under this Agreement at 
critical facilities as designated by LADWP to Consultant was conducted by persons for 
whom background checks have been conducted and who do not have disqualifying 
background information in their histories pursuant to this section. 
  
Consultant is advised that submission of a false claim for payment to LADWP may 
subject Consultant to liability under the California False Claims Act (Cal. Gov't Code 
Sec. 12650 et seq.). In addition, any failure to comply with the background procedures 
as required by this section may be considered in connection with future contracting 
opportunities with LADWP. The following specific language in the invoices/bills is 
acceptable: "Consultant certifies that all work performed for which this invoice/bill is 
submitted which required access to critical facilities as designated by LADWP was 
performed by persons for whom background checks have been conducted, and for 
whom no disqualifying information (including felonies, offenses of moral turpitude, and 
other disqualifying criteria, if any, as specified in the Agreement between Consultant 
and LADWP) has been found." 
 
None of the remedies available to LADWP under this section shall preclude LADWP 
from any other remedies available in law or equity to compensate it for damages caused 
by the Consultant's failure to comply with this section. 
 
SP-16 Confidentiality 

 
All documents, records, and information provided by LADWP to the Consultant, or 
accessed or reviewed by the Consultant, during performance of this Agreement shall 
remain the property of LADWP. All documents, records and information provided by 
LADWP to the Consultant, or accessed or reviewed by the Consultant during 
performance of this Agreement, are deemed confidential. The Consultant agrees not to 
provide these documents and records, nor disclose their content or any information 
contained in them, either orally or in writing, to any other person or entity. The 
Consultant agrees that all documents, records, or other information used or reviewed in 
connection with the Consultant's work for LADWP shall be used only for the purpose of 
carrying out LADWP business and cannot be used for any other purpose. The 
Consultant shall be responsible for protecting the confidentiality and maintaining the 
security of LADWP documents, records, and information in its possession. 
 

Document Access/Control 
 
A. The Consultant shall make the confidential information provided by 

LADWP to the Consultant, or accessed or reviewed by the Consultant 
during performance of this Agreement, available to its employees, agents 
and /or Subconsultants, only on a need-to-know basis. Further, the 
Consultant shall provide written instructions to all of its employees, agents 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B6   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

and Subconsultants with access to the confidential information about the 
penalties for its unauthorized use or disclosure. 

 
B. The Consultant shall store and process confidential information in an 

electronic format in such a way that unauthorized persons cannot retrieve 
the information by computer, remote terminal or other means. 

 
C. The Consultant shall not remove documents, records, or information used 

or reviewed in connection with the Consultant's work for LADWP from 
LADWP facilities without prior approval from LADWP. The Consultant 
shall not use, other than in direct performance of work required pursuant 
to the Agreement, or make notes of any home address or home telephone 
numbers contained in personnel or customer files, confidential information, 
documents, or records provided by LADWP that are reviewed during work 
on this Agreement.  
 

D. With prior written approval from LADWP, the Consultant may make copies 
of such documents, written materials, notes, documents, confidential 
information, or other information, as necessary to perform its duties under 
this Agreement.  
 

E. The Consultant shall document and immediately report to LADWP any 
unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential information as defined in 
Article 8.1. 
 

F. The Consultant shall require that all its employees, agents, and 
Subconsultants who shall, or may, review, be provided, or have access to 
LADWP data, information, personnel or customer files, confidential 
information, documents, or records during the performance of this 
Agreement, execute a confidentiality agreement that incorporates the 
provisions of this Article VIII, Confidentiality and Restrictions on Disclosure 
prior to performing work under this Agreement.  
 

G. The provisions of this Article VIII, Confidentiality and Restrictions on 
Disclosure shall survive termination and expiration of this Agreement. 
 

SP-17 Security Policy and Requirements 
 
The Consultant is required to adhere to all physical and cyber-related security policies, 
standards, requirements and procedures (collectively, “Security Requirements”), 
applicable to the project. All Consultant personnel, equipment, products, services, and 
Subconsultants involved with the work must adhere to all applicable Security 
Requirements throughout the duration of the Agreement or any extensions or 
amendments thereof. Security Requirements may be imposed by LADWP policy, or by 
Federal, State or Local laws, regulations or industry practices, including, without 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B7   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

limitation, requirements that may be imposed by the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC), the North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC), the 
Western Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) the Department of Energy (DOE), the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the Department of Homeland Security 
(DHS).   
 
Inability to meet the Security Requirements may be considered when evaluating the 
Consultant for consideration and award, including extensions or amendments to existing 
agreements. As security regulations and practices change over time, amendments and 
extensions to existing agreements may include additional Security Requirements not 
present in earlier agreements. 
 
SP-18 RESERVED 
 
SP-19 Safety Compliance Certificate 
  
The successful Consultant(s) will be required to execute and submit the form titled, 
“Safety Compliance Certificate” in Exhibit K of this Agreement. The form certifies that 
the Consultant has: 
 

A. An effective Injury and Illness Prevention Program, which meets the 
requirements of all applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited 
to, California Labor Code Section 6401.7; 

 
B. Consultant agrees that it is fully responsible for the acts and omissions of its 

Subconsultants and all persons either directly or indirectly employed by the 
Proposer. 

 
Such certification shall be made by the person with the authority and responsibility for 
implementing and administering Consultant’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program. 
 
SP-20 Data Security 
 
The Contractor shall implement appropriate measures designed to ensure the 
confidentiality and security of Protected Information (private and confidential), protect 
against any anticipated hazards or threats to the integrity or security of such 
information, protect against unauthorized access or disclosure of information, and 
prevent any other action that could result in substantial harm to the LADWP or an 
individual identified with the data or information in the Contractor’s custody. 
 
SP-21 Prompt Payment to Subcontractors 
 
Contractor or subcontractor shall pay to any subcontractor(s), not later than 7 days after 
receipt of each payment, the respective amounts allowed the Contractor on account of 
the work performed by the subcontractors, to the extent of each subcontractor’s interest 



EXHIBIT B 
Special Provisions 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences    Page B8   
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit B –Special Provisions 
[Rev. 02.26.20] 

therein.  In the event that there is a good faith dispute over all or any portion of the 
amount due on a payment from the Contractor or subcontractor to a subcontractor, the 
Contractor or subcontractor may withhold no more than 150 percent of the disputed 
amount. Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts. 
 
 
 
  
 

END OF SPECIAL PROVISIONS



EXHIBIT D 
Allowable Travel Expenses 

 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences Page D1 
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit D – Allowable Travel Expenses  

Expenses for transportation, lodging, subsistence and related items incurred by 
consultants employed by the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power will be 
subject to the “50-mile” rule. Under this rule, travel reimbursements will be made only if 
the destination is farther than 50 miles from the Consultant personnel’s field or office 
location to the LADWP work site. Any such travel shall be pre-approved by LADWP and 
shall be in accordance with the guidelines of this Exhibit D. 
 
All expenditures over $25 require documentation in the form of an original detailed 
receipt with the exception of per diem meals. However, receipts for expenditures under 
$25 may be requested by the City Controller. No additional mark-up on consultant or 
subconsultant expenses will be allowed. 
 
LADWP will reimburse the Consultant for expenses that include, but not limited to: 
 

1.0 Airfare:   
 

Airfare is limited to coach class only. An itinerary is not acceptable in and of 
itself. Original receipts for airfare must be submitted. Purchase of a refundable 
ticket, which is usually more expensive than a non-refundable ticket, must be 
approved by the LADWP Contract Administrator identified in the Agreement. 

 
2.0 Car Rental: 
 

Car rental is limited to mid-size or smaller car. The expense of navigation and 
insurance will not be reimbursed. Original receipts for car rental and fuel costs 
must be submitted. Travelers shall fill the gas tank before returning car to avoid 
fuel surcharges that are not reimbursable. 

 
3.0 Per Diem Allowances – Meals: 

 
3.1 A meal allowance rate is established for domestic travel and will include 

incidental expenses. 
 

3.2 The meal allowance rate for domestic travel is $66 per day for a full day of 
travel, which excludes taxes and reasonable and customary gratuities not 
to exceed 15 per cent. On the first and last day of travel flight itinerary will 
be required if the full meal rate is requested. 
 

3.3 Meal and incidental allowance will be prorated at 75% ($49.50) of the daily 
allowance as follows on the first and last day of travel depending on 
departure/arrival time: 
 
3.3.1 The partial meal rate will be paid on the first day of travel for 

departure times after 2 p.m. 



EXHIBIT D 
Allowable Travel Expenses 

Los Angeles Department of Water and Power – MBC Aquatic Sciences Page D2 
Agreement No. 47619 
Receiving Water Monitoring Services 
Exhibit D-Allowable Travel Expenses 

3.3.2 The partial meal rate will be paid on the last day of travel for arrival 
times prior to 2 p.m. 
 

3.3.3 When some meals are provided as part of the conference/event. 
 
(NOTE: No meal allowance will be provided when all meals are 
provided throughout the day by the host or as part of an 
event/conference.) 
 

3.4 Meal Receipts 
 

Meal receipts are no longer required when claiming the meal allowance. If 
receipts are provided, the actual amount if less than allowance will be 
reimbursed. 
 

EXCEPTIONS:  
1) Receipts are required for grant funded travel where the grantor 

requires complete documentation of travel expenses; and  
2) Receipts are required of single meals that cost more than $25.  

 
4.0 Per Diem Allowance – Hotel/Lodging: 

 
4.1 Since the expense limit varies by county, the expense limit shall be pre-

approved by the LADWP Contract Administrator identified in the 
Agreement for travel by the Consultant to an approved worksite outside of 
Los Angeles County. 

 
4.2 Zero balance receipt is required. The receipt must include the pre-printed 

hotel name and address. Lodging expenses up to a maximum limit of 
$181.00 per day (Los Angeles County). This should exclude taxes and 
tips. Tips and gratuities shall not exceed 15%, where reasonable and 
customary.  

 
4.3 Meals and lodging are reimbursable only on working days as reported on 

timesheets, and payments are subject to the approval of the LADWP 
Contract Administrator identified in the Agreement.  

 
5.0 Mileage: 

 
Mileage for non-rental car travel will be paid at the standard mileage rate 
established by the Internal Revenue Service in effect at the time of travel. A 
Map Quest or similar routing tool is required to document miles driven. The 
mileage will be calculated using the shortest route. As of January 1, 2020, the 
reimbursement rate is fifty-seven and one half cents ($0.575) per mile. 
 

END OF ALLOWABLE TRAVEL EXPENSES 



County of Inyo

Public Works
 

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:   
 
SUBJECT:  North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the plans and specifications for the North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over 
Pine Creek Project and authorize the Public Works Director to advertise and accept bids for the project.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
North Round Valley Bridge washed out during the spring runoff of 2017, in a flood event that was declared both a 
County and State emergency.  The County received a 75% matching fund from the California Office of 
Emergency Services to replace the bridge.
 
The North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement over Pine Creek Project will include the demolition of the 
existing bridge and the installation of a new 85 foot single-span, precast/prestressed wide flange girder 
superstructure on high cantilever abutments founded on cast-in-drilled-hole (CIDH) concrete piles.  Rock slope 
protection will be placed on banks to prevent future erosion during storm events.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
The bridge was constructed in 1989, and was washed out during the spring runoff of 2017 (the 'Here It Comes' 
County emergency and State Emergency Declared October 2017).  The design firm of MGE was chosen to 
design the project as well as complete all environmental permitting.  The final environmental permit was secured 
at the end of September 2020, and with final documents from the design firm completed in early October 2020. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The board could choose not to approve the bid package and authorize public works to advertise, this would not 
be advised as the significant time, money, and effort have been expended to complete the design and secure the 
necessary environmental permits. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
The California Office of Emergency Services is providing a matching grant of 75% (25% County Responsibility) to 
complete design, environmental, and construction of the bridge. 
 
FINANCING:
The cost of the contract will be paid through budget unit 034600 Road and object code 5717 North Round Valley 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Road. This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75% by the California Office of Emergency Services. Project costs 
will be incurred in fiscal year 20/21.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. North Round Valley Bridge Bid Package
 
APPROVALS:
Jacob Trauscht Created/Initiated - 10/20/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/20/2020
Jacob Trauscht Approved - 10/21/2020
Breanne Nelums Approved - 10/21/2020
Ashley Helms Approved - 10/21/2020
Aaron Holmberg Approved - 10/21/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/22/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/22/2020
Michael Errante Final Approval - 10/22/2020



BID PACKAGE 
 
 
     

FOR CONSTRUCTION ON COUNTY ROADS 
IN INYO COUNTY 

 
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 

  
North Round Valley Bridge, Bishop, CA 

 
TR-17-034 

 
FOR USE IN CONNECTION WITH STATE OFFICE OF EMERGENCY SERVICES 

FUNDED CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS ADMINISTERED UNDER THE STANDARD 
PLANS AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, DATED 2020, OF THE CALIFORNIA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AND GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE 
RATES AND LABOR SURCHARGE AND EQUIPMENT RENTAL RATES  

 
 
 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS FOR............................................................................................................................ i 

BID PROPOSAL FORMS FOR .......................................................................................................................... 1 

BID PROPOSAL FORM ............................................................................................................................ 2 

BID ITEM LIST ........................................................................................................................................ 5 

BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION: ..................................................................................................... 8 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.1 STATEMENT .................................................................. 10 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162 QUESTIONNAIRE .............................................................. 10 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10232 STATEMENT ..................................................................... 12 

CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION .................................................................................... 13 

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION ....................................................................... 14 

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT ................................................................................................................ 15 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE COMMITMENT (CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS) ................................. 16 

FINAL REPORT – UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES ..................................................... 18 

CASHIER'S OR CERTIFIED CHECK ......................................................................................................... 20 

BID BOND ............................................................................................................................................ 21 

CONTRACT AND BONDS 

EXHIBIT A SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

EXHIBIT B PLANS 
 
EXHIBIT C INFORMATION HANDOUT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 



 
 

 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS 

FOR 
 
 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

North Round Valley Road, Bishop, CA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October 2020 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 



North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project  
Notice Inviting Bids 

Page i 
 

 
NOTICE INVITING BIDS  

 
The Inyo County Public Works Department is soliciting bids for the:  

 
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 
The project location is briefly described below: 
 
North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek, approximately 12 miles north of Bishop California, 
near the community of 40 Acres. 
 
Bid Packages, which include the Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond Forms, 
Special Provisions, and Plans may be obtained from the Inyo County Public Works Department, 168 
North Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer Q, Independence, CA  93526, Telephone (760) 878-0201.  A non-
refundable fee of $50.00 will be charged for each Bid Package.   
 
To expedite shipping, fax to (760) 878-2001 a copy of (1) your mailed check, (2) your bidder contact 
information, and (3) your FedEx number for shipping. Checks are to be made out to Inyo County Public 
Works Department.  The Bid Package is also available for inspection at the department offices during 
regular business hours.  Bid Packages are also available to download free of charge at the County of Inyo 
website at https://www.inyocounty.us/services/county-administration/bid-request-rfp. 
 
Bidders must register as plan holders with Inyo County Public Works Department to be able to 
submit a bid. Bidders who fail to notify the County that they are plan holders may not be informed of the 
issuance of any addenda.  If the County issues any addenda to the bid packages that are not acknowledged 
by the bidder, the bid proposal may be rejected. 
 
Bids must be delivered in a sealed envelope clearly marked thereon with the bidder's name and 
address, the word BID, and the project title: 
 
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 
To be considered, bids must be received by the assistant clerk to the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards Street (mailing address: P.O. Box N), Independence, CA 93526 at or 
before 3:30 P.M., on December 2nd , 2020 at which time they will be publicly opened and read.  If 
office closures due to Covid-19 are still in effect on the bid opening date, bids will be read aloud 
over a conference line, all bidders will be provided with the call-in information.  No oral, email, 
telephone, or fax proposals or modifications will be accepted. 
 
General Work Description:  
The existing North Round Valley Road Bridge (Bridge Number 48C0044), built in 1987, was closed due 
to high velocity flows that occurred in June and July 2017.  The high flows undermined both existing 
abutment foundations due to scour, and eroded approximately 50-feet of the south approach roadway 
behind the southern abutment. The bridge is to be replaced by an approximately 85-foot (ft) single-span, 
precast/prestressed wide flange girder superstructure on high cantilever abutments founded on cast-in-
drilled-hole (CIDH) concrete piles.  The North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement project will 
generally consist of: (1) clearing and grubbing, (2) installing temporary BMPs, (3) constructing a 
temporary water diversion, (4) removal of the existing bridge, (5) construction of the new bridge, (6) 
construction of abutments, (7) placement of precast/prestressed CA wide flange girder superstructure, (8) 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Notice Inviting Bids 

Page ii 

construction of bridge deck and barriers, (9) installation of permanent erosion control/scour BMPs 
including rip-rap, and (10) reconstruction of road approaches.  
 
The Contractor is responsible to perform, place, construct or install other items and details not mentioned 
here as shown on the plans and as described in the special provisions and Standard Specifications.  The 
Contractor is also responsible for performing the work in accordance with the environmental permits 
included in the Information Packet and all applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulation. 
 
Bids shall conform to and be responsive to the contract documents, which include the notice inviting bids, 
bid proposal forms, contract and bond forms, Inyo County Standard Specifications and Standard Plans, 
dated 2020, California Department of Transportation Standard Specifications and Standard Plans, dated 
2018, special provisions, project plans, and current edition of the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices, and any other documents incorporated therein by reference.  Bids are required for the entire 
work described in the contract documents.  Each bid must be submitted on the bid proposal forms 
furnished as part of the bid package. 
 
General requests for information, such as how to order bid packages, engineer’s estimate, 
plan holders list, bid results or summaries, subcontractor lists, or similar information 
should be directed to the receptionist at the Inyo County Public Works Department at 760-
878-0201. 
 
Technical questions related to engineering, site conditions, materials, construction 
methods, or testing should be directed to Jake Trauscht of Inyo County Public Works at 
jtrauscht@inyocounty.us or 760-878-0204.  
 
All Requests for Information (RFI) must be submitted by 5:00 p.m. on November 24th, 2020. 
Submit RFIs by fax (760-878-2001 Attn: Jake Trauscht) or by email to jtrauscht@inyocounty.us. 
The County of Inyo will not respond to any RFIs submitted after that time.  
 
A mandatory job walk for this project has been scheduled for November 19th, 2020 at 10 A.M., at 
the intersection of Pine Creek Road and North Round Valley Road. If unable to attend on this date, 
bidders are required to contact Jake Trauscht on 760-878-0202 to schedule an alternate time for the 
visit prior to preparing their bid. 
 
Each bid must be accompanied by a cashier's check, a certified check, or a bidder's bond from an admitted 
corporate surety on the form provided in the bid package, in an amount not less than 10% of the amount 
of the bid, and made payable to the County of Inyo. The check or bidder’s bond shall be given as security 
that the bidder will enter into the contract with the county and furnish the required labor and materials 
payment bond, faithful performance bond, certificates of insurance, or other required documents, if the 
bid is accepted.  The check or bond will be forfeited to the county if the bidder fails to timely enter into 
said contract or furnish the required bonds, certificates of insurance, or other required documents.  The 
check or bidder’s bond may be retained by the county for sixty (60) days or until the contract is fully 
executed by the successful bidder and the county, whichever occurs first. 
 
The basis of contract award will be the responsive, low-bid amount indicated for the scope of work. 
 
The successful bidder shall be required to furnish a faithful performance bond and a labor and materials 
payment bond on the forms provided in the bid package in the amount of 100% of the maximum contract 
amount. 

mailto:jtrauscht@inyocounty.us


 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Notice Inviting Bids 

Page iii 

The contractor, subcontractor, or the sub-recipient of subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of 
race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of the contract. 

The contract is subject to, and incorporates by reference, the provisions of Public Contract Code Section 
22300, pursuant to which the contractor is permitted to substitute securities for earned retentions or have 
them placed in escrow at the contractor's expense. 

The contract is also subject to the State Contract nondiscrimination and compliance requirements 
pursuant to Government Code Section 12990, et seq. 

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, to which this contract is subject, the prevailing wage per 
diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the State Department of Industrial 
Relations.  These wage rates appear in the Department of Transportation publication entitled General 
Prevailing Wage Rates.  Future effective wage rates, which have been predetermined and are on file with 
the State Department of Industrial Relations, are referenced, but not printed, in said publication.  Such 
rates of wages are also on file with the State Department of Industrial Relations and the offices of the 
Public Works Department of the County of Inyo and are available to any interested party upon request. 

Attention is directed to the federal minimum wage rate requirements of this project.  If there is a 
difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor and the 
general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial 
Relations for similar classifications of labor, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the 
higher wage rate.  The county will not accept lower state wage rates not specifically included in the 
federal minimum wage determinations.  This includes "helper" (or other classifications based on hours of 
experience) or any other classification not appearing in the federal wage determinations.  Where federal 
wage determinations do not contain the state wage rate determination otherwise available for use by the 
Contractor and subcontractors, the Contractor and subcontractors shall pay not less than the federal 
minimum wage rate, which most closely approximates the duties of the employees in question. 

The bidder and all subcontractors must be licensed as required by law at the time the bid is accepted and 
the contract is awarded.  The bid will not be accepted nor a contract awarded without proof of the 
contractor’s current registration pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code. Failure of the bidder to 
obtain proper and adequate licensing for an award of a contract shall constitute a failure to execute the 
contract and shall result in the forfeiture of the security of the bidder.  The contractor license classification 
required for this project is Class A or a combination of all of the specialty classifications that will be 
required for the complete performance of all of the work in accordance with the contract documents.  In 
addition, the bidder, if a joint venture, must have a current joint venture license at the time of award of the 
contract in accordance with Business and Professions Code Section 7029.1. 

The Bidder is further advised, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 20103.5, that the first payment 
for work or material under this Contract shall not be made unless and until the Registrar of Contractors 
verifies to the County that the records of the Contractors’ State License Board indicate that the Contractor 
was properly licensed at the time the contract was awarded.  Any bidder or contractor not so licensed 
shall be subject to all legal penalties imposed by law, including, but not limited to, any appropriate 
disciplinary action by the Contractors’ State License Board. 

Inyo County reserves the right at any stage of these proceedings to reject any or all bids or to waive any 
immaterial defect in any bid if it is deemed to be in the best interest of the County. 

The meanings of words used in this notice inviting bids are the same as those set forth in Section 1 of the 
Department of Transportation Standard Specifications, dated 2018. 

Each bidder must supply all the information required by the contract documents, special provisions and 
the standard specifications. 

Bid Protest:  In the event a dispute arises concerning the bid process prior to the award of the contract, 
the party wishing resolution of the dispute shall submit a request in writing to the County Director of 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Notice Inviting Bids 

Page iv 

Purchasing. Bidder may appeal the recommended award or denial of award, provided the following 
stipulations are met: 

A. Appeal must be in writing. 
B. Must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days of the date of the recommended award 

or denial of award letters. 
C. An appeal of a denial of award can only be brought on the following grounds: 
D. Failure to follow the selection procedures and adhere to requirements specified in the Bid 

Package or any addenda or amendments. 
E. There has been a violation of conflict of interest as provided by California Government 

Code Section 87100 et seq. 
F. A violation of State or Federal law. 
G. Appeals will not be accepted for any other reasons than those stated above.  All appeals 

must be sent to: 

Clint Quilter 
County of Inyo 
Purchasing Department 
224 N. Edwards St. 
Independence, CA 93526 

County’s Purchasing Agent shall make a decision concerning the appeal, and notify the Proposer making 
the appeal, within a reasonable timeframe prior to the tentatively scheduled date for awarding the 
contract.  The decision of County’s Purchasing Director shall be deemed final. 

 
County of Inyo 
Public Works Department  
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Michael Errante, P.E. 
Director of Public Works 
  

Dated:   ___________, 2020 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Notice Inviting Bids 

Page v 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 1 

 

 
 
 

BID 
PROPOSAL 

FORMS FOR 
 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
 

North Round Valley Road, Bishop, CA 
 

 
 

October 2020 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 2 

 
 
 
 

BID PROPOSAL FORM 
 
 
To:    COUNTY OF INYO 
 Public Works Department 
 168 N. Edwards Street 
     P.O. Drawer Q 
 Independence, California 93526 
 (Herein called the "Owner") 
 
 
From:  _______________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________ 
 _______________________________________________ 
  
(Herein called the "Contractor"). 
 

 
FOR:  North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project (Herein called 
“Project”) 
 
 
Bids will be opened at 3:30 P.M, on December 2nd, 2020 at the assistant clerk to the Inyo County Board 
of Supervisor's office, 224 N. Edwards Street, Independence, CA 93526. 
 
This bid includes all costs for all labor, materials, tools, taxes, insurance, transportation, and other related 
functions to perform all work as required by, and in accordance with, the contract documents for the 
Project. The bidder must submit a total bid for all of the items included in the bid schedule. 
 
In submitting this bid, it is understood that: 
 

1. The notice inviting bids; these bid proposal forms; the contract and bond forms; the special 
provisions; the Department of Transportation Standard Plans, dated 2015; the Department of 
Transportation Standard Specifications, dated 2015; the current edition of the Manual of Uniform 
Traffic Control Devices, and the project plans; including any documents incorporated therein, are 
to be considered complementary and are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof 
with like force and effect as if all of said documents were set forth in full herein.  All of said 
documents, which include these bid proposal forms, are referred to collectively as the contract 
documents and shall constitute the contract between the parties that will come into full force and 
effect upon acceptance, approval, and execution by the Inyo County Board of Supervisors. 

 
2. The contract for the Project requires the contractor to deliver a complete and finished asphalt 

concrete roadway overlay and additional associated work.  Anything necessary to complete this 
work properly and in accordance with the law and lawful governmental regulations, shall be 
performed by the contractor, whether set out specifically in the contract documents or not. 

 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 3 

3. The contractor, if his/her bid is accepted, will furnish the required bonds and certificates of 
insurance and other required documents as described in the contract documents. 

 
In submitting this bid, the contractor has familiarized itself or himself/herself with the bid package which 
includes the notice inviting bids; the bid proposal forms; the contract and bond forms; the special 
provisions; the Inyo County Standard Specifications and Plans, dated 2020, the California Department of 
Transportation Standard Plans, dated 2018, Department of Transportation Standard Specifications, dated 
2018; the current edition of the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the project plans.  
Contractor further agrees in submitting this bid to perform all the work in accordance with the contract 
documents within 170 days as required in Section 8-1.05, “TIME” of the special provisions.  The 
undersigned has/have checked carefully the following figures and understand(s) that the County of Inyo 
will not be responsible for any errors or omissions on the part of the undersigned in making this bid. 
 
Attached as a part of this bid is a bid bond from an admitted corporate surety on the form provided in the 
bid package (    ), or a certified or cashier's check (    ), in an amount not less than 10% of the amount of 
the bid submitted, either of which it is agreed, pursuant to the notice inviting bids and the bid proposal 
forms, shall be forfeited to or retained by the County of Inyo if the undersigned fails to execute the 
contract, or furnish the required bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required documents within ten 
(10) calendar days after receiving the contract documents. 
 
Also attached as a part of this bid is the bid proposal form; bid item list; designation of subcontractors; 
Certification Regarding Equal Employment Opportunity; Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 
Statement; Public Contract Code Section 10162 Questionnaire; Public Contract Code Section 10232 
Statement; non-collusion affidavit; Contractor's Labor Code Certification; and either (a) cashier's or 
certified check form or (b) bid bond form.  These documents have been completed and signed as required 
on the forms provided in the bid package.  The bidder's signature on this proposal constitutes an 
endorsement and execution of each and every certification and declaration that is contained in these 
documents, and bidder’s promise to perform and abide by the terms of these documents.  
 
A contractor or subcontractor shall not be qualified to bid on, be listed in a bid proposal, subject to the 
requirements of Section 4104 of the Public Contract Code, or engage in the performance of any contract 
for public work, as defined in this chapter, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public 
work pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the labor code.  It is not a violation of this section for an unregistered 
contractor to submit a bid that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business and Professions Code or by 
Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the contractor is registered to perform 
public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the labor code at the time the contract is awarded.  
 
The meanings of words used in these bid proposal forms are the same as set forth in Section 1-1.02, 
“Definitions and Terms” of the special provisions relating to this project. 
 
ACCEPTANCE: 
 
The owner reserves the right to reject this bid.  However, this bid shall remain open and shall not be 
withdrawn for a period of sixty (60) calendar days from the date set for its opening. 
 
If written notice of the acceptance of this bid is mailed or delivered to the undersigned within sixty (60) 
calendar days after the date set for its opening, or at any other time thereafter before it is withdrawn, the 
undersigned will execute and deliver the contract, bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required 
documents, to the owner within eight (8) working days, not including Saturdays, Sundays, and legal 
holidays, after receipt of the notification of acceptance of this bid (notification of award of contract). 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 4 

The bidder shall set forth for each unit basis item of work an item price and a total for the item; and for 
each lump sum item, a total for the item; all in clearly legible figures in the respective spaces provided for 
this purpose.  In the case of unit basis items, the amount set forth under the "Total" column shall be the 
extension of the item price bid on the basis of the estimated quantity for the item.  The amount of the bid 
for comparison purposes will be the total of all items listed in the base bid schedule. 
 
In case of discrepancy between the item unit price and the total set forth for a unit basis item, the item 
price shall prevail, except as provided in (a) or (b), as follows: 
 

(a) If the amount set forth as an item price is unreadable or otherwise unclear, or is omitted, or is the 
same amount as the entry in the item "Total" column, then the amount set forth in the "Total" 
column for the item shall prevail and shall be divided by the estimated quantity for the item and 
the unit price thus obtained shall be the item price. 

 
(b) (Decimal Errors) If the product of the entered item price and the estimated item quantity is 

exactly off by a factor of ten, one hundred, etc., or one-tenth, or one-hundredth, etc., from the 
entered item total, the discrepancy will be resolved by using the entered item price or item total, 
whichever most closely approximates percentage-wise the item price or item total in the 
engineer’s estimate. 

 
The undersigned, as bidder, declares that the only persons or parties interested in this proposal as 
principals are those named herein; that this proposal is made without collusion with any other person, 
firm, or corporation; that he/she has carefully examined the location of the proposed work, the contract 
and bond forms, and the plans therein referred to; and he/she proposes, and agrees if this proposal is 
accepted, that he/she will contract with the County of Inyo, on the contract form provided in the bid 
package, to provide all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction, and to do 
all the work and furnish all the materials specified in the contract, in the manner and time therein 
prescribed, and according to the requirements of the engineer as therein set forth; and that he/she will take 
in full payment therefore the following item prices: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 5 

BID ITEM LIST  
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
 
BIDDER’S COMPANY NAME: 
ABBREVIATIONS: LS = LUMP SUM SQFT = SQUARE FEET LF = LINEAR FEET         
CY = CUBIC YARD EA = EACH LB = POUND  

ITEM 
NO.  DESCRIPTION UNIT 

MEAS 
EST. 

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 
DOLLARS 

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $ $ 

2 CONSTRUCTION SURVEYS LS 1 $ $ 

3 TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEM LS 1 $  $ 

4 JOB SITE MANAGEMENT LS 1 $  $ 

5 PREPARE STORM WATER 
POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN LS 1 $ $ 

6 TEMPORARY CREEK 
DIVERSION SYSTEM LS 1 $ $ 

7 REMOVE ASPHALT CONCRETE 
SURFACING SQFT 7,470 $ $ 

8 TEMPORARY HIGH-VISIBILITY 
FENCE (TYPE ESA) LF 1,330 

$ $ 

9 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 
$ $ 

10 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION 
(BRIDGE) CY 68 

$ $ 

11 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION 
(TYPE D) CY 640 

$ $ 

12 STRUCTURE BACKFILL 
(BRIDGE) CY 275 

$ $ 

13 FIBER ROLL LF 480 
$ $ 

14 HYDROSEED SQFT 2,800 
$ $ 

15 HOT MIX ASPHALT (TYPE A) TON 196 
$ $ 

16 24" CAST-IN-DRILLED-HOLE 
CONCRETE PILING LF 1432 

$ $ 

17 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, 
BRIDGE FOOTING CY 86 

$ $ 

18 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, 
BRIDGE CY 148 

$ $ 

19 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, 
BRIDGE (POLYMER FIBER) CY 93 

$ $ 

20 
FURNISH PRECAST 
PRESTRESSED CONCRETE CA 
WF GIRDER 

EA 4 
$ $ 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 6 

ITEM 
NO.  DESCRIPTION UNIT 

MEAS 
EST. 

QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL 
DOLLARS 

21 
ERECT PRECAST 
PRESTRESSED CONCRETE CA 
WF GIRDER 

EA 4 
$ $ 

22 JOINT SEAL ( Type B) LF 77 
$ $ 

23 BAR REINFORCING STEEL 
(BRIDGE) LB 56,727 

$ $ 

24 BAR REINFORCING STEEL 
(EPOXY COATED) (BRIDGE) LB 22,800 

$ $ 

25 BRIDGE REMOVAL LS 1 
$ $ 

26 ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION 
(150 LB, CLASS III, METHOD B) CY 472 

$ $ 

27 ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION (1/2 
TON, CLASS VII, METHOD B) CY 1,362 

$ $ 

28 ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION 
FABRIC (CLASS 8) SQYD 1,128 

$ $ 

29 TRANSITION RAILING (TYPE 
WB-31) EA 4 

$ $ 

30 IN-LINE TERMINAL SYSTEM EA 4 
$ $ 

31 CALIFORNIA ST-75 BRIDGE 
RAIL LF 241 

$ $ 

32 REMOVE GUARDRAIL LF 250 
$ $ 

33 PAINT TRAFFIC STRIPE (2-
COAT) LF 353 

$ $ 

 
TOTAL BID (IN NUMBERS)  
 
TOTAL BID (IN WORDS)   
   

 
 
REVIEWED AND CHECKED BY: 

(For County Use) 
             
 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 7 

TIME OF COMPLETION: 
 
The undersigned further specifically agrees to complete all the work within 170 days after receipt of 
Notice to proceed as required by Section 8-1.05 of the Special Provisions. 
 
 
BID SECURITY: 
 
The required ten percent (10%) Bid Security for this bid is attached in the form of: 
(Note: Check and complete one of the following items) 
  
 
(   )  Bid bond issued by _________________________________________________________, 
       an admitted corporate surety on the form provided in the bid package. 
 
(   )  Certified/cashier's check No. _____________ issued by_____________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________________ 
  
 
ADDENDA: 
 
The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda and has provided for all addenda 
changes in this bid. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 (Fill in addendum numbers and dates addenda have been received.  If none have been received, enter 
"NONE".)  
 
 
 
 
WARNING: 
 
IF ADDENDA HAVE BEEN ISSUED BY THE COUNTY AND NOT NOTED ABOVE AS BEING 
RECEIVED BY THE BIDDER, THIS PROPOSAL MAY BE REJECTED.  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 8 

BIDDER'S BUSINESS INFORMATION: 
 
IMPORTANT NOTICE: If bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state legal name of 
corporation and names of the president, secretary treasurer, and manager thereof; if a co-partnership or 
joint venture, state the true name of the firm or joint venture and the names, current addresses, and 
telephone numbers of all individual co-partners or joint ventures composing the partnership or joint 
venture; if bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first and last names in full.  
 
A.   Individual (  ),  Partnership (   ),  Joint Venture (  ):  Corporation (  ): Limited 
Liability Company (LLC) (  ) 
 
     Personal Name:_____________________________________ 
 
     Business Name:_____________________________________ 
 
     Address:___________________________________________ 
 
    _____________________________  Zip Code ____________ 
 
     Telephone:    ( _____ )  _______________________________ 
 
Federal Identification No. ________________________________________________________ 
 
Contractor's License No. __________________, State of _______________, Type___________ 
 
License Expiration Date __________________ 
 
(The above address will be used to send  notice of acceptance or requests for additional information) 
 
THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY DECLARES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER  THE 
LAWS OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, THAT THE STATEMENTS MADE IN THIS BID 
PROPOSAL FORM, INCLUDING ALL OF THE ATTACHED STATEMENTS, 
DESIGNATIONS, CERTIFICATES, AND AFFIDAVITS, ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, AND 
THAT THEY ARE THE INDIVIDUAL, MANAGING PARTNER, OR CORPORATE OFFICER, 
DULY AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO MAKE THIS BID ON BEHALF OF CONTRACTOR, AND 
BY SIGNING BELOW DO MAKE THIS BID ON BEHALF OF CONTRACTOR ACCORDING 
TO ALL OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SET FORTH OR REFERENCED HEREIN.                                                                 
 
 
___________________________________        ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Person)             (Title) 
 
 
___________________________________         ___________________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                 (Date) 
 
 
 
 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 

Page 9 

DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Section 4100 et. seq. 
of the Public Contract Code of the State of California), the undersigned bidder has set forth below the full name, 
and the location of the place of business of each subcontractor who will perform work or labor or render service to 
the prime contractor in or about the construction of the work or improvement, or a subcontractor licensed by the 
State of California who, under subcontract to the prime contractor, specifically fabricates and installs a portion of the 
work or improvement according to detailed drawings contained in the plans and specifications to which the attached 
bid is responsive, and the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor for each subcontract in 
excess of one-half of one percent of the prime contractor's total bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater. 
 
The bidder understands that if he fails to specify a subcontractor for any portion of the work to be performed under 
the contract in excess of one-half of one percent of his bid, or $10,000.00, whichever is greater, he shall be deemed 
to have agreed to perform such portion himself, and that he shall not be permitted to sublet or subcontract that 
portion of the work except in cases of public emergency or necessity, and then only after a finding, reduced to 
writing as a public record of the awarding authority, setting forth the facts constituting the emergency or necessity. 
 
If no subcontractors are to be employed on the project, enter the word "NONE". 
(Use additional pages if necessary) 

BID 
ITEM 
NO. 

DESCRIPTION OF 
WORK 

% OF 
TOTAL 

CONTRACT 

SUBCONTRACTOR’S 
NAME, ADDRESS, AND 

PHONE NO. 

LICENSE 
TYPE AND 
NUMBER 

CA 
DIR 

REGIS

 
 

      

      

      

      

      

      

 
 

     

      

 
__________________________________           ___________________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Person)                                                  (Title) 
 
___________________________________         ___________________________________ 
(Printed Name)                                                                              (Date) 
  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 10 

 
 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10285.1 STATEMENT 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACMENT PROJECT 
 
 
In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985), the bidder 
hereby declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the bidder has ___ , 
has not ___ been convicted within the preceding three years of any offenses referred to in that section, 
including any charge of fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any state or 
Federal antitrust law in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of, any public works 
contract, as defined in Public Contract Code Section 1101, with any public entity, as defined in Public 
Contract Code Section 1100, including the Regents of the University of California or the Trustees of the 
California State University.  The term "bidder" is understood  to include any partner, member, officer, 
director, responsible managing officer, or responsible managing employee thereof, as referred to in 
Section 10285.1. 
 
 
Note:  The bidder must place a checkmark after "has" or "has not" in one of the blank spaces provided. 

The above Statement is part of the Proposal.  Signing this Proposal on the signature portion 
thereof shall also constitute signature of this Statement. Bidders are cautioned that making a false 
certification may subject the certifier to criminal prosecution. 

 
 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10162 QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACMENT PROJECT 
 
In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 10162, the Bidder shall complete, under penalty of 
perjury, the following questionnaire: 
 
Has the bidder, any officer of the bidder, or any employee of the bidder who has a proprietary interest in 
the bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise prevented from bidding on, or completing a 
federal, state, or local government project because of a violation of law or a safety regulation? 
 
                                                       Yes _____    No _____ 
 
 
If the answer is yes, explain the circumstances in the following space. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 11 

By bidder's signature on the proposal, bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California, that the foregoing questionnaire and statements in accordance with Public Contract Code 
Section 10162 are true and correct. 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 12 

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECTION 10232 STATEMENT 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACMENT OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 
 
In conformance with Public Contract Code Section 10232, the Contractor, hereby states under penalty 
of perjury, that no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a federal court has 
been issued against the Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period because of the 
Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a federal court which orders the Contractor to comply with 
an order of the National Labor Relations Board. 
 
 
 
 

Note: The above Statement and Questionnaire are part of the Proposal.  Signing this Proposal 
on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Statement and 
Questionnaire. 

 Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to 
criminal prosecution. 

 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
    (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
 
         _____________________ 
  Signature            Date 
 
 
 
Company Name ____________________________________ 
 
Business Address ____________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________ 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 13 

CONTRACTOR'S LABOR CODE CERTIFICATION 
(Labor Code Section 3700 et seq.) 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACMENT OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 
 
I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 and following of the labor code which requires every 
employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self- insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing 
the performance of the work of this contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________________________________________ 
    (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
 
         _____________________ 
  Signature            Date 
 
 
 
Company Name ____________________________________ 
 
Business Address ____________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________ 
 
               ____________________________________  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 14 

(THE BIDDER'S EXECUTION ON THE SIGNATURE PORTION OF THIS PROPOSAL SHALL ALSO 
CONSTITUTE AN ENDORSEMENT AND EXECUTION OF THOSE CERTIFICATIONS WHICH ARE A PART OF 

THIS PROPOSAL) 
 

 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CERTIFICATION 

 
 

The bidder_________________________________________________________________, proposed 
subcontractor        _______________________________________________, hereby certifies that he has    
___, has not        , participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to the equal opportunity 
clauses, as required by Executive Orders 10925, 11114, or 11246, and that, where required, he has filed 
with the Joint Reporting Committee, the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance, a Federal 
Government contracting or administering agency, or the former President's Committee on Equal 
Employment Opportunity, all reports due under the applicable filling requirements. 
 
 
 
Note: The above certification is required by the Equal Employment Opportunity Regulations of the 

Secretary of Labor (41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1)), and must be submitted by bidders and proposed 
subcontractors only in connection with contracts and subcontracts which are subject to the equal 
opportunity clause.  Contracts and subcontracts which are exempt from the equal opportunity 
clause are set forth in 41 CFR 60-1.5.  (Generally only contracts or subcontracts of $10,000 or 
under are exempt.) 

 
Currently, Standard Form 100 (EEO-1) is the only report required by the Executive Orders or 
their implementing regulations.  
 
Proposed prime contractors and subcontractors who have participated in a previous contract or 
subcontract subject to the Executive Orders and have not filed the required reports should note 
that 41 CFR 60-1.7(b) (1) prevents the award of contracts and subcontracts unless such contractor 
submits a report covering the delinquent period or such other period specified by the Federal 
Highway Administration or by the Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance, U.S. 
Department of Labor. 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 15 

Noncollusion Affidavit 
(Title 23 United States Code Section 112 and 

Public Contract Code Section 7106) 
 

To the COUNTY OF INYO DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS, 
 

In conformance with Title 23 United States Code Section 112 and Public Contract Code 
7106 the bidder declares that the bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any 
undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that 
the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly 
induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or 
indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put 
in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any 
manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with 
anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, 
profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure any 
advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the 
proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the 
bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown 
thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, 
and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company association, 
organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive 
or sham bid. 

 
 
 
 

Note: The above Noncollusion Affidavit is part of the Proposal.  Signing this Proposal 
on the signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this 
Noncollusion Affidavit. 
Bidders are cautioned that making a false certification may subject the certifier to 
criminal prosecution. 

 
 

    (Name and Title of Signer) 
 
 
         _____________________ 
  Signature            Date 
 
 
 
Company Name ____________________________________ 
 
Business Address ____________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________ 
 
   ____________________________________ 
 
               ____________________________________  

  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 16 

Small Business Enterprise Commitment (Construction Contracts) 
 

NOTE: PLEASE REFER TO INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE SIDE/NEXT PAGE OF THIS FORM 
  
 Department: Inyo County Public Works Department______________        LOCATION: BISHOP, CA____________ 
 
 PROJECT DESCRIPTION: ____NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT_____________________________________ 
 
 TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT: $_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 BID OPENING DATE:_    December 2, 2020__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 BIDDER'S COMPANY NAME:__________________________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
BID ITEM NO. 

 

 
ITEM OF WORK AND DESCRIPTION 

OR SERVICES TO BE 
SUBCONTRACTED OR MATERIALS 

TO BE PROVIDED 

 
LICENSE INFO./CERT. 

No. of LOCAL AND 
SMALL BUSINESS 
ENTERPRISE AND 

EXPIRATION 
DATE 

 
NAME AND CONTACT 

INFORMATION FOR LOCAL 
AND SMALL BUSINESS 

ENTERPRISE  
(Must be certified on the date bids 

are opened) 

 
DOLLAR AMOUNT 

LOCAL AND SMALL 
BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

For Inyo County to Complete: 
 
 Project Number: ____TR- 17-034___________________________________ 
 
 Financing Type: _                             ___________________ 
 
 Contract Award Date: _________________________________________________ 

 
Total Claimed 
Participation 

 

 
 $______________ 
 
 
  _____________% 

 Checked by: 
 
 
________________________      __________________________   ___________ 
 Print Name                        Signature                     Date 
 
 

 

 
_______________________________ 
Signature of Bidder 
 
_______________________________ 
Date                  (Area Code) Tel. No. 
 
_______________________________ 
Person to Contact        (Please Type or Print) 
 

 
 
 

 
Small Business Enterprise (Rev 5/10) 

 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 17 

INSTRUCTIONS – Small Business Enterprise Commitment (CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS) 
(05/10) 

 
ALL BIDDERS: 
 
PLEASE NOTE: It is the bidder’s responsibility to verify that the Small Business Enterprise (SBE) 
subcontractors are certified by the proper certifying authorities, and submit evidence of that 
certification with the bid. If a SBE prime contractor is not certified on the date of the bid opening, 
the SBE prime contractor will not qualify for the contracting preference. If the SBE subcontractor 
or subcontractors are not certified on the date of bid opening, that portion of that firm’s 
participation will not count toward the minimum ten percent of the monetary value of the work 
needed to qualify for the contracting preference. 
 
The form requires specific information regarding the construction contract: Total Contract Amount, Bid 
Opening Date, and Bidder’s Name. 
 
Indicate the appropriate bid item number (or numbers); Item of Work and description or services to be 
subcontracted or materials to be provided by the SBE; the SBE’s business license information/expiration 
date, certification number and its expiration date; the SBE’s contact information, including company and 
contact name, address, and telephone number; and the dollar amount expected to be paid to the SBE.   
 
IMPORTANT: Identify all SBE firms participating in the project regardless of tier, including the prime 
contractor, if an SBE. Names of the First Tier SBE Subcontractors and their respective item(s) of work 
listed should be consistent, where applicable, with the names and items of work in the "List of 
Subcontractors" submitted with your bid. Provide copies of the SBEs’ quotes, and if applicable, a copy 
of joint venture agreements pursuant to the Subcontractors Listing Law and the Special Provisions. 
 
There is a column for the total SBE dollar amount. Enter the Total Claimed SBE Participation dollars and 
percentage amount of items of work submitted with your bid pursuant to the special provisions. (If 100% 
of item is not to be performed or furnished by the SBE, describe exact portion of time to be performed or 
furnished by the SBE.)  
 
This form must be submitted with the bid if the bidder is attempting to qualify for the SBE contracting 
preference. If the bidder is not attempting to qualify for the SBE contracting preference the form does not 
need to be submitted. 
 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Over Pine Creek Project 
Bid Forms 
Page 18 

 
FINAL REPORT – UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 

(SBE), FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
 

PROJECT: NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

     CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE 

PRIME CONTRACTOR  BUSINESS ADDRESS ESTIMATED CONTRACT AMOUNT 

 
BID 

ITEM NO. 

SUBCONTRACTOR NAME, 
BUSINESS ADDRESS, AND 

PHONE 
 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK PERFORMED 

 
 

SBE CERT. 
NUMBER 

CONTRACT PAYMENTS 
DATE 

WORK 
COMPLETE 

 
DATE OF 

FINAL 
PAYMENT NON-SBE SBE 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

    
$ $ 

 
 

   

TOTAL $ $ 
 

 

(i) Original Commitment 
 
$                   
 

  

2) I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT   

CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVES SIGNATURE  BUSINESS PHONE 
NUMBER 

 DATE  

4) TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS COMPLETE AND CORRECT   

RESIDENT ENGINEER’S SIGNATURE  BUSINESS PHONE 
NUMBER 

 DATE  

       
To be completed by the contractor and submitted to the Resident Engineer upon project completion



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project  
Bid Forms 

Page 19 
 

INSTRUCTIONS - FINAL REPORT – UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 
(SBE), FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTORS 
 

The form requires specific information regarding the construction project, including the prime contractor name and address, 
contract completion date, and estimated contract amount. The objective of the form is to describe who did what by bid item 
numbers and description, asking for specific dollar values of item work completed broken down by subcontractors who performed 
the work, SBE and non-SBE work forces. SBE prime contractors are required to show the date of work performed by their own 
forces along with the corresponding dollar value of work. 
 
Indicate appropriate bid item number or numbers, a description of work performed or materials provided, and subcontractor name and 
address. For those firms who are SBE, enter the SBE certification number. The SBE shall provide their certification number to the 
contractor and notify the contractor in writing with the date of decertification if their status changes during the course of the project. 
 
The form has two columns for the dollar value to be entered for the item work performed by the subcontractor. The non-SBE column 
is used to enter the dollar value of work performed by firms who are not certified SBEs. Enter the dollar value of work performed by 
firms who are SBEs in the SBE column. 
 
If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a SBE on the project becomes decertified and still performs work after 
their decertification date, enter the total value performed by the contractor/subcontractor under the appropriate SBE identification 
column. 
 
If the prime contractor or a subcontractor performing work as a non-SBE on the project becomes certified as a SBE, enter the dollar 
value of all work performed after certification as a SBE under the appropriate SBE identification column. 
 

Enter the total of each column on the form. 
 

  



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project  
Bid Forms 

Page 20 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
PROJECT NO. TR-17-034 

 
 

CASHIER'S OR CERTIFIED CHECK 
 

(Not required if bid bond accompanies the bid) 
 
 
 
 
A cashier's or certified check in the required amount and made payable to the County of Inyo is attached below: 
 
 
 
 
[                                                                              ] 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACH   CHECK   HERE 
 
 
 
 
 
[                                                                            ] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bidder (print name): __________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project  
Bid Forms 

Page 21 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

PROJECT NO.  TR-17-034 
 

BID BOND 
(BID PROPOSAL GUARANTEE) 

 
(Not required if certified or cashier's check accompanies the bid) 

 
 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That we, ______________________________ 
 
 _______________________________________________________________ as Principal, and 
    (Name of Bidder) 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Name of Corporate Surety) 
 
as Corporate Surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California, are held and firmly  
 
bound unto the County of Inyo, State of California, in the sum of _________________________ 
 
___________________________________________ dollars ($_________________________)  
 
for the payment whereof we hereby bind ourselves, our successors, heirs, executors, and  
administrators, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
 
The condition of the foregoing obligation is such that whereas the above bounded Principal is about to submit to the 
Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo a bid for the construction of the  North Round Valley Road Bridge 
Replacement Project, in compliance with the contract therefor: 
 
Now, if the bid of the Principal shall be accepted and the contract awarded to the Principal by said Board of Supervisors, 
and if the Principal shall fail or neglect to enter into the contract therefor in accordance with the terms of the Principal's 
bid and the terms set forth in the bid package, or to furnish the required Faithful Performance and Labor and Materials 
Payment Surety Bonds, certificates of insurance, and other required documents, to the satisfaction of the Board of 
Supervisors of said county, no later than EIGHT (8) WORKING DAYS after the Principal has received notice from the 
county that the contract has been awarded to the Principal, then the sum guaranteed by this bond is forfeited to the County 
of Inyo. 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project  
Bid Forms 

Page 22 
 

It is expressly agreed and understood that any errors, clerical, mathematical, or otherwise, in the bid shall not be or 
constitute a defense to a forfeiture of this bond. 
 
 
WITNESS our hands and seals this _____________day of _________________, 20 ____. 
 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
         Principal 
 
  (SEAL)   By_______________________________________ 
                            (Name & Title of Authorized Person) 
 
      _________________________________________ 
           (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
         Surety 
 
  (SEAL)   By_______________________________________ 
                             (Name & Title of Authorized Person) 
 
      _________________________________________ 
           (Address for Notices to be Sent) 
 
NOTE:  
 
THE SIGNATURES OF THE PRINCIPAL (BIDDER) AND SURETY MUST EACH BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY 
A NOTARY AND THE ACKNOWLEDGMENTS MUST BE ATTACHED TO THIS BOND. The bid bond must be 
executed on this form by a corporate surety admitted to issue such bonds in the State of California.  No substitutions will 
be accepted.   If an attorney-in-fact signs for the surety, an acknowledged statement from the surety appointing and 
empowering the attorney-in-fact to execute such bonds in such amounts on behalf of the surety, must accompany the bid 
bond.   
 
 
ADDRESS OF COUNTY FOR NOTICES TO BE SENT: 
 
 County of Inyo (Attn.: Public Works Director) 
 224 North Edwards Street, P.O. Box N 
 Independence, California 93526 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

CONTRACT AND BONDS 
 
 

FOR 
 
 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT 

 
BISHOP, CA 

 
 
 
 

Includes: 
 
Inyo County Standard Contract No. 147 
Faithful Performance Bond 
Labor and Material Bond  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]  



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 

FOR 
 
 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 

BISHOP, CA 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

  



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

COUNTY OF INYO 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

 
 
 

 
SPECIFICATIONS 

APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 

Bishop, CA 
 
 
 
These Special Provisions have been reviewed and approved by the Inyo County Public Works Department under the 

direction of the undersigned and are approved for the work contemplated herein. 
 
 
     
 

 
 

__________________________________________________ 
Director of Public Works 
 
 
 
 

 
 

_______________________ 
Specifications Approval Date 
 

 
  



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 

 



Final Special Provisions 
 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 
REPLACEMENT OVER PINE CREEK 

 

Inyo County, California 
 
 

Final Design Submittal 
 
 
 

August 2020 
 
 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

County of Inyo 
Department of Public Works 

P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

 
For use in conjunction with: 

State of California Department of Transportation 
Standard Specifications dated 2018 

 
 

Prepared By: 

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.  

7415 Greenhaven Drive, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95831 

 
  



 STANDARD PLANS LIST 
 

 The standard plan sheets applicable to this Contract include those listed below. The 
applicable revised standard plans (RSPs) listed below are included in the project 
plans. 

 ABBREVIATIONS, LINES, SYMBOLS, AND LEGEND 
A3A Abbreviations (Sheet 1 of 3) 
A3B Abbreviations (Sheet 2 of 3) 
A3C Abbreviations (Sheet 3 of 3) 
A10A Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 1 of 5) 
A10B Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 2 of 5) 
A10C Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 3 of 5) 
A10D Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 4 of 5) 
A10E Legend - Lines and Symbols (Sheet 5 of 5) 

 PAVEMENT MARKERS, TRAFFIC LINES, AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
A20A Pavement Markers and Traffic Lines - Typical Details 
RSP A20B Pavement Markers and Traffic Lines - Typical Details 

 EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL 
A62C Limits of Payment for Excavation and Backfill - Bridge 

 OBJECT MARKERS, DELINEATORS, CHANNELIZERS, AND BARRICADES 
A73A Object Markers 
RSP A73B Markers 

 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TYPICAL LAYOUTS FOR STRUCTURES 
RSP A77Q1 Midwest Guardrail System - Typical Layouts for Structure Approach 
RSP A77Q4 Midwest Guardrail System - Typical Layouts for Structure Departure 

 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - CONNECTION DETAILS AND TRANSITION 
RAILING TO BRIDGE RAILINGS, ABUTMENTS AND WALLS 

A77U1 Midwest Guardrail System - Connections to Bridge Railings without Sidewalks 
Details No. 1 

A77U2 Midwest Guardrail System - Connections to Bridge Railings without Sidewalks 
Details No. 2 

RSP A77U4 Midwest Guardrail System - Transition Railing (Type WB-31) 
 TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 

T56 Temporary Water Pollution Control Details (Temporary Fiber Roll) 
 BRIDGE DETAILS 

B0-13 Bridge Details 
 JOINT SEALS 

B6-21 Joint Seals (Maximum Movement Rating = 2") 
 

 

ORGANIZATION 
Special provisions are under headings that correspond with the main-section headings of the Standard 
Specifications. A main-section heading is a heading shown in the table of contents of the Standard 
Specifications. 

Each special provision begins with a revision clause that describes or introduces a revision to the 
Standard Specifications as revised by any revised standard specification. 

Any paragraph added or deleted by a revision clause does not change the paragraph numbering of the 
Standard Specifications for any other reference to a paragraph of the Standard Specifications. 

 



^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION I  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1  GENERAL 

 

1-1.01   GENERAL 

Unless otherwise stated, the work embraced herein shall be done in accordance with the Inyo County 
Standard Specifications and Standard Plans, dated 2020, the California Department of Transportation 
Standard Specifications and Standard Plans, dated 2018, and the current Manual of Uniform Traffic 
Control Devices, insofar as the same may apply, and in accordance with the following Special Provisions. 
Copies of the Inyo County Standard Plans and Standard Specifications may be obtained on the Inyo 
County website under Public Works (www.inyocounty.us/county_directory.htm), the Caltrans Standard 
Plans and Standard Specifications and the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices may be obtained 
from the Department of Transportation.  Copies are also available for review at the Inyo County Road 
Department. 

In case of conflict between the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions, the Special 
Provisions shall take precedence over and be used in lieu of such conflicting portions. 

Amendments to the Standard Specifications set forth in these Special Provisions shall be considered as 
part of the Standard Specifications for the purposes set forth in Section 5-1.02, “Contract Components,” 
of the Standard Specifications. Whenever either the term “Standard Specification is revised” or the term 
“Standard Specifications are revised” is used in the Special Provisions, the indented text or table 
following the term shall be considered an amendment to the Standard Specifications. In case of conflict 
between such revisions and the Standard Specifications, the revisions shall take precedence over and 
be used in lieu of the conflicting portions. 

1-1.07   DEFINITIONS 

All definitions and terms in Section 1-1.07B, "Glossary," of the Standard Specifications shall apply, 
except whenever the following terms or pronouns are used, the intent and meaning shall be as follows: 

a) Admitted Surety Insurer, Corporate Surety: A corporate insurer or inter-insurance exchange 
to which the California State Insurance Commissioner has issued a certificate of authority to 
transact surety insurance in California, as defined in Section 105 of the California Insurance 
Code. 

b) Bid Book: The Bid Package as described below. 

c) Bid Package: The Notice Inviting Bids, Bid Proposal Forms, Contract and Bond Forms, 
Department of Transportation Standard Specifications, dated 2010, Department of 
Transportation Standard Plans, dated 2010, Special Provisions, and Plans obtained from 
Owner or Owner's agent and relating to this project. 

d) Bid Proposal: The written offer of a bidder to perform the specified work in accordance with 
the Contract Documents, made out on the Bid Proposal forms furnished by the County of 
Inyo. 

e) Days, Calendar Days: Unless otherwise specified, days, or calendar days, means each and 
every day shown on the calendar, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays included. 

f) Contract Documents: The documents which make up the Contract, including any and all 
documents incorporated therein; also, any and all written agreements between the Owner and 
Contractor which amend or change the Contract, including but not limited to, contract change 
orders. These documents are identified in the Contract as component parts. 

g) Contractor: Party awarded bid contract by owner. 

http://www.inyocounty.us/county_directory.htm


h) County: The County of Inyo, State of California. See also "Owner." 

i) Department: The Department of Public Works (Roads) of the County of Inyo. 

j) Director: The Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo. 

k) Department of Transportation: The Department of Public Works (Roads) of the County of Inyo, 
also referred to as the County; except, where Department of Transportation publications are 
cited, such citations are to remain as written and refer to the State of California, Department of 
Transportation. 

l) Engineer: The Director of Public Works of the County of Inyo, acting either directly or 
through properly authorized agents, such agents acting within the scope of the particular 
duties delegated to them. 

m) Laboratory: The Laboratory of the Department of Public Works (Roads) or other laboratories 
authorized by the Department of Public Works (Roads) of the County of Inyo to test materials 
and work involved in the Contract. 

n) Owner: The County of Inyo, State of California. 

o) Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices: The current State of California Department of 
Transportation publication entitled Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and 
Highways (MUTCD) administered by the Federal Highway Administration. 

p) Project: The erection, construction, alteration, repair or improvement of any structure, 
building, road, or other type improvement of any kind, which is required directly or 
indirectly by the Contract. 

q) State: State of California. 

r) State Contract Act: Chapter 1, Division 2 of the Public Contract Code. This contract is 
not subject to the provisions of this Act, except for language of said act that is specifically 
incorporated into this Contract by reference. 

s) Working Days: Any day, except Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays (as identified in 
Section 1-1.07B of the Department of Transportation Standard Specifications), and days on 
which the Contractor is specifically required by the Contract Documents to suspend 
construction operations. 

 

 

Add to section 1-1.09: 
This project is in a freeze-thaw area. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

2  BIDDING 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 2, “Bidding,” of the Inyo County Standard 
Specifications and these Special Provisions for the requirements and conditions which he must observe 
in the preparation of the Proposal Form and the submission of the bid. 

2-1.01  GENERAL  

Failure of the bidder to fulfill the requirements of the Special Provisions for submittals required to be 
furnished after bid opening, including but not limited to escrowed bid documents, where applicable, 
may subject the bidder to a determination of the bidder's responsibility in the event it is the apparent 
low bidder on a future public works contracts. 



a. In accordance with Public Contract Code Section 7106, a Non-Collusion Affidavit is included 
in the Proposal. Signing the Proposal shall also constitute signature of the Non-Collusion 
Affidavit. 

b. Public Contract Code Section 10285.1 (Chapter 376, Stats. 1985) provides as follows: 

Any state agency may suspend, for a period of up to three years from the date of conviction, any 
person from bidding upon, or being awarded, a public works or services contract with the agency 
under this part or from being a Subcontractor at any tier upon the Contract, if that person, or any 
partner, member, officer, director, responsible managing officer, or responsible managing 
employee thereof, has been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction of any charge of 
fraud, bribery, collusion, conspiracy, or any other act in violation of any state or Federal antitrust 
law in connection with the bidding upon, award of, or performance of, any Public Works 
Contract, as defined in Section 1101, with any public entity, as defined in Section 1100, 
including, for the purposes of this article, the Regents of the University of California or the 
Trustees of the California State University. A state agency may determine the eligibility of any 
person to enter into a Contract under this article by requiring the person to submit a statement, 
under penalty of perjury, declaring that neither the person nor any Subcontractor to be engaged 
by the person has been convicted of any of the offenses referred to in this Section within the 
preceding three years. 

A form for the statement required by Section 10285.1 is included in the Proposal. 

c. The contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out 
applicable requirements of Title 49 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) part 26 in the award 
and administration of US DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these 
requirements is a material breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. Each subcontract 
signed by the bidder must include this assurance. 
 

d. Federal Lobbying Restrictions Section 1352, Title 31, United States Code prohibits Federal 
funds from being expended by the recipient or any lower tier sub recipient of a Federal-aid 
contract to pay for any person for influencing or attempting to influence a Federal agency or 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal-aid contract, the making of any 
Federal grant or loan, or the entering into of any cooperative agreement. 

If any funds other than Federal funds have been paid for the same purposes in connection 
with this Federal-aid contract, the recipient shall submit an executed certification and, if 
required, submit a completed disclosure form as part of the bid documents. 

A certification for Federal-aid contracts regarding payment of funds to lobby Congress or a 
Federal agency is included in the Bid Package. Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure of Lobbying 
Activities,” with instructions for completion of the Standard Form is also included the section of 
the Bid Package entitled “Non-Lobbying Certification for Federal-Aid Contracts.” Signing the Bid 
Package shall constitute signature of the Certification. 

The above-referenced certification and disclosure of lobbying activities shall be included in each 
subcontract and any lower-tier contracts exceeding $100,000. All disclosure forms, but not 
certifications, shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by the Engineer. 

The Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors shall file a disclosure form at the 
end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or that 
materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in any disclosure form previously filed 
by the Contractor, subcontractors and any lower-tier contractors. An event that materially affects 
the accuracy of the information reported includes: 

1. A cumulative increase if $25,000 or more in the amount paid or expected to be paid for 
influencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal action; or 



2. A change in the person(s) or individual(s) influencing or attempting to influence a 
covered Federal action; or 

3. A change in the officer(s), employees(s), or Member(s) contacted to influence or attempt to 
influence a covered Federal Action. 

2-1.06   BID DOCUMENTS- The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

The Bid Book is bound in a book together with the Notice Inviting Bids, Contract and Bond Forms 
entitled “Bid Package.” 

  



Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 2-1.06B: 
The Department makes the following supplemental project information available: 

Supplemental Project Information 
Means Description 

Included in the Information Handout 1. CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program dated 
January 2020. 

2. Foundation Report (Final Submittal) North 
Round Valley Road Bridge, Round Valley, 
California Dated August 10, 2020. 

3. As-Built Bridge Plans. 
4. Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036, Granting 

Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality 
Certification, North Round Valley Road Bridge 
Replacement Project, Inyo County. 

5. Streambed Alteration Agreement. Notification 
No. 1600-2020-0055-R6. 

6. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide 
Permits 14 and 33. 

7. North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek 
Bridge Replacement Project Hydrology and 
Hydraulics Report dated September, 2020. 

 

 

2-1.10  REQUIRED LISTING OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS– The Standard Specifications is 
amended to read: 

On the Subcontractor List form, list each subcontractor to perform work in an amount in excess of 1/2 of 
1 percent of the total bid or $10,000, whichever is greater (Pub Cont Code § 4100 et seq.). 

For each subcontractor listed, the Subcontractor List form must show: 

1. Business name and the location of its place of business. 

2. California contractor license number for a non-federal-aid contract. 

3. Public works contractor registration number. 

4. Portion of work it will perform. Show the portion of the work by: 

4.1. Bid item numbers for the subcontracted work 

4.2. Percentage of the subcontracted work for each bid item listed 

4.3. Description of the subcontracted work if the percentage of the bid item listed is less than 100 
percent 

A sheet for listing the subcontractors, as required herein, is included in the Proposal. 

Bidders are cautioned that this listing requirement is in addition to the requirement to provide a list of 
DBE subcontractors after opening of the proposals. 



2-1.33B ELECTRONIC BIDS – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

Electronic bids will not be accepted. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

3  CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION 
The bidder's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 3, “Contract Award and Execution,” of 
the Inyo County Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions for the requirements and 
conditions concerning award and execution of the Contract. 

3-1.01  GENERAL  

The award of the contract, if it is awarded, will be to the lowest responsible bidder whose 
proposal complies with all the requirements prescribed. 

3-1.04   CONTRACT AWARD – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

1. The right is reserved to reject any and all proposals. 
2. The award of the Contract, if it is awarded, will be to the lowest, responsible, responsive bidder 

whose proposal complies with all the requirements prescribed. Whenever possible, such award, 
if made, will be made within 30 days after the opening of the proposals.  However, failure of the 
County to make award within 30 days after the opening of the proposals shall not relieve the 
Contractor of its requirement to deliver an executed contract and bonds, and any other required 
documents, within 10 calendar days of receipt of the Contract, as further described in Section 3-
1.18, “Contract Execution,” of the Standard Specifications. 

3. All bids will be compared on the basis of the Engineer’s Estimate of the quantities of 
work to be done. 

The contract shall be executed by the successful bidder and shall be returned, together with 
the contract bonds, to the county so that it is received within 10 working days, not 
including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after the bidder has received the contract 
for execution. Failure to do so shall be just cause for forfeiture of the proposal guaranty. The 
executed contract documents shall be delivered to the following address: 

Inyo County Public Works Department 

P.O. Drawer Q 

168 North Edwards Street  

Independence, California 93526  

Attn: Director of Public Works 

760-878-0201 

3-1.05  CONTRACT BONDS – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

Contractor shall provide the following Surety Bonds: 

1. A performance bond. 

2. A payment bond. 

The payment bond and the performance bond shall be in a sum equal to the contract price. 

Bonds shall be duly executed by a responsible corporate surety, authorized to issue such bonds in the 
State of California and secured through an authorized agent with an office in California. 

3-1.06   CONTRACTOR LICENSE – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 



The successful bidder must be properly licensed as required by law and consistent with the Contract 
Documents, at the time the contract is awarded. Such license shall be a current California Class A 
Contractor’s license or a combination of all of the specialty classifications that will be required for the 
complete performance of all of the work in accordance with the Contract Documents, and if applicable, 
a joint venture license as defined in the Business and Professions Code Section 7029. Failure of 
the bidder to obtain proper and adequate licensing for an award of a contract shall constitute failure to 
execute the contract and shall result in the forfeiture of the security of the bidder. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

4  SCOPE OF WORK 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

5  CONTROL OF WORK 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 5, “Control of Work,” of the Inyo County 
Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

5-1.13   SUBCONTRACTING – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

 No subcontract releases the Contractor from the contract or relieves the Contractor of their 
responsibility for a subcontractor's work. 

If the Contractor violates Public Contract Code 4100 et seq., the County may exercise the remedies 
provided under Public Contract Code 4110. The County may refer the violation to the Contractors State 
License Board as provided under Public Contract Code 4111. 

The Contractor shall perform work equaling at least 30 percent of the value of the original total bid 
with the Contractor’s own employees and equipment, owned or rented, with or without operators. 

Each subcontract must comply with the contract. 

Each subcontractor must have an active and valid State contractor's license with a classification 
appropriate for the work to be performed (Business and Professions Code 7000 et seq.). 

Submit copies of subcontracts upon request by the Engineer. 

Before subcontracted work starts, submit a Subcontracting Request form. 

Do not use a debarred contractor; a current list of debarred contractors is available at the 
Department of Industrial Relations' Web site. 

Upon request by the Engineer, immediately remove and do not again use a subcontractor who fails to 
prosecute the work satisfactorily. 

 
Replace section 5-1.26 with: 

You place stakes and marks under Chapter 12, "Construction Surveys," of the Caltrans Surveys Manual.  
You repair or replace stakes and marks if they are damaged. 

5-1.27B RECORDS RETENTION Add the following to the Standard Specifications: 

For the purpose of determining compliance with Public Contract Code, Section 10115 et.seq. and 
Title 21, California Code of Regulations, Chapter 21, Section 2500 et.seq., when applicable, and all 
other matters connected with the performance of the Contract pursuant to Government Code Section 
8546.7, the Contractor, subcontractors, and the County shall maintain all books, documents, papers, 
accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of the Contract, including but not 



limited to, the costs of administering the Contract. All parties shall make such materials available at their 
respective offices at all reasonable times during the contract period for three years from the date of final 
payment under the Contract. The County, the State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of the 
State government shall have access to any books, records, and documents of the Contractor that are 
pertinent to the Contract for purpose of audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and copies 
thereof shall be furnished if requested. 

5-1.32  AREAS FOR USE – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

The highway right of way shall be used only for purposes that are necessary to perform the required 
work. The Contractor shall not occupy the right of way, or allow others to occupy the right of way, for 
purposes which are not necessary to perform the required work. 

Areas available for the use of the Contractor are designated on the plans. Use of the Contractor's work 
areas and other County property shall be at the Contractor's own risk, and the County shall not be held 
liable for damage to or loss of materials or equipment located within these areas. 

The Contractor shall remove equipment, materials, and rubbish from the work areas and other 
County property which the Contractor occupies. The Contractor shall leave the areas in a presentable 
condition in conformance with the provisions in Section 4-1.13, “Cleanup,” of the Standard 
Specifications. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

6  CONTROL OF MATERIALS 
6-2.02  QUALITY CONTROL 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 6-2.02, “Quality Control” of the Standard 
Specifications for details on the Quality Control Program requirements. 

  



 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

7  LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 7, “Legal Relations and Responsibility to 
the Public,” of the Inyo County Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

7-1.02I(2) NONDISCRIMINATION. Attention is directed to the following Notice that is required by 
Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2, California Code of Regulations. 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR NONDISCRIMINATION PROGRAM (GOV. CODE, SECTION 12990) 

Your attention is called to the “Nondiscrimination Clause” set forth in Section 7-1.02I(2), 
“Nondiscrimination,” of the Standard Specifications, which is applicable to all nonexempt state 
contracts and subcontracts, and to the “Standard California Nondiscrimination Construction Contract 
Specifications” set forth therein. The Specifications are applicable to all nonexempt state construction 
contracts and subcontracts of $5,000 or more: 

1. During the performance of this contract, Contractor and its subcontractors shall not unlawfully 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, 
national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age (over 40) or sex. 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their employees and 
applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. Contractor and its subcontractors shall also 
comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code, Section 12990 et 
seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder (Cal. Code of Reg., Title. 2, Section 
7285.0 et seq.). 

The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing 
Government Code, Section 12990, set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California 
Code of Regulations are incorporated into this Contract by reference and made a part hereof as if set 
forth in full. Contractor and its subcontractors shall give written notice of their obligations under this 
clause to labor organizations with which they have a collective bargaining or other agreement. 

2. This Contract shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform work under the Contract. 

STANDARD CALIFORNIA NONDISCRIMINATION CLAUSE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
SPECIFICATIONS (GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 12990) 

These specifications are applicable to all state contractors and subcontractors having a construction 
contract or subcontract of $5,000 or more. 

1. As used in the specifications: 

a. “Administrator” means Administrator, Office of Compliance programs, California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing, or any person to whom the Administrator 
delegates authority; 

b. “Minority” includes: 

i) Black (all persons having primary origins in any of the black racial groups of Africa, but 
not of Hispanic origin); 

ii) Hispanic (all persons of primary culture or origin in Mexico, Puerto Rico, Cuba, Central 
or South America, or other Spanish derived culture or origin regardless of race); 

iii) Asian/Pacific Islander (all persons having primary origins in any of the original 
peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent or the Pacific 
Islands); and 



iv) American Indian/Alaskan Native (all persons having primary origins in any of the original 
peoples of North America and who maintain culture identification through tribal affiliation 
or community recognition). 

2. Whenever the Contractor or any subcontractor subcontracts a portion of the work, it shall physically 
include in each subcontract of $5,000 or more the nondiscrimination clause in this Contract, either 
directly or through incorporation by reference. Any subcontract for work involving a construction trade 
shall also include the Standard California (Nondiscrimination) Construction Contract Specifications, 
either directly or through incorporation by reference. 

3. The Contractor shall implement the specific nondiscrimination standards provided in paragraphs 6(a) 
through 6(e) of these specifications. 

4. Neither the provision of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom 
the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall 
excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, Government Code, Section 12990, 
or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. 
 

5. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted, such 
apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the 
Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees after the 
completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be 
trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor or the California 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

 
6. The Contractor shall take specific actions to implement its nondiscrimination program. The evaluation 

of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve 
maximum results from its actions. The Contractor must be able to demonstrate fully its efforts under 
Steps a. through e. below: 

 
a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at 

all sites and all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The 
Contractor, where possible, shall assign two or more women to each construction project. The 
Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site 
supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligations to maintain such 
a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such 
sites or in such facilities. 

b. Deleted 

c. Disseminate the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy by providing notice of the 
policy to unions and training, recruitment, and outreach programs and requesting their 
cooperation in assisting the Contractor to meet its obligations; and by posting the company 
policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work 
is performed. 

d. Ensure that all personnel making management and employment decisions regarding hiring, 
assignment, layoff, termination, conditions of work, training, rate of pay or other employment 
decisions, including all supervisory personnel, superintendents, general foremen, on-site 
foremen, etc., are aware of the Contractor's equal employment opportunity policy and 
obligations, and discharge their responsibilities accordingly. 

e. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel 
practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and 
employment related activities to ensure that the equal employment opportunity policy and the 
Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out. 

7. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling their 
equal employment opportunity obligations. 



The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar 
group of which the Contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or 
more of its obligations under these specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in 
the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of 
minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected 
in the Contractor's minority and female work force participation, and can provide access to 
documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. 
The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor's. 

8. The Contractor is required to provide equal employment opportunity for all minority groups, both male 
and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in 
violation of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code, Section 12990 et seq.) if a 
particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner. 

9. Establishment and implementation of a bona fide affirmative action plan pursuant to Section 8104 (b) 
of this Chapter shall create a rebuttal presumption that a contractor is in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 12990 of the Government Code and its implementing regulations. 

10. The Contractor shall not use the nondiscrimination standards to discriminate against any person 
because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, 
marital status, or age over 40. 

11. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm decertified from state 
contracts pursuant to Government Code Section 12990. 

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and 
the nondiscrimination clause, including suspension, termination and cancellation of existing 
subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Government Code Section 12990 and its 
implementing regulations by the awarding agency. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such 
sanctions and penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Government Code Section 
12990. 

13. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to 
ensure that the company equal employment opportunity policy is being carried out, to submit reports 
relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by OCP, and to keep records. Records for each 
employee shall at least include the employee’s name, address, telephone number, construction 
trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social security number, 
race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, 
hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was 
performed. Records shall be maintained in any easily understandable and retrievable form; however, 
to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to 
maintain separate records. 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 12935 (a) and 12990 (d), Government Code. Reference: Section 
12990, Government Code.\ 

7-1.02K LABOR CODE 
Attention is directed to Section 7-1.02K(2), “Wages,” of the Standard Specifications. 

Pursuant to Section 1773 of the Labor Code, to which this Contract is subject, the prevailing wage 
per diem rates in Inyo County have been determined by the Director of the California Department of 
Industrial Relations. These wage rates appear in the publication entitled “General Prevailing Wage 
Rates,” in effect at the time the project is advertised. Future effective wage rates, which have been 
predetermined and are on file with the California Department of Industrial Relations, are referenced, but 
not printed, in said publication. These general prevailing wage rates are not included in the Proposal 
and Contract for the project, but are available at the offices of the Inyo County Public Works 
Department or the California Department of Industrial Relations web site at http://www.dir.ca.gov. 
Changes, if any, to the general prevailing wage rates will be available at the same locations. 

The prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations refer to expiration dates. 
If the wage determination does not refer to a predetermined wage rate to be paid after the expiration 
date, said wage determination shall be in effect for the life of this Contract. If the wage determination 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


refers to a predetermined wage rate to become effective upon expiration of the wage determination 
and the predetermined wage rate is on file with the Department of Industrial Relations, such 
predetermined wage rate shall become effective on the date following the expiration date and shall 
apply to the balance of this Contract. If the predetermined wage rate refers to one or more additional 
expiration dates with additional predetermined wage rates, which expiration dates occur during the life 
of this Contract, each successive predetermined wage rate shall apply to this Contract on the date 
following the expiration date of the previous wage rate. If the last of such predetermined wage rates 
expires during the life of this Contract, such wage rate shall apply to the balance of the Contract. 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 7-1.02K(3):  

Submit certified payroll and your signed contractor’s acknowledgement to the Engineer.  

Delete 5th and 6th paragraphs of section 7-1.02K(3). 

Add to section 7-1.02M(2): 
Comply with mitigation measures HAZ-1 as specified in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
in Appendix C of the CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program dated 
January 2020 and located in the Information Handout for the project. 

7-1.04 PUBLIC SAFETY 
The Contractor shall provide for the safety of traffic and the public in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 7-1.04, “Public Safety,” of the Standard Specifications. In addition to any other measures 
taken by the Contractor pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-1.04, “Public Safety,” of the Standard 
Specifications, the Contractor shall install temporary railing (Type K) between any lanes carrying public 
traffic and any excavation, obstacle, or storage area when the following conditions exist: 

1. Excavations. The near edge of the excavation is 12 feet or less from the edge of the lane, except: 

a. Excavations covered with sheet steel or concrete covers of adequate thickness to 
prevent accidental entry by traffic or the public. 

b. Excavations less than one foot deep. 

c. Trenches less than one foot wide for irrigation pipe or electrical conduit, or 
excavations less than one foot in diameter. 

d. Excavations parallel to a lane for the purpose of pavement widening or 
reconstruction. 

e. Excavations in side slopes, where the slope is steeper than 4:1 
(horizontal:vertical) 

f. Excavations protected by existing barrier or railing. 

2. Temporarily Unprotected Permanent Obstacles. Whenever the work includes the installation of a 
fixed obstacle together with a protective system, such as a sign structure together with protective 
railing, and the Contractor elects to install the obstacle prior to installing the protective system; or 
whenever the Contractor, for his convenience and with permission of the Engineer, removes a 
portion of an existing protective railing at an obstacle and does not replace such railing complete in 
place during the same day. 

3. Storage Areas. Whenever material or equipment is stored within 12 feet of the lane and such storage 
is not otherwise prohibited by the provisions of the Standard Specifications and these Special 
Provisions. 

The approach end of temporary railing (Type K), installed in accordance with the requirements in this section shall 
be offset a minimum of 15 feet from the edge of the traffic lane open to public traffic. The temporary railing shall be 
installed on a skew toward the edge of the traffic lane of not more than one foot transversely to 10 feet 
longitudinally with respect to the edge of the traffic lane. If the 15 foot minimum offset cannot be achieved, the 
temporary railing shall be installed on the 10 to 1 skew to obtain the maximum available offset between the 



approach end of the railing and the edge of the traffic lane, and an array of temporary crash cushion modules shall 
be installed at the approach end of the temporary railing.  

Temporary railing (Type K) shall conform to the provisions in Section 12-3.08, “Type K Temporary Railing,” 
of the Standard Specifications. Temporary railing (Type K), conforming to the details shown on 2002 Standard Plan 
T3, may be used. Temporary railing (Type K) that was fabricated prior to January 1, 1993, and conforms to 1988 
Standard Plan B11-30, may be used, provided the fabrication date is printed on the required Certificate of 
Compliance.  

Except for installing, maintaining and removing traffic control devices, whenever work is performed or equipment is 
operated in the following work areas, the Contractor shall close the adjacent traffic lane unless otherwise provided in 
the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions: 

Approach Speed of 
Public Traffic 

 (Posted Limit - MPH)       WORK AREAS 

Over 45    Within 6 feet of a traffic lane but not on a traffic lane. 

35 to 45    Within 3 feet of a traffic lane but not on a traffic lane. 

The lane closure provisions of this section shall not apply if the work area is protected by 
permanent or temporary railing or barrier. 

When traffic cones or delineators are used to delineate a temporary edge of a traffic lane, the line of 
cones or delineators shall be considered to be the edge of traffic lane; however, the Contractor shall not 
reduce the width of an existing lane to less than 10 feet without written approval from the Engineer. 

When work is not in progress on a trench or other excavation that required closure of an adjacent 
delineators used for the lane closure shall be placed off of and adjacent to the edge of the traveled way. 
The spacing of the cones or delineators shall be not more than the spacing used for the lane closure. 

Suspended loads or equipment shall not be moved or positioned over public traffic or pedestrians. 

Full compensation for conforming to the requirements in this section “Public Convenience and Safety,” 
including furnishing and installing temporary railing (Type K) and temporary crash cushion modules, 
shall be considered as included in the contract prices paid for the various items of work involved and 
no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

7-1.05  INDEMNIFICATION 
The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities, expenses and other 
costs, including litigation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, resulting from, or in connection with 
the performance of this Contract by the Contractor, or Contractor's agents, officers or employees. 
Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers harmless applies to any actual or alleged personal injury, death, or damage or destruction to 
tangible or intangible property, including the loss of use. Excepting only those liabilities, claims, and 
damages caused solely and exclusively by the active fault or negligence of the County, the Engineer, or 
their officers, agents, employees, or volunteers, the Contractor's obligation under this paragraph 
extends to any claim, damage, loss, liability, expense or other cost which is caused in whole or in part 
by any act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors or the agents, employees, 
suppliers, or material men of any of them or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or 
anyone for whose acts or omissions any of them may be liable. 

Contractor's obligation to defend, indemnify and hold the County, its agents, officers, employees, and 
volunteers harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to or restricted by any 
requirement in this Contract for the Contractor to procure and maintain a policy of insurance coverage. 

7-1.11E  TITLE VI ASSURANCES – Add the following section to the Standard Specifications:  



During the performance of this Agreement, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in 
interest (hereinafter collectively referred to as CONTRACTOR) agrees as follows: 

1 Compliance with Regulations: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations relative 
to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation, 
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to 
time, (hereinafter referred to as the REGULATIONS), which are herein incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this agreement. 

2 Nondiscrimination: CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the 
AGREEMENT, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, sex, national origin, 
religion, age, or disability in the selection and retention of sub-applicants, including 
procurements of materials and leases of equipment. CONTRACTOR shall not 
participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of 
the Regulations, including employment practices when the agreement covers a program 
set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

3 Solicitations for Sub-agreements, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: 
In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONTRACTOR 
for work to be performed under a Sub-agreement, including procurements of materials 
or leases of equipment, each potential sub-applicant or supplier shall be notified by 
CONTRACTOR of the CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Agreement and the 
Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national 
origin. 

4 Information and Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports 
required by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit 
access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as 
may be determined by the California Department of Transportation or FHWA to be 
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations or directives. Where any 
information required of CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who 
fails or refuses to furnish this information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to the 
California Department of Transportation or the FHWA as appropriate, and shall set forth 
what efforts CONTRACTOR has made to obtain the information. 

5 Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with the 
nondiscrimination provisions of this agreement, the California Department of 
Transportation shall impose such agreement sanctions as it or the FHWA may 
determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

a. withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under the Agreement within a 
reasonable period of time, not to exceed 90 days; and/or 

b. cancellation, termination or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part. 
6 Incorporation of Provisions: CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of paragraphs 

(1) through (6) in every sub-agreement, including procurements of materials and leases 
of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto. 

CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to any sub-agreement or procurement as the 
California Department of Transportation or FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions 
including sanctions for noncompliance, provided, however, that, in the event CONTRACTOR becomes 
involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a sub-applicant or supplier as a result of such direction, 
CONTRACTOR may request the California Department of Transportation enter into such litigation to 
protect the interests of the State, and, in addition, CONTRACTOR ma request the United States to 
enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

  



 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

8  PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 8, “Prosecution and Progress,” of the 
Inyo County Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

8-1.03   PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE – The first paragraph of this section in the 
Standard Specifications is amended to read:  
Prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed, a pre-construction conference will be held, at a location to be 
determined, for the purpose of discussing with the Contractor the scope of work, contract drawings, 
specifications, existing conditions, materials to be ordered, equipment to be used, and all essential 
matters pertaining to the prosecution of and the satisfactory completion of the project as required. The 
Contractor’s representatives at this conference should include all major superintendents for the work 
and may include subcontractors. 

8-1.04B  STANDARD START – The Standard Specifications is amended to read as set forth in 
(a) through (f) below: 

a. As execution of the agreement by the County is a matter of public record, the 
Contractor will be considered to have received actual notice of the date that the 
agreement is executed by the County on the date that the agreement is so 
executed.  The County may, but is not required to, send written notice of the 
execution date to the Contractor. 

b. The County shall thereafter send the written Notice to Proceed to the Contractor as 
otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

c. The Contractor shall begin work within fifteen (15) working days after the date on which the 
Contractor receives the Notice to Proceed. 

d. For the purposes of determining the Contractor's compliance with the time limits for 
completion of the Project pursuant to the Agreement, the Contractor's first working day 
shall be deemed to be the fourteenth (14th) working day after the date on which the 
Contractor receives the Notice to Proceed. 

e. The Notice to Proceed shall be issued by the County not less than fifteen (15) nor more 
than thirty (30) calendar days after the receipt from the Contractor of satisfactory Labor 
and Materials Payment Bonds, Faithful Performance Bonds, Certificates of Insurance, and 
other documents as required by law and the Contract. 

f. The Contractor may start jobsite activities prior to receiving the notice of Contract approval 
if all of conditions stated below are met and as approved by the County: 

(1) Deliver the signed Contract, bonds, and evidence of insurance to the Department 

(2) Submit a 72-hour notice 

(3) Obtain an encroachment permit from the Department 

(4) Receive the Department's authorization to start 

(5) Perform work at your own risk 

(6) Perform work under the Contract 

8-1.05   TIME – Add the following to the Standard Specifications 

The Contractor shall diligently prosecute the project to completion before the expiration of 170 days 
after the date that is deemed to be Contractor's first working day. 

8-1.10   LIQUIDATED DAMAGES – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 



The Contractor shall pay to the County of Inyo the sum of $2,000.00 per day for each and every 
calendar days delay in finishing the work in excess of the number of working days prescribed above. 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

9  PAYMENT 
The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 9, “Payments,” of the Inyo County 
Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

9-1.03   SCOPE PAYMENT – amend the last sentence of this section to read: 

Prompt Progress Payment to Subcontractors: A prime contractor or subcontractor shall pay any 
subcontractor not later than 10 days of receipt of each progress payment in accordance with the provision 
in Section 7108.5 of the California Business and Professions Code concerning prompt payment to 
subcontractors. The 10 days is applicable unless a longer period is agreed to in writing. Any delay or 
postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for good cause and with the agency’s prior 
written approval. Any violation of Section 7108.5 shall subject the violating contractor or subcontractor to 
the penalties, sanction and other remedies of that section. This requirement shall not be construed to limit 
or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the contractor or 
subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, 
deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor. 

9-1.07A PAYMENT ADJUSTMENTS FOR PRICE INDEX FLUCTUATIONS – GENERAL 
Replace "Department's" in the 5th paragraph of section 9-1.07A with:  

Caltrans 

 

9-1.16   PROGRESS PAYMENTS – Add the following to the Standard Specifications:  

No partial payment will be made for any materials on hand that have been furnished but not 
incorporated into the work. 

The Contractor’s attention is directed to the prohibitions and penalties pertaining to unlicensed 
contractors as provided in Business and Professions Code, Sections 7028.15(a) and 7031. 

9-1.16E  WITHHOLDS – Add the following to the Standard Specifications 

The Contractor’s attention is directed to Public Contract Code Section 10263, “Withheld payments; 
substitution of securities for moneys; escrow; interest,” which reads as follows: 

a. Provisions shall be included in any invitation for bid and in any contract documents to permit 
the substitution of securities for any moneys withheld by a public agency to ensure 
performance under a contract. At the request and expense of the contractor, securities 
equivalent to the amount withheld shall be deposited with the State Treasurer or a state or 
federally chartered bank in California, as the escrow agent, who shall then pay the moneys to 
the contractor. Upon satisfactory completion of the contract, the securities shall be returned 
to the contractor. 

b. Alternatively, the contractor may request and the owner shall make payment of retentions 
earned directly to the escrow agent. The contractor may direct the investment of the payment 
into securities and the contractor shall receive the interest earned on the investments upon 
the same terms provided for in this section for securities deposited by the contractor. Upon 
satisfactory completion of the contract, the contractor shall receive from the escrow agent all 
securities, interest, and payments received by the escrow agent from the owner, pursuant to 
the terms of this section. 

c. Alternatively, and subject to the approval and at the sole discretion of the public agency, the 
payment of retentions earned may be deposited directly with a person licensed under 
Division 6 (commencing with Section 17000) of the Financial Code as the escrow agent. 



Upon written request of an escrow agent who has not been approved by the public agency 
under this subdivision, the public agency shall provide written notice to that escrow agent 
within 10 business days of receipt of the request indicating the reason or reasons for not 
approving that escrow agent. An agent that has been disapproved by the public agency may 
not maintain any cause of action of any nature against the state or any public agency, officer, 
agent, or employee of any public agency, in connection with the disapproval of that escrow 
agent. The payments shall be deposited in a trust account with a federally chartered bank or 
savings association within 24 hours of receipt by the escrow agent. The contractor shall not 
place any retentions with the escrow agent in excess of the coverage provided to that escrow 
agent pursuant to subdivision (b) of Section 17314 of the Financial Code. In all respects 
not inconsistent with this subdivision, the remaining provisions of this section shall apply to 
escrow agents acting pursuant to this subdivision. In addition, an escrow agent subject to this 
subdivision shall maintain insurance to cover negligent acts and omissions of the escrow 
agent in connection with the handling of retentions under this section in an amount not less 
than one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) per contract, executed by an admitted insurer 
and in a form satisfactory to the public agency. 

d. Securities eligible for investment under this section shall include those listed in Section 
16430 of the Government Code, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-
bearing demand deposit accounts, standby letters of credit, or any other security mutually 
agreed to by the contractor and public agency. 

The contractor shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for moneys withheld 
and shall receive any interest thereon. 

Prompt Payment of Funds Withheld to Subcontractors: The agency shall hold retainage from the 
prime contractor and shall make prompt and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined 
by the agency, of the contract work, and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these 
acceptances. The prime contractor, or subcontractor, shall return all monies withheld in retention from a 
subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted 
including incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency. Federal law 
(49CFR26.29) requires that any delay or postponement of payment over 30 days may take place only for 
good cause and with the agency’s prior written approval. Any violation of this provision shall subject the 
violating prime contractor or subcontractor to the penalties, sanctions and other remedies specified in 
Section 7108.5 of the Business and Professions Code. These requirements shall not be construed to limit 
or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies otherwise available to the prime contractor 
or subcontractor in the event of a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by the prime contractor, 
deficient subcontract performance, or noncompliance by a subcontractor. 

9-1.16F RETENTIONS – Amend the Standard Specifications to read:  

The County will withhold 5 percent of all progress payments as retention. Retention will be paid to you on 
the Final Payment.   

You will have the right to substitute securities for the retention under Pub Cont Code § 22300.  No 
substitution will be accepted until: 

1. The County approves the securities and their value, 
2. The parties have entered into an escrow agreement (if the securities are to be held in 

escrow) in a form substantially similar to that under § 22300, 
3. All documentation necessary for assignment of the securities to the County or to the 

escrow agent, are delivered in a form satisfactory to the County. 

If you have substituted securities for any of the retention, the County may request that such securities be 
revalued from time to time, but not more often than monthly. Such revaluation will be made by a person or 
entity designated by the County and approved by you. If such revaluation results in a determination that 
the securities have a market value less than the amount of retention for which they were substituted, then 
the amount of the retention required under the Contract will be increased by such difference in market 
value. Such increased retention will be withheld from the next progress payment(s) due to you under the 
Contract. 

9-1.17D(3) FINAL DETERMINATION OF CLAIMS – Replace the 3rd and 4th paragraph with:  



The Director of Public Works will make the final determination of any claims which remain in dispute after 
completion of claim review by the Engineer's authorized representative.  

A Claim Review Board, appointed by the Director of Public Works, will review such claims and make a 
written recommendation. The Contractor may meet with the Claims Review Board to make a presentation 
in support of such claims with the Engineer's authorized representative present.  

9-1.22  ARBITRATION – Amend the Standard Specifications to read:  

This contract is not governed by the provisions of the State Contract Act. The adoption and use of the 
Standard Specifications in the performance of the work called for in this Contract shall not be construed 
as an election by the County to proceed under Section 20396 of the Public Contract Code. In the event 
that a dispute arises between the parties, they are not obligated to submit the matter to arbitration in any 
form (although they may do so upon written agreement). 

RESOLUTION OF CONSTRUCTION CLAIMS 
All public works claims of three hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000.00) or less which arise 
between Owner and Contractor under this Contract shall be governed by Article 1.5 (commencing with 
Section 20104) of the Public Contract Code. 

Section 20104.2 of the Public Contract Code provides: 

For any claim subject to this article, the following requirements apply: 

a) The claim shall be in writing and shall include the documents necessary to substantiate the 
claim. Claims must be filed on or before the date of final payment. Nothing in this 
subdivision is intended to extend the time limit or supersede notice requirements otherwise 
provided by contract for the filing of claims. 

b) (1) For claims of less than fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00), the local agency shall respond 
in writing to any written claim within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in 
writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documentation supporting the 
claim or relating to defenses or claims the local agency may have against the claimant. 

    (2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided 
 pursuant to this subdivision, upon mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant. 

 (3) The local agency's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be 
 submitted to the claimant within 15 days after receipt of the further documentation or 
 within a period of time no greater than that taken by the claimant in producing the 
 additional information, whichever is greater. 

c)  (1) For claims of over fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) and less than or equal to three 
hundred seventy-five thousand dollars ($375,000.00), the local agency shall respond in 
 writing to all written claims within 60 days of receipt of the claim, or may request, in 
writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documentation supporting the 
claim or relating to defenses or claims the local agency may have against the claimant. 

(2) If additional information is thereafter required, it shall be requested and provided pursuant 
to this subdivision, upon mutual agreement of the local agency and the claimant. 

(3) The local agency's written response to the claim, as further documented, shall be submitted 
to the claimant within 30 days after receipt of the further documentation, or within a period of 
time no greater than that taken by the claimant in producing the additional information or 
requested documentation, whichever is greater. 

d) If the claimant disputes the local agency's written response, or the local agency fails to respond 
within the time prescribed, the claimant may so notify the local agency, in writing, either within 15 
days of receipt of the local agency's response or within 15 days of the local agency's failure to 
respond within the time prescribed, respectively, and demand an informal conference to meet and 
confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon a demand, the local agency shall schedule a 
meet and confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the dispute. 



e) If, following the meet and confer conference, the claim or any portion remains in dispute, the 
claimant may file a claim pursuant to Chapter 1 (commencing with Section 900) and Chapter 2 
(commencing with Section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of the Government Code. For 
purposes of those provisions, the running of the period of time within which a claim must be filed shall 
be tolled from the time the claimant submits his or her written claim pursuant to subdivision (a) until 
the time the claim is denied, including any period of time utilized by the meet and confer conference. 

Section 20104.4 of the Public Contract Code provides: 

The following procedures are established for all civil actions filed to resolve claims subject to this article: 

A. Within 60 days, but no earlier than 30 days, following the filing of responsive pleadings, the 
court shall submit the matter to nonbinding mediation unless waived by mutual stipulation of both 
parties. The mediation process shall provide for the selection within 15 days by both parties of a 
disinterested third person as mediator, shall be commenced within 30 days of the submittal, and 
shall be concluded within 15 days from the commencement of the mediation unless a time 
requirement is extended upon a good cause showing to the court. 

B. (1) If the matter remains in dispute, the case shall be submitted to judicial arbitration pursuant to 
Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure, notwithstanding Section 1141.11 of that code. The Civil Discovery Act of 1986 
(Article 3 (commencing with Section 2016) of Chapter 3 of Title 3 of Part 4 of the Code of Civil 
Procedure) shall apply to any proceeding brought under this subdivision consistent with the rules 
pertaining to judicial arbitration. 

  (2) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon stipulation of the parties, arbitrators appointed 
for purposes of this article shall be experienced in construction law, and, upon stipulation of the 
parties, mediators and arbitrators shall be paid necessary and reasonable hourly rates of pay not 
to exceed their customary rate, and such fees and expenses shall be paid equally by the parties, 
except in the case of arbitration where the arbitrator, for good cause, determines a different 
division. In no event shall these fees or expenses be paid by state or county funds. 

(3) In addition to Chapter 2.5 (commencing with Section 1141.10) of Title 3 of Part 3 of the Code 
of Civil Procedure, any party who after receiving an arbitration award requests a trial de novo but 
does not obtain a more favorable judgment shall, in addition to payment of costs and fees under 
that chapter, pay the attorney’s fees of the other party arising out of the trial de novo. 

c) The court may, upon request by any party, order any witnesses to participate in the mediation or 
arbitration process. 
Section 20104.6 of the Public Contract Code provides: 

(a) No local agency shall fail to pay money as to any portion of a claim which is undisputed 
except as otherwise provided in the Contract. 

(b) In any suit filed under Section 20104.4, the local agency shall pay interest at the legal rate 
on any arbitration award or judgment. The interest shall begin to accrue on the date the suit is filed 
in a court of law. 

Section 9204 of the Public Contract Code provides: 

a) The Legislature finds and declares that it is in the best interests of the state and its citizens to 
ensure that all construction business performed on a public works project in the state that is 
complete and not in dispute is paid in full and in a timely manner. 

b) Notwithstanding any other law, including, but not limited to, Article 7.1 (commencing with Section 
10240) of Chapter 1 of Part 2, Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 19100) of Part 2, and Article 
1.5 (commencing with Section 20104) of Chapter 1 of Part 3, this section shall apply to any claim by 
a contractor in connection with a public works project. 

c) For purposes of this section: 

 (1) “Claim” means a separate demand by a contractor sent by registered mail or  certified mail 
with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 



 (A) A time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages or  penalties for 
delay assessed by a public entity under a contract for a public works  project. 

 (B) Payment by the public entity of money or damages arising from work done by, or  on 
behalf of, the contractor pursuant to the contract for a public works project and  payment for which is 
not otherwise expressly provided or to which the claimant is  not otherwise entitled. 

 (C) Payment of an amount that is disputed by the public entity. 

(2) “Contractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing with 
Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who has entered into a direct 
contract with a public entity for a public works project. 

(3) (A) “Public entity” means, without limitation, except as provided in subparagraph (B), a state 
agency, department, office, division, bureau, board, or commission, the California State 
University, the University of California, a city, including a charter city, county, including a charter 
county, city and county, including a charter city and county, district, special district, public 
authority, political subdivision, public corporation, or nonprofit transit corporation wholly owned by 
a public agency and formed to carry out the purposes of the public agency. 

 (B) “Public entity” shall not include the following: 

  (i) The Department of Water Resources as to any project under the jurisdiction of that 
department. 

  (ii) The Department of Transportation as to any project under the jurisdiction of that 
department. 

  (iii) The Department of Parks and Recreation as to any project under the jurisdiction of 
that department. 

  (iv) The Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation with respect to any project 
under its jurisdiction pursuant to Chapter 11 (commencing with Section 7000) of Title 
7 of Part 3 of the Penal Code. 

  (v) The Military Department as to any project under the jurisdiction of that department. 

  (vi) The Department of General Services as to all other projects. 

  (vii) The High-Speed Rail Authority. 

(4) “Public works project” means the erection, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement of 
any public structure, building, road, or other public improvement of any kind. 

(5) “Subcontractor” means any type of contractor within the meaning of Chapter 9 (commencing 
with Section 7000) of Division 3 of the Business and Professions Code who either is in direct 
contract with a contractor or is a lower tier subcontractor. 

(d) (1) (A) Upon receipt of a claim pursuant to this section, the public entity to which the claim 
applies shall conduct a reasonable review of the claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, 
shall provide the claimant a written statement identifying what portion of the claim is disputed and 
what portion is undisputed. Upon receipt of a claim, a public entity and a contractor may, by mutual 
agreement, extend the time period provided in this subdivision. 

(B) The claimant shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim.  

(C) If the public entity needs approval from its governing body to provide the claimant a 
written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the claim, and 
the governing body does not meet within the 45 days or within the mutually agreed to 
extension of time following receipt of a claim sent by registered mail or certified mail, return 
receipt requested, the public entity shall have up to three days following the next duly publicly 
noticed meeting of the governing body after the 45-day period, or extension, expires to 
provide the claimant a written statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed 
portion. 



(D) Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall be processed and made 
within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. If the public entity fails to 
issue a written statement, paragraph (3) shall apply. 

(2) (A) If the claimant disputes the public entity’s written response, or if the public entity fails to 
respond to a claim issued pursuant to this section within the time prescribed, the claimant may 
demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in dispute. 
Upon receipt of a demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail, return receipt 
requested, the public entity shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 days for 
settlement of the dispute. 

(B) Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer conference, if 
the claim or any portion of the claim remains in dispute, the public entity shall provide the 
claimant a written statement identifying the portion of the claim that remains in dispute and 
the portion that is undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the claim shall 
be processed and made within 60 days after the public entity issues its written statement. 
Any disputed portion of the claim, as identified by the contractor in writing, shall be submitted 
to nonbinding mediation, with the public entity and the claimant sharing the associated costs 
equally. The public entity and claimant shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10 business 
days after the disputed portion of the claim has been identified in writing. If the parties cannot 
agree upon a mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those mediators shall select a 
qualified neutral third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the claim. Each 
party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator in connection with the 
selection of the neutral mediator. If mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the claim 
remaining in dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this section. 

(C) For purposes of this section, mediation includes any nonbinding process, including, but 
not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent third 
party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of 
an evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this section. 

(D) Unless otherwise agreed to by the public entity and the contractor in writing, the 
mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse any further obligation under 
Section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been commenced. 

(E) This section does not preclude a public entity from requiring arbitration of disputes under 
private arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation under this 
section does not resolve the parties’ dispute. 

(3) Failure by the public entity to respond to a claim from a contractor within the time periods 
described in this subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of this section shall 
result in the claim being deemed rejected in its entirety. A claim that is denied by reason of the 
public entity’s failure to have responded to a claim, or its failure to otherwise meet the time 
requirements of this section, shall not constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of 
the claim or the responsibility or qualifications of the claimant. 

(4) Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required by this section shall bear interest at 7 
percent per annum. 

(5) If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to assert a claim against a 
public entity because privity of contract does not exist, the contractor may present to the public 
entity a claim on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor. A subcontractor may 
request in writing, either on his or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that 
the contractor present a claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a lower 
tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor requesting that the claim be 
presented to the public entity shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the claim. Within 
45 days of receipt of this written request, the contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as 
to whether the contractor presented the claim to the public entity and, if the original contractor did 
not present the claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having 
done so. 



(e) The text of this section or a summary of it shall be set forth in the plans or specifications for any 
public works project that may give rise to a claim under this section. 

(f) A waiver of the rights granted by this section is void and contrary to public policy, provided, 
however, that (1) upon receipt of a claim, the parties may mutually agree to waive, in writing, 
mediation and proceed directly to the commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as 
applicable; and (2) a public entity may prescribe reasonable change order, claim, and dispute 
resolution procedures and requirements in addition to the provisions of this section, so long as the 
contractual provisions do not conflict with or otherwise impair the timeframes and procedures set 
forth in this section. 

(g) This section applies to contracts entered into on or after January 1, 2017. 

(h) Nothing in this section shall impose liability upon a public entity that makes loans or grants 
available through a competitive application process, for the failure of an awardee to meet its 
contractual obligations. 

(i) This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2020, and as of that date is repealed, 
unless a later enacted statute, that is enacted before January 1, 2020, deletes or extends that date. 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION II  GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 
10  GENERAL 

The bidder’s attention is directed to the provisions in Section 10, “General,” of the Standard 
Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

10-4  WATER USAGE – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

Attention is directed to the various sections of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions 
that require the use of water for the construction of this project. Attention is also directed to the 
provisions of Section 7, “Legal Relations and Responsibility to the Public,” of the Standard 
Specifications with regards to the Contractor’s responsibilities for public convenience, public safety, 
preservation of property and responsibility for damage. 

Nothing in this section “Water Conservation” shall be construed as relieving the Contractor from 
furnishing an adequate supply of water required for the proper construction of this project in 
accordance with the Standard Specifications or these Special Provisions or relieving the Contractor 
from the legal responsibilities defined in Section 7. 

The Contractor shall, whenever possible and not in conflict with the above requirements, minimize the 
use of water during construction of the project. Watering equipment shall be kept in good working order; 
water leaks shall be repaired promptly; and washing of equipment, except when necessary for safety or 
for the protection of equipment, shall be discouraged. 

When ordered by the Engineer, a dust palliative conforming to the provisions of Section 18, “Dust 
Palliative,” of the Standard Specifications shall be used to control dust on this project. Full 
Compensation for application of dust palliative shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the 
various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 

 

10-6  WATERING – Add the following to the Standard Specifications: 

NOTE:  It will be the Contractor’s sole responsibility to ascertain and verify the existence, 
suitability, availability, haul distance, and storage arrangements for acquiring reliable and 
sufficient water supplies for use on this project.  Full compensation for acquiring a reliable water 
supply shall be considered as included in the prices paid for the various items of work involved 
and no additional compensation will be allowed therefor. 

 



^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

11  WELDING 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

12  TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL 
 

Before obliterating any pavement delineation that is to be replaced on the same alignment and location, 
as determined by the Engineer, such pavement delineation shall be referenced by the Contractor, with a 
sufficient number of control points to reestablish the alignment and location of the new pavement 
delineation. The references shall also include the limits or changes in striping pattern, including one and 
two-way barrier lines, limit lines, crosswalks, and other pavement markings. Full compensation for 
referencing pavement delineation shall be considered as included in the contract prices paid for new 
pavement delineation and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore. 

 

 

Add to section 12-4.02C(7)(a): 
North Round Valley Road is closed to the public and will remain so through the duration of construction.  
The contractor is to maintain the existing traffic control systems in place, but may add to or modify the 
existing traffic control systems as needed.  Inyo County Road department will remove the existing traffic 
control system when the project is complete.   

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

13  WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
 

Add to the end of section 13-3.01A: 
This project's risk level is 1. 

Comply with Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036, Granting Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality 
Certification, North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project, Inyo County, dated July 2, 2020 and 
located in the Information Handout for the project. 

 

 

Replace section 13-12 with: 
13-12  TEMPORARY CREEK DIVERSION SYSTEMS 

13-12.01  GENERAL 
13-12.01A  Summary 
Section 13-12 includes specifications for constructing, maintaining, reconstructing, and removing 
temporary creek diversion system (TCDS), and restoring creek bed to original condition. The temporary 
diversion system is used to divert upstream water flows to allow construction in a dry or dewatered 
location. 

13-12.01B  Definitions 
Not Used 

13-12.01C  Submittals 



Submit a certificate of compliance for: 

1. Pipe material 
2. Gravel gradations 
3. Plastic sheeting 
4. Cofferdam materials 
 
13-12.01C(1)  Temporary Creek Diversion System Plan 
Within 20 days of Contract approval, submit 3 copies of the Temporary Creek Diversion System Plan 
(TCDSP). The TCDSP must include: 

1. Installation and removal process, including equipment, platforms for equipment, and access locations. 
2. Anticipated flow rates. 
3. Calculations supporting the sizing of piping, channels, pumps, or other conveyance by using FHWA 

HY-8 or other equivalent method. Calculate the discharge water flow rate and velocity anticipated 
where it discharges on any erodible surface, so its conveyance does not cause erosion within the 
project or at the discharge to the water body. Temporary culverts attached to banks, walls, or other 
locations must be designed to hold the full weight of the culvert at capacity and restrain the culvert for 
any expected hydraulic forces. 

4. Plans showing locations of diversion, including layouts, cross sections, and elevations. 
5. Materials proposed for use, including MSDS if applicable. 
6. Operation and maintenance procedures for the TCDS. 
7. Restoration plans showing before and after conditions, including photos of existing conditions for 

areas disturbed during the installation, operation, and removal of the TCDS. 
8. Monitoring and reporting plan to ensure applicable water quality objectives are met. This includes 

schedule of work including Temporary BMP implementation as part of the Construction Site BMP 
strategy, and SWPPP or WPCP as applicable. Use with section 13-3.01A. 

9. Details of the pumping system, if used, including power source, debris handling, fish screens, and 
monitoring requirements. 

10. Fish passage plan, following the Caltrans Fish Passage Design for Road Crossings, CA Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), CA Salmonid Stream Habitat Restoration Manual, and National Marine 
Fisheries Service (NMFS), Guidelines for Salmonid Passage at Stream Crossings, as required by the 
applicable PLACs. 

11 The TCDS design must demonstrate how it will comply with section 13-12.03A, water tightness, and 
prevent seepage. 

12. Contingency plan to remove workers, equipment, materials, fuels, and any other work items that will 
cause pollution or violation of PLACs during a rain event out of the flow area. Develop the 
contingency plan for when a 12-inch freeboard cannot be maintained and overtopping of the coffer 
dams may occur. 

 
If revisions are required, the Engineer notifies you of the date when the review stopped and provides 
comments. Submit a revised TCDSP within 15 days of receiving the comments. The Department's review 
resumes when a complete TCDSP has been resubmitted. 

Submit an electronic copy on a read-only CD, DVD, or other Engineer-authorized data storage device and 
4 printed copies of the authorized TCDSP. 

If the RWQCB or other regulatory agency requires review of the authorized TCDSP, the Engineer submits 
it to the RWQCB for review and comment. If the Engineer orders changes to the TCDSP based on the 
RWQCB's comments, submit a revised TCDSP within 10 days. 

All submittals which include plans, specifications, and calculations must be sealed and signed by a civil 
engineer registered in the State. 

13-12.01D  Quality Assurance 
Not Used 

13-12.02  MATERIALS 
13-12.02A  Gravel 
Gravel must: 



1. Be river run gravel obtained from a river or creek bed with gradation of 100 percent passing a 3/4 inch 
sieve and 0% passing a 3/8 inch sieve 

2. Be clean, hard, sound, durable, uniform in quality, and free of any detrimental quantity of soft, thin, 
elongated or laminated pieces, disintegrated material, organic matter, or other deleterious substances 

3. Be composed entirely of particles that have no more than 1 fractured face 
4. Have a cleanliness value of at least 85, as determined by California Test 227 
 
13-12.02B  Impermeable Plastic Membrane 
Impermeable plastic membrane must be: 

1. Single ply, commercial quality, polyethylene with a minimum thickness of 10 mils complying with 
ASTM D2103. You must use stronger plastic membrane if required as part of design to resist 
hydraulic forces. 

2. Free of holes, punctures, tears or other defects that compromise the impermeability of the material. 
3. Suitable for use as an impermeable membrane. 
4. Resistant to UV light, retaining a minimum grab breaking load of 70 percent after 500 hours under 

ASTM D4355. 
 
13-12.02C  Gravel-Filled Bags 
Gravel-filled bags must comply with section 13-5.02G. 

The 2nd paragraph of section 13-5.02G does not apply. 

13-12.02D  Plastic Pipes 
Plastic pipe must comply with section 61-3.01 and must: 

1. Be clean, uncoated, in good condition free of rust, paint oil dirt or other residues that could potentially 
contribute to water pollution 

2. Be adequately supported for planned loads 
3. Use watertight joints under section 61-2.01. 
4 Be made of a material or combination of materials that are suitable for clean water and which do not 

contain banned, hazardous or unlawful substances 
5. For temporary pipes not reused on the project you may use the following materials: 

5.1. PVC closed-profile wall pipe must comply with ASTM F1803 
5.2. PVC solid wall pipe must comply with ASTM D3034, ASTM F679, AWWA C900, AWWA C905, 

or ASTM D2241 and cell class 12454 defined by ASTM D1784 
5.3. HDPE solid wall pipe must comply with AASHTO M 326 and ASTM F714 
5.4. Polyethylene large-diameter-profile wall sewer and drain pipe must comply with ASTM F894 
 

13-12.02E  Rock 
Rock layer must comply with the table titled Rock Gradation for 7-inch-thick Layer in section 72-4.02. 

13-12.02F  Pumping System 
Pumping system must: 

1. Comply with section 74-2.02B 
2. Be equipped with secondary containment 
3. Be free of fuel and oil leaks 
4. Meet intake screen regulatory requirements 
 
13-12.02G  Seepage Pumping System 
If seepage occurs in the dewatered work area, the water must be removed by sump pumps as part of the 
TCDS. 

Seepage pumping system must: 

1. Comply with section 74-2.02B 
2. Ensure discharge water conform with PLACs or is treated on site 
3. Be free of fuel and oil leaks 
 



13-12.02H  Discharge Water Energy Dissipation and Erosion Control 
Discharge water from pumps, pipes, ditches, or other conveyances must have BMPs to dissipate the 
flows and velocity of water discharged from the temporary diversion system if erosion would otherwise 
occur. 

Energy dissipation measures: 

1. May be plastic sheeting, flared end sections, rubber matting, or other materials appropriate for the 
design hydraulics 

2. Must be anchored to prevent movement by expected flows 
3. Must be removed when the TCDS is removed 
 
13-12.03  CONSTRUCTION 
13-12.03A  General 
Do not use motorized equipment or vehicles in areas of flowing or standing water for the construction or 
removal of the TCDS in compliance with section 13-4.03. 

Remove vegetation to ground level and clear away debris. 

Place temporary or permanent fill as allowed by PLACs. 

Place rock at outlet of diversion pipe under section 72-4.03, except motorized vehicles and equipment 
must not be used in areas of flowing or standing water. 

Do not construct or reconstruct TCDS if the 72-hour forecasts predict a 50 percent or greater chance of 
rain in the project area. 

Stop allwork and remove all material and equipment from the creek between upstream and downstream 
cofferdams if the 72-hour forecasts predict a 50 percent or greater chance of rain in the project area and 
the predicted rainfall is estimated to produce a flow rate exceeding the design capacity of the TCDS. 

If the required freeboard cannot be maintained and overtopping may occur, implement contingency plan 
to remove all workers, equipment, and potential sources of pollution from the dry working area of the 
creek bed. 

The TCDS must be constructed within the temporary impact footprint as described in the environmental 
commitments. 

Lap and join joints between the edges of impermeable plastic membrane with commercial-quality 
waterproof tape with minimum 4-inch lapping at the edges. 

Seal openings or penetrations through the impermeable plastic membrane with commercial quality 
waterproof tape. 

The TCDS must be water tight to keep the work area dry for construction and prevent the creation of 
pollutants. Maintain all portions of the TCDS and fix leaks as soon as they are discovered. 

Contact water agencies that discharge to the construction area to ensure that unexpected water is not 
discharged during construction which could compromise the TCDS. 

13-12.03B  Maintenance 
Maintain the TCDS to provide a minimum freeboard of 12 inches between the water surface and the 
impermeable top of the cofferdams. 

Do not discharge runoff from existing or proposed drainage systems into the dry work area between the 
cofferdams. Runoff from these systems may be connected to the diversion pipe or conveyed by pipes 
downstream of the cofferdam. 

Prevent leaks in the TCDS. Provide seepage pumps as necessary and keep the work area dry to prevent 
the creation of sediment-laden water. 



Repair holes, rips and voids in the impermeable plastic membrane with commercial-quality waterproof 
tape. Replace impermeable plastic membrane when patches or repairs compromise the impermeability of 
the material. 

Repair TCDS within 24 hours after the damage occurs. 

Prevent debris from entering the TCDS and receiving water. 

Remove and immediately replace gravel, gravel-filled bags, impermeable plastic membrane, or plastic 
pipes contaminated by construction activities. 

Remove sediment deposits and debris from the TCDS as needed. If removed sediment is deposited 
within project limits, it must be stabilized and not subject to erosion by wind or water, under sections 19-
1.01 and 19-2.03 B. 

13-12.03C  Removal 
When no longer required, remove all components of TCDS. Return the creek bed and banks to the 
original condition. 

Do not excavate the native creek material. Backfill ground disturbance, including holes and depressions 
caused by the installation and removal of the TCDS with gravel. Maintain the original line and grade of the 
creek bed. 

13-12.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

  



^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

14  ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP 
Add to the end of section 14-1.02: 

An ESA exists on this project. 

Before starting job site activities, install temporary high-visibility fence (Type ESA) to protect the ESA and 
mark its boundaries. 

Limited access to the ESA is allowed for biological monitoring and surveys, and release of encroaching 
wildlife. Notify the Engineer 1 business day before the planned entry date. Any other access to the ESA is 
prohibited. 

Add to section 14-2.01: 
Comply with mitigation measures CR-1, CR-2, and CR-3 as specified in the Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program in Appendix C of the CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program dated January 2020 and located in the Information Handout for the project. 

Add to section 14-6.01: 
Comply with Streambed Alteration Agreement. Notification No. 1600-2020-0055-R6, located in the 
Information Handout for the project. 

Add to the 1st paragraph of section 14-6.03A: 
This project is within or near habitat for the regulated species shown in the following table: 

Regulated Species 
Golden Eagle 
Bald Eagle 
Swainson’s Hawk 
Bank Swallow 
Owens Sucker 
Owens Speckled Dace 

 

Comply with mitigation measures BIO-1, BIO-2, BIO-3, BIO-4, BIO-5, BIO-6, and BIO-7 as specified in the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program in Appendix C of the CEQA – Initial Study/MND and 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program dated January 2020 and located in the Information Handout 
for the project. 

14-8.02 NOISE CONTROL – The Standard Specifications is amended to read: 

The noise level from the Contractor's operations between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. shall not 
exceed 86 dBa at a distance of 15 m {50 feet}. This requirement shall not relieve the Contractor from 
responsibility for complying with local ordinances regulating noise level. 

The noise level requirement shall apply to the equipment on the job or related to the job, including but not 
limited to trucks, transit mixers or transient equipment that may or may not be owned by the Contractor. 
The use of loud sound signals shall be avoided in favor of light warnings except those required by safety 
laws for the protection of personnel. 

Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered as included in 
the prices paid for the various contract items of work involved and no additional compensation will be 
allowed therefor. 



 

Add to the end of section 14-9.02: 
Comply with mitigation measure AIR-1 as specified in the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program in 
Appendix C of the CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program dated 
January 2020 and located in the Information Handout for the project. 

The US EPA has established the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP). 
Under the Health & Safety Code § 39658(b)(1), your demolition and rehabilitation activities must comply 
with 40 CFR 61, Subpart M (National Emission Standard for Asbestos). 

You must inspect and test the existing concrete for asbestos.  Inspection and sampling of the existing 
concrete must be completed by an asbestos professional inspector. 

The asbestos survey and sampling report for this project is included in the Information Handout. 

Notify the US EPA and the California Air Resources Board of your demolition activities even if the 
activities will not disturb asbestos-containing material. 

You may obtain an Asbestos NESHAP Notification of Demolition and Renovation Form at the California 
Air Resources Board's website: 

http://www.arb.ca.gov/enf/asbestos/asbestos.htm 
 

Instead of the 10 working days specified at the website, mail or deliver the form with the necessary 
attachments at least 15 days before starting demolition or rehabilitation activities to: 

US EPA - REGION IX 
ASBESTOS NESHAP NOTIFICATION (AIR-5) 
75 HAWTHORNE ST 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94105 
 

Mail or fax a copy of the notification form to: 

CALIFORNIA AIR RESOURCES BOARD 
ENFORCEMENT DIVISION 
ASBESTOS NESHAP NOTIFICATION 
P.O. BOX 2815 
SACRAMENTO, CA  95812 
FAX: (916) 229-0645 
 

Submit a copy of the notification form and attachments as informational submittals before starting 
demolition or rehabilitation activities. 

You must notify the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District of your demolition activities even if 
the activities will not disturb asbestos-containing material. 

You may obtain the notification form, submittal instructions, and other information from: 

Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District 
https://gbuapcd.org/ 

Instead of the 10 working days specified at the website, submit a notification form to the Great Basin 
Unified Air Pollution Control District at least 15 days before starting demolition or rehabilitation activities. 

Submit a copy of the notification form and the necessary attachments as informational submittals before 
starting demolition or rehabilitation activities. 

If you discover unanticipated asbestos-containing material during the demolition or rehabilitation activities, 
immediately stop work in that area and notify the Engineer. The Department will use other forces to 
remove and dispose of the material. Do not resume work in the area until authorized. 

https://gbuapcd.org/


Notify the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District of a change to your demolition or rehabilitation 
activities, including a revised work plan or the discovery of unanticipated asbestos-containing materials, 
within 2 days of the change or discovery. 

14-11.02  REMOVAL OF ASBESTOS AND HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES – Add the following to 
the Standard Specifications:  

When the presence of asbestos or hazardous substances are not shown on the plans or indicated in the 
specifications and the Contractor encounters materials which the Contractor reasonably believes to be 
asbestos or a hazardous substance as defined in Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
the asbestos or hazardous substance has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor may continue 
work in unaffected areas reasonably believed to be safe. The Contractor shall immediately cease work in 
the affected area and report the condition to the Engineer in writing. 

In accordance with Section 25914.1 of the Health and Safety Code, removal of asbestos or hazardous 
substances, including any exploratory work to identify and determine the extent of such asbestos or 
hazardous substance will be performed by separate contract. 

Add to the 1st paragraph of section 14-11.14A: 
Wood removed from metal beam guard railing is treated wood waste. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

15  EXISTING FACILITIES 
Replace section 15-1.03D with: 

Remove existing asphalt concrete within the limits of approach roadway reconstruction.  Do not disturb 
the existing subgrade material below the existing aggregate base material. 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

16  TEMPORARY FACILITIES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION III  EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE 
17  GENERAL 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

18  DUST PALLIATIVES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

19  EARTHWORK 
 

Replace the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th paragraphs of section 19-2.03B with: 



Dispose of surplus material. Ensure enough material is available to complete the embankments before 
disposing of it. 

 

Add to the end of section 19-3.01A: 
Structure backfill includes constructing the geocomposite drain system. The systems must comply with 
section 68-7. 

 

Add to the beginning of section 19-3.03B(1): 
For footings at locations with structure excavation (Type D), ground or surface water is expected to be 
encountered. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

20  LANDSCAPE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

21  EROSION CONTROL 
Add to section 21-2.01A: 

Hydroseed includes (1) hydroseeding with fiber, seed, and fertilizer, (2) power applying (blowing) straw, 
and (3) applying tackifier and fiber over the top of the blown straw. 

Add to section 21-2.01C(1): 
Straw is to be certified weed-free. 
 

Add to section 21-2.02F:  
The seed mixture shall consist of the following species: 

 

Common Name 
Pounds 

per acre 

Sagebrush Big Basin 0.20 

Rabbitbrush Rubber 0.20 

Indian Ricegrass Rimrock 2.00 

Squirreltail 1.00 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

22  FINISHING ROADWAY 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



DIVISION IV  SUBBASES AND BASES 
23  GENERAL 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

24  STABILIZED SOILS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

25  AGGREGATE SUBBASES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

26  AGGREGATE BASES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

27  CEMENT TREATED BASES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

28  CONCRETE BASES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

29  TREATED PERMEABLE BASES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

30  RECLAIMED PAVEMENT 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

31–35  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION V  SURFACINGS AND PAVEMENTS 



36  GENERAL 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

37  BITUMINOUS SEALS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

38  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

39  ASPHALT CONCRETE 
Replace section 39-1.03 with: 

HMA includes preparation of the existing aggregate base subgrade material. 

Replace section 39-2.01C(3)(b) with: 
Compact the top 6-inches of existing aggregate base subgrade material to a relative compaction of at 
least 95%. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 39-2.02B(3) with: 
The grade of asphalt binder for Type A HMA must be 64-28. 

For Type A HMA using RAP substitution of greater than 15 percent of the aggregate blend, the virgin 
binder grade must comply with the PG binder grade specified above with 6 degrees C reduction in the 
upper and lower temperature classification. 

For Type A HMA using RAP substitution of 15 percent or less of the aggregate blend, the grade of the 
virgin binder must comply with the PG binder grade specified above. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

40  CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

41  EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

42  GROOVE AND GRIND CONCRETE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 



 

43–44  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VI  STRUCTURES 
45  GENERAL 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

46  GROUND ANCHORS AND SOIL NAILS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

47  EARTH RETAINING SYSTEMS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

48  TEMPORARY STRUCTURES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

49  PILING 
Add to section 49-1.03: 

Expect difficult pile installation due to the presence of caving soils, high ground water, and cobbles and 
boulders. 

 

 

 

 

Add to section 49-3.02B(6)(c): 
The synthetic slurry must be one of the materials shown in the following table: 

Material Manufacturer 
SlurryPro CDP KB INTERNATIONAL LLC 

735 BOARD ST STE 209 
CHATTANOOGA TN 37402 
(423) 266-6964 

Super Mud PDS CO INC 
105 W SHARP ST 
EL DORADO AR 71731 
(870) 863-5707 

Shore Pac GCV CETCO CONSTRUCTION DRILLING PRODUCTS 



2870 FORBS AVE 
HOFFMAN ESTATES IL 60192 
(800) 527-9948 

Terragel or Novagel 
Polymer 

GEO-TECH SERVICES LLC 
220 N. ZAPATA HWY STE 11A-449A 
LAREDO TX 78043 
(210) 259-6386 

BIG FOOT MATRIX CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 
50 S MAIN ST STE 200 
NAPERVILLE IL 60540 
(877) 591-3137 

POLY-BORE BAROID INDUSTRIAL DRILLING PRODUCTS 
3000 N SAM HOUSTON PKWY EAST 
HOUSTON TX 77032 
(877) 379-7412 

 

Use synthetic slurries in compliance with the manufacturer's instructions. Synthetic slurries shown in the 
above table may not be appropriate for a given job site. 

Synthetic slurries must comply with the Department's requirements for synthetic slurries to be included in 
the above table. The requirements are available from the Offices of Structure Design, P.O. Box 168041, 
MS# 9-4/11G, Sacramento, CA 95816-8041. 

SlurryPro CDP synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

SlurryPro CDP 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

≤ 67.0a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

≤ 64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 50–120 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

≤ 70 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

6.0–11.5 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 
aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

Super Mud synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

Super Mud 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

≤ 64.0a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

≤ 64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 32–60 



 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

≤ 60 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

8.0–10.0 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 
aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

Shore Pac GCV synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

Shore Pac GCV 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

≤ 64.0a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

≤ 64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 33–74 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

≤ 57 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

8.0–11.0 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 
aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

Terragel or Novagel Polymer synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following 
table: 

Terragel or Novagel Polymer 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

≤ 67.0a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

≤ 64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 45–104 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

≤ 104 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

6.0–11.5 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 



aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

BIG-FOOT synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

BIG-FOOT 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

≤ 64.0a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

≤ 64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 30–125 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

55-114 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

8.5–10.5 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 
aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

POLY-BORE synthetic slurry must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

POLY-BORE 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density Mud weight (density), 
API RP 13B-1, 

section 4 

 
During drilling (pcf) 
 

62.8-65.8a 

Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (pcf) 

62.8-64.0a 

Viscosity Marsh funnel and cup. 
API RP 13B-1, section 6.2 

 
During drilling (sec/qt) 50–80 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (sec/qt) 

50-80 

pH Glass electrode pH meter 
or pH paper 

7.0–10.0 

Sand content, percent by volume Sand, 
API RP 13B-1, section 9 

 
Before final cleaning and immediately 
before placing concrete (%) 

≤ 1.0 

NOTE: Slurry temperature must be at least 40 °F when tested. 
aIf authorized, you may use slurry in a salt water environment. The allowable density of slurry in 
a salt water environment may be increased by 2 pcf. 

 

 

Add to section 49-3.02C(4): 
If the hole is drilled below the specified tip elevation shown, the reinforcement must extend to within 3 
inches of the bottom of the drilled hole for the piles that are specified as end bearing. 

 



^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

50  PRESTRESSING CONCRETE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

51  CONCRETE STRUCTURES 
Add to section 51-1.01A: 

Use precast prestressed concrete deck panels to form the soffit of the deck slab between girders. 

Add to section 51-1.02B: 
For abutments, wingwalls, deck slab, diaphragms, and railing curbs, the portions of structures shown in 
the following table, concrete must contain at least 675 pounds of cementitious material per cubic yard: 

 

For the precast girders, concrete must contain at least 675 pounds of cementitious material per cubic 
yard and have air entrainment of 6 percent: 

 

Concrete for concrete bridge decks must contain polymer fibers. Each cubic yard of concrete must 
contain at least 1 pound of microfibers and at least 3 pounds of macrofibers. 

Concrete for concrete bridge decks must contain a shrinkage reducing chemical admixture. Each cubic 
yard of concrete must contain at least 3/4 gallon of a shrinkage reducing admixture. If you use the 
maximum dosage rate shown on the Authorized Material List for the shrinkage reducing admixture, your 
submitted shrinkage test data does not need to meet the shrinkage limitation specified. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 51-1.03H with: 
Cure the top surface of bridge decks by (1) misting and (2) the water method using a curing medium 
under section 90-1.03B(2). After strike off, immediately and continuously mist the deck with an atomizing 
nozzle that forms a mist and not a spray. Continue misting until the curing medium has been placed and 
the application of water for the water method has started. At the end of the curing period, remove the 
curing medium and apply curing compound on the top surface of the bridge deck during the same work 
shift under section 90-1.03B(3). The curing compound must be curing compound no. 1. 

 

Delete the 4th paragraph of section 51-1.03H. 
 

Replace Reserved in section 51-4.01C(2)(e) with: 
Submit 3 copies of shop drawings for PC PS concrete deck panels. Include the following: 

1. Panel materials 
2. Handling procedures 
3. Method of prestressing 
4. Strand arrangements and working stresses, including any addition or rearrangement of reinforcing 

steel from that shown 
5. Method of support and grade adjustment 
6. Accommodation for skew 
7 Methods of sealing against grout leaks 
8. Additional details as required to supplement the Contract plans 
 
 



 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

52  REINFORCEMENT 
 

Add to section 52-2.01A(3): 
52-2.01A(3)(c)  Certificates 
Submit a certificate of compliance for each shipment of dual-coated bar reinforcing steel. Include the 
following with the submittal: 

1. Certification that the reinforcement complies with ASTM A1055 
2. All certifications specified in ASTM A1055 
 

Add to section 52-2.01B: 
You may use dual-coated bar reinforcing steel complying with ASTM A1055 as an alternative to epoxy-
coated reinforcement or epoxy-coated prefabricated reinforcement. Bar reinforcing steel to be dual-
coated must be deformed, Grade 60 bars complying with ASTM A706.  

Dual-coated bar reinforcement must be the same bar size and must be placed at the same spacing as 
described for epoxy-coated reinforcement and epoxy-coated prefabricated reinforcement. 

Add to section 52-2.01C: 
Do not bend bar reinforcing steel complying with ASTM A1055 after coating application if used as an 
alternative to epoxy coated prefabricated reinforcement. 

Job site and PC plant practices for substituted bar reinforcement must comply with appendix X1 of ASTM 
A1055, except replace "should" with "must." 

 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

53  SHOTCRETE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

54  WATERPROOFING 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

55  STEEL STRUCTURES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

56  OVERHEAD SIGN STRUCTURES, STANDARDS, AND POLES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 



 

57  WOOD AND PLASTIC LUMBER STRUCTURES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

58  SOUND WALLS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

59  STRUCTURAL STEEL COATINGS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

60  EXISTING STRUCTURES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VII  DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
61  GENERAL 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

62–63  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

64  PLASTIC PIPE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

65  CONCRETE PIPE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

66  CORRUGATED METAL PIPE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



67  STRUCTURAL PLATE CULVERTS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

68  SUBSURFACE DRAINS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

69  OVERSIDE DRAINS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

70  MISCELLANEOUS DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

71  EXISTING DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VIII  MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION 
72  SLOPE PROTECTION 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

73  CONCRETE CURBS AND SIDEWALKS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

74  PUMPING EQUIPMENT AND CONTROLS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

75  MISCELLANEOUS METAL 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

76  WELLS 
Not Modified 



^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

77  LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

78  INCIDENTAL CONSTRUCTION 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
79  RESERVED 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

80  FENCES 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION IX  TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 
81  MISCELLANEOUS TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

82  SIGNS AND MARKERS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

83  RAILINGS AND BARRIERS 
 

Replace Reserved in section 83-2.02C(3) with: 
The offset from the face of the Type WB-31 transition railing to the hinge point must be at least 3'-6". 

The offset from the face of the adjacent midwest guardrail system to the hinge point must be transitioned 
from the offset at the Type WB-31 transition railing to 4'-0" using a ratio of 6:1. 

Add to section 83-2.04A(2): 
Terminal systems must be the MSKT-SP-MGS Test Level 4 system. 

Add to section 83-2.04A(3): 
Install the MSKT-SP-MGS terminal systems per manufacturer’s instructions. 

Add to section 83-2.05A(1): 
California ST-75 bridge rail work includes the tubular bicycle railing. 

 



 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

84  MARKINGS 
Painting pavement markings shall conform to the provisions in Section 84-2, “Traffic Stripes and 
Pavement Markings,” of the Standard Specifications and these Special Provisions. 

Paint for pavement markings shall conform to Section 84-2.02C, “Paint,” of the Standard Specifications 
as follows:  Paint Type (Water Borne Traffic Line); Color (White); State Specification No. 8010-20B. 

Glass beads shall conform to Section 84-2.02D, “Glass Beads,” of the Standard Specifications as 
follows:  State Specification No. 8010-004 (Type II). 

The Contractor’s attention is directed to Sections 84-2.03c(3), “Painted Traffic Stripes and Pavement 
Markings” of the Standard Specifications, which shall be adhered to, where applicable, by the Contractor 
at the direction and approval of the Engineer. 

 

Add to the end of the 1st paragraph of section 84-2.02F: 
The paint must be slow-curing epoxy traffic paint. 

 

Add between the 5th and 6th paragraphs of section 84-2.03C(3)(b): 
 

Apply the paint for the traffic stripes and pavement markings at a minimum thickness of 0.025 ± 0.002 
inch and at a minimum application rate of 64 sq ft/gal. 

84-2.04  PAYMENTS - the Standard Specifications is amended to read as follows: 

Painted pavement markings will be measured by the square yard for the actual area painted. 

The contract price paid per square yard of pavement marking, of the number of coats designated in the 
Engineer's Estimate, shall include full compensation for furnishing all labor, materials, tools, equipment 
and incidentals, and for doing all the work involved in painting pavement markings, including establishing 
alignment and layout work, complete in place, as shown on the plans, as specified in the specifications 
and these Special Provisions, and as directed by the Engineer. 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

85  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION X  ELECTRICAL WORK 
86  GENERAL 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



87  ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

88  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION XI  MATERIALS 
89  AGGREGATE 

Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

90  CONCRETE 
 

Add to section 90-1.02I(2)(a): 
The mortar strength of the fine aggregate relative to the mortar strength of Ottawa sand must be a 
minimum of 100 percent under California Test 515. 

Add to section 90-1.02: 
90-1.02K  Polymer Fibers 
Fibers must comply with ASTM D7508. Microfibers must be from 1/2 to 2 inches long. Macrofibers must 
be from 1 to 2-1/2 inches long. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

91  PAINT 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

92  ASPHALT BINDERS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

93  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

94  ASPHALTIC EMULSIONS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 



 

95  EPOXY 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

96  GEOSYNTHETICS 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

97–98  RESERVED 
Not Modified 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION XII  BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 
99  BUILDING CONSTRUCTION 

Not Modified 

 

 



 

{ XE "RSS_A04-17-20__2018" } 
Page 1 of 200 

 
 

RSS. Use in all projects. Do not add. Inserted by boilerplate merge. 
 

REVISED STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS DATED 
04-17-20 

 
ORGANIZATION 

Revised standard specifications are under headings that correspond with the main-section headings of 
the Standard Specifications. A main-section heading is a heading shown in the table of contents of the 
Standard Specifications. A date under a main-section heading is the date of the latest revision to the 
section. 

Each revision to the Standard Specifications begins with a revision clause that describes or introduces a 
revision to the Standard Specifications. For a revision clause that describes a revision, the date on the 
right above the clause is the publication date of the revision. For a revision clause that introduces a 
revision, the date on the right above a revised term, phrase, clause, paragraph, or section is the 
publication date of the revised term, phrase, clause, paragraph, or section. For a multiple-paragraph or 
multiple-section revision, the date on the right above a paragraph or section is the publication date of the 
paragraphs or sections that follow. 

Any paragraph added or deleted by a revision clause does not change the paragraph numbering of the 
Standard Specifications for any other reference to a paragraph of the Standard Specifications. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION I  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
1  GENERAL 

04-17-20 
Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 1-1.01: 

10-19-18 
Global revisions are changes to contract documents not specific to a section of the Standard 
Specifications.  In each contract document at each occurrence, interpret the following terms as shown: 

Term Interpretation Conditions 
Fed-Std-595 AMS Std 595 -- 

04-17-20 
Grade SS1 Grade SS-1 -- 
Grade SS1h Grade SS-1h -- 
Grade CSS1 Grade CSS-1 -- 
Grade CSS1h Grade CSS-1h -- 
Grade QS1h Grade QS-1h -- 
Grade CQS1h Grade CQS-1h -- 

 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 2 of 200 

 
Add to the table in the 1st paragraph of section 1-1.06: 

04-19-19 
CSC conductor signal cable 

04-17-20 
NDS National Design Specification for Wood Construction 
BWC Bonded wearing course 

 

 

Replace the row for 12 in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 1-1.08 with: 
04-17-20 

12 Orange (Ora) 
1750 E 4TH ST 
STE 100 
SANTA ANA CA 

1750 E 4TH ST 
STE 100 
SANTA ANA CA  92705-3909 

 

 

Replace the 9th row in the table of section 1-1.11 with: 
04-19-19 

Department of 
Conservation, 
Division of Mine 
Reclamation 

http://www.conservation.ca.gov/dmr 

-- -- 

 

 

Add to the table in section 1-1.11: 
04-19-19 

Data 
Interchange for 
Materials 
Engineering 

https://dime.dot.ca.gov MATERIALS 
ENGINEERING AND 
TESTING SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 
5900 FOLSOM BLVD 
SACRAMENTO CA  
95819-4612 

(916) 227-5238 

SWRCB, Land 
Disposal 
Program 

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/wat
er_issues/programs/land_disposal/w
alist.html 

-- -- 

 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

2  BIDDING 
10-19-18 

Replace the 5th paragraph of section 2-1.12B(1) with: 
10-19-18 

You are responsible to verify at bid opening the DBE firm is certified as a DBE by the California Unified 
Certification Program and possesses the most specific available NAICS codes or work codes applicable 
to the type of work the firm will perform on the Contract. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 3 of 200 

 
Replace section 2-1.12B(2) with: 

10-19-18 
2-1.12B(2)  DBE Commitment Submittal 
Submit DBE information under section 2-1.33. 

Submit a copy of the quote from each DBE shown on the DBE Commitment form that describes the type 
and dollar amount of work shown on the form no later than 4 p.m. on the 5th day after bid opening. If the 
last day for submitting the quote falls on a Saturday or holiday, it may be submitted on the next business 
day with the same effect as if it had been submitted on the 5th day. 

Submit a DBE Confirmation form for each DBE shown on the DBE Commitment form to establish that it 
will be participating in the Contract in the type and dollar amount of work shown on the form. If a DBE is 
participating as a joint venture partner, submit a copy of the joint venture agreement. 

Failure to submit a completed DBE Confirmation form and a copy of the quote from each DBE will result 
in disallowance of the DBE's participation. 

 

Add between the 4th and 5th paragraphs of section 2-1.15B: 
10-19-18 

Submit a copy of the quote from each DVBE listed on the Certified DVBE Summary form that describes 
the type and dollar amount of work shown on the form no later than 4 p.m. on the 4th business day after 
bid opening. 

 

Add between the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 2-1.15C(1): 
10-19-18 

Submit a copy of the quote from each DVBE listed on the Certified DVBE Summary form that describes 
the type and dollar amount of work shown on the form no later than 4 p.m. on the 4th business day after 
bid opening. 

 

Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 2-1.18C: 
10-19-18 

Failure to submit a completed Certified Small Business Listing for the Non–Small Business Preference 
form by 4 p.m. on the 2nd business day after bid opening will result in a nonresponsive bid. 

 

Replace section 2-1.33B with: 
10-19-18 

2-1.33B  Bid Form Submittal Schedules 
2-1.33B(1)  General 
The Bid book includes forms specific to the Contract. The deadlines for the submittal of the forms vary 
depending on the requirements of each Contract. Determine the requirements of the Contract and submit 
the forms based on the applicable schedule specified in section 2-1.33B. 

Bid forms and information on the form that are due after the time of bid may be submitted at the time of 
bid. 

2-1.33B(2)  Federal-Aid Contracts 
2-1.33B(2)(a)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(2) applies to a federal-aid contract. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 4 of 200 

 
2-1.33B(2)(b)  Contracts with a DBE Goal 
2-1.33B(2)(b)(i)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(2)(b) applies if a DBE goal is shown on the Notice to Bidders. 

2-1.33B(2)(b)(ii)  Bid Form Submittal 
Submit the bid forms according to the schedule shown in the following table: 

Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a 
Federal-Aid Contract with a DBE Goal 

Form Submittal deadline 

Bid to the Department of Transportation  Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number 

Copy of the Bid to the Department of 
Transportation as submitted at the time of bid 
with the public works contractor registration 
number 

10 days after bid opening 

Subcontractor List Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number 

Copy of the Subcontractor List as submitted at 
the time of bid with the public works contractor 
registration number 

10 days after bid opening 

Small Business Status Time of bid 
Opt Out of Payment Adjustments for Price Index 
Fluctuationsa Time of bid 

DBE Commitment No later than 4 p.m. on the 5th day after bid 
openingb 

DBE Confirmation No later than 4 p.m. on the 5th day after bid 
openingb 

DBE Good Faith Efforts Documentation No later than 4 p.m. on the 5th day after bid 
openingb 

aSubmit only if you choose the option. 
bIf the last day for submitting the bid form falls on a Saturday or holiday, it may be submitted on the 
next business day with the same effect as if it had been submitted on the day specified. 

 

2-1.33B(2)(b)(iii)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(2)(c)  Contracts without a DBE Goal 
2-1.33B(2)(c)(i)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(2)(c) applies if a DBE goal is not shown on the Notice to Bidders. 

2-1.33B(2)(c)(ii)  Bid Form Schedule 
Submit the bid forms according to the schedule shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 5 of 200 

 
Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a 

Federal-Aid Contract without a DBE Goal 
Form Submittal deadline 

Bid to the Department of Transportation Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number 

Copy of the Bid to the Department of 
Transportation as submitted at the time of bid with 
the public works contractor registration number 

10 days after bid opening 

Subcontractor List Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number 

Copy of the Subcontractor List as submitted at the 
time of bid with the public works contractor 
registration numbers 

10 days after bid opening 

Small Business Status Time of bid 
Opt Out of Payment Adjustments for Price Index 
Fluctuationsa Time of bid 
aSubmit only if you choose the option. 
 

2-1.33B(2)(c)(iii)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(2)(d)–2-1.33B(2)(h)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(3)  Non-Federal-Aid Contracts 
2-1.33B(3)(a)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(3) applies to non-federal-aid contracts. 

2-1.33B(3)(b)  Contracts with a DVBE Goal 
2-1.33B(3)(b)(i)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(3)(b) applies if a DVBE goal is shown on the Notice to Bidders. 

2-1.33B(3)(b)(ii)  Bid Form Submittal 
Submit the bid forms according to the schedule shown in the following table: 

Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a 
Non-Federal-Aid Contract with a DVBE Goal 

Form Submittal deadline 

Bid to the Department of Transportation Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number for a joint-venture contract 

For a joint-venture contract, copy of the Bid to the 
Department of Transportation as submitted at the 
time of bid with the public works contractor 
registration number 

10 days after bid opening 

Subcontractor List Time of bid 
Opt Out of Payment Adjustments for Price Index 
Fluctuationsa Time of bid 

Certified DVBE Summary No later than 4 p.m. on the 4th business day after 
bid opening 

California Company Preference Time of bid 
Request for Small Business Preference or Non–
Small Business Preferencea Time of bid 

Certified Small Business Listing for the Non–
Small Business Preferencea 

No later than 4 p.m. on the 2nd business day 
after bid opening 

aSubmit only if you choose the option or preference. 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 6 of 200 

 
2-1.33B(3)(b)(iii)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(3)(c)  Contracts without a DVBE Goal 
2-1.33B(3)(c)(i)  General 
Section 2-1.33B(3)(c) applies if a DVBE goal is not shown on the Notice to Bidders. 

2-1.33B(3)(c)(ii)  Bid Form Submittal 
Submit the bid forms according to the schedule shown in the following table: 

Bid Form Submittal Schedule for a 
Non-Federal-Aid Contract without a DVBE Goal 

Form Submittal deadline 

Bid to the Department of Transportation Time of bid except for the public works contractor 
registration number for a joint-venture contract 

For a joint-venture contract, copy of the Bid to the 
Department of Transportation as submitted at the 
time of bid with the public works contractor 
registration number 

10 days after bid opening 

Subcontractor List Time of bid 
Opt Out of Payment Adjustments for Price Index 
Fluctuationsa Time of bid 

California Company Preference Time of bid 

Certified DVBE Summaryb No later than 4 p.m. on the 4th business day after 
bid opening 

Request for Small Business Preference or Non–
Small Business Preferencea Time of bid 

Certified Small Business Listing for the Non–Small 
Business Preferencea 

No later than 4 p.m. on the 2nd business day after 
bid opening 

aSubmit only if you choose the option or preference. 
bSubmit only if you obtain DVBE participation or you are the apparent low bidder, 2nd low bidder, or 3rd 
low bidder and you choose to receive the specified incentive. 
 

2-1.33B(3)(c)(iii)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(3)(d)–2-1.33B(3)(h)  Reserved 
2-1.33B(4)–2-1.33B(9)  Reserved 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

3  CONTRACT AWARD AND EXECUTION 
04-17-20 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of Section 3-1.04 with: 
04-17-20 

Submit any bid protest to the Office Engineer before contract award. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 7 of 200 

 
4  SCOPE OF WORK 

10-18-19 
Replace the 7th and 8th paragraphs of section 4-1.07B with: 

10-18-19 
The Department decides whether to accept a VECP and the estimated net construction-cost savings from 
adopting the VECP or parts of it. The Department may require you to accept a share of the investigation 
cost as a condition of reviewing a VECP. In determining the estimated net construction-cost savings, the 
Department excludes your VECP preparation cost and the Department's VECP investigation costs, 
including parts paid by you. After written acceptance, the Department considers the VECP and deducts 
the agreed cost of the investigation. 

Replace item 4 in the list in the 9th paragraph of section 4-1.07B with: 
10-18-19 

4. Adjusts the payment so that the Change Order results in a credit to the Department of 50 percent of 
the estimated net construction-cost savings, except if the VECP provides a reduction in traffic 
congestion or avoids traffic congestion 

 
Replace the 10th paragraph of section 4-1.07B with: 

10-18-19 
If a VECP providing for a reduction in traffic congestion or avoiding traffic congestion is accepted by the 
Department, the Department adjusts the payment that results in a credit to the Department of 40 percent 
of the estimated net construction-cost savings attributable to the VECP. Submit detailed traffic handling 
comparisons between the existing Contract and the proposed change, including estimates of the traffic 
volumes and congestion. 

10-18-19 
Delete the 12th paragraph of section 4-1.07B 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

5  CONTROL OF WORK 
04-17-20 

Replace the 6th paragraph of section 5-1.13B(2) with: 
10-19-18 

If the Department authorizes the termination or substitution of a listed DBE, make good faith efforts to find 
another DBE. The substitute DBE must (1) perform at least the same dollar amount of work as the original 
DBE under the Contract to the extent needed to meet the DBE goal and (2) be certified as a DBE with the 
most specific available NAICS or work code applicable to the type of work the DBE will perform on the 
Contract at the time of your request for substitution. Submit your documentation of good faith efforts 
within 7 days of your request for authorization of the substitution. The Department may authorize a 7-day 
extension of this submittal period at your request. Refer to 49 CFR 26 app A for guidance regarding 
evaluation of good faith efforts to meet the DBE goal. 

 

Replace the 2nd sentence in the 2nd paragraph of section 5-1.13C with: 
10-19-18 

The substitute must be another DVBE, unless DVBEs are not available. The substitute must perform the 
work originally stated. 

 

Replace the 6th paragraph of section 5-1.13C with: 
10-19-18 

If a DVBE substitute is not available, requests for substitutions of a listed DVBE must include: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 8 of 200 

 
1. Contact with the DVBE advocate from the Department and the Department of Veteran Affairs 
2. Search results from the Department of General Services' website of available DVBEs 
3. Communication with a DVBE community organization nearest the job site, if applicable 
4. Documented communication with DVBEs describing the work to be performed, the percentage of the 

total bid, the corresponding dollar amount, and the responses to the communication 
 
 

Replace section 5-1.24 with: 
10-19-18 

5-1.24  CONSTRUCTION SURVEYS 
5-1.24A  General 
The Department places stakes and marks under chapter 12, "Construction Surveys," of the Department's 
Surveys Manual. 

Submit your request for Department-furnished stakes: 

1. Once staking area is ready for stakes 
2. On a Request for Construction Staking form 
 
After your submittal, the Department starts staking within 2 business days. 

Preserve stakes and marks placed by the Department. If the stakes or marks are destroyed, the 
Department replaces them at the Department's earliest convenience and deducts the cost. 

 

Replace section 5-1.26 with: 
10-19-18 

 
5-1.26  RESERVED 
 

Replace the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of section 5-1.43A with: 
10-18-19 

Submit potential claim records using the Department's Internet potential claim system. For information on 
submittal of potential claim records using the Internet potential claim system, go to the Department's 
Division of Construction website. 

A potential claim record that you submit using the Internet potential claim system is the same as the 
originator of the claim and you signing the potential claim record. 

For the Internet potential claim system, potential claim records are: 

1. Initial Potential Claim Record form 
2. Supplemental Potential Claim Record form 
3. Full and Final Potential Claim Record form 
4. Closed Potential Claim Record form 
 
Submit a Closed Potential Claim Record form if you choose not to pursue an Initial Potential Claim 
Record that has been submitted. 

 

Replace item 3.3.4 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 5-1.43D with: 
04-17-20 

3.3.4. Equipment rates at the rental rates listed in Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental 
Rates in effect when the affected work related to the potential claim was performed 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 9 of 200 

 
 

Add between the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of section 5-1.43D: 
04-17-20 

If the total potential claim cost exceeds $500,000, include an independent CPA cost audit report. Submit 
the audit report within 70 days of the completion of the potentially claimed work. The CPA's cost audit 
must be performed as an examination-level engagement under the attestation engagements in the 
Government Auditing Standards published by the Comptroller General of the United States. The attest 
documentation prepared by the CPA in connection with the audit must be submitted for review with the 
audit report. Within 20 days of the Engineer's request, make your financial records available for an audit 
by the State for verifying the actual cost described in your audit. The Department does not participate in 
costs for the report where no entitlement is determined. If entitlement is determined, the Department pays 
for 1/2 the cost of the report; the Contractor pays for the other 1/2. The cost is determined under section 
9-1.05 except no markup is allowed. 

 

Replace section 5-1.43E(1)(i) with: 
04-17-20 

Pay the DRA or each DRB member $2,000 per day for the DRA's or DRB member's participation at each 
on-site meeting. 

On-site meetings include: 

1. Initial project meeting 
2. Progress meetings 
3. Dispute meetings 
 
The payment includes full compensation for on-site time, travel expenses, transportation, lodging, travel 
time, and incidentals for each day or portion thereof. 

Before a DRA or DRB member spends any time reviewing the plans or specifications, evaluating 
positions, preparing recommendations, completing forms, or performing any other off-site DRA- or DRB-
related tasks, the parties must agree to pay for the tasks. Pay the DRA or DRB member $200 per hour for 
these off-site tasks. This payment includes full compensation for incidentals such as expenses for 
telephone, fax, and computer services. 

The Department does not pay for (1) any DRA- or DRB-related work performed after Contract acceptance 
or (2) your cost of preparing for or attending ADR resolution meetings. 

The Department pays: 

1. $2,000 for each DRA on-site meeting 
2. $6,000 for each DRB on-site meeting 
3. $200 per hour for agreed off-site DRA- or DRB-related tasks 
 
The Department does not adjust the unit price for an increase or decrease in the quantity of: 

1. DRA on-site meeting 
2. DRB on-site meeting 
3. Hourly off-site DRA- or DRB-related tasks 
 
Within 60 days of receipt of Department payment, submit copies of associated invoices and supporting 
documents in the form of a canceled check or bank statement for DRA- or DRB- payment verification. 

Replace section 5-1.43E(2)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Section 5-1.43E(2) applies to a contract with an estimated cost from $3 million to $10 million. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 10 of 200 

 
Replace item 1.2 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 5-1.43E(2)(b) with: 

10-19-18 
1.2. Have completed training by the Department 
 
 

Replace section 5-1.43E(3)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Section 5-1.43E(3) applies to a contract with an estimated cost of over $10 million. 

 

Replace item 1.2 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 5-1.43E(3)(b) with: 
10-19-18 

1.2. Have completed training by the Department 
 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

6  CONTROL OF MATERIALS 
04-19-19 

Replace section 6-1.03 with: 
04-19-19 

6-1.03  LOCAL MATERIALS 
6-1.03A  General 
Local material must be rock, sand, gravel, earth, or mineral material other than local borrow, or selected 
material obtained or produced from a source in the work vicinity, specifically for use on the project. Local 
borrow must not be a material from an established commercial source. 

Upon your request, the Department tests material for quality characteristics from an untested local 
source. If satisfactory material from that source is used in the work, the Department does not charge you 
for the tests; otherwise, the Department deducts the test costs. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

7  LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO THE PUBLIC 
10-18-19 

Replace item 1.3 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 7-1.02K(3) with: 
10-18-19 

1.3. Last four digits of social security number pursuant to Labor Code § 226(a) 
 

 

Replace the 6th through 10th paragraphs of section 7-1.02K(3) with: 
04-19-19 

You may submit certified payroll records electronically using the Department's secure file transfer protocol 
site. For information on electronic submission of certified payroll records, go to the Department's Division 
of Construction website. 

Submit payroll records electronically in a nonmodifiable PDF file, using the following file-naming 
convention: 

TT-EA-WE-DOCTYPE.PDF 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 11 of 200 

 
where: 
 
TT = district, leading zero 
EA = Contract number, excluding the district identification number, expressed as 6 characters 
WE = week ending date entered as month, leading zero; day of month, leading zero; year, last 2 

digits 
DOCTYPE = labor payroll document type, CP for Certified Payroll, FB for Fringe Benefit Statement, 

or SC for Statement of Compliance 
 

Before submitting the payroll records electronically, you and your subcontractors must each complete and 
sign the Request for Electronic Submission of Certified Payroll Records and e-mail it in PDF format to the 
district Labor Compliance Office. The Department provides you and your subcontractors' assigned 
representatives the accounts and user identifications by e-mail after each Request for Electronic 
Submission of Certified Payroll Records is received. 

Each electronic submission must: 

1. Include certified payroll records in a nonmodifiable PDF file 
2. Include a signed Statement of Compliance form with each weekly record as a nonmodifiable PDF file 
3. Be received by the Department by close of business on the 15th day of the month for the prior 

month's work 
 
 

Replace the 12th paragraph of section 7-1.02K(3) with: 
10-18-19 

Make all payroll records, including employee's complete social security number, available for inspection 
and copying or furnish a copy upon request of a representative of the: 

1. Department 
2. Division of Labor Standards Enforcement of the Department of Industrial Relations 
3. Division of Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations 
 
 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 5th paragraph of section 7-1.02K(6)(a) with: 
10-19-18 

Submit copies of your Injury and Illness Prevention Program, Code of Safe Practices, and permits 
required by Cal/OSHA as informational submittals. 

 

Replace section 7-1.02K(6)(j)(iii) with: 
10-18-19 

7-1.02K(6)(j)(iii)  Unregulated Earth Material Containing Lead 
Reserved 

 

Replace Reserved in section 7-1.02M(2) with: 
10-18-19 

Submit the names and emergency telephone numbers of the nearest fire suppression agencies before 
the start of job site activities as an informational submittal. Post the names and phone numbers at a 
prominent place at the job site. 

Submit a copy of your fire prevention plan required by Cal/OSHA as an informational submittal before the 
start of job site activities. 

04-19-19 
Cooperate with fire prevention authorities in performance of the work. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 12 of 200 

 
Immediately report fires occurring within and near the project limits by dialing 911 and to the nearest fire 
suppression agency by using the emergency phone numbers retained at the job site. 

Prevent project personnel from setting open fires that are not part of the work. 

Prevent the escape of and extinguish fires caused directly or indirectly by job site activities. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 7-1.02M(3) with: 
04-19-19 

For the list of permitted sites, go to the Department of Conservation, Division of Mine Reclamation 
website. 

 

Replace the 13th paragraph of section 7-1.03 with: 
10-18-19 

For a taper on a bridge deck or approach slab, construct the taper with rapid setting concrete under 
section 60-3.02B(2) or polyester concrete under section 60-3.04B(2). Prepare the surface to receive the 
taper under section 60-3.02C(7). For tapers with aggregate fillers, rake conform edges to ensure smooth 
transitions. Cure the taper for at least 3 hours or the minimum time recommended by the manufacturer 
before opening to traffic. 

 

Replace the 4th sentence in the 16th paragraph of section 7-1.03 with: 
10-18-19 

When not shown and if ordered, providing flaggers is change order work. 

 

Replace the 3rd sentence in the 7th paragraph of section 7-1.04 with: 
10-18-19 

When not shown and if ordered, providing flaggers is change order work. 

Replace the 13th paragraph of section 7-1.04 with: 
10-18-19 

Equipment must enter and leave the highway via existing ramps and crossovers and must move in the 
direction of traffic. All movements of workers and construction equipment on or across lanes open to 
traffic must be performed in a manner that do not endanger the public. Your vehicles or other mobile 
equipment leaving an open traffic lane to enter the construction area must slow down gradually in 
advance of the location of the turnoff to give the traffic following an opportunity to slow down. When 
leaving a work area and entering a roadway carrying traffic, your vehicles and equipment must yield to 
traffic. Compensation for flaggers, used for all movement of workers and construction vehicles and 
equipment on or across lanes open to traffic, is included in the bid items of work involved. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

8  PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
04-17-20 

Replace the row for Safety in the table in the 2nd paragraph of section 8-1.03 with: 
10-19-18 

Safety Injury and Illness Prevention Program, Code of Safe Practices, 
and job site posters 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 13 of 200 

 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 8-1.07C with: 
04-17-20 

Losses for idle equipment, idle workers, and moving or transporting equipment are eligible for delay-
related payment adjustments. 

 

Replace item 3 in the list in the 3rd paragraph of section 8-1.07C with: 
04-19-19 

3. Delay days exclude Saturdays and holidays. 
 
 

Add to section 8-1.07C: 
04-17-20 

If you claim additional costs due to impacts from an excusable delay, you must comply with section 5-
1.42. Support your claim for additional costs based on the difference between the cost to perform the 
work as planned and the cost to perform the work as changed as determined under section 9-1.04. The 
Department adjusts payment for the work portion that was impacted. 

 

Replace section 8-1.14E with: 
10-18-19 

8-1.14E  Payment Adjustment for Termination 
If the Department issues a termination notice, the Engineer determines the payment for termination 
during the performance period, from contract approval date to contract acceptance date, based on the 
following: 

1. Direct cost for the work performed: 
1.1. Including: 

1.1.1. Mobilization 
1.1.2. Demobilization 
1.1.3. Securing the job site for termination 
1.1.4. Losses from the sale of materials 

1.2. Not including: 
1.2.1. Cost of materials you keep 
1.2.2. Profit realized from the sale of materials 
1.2.3. Cost of material damaged by: 

1.2.3.1. Act of God 
1.2.3.2. Act of a public enemy 
1.2.3.3. Fire 
1.2.3.4. Flood. 
1.2.3.5. Governor-declared state of emergency 
1.2.3.6. Landslide 
1.2.3.7. Tsunami 

1.2.4. Other credits 
2. Cost of remedial work, as estimated by the Engineer, is not reimbursed. 
3. Allowance for profit not to exceed 4 percent of the cost of the work performed where a likelihood of 

having made a profit had the Contract not been terminated is shown. 
4. Material handling costs for material returned to the vendor or disposed of as ordered. 
5. Costs in determining the payment adjustment due to the termination, excluding attorney fees and 

litigation costs. 
6. Overhead costs. 
 
Termination of the Contract does not relieve the surety of its obligation for any just claims arising out of 
the work performed. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 14 of 200 

 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

9  PAYMENT 
04-17-20 

Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 9-1.04A: 
04-17-20 

The Tentative Daily Extra Work Agreement form is used to identify the labor, materials, and equipment 
used on change order work paid at force account. Signatures on this form do not constitute final 
agreement regarding payment. 

 

Replace section 9-1.07B(5) with: 
10-19-18 

9-1.07B(5)  Hot Mix Asphalt Containing Reclaimed Asphalt Pavement 
The Engineer calculates the quantity of asphalt in HMA containing RAP using the following formula: 

Qrap = HMARTT x Xaa 
 
where: 
Xaa = Xta – [(Xrap x Xra x (Xta-100)) / (100 x (Xra – 100))] 
 
and: 
Qrap = quantity in tons of asphalt used in HMA containing RAP 
HMARTT = HMA containing RAP, total tons placed 
Xaa = asphalt content of HMA containing RAP adjusted to exclude the asphalt content in RAP, 

expressed as a percentage of the total weight of HMA containing RAP 
Xta = total theoretical asphalt content in HMA containing RAP from the job mix formula, expressed as 

a percentage of the total weight of HMA containing RAP 
Xrap = RAP percentage in HMA containing RAP from the job mix formula, expressed as a percentage 

of the total dry weight of aggregate in HMA containing RAP 
Xra = average asphalt content of RAP from the job mix formula, expressed as percentage of total 

weight of RAP 
 

 

Replace the 2nd sentence in the 7th paragraph of section 9-1.11E with: 
04-19-19 

The cost is determined under section 9-1.05 except no markup is allowed. 

 

Replace section 9-1.16C with: 
10-19-18 

9-1.16C  Materials On Hand 
A material on hand but not incorporated into the work is eligible for a progress payment if: 

1. Compliant with other Contract parts 
2. Material cost exceeds either of the following: 

2.1. $50,000 
2.2. $25,000 if the requestor is certified as one or more of the following: 

2.2.1. DVBE 
2.2.2. DBE 
2.2.3. Small business as certified by Department of General Services, Office of Small 

Business and Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Services 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 15 of 200 

 
3. Purchased 
4. Invoice is submitted 
5. Stored within the State and you submit evidence that the stored material is subject to the 

Department's control 
6. Protected from weather and contamination 
7. Water pollution control measures are established and maintained 
8. Requested on the Department-furnished form 
 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 9-1.16E(3) with: 
10-18-19 

During each estimate period you fail to comply with a Contract part, including the submittal of a document 
as specified, such as QC plans, schedules, traffic control plans and water pollution control submittals, the 
Department withholds a part of the progress payment except as specified below for the failure to submit a 
document during the last estimate period. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 9-1.17C with: 
10-18-19 

If you claim that the total for work completed, excluding deductions, in the proposed final estimate is less 
than 90 percent of your total bid, the Department adjusts the final payment to cover your overhead. The 
adjustment in the final estimate is 10 percent of the difference between 90 percent of your total bid and 
the total for work completed, excluding deductions. The Department does not make this adjustment on a 
terminated contract. 

 

Replace section 9-1.17D(2)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

9-1.17D(2)(b)  Overhead Claims 
9-1.17D(2)(b)(i)  General 
Section 9-1.17D(2)(b) includes specifications for overhead claims. 

The Department deducts an amount for field and home office overhead paid on added work from any 
claim for overhead. The home office overhead deduction equals 5 percent of the added work. The field 
office overhead deduction equals 5-1/2 percent of the added work. 

9-1.17D(2)(b)(ii)  Definitions 
actual daily overhead rates: The home office overhead and field office overhead rates expressed per 

business day for the contract performance period. The home office overhead rate is calculated using 
the Eichleay Formula and is based on overhead cost pools and all allocation bases from Contract and 
company revenues. 

added work: Equals the value of the work completed minus the total bid. 

contract performance period: The period from Contract approval to Contract acceptance. 

9-1.17D(2)(b)(iii)  Submittals 
Submit the following for an overhead claim: 

1. Final amount of additional payment requested. 
2. Specific identification of each claim and dates associated with each claim for which you seek 

reimbursement for specific overhead costs. 
3. Audit report prepared by an independent CPA for the contract performance period identifying the 

actual daily overhead rates, supporting calculations and documentation for both field and home office 
overhead excluding a profit markup. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 16 of 200 

 
Field office overhead costs from which the actual daily overhead rate is calculated must be: 

1. Allowable under 48 CFR 31 
2. Supported by reliable records 
3. Related solely to the project 
4. Incurred during the contract performance period 
5. Comprised of only time-related field office overhead costs 
6. Not a direct cost 
 
Home-office overhead costs from which the actual daily overhead rate is calculated must be: 

1. Allowable under 48 CFR 31 
2. Supported by reliable records 
3. Incurred during the contract performance period 
4. Comprised of only fixed home-office overhead costs 
5. Not a direct cost 
 
Failure to submit the audit report for an overhead claim with the claim statement is a waiver of the 
overhead claim and operates as a bar to arbitration on the claim (Pub Cont Code § 10240.2). 

The CPA's audit must be performed as an examination-level engagement under the attestation 
engagements in the Government Auditing Standards published by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. The CPA's audit report must express an opinion of whether or not your calculations of your actual 
field and home office overhead daily rates comply with section 9-1.17D(2)(b). The attest documentation 
prepared by the CPA in connection with the audit must be submitted for review with the audit report. 

Within 20 days of the Engineer's request, make your financial records available for an audit by the State 
for verifying the actual daily overhead rates in your audit report. The actual rate of time-related overhead 
is subject to authorization by the Engineer. 

The Department pays for 1/2 the cost of the report unless otherwise specified. The cost is determined 
under section 9-1.05 except no markup is allowed. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION II  GENERAL CONSTRUCTION 
10  GENERAL 

04-19-19 
Replace the 1st sentence in the 4th paragraph of section 10-6 with: 

04-19-19 
The sources and discharge of recycled water must comply with the water-recycling criteria of the CDPH, 
SWRCB Order No. WQ 2016-0068-DDW, and the requirements of the appropriate RWQCB. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 17 of 200 

 
11  WELDING 

04-19-19 
Replace the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 11-1.01 with: 

04-19-19 
AWS code Year of adoption 

D1.1 2015 
D1.3 2018 
D1.4 2018 
D1.5 2015 
D1.6 2017 
D1.8 2016 

 

 

Replace the introductory clause in the 1st paragraph of section 11-1.03 with: 
04-19-19 

Replace clause 6.1.3 of AWS D1.1, the 1st paragraph of clause 9.1.2 of AWS D1.4, and clause 6.1.2 of 
AWS D1.5 with: 

 

Replace the introductory clause of the 2nd paragraph of section 11-1.04 with: 
04-19-19 

Replace clause 6.14.6.1 of AWS D1.1, clause 9.8.1 of AWS D1.4, and clause 6.1.3.4 of AWS D1.5 with: 

 

Add before the 1st paragraph of section 11-1.05: 
04-19-19 

Replace the first sentence of clause 5.21.1.1 of AWS D1.1 with the following: 

5.21.1.1. The separation between surfaces of plug and slot welds, and of joints landing on a backing, 
shall not exceed 1/16 in [2 mm]. 

Replace clause 3.3.1.1 of AWS D1.5 with the following: 

3.3.1.1. The separation between surfaces of plug and slot welds, and of joints landing on a backing, shall 
not exceed 2 mm [1/16 in]. 

 

Replace item 2 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 11-1.05 with: 
04-19-19 

2. Be mechanically and radiographically tested. Mechanical and radiographic testing and acceptance 
criteria must comply with the applicable AWS codes. The type of mechanical testing must be 
authorized. 

 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of 11-1.06 with: 
04-19-19 

Replace item 3 of clause 6.26.3.2 of AWS D1.5 with: 

3. If indications that exhibit these planar characteristics are present at scanning sensitivity, or other 
evidence exists to suggest the presence of transverse cracks, a more detailed evaluation of the 
discontinuity by other means must be performed (e.g., alternate UT techniques, RT, grinding, or 
gouging for visual inspection or MT of the excavated areas.) 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 18 of 200 

 
Replace the scanning angle in clause 6.24.2.2 of AWS D1.5 with: 

Up to 45 degrees 
 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 11-1.06 with: 
04-19-19 

Clause 6.6.5 of AWS D1.1, clause 9.6.5 of AWS D1.4, and clause 6.6.5 of AWS D1.5 do not apply. 

 

Replace the introductory clause of the 1st paragraph of section 11-2.04 with: 
04-19-19 

Clauses 6.1.4.1 and 6.1.4.3 of AWS D1.1, the 2nd paragraph of clause 9.1.2 of AWS D1.4, clauses 
6.1.3.1 through 6.1.3.3 of AWS D1.5, and clause 7.2.3 of AWS D1.8 are replaced with: 

 

Replace item 2 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 11-2.04 with:  
04-19-19 

2. Structural steel for building construction work is performed at a permanent fabrication or 
manufacturing plant that is certified under the AISC Quality Certification Program, Category BU, 
Standard for Steel Building Structures. 

 
 

Replace section 11-2.06 with: 
04-19-19 

11-2.06  WELDING PROCEDURES QUALIFICATION 
Welding procedures qualification for work welded under AWS D1.5 must comply with clause 5.12 or 
5.12.4 of AWS D1.5 and the following: 

1. Macroetch tests are required for all WPS qualification tests, and acceptance must comply with clause 
5.19.3 of AWS D1.5. 

2. If a nonstandard weld joint is to be made using a combination of WPSs, you may conduct a test under 
figure 5.3, combining the qualified or prequalified WPSs to be used in production, if the essential 
variables, including weld bead placement, of each process are limited to those established in table 
5.4 of AWS D1.5. 

3. Before preparing mechanical test specimens, inspect the PQR welds by visual and radiographic tests. 
The backing bar must be 3 inches in width and must remain in place during NDT. Results of the 
visual and radiographic tests must comply with clause 6.26.2 of AWS D1.5 excluding clause 6.26.2.2. 
All other requirements for clause 5.17 are applicable. 

 
When electric resistance welding is used for work welded under AWS D1.1, the welding procedure must 
be qualified under Clause 4 of AWS D1.1. Welding procedures must be qualified for the thickness and the 
pole diameter tested. Test samples for tapered poles must be obtained from three locations, each end 
and the middle of the tapered pole, to qualify for the diameter range tested. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 11-3.02 with: 
04-19-19 

The AISC Certification category for pole structures is Bridge and Highway Metal Component (CPT) or 
Standard for Steel Building Structures (BU). 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 19 of 200 

 
Replace section 12 with: 

10-18-19 

12  TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL 
04-17-20 

12-1  GENERAL 
12-1.01  GENERAL 
Section 12-1 includes general specifications for providing temporary traffic control. 

Temporary traffic control, including flagging, apparel, temporary traffic control devices, and equipment for 
flaggers, must comply with the California MUTCD, Part 6, "Temporary Traffic Control." 

12-1.02  MATERIALS 
Not Used 

12-1.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Assign flaggers to: 

1. Control traffic 
2. Warn the public of any dangerous conditions resulting from the work activities 
3. Provide for the passage of traffic through the work as specified for the passage of traffic for public 

convenience and public safety 
 
Maintain flagging apparel, traffic control devices, and equipment for flaggers in good repair. 

12-1.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

12-2  RESERVED 
12-3  TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 

12-3.01  GENERAL 
12-3.01A  General 
12-3.01A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.01 includes general specifications for providing temporary traffic control devices. 

Providing temporary traffic control devices includes installing, placing, maintaining, repairing, replacing, 
and removing temporary traffic control devices. 

Do not use different types of channelizing devices on the same alignment. The types include plastic 
drums, portable delineators, channelizers, tubular markers, traffic cones, and Type I and Type II 
barricades. 

12-3.01A(2)  Definitions 
Category 1 temporary traffic control devices: Small devices weighing less than 100 lb certified as 

crashworthy by crash testing or crash testing of similar devices. Category 1 temporary traffic control 
devices include traffic cones, plastic traffic drums, portable delineators, and channelizers. 

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices: Small devices weighing less than 100 lb that are not 
expected to produce significant changes in vehicular velocity but could cause harm to impacting 
vehicles. Category 2 temporary traffic control devices include barricades and portable sign supports. 

Category 3 temporary traffic control devices: Devices weighing 100 lb or more that are expected to 
produce significant changes in the vehicular velocity of impacting vehicles. Category 3 temporary 
traffic control devices include crash cushions, impact attenuator vehicles, temporary railing, 
temporary barrier, and end treatments for temporary railings and barriers. 

orange: Orange, red-orange, fluorescent orange, or fluorescent red-orange. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 20 of 200 

 
useable shoulder area: Any longitudinal paved or unpaved contiguous surface adjacent to the traveled 

way with: 

1. Enough weight-bearing capacity to support temporary traffic control devices, such as flashing arrow 
signs, PCMSs, and impact attenuator vehicles 

2. Slope not greater than 6:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
 
12-3.01A(3)  Submittals 
At least 5 business days before starting any work using the devices or within 2 business days after the 
request if the devices are already in use, submit as informational submittals: 

1. Self-certification for crashworthiness of Category 1 temporary traffic control devices. Either you or the 
manufacturer must perform the self-certification. Include: 
1.1. Date 
1.2. Federal aid number for a federal-aid contract 
1.3. Contract number, district, county, route, and post miles of the project limits 
1.4. Company name, street address, city, state, and zip code of the certifying vendor 
1.5. Printed name, signature, and title of the certifying person 
1.6. Types of Category 1 temporary traffic control devices 

2. List of proposed Category 2 temporary traffic control devices 
 
Obtain a standard form for self-certification from the Engineer. 

Submit a sample of the type of portable delineator that you will be using before placing the delineators on 
the job site. 

12-3.01A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.01B  Materials 
The condition of temporary traffic control devices must comply with the most current edition of the 
American Traffic Safety Services Association publication Quality Guidelines for Temporary Traffic Control 
Devices and Features. 

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices must be on FHWA's list of acceptable crashworthy Category 
2 hardware for work zones. For this list, go to FHWA's Safety Program website. 

Category 2 temporary traffic control devices must be labeled with the FHWA acceptance letter code and 
the name of the manufacturer. The label must be legible and permanently affixed to the temporary traffic 
control device by the manufacturer. 

Category 3 temporary traffic control devices must be on the Authorized Material List for highway safety 
features. 

Retroreflectivity for the following materials must comply with Table 2A-3, "Minimum Maintained 
Retroreflectivity Levels," of the California MUTCD and be on the Authorized Material List for signing and 
delineation materials: 

1. Retroreflective sheeting for barricades 
2. Retroreflective bands for portable delineators 
3. Retroreflective sheeting for construction area signs 
4. Retroreflective sheeting for channelizers 
5. Reflectors for Type K temporary railing 
6. Retroreflective cone sleeves 
7. White and orange retroreflective stripes for plastic traffic drums 
 
The following temporary traffic control devices must be visible from 1,000 feet during the hours of 
darkness under an illumination of legal high-beam headlights by persons with 20/20 vision or vision 
corrected to 20/20: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 21 of 200 

 
1. Retroreflective bands on portable delineators 
2. Retroreflective sheeting on channelizers 
3. Retroreflective cone sleeves on traffic cones 
 
12-3.01C  Construction 
Perform all layout work necessary to place channelizing devices: 

1. On the proper alignment 
2. Uniformly at the location and spacing described 
3. Straight on a tangent alignment 
4. On a true arc in a curved alignment 
 
If temporary traffic control devices are damaged, displaced, or stop operating or functioning as described 
from any cause during the progress of the work, immediately repair, repaint, or replace the components 
and restore them to their original locations and positions. 

If ordered, furnish and place additional temporary traffic control devices. This work is change order work 
unless the temporary traffic control devices are being furnished and placed for public safety or public 
convenience. 

Level and plumb a portable system. 

Delineate the location of a trailer mounted system with a taper consisting of 9 traffic cones placed 25 feet 
apart, except where the system is placed within a lane closure or behind a barrier or guardrail. 

When a portable system is not in use, remove it from the job site, place it behind a barrier or guardrail, or 
move it to an area at least 15 feet from the edge of the traveled way. 

12-3.01D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.02  TRAFFIC CONES 
12-3.02A  General 
Section 12-3.02 includes specifications for placing traffic cones. 

12-3.02B  Materials 
A traffic cone must be flexible, orange, and manufactured from commercial-quality material designed for 
the intended purpose. 

The outer section of the portion above the base of the traffic cone must be translucent and fabricated of a 
highly pigmented, orange, PV compound. The overall height of a traffic cone must be at least 28 inches 
and the bottom inside diameter of the traffic cone must be at least 10.5 inches. 

During the hours of darkness, a traffic cone must have a retroreflective cone sleeve. 

Retroreflective cone sleeves must be permanently affixed, double-band, sleeves consisting of 2 white 
retroreflective bands. The top band must be 6 inches wide and placed a maximum of 4 inches from the 
top of the cone. The lower band must be 4 inches wide and placed 2 inches below the bottom of the top 
band. You may use traffic cones with double-band retroreflective cone sleeves during daylight hours. 

12-3.02C  Construction 
Use the same type of retroreflective cone sleeve for all cones used on the project. 

Anchor the base of a traffic cone if it does not have enough size and weight to keep the cone in an upright 
position. 

12-3.02D  Payment 
Not Used 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 22 of 200 

 
12-3.03  PLASTIC TRAFFIC DRUMS 
12-3.03A  General 
12-3.03A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.03 includes specifications for placing plastic traffic drums. 

12-3.03A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

12-3.03A(3)  Submittals 
Submit a certificate of compliance for plastic traffic drums. 

12-3.03A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.03B  Materials 
A plastic traffic drum must comply with the manufacturer's instructions for weight and ballast. 

A plastic traffic drum must: 

1. Be orange LDPE 
2. Be flexible and collapsible upon vehicle impact 
3. Have a weighted base to maintain an upright position and prevent displacement by passing traffic 
4. Have a height such that the top of the drum is at least 36 inches above the traveled way 
 
The weighted base must: 

1. Be detachable 
2. Be shaped to prevent rolling upon impact 
3. Have a 38-inch maximum outside diameter 
4. Have a 4-inch maximum height above the ground surface 
 
12-3.03C  Construction 
Use 1 type of plastic traffic drum on the project. 

Use the same type and brand of retroreflective sheeting for all plastic traffic drums used on the project. 

Do not use sandbags or comparable ballast. 

Moving plastic traffic drums from location to location if ordered after initial placement is change order 
work. 

12-3.03D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.04  PORTABLE DELINEATORS 
12-3.04A  General 
Section 12-3.04 includes specifications for placing portable delineators. 

12-3.04B  Materials 
A portable delineator, including its base, must be made of a material that has enough rigidity to remain 
upright when unattended and must be flexible or collapsible upon impact by a vehicle. The base must be 
(1) shaped to prevent rolling after impact and (2) anchored or weigh enough to keep the delineator in an 
upright position. Ballast for a portable delineator must comply with the manufacturer's instructions. 

A portable delineator must be a minimum of 36 inches in height. The vertical portion of a portable 
delineator must be predominantly orange. The post must be not less than 3 inches in width or diameter. 
Retroreflectorization of a portable delineator that has a height of less than 42 inches must be provided by 
two 3-inch-wide white bands placed a maximum of 2 inches from the top with a maximum of 6 inches 
between the bands. Retroreflectorization of a portable delineator that has a height of 42 inches or more 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 23 of 200 

 
must be provided by four 4- to 6-inch-wide alternating orange and white stripes with the top stripe being 
orange. 

12-3.04C  Construction 
Use only 1 type of portable delineator on the project. 

12-3.04D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.05  CHANNELIZERS 
12-3.05A  General 
Section 12-3.05 includes specifications for placing channelizers. 

12-3.05B  Materials 
A channelizer must be on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation materials. 

Its post must be orange. 

A channelizer must be affixed with 3-by-12-inch, retroreflective, white sheeting. 

12-3.05C  Construction 
Install channelizers on clean, dry surfaces. 

Cement the channelizer bases to the pavement as specified for cementing pavement markers to the 
pavement in section 81-3. 

When no longer required for the work, remove the channelizers and the underlying adhesive used to 
cement the channelizer bases to the pavement. 

Do not remove channelizers that are shown to be left in place at the time of work completion. 

12-3.05D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.06–12-3.09  RESERVED 
12-3.10  BARRICADES 
12-3.10A  General 
Section 12-3.10 includes specifications for placing barricades. 

12-3.10B  Materials 
Markings for barricade rails must be alternating orange and white retroreflective stripes. 

Orange retroreflective sheeting must match color PR no. 6, Highway Orange, of the FHWA Color 
Tolerance Chart. 

The interface between the rail surface and the retroreflective sheeting must be free of air bubbles or 
voids. 

The predominant color of barricade components other than the rails must be white or unpainted 
galvanized metal or aluminum. 

You may use a Type III barricade as a sign support if the barricade has been successfully crash tested 
under NCHRP Report 350 criteria or the Manual for Assessing Safety Hardware (MASH) crash testing 
guidelines as a single unit with an attached sign panel of the size and type to be used. 

A sign panel for a construction area sign or marker panel to be mounted on a barricade must comply with 
section 12-3.11B(2). 

Do not imprint an owner identification on the retroreflective face of any rail. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 24 of 200 

 
12-3.10C  Construction 
Place each barricade such that the stripes slope downward in the direction road users are to pass. 

Place each sand-filled bag near the ground level on the lower parts of the frame or stays to serve as 
ballast for the barricades. Do not place ballast on top of barricades or over any retroreflective barricade 
rail face that is facing traffic. 

Do not remove barricades that are shown to be left in place at the time of work completion. 

Moving a barricade from location to location is change order work if ordered after initial placement of the 
barricade. 

12-3.10D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.11  CONSTRUCTION AREA SIGNS 
12-3.11A  General 
12-3.11A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.11 includes specifications for placing construction area signs. 

04-17-20 
Construction area signs include general information signs and all temporary signs and object markers 
required for the direction of traffic within the project limits. 

10-18-19 
12-3.11A(2)  Definitions 
background: Dominant sign color. 

legend: Letters, numerals, tildes, bars, arrows, route shields, symbols, logos, borders, artwork, and 
miscellaneous characters that are intended to convey specific meanings on traffic signs. 

12-3.11A(3)  Submittals 
Reserved 

12-3.11A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.11B  Materials 
12-3.11B(1)  General 

04-17-20 
Construction area sign must be the product of a commercial sign manufacturer. 

10-18-19 
The style, font, size, and spacing of the legend must comply with the Standard Alphabets published in the 
FHWA's Standard Highway Signs Book. 

The sign must be visible from 500 feet and legible from 300 feet at noon on a cloudless day and during 
the hours of darkness under an illumination of legal low-beam headlights by persons with 20/20 vision or 
vision corrected to 20/20. A fabric sign panel on a portable sign is not subject to the visibility and legibility 
requirements for headlight illumination during the hours of darkness. 

04-17-20 
Construction area sign must have a black legend on a retroreflective, fluorescent orange background. 
W10-1 advance warning sign for highway-rail grade crossings must have a black legend on a 
retroreflective fluorescent yellow background. 

10-18-19 
12-3.11B(2)  Stationary-Mounted Signs 

04-17-20 
Stationary-mounted sign must comply with section 82-2 and must have Type XI retroreflective sheeting. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 25 of 200 

 
10-18-19 

A temporary sign support of any type placed within 15 feet from the edge of the traveled way must comply 
with the specifications for a Category 2 temporary traffic control device. 

The sign post must be good, sound wood posts with the breakaway feature as shown for a roadside sign. 

Fastening hardware and back braces must be commercial-quality materials. 

12-3.11B(3)  Portable Signs 
Each portable sign must consist of a base, standard or framework, and a sign panel. Units delivered to 
the job site must be capable of being placed into immediate operation. 

A sign panel for a portable sign must comply with the specifications for a stationary-mounted sign panel 
or be fabricated from one of the following materials: 

1. Type VI, retroreflective, elastomeric roll-up fabric 
2. Nonretroreflective, cotton, drill fabric 
3. Nonretroreflective, flexible, industrial, nylon fabric 
4. Another type of fabric if authorized 
 
Do not use nonretroreflective portable signs during the hours of darkness. 

The bottom of the portable sign panel must be at least 1 foot above the edge of the traveled way. 

12-3.11B(4)  Temporary Object Markers 
A temporary object marker must be mounted on a stationary wood or metal post and must comply with 
section 82. 

A marker panel for a Type N (CA), Type P (CA), or Type R (CA) object marker must comply with the 
specifications for a marker panel for a stationary sign panel in section 12-3.11B(2). 

A target plate, post, and the hardware for a Type K (CA) and Type L (CA) temporary object marker must 
comply with the specifications for these items in section 82. 

12-3.11B(5)  General Information Signs 
Reserved 

12-3.11C  Construction 
12-3.11C(1)  General 
Place all construction area signs outside of the traveled way. Do not block a bicycle or pedestrian 
pathway with a construction area sign. 

Place, install, maintain, and remove temporary object markers shown as construction area signs as 
specified for construction area signs. 

Maintain accurate information on construction area signs. Immediately replace or correct signs that 
convey inaccurate information. 

During the progress of work, immediately cover or remove unneeded signs. 

Cover each unneeded sign such that the message cannot be seen. Securely fasten the cover to prevent 
movement from wind. 

Check each covered sign daily for damage to the cover and immediately replace any cover if needed. 

Clean each construction area sign panel at the time of installation and at least once every 4 months 
thereafter. 

Be prepared to furnish additional construction area sign panels, posts, and mounting hardware or 
portable sign mounts on short notice due to changing traffic conditions or damage caused by traffic or 
other conditions. Maintain an inventory of commonly required items at the job site or make arrangements 
with a supplier who is able to furnish the items daily on short notice. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 26 of 200 

 
Replace any damaged construction area sign or repair the sign if authorized. 

Remove any sign panel that exhibits irregular luminance, shadowing, or dark blotches at nighttime under 
vehicular headlight illumination. 

12-3.11C(2)  Stationary-Mounted Signs 
Install stationary-mounted signs as described for the installation of roadside signs except: 

1. Back braces and blocks for sign panels are not required for signs 48 inches or smaller in width and 
diamond-shaped signs 48 by 48 inches or smaller. 

2. Bottom of the sign panel must be at least 7 feet above the edge of the traveled way. 
3. You may install a construction area sign on an above-ground, temporary platform sign support or on 

an existing lighting standard or other support if authorized. Do not make holes in a standard to 
support the sign if it is installed on an existing lighting standard. 

4. Post embedment must be at least 2.5 feet if the post hole is backfilled around the post with 
commercial-quality concrete. The concrete must contain at least 295 pounds of cementitious material 
per cubic yard. 

 
The Engineer determines the post size and number of posts if the type of sign installation is not shown. 

Excavate each post hole by hand methods without the use of power equipment. You may use power 
equipment where you determine that subsurface utilities are not present in the area of the proposed post 
hole if authorized. The post-hole diameter must be at least 4 inches greater than the longest cross-
sectional dimension of the post if it is backfilled with commercial-quality concrete. 

Furnishing, installing, maintaining, moving, and removing any additional construction area signs if ordered 
is change order work. 

12-3.11C(3)  General Information Signs 
Reserved 

12-3.11D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.12  TELESCOPING FLAG TREES 
12-3.12A  General 
Section 12-3.12 includes specifications for placing telescoping flag trees. 

12-3.12B  Materials 
Telescoping flag trees must be manufactured from commercial-quality material designed for the intended 
purpose and capable of maintaining an upright position at all times while in use. 

12-3.12C  Construction 
Not Used 

12-3.12D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.13–12-3.19  RESERVED 
12-3.20  TYPE K TEMPORARY RAILING 
12-3.20A  General 
12-3.20A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.20 includes specifications for placing Type K temporary railing and Type K temporary 
terminal sections. 

Type K temporary railing must consist of interconnected PC concrete barrier panels. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 27 of 200 

 
You may have your name or logo on each panel of Type K temporary railing. The name or logo must not 
be more than 4 inches in height and must be located not more than 12 inches above the bottom of the rail 
panel. 

Reinforcing steel must comply with section 52. 

12-3.20A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

12-3.20A(3)  Submittals 
Submit a certificate of compliance for Type K temporary railing not cast at the job site. 

12-3.20A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.20B  Materials 
12-3.20B(1)  General 
Concrete must comply with the specifications for minor concrete except load tickets and a certificate of 
compliance are not required. 

Steel bars to receive bolts at the ends of the concrete panels must comply with ASTM A36/A36M. The 
bolts must comply with ASTM A307. 

You may substitute a round bar of the same diameter for the end-connecting bolt shown. If a round bar is 
used, the round bar must: 

1. Comply with ASTM A36/A36M 
2. Have a minimum length of 26 inches 
3. Have a 3-inch-diameter, 3/8-inch-thick plate welded on the upper end using a 3/16-inch fillet weld 
 
The final surface finish of the railing must comply with section 51-1.03F(2). 

Cure the exposed surfaces of the railing by the water method, the forms-in-place method, or the curing 
compound method using curing compound no. 1. 

12-3.20B(2)  Type K Temporary Terminal Section 
The closure plate for a Type K temporary terminal section must be a white, commercial-quality steel plate 
shaped to conform to the cross section of the barrier. The mechanical expansion anchors for connecting 
the closure plate to the railings must comply with section 75-3 for concrete anchorage devices. 

12-3.20C  Construction 
12-3.20C(1)  General 
Before placing Type K temporary railing on the job site, paint the exposed surfaces of the railing with 
white paint complying with the specifications for acrylic emulsion paint for exterior masonry. The 
repainting of the units is change order work if it is ordered after the units are in place. 

Place Type K temporary railing on a firm, stable foundation. Grade the foundation to provide a uniform 
bearing surface throughout the entire length of the railing. 

Structure excavation and backfill must comply with section 19-3 except compaction of earth fill placed 
behind Type K temporary railing in a curved layout is not required. 

Place and maintain the abutting ends of PC concrete units in alignment without substantial offset from 
each other. 

The drilling of holes and bonding of threaded rods or dowels must comply with the specifications for 
drilling and bonding dowels in section 51-1. 

Install a reflector on the top or face of the rail of each rail unit placed within 10 feet of a traffic lane. Apply 
adhesive for mounting the reflector under the reflector manufacturer's instructions. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 28 of 200 

 
Install a Type P marker panel at each end of railing placed adjacent to a 2-lane, two-way highway and at 
the end facing traffic for railing installed adjacent to a one-way roadbed. If the railing is placed on a skew, 
install the marker at the end of the skew nearest the traveled way. Type P marker panels must comply 
with section 82 except you must furnish the marker panels. 

After removing Type K temporary railing: 

1. Restore the area to its previous condition or construct it to its planned condition if temporary 
excavation or embankment was used to accommodate the railing. 

2. Remove all threaded rods or dowels to a depth of at least 1 inch below the surface of the concrete. 
Fill the resulting holes with mortar under section 51-1 except cure the mortar by the water method or 
by the curing compound method using curing compound no. 6. 

 
If the Engineer orders a lateral move of Type K temporary railing and repositioning is not shown, the 
lateral move is change order work and the railing is not measured in the new position. 

12-3.20C(2)  Type K Temporary Terminal Section 
When the Type K temporary terminal section is no longer required, remove the anchor bolts connecting 
the closure plate to the concrete barrier or cut the bolts flush with the face of the barrier. If the anchor 
bolts are removed, fill the holes with grout. 

12-3.20D  Payment 
The payment quantity for temporary railing (Type K) is the length measured along the top of the railing. 

12-3.21  TEMPORARY TRAFFIC SCREENS 
12-3.21A  General 
Section 12-3.21 includes specifications for installing temporary traffic screens. 

12-3.21B  Materials 
Temporary traffic screen panels must be one of the following: 

1. CDX grade or better plywood 
2. Weather-resistant strand board 
3. Plastic 
 
Plastic temporary traffic screen panels must be on the Authorized Material List for temporary traffic 
screen. 

Wale boards for use with plywood or strand board must be Douglas fir, rough sawn, construction grade or 
better. 

Pipe screen supports must be schedule 40, galvanized steel pipe. 

Nuts, bolts, and washers must be cadmium plated. 

Screws must be black or cadmium-plated flat head, cross-slotted, with full-thread length. 

Temporary traffic screen panels must be CDX grade or better, plywood or weather-resistant strand board. 

Wale boards must be Douglas fir, rough sawn, construction grade or better. 

Pipe screen supports must be schedule 40, galvanized steel pipe. 

Nuts, bolts, and washers must be cadmium plated. 

Screws must be black or cadmium-plated flat head, cross-slotted screws with full-thread length. 

12-3.21C  Construction 
Install and anchor temporary traffic screens to the top of the Type K temporary railing. The temporary 
traffic screen must have 3-foot-long openings spaced at 200-foot intervals. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 29 of 200 

 
A lateral move of Type K temporary railing with attached temporary traffic screen is change order work if 
ordered and repositioning is not shown. 

12-3.21D  Payment 
The payment quantity for temporary traffic screen is the length measured along the line of the screen with 
no deductions for openings in the temporary traffic screen. 

12-3.22  TEMPORARY CRASH CUSHION MODULES 
12-3.22A  General 
Section 12-3.22 includes specifications for placing sand-filled temporary crash cushion modules in 
groupings or arrays. 

If activities expose traffic to a fixed obstacle, protect the traffic from the obstacle with a sand-filled 
temporary crash cushion. The crash cushion must be in place before opening traffic lanes adjacent to the 
obstacle. 

12-3.22B  Materials 
Each sand-filled temporary crash cushion module must be manufactured after March 31, 1997 and be on 
the Authorized Material List for highway safety features. 

The color of each module must be standard yellow with black lids as furnished by the manufacturer. Each 
module must be free from structural flaws and objectionable surface defects. 

For a module requiring a seal, the top edge of the seal must be securely fastened to the wall of the 
module by a continuous strip of heavy-duty tape. 

Fill each module with sand under the manufacturer's instructions and to the sand capacity in pounds for 
each module shown. Sand for filling the modules must be clean, commercial-quality, washed concrete 
sand. When sand is placed in a module, the sand must contain no more than 7 percent water when 
tested under California Test 226. 

12-3.22C  Construction 
Use the same type of crash cushion module for a single grouping or array. 

Temporary crash cushion arrays must not encroach on the traveled way. 

Secure the sand-filled modules in place before starting an activity requiring a temporary crash cushion. 

Maintain sand-filled temporary crash cushions in place at each location, including times when work is not 
actively in progress. You may remove the crash cushions during the work shift for access to the work if 
the exposed fixed obstacle is 15 feet or more from the nearest lane carrying traffic. Reset the crash 
cushion before the end of the work shift. 

Immediately repair sand-filled temporary crash cushion modules damaged due to your activities. Remove 
and replace any module damaged beyond repair. Repair and replacement of temporary crash cushion 
modules damaged by traffic are change order work. 

You may place sand-filled temporary crash cushion modules on movable pallets or frames complying with 
the dimensions shown. The pallets or frames must provide a full-bearing base beneath the modules. Do 
not move the modules and supporting pallets or frames by sliding or skidding along the pavement or 
bridge deck. 

Attach a Type R or Type P marker panel to the front of the temporary crash cushion if the closest point of 
the crash cushion array is within 12 feet of the traveled way. Firmly fasten the marker panel to the crash 
cushion with commercial quality hardware or by other authorized methods. Attach the Type R marker 
panel such that the top of the panel is 1 inch below the module lid. Attach the Type P marker panel such 
that the bottom of the panel rests upon the pallet or roadway surface if pallets are not used. 

A lateral move of a temporary crash cushion module is change order work if ordered and the repositioning 
is not shown. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 30 of 200 

 
Remove sand-filled temporary crash cushion modules, including sand, pallets or frames, and marker 
panels, at Contract acceptance. Do not install sand-filled temporary crash cushion modules in the 
permanent work. 

12-3.22D  Payment 
The payment quantity for temporary crash cushion module does not include: 

1. Modules placed for public safety 
2. Modules placed in excess of the number described 
3. Repositioned modules 
 
12-3.23  IMPACT ATTENUATOR VEHICLES 
12-3.23A  General 
12-3.23A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.23 includes specifications for using impact attenuator vehicles. 

12-3.23A(2)  Definitions 
impact attenuator vehicle: Support truck towing a deployed attenuator mounted to a trailer or a support 

truck with a deployed attenuator mounted to the support truck. 

12-3.23A(3)  Submittals 
Submit a certificate of compliance for each attenuator. 

12-3.23A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Before using an impact attenuator vehicle, conduct a meeting with the Engineer, subcontractors, and 
other parties involved with traffic control to discuss the operation of the impact attenuator vehicle during 
moving lane closures and when placing and removing components of a stationary traffic control system. 

Schedule the location, time, and date for the meeting with all participants. Furnish a meeting facility 
located within 5 miles of the job site or at another location if authorized. 

12-3.23B  Materials 
An impact attenuator vehicle must be on the Authorized Material List for highway safety features. The 
vehicle must comply with Veh Code Div 12. 

Each attenuator must be individually identified with the manufacturer's name, address, attenuator model 
number, and a specific serial number. The name and number must be a minimum 1/2 inch high and 
located on the left, street side, lower front corner. 

An impact attenuator vehicle must comply with the following test levels as specified in the National 
Cooperative Highway Research Program Report 350: 

1. Test level 3 if the preconstruction posted speed limit is 50 mph or more 
2. Test level 2 or 3 if the preconstruction posted speed limit is 45 mph or less 
 
The impact attenuator vehicle must comply with the attenuator manufacturer's instructions for: 

1. Support truck except the weight of the support truck must be within the allowable vehicle weight limits 
shown on the Authorized Material List for highway safety features and the manufacturer's instructions 

2. Trailer-mounted attenuator 
3. Truck-mounted attenuator 
 
A flashing arrow sign must comply with section 12-3.30 except you may use a PCMS instead of a flashing 
arrow sign. A PCMS used as a flashing arrow sign must comply with the specifications for an arrow board 
in the California MUTCD. 

Each impact attenuator vehicle must have: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 31 of 200 

 
1. Inverted V chevron pattern placed across the entire rear of the attenuator composed of alternating 4-

inch-wide, nonreflective black stripes and 4-inch-wide, yellow retroreflective stripes sloping at 45 
degrees 

2. Type II flashing arrow sign 
3. Flashing or rotating amber light 
4. Operable 2-way communication system for maintaining contact with workers 
 
12-3.23C  Construction 
Do not use an impact attenuator vehicle until authorized. 

Monitor the placement and use of the attenuator vehicle on a regular basis and adjust the use of the 
attenuator to match changing field conditions as construction progresses. 

After placing the components of a stationary traffic control system, you may place the impact attenuator 
vehicle in advance of the work area or at another authorized location to protect traffic and workers. 

Secure objects, including equipment, tools, and ballast, on impact attenuator vehicles to prevent their 
loosening upon impact by an errant vehicle. 

Do not use a damaged attenuator in the work. Replace any attenuator damaged from an impact during 
work activities. 

12-3.23D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.24–12-3.29  RESERVED 
12-3.30  FLASHING ARROW SIGNS 
12-3.30A  General 
Section 12-3.30 includes specifications for placing flashing arrow signs. 

12-3.30B  Materials 
A flashing arrow sign must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

Flashing Arrow Sign Requirements 
 

Type 
Panel size 

(min, inches) 
Number of panel lights (min) Legibility 

distancea (min, miles) 
I 48 x 96 15 1 
II 36 x 72 13 3/4 

aThe legibility distance is the distance that a flashing arrow sign must be legible at noon on a 
cloudless day and during the hours of darkness by persons with 20/20 vision or vision corrected to 
20/20. 

 

A flashing arrow sign must be finished with commercial-quality nonreflective black enamel and must be 
equipped with yellow or amber lamps that form arrows or arrowheads. Each lamp must be equipped with 
a visor and the lamps must be controlled by an electronic circuit that provides from 30 to 45 complete 
operating cycles per minute for each of the displays and modes specified. The control must be capable of 
dimming the lamps by reducing the voltage to 50 ± 5 percent for nighttime use. Type I signs must have 
both manual and automatic photoelectric-dimming controls. Dimming in both modes must be continuously 
variable over the entire dimming range. 

A flashing arrow sign must be capable of operating in the following display modes: 

1. Pass left display 
2. Pass right display 
3. Simultaneous display 
4. Caution display or alternating diamond 
 
A flashing arrow sign must be capable of operating in the flashing arrow mode or the sequential mode. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 32 of 200 

 
In the flashing arrow mode, all lamps forming the arrowhead and shaft must flash on and off 
simultaneously. 

In the sequential mode, either arrowheads or arrows must flash sequentially in the direction indicated. 

In the simultaneous display mode, the lamps forming both the right and left arrowheads and the lamps 
forming the arrow shaft or center 3 lamps for Type I signs must flash simultaneously. For Type II signs, 
the lamps forming the right and left arrowhead, but not the center lamp, may be illuminated continuously; 
the lamps forming the shaft and the center lamp of the arrowheads must flash on and off simultaneously. 

In the caution display mode, a combination of lamps not resembling any other display or mode must flash. 

Each flashing arrow sign must be: 

1. Mounted on a truck or trailer 
2. Capable of operating when the vehicle is moving 
3. Capable of being placed and maintained in operation at locations described 
 
A Type II flashing arrow sign must be controllable by the operator of the vehicle while the vehicle is in 
motion. 

The bottom of the flashing arrow sign must be a minimum of 7 feet above the roadway when mounted. 

The trailer for a flashing arrow sign must be equipped with (1) devices to level and plumb the sign and (2) 
a supply of electrical energy capable of operating the sign. 

12-3.30C  Construction 
Not Used 

12-3.30D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.31  PORTABLE FLASHING BEACONS 
12-3.31A  General 
Section 12-3.31 includes specifications for placing, maintaining, and removing portable flashing beacons. 

12-3.31B  Materials 
Each portable flashing beacon must have: 

1. Standard and base 
2. Signal section 
3. Flasher unit 
4. Battery power source 
 
The components must be assembled to form a complete, self-contained, portable flashing beacon that 
can be delivered to the job site and placed into immediate operation. 

The portable flashing beacon must be weatherproof and operate a minimum of 150 hours between 
battery recharging and routine maintenance. 

The signal section must be yellow and comply with section 86-1.02R(4)(a), except it must be rated for 25 
W at 12 V. 

The flash rate for the flashing unit must comply with chapter 4L, "Flashing Beacons," of the California 
MUTCD. 

The standard must be adjustable to allow variable mounting of the signal section from 6 to 10 feet, from 
the bottom of the base to the center of the lens, and be capable of being secured at the desired height. 
The standard must be securely attached to the base and have a length of multiconductor, neoprene-
jacketed cable long enough for the full vertical height. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 33 of 200 

 
The base must be (1) large enough to accommodate at least two 12 V automotive-type storage batteries 
and (2) a shape and weight such that the beacon will not roll if struck by a vehicle or pushed over. 

12-3.31C  Construction 
Remove portable flashing beacons from the traveled way at the end of each night's work. You may store 
the flashing beacon at selected central locations within the highway where designated by the Engineer. 

Moving portable flashing beacons from location to location if ordered after initial placement is change 
order work. 

12-3.31D  Payment 
The payment quantity for flashing beacon (portable) is the number of portable flashing beacon locations 
with each location counting as 1 measurement unit. 

12-3.32  PORTABLE CHANGEABLE MESSAGE SIGNS 
12-3.32A  General 
12-3.32A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.32A includes specifications for placing, maintaining, and removing portable changeable 
message signs. 

12-3.32A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

12-3.32A(3)  Submittals 
If requested, submit a certificate of compliance for each PCMS. 

Submit your cell phone number before starting the first activity that requires a PCMS. 

12-3.32A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.32B  Materials 
Each PCMS consists of a sign panel, a controller unit, a power supply, and a structural support system. 

The PCMS must: 

1. Be assembled to form a complete self-contained unit that can be delivered to the job site and placed 
into immediate operation. 

2. Operate at an ambient air temperature from -4 to 158 degrees F. 
3. Not be affected by mobile radio transmissions other than those required to control the PCMS. 
4. Be capable of displaying a 3-line message with at least 7 characters per line. 
5. Provide a complete alphanumeric selection. 
6. Be internally or externally illuminated during the hours of darkness, when non-illuminated pixels are 

used. 
7. Have a dimming control that automatically adjusts the character light intensity to provide optimum 

character visibility and legibility under all ambient lighting conditions. The dimming control must have 
a minimum 3 manual dimming modes of different intensities. 

 
A message with 18-inch high characters or 15-inch high characters must be visible from a distance of 
1,500 feet and legible from a distance of at least 750 feet at noon on a cloudless day and during the night 
by persons with 20/20 vision or vision corrected to 20/20. 

A message with 10-inch high characters must be legible from a distance of at least 650 feet at noon on a 
cloudless day and during the night by persons with 20/20 vision or vision corrected to 20/20. 

The controller must: 

1. Be an all solid-state unit. 
2. Include at least 5 preprogrammed messages. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 34 of 200 

 
3. Have a user adjustable display rate. 
4. Have a user adjustable flashing-off time. 
5. Include a screen to review the messages before being displayed on the sign. 
6. Include a keyboard message entry system. The keyboard must be equipped with a security lockout 

feature. 
7. Have nonvolatile memory to store an infinite number of user created messages. 
8. Be installed at a location that allows the user to perform all the functions from a single position. 
 
12-3.32C  Construction 
Use a PCMS with characters: 

1. At least 18 inches in height where the useable shoulder area is 15 feet wide or more 
2. At least 12 inches in height where the useable shoulder area is less than 15 feet wide 
3. At least 10 inches in height if the PCMS is: 

3.1. Mounted on a service patrol truck or incident response vehicle 
3.2. Used for traffic control where the posted speed limit is less than 40 mph 
 

Place a PCMS as far from the traveled way as practicable where it is legible to approaching traffic without 
encroaching on the traveled way. Where the vertical roadway curvature restricts the sight distance of 
approaching traffic, place the sign on or before the crest of the curvature where it is most visible to the 
approaching traffic. Where the horizontal roadway curvature restricts the sight distance of approaching 
traffic, place the sign at or before the curve where it is most visible to approaching traffic. Where 
practicable, place the sign behind guardrail or Type K temporary railing. 

If multiple signs are needed, place each sign on the same side of the road at least 1,000 feet apart on 
freeways and expressways and at least 500 feet apart on other types of highways. 

Operate the PCMS under the manufacturer's instructions. 

When in operation, place the bottom of a PCMS at least 7 feet above the roadway in areas where 
pedestrians are anticipated and 5 feet above the roadway elsewhere. Place the top of the PCMS no more 
than 14.5 feet above the roadway. 

If more than one PCMS is simultaneously visible to traffic, only one sign may display a sequential 
message at any time. Do not use dynamic message displays, such as animation, rapid flashing, 
dissolving, exploding, scrolling, horizontal movement, or vertical movement of messages. The message 
must be centered within each line of the display. 

You may use an additional PCMS if more than 2 phases are needed to display a message. 

Display only messages shown or ordered. 

Repeat the entire message continuously in not more than 2 phases of at least 3 seconds per phase. The 
sum of the display times for both of the phases must be a maximum of 8 seconds. If more than 2 phases 
are needed to display a message, use an additional PCMS. 

You must be available by cell phone during activities that require a sign. Be prepared to immediately 
change the displayed message if ordered. You may operate the sign with a 24-hour timer control or 
remote control if authorized. 

Keep the PCMS clean to provide maximum visibility. 

After the initial placement, move a sign from location to location as ordered. 

12-3.32D  Payment 
Not Used 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 35 of 200 

 
12-3.33  PORTABLE SIGNAL SYSTEMS 
12-3.33A  General 
Section 12-3.33 includes specifications for installing, maintaining, and removing portable signal systems, 
including installing lighting and flashing beacons for traffic control. 

A portable signal system must comply with section 87-20, except it must be trailer mounted. 

12-3.33B  Materials 
Not Used 

12-3.33C  Construction 
If the portable signal system is out of operation, provide flaggers to control the traffic until the traffic 
signals are in operation. 

12-3.33D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.34  TEMPORARY FLASHING BEACON SYSTEMS 
12-3.34A  General 
Section 12-3.34 includes specifications for installing, maintaining, and removing temporary flashing 
beacon systems. 

A temporary flashing beacon system must comply with section 87-20. 

12-3.34B  Materials 
The sign panels installed on a temporary flashing beacon system must comply with section 12-3.11. 

12-3.34C  Construction 
Not Used 

12-3.34D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.35  AUTOMATED WORK ZONE INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
12-3.35A  General 
12-3.35A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.35 includes specifications for installing automated work zone information systems. 

12-3.35A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

12-3.35A(3)  Submittals 
Reserved 

12-3.35A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Assign an on-site system coordinator. The coordinator must be available locally to service, maintain, and 
relocate system components as necessary. The coordinator must be accessible 24–7 while the system is 
deployed. If the system fails to perform as specified, perform any necessary remedial work and replace 
any failed components within 24 hours of notification of a system or component failure. 

12-3.35B  Materials 
12-3.35B(1)  General 
The AWIS must be a proven system that has been successfully deployed and operated in actual work 
zones or congested areas. 

The system must acquire traffic data throughout the work zone and automatically display predetermined 
information to motorists without operator intervention after system initialization. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 36 of 200 

 
Real-time information must be displayed to motorists using a PCMS. The sign must comply with section 
12-3.32. 

The system must be controlled either locally or remotely by a dedicated controller or computer. 

Authorized users must be able to both locally and remotely override motorist information messages. 

Traffic sensors must not require adjustments after the initial deployment. 

12-3.35B(2)  General System Function Requirements 
The general system functions of the AWIS must be capable of: 

1. Preventing any unauthorized users or systems from gaining access to the PCMSs through an 
industry authentication and encryption standard level of security. 

2. Providing current operational status locally and remotely. Operational status must include current 
traffic data and messages, communications system, and power status. 

3. Delivering notifications either by telephone, voice, or text messages to alert support staff of trouble 
conditions. 

4. Generating trouble alerts for conditions such as (1) low roadside equipment power or voltage, (2) 
system communications failure, (3) low speed traffic detected, and (4) excessive delay detected. 

5. Adjusting the thresholds of reduced speed and congestion-induced delay at which the system initiates 
a trouble alert. 

6. Allowing programming of the hours during which the trouble condition alerting subsystem initiates 
notification to authorized users. 

7. Measuring periodically and automatically the power levels of all equipment. Alert support staff, locally 
and remotely via a telephone message, in time to provide supplemental power before the system 
ceases to operate. 

8. Displaying preprogrammed messages based on the time of day and day of week. 
 
12-3.35B(3)  Motorist Information Message Requirements 
The AWIS must be capable of: 

1. Displaying predetermined speed, delay, diversion, and closure messages to motorists when user-
adjustable thresholds are exceeded. 

2. Updating its speed and delay advisory messages at least once per minute. The actual message 
updates must be consistent with traffic conditions. 

3. Selecting messages for each PCMS independently, based on the traffic conditions downstream of the 
sign. 

4. Recording motorist information messages in a comma-separated values file with time and date 
stamps, including message overrides with user ID. 

5. Displaying default messages when traffic conditions, system algorithms, and user parameters do not 
dictate that an advisory message should be displayed. 

6. Displaying separate, independent, default messages on each PCMS. 
7. Analyzing traffic parameters in work zones in which there are multiple speed limits. 
 
The following parameters for the selection and presentation of information messages must be adjustable 
by the user: 

1. Message update frequency 
2. Minimum delay necessary to trigger a delay advisory message 
3. Persistence of delay before a delay message is displayed 
4. Level of delay required to trigger a diversion message 
5. Change in delay needed to cause a delay advisory message update 
6. Change in downstream speed at which a speed advisory message update occurs 
 
12-3.35B(4)  System Communication Requirements 
The wireless communications subsystem of the AWIS must: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 37 of 200 

 
1. Operate independently of the public cellular phone system for receiving data to ensure reliable 

communications 
2. Communicate independent of the line of sight or distance 
3. Incorporate an error detection and correction mechanism to ensure the integrity of all traffic condition 

data and motorist information messages 
4. Configure automatically during system initialization 
 
12-3.35B(5)  Traffic Data Acquisition Requirements 
The AWIS must collect accurate traffic data using a speed measurement technique with an accuracy of 
±5 mph, allowing specific information messages. The system must collect data during reduced visibility 
conditions, including precipitation, fog, darkness, excessive dust, and road debris. 

The system must (1) archive the data with time and date stamps and (2) aggregate the data in operator-
definable time increments, accessible 24–7 to the Engineer in a comma-separated values file. 

12-3.35B(6)  User Interface 
The system must have a user interface to control the AWIS PCMS communications. The interface must 
be (1) software compatible with a Windows environment or (2) a web service accessed by a web browser. 

Provide any software on a CD or other Engineer-authorized data-storage device for installation at the 
Department's Transportation Management Center. 

The user interface must, at a minimum, provide the user with a list of AWIS PCMSs in the field, location 
information for each AWIS PCMS, and a real-time on-board display of the message in the field. Control 
options must, at a minimum, provide the user the ability to change the on-board messages and flash rate. 

12-3.35C  Construction 
Obtain authorization for the message content and the threshold used for triggering the message before 
displaying any message on a PCMS. 

Provide complete setup and support for the AWIS PCMS communications. 

12-3.35D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.36  PORTABLE TRANSVERSE RUMBLE STRIPS 
Reserved 

12-3.37  PORTABLE RADAR SPEED FEEDBACK SIGN SYSTEMS 
12-3.37A  General 
Section 12-3.37 includes specifications for placing, maintaining, and removing portable radar speed 
feedback sign systems. 

12-3.37B  Materials 
A portable radar speed feedback sign system consists of a radar speed feedback sign system and a 
power source. 

The system must comply with section 87-14, except: 

1. System must be mounted on a trailer 
2. LED character display must remain blank when no vehicles are detected or when the detected 

vehicle speed is 10 miles less than the pre-set speed 
 
12-3.37C  Construction 
Place the portable radar speed feedback sign: 

1. As far from the traveled way as practicable where it is visible and legible to approaching traffic. Where 
practicable, place the sign behind a barrier or guardrail. 

2. At or before the crest of roadway vertical curvatures that restrict sight distance. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 38 of 200 

 
3. At or before the curve of horizontal roadway curvatures that restrict sight distance. 
 
12-3.37D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-3.38  AUTOMATED FLAGGER ASSISTANCE DEVICES 
12-3.38A  General 
12-3.38A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-3.38 includes specifications for placing, maintaining, and removing automated flagger 
assistance devices (AFADs). 

12-3.38A(2)  Definitions 
automated flagger assistance devices: Devices that enable a flagger to be positioned out of the lane of 

traffic and are used to control motorists through work zones. They are designed to be remotely 
operated either by a single flagger at one end of the work zone or at a central location, or by separate 
flaggers near the devices. 

12-3.38A(3)  Submittals 
Submit a copy of the manufacturer's operating instructions for the automated flagger assistance devices. 

12-3.38A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-3.38B  Materials 
04-17-20 

The automated flagger assistance device must comply with the California MUTCD, Section 6E.04, and 
Section 6E.06, "Red/Yellow Lens Automated Flagger Assistance Devices." 

10-18-19 
The device must: 

1. Be equipped with a gate arm, which must not extend into the opposing lane 
2. Alternately display a steadily illuminated circular red lens and a flashing circular yellow lens to control 

traffic 
3. Have a fail-safe device that prevents the operator from inadvertently actuating a simultaneous 

flashing circular yellow lens at both ends of the work zone 
4. Have a device that monitors for malfunctions and prevents the display of conflicting indication 
5. Have a 24-by-30-inch R10-6 STOP HERE ON RED sign mounted on the trailer 
 
The device must continuously monitor the wireless communication links and verify transmission and 
reception of data between the devices. If communication is lost, the devices must immediately display the 
circular red/stop indication and lower the gate arms. 

12-3.38C  Construction 
The devices must: 

1. Be placed where a flagger station is shown with an unobstructed view from the operator 
2. Be placed outside of the traveled lane 
3. Be attended by the operator when in use 
4. Have a minimum of 9 cones placed on a taper in advance of the device and along the edge of 

shoulder or edge of the traveled way at 25-foot intervals to a point not less than 25 feet past the 
device 

5. Be clearly visible to approaching traffic and illuminated during the hours of darkness 
 
If any device unit becomes inoperative, do one of the following: 

1. Replace the unit with the same type and model. 
2. Revert to human flagging operations. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 39 of 200 

 
3. Terminate all construction activities requiring the use of the devices. 
 
Incorporate the devices into the traffic control using one of the following methods: 

1. Method 1: Place one device at each end of the closure. 
2. Method 2: Place one device at one end of the closure and a flagger at the opposite end of the 

closure. 
 

Use two operators for both methods, except you may use a single operator if: 

1. Operator has an unobstructed view of the devices 
2. Operator has an unobstructed view of approaching traffic in both directions 
3. Second flagger is on-site to assist with manual flagging should the device malfunction, or to direct 

traffic when drivers fail to comply with the devices 
 
When AFADs are in operation: 

1. Use portable transverse rumble strips at your discretion 
2. Do not use the 48-inch-by-48-inch C9A (CA) sign 
3. Do not use the gate cones 
 
12-3.38D  Payment 
If automated flagger assistance devices bid item is not shown on the Bid Item List, providing AFADS is 
change order work. 

12-3.39–12-3.40  RESERVED 
12-4  MAINTAINING TRAFFIC 

12-4.01  GENERAL 
12-4.01A  General 
Section 12-4.01 includes general specifications for maintaining traffic through construction work zones. 

If local authorities regulate traffic, notify them at least 5 business days before the start of job site activities. 
Cooperate with the local authorities to handle traffic through the work zone and to make arrangements to 
keep the work zone clear of parked vehicles. 

12-4.01B  Materials 
Not Used 

12-4.01C  Construction 
Not Used 

12-4.01D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-4.02  TRAFFIC CONTROL SYSTEMS 
12-4.02A  General 
12-4.02A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-4.02 includes specifications for providing a traffic control system to close traffic lanes, 
shoulders, ramps, and connectors. 

A traffic control system for a closure includes flagging and the temporary traffic control devices described 
as part of the traffic control system. Temporary traffic control devices must comply with section 12-3. 

12-4.02A(2)  Definitions 
Construction Zone Enhanced Enforcement Program (COZEEP): Program that provides California 

Highway Patrol officers to monitor the movement of traffic within the work zone. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 40 of 200 

 
designated holidays: Designated holidays are shown in the following table: 

Designated Holidays 
Holiday Date observed 

New Year's Day January 1st 
Washington's Birthday 3rd Monday in February 
Memorial Day Last Monday in May 
Independence Day July 4th 
Labor Day 1st Monday in September 
Veterans Day November 11th 
Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November 
Christmas Day December 25th 

 

If a designated holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday is a designated holiday. If November 11th 
falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday is a designated holiday. 

12-4.02A(3)  Submittals 
12-4.02A(3)(a)  General 
Submit a request for a minor deviation from the specified work hours. For a project in District 7, submit the 
request at least 15 days before the proposed closure date. Your request may be authorized if (1) the 
Department does not accrue a significant cost increase and (2) the work can be expedited and better 
serve the traffic. 

If a closure is not opened to traffic by the specified time, submit a work plan that ensures that future 
closures will be opened to traffic by the specified time. Allow 2 business days for review. 

Submit closure schedule requests and closure schedule amendments using LCS to show the locations 
and times of the requested closures. 

Submit a traffic break request using LCS to show the location and time of the requested traffic break. 

12-4.02A(3)(b)  Closure Schedules 
Every Monday by noon, submit a closure schedule request for planned closures for the next week. 

Except for a project in District 7, the next week is defined as Sunday at noon through the following 
Sunday at noon. 

For a project in District 7, the next week is defined as Friday at noon through the following Friday at noon. 

Submit a closure schedule request from 25 days to 125 days before the anticipated start of any job site 
activity that reduces: 

1. Horizontal clearances of traveled ways, including shoulders, to 2 lanes or fewer due to activities such 
as temporary barrier placement and paving 

2. Vertical clearances of traveled ways, including shoulders, due to activities such as pavement 
overlays, overhead sign installation, or falsework girder erection 

 
Submit closure schedule changes, including additional closures, by noon at least 3 business days before 
a planned closure. 

Cancel closure requests using LCS at least 48 hours before the start time of the closure. 

The Department notifies you through LCS of authorized and unauthorized closures and closures that 
require coordination with other parties as a condition for authorization. 

12-4.02A(3)(c)  Contingency Plans for Closures 
Submit a contingency plan for an activity that could affect a closure if a contingency plan is specified in 
the special provisions or if a contingency plan is requested. 

If a contingency plan is requested, submit the contingency plan within 1 business day of the request. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 41 of 200 

 
The contingency plan must identify the activities, equipment, processes, and materials that may cause a 
delay in the opening of a closure to traffic. The plan must include: 

1. List of additional or alternate equipment, materials, or workers necessary to ensure continuing 
activities and on-time opening of closures if a problem occurs. If the additional or alternate equipment, 
materials, or workers are not on the job site, specify their location, the method for mobilizing these 
items, and the required time to complete mobilization. 

2. General time-scaled logic diagram displaying the major activities and sequence of the planned 
activities. For each activity, identify the critical event that will activate the contingency plan. 

 
Submit revisions to a contingency plan at least 3 business days before starting the activity requiring the 
contingency plan. Allow 2 business days for review. 

12-4.02A(3)(d)  Traffic Break Schedule 
Every Monday by noon, submit a traffic break request for the next week. Support for a traffic break is 
based on local California Highway Patrol staffing levels and may not be available for the date or time 
requested. 

Traffic break requests are limited to the hours when a shoulder or lane closure is allowed. 

Cancel a traffic break request using LCS at least 48 hours before the start time of the traffic break. 

The Department notifies you through LCS of authorized and unauthorized traffic breaks. 

The Department does not adjust time or payment if (1) a California Highway Patrol officer is unavailable 
for the requested date or time or (2) your request is not authorized. 

12-4.02A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

12-4.02B  Materials 
Not Used 

12-4.02C  Construction 
12-4.02C(1)  General 
Work that interferes with traffic is limited to the hours when closures are allowed. 

Do not reduce an open traffic lane width to less than 10 feet. If traffic cones or delineators are used for 
temporary edge delineation, the side of the base of the cones or delineators nearest to traffic is 
considered the edge of the traveled way. 

Do not simultaneously close consecutive ramps in the same direction of travel servicing 2 consecutive 
local streets unless authorized. 

Notify the Engineer of delays in your activities caused by the denial of either (1) an authorized closure or 
(2) a closure schedule request for the specified time frame allowed for closures. 

Discuss the contingency plan for any activity that could affect the closure schedule with the Engineer at 
least 5 business days before starting the activity requiring the plan. 

If you do not open a closure to traffic by the specified time, suspend work and submit a work plan. No 
further closures are allowed until your work plan has been authorized. 

If the Engineer orders you to remove a closure before the time designated in the authorized closure 
schedule, any delay caused by this order is an excusable delay. 

The Engineer may reschedule a closure that was canceled due to unsuitable weather. 

You may use automated flagger assistance devices to enhance the traffic control system for a lane 
closure on a two-lane convention highway, except if a bid item for automated flagger assistance devices 
is shown in the Bid Item List, the use of AFADs is required. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 42 of 200 

 
Do not use automated flagger assistance devices: 

1. On multi-lane highways 
2. As a substitute or a replacement for a temporary traffic control signal 
3. If the devices impair access for pedestrians and bicycles, unless alternate access is provided 
4. If the usable shoulder area is not wide enough to place a trailer mounted device 
5. If the distance between the devices is more than 800 feet, except when each device is controlled by a 

separate operator and radio communication is available between the AFAD operators 
 
12-4.02C(2)  Lane Closure System 
12-4.02C(2)(a)  General 
The Department provides LCS training. Request the LCS training at least 30 days before submitting the 
1st closure request. The Department provides the training within 15 days after your request. 

LCS training is web-based or held at a time and location agreed upon by you and the Engineer. For web-
based training, the Engineer provides you the website address to access the training. 

Within 5 business days after completion of the training, the Department provides LCS accounts and user 
IDs to your assigned, trained representatives. 

Each representative must maintain a unique password and current user information in the LCS. 

The project is not accessible in LCS after Contract acceptance. 

12-4.02C(2)(b)  Status Updates for Authorized Closures 
Update the status of authorized closures using the LCS Mobile web page. 

For a stationary closure on a traffic lane, use code: 

1. 10-97 immediately before you place the 1st cone on the traffic lane 
2. 10-98 immediately after you remove all of the cones from the traffic lane 
 
For a stationary closure on the shoulder, use code: 

1. 10-97 immediately before you place the 1st cone after the last advance warning sign 
2. 10-98 immediately after you remove the last cone before the advance warning signs 
 
For a moving closure, use code: 

1. 10-97 immediately before the actual start time of the closure 
2. 10-98 immediately after the actual end time of the closure 
 
For closures not needed on the authorized date, use code 10-22 within 2 hours after the authorized start 
time. 

If you are unable to access the LCS Mobile web page, immediately notify the Engineer of the closure's 
status. 

12-4.02C(3)  Closure Requirements and Charts 
12-4.02C(3)(a)  General 
Where 2 or more lanes in the same direction, including the shoulders, are adjacent to the area where the 
work is being performed, close the adjacent lane under any of the following conditions: 

1. Work is off the traveled way but within 6 feet of the edge of the traveled way, and the approach speed 
is greater than 45 mph. 

2. Work is off the traveled way but within 3 feet of the edge of the traveled way, and the approach speed 
is less than 45 mph. 

 
Closure of the adjacent traffic lane is not required during any of the following activities: 

1. Work behind a barrier 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 43 of 200 

 
2. Paving, grinding, or grooving 
3. Installation, maintenance, or removal of traffic control devices except for temporary railing 
 
12-4.02C(3)(b)  Complete Freeway or Expressway Closure Requirements 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(c)  HOV, Express, and Bus Lane Closure Requirements 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(d)  City Street Closure Requirements 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(e)  Closure Restrictions for Special Events and Venues 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(f)  Closure Restrictions for Designated Holidays and Special Days 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(g)  Freeway or Expressway Lane Requirement Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(h)  Complete Freeway or Expressway Closure Hour Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(i)  Complete Connector Closure Hour Charts and Connector Lane Requirement Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(j)  Complete Ramp Closure Hour Charts and Ramp Lane Requirement Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(k)  Conventional Highway Lane Requirement Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(l)  Complete Conventional Highway Closure Hour Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(m)  City Street Closure Hour Charts and City Street Lane Requirement Charts 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(n)  Concrete Slab and Approach Slab Replacement Closure Hours Table 
Reserved 

12-4.02C(3)(o)–12-4.02C(3)(s)  Reserved 
12-4.02C(4)–12.4.02C(6)  Reserved 
12-4.02C(7)  Traffic Control System Requirements 
12-4.02C(7)(a)  General 
Control traffic using stationary closures. 

If components of the traffic control system are displaced or cease to operate or function as specified, 
immediately repair them to their original condition or replace them and place them back in their original 
locations. 

Vehicles equipped with attenuators must comply with section 12-3.23. 

Each vehicle used to place, maintain, and remove components of a traffic control system on a multilane 
highway must have a Type II flashing arrow sign that must operate whenever the vehicle is used for 
placing, maintaining, or removing the components. For a stationary closure, vehicles with a Type II 
flashing arrow sign not involved in placing, maintaining, or removing the components must display only 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 44 of 200 

 
the caution display mode. If a flashing arrow sign is required for a closure, activate the sign before the 
closure is in place. 

12-4.02C(7)(b)  Stationary Closures 
Except for channelizing devices placed along open trenches or excavations adjacent to the traveled way, 
remove the components of the traffic control system for a stationary closure from the traveled way and 
shoulders at the end of each work period. You may store the components at authorized locations within 
the limits of the highway. 

If a traffic lane is closed with channelizing devices for excavation work, move the devices to the adjacent 
edge of the traveled way when not excavating. Space the devices as shown for the lane closure. 

12-4.02C(7)(c)  Moving Closures 
For a moving closure, use a PCMS that complies with section 12-3.32 except the sign must be truck 
mounted. The full operational height to the bottom of the sign may be less than 7 feet above the ground 
but must be as high as practicable. 

If you use a flashing arrow sign in a moving closure, the sign must be truck mounted. Operate the flashing 
arrow sign in the caution display mode if it is being used on a 2-lane, two-way highway. 

12-4.02C(7)(d)  Traffic Breaks 
You may request a traffic break for special operations such as: 

1. Installation, removal, or replacement of an overhead power line or other utility cable across the 
highway 

2. Installation or removal of traffic control devices in areas without a standard-width shoulder 
3. Transportation of large equipment across the highway 
4. Access to median areas for workers or equipment 
 
If the Department authorizes the traffic break, the Engineer notifies you and arranges the traffic break with 
the California Highway Patrol through COZEEP. The duration of a traffic break must not exceed 5 
minutes or as authorized. 

Two California Highway Patrol officers per vehicle are required for traffic breaks occurring any time from 
2200 to 0600 hours. 

A minimum of 2 California Highway Patrol vehicles will be assigned to conduct a traffic break. 

Place a PCMS approximately 2,000 feet upstream of the work area or as agreed upon by the Engineer. 
The PCMS must comply with section 12-3.32 except the PCMS must not be trailer mounted. Monitor the 
traffic during the traffic break. If a queue develops, reposition the PCMS truck far enough upstream of the 
traffic break to provide real-time notification to motorists before they approach the traffic queue. 

12-4.02C(8)  Traffic Control System Signs 
12-4.02C(8)(a)  General 
Traffic control system signs must comply with section 12-3.11. 

12-4.02C(8)(b)  Connector and Ramp Closure Signs 
Inform motorists of a temporary closing of a (1) connector or a (2) freeway or expressway entrance or exit 
ramp using: 

1. SC6-3(CA) (Ramp Closed) sign for closures of 1 day or less 
2. SC6-4(CA) (Ramp Closed) sign for closures of more than 1 day 
 
SC6-3(CA) and SC6-4(CA) signs must be stationary mounted at the locations shown and must remain in 
place and visible to motorists during the connector or ramp closure. 

Notify the Engineer at least 2 business days before installing the sign and install the sign from 7 to 15 
days before the closure. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 45 of 200 

 
12-4.02C(9)  Flagging 
12-4.02C(9)(a)  General 
12-4.02C(9)(a)(i)  Summary 
Section 12-4.02C(9) includes specifications for flaggers, AFAD operators, additional flaggers, advance 
flaggers and flagger stations. 

12-4.02C(9)(a)(ii)  Definitions 
04-17-20 

AFAD operator: Flagger certified by the manufacturer to operate the specific automated flagger 
assistance device. 

10-18-19 
additional flagger: Flagger that controls the flow of traffic at intermediate locations within the limits of a 

closure with reversible control, at intersections, driveways and other traffic merging points. 

advance flagger: Flagger positioned upstream of the traffic control system, who warns approaching 
traffic of road work ahead and potentially stopped traffic within the advance warning signs. 

04-17-20 
incidental flagger: Flagger that performs flagging that is not part of a traffic control system. 

12-4.02C(9)(a)(iii)  Submittals 
Submit as informational submittals: 

1. Flagger certification for each flagger including AFAD operators. The submittal must include: 
1.1. Name of the individual receiving certification. 
1.2. Name of entity providing certification. 
1.3. Date of certification. 
1.4. Certification expiration date. 

2. AFAD manufacturer certification for each AFAD operator. The submittal must include: 
2.1. Name of the manufacturer's authorized trainer. 
2.2. Name of the trainee. 
2.3. Description of device type and model for which training was provided. 
2.4. Date when the training was provided. 

3. Training qualifications for each incidental flagger. 
 
12-4.02C(9)(a)(iv)  Quality Assurance 
Flaggers must be at least 18 years of age and maintain a valid government issued identification and must 
possess proof of certification during flagging operations. 

Effective July 1, 2020, flaggers that are part of a traffic control system must be certified by an authorized 
flagger training provider. The authorized flagger training provider list is available at the Department's 
Division of Construction website. 

In addition, AFAD operators must be certified by the AFAD manufacturer on: 

1. Device type and model to be used on the project 
2. Installation procedures 
3. Local and remote-controlled operation 
4. Maintenance of the device 
 
Incidental flaggers must be trained under 8 CA Code of Regs § 1599. 

10-18-19 
12-4.02C(9)(b)  Materials 
Not Used 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 46 of 200 

 
12-4.02C(9)(c)  Construction 
12-4.02C(9)(c)(i)  General 
Not Used 

12-4.02C(9)(c)(ii)  Flaggers 
12-4.02C(9)(c)(ii)(A)  General 
Flaggers should stand in a conspicuous place and be visible to approaching vehicles. 

04-17-20 
Flaggers must wear a hard hat, safety glasses, and Class 3, high-visibility, safety apparel under 
ANSI/SEA 107-2004. 

Flaggers must be equipped with a 24-by-24-inch "STOP/SLOW" paddle with a rigid staff tall enough to 
maintain the bottom of the paddle a minimum of 6 feet above the pavement. 

10-18-19 
12-4.02C(9)(c)(ii)(B)  Automated Flagger Assistance Device Operators 
When AFADs are in operation, the AFAD operators must: 

1. Be positioned away from the traveled way 
2. Be positioned where they have an unobstructed line of sight to approaching vehicles and to the 

devices 
3. Keep a backup hand held AFAD remote control readily available 
 
A pilot car driver must not operate a device and must not be considered as one of the flaggers present 
on-site available to operate a device. 

12-4.02C(9)(c)(ii)(C)  Additional Flaggers 
Provide additional flaggers at any of the following locations: 

1. At high-volume intersections and driveways between the two flagger stations as shown 
2. At Multi-lane and circular intersections 
 
Additional flaggers use the STOP/SLOW sign paddle to control vehicles merging into the closure with 
reversible control. 

If additional flaggers are not shown, providing additional flaggers is change order work. 

12-4.02C(9)(c)(ii)(D)  Advance Flaggers 
Provide advance flaggers when any of the following conditions exist: 

1. Queued traffic reaches the W20-4 (One Lane Road Ahead) sign. 
2. When the horizontal roadway curvature restricts the sight distance of approaching traffic. 
3. When the vertical roadway curvature restricts the sight distance of approaching traffic. 
 
Advance flaggers use the SLOW sign paddle to warn approaching vehicles of the flagging operation 
ahead and signals the drivers to slow down. If the STOP/SLOW paddle is used, the STOP side must be 
covered. 

If advance flaggers are not shown, providing advance flaggers is change order work. 

12-4.02C(9)(c)(iii)  Flagger Stations 
Place flagger stations such that approaching vehicles have sufficient distance to react and follow the 
flagger's instructions. 

Place a minimum of four cones at 50 feet intervals in advance of flagger stations. 

During the hours of darkness, illuminate flagger stations under 8 CA Regs § 1523. Do not start flagging 
until flagger stations are illuminated. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 47 of 200 

 
Place advance warning signs W20-1, C9A(CA), and W3-4 upstream of the additional flagger station at 
intersections as shown. 

Place advance warning signs W20-1, C9A(CA), and W3-4 upstream of the advance flagger station. 

You may use a PCMS in place of an advance flagger. The PCMS must alternately display the messages 
"Prepare to Stop" and "Flagger Ahead". If the PCMS must be placed outside the project limits before the 
W20-1 construction area sign, place a portable W20-1 sign 500 feet in advance of the PCMS. 

12-4.02C(9)(d)  Payment 
Not Used 

12-4.02C(10)–12-4.02C(12)  Reserved 
12-4.02D  Payment 
The Department pays for change order work for a traffic control system by force account for increased 
traffic control and uses a force account analysis for decreased traffic control. 

The Department does not pay for furnishing, placing, relocating, and removing PCMSs used for a traffic 
break. 

The Department deducts the full cost of COZEEP support provided for the traffic break. 

The hourly rate for each California Highway Patrol officer providing COZEEP support is $115. This rate 
includes full compensation for each hour or portion thereof that the officer provides the support. Markups 
are not added to any expenses associated with COZEEP support. 

The minimum number of hours for an officer is 4 hours, except if a closure is already in place and the 
Engineer authorizes your request for an on-duty officer to conduct a traffic break, the minimum number of 
hours for an officer is 1 hour. 

For a cancellation less than 48 hours before the scheduled start time of COZEEP support, except for a 
cancellation due to adverse weather or extenuating circumstances, the Department deducts: 

1. Minimum of $50 per California Highway Patrol officer if the officer is notified before the start time 
2. Maximum of 4 hours of pay per officer if the officer is not notified before the start time 
 
12-4.03  FALSEWORK OPENINGS 

04-17-20 
12-4.03A  General 
Section 12-4.03 includes specifications for providing falsework openings. 

12-4.03B  Materials 
Not Used 

12-4.03C  Construction 
12-4.03C(1)  General 
Reserved 

12-4.03C(2)  Temporary Railing 
Install Type K temporary railing on both sides of vehicular openings through falsework. If ordered, install 
temporary railing at other falsework less than 12 feet from the edge of a traffic lane. This is change order 
work. 

Temporary railings for vehicular openings must start 150 feet in advance of the falsework and extend past 
the falsework in the direction of adjacent traffic flow. For 2-way traffic openings, temporary railing must 
extend at least 60 feet past the falsework in the direction of adjacent traffic flow. 

Install temporary crash cushion modules as shown at the approach end of temporary railings located less 
than 15 feet from the edge of a traffic lane. For 2-way traffic openings install temporary crash cushion 
modules at the departing end of temporary railings located less than 6 feet from the edge of a traffic lane. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 48 of 200 

 
The Engineer determines the exact location and length of railing and the type of flare to be used. 

Install temporary railing for protecting the falsework before erecting it. Do not remove temporary railing 
until authorized. 

12-4.03D  Payment 
Not Used 

10-18-19 
12-4.04  TEMPORARY PEDESTRIAN ACCESS ROUTES 
12-4.04A  General 
12-4.04A(1)  Summary 
Section 12-4.04 includes specifications for providing, maintaining, and removing temporary pedestrian 
access routes. 

A temporary pedestrian access route includes temporary traffic control devices as shown except for Type 
K temporary railing and temporary crash cushions. 

12-4.04A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

12-4.04A(3)  Submittals 
If work activities require the closure of a pedestrian route and a temporary pedestrian access route is not 
shown, submit a work plan for a temporary pedestrian access route. The work plan must: 

1. Describe the activities, processes, equipment, and materials that will be used to provide the 
temporary access route 

2. Show the locations of the routes and the placement of traffic control devices for each stage of work 
3. Include a time-scaled logic diagram displaying the sequence and duration of the planned activities for 

each stage of work 
4. Be sealed and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State 
 
Submit "Temporary Pedestrian Access Route Contractor Compliance Report," within 2 business days 
after construction of a temporary pedestrian access route. 

Submit "Temporary Pedestrian Access Route Contractor Weekly Report," within 2 business days of 
completing a weekly inspection. 

12-4.04A(4)  Quality Assurance 
12-4.04A(4)(a)  General 
Reserved 

12-4.04A(4)(b)  Quality Control 
Perform a review of the temporary pedestrian access route after it is constructed and document 
compliance on the "Temporary Pedestrian Access Route Contractor Compliance Report." 

The Department will conduct a verification inspection after receiving the compliance report. 

For a temporary pedestrian access route in use perform a weekly review and document compliance on 
the "Temporary Pedestrian Access Route Contractor Weekly Report." 

12-4.04B  Materials 
The walkway surface must be slip resistant and surfaced with minor HMA or commercial-quality, 
bituminous material, commercial-quality concrete, or wood. 

A handrail with a circular cross section must have an outer diameter from 1-1/4 to 2 inches. A handrail 
with a noncircular cross section must have a perimeter from 4 to 6-1/4 inches and a maximum cross-
section dimension of 2-1/4 inches. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 49 of 200 

 
Fasteners must be rounded to prevent injury to a pedestrian's fingers, hands, and arms and to eliminate 
sharp edges that could catch on clothing. 

A detectable warning surface must be on the Authorized Material List for detectable warning surfaces and 
match yellow color no. 33538 of AMS.Std.595. 

Temporary traffic control devices used to channelize pedestrians must: 

1. Be free of sharp or rough edges 
2. Have a continuous detectable edging at least 6 inches high and at no more than 2 inches above the 

walkway surface 
3. Be at least 32 inches in height 
4. Have smooth connection points between devices to allow for a handrail 
5. Have a top and bottom surface in the same vertical plane 
 
12-4.04C  Construction 
Notify the Engineer 5 business days before closing an existing pedestrian route. Do not close the route 
until authorized. 

If work activities require the closure of a pedestrian route and a temporary pedestrian access route is not 
shown, provide a temporary pedestrian access route near the traveled way. You may route pedestrians 
using the existing sidewalk or by constructing a temporary access route. 

If a bid item for a temporary pedestrian access route is not shown on the Bid Item List, then constructing 
a temporary pedestrian access route is change order work, except when the closure is a result of your 
means and methods. 

Construct a temporary pedestrian access route such that: 

1. Walkway surface is firm and stable and free of irregularities 
2. Cross slope of the pedestrian route is at most 50:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
3. Longitudinal slope of the pedestrian route is at most 20:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
4. Walkway, landings, blended transitions, and curb ramps are at least 60 inches wide except where not 

feasible, the width must be at least 48 inches wide with a 60-by-60-inch passing space at least every 
200 feet 

5. Lateral joints or gaps between surfaces are less than 1/2 inch wide 
6. Discontinuities in surface heights are less than 1/2 inch and beveled if greater than 1/4 inch with a 

slope no greater than 2:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
7. Ramps have: 

7.1. Longitudinal slope of at most 12:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
7.2. Rise less than 30 inches 
7.3. Protective edging at least 2 inches high on each side and handrails at a height from 34 to 38 

inches above the walkway surface if the rise is greater than 6 inches 
8. Curb ramps have: 

8.1. Longitudinal slope of at most 12:1 (horizontal:vertical) 
8.2. Protective edging at least 2 inches high on each side if the curb ramp does not have flares and 

the rise is greater than 6 inches 
9. Pedestrians are channelized when routed off existing pedestrian routes 
 
Construct handrails such that they are continuous, smooth and free of sharp or rough edges. 

Provide an overhead covering to protect pedestrians from falling objects and drippings from overhead 
structures. 

If the temporary access route is next to traffic or work activities, place a temporary barrier to separate the 
route from vehicles and equipment. 

Install a detectable warning surface at locations where a curb ramp, landing, or blended transition 
connects to a street. Install the warning surface such that it extends a minimum of 36 inches in the 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 50 of 200 

 
direction of travel and for the full width of the landing, blended transition, or curb ramp, excluding the 
flares. 

Maintain the temporary pedestrian access route clear of obstructions. Do not allow traffic control devices, 
equipment, or construction materials to protrude into the walkway. Maintain a continuous unobstructed 
path connecting all pedestrian routes, parking lots, and bus stops located within the project limits. 

Remove the temporary pedestrian access route when the Engineer determines it is no longer needed. 

Provide a temporary pedestrian access route through falsework under section 16-2.02. 

12-4.04D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-4.05  BRIDGE CLEANING AND PAINTING ACTIVITIES 
12-4.05A  General 
Section 12-4.05 includes specifications for maintaining traffic during bridge cleaning and painting 
activities. 

Signs must comply with section 12-3.11. 

12-4.05B  Materials 
Not Used 

12-4.05C  Construction 
For bridge cleaning and painting activities, place the signs as shown in the following table in addition to 
those shown on the plans: 

Sign no. Sign description Requirement 

W20-1 Road Work Ahead 

Place portable 30-by-30-inch signs at locations where traffic 
approaches a bridge with work underway. If the approach 
speed is greater than 50 mph, the sign must be 48 by 48 
inches. The sign panel base material must not be plywood. 
Attach 2 orange, 16 sq in flags to each sign. 

-- Cleaning and 
Painting Operations 

Place a 48-by-48-inch sign near each W20-1 sign. Use 4-inch-
high black lettering and include your name, address, and 
telephone number on an orange background. 

 

The Engineer determines the exact locations of the signs. Do not use signs until needed. Maintain the 
signs in place during bridge cleaning and painting activities. Remove the signs at the end of each work 
shift. 

After each day's bridge cleaning and painting activities, remove obstructions from the roadway to allow for 
free passage for traffic. Remove blast cleaning residue from the traveled way before opening the area to 
traffic. 

You may lay supply lines along the top of curbs adjacent to railing posts if the lines do not interfere with 
traffic. Remove the lines when work is not in progress. 

12-4.05D  Payment 
Not Used 

12-4.06  TOLL BRIDGES 
Reserved 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 51 of 200 

 
12-4.07–12-4.10  RESERVED 

12-5  RESERVED 
12-6  TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION 

12-6.01  GENERAL 
Section 12-6 includes specifications for placing temporary pavement delineation except for delineation on 
a seal coat project. 

Temporary painted traffic stripes and painted pavement markings used for temporary delineation must 
comply with section 84-2. 

Temporary signs for no-passing zones must comply with section 12-3.11. 

12-6.02  MATERIALS 
12-6.02A  General 
The following types of temporary pavement delineation must be on the Authorized Material List for signing 
and delineation materials: 

1. Temporary pavement markers for long term day/night use (180 days or less) 
2. Temporary pavement markers for short term day/night use (14 days or less) 
3. Temporary (removable) striping and pavement marking tape (180 days or less) 
4. Permanent traffic striping and pavement marking tape 
5. Channelizers 
 
12-6.02B  Temporary Pavement Markers 
Temporary pavement markers must be the same color as the lane line or centerline markers being 
replaced. 

Temporary pavement markers must be for long-term day or night use, 180 days or less, except you may 
use temporary pavement markers for short-term day or night use, 14 days or less, if you place the 
permanent pavement delineation before the end of the 14 days. 

12-6.02C  Channelizers 
Channelizers used for temporary edge line delineation must be orange and surface mounted. 

12-6.03  CONSTRUCTION 
12-6.03A  General 
If work activities obliterate pavement delineation, place temporary or permanent pavement delineation 
before opening the traveled way to traffic. The temporary pavement delineation must consist of a lane line 
and centerline pavement delineation for traveled ways open to traffic. On multilane roadways, freeways, 
expressways, and 2-lane roadways with shoulders 4 feet or more in width, the temporary pavement 
delineation must also include edge line delineation for traveled ways open to traffic. 

Establish the alignment for temporary pavement delineation, including the required lines or markers. 
Surfaces to receive an application of paint or removable traffic tape must be dry and free from dirt and 
loose material. Do not apply temporary pavement delineation over existing pavement delineation or any 
other temporary pavement delineation. Maintain temporary pavement delineation until no longer needed 
or replace it with a new striping detail of temporary or permanent pavement delineation. 

When the Engineer determines the temporary pavement delineation is no longer required for the direction 
of traffic, remove the temporary pavement delineation, including any underlying adhesive for temporary 
pavement markers, from the final layer of surfacing and from the pavement to remain in place. Remove 
temporary pavement delineation that conflicts with any subsequent or new traffic pattern for the area. 

12-6.03B  Temporary Lane Line and Centerline Delineation 
If lane lines or centerlines are obliterated and temporary pavement delineation to replace the lines is not 
shown, the minimum lane line and centerline delineation must consist of temporary pavement markers 
placed longitudinally at 24-foot maximum intervals. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 52 of 200 

 
For temporary lane line or centerline delineation consisting entirely of temporary pavement markers for 
short-term day or night use, 14 days or less, do not use the markers for more than 14 days on lanes 
opened to traffic. Place the permanent pavement delineation before the end of the 14 days. If the 
permanent pavement delineation is not placed within 14 days, replace the temporary pavement markers 
with additional temporary pavement delineation equivalent to the pattern described for the permanent 
pavement delineation for the area. 

If no-passing centerline pavement delineation is obliterated, install the following temporary no-passing 
zone signs before opening lanes to traffic: 

1. W20-1 (Road Work Ahead) sign from 1,000 to 2,000 feet in advance of the no-passing zone 
2. R4-1 (Do Not Pass) sign at the beginning of the no-passing zone and at 2,000-foot maximum 

intervals within the no-passing zone 
3. W7-3a (Next ___ Miles) plaque beneath the W20-1 sign for continuous zones longer than 2 miles 
4. R4-2 (Pass With Care) sign at the end of the no-passing zone 
 
The Engineer determines the exact location of temporary no-passing zone signs. Maintain the temporary 
no-passing zone signs in place until you place the permanent no-passing centerline pavement 
delineation. 

Remove the temporary no-passing zone signs when the Engineer determines they are no longer required 
for the direction of traffic. 

12-6.03C  Temporary Edge Line Delineation 
On multilane roadways, freeways, expressways, and 2-lane roadways with shoulders 4 feet or more in 
width open to traffic where edge lines are obliterated and temporary pavement delineation to replace 
those edge lines is not shown, provide temporary pavement delineation for: 

1. Right edge lines consisting of any of the following: 
1.1. Solid 6-inch-wide traffic stripe tape of the same color as the stripe being replaced. 
1.2. Traffic cones placed longitudinally at 100-foot maximum intervals. 
1.3. Portable delineators or channelizers placed longitudinally at 100-foot maximum intervals. 

2. Left edge lines consisting of any of the following: 
2.1. Solid 6-inch-wide traffic stripe tape of the same color as the stripe being replaced. 
2.2. Traffic cones placed longitudinally at 100-foot maximum intervals. 
2.3. Portable delineators or channelizers placed longitudinally at 100-foot maximum intervals. 
2.4. Temporary pavement markers placed longitudinally at 6-foot maximum intervals. 
 

You may apply temporary traffic stripe paint of the same color as the stripe being replaced instead of solid 
6-inch-wide temporary traffic stripe tape where the removal of the temporary traffic stripe is not required. 

The Engineer determines the lateral offset for traffic cones, portable delineators, and channelizers used 
for temporary edge line delineation. If traffic cones or portable delineators are used for temporary edge 
line delineation, maintain the cones or delineators during the hours of the day when they are in use. 

Cement the bases of channelizers used for temporary edge line delineation to the pavement with hot melt 
bituminous adhesive as specified in section 81-3 for cementing pavement markers to pavement. 

12-6.03D  Temporary Traffic Stripe, Pavement Marking, and Pavement Markers 
12-6.03D(1)  General 
Reserved 

12-6.03D(2)  Temporary Traffic Stripe Tape 
Except where the temporary traffic stripe is used for 14 days or less, apply temporary removable traffic 
stripe tape under the manufacturer's instructions and as follows: 

1. Slowly roll the tape with a rubber-tired vehicle or roller to ensure complete contact with the pavement 
surface. 

2. Apply the tape straight on a tangent alignment and on a true arc on a curved alignment. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 53 of 200 

 
3. Do not apply the tape when the ambient air or pavement temperature is less than 50 degrees F 

unless otherwise authorized. 
 
For temporary traffic stripe tape used for 14 days or less, apply the temporary removable traffic stripe 
tape under the manufacturer's instructions. 

12-6.03D(3)  Temporary Traffic Stripe Paint 
Apply temporary traffic stripe paint under section 84-2.03, except you may apply 1 or 2 coats of the 
temporary traffic stripe paint for new or existing pavement. 

You are not required to remove painted temporary traffic stripe that will be covered by paving work. 

12-6.03D(4)  Temporary Pavement Marking Tape 
Apply temporary removable pavement marking tape as specified for applying temporary removable traffic 
stripe tape in section 12-6.03D(2). 

12-6.03D(5)  Temporary Pavement Marking Paint 
Apply temporary pavement marking paint under section 84-2.03, except you may apply 1 or 2 coats of the 
temporary pavement marking paint. 

You are not required to remove of painted temporary pavement markings that will be covered by paving 
work. 

You may use permanent or temporary removable pavement marking tape instead of temporary pavement 
marking paint. 

12-6.03D(6)  Temporary Pavement Markers 
Place temporary pavement markers under the manufacturer's instructions. Cement temporary markers to 
the surfacing with the manufacturer's recommended adhesive except do not use epoxy adhesive in areas 
where the removal of the pavement markers is required. 

You may use retroreflective pavement markers instead of temporary pavement markers for long-term day 
or night use, 180 days or less, except to simulate patterns of broken traffic stripe. Retroreflective 
pavement markers used for temporary pavement markers must comply with section 81-3, except the 
waiting period before placing pavement markers on new asphalt concrete surfacing as specified in 
section 81-3.03 does not apply. Do not use epoxy adhesive to place pavement markers in areas where 
the removal of the pavement markers is required. 

12-6.04  PAYMENT 
The Department does not pay for additional temporary pavement delineation used to replace temporary 
pavement markers. 

Temporary traffic stripe is measured as specified for traffic stripe in section 84. 

Temporary pavement marking is measured as specified for pavement marking in section 84. 

12-7  TEMPORARY PAVEMENT DELINEATION FOR SEAL COATS 
12-7.01  GENERAL 
Section 12-7 includes specifications for placing temporary pavement delineation for a seal coat project. 

Temporary signs for no-passing zones must comply with section 12-3.11. 

12-7.02  MATERIALS 
Temporary raised pavement markers for seal coat applications must be temporary pavement markers for 
short-term day or night use, 14 days or less, on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation 
materials. 

12-7.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Before applying binder that will obliterate existing traffic stripes, place temporary raised pavement 
markers on the existing traffic stripes except for right edge lines at 24-foot maximum intervals. Place 2 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 54 of 200 

 
markers side by side on double traffic stripes with 1 marker placed on each stripe longitudinally at 24-foot 
maximum intervals. Place temporary raised pavement markers under the manufacturer's instructions. 
Before opening the lanes to uncontrolled traffic, remove the covers from the temporary raised pavement 
markers. 

If you obliterate no-passing centerline pavement delineation, install the following temporary no-passing 
zone signs before opening lanes to traffic: 

1. W20-1 (Road Work Ahead) sign from 1,000 to 2,000 feet in advance of the no-passing zone 
2. R4-1 (Do Not Pass) sign at the beginning of the no-passing zone and at 2,000-foot maximum 

intervals within the no-passing zone 
3. W7-3a (Next ___ Miles) plaque beneath the W20-1 sign for continuous zones longer than 2 miles 
4. R4-2 (Pass With Care) sign at the end of the no-passing zone 
 
The Engineer determines the exact location of the temporary no-passing zone signs. Maintain the 
temporary no-passing zone signs in place until you place the permanent no-passing centerline pavement 
delineation. Remove the temporary no-passing zone signs when the Engineer determines they are no 
longer required for the direction of traffic. 

Maintain temporary pavement delineation until you replace it with the permanent pavement delineation. 

12-7.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

12-8-12-10  RESERVED 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

13  WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
04-17-20 

Add to the end of section 13-1.01C(1): 
04-17-20 

Submittals for additional or new WPC practices to manage run-on, run-off, and stormwater conveyance 
must: 

1. Describe the activities, processes, equipment, and materials that will be used to manage the run-on, 
run-off, and stormwater conveyance through the job site 

2. Show the locations of the management practices 
3. Include a time-scaled logic diagram displaying the sequence and duration of the management 

practices for each stage of work 
4. Be sealed and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State 
 
 

Add after the 2nd paragraph of section 13-1.01C(5): 
04-19-19 

For partial listing of disposal facilities and their waste acceptance list, go to SWRCB website. 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 13-1.01D(3) with: 
04-17-20 

Training for assistant WPC managers who inspect, repair, and maintain WPC practices, collect water 
quality samples, and record water quality data must include: 

1. Review of the sampling and analysis plan and the Construction Site Monitoring Program Guidance 
Manual 

2. Health and safety review 
3. Sampling simulations 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 55 of 200 

 
 
The training for assistant WPC managers must comply with the requirements described under "WPC 
Manager Training," and includes: 

1. Obtaining a certificate by completing the 8-hour WPC manager training 
2. Reviewing updates, revisions, and amendments to the training 
 
For training requirements, go to the Construction Storm Water and Water Pollution Control website. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 13-1.01D(4)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Assign a WPC manager to implement the WPCP or SWPPP. Assign an alternate WPC manager to 
perform the responsibilities of the WPC manager in the manager's absence. The alternate WPC manager 
must have the same qualifications as the WPC manager. You may assign an assistant WPC manager to 
act under the supervision of the WPC manager to inspect, repair, and maintain WPC practices, collect 
water quality samples, and record water quality data. You may have more than one assistant WPC 
manager. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 13-1.01D(4)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

The WPC manager must: 

1. Comply with the requirements provided in the Construction General Permit for QSP 
2. Comply with the requirements described under "WPC Manager Training," including: 

2.1. Obtaining a certificate by completing the 8-hour training 
2.2 Reviewing updates, revisions, and amendments to the training 
 

For the requirements, go to the Construction Storm Water and Water Pollution Control website. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete item 2.6.3 in the list of section 13-1.01D(4)(c). 

 

Replace item 7 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 13-1.01D(4)(c) with: 
04-17-20 

7. Revise the WPCP or recommend changes to the SWPPP 
 
 

Replace the 3rd sentence in the 4th paragraph of section 13-1.03A with: 
04-17-20 

Additional WPC work is change order work except when the additional WPC practices are a result of your 
means and methods. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 13-2.01C with: 
04-19-19 

Within 7 days after Contract approval, submit one printed copy and an electronic copy on a read-only CD, 
DVD, or other authorized data-storage device of your WPCP unless different quantities are ordered at the 
preconstruction conference. You may assign a QSP other than the WPC manager to develop the WPCP. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 56 of 200 

 
Replace item 4 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 13-2.01C with: 

04-19-19 
4. Show the locations and types of temporary WPC practices that will be used in the work for whichever 

has the longest duration in the first: 
4.1. 60 days 
4.2. Construction phase 
 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 13-2.01C with: 
04-19-19 

After the Engineer authorizes the WPCP, submit one printed copy and an electronic copy on a read-only 
CD, DVD, or other Engineer-authorized data-storage device of the authorized WPCP. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete the row for Annual Certification in the table in section 13-3.01C(1). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 13-3.01C(2)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Within 15 days of Contract approval, submit 1 printed copy and an electronic copy on a read-only CD, 
DVD, or other authorized data-storage device of your SWPPP unless different quantities are ordered at 
the preconstruction conference. 

You must assign a QSD to develop and revise the SWPPP. 

 

Replace item 4 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 13-3.01C(2)(a) with: 
04-19-19 

4. Include a schedule showing when: 
4.1. Work activities that could cause the discharge of pollutants into stormwater will be performed 
4.2. WPC practices, including soil stabilization and sediment control, that will be used in the work 

for whichever has the longest duration in the first: 
4.2.1. 60 days 
4.2.2. Construction phase 
 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 13-3.01C(2)(a) with: 
04-19-19 

Submit an electronic copy on a read-only CD, DVD, or other Engineer-authorized data-storage device 
and 4 printed copies of the authorized SWPPP unless fewer quantities are authorized at the 
preconstruction conference. 

 

Replace the introductory clause in the 7th paragraph of section 13-3.01C(2)(a) with: 
04-19-19 

Submit a revised SWPPP annually before September 15th and any time: 

 

Add after the 7th paragraph of section 13-3.01C(2)(a): 
04-19-19 

Revise the SWPPP through amendment. The annual SWPPP amendment must include an annual 
winterization plan. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 57 of 200 

 
The annual winterization plan must describe the preparation for the upcoming rainy season including: 

1. Updated schedule 
2. Materials and labor 
3. Management of stormwater through the job site including: 

3.1. Run-on 
3.2. Run-off 
3.3. Conveyance downslope 

4. Management of areas within the job site including: 
4.1. Areas where work is suspended 
4.2. Areas of soil stabilization 
4.3. New disturbed soil areas 

5. Changes to monitoring locations 
6. Slope stabilization 
 
 

04-19-19 
Delete section 13-3.01C(5). 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

14  ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP 
04-17-20 

Add between the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 14-10.01: 
04-19-19 

If ordered, remove solid waste from illegal dumping on the project site. This work is change order work. 
Illegal dumping is: 

1. Third party nonhazardous residential or commercial waste 
2. Greater than 1.0 cubic yard per event 
 
 

Replace section 14-11.05A with: 
10-18-19 

14-11.05A  General 
Do not stockpile material containing hazardous waste or contamination unless authorized in your 
excavation and transportation plan. Stockpiles containing hazardous waste or contamination must not be 
placed where affected by surface run-on or run-off. Cover stockpiles with a minimum 12-mils-thick plastic 
sheeting. Do not place stockpiles in ESAs. Stockpiled material must not enter storm drains, inlets, or 
waters of the State. 

 

Add to the beginning of section 14-11.14D: 
04-19-19 

Store treated wood waste at the jobsite until transport to the CA permitted disposal site. 

 

Add to the beginning of section 14-11.14E: 
04-19-19 

Transport treated wood waste directly to the CA permitted disposal site after leaving the jobsite. Do not 
mix treated wood waste from the job site with waste from any other generator. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 58 of 200 

 
Replace Reserved in section 14-11.15 with: 

04-17-20 
14-11.15A  General 
Section 14-11.15 includes specifications for disposing of electrical equipment containing hazardous 
materials. 

14-11.15B  Submittals 
14-11.15B(1)  General 
Reserved 

14-11.15B(2)  Identification of Disposal Facilities 
Thirty days before starting work submit the name and address of the appropriately permitted facilities 
where electrical equipment containing hazardous materials will be taken to dispose or recycle them. 

14-11.15C  Waste Management 
14-11.15C(1)  General 
When you mishandle and damage electrical equipment you are the generator of resulting hazardous 
waste and are responsible for cleanup, management, and disposal of this hazardous waste and the 
associated costs for the work under section 14-11.06. 

14-11.15C(2)  Universal Waste 
14-11.15C(2)(a)  General 
Universal wastes include removed: 

1. Light bulbs 
2. E-waste including, electronic devices as described in 22 CA Code Regs § 66273.3(a), containing: 

2.1. Circuit boards, including controller boxes and LED lights 
2.2. Computer screens or video screens 
2.3. Computer keyboards 
2.4. Cathode ray tube devices 

3. Batteries as described in 22 CA Code Regs § 66273.2 
4. Mercury-containing equipment as described in section 22 CA Code Regs §66273.4(a); such as 

lamps, timers, and switches 
5. Fluorescent tubes, bulbs, and lamps 
 
Manage and dispose of universal waste under 22 CA Code Regs § 66261.9. Transport universal wastes 
to an appropriately permitted recycling or disposal facility. 

14-11.15C(2)(b)  Undamaged Lithium Thionyl Chloride batteries 
Package removed equipment containing undamaged lithium thionyl chloride batteries and place the 
packages in US DOT approved sealed shipping containers. Transport the containers to a recycling or 
disposal facility. Notify the receiving facility 48 hours before delivery. Affix a label to containers of intact 
units identifying the contents as "Universal Waste: Lithium Thionyl Chloride Batteries." 

Ship lithium thionyl chloride batteries that are separated from the electrical equipment units they powered 
to a recycling or disposal facility under 49 CFR 173.185. Package the batteries such that contact between 
them and resulting short circuits are avoided. Prevent accidental contact between batteries by: 

1. Covering terminal ends to prevent them from touching each other 
2. Placing batteries in a sealed plastic bag packed with loose fill, such as vermiculite 
 
The outer packaging must comply with 49 CFR 173.24 and 173.24a. Transport lithium thionyl chloride 
batteries to an approved hazardous waste recycling or disposal facility. For a partial list of facilities, go to: 

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/Recovery/Approved/Default.htm 

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/Recovery/Approved/Default.htm
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Electronics/Recovery/Approved/Default.htm


RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 59 of 200 

 
14-11.15C(3)  Damaged Lithium Thionyl Chloride batteries 
Damaged Lithium thionyl chloride batteries are designated as an extremely hazardous waste under 22 
CA Code of Regs, Div 4.5, Ch 11, Art 5, App 10. 

When lithium thionyl chloride batteries are damaged by your mishandling you are the generator of the 
resulting hazardous waste and responsible for cleanup, management, and disposal of this hazardous 
waste and the associated costs for the work under section 14-11.06. 

Lithium thionyl chloride batteries found damaged are Department-generated hazardous waste under 
section 14-11.07. Management of this Department-generated hazardous waste is change order work. 

Use a hazardous waste manifest to transport this damaged equipment to an appropriately permitted 
disposal facility. 

14-11.15C(4)  Electrical Equipment Containing PCBs 
14-11.15C(4)(a)  General 
PCBs are found in electrical equipment produced before 1979 such as transformers, capacitors, and 
fluorescent light ballasts. 

14-11.15C(4)(b)  Transformers and Capacitors 
Manage and dispose of transformers and capacitors containing PCBs under 40 CFR Part 761 and 22 CA 
Code of Regs Div 4.5. 

14-11.15C(4)(c)  Undamaged Fluorescent Light Ballasts 
Manage and dispose of fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs under 22 CA Code of Regs § 67426.1 
et seq. Fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs must be packaged and transported by a hauler with a 
current DTSC registration certificate and documentation of compliance with the CA Highway Patrol Basic 
Inspection of Terminals Program. The hauler must transport the fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs 
to a facility permitted for hazardous waste disposal by DTSC. 

14-11.15C(4)(d)  Damaged Fluorescent Light Ballasts 
Damaged fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs are designated as extremely hazardous waste by 
DTSC. 

When fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs are damaged by your mishandling you are the generator 
of the resulting hazardous waste and responsible for cleanup, management, and disposal of this 
hazardous waste and the associated costs for the work under section 14-11.06. 

Fluorescent light ballasts containing PCBs found damaged are Department-generated hazardous waste 
under section 14-11.07. Management of this Department-generated hazardous waste is change order 
work. 

Use a hazardous waste manifest to transport damaged equipment to an appropriately permitted disposal 
facility.  

14-11.15C(5)  Lead Acid Batteries 
Removed lead acid batteries are Department-generated hazardous waste. Manage hazardous waste lead 
acid batteries under 22 CA Code Regs § 66266.80 and 66266.81. Do not dispose of or attempt to dispose 
of, a lead-acid battery on or in any land, including dumpsters, landfills, lakes, streams, or the ocean. 

Upon removal immediately place batteries upright in non-reactive, structurally-secure, closed containers 
such as polyethylene buckets or drums for transport. Package the batteries under 49 CFR 172.101 and 
49 CFR 173.59. Prevent accidental contact between batteries by: 

1. Covering terminal ends to prevent them from touching each other 
2. Placing batteries in a sealed plastic bag packed with loose fill, such as vermiculite 
 
Label the container with the date the first battery is placed in it and identify the contents as "Lead-acid 
Batteries." 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 60 of 200 

 
Use a: 

1 Bill of lading under 13 CCR § 1161 for shipments of 9 or less batteries.  
2. Hazardous waste manifest for shipments of 10 batteries or more. The Engineer provides the 

Department's EPA Generator Identification Number for hazardous waste shipment. The Engineer 
signs the hazardous waste manifests. Notify the Engineer 5 business days before the manifests are 
to be signed. 

 
Outer packaging must comply with 49 CFR 173.24. Transport batteries to a DTSC permitted recycling 
facility. 

14-11.15C(6)  Photovoltaic Panels 
Removed photovoltaic panels are Department-generated hazardous waste due to heavy metals content. 
Manage and dispose of photovoltaic panels under section 14-11.07. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION III  EARTHWORK AND LANDSCAPE 
19  EARTHWORK 

04-17-20 
Replace section 19-3.01C(4) with: 

04-17-20 
19-3.01C(4)  Ground Anchor and Soil Nail Walls 
Submit shop drawings for earthwork for each ground anchor wall and soil nail wall under section 46-
1.01C(2). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 19-3.03E(1) with: 
10-19-18 

Place structure backfill in uniform layers. Bring backfill up uniformly on all sides of structures or drainage 
facilities. Backfill layer thickness must not exceed 0.67 foot before compacting. If you perform compaction 
by ponding and jetting, the thickness of the backfill layer must not exceed 4 feet. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 3rd paragraph of section 19-3.03E(1) with: 
10-19-18 

Do not place structure backfill until footings or other parts of structures or drainage facilities are 
authorized. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

20  LANDSCAPE 
04-17-20 

Add to section 20-1.01D: 
04-17-20 

20-1.01D(3)  Reserved 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 61 of 200 

 
Replace item 2 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 20-1.03C(1) with: 

10-18-19 
2. Controlling weeds and pests 
 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 20-2.01A(4)(d) with: 
10-19-18 

In the presence of the Engineer, perform a functional test for each system that demonstrates: 

1. Components of the system are functioning and integrated with one another. 
10-18-19 

2. Controller programming is complete including external weather, learned flow, and other system data 
inputs required to operate the system in the automatic mode. 

10-19-18 
3. Watering schedule is appropriate for the plants, current weather, season, and site conditions. 
4. System has complete sprinkler coverage of the site. 
 
Perform the test for each system: 

1. Before planting the plants 
2. After irrigation system repair work 
3. Annually during plant establishment work 
4. Not more than 30 days prior to contract acceptance 
5. When ordered 
 
 

10-19-18 
Delete section 20-2.01A(4)(e). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.01B(5) with: 
10-19-18 

Pull boxes must comply with section 86-1.02C and be no. 5 or larger. Pull boxes for low voltage 
conductors must not have side openings. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 20-2.01B(5) with: 
04-19-19 

Pull box covers used for control and neutral conductors for irrigation equipment operated by the irrigation 
controller must be marked SPRINKLER CONTROL. 

 

Add to section 20-2.01B: 
04-19-19 

20-2.01B(9)  Woven Wire Cloth and Gravel 
Woven wire cloth must be galvanized and manufactured with a minimum diameter of 19-gauge wire and 
have square openings from 1/4 to 1/2 inches. 

Gravel must be 3/4-inch gravel or crushed rock. Gravel or crushed rock must be clean, washed, dry, and 
free from clay or organic material. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 62 of 200 

 
Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.01C(2) with: 

10-19-18 
Perform trenching and backfilling under section 87-1.03E(2). 

 

Replace the introductory clause to the list in the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.01C(3) with: 
10-19-18 

Install pull boxes under section 87-1.03C at the following locations: 

 

Add to section 20-2.01C(4): 
04-19-19 

Install valve boxes on woven wire cloth and gravel or crushed rock. 

 

Add to the end of section 20-2.01C(4): 
04-17-20 

Space remote control valve boxes at least 2 feet from the edge of the adjacent valve box. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.04A(4) with: 
10-19-18 

Perform field tests on control and neutral conductors. Field tests must comply with the specifications in 
section 87-1.01D(2)(a). 

 

Replace the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 20-2.04B with: 
10-19-18 

Control and neutral conductors must comply with the provisions for conductors and cables in section 86-
1.02F. 

Electrical conduit and fittings must comply with section 86-1.02(B). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.04C(4) with: 
04-19-19 

Splice conductors with a UL-listed connector manufactured for copper wire, direct burial irrigation 
systems. Connector must be prefilled with a moisture sealing compound that encapsulates and protects 
the splice in a waterproof housing. Connector must be sized for the number and gauge of the conductors 
at the splice. 

 

Add to the end of the 4th paragraph of section 20-2.06B(2)(a): 
10-18-19 

Notify the Engineer at least 10 business days before accessing the network communications to integrate 
new irrigation controllers into the network. 

 

Replace the introductory clause of the 1st paragraph of section 20-2.06B(3) with: 
10-19-18 

The irrigation controller enclosure cabinet must comply with section 86-1.02Q and must: 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 63 of 200 

 
Add to the beginning of section 20-2.06C: 

10-19-18 
Install the irrigation controller enclosure cabinet under 87-1.03Q(1). 

 

Replace the paragraph of section 20-2.07B(3) with: 
10-18-19 

Corrugated HDPE pipe must comply with ASTM F667 or be Type S complying with AASHTO M252 or 
AASHTO M294. Couplings and fitting must be as recommended by the pipe manufacturer. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 20-2.09B(1) with: 
04-19-19 

Threaded nipples for swing joints and risers must be schedule 80, PVC 1120 or PVC 1220 pipe, and 
comply with ASTM D1785. 

 

Add to the end of section 20-2.10B(6): 
10-18-19 

Flanged adapters used to connect pipe to gate valves must be metal. 

 

Replace section 20-2.10B(7) with: 
04-17-20 

Each pressure regulating valve used on the downstream side of the control valves must be: 

1. Threaded type with outflow pressure clearly marked on the regulator 
2. Plastic body with a working pressure of 125 psi or greater 
3. Stainless-steel compression spring 
 
Each pressure regulating valve used on the upstream side of the control valves must be: 

1. Flanged or threaded and manufactured of brass or bronze 
2. Capable of withstanding a working pressure of 300 psi or greater 
3. Adjustable with a stainless-steel spring and seat 
4. Tapped and plugged for a pressure gauge and if shown with a gauge installed 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 64 of 200 

 
Replace the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 20-3.01B(2)(a) with: 

10-19-18 
Plant group 
designation 

Description Container size 
(cu in) 

A No. 1 container 152–251 
B No. 5 container 785–1242 
C Balled and burlapped -- 
E Bulb -- 
F In flats -- 
H Cutting -- 
I Pot -- 
K 24-inch box 5775–6861 
M Linera -- 
O Acorn -- 
P Plugsa, b -- 
S Seedlingc -- 
U No. 15 container 2768–3696 
Z Palm Tree -- 

aDo not use containers made of biodegradable material. 
bGrown in individual container cells. 
cBare root. 
 

 

Replace the introductory clause of the 1st paragraph of section 20-3.01B(4)(b) with: 
10-19-18 

Slow-release fertilizer must be a pelleted or granular form with a nutrient release over a 3 to 4 month 
period and be within the chemical analysis ranges shown in the following table: 

 

Replace section 20-3.01C(3) with: 
10-19-18 

Water plants as needed to keep the plants in a healthy growing condition. 

 

Replace item 3 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 20-4.01A with: 
10-18-19 

3. Controlling weeds and pests 
 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-4.03G with: 
10-18-19 

Operate the electric irrigation systems utilizing external weather, learned flow, and other system data 
inputs required to operate the system in the automatic mode, unless otherwise authorized. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 20-4.03G. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 20-5.03A(2) with: 
10-18-19 

Preemergent must be granular oxadiazon. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 65 of 200 

 
 

Replace the paragraph of section 20-5.03A(3)(c) with: 
10-18-19 

After compaction, apply preemergent at the maximum label rate. Do not apply preemergent more than 12 
inches beyond the inert ground cover limits. Complete the preemergent application and inert ground 
cover placement within the same day. 

 

Add to the end of section 20-5.03B(3): 
10-19-18 

If you are ordered to remove existing concrete below ground within the limits of the rock blanket, saw cut 
the concrete before removal. This work is change order work. 

 

Replace item 1 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 20-10.03A(3) with: 
10-19-18 

1. Transplanting trees. The work plan must include methods of lifting, transporting, storing, planting, 
guying, watering and maintaining each tree to be transplanted. Include the root ball size, method of 
root ball containment, and a maintenance program for each tree. 

 
 

Replace item 2 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 20-10.03A(3) with: 
10-18-19 

2. Maintain existing planted areas. The work plan must include controlling the weeds, fertilizing, mowing 
and trimming of turf areas, watering, and controlling pests. 

 
 

Replace item 6 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 20-10.03A(4) with: 
10-18-19 

6. Pests 
 
 

Add to the end of section 20-10.03C(3): 
10-19-18 

Water transplanted trees immediately after planting and as needed to keep it in a healthy growing 
condition until contract acceptance. 

 

Add to the end of section 20-10.03C(4): 
10-19-18 

Water existing plants as needed to keep them in a healthy growing condition until contract acceptance. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 66 of 200 

 
21  EROSION CONTROL 

04-17-20 
Replace section 21-2.01C(3) with: 

10-18-19 
At least 60 days before seed application, submit proof that the purchase order for seed required for the 
Contract has been placed and accepted by the seed vendor. Include the seed's botanical names, quantity 
ordered, and the anticipated date of delivery on the purchase order. 

Submit a copy of the supplier's seed analysis report and seed label for each seed species before 
application. 

Seed analysis report must show: 

1. Seed variety including botanical name and common name 
2. Percent pure live seed 
3. Percent by weight inert matter 
4. Percent by weight other crop seed 
5. Percent by weight weed seed 
6. Name of restricted noxious weed seed by number per pound of seed 
7. Germination test results 
8. Name and address of the supplier or grower 
9. Name and address of the seed laboratory 
10. Date of the analysis 
 
Seed labels must show: 

1. Seed variety including botanical name and common name 
2. Lot number or other lot identification 
3. Origin 
4. Net weight 
5. Percent pure live seed 
6. Percent total viability 
7. Percent by weight inert matter 
8. Percent by weight other crop seed 
9. Percent by weight weed seed 
10. Name of restricted noxious weed seed by number per pound of seed 
11. Name and address of the supplier or grower 
12. Date the seed was labeled 
 
 

Replace section 21-2.01D(3) with: 
10-18-19 

Seed must be tested for purity and germination by a seed laboratory certified by the Association of Official 
Seed Analysts or by a seed technologist certified by the Society of Commercial Seed Technologists. 
Seed test must be performed for germination within 12 months before application. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 21-2.03J with: 
04-19-19 

Do not incorporate materials within 3 feet of the pavement edge. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 21-2.03J 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 67 of 200 

 
Replace item 2 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 21-2.03Q with: 

10-18-19 
2. Secure compost sock to soil surface with Type 1 installation. Do not construct a furrow. 
 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 21-2.04 with: 
04-17-20 

The payment quantity for bid items paid for by area is the area measured parallel to the ground surface 
except overlaps and key trenches. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION IV  SUBBASES AND BASES 
28  CONCRETE BASES 

04-17-20 
Replace the 1st paragraph of section 28-2.01D(1)(a) with: 

04-19-19 
The cylinders for compressive strength testing under ASTM C31 or ASTM C192 must be 6 by 12 inches. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 28-2.02B with: 
04-19-19 

The SCM content requirements in the 4th paragraph of section 90-1.02B(3) do not apply to LCB. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 28-3.02C with: 
04-17-20 

Asphaltic emulsion must be Grade SS1. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 28-5.03A with: 
04-17-20 

The curing seal must be asphaltic emulsion Grade SS1. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION V  SURFACINGS AND PAVEMENTS 
37  BITUMINOUS SEALS 

04-17-20 
Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 37-2.03B(2) with: 

04-17-20 
A polymer modified asphaltic emulsion must be either Grade PMCRS-2 or PMCRS-2h. Polymer content 
in percent by weight does not apply. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 68 of 200 

 
Replace section 37-3.02B(3) with: 

04-17-20 
37-3.02B(3)  Polymer Modified Asphaltic Emulsions 
A polymer modified asphaltic emulsion must be grade PMCQS-1h. 

A polymer modified asphaltic emulsion must consist of an elastomeric polymer mixed with an asphaltic 
material uniformly emulsified with water and an emulsifying or stabilization agent. 

A polymer modified asphaltic emulsion must use either neoprene polymer or butadiene and styrene 
copolymer. The polymer must be homogeneous and milled into the asphaltic emulsion at the colloid mill. 

 

Replace section 37-3.03B(2) with: 
04-17-20 

37-3.03B(2)  Micro-surfacing Emulsions 
A micro-surfacing emulsion must be grade MSE. 

A micro-surfacing emulsion must be a homogeneous mixture of asphalt, an elastomeric polymer, and an 
emulsifier solution. 

Add an elastomeric polymer modifier to asphalt or emulsifier solution before emulsification. An 
elastomeric polymer solid must be a minimum of 3 percent by weight of the residual asphalt in the micro-
surfacing emulsion. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

39  ASPHALT CONCRETE 
04-17-20 

Replace AASHTO T 324 (Modified) at each occurrence in section 39 with: 
04-17-20 

California Test 389 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the row for AASHTO T 324 in the table in the 5th paragraph of section 39-2.01A(1). 

 

Replace the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 39-2.01A(3)(d) with: 
04-19-19 

If ordered, submit QC test results within 3 business days of a request. 

04-17-20 
Delete the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.01A(4)(a). 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 2nd paragraph of section 39-2.01A(4)(h)(i) with: 
04-17-20 

Condition each at-the-plant sample of HMA mixture for testing under AASHTO 283 in compliance with 
sections 7.1.2, 7.1.3, and 7.1.4 of AASHTO R 30. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 69 of 200 

 
Add to section 39-2.01A(4)(h)(v): 

04-19-19 
AASHTO T 324 (modified) and AASHTO T 283 are not required if production start-up evaluation is within 
45 days of the date the Hot Mix Asphalt Verification form is signed. 

If production stops for more than 60 days, perform a production start-up evaluation. If production stops for 
more than 30 days but less 60 days, perform a reduced production start-up evaluation. Reduced 
production start-up evaluation is production start-up evaluation without AASHTO T 324 and AASHTO T 
283. 

If production start-up evaluation fails, do not begin production. 

 

Add between the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 39-2.01A(4)(i)(i): 
04-19-19 

You must assist in collecting Engineer acceptance samples. Sample in the presence of the Engineer. 
Split the Engineer acceptance samples into at least 4 parts. Engineer retains 3 parts and you keep 1 part. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 5th paragraph of section 39-2.01A(4)(i)(i) with: 
04-17-20 

The Engineer conditions each at-the-plant sample of HMA mixture for testing under AASHTO 283 in 
compliance with sections 7.1.2, 7.1.3, and 7.1.4 of AASHTO R 30. 

 

Replace the 1st through 3rd paragraphs of section 39-2.01A(4)(i)(iv) with: 
04-19-19 

You and the Engineer must work together to avoid potential conflicts and to resolve disputes regarding 
test result discrepancies. You and the Engineer may only dispute each other's test results if one party's 
test results pass and the other party's test results fail. 

If there is a dispute, submit your test results and copies of paperwork including worksheets used to 
determine the disputed test results within 3 business day of receiving Engineer's test results. An 
independent third party performs referee testing. Before the third party participates in a dispute resolution, 
it must be qualified under AASHTO re:source program and the Department's Independent Assurance 
Program. The independent third party must have no prior direct involvement with this Contract. By mutual 
agreement, the independent third party is chosen from: 

1. Department laboratory in a district or region not in the district or region the project is located 
2. Transportation Laboratory 
3. Laboratory not currently employed by you or your HMA producer 
 
If the Department's portion of the split acceptance samples are not available, the independent third party 
uses any available material agreed by you and the Engineer as representing the disputed HMA for 
evaluation. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.01B(2)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

If the proposed JMF indicates that the aggregate is being treated with dry lime or lime slurry with 
marination, or the HMA with liquid antistrip, then testing the untreated aggregate under AASHTO T 283 
and California Test 389 is not required. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 70 of 200 

 
Replace the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 39-2.01C(3)(f) with: 

Tack Coat Application Rates for HMA 
04-17-20 

HMA over: 

Minimum residual rates (gal/sq yd) 
CSS-1/CSS-1h, SS-
1/SS-1h, and QS-

1h/CQS-1h 
asphaltic emulsion 

CRS-1/CRS-2 and 
QS-1/CQS-1 

asphaltic emulsion 

Asphalt binder and 
PMCRS-2/PMCRS-

2h 
asphaltic emulsion 

New HMA (between layers) 0.02 0.03 0.02 
Concrete pavement and 
existing asphalt concrete 
surfacing 

0.03 0.04 0.03 

Planed pavement 0.05 0.06 0.04 
 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(b)(iii) with: 
10-18-19 

When tested under AASHTO T 308, the uncorrected binder content of the combined RAP sample must 
be within ±2.00 percent of the average uncorrected asphalt binder content reported on page 4 of your 
Contractor Hot Mix Asphalt Design Data form. If a new processed RAP stockpile is required, the average 
uncorrected binder content of the new processed RAP stockpile tested under AASHTO T 308 must be 
within ±2.00 percent of the average uncorrected binder content reported on page 4 of your Contractor Hot 
Mix Asphalt Design Data form. You must use the same ignition oven used to determine the uncorrected 
asphalt binder content reported on page 4 of your Contractor Hot Mix Asphalt Design Data form. 

 

Replace item 2 in the 4th paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(b)(iii) with: 
10-18-19 

2. Moisture content at least once a day 
 
 

04-17-20 
Replace footnote a in the table in item 1 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e) with: 

10-18-19 
aThe Engineer determines combined aggregate gradations containing RAP under California Test 384. 
The Engineer uses the correlation factor from Contractor Hot Mix Asphalt Design Data form and 
mathematically combines the virgin and corrected RAP aggregate gradations at the correct proportions to 
obtain the combined gradation. 
 

Replace the table in item 2 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e) with: 
10-18-19 

Reclaimed Asphalt Pavement Quality 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Uncorrected binder content (% within the average value 
reporteda) AASHTO T 308 ±2.00 

Specific gravity (within the average value reportedb) AASHTO T 209 ±0.06 
aAverage uncorrected binder content of three ignition oven tests performed at JMF verification. Engineer 
must use the same ignition oven used to determine the average uncorrected binder content at JMF 
verification. 
bAverage maximum specific gravity reported on page 4 of Contractor Hot Mix Asphalt Design Data form. 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 71 of 200 

 
Replace the row for Moisture susceptibility (min, psi, dry strength) in the table in item 3 in the list 

in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e) with: 
04-19-19 

For RAP substitution equal to or less than 15% 
moisture susceptibility (min, psi, dry strength) 

AASHTO T 283 100 

For RAP substitution greater than 15% 
moisture susceptibility (psi, dry strength) 

AASHTO T 283 100-300h 

 

 

Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at inflection point) in the table in 
item 3 in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e) with: 

04-17-20 
Hamburg wheel track (number of passes at 
inflection point) 

California Test 
389 Report only 

 

 

Add a footnote to the table in item 3 in the list in the paragraph of section 39-2.02A(4)(e): 
04-19-19 

hNot required in the following areas: 
1. Southern San Luis Obispo or Santa Barbara County in District 5. 
2. Kern County in District 6. 
3. Kings County in District 6: route 5, post mile 0 to 17; route 33, post mile 0 to 19; route 41, post 
mile 0 to 16. 
4. Tulare County in District 6: route 65, post mile 0 to 10; route 99, post mile 0 to 10; route 43, 
post mile 0 to 15. 

 
 

Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at inflection point) in the 1st 
paragraph of section 39-2.02B(2) with: 

04-17-20 
Hamburg wheel track (number of passes at 
inflection point) 

California Test 
389c Report only 

 

 

Replace the row for Moisture susceptibility, dry strength in the table in the 1st paragraph of 
section 39-2.02B(2) with: 

04-19-19 
For RAP substitution equal to or less than 15% 

moisture susceptibility (min, psi, dry strength) 
AASHTO T 283 100 

For RAP substitution greater than 15% 
moisture susceptibility (psi, dry strength) 

AASHTO T 283 100-300e 

 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 72 of 200 

 
Add a footnote to the table in the 1st paragraph of section 39-2.02B(2): 

04-19-19 
eNot required in the following areas: 

1. Southern San Luis Obispo or Santa Barbara County in District 5. 
2. Kern County in District 6. 
3. Kings County in District 6: route 5, post mile 0 to 17; route 33, post mile 0 to 19; route 41, post 
mile 0 to 16. 
4. Tulare County in District 6: route 65, post mile 0 to 10; route 99, post mile 0 to 10; route 43, 
post mile 0 to 15. 

 
 

Replace the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 39-2.02B(2) with: 
04-19-19 

For RAP substitution of 15 percent or less, the grade of the virgin binder must be the specified grade of 
asphalt binder for Type A HMA. 

For RAP substitution greater than 15 percent and not exceeding 25 percent, the grade of the virgin binder 
must be the specified grade of asphalt binder for Type A HMA with the upper and lower temperature 
classification reduced by 6 degrees C. Hamburg wheel track requirements are based on the grade of 
asphalt binder specified for Type A HMA. 

 

Replace the 2nd sentence in the 2nd paragraph of section 39-2.02B(11) with: 
04-19-19 

For RAP substitution of 15 percent or less, RAP must be within ±3 of RAP percentage shown in your 
Contractor Job Mix Formula Proposal form without exceeding 15 percent. For RAP substitution of greater 
than 15 percent, RAP must be within ±3 of RAP percentage shown in your Contractor Job Mix Formula 
Proposal form without exceeding 25 percent. 

 

Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at 0.5-inch rut depth) in the table 
in item 2 in the paragraph of section 39-2.03A(4)(e)(i) with: 

04-17-20 
Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes 
at 0.5-inch rut depth) 
Base binder grade: 
PG 64 or lower 
PG 70 

California Test 
389 

 
 
 

15,000 
20,000 

 

 

Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at inflection point) in the table in 
item 2 in the paragraph of section 39-2.03A(4)(e)(i) with: 

04-17-20 
Hamburg wheel track (number of passes at 
inflection point) 

California Test 
389 Report only 

 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 73 of 200 

 
Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at 0.5-inch rut depth) in the table 

in 1st paragraph of section 39-2.03B(2) with: 
04-17-20 

Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes 
at 0.5-inch rut depth) 
Base binder grade: 
PG 64 or lower 
PG 70 

California Test 
389d 

 
 
 

15,000 
20,000 

 

 

Replace the row for Hamburg wheel track (min number of passes at inflection point) in the table in 
1st paragraph of section 39-2.03B(2) with: 

04-17-20 
Hamburg wheel track (number of passes at 
inflection point) 

California Test 
389d Report only 

 

 

Replace the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 39-2.04C with: 
Tack Coat Application Rates for OGFC 

04-17-20 

OGFC over: 

Minimum residual rates (gal/sq yd) 
CSS-1/CSS-1h, SS-
1/SS-1h, and QS-

1h/CQS-1h 
asphaltic emulsion 

CRS-1/CRS-2 and 
QS-1/CQS-1 

asphaltic emulsion 

Asphalt binder and 
PMCRS-2/PMCRS-

2h 
asphaltic emulsion 

New HMA 0.03 0.04 0.03 
Concrete pavement and 
existing asphalt concrete 
surfacing 

0.05 0.06 0.04 

Planed pavement 0.06 0.07 0.05 
 

 

Replace the 8th and 9th paragraphs of section 39-2.04C with: 
04-19-19 

For RHMA-O and RHMA-O produced with WMA water injection technology, and RHMA-O-HB and 
RHMA-O-HB produced with WMA water injection technology: 

1. Spread and compact if the ambient air temperature is at least 55 degrees F and the surface 
temperature is at least 60 degrees F 

2. Complete the 1st coverage using 2 rollers before the surface temperature drops below 280 degrees F 
3. Complete compaction before the surface temperature drops below 250 degrees F 
 
For RHMA-O produced with WMA additive technology and RHMA-O-HB produced with WMA additives 
technology: 

1. Spread and compact if the ambient air temperature is at least 45 degrees F and the surface 
temperature is at least 50 degrees F 

2. Complete the 1st coverage using 2 rollers before the surface temperature drops below 270 degrees F 
3. Complete compaction before the surface temperature drops below 240 degrees F 
 
Spread sand at a rate from 1 to 2 lb/sq yd on RHMA-O and RHMA-O-HB with or without WMA technology 
pavement after finish rolling activities are complete. Keep traffic off the pavement until spreading of the 
sand is complete. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 74 of 200 

 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 39-2.05A(1)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Placing a BWC consists of applying a bonded wearing course asphaltic emulsion and placing the 
specified HMA in a single pass with an integrated paving machine. 

 

Replace the row for Penetration at 25 C in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 39-
2.05A(1)(d)(iii) with: 

04-17-20 

Penetration at 25 C (dmm) AASHTO T 49 70–150 
 

 

Replace the paragraph of section 39-2.05A(2)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

The asphaltic emulsion must be bonded wearing course asphaltic emulsion. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

40  CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
04-17-20 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 40-1.01C(4) with: 
04-17-20 

At least 15 days before starting field qualification, submit the proposed concrete mix proportions, the 
corresponding mix identifications, and laboratory test reports, including measurements of the modulus of 
rupture and compressive strength, for each trial mixture at 3, 7, 10, 21, 28, and 42 days. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 40-1.01C(9) with: 
10-19-18 

Submit your coefficient of thermal expansion test data at: 

https://dime.dot.ca.gov/ 
 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 40-1.01D(1) with: 
04-17-20 

Provide material, labor and equipment that meets initial curing requirement to assist the Engineer in 
fabricating, curing and handling test beams for the Department's modulus of rupture testing. Failure to 
maintain the proper curing environment during initial cure will not be basis for rejection of samples, 
dispute resolution, or claim against the Department. The initial curing equipment must be capable of 
being locked, using a Department provided padlock. Ensure that the initial curing equipment is secured at 
all times and protected against theft and damage. 

 

Replace the row for Density in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 40-1.01D(7)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

Unit weight California Test 518 1 per 4 hours 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 75 of 200 

 
Add to the list in the 4th paragraph of section 40-1.01D(7)(a): 

04-17-20 
6. Unit weight 
 
 

Replace item 2 in the list in the 8th paragraph of section 40-1.01D(7)(a) with: 
04-17-20 

2. 1 point falls outside the suspension limit line for individual penetration, unit weight or air content 
measurements 

 
 

Replace nv in the 1st paragraph of section 40-1.01D(8)(b)(ii) with: 
04-17-20 

nv = number of Department's tests (minimum of 3 required) 
 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 40-1.01D(8)(b)(ii) with: 
04-17-20 

If your QC test results are not verified, core at least 3 specimens from the concrete pavement under 
section 40-1.03M. For dispute resolution, the Engineer selects the core locations and the Department 
contracts with an independent testing laboratory or uses the Department's laboratory to test these 
specimens for air content under ASTM C457. The Engineer compares these test results with your QC test 
results using the t-test method. If your QC test results are verified based on this comparison, the Engineer 
uses your QC test results for acceptance of concrete pavement for air content, otherwise, the Engineer 
uses the test results from the dispute resolution process and you pay for the independent testing. 

 
Replace the note b in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 40-1.01D(8)(c)(i) with: 

04-17-20 
bAverage of the individual test results of 3 test beams. 
 
 

Replace the 1st sentence of section 40-1.01D(8)(c)(iii) with: 
04-17-20 

The Department verifies and accepts pavement smoothness based on the results of your inertial profiler 
testing under Section 36-3. 

 

Replace section 40-1.01D(8)(c)(v) with: 
04-17-20 

40-1.01D(8)(c)(v) Determining Modulus of Rupture from Pavement Cores 
For each approved mix design, a correlation between flexural beam strength and compressive core 
strength may be developed to evaluate low modulus of rupture results from projects. If the average 28-
day modulus of rupture is below 570 psi, you may use compressive strength results from pavement cores 
to determine the equivalent 28-day modulus of rupture. 

In the presence of engineer: 

1. From the test strip, fabricate an additional 3 beams, and take a total of 15 cores under ASTM C42 to 
test 3 cores at each age of 28, 42, 56, 70, and 91 days. 

2. If test strip is not constructed, fabricate additional 3 beams on the first day of production and 
placement of concrete pavement, and take total 15 cores under ASTM C42 to test 3 cores at each 
age of 28, 42, 56, 70, and 91 days.  



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 76 of 200 

 
3. Break 3 beams at 28 days and take the average.  
4. Break 3 cores at each age of 28, 42, 56, 70, and 91 days under ASTM C 39 and take the average at 

each age. 
 
Use the following formula to calculate the equivalent 28-day modulus of rupture: 
 

MOR = MORs x [Cp(t)/Cs(t)]1/2 

 
where: 
 
MOR = equivalent 28-day modulus of rupture in psi 
MORs = average modulus of rupture in psi of 3 beams taken from the test strip at 28 days 
Cs(t) = average compressive strength in psi of 3 cores taken from the test strip at (t): 28, 42, 56, 70, 

or 91 days under ASTM C39  
Cp(t) = average compressive strength in psi of 3 cores taken from the pavement project at (t): 28, 42, 

56, 70, or 91 days under ASTM C39 
 

Submit all test results to engineer on the same date of completion of testing. 

If the 28-day modulus of rupture is below 570 psi, select an age equal to one of the test ages from the 
test strip and drill 3 concrete cores under ASTM C42 of same diameter as the test strip from the area not 
complying to the acceptance strength requirement and test in presence of engineer for compressive 
strength under ASTM C39. The average compressive strength of 3 concrete cores will be used to 
determine the equivalent 28-day modulus of rupture. 

 

Replace introductory clause in the 4th paragraph of section 40-1.03J with: 
04-17-20 

Do not allow traffic or use equipment on concrete pavement before the concrete has attained a modulus 
of rupture of 550 psi based on the Department's testing unless: 

 

Add to the list in the 4th paragraph of section 40-1.03J: 
04-17-20 

2.5 You must monitor for damage and immediately discontinue access and suspend operations if 
any damage becomes apparent 

 
 

Replace section 40-2 with: 
10-18-19 

40-2  CONTINUOUSLY REINFORCED CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
40-2.01  GENERAL 
40-2.01A  Summary 
Section 40-2 includes specifications for constructing continuously reinforced concrete pavement. 

Constructing continuously reinforced concrete pavement includes terminal joints and expansion joints. 

40-2.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

40-2.01C  Submittals 
For field qualification, submit the test data for the coefficient of thermal expansion of the concrete. 

If you request to use plastic chairs to support the transverse bars, submit a sample of the plastic chair, 
including: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 77 of 200 

 
1. Manufacturer's instructions for the applicable use and load capacity 
2. Chair spacing 
3. Your calculation for the load on a chair for the area of bar reinforcement it supports 
 
During production, submit the test data for the coefficient of thermal expansion as an informational 
submittal. 

40-2.01D  Quality Assurance 
For field qualification, test the coefficient of thermal expansion of the concrete under AASHTO T 336. The 
coefficient of thermal expansion must not exceed 6.0 microstrain/degree F. 

During the evaluation of the test strip, the Engineer visually checks the reinforcement and dowel and tie 
bar placement. 

During production, test the coefficient of thermal expansion of the concrete at a frequency of 1 test for 
each 5,000 cu yd of paving but not less than 1 test for a project with less than 5,000 cu yd of concrete. 

40-2.02  MATERIALS 
40-2.02A  General 
Reserved 

40-2.02B  Transverse Bar Assembly 
Transverse bar assemblies may be used to support longitudinal bars instead of transverse bars and other 
support devices. 

40-2.02C  Intermediate Transverse Bars 
Intermediate transverse bars do not need to be epoxy-coated for a project not shown to be in a high 
desert or any mountain climate region. 

40-2.02D  Joints 
Joint seals for transverse expansion joints must comply with section 51-2.02. 

Geosynthetic bond breaker for expansion joint support slabs must comply with section 36-2. 

40-2.03  CONSTRUCTION 
40-2.03A  General 
Reserved 

40-2.03B  Bar Reinforcement 
Place bar reinforcement under section 52-1.03D except you may request to use plastic chairs. Plastic 
chairs will be considered only for support directly under the transverse bars. You must demonstrate the 
vertical and lateral stability of the bar reinforcement and plastic chairs during the construction of the test 
strip. 

For a transverse bar in a curve with a radius under 2,500 feet, place the reinforcement in a single 
continuous straight line across the lanes and aligned with the radius point as shown. 

Lap splice bar reinforcement under section 52-6. For low carbon, chromium-steel bar reinforcement, the 
length of lap splice must be at least 30 inches. 

40-2.03C  Construction Joints 
Transverse construction joints must be perpendicular to the lane line. Construct the joints so that the 
nearest longitudinal bar splice is at least 42 inches away from each side of the joint. 

Clean joint surfaces before placing concrete against the surfaces. Remove laitance, curing compound, 
and other foreign materials. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 78 of 200 

 
40-2.03D  Correcting Noncompliant Pavement Work 
40-2.03D(1)  General 
The specifications for repairing cracks in section 40-1.03N do not apply to CRCP. Do not apply high-
molecular-weight methacrylate to cracks in CRCP. 

CRCP that develops raveling areas of 6 by 6 inches or greater requires partial depth repair. 

40-2.03D(2)  Partial Depth Repair 
Partial depth repair must comply with section 41-4 except: 

1. Determine a rectangular boundary which extends 6 inches beyond the damaged area. The depth of 
the saw cut must be between 2 inches from the surface to 1/2 inch above the longitudinal bars. 

2. Provide additional reinforcement if each length of the repair boundaries is equal to or greater than 3 
feet. 

 
40-2.03D(3)  Full-Depth Repair 
40-2.03D(3)(a)  General 
Remove the full-depth of CRCP except for the portion of reinforcement to remain in place. Provide 
continuity of the reinforcement. For low carbon, chromium-steel bar reinforcement, the length of lap splice 
must be at least 30 inches. Splicing must comply with section 52-6. Do not damage the base, concrete, 
and reinforcement to remain in place. Place concrete in the area where you removed CRCP. 

40-2.03D(3)(b)  Transverse Cracks 
Make initial full-depth transverse saw cuts normal to the lane line a distance of 3 feet on each side of the 
transverse crack. 

40-2.03D(3)(c)  Longitudinal Cracks 
Remove the cracked area normal to the lane line for the full width of the lane a distance of 1 foot beyond 
each end of the crack. You may propose alternate limits with your repair plan. 

40-2.03E  Reserved 
40-2.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

41  EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
04-17-20 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 41-10.01C with: 
04-17-20 

At least 15 days before delivery of the chemical adhesive to the job site, submit the SDS and the 
manufacturer's instructions for: 

1. Handling and storage 
2. Installation procedures 
3. Minimum cure time 
4. Use of chemical adhesive 
 
 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 41-10.02A with: 
04-17-20 

Each chemical adhesive system container must clearly and permanently show the: 

1. Manufacturer's name 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 79 of 200 

 
2. Material name 
3. Lot or batch number 
4. Expiration date 
5. Evaluation report number 
6. Directions for use 
7. Storage requirement 
8. Warnings or precautions required by State and federal laws and regulations 
 
 

Replace section 41-10.03A with: 
04-17-20 

41-10.03A  General 
Drill holes for bars as shown without damaging the adjacent concrete. Clean drilled holes under the 
chemical adhesive manufacturer's installation instructions. Holes must be dry at the time of placing the 
chemical adhesive and bars. Immediately after inserting the bar into the chemical adhesive, support the 
bar to prevent movement until chemical adhesive has cured the minimum time recommended by the 
manufacturer. 

Use a grout retention ring when drilling and bonding dowel bars. Apply dowel bar lubricant to the entire 
exposed portion of the dowel bar. 

If the Engineer rejects a bar installation: stop paving, drilling, and bonding activities. Adjust your 
procedures and obtain the verbal authorization before resuming paving, drilling, and bonding. 

Cut the rejected bar flush with the pavement joint surface and coat the exposed end of the bar with 
chemical adhesive. Offset the new hole 3 inches horizontally from the rejected hole's center. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VI  STRUCTURES 
46  GROUND ANCHORS AND SOIL NAILS 

04-17-20 
Replace section 46-1.01C(2) with: 

04-17-20 
46-1.01C(2)  Shop Drawings 
46-1.01C(2)(a)  General 
Submit shop drawings and supporting calculations to OSD, Documents Unit for initial review. Notify the 
Engineer of the submittal. Include in the notification the date and contents of the submittal. 

Submit 6 copies of the general project information, 5 copies of the fabricators plan, and 3 copies of the 
construction plan. 

Shop drawings and calculations must be sealed and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil 
engineer in the State. 

Allow 30 days for the Department's review. 

After review, submit from 6 to 12 copies of final shop drawings and supporting calculations, as requested, 
for authorization and use during construction. 

46-1.01C(2)(b)  General Project Information Plan 
General project information plan must include: 

1. Name, address, email address, and phone number of the contractor or subcontractor performing the 
work. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 80 of 200 

 
2. Wall construction schedule with construction sequence. 
3. Wall construction staging schedule. 
4. Table of lengths, tendon sizes, centralizers, and drilled-hole diameters. 
5. For ground anchors, calculations for determining the bonded length and assumed bonded strength. 

Do not rely on any capacity from the grout-to-ground bond within the unbonded length. 
6. Procedures for installing verification and proof test nails. 
7. Bench width requirements for installation equipment. 
8. Excavation lift height and maximum duration of exposure for each wall zone, including: 

8.1. Methods to stabilize the exposed excavated face if face is not maintaining its integrity 
8.2. Supporting calculations 
 

46-1.01C(2)(c)  Fabrication Plan 
Fabrication plan must include: 

1. Details and specifications for: 
1.1. Ground anchors and anchorage system 
1.2. Production and test soil nails 

2. Corrosion protection details and repair procedure for: 
2.1. Damaged sheathing 
2.2. Couplers 

3. Testing equipment including jacking frame and appurtenant bracing. 
4. For ground anchors, details for the transition between the corrugated plastic sheathing and the 

anchorage assembly. If shims are used during lock-off, include: 
4.1. Shim thickness 
4.2. Supporting calculations 
 

You may start fabrication early by requesting an authorization of the fabrication plan portion before the 
complete shop drawings submittal is authorized. If the early fabrication plan is authorized, you are fully 
responsible for any changes that may occur after starting fabrication. 

46-1.01C(2)(d)  Construction Plan 
Construction plan must include: 

1. Methods of excavation for the staged lifts and types of excavation equipment. 
2. Details for measuring the movement of the excavated face and the wall during stability testing and 

construction. 
3. Measures to ensure wall and slope stability during construction. 
4. Details for providing the bonded and unbonded length. If packers or other similar devices are used, 

include the type. 
5. For soil nails, details for isolating installed proof test soil nails during shotcrete application. 
6. Dewatering plan to divert, control, and dispose of surface and groundwater during construction 
7. Drilling methods and equipment, including: 

7.1. Size of drilled hole 
7.2. Space requirements 

8. Grout mix design and testing procedures. 
9. Grout placement equipment and procedures, including minimum required cure time. 
10. Testing equipment including method and equipment for measuring movement during testing. 
11. For soil nails, include procedure for extracting grouted soil nails. 
 
 

Add to the list in the 1st paragraph of section 46-1.01C(3): 
10-19-18 

12. Digital photo logs of extracted test soil nails 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 81 of 200 

 
Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 46-1.01C(3) with: 

10-19-18 
Submit the test data in electronic and hard copy format within 1 business day after testing is complete. 
Upon completion of the wall, send an email of the soil nail test results as a tabulated spreadsheet to the 
Engineer and Geotechnical.Data@dot.ca.gov. Include the contract number and Department's structure 
number of the wall in the subject line of the email. 

 

Replace Not Used in section 46-1.01D(1) with: 
10-19-18 

Welding must comply with AWS D1.1. 

 

Add to the end of section 46-1.03A: 
10-19-18 

Shotcrete must comply with section 53-2. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 46-1.03B. 

 
Replace the 1st paragraph of 46-2.02B with: 

04-17-20 
Strand tendons, bar tendons, and bar couplers must comply with section 50-1.02B and must be on the 
Authorized Material List for post-tensioning systems. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 2nd paragraph of section 46-2.02B with: 
10-19-18 

The anchorage enclosure and the steel tube and bearing plate of the anchorage assembly must be 
galvanized steel and comply with sections 55-1.02D(1) and 55-1.02E(1). 

 

Replace item 9 in the list in the 3rd paragraph of section 46-2.02D with: 
10-19-18 

9. Have the physical properties shown in Table 4.1 of Recommendations for Prestressed Rock and Soil 
Anchors published by the Post-Tensioning Institute 

 
 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 46-2.03D with: 
10-19-18 

Immediately after lock-off, perform a lift-off test to verify that the lock-off load has been attained. The lift-
off load must be within 10 percent of the specified lock-off load. If necessary adjust the shim thickness to 
achieve the lock-off load. If the load is not within 10 percent of the specified lock-off load, the anchorage 
must be reset and another lift-off load reading must be made. Repeat the process until the specified lock-
off load is obtained. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 46-3.01A with: 
10-19-18 

A soil nail consists of a solid steel bar with an anchorage assembly that is placed in a drilled hole and 
then grouted. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 82 of 200 

 
 

Replace section 46-3.01D(2)(b)(ii)(1) with: 
10-19-18 

46-3.01D(2)(b)(ii)(1)  General 
Determine the test load using the following equation: 

T = Lb x Qb 
 
where: 
T = test load, pounds 
Lb = soil nail bonded length, feet, 10 feet minimum 
Qb = test load per unit length of bond, pounds/foot 
 

 

Replace the 8th paragraph of section 46-3.01D(2)(b)(ii)(2) with: 
04-19-19 

If the Engineer revises soil nail lengths or test load per unit length of bond values, any additional 
verification test soil nails are change order work. 

 

Replace section 46-3.02A with: 
04-19-19 

46-3.02A  General 
Each production soil nail must be either a solid steel bar encapsulated full length in a grouted corrugated 
plastic sheathing or an epoxy-coated prefabricated solid steel bar partially encapsulated in a grouted 
corrugated plastic sheathing as shown. 

Epoxy-coated prefabricated solid steel bars must comply with the specifications for epoxy-coated 
prefabricated reinforcement in section 52-2.03, except the average coating thickness after curing must be 
from 10 to 15 mils. 

Solid steel bar for test soil nails is not required to be epoxy coated or encapsulated in grouted plastic 
sheathing. 

 

Replace the heading of section 46-3.02B with: 
10-19-18 

Anchorage Assemblies 
 

Replace section 46-3.02C with: 
10-19-18 

46-3.02C  Solid Steel Bars 
Solid steel bars must be either: 

1. Threaded bars with spirally-deformed, ribbed threads continuous along the entire length of the bar. 
2. Deformed reinforcing bars with at least a 6-inch length of thread cut into the bar on the anchorage 

end. Use coarse threading and the next larger reinforcing bar size. 
 
Solid steel bars must comply with ASTM A615/A615M or A706/A706M, Grade 60 or ASTM A615/A615M, 
Grade 75. 

Splicing must be authorized. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 83 of 200 

 
Epoxy coating at the anchorage end of epoxy-coated bars may be omitted for a maximum of 6 inches. 
Metal surfaces of assembled splices of epoxy-coated bars must be epoxy coated. 

Choose the solid steel bar size and grade for test soil nails. Test soil nail bars must not be smaller than 
the production soil nails they represent. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 46-3.03A with: 
10-19-18 

Determine the drilled-hole diameter and installation method required to achieve the test load per unit 
length of bond values shown. 

 

Replace the introductory clause to the list in the 3rd paragraph of section 46-3.03B with: 
10-19-18 

Install verification test soil nails by any of the following means: 

 

Replace the 7th and 8th paragraphs of section 46-3.03B with: 
10-19-18 

Remove each verification and proof test soil nail to 6 inches behind the front face of the shotcrete after 
testing is complete. Fill the voids with grout. 

If ordered, extract verification and proof test soil nails selected by the Engineer. Fill the voids with grout. 
Photograph the extracted test nails in 5-foot section intervals. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 46-3.03C with: 
10-19-18 

Splice the solid steel bar only where shown on the authorized shop drawings or at the end of a soil nail 
that is ordered to be lengthened. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 7th paragraph of section 46-3.03C with: 
10-19-18 

Hand tighten the nut on the end of the production soil nail bar before shotcrete hardening begins. Ensure 
the bearing plate is fully seated on the shotcrete. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

48  TEMPORARY STRUCTURES 
04-17-20 

Replace signed at each occurrence in section 48 with: 
04-17-20 

sealed and signed 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 84 of 200 

 
Replace section 48-1.01 with: 

04-17-20 
48-1.01  GENERAL 
48-1.01A  Summary 
Section 48-1 includes general specifications for constructing temporary structures. 

If a railroad company is involved, falsework, temporary supports, and jacking support systems must 
comply with any additional requirements of the railroad company. 

48-1.01B  Definitions 
frame: Portion of a bridge between expansion joints. 

jacking: Positioning of new or existing structures or portions thereof, by jacks or other mechanical 
methods. 

previously welded splice: Splice made in a temporary-structure member in compliance with AWS D1.1 
or other recognized welding standard, before contract award. 

temporary-structure adjustment: Grading or adjusting of temporary structures. 

48-1.01C  Submittals 
48-1.01C(1)  General 
Submit 6 copies of shop drawings and 2 copies of calculations for: 

1. Falsework 
2. Temporary supports 
3. Temporary decking 
4. Jacking 
5 Adjustment 
 
48-1.01C(2)  Temporary-Structure Inspection Report 
Temporary-structure inspection reports must be: 
1. Prepared daily during jacking and temporary-structure adjustment activities. Reports must be 

submitted: 
1.1. By close of business the following business day 
1.2. Before opening the roadway on or under the temporary structure to traffic 

2. Prepared before placing concrete 
 
The temporary-structure inspection report must be prepared, sealed, and signed by the temporary-
structure engineer. 

The temporary-structure inspection report must include: 

1. Description of the progress of the jacking and adjustment activities 
2. Description and evaluation of the condition of the temporary structure and supported structure 
3. Inspection findings and the certifications listed in section 48-1.01D(2) that are completed by the 

temporary-structure engineer 
 
48-1.01C(3)  Adjustment Plan Shop Drawings 
Submit adjustment plan shop drawings if the falsework or temporary supports are to be adjusted more 
than 1/2 inch. 

The adjustment plan shop drawings and calculations must be sealed and signed by the temporary-
structure engineer. 

Adjustment plan shop drawings and calculations must include: 

1. Methods and sequencing for the adjustment. 
2. Descriptions of equipment to be used. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 85 of 200 

 
3. Location of jacks or other adjustment equipment. 
4. Detailed sequence for releasing of bracing.  
5. Details and calculations for the stability and adjustment of the falsework or temporary supports during 

all stages of the adjustment including any additional required temporary bracing. 
6. Calculations that include stresses, deflections, and loads in all load carrying members, bracing, and 

equipment as well as any redistributed loads resulting from the adjustment. Calculations must also 
include the effect of the adjustment sequence. 

 
48-1.01D  Quality Assurance 
48-1.01D(1)  General 
Reserved 

48-1.01D(2)  Temporary-Structure Engineer 
The temporary-structure engineer must: 

1. Be registered as a civil engineer in the State. 
2. Have experience in temporary structure design or temporary structure construction inspection. 
3. Seal and sign the shop drawings. 
4. Be present during all jacking and adjustment activities. 
5. Prepare, seal, and sign a daily temporary-structure inspection report during jacking and temporary-

structure adjustment activities. 
6. The temporary-structure engineer must inspect and certify that: 

6.1. Temporary structure is stable before jacking activities or adjustments and before concrete is 
placed. 

6.2. Temporary structure complies with the authorized shop drawings. 
6.3. Materials and workmanship are satisfactory for the work. 

7. Stop activity if any unanticipated issues occur. 
8. Propose revisions to the authorized shop drawings to address any issues. Do not resume temporary 

structure activities until the proposed revisions are authorized. 
 
The temporary-structure engineer may assign a representative to perform the temporary structure 
activities specified in section 48-1.01D. The temporary-structure engineer must submit a letter that is 
sealed and signed certifying that the representative: 

1. Is registered as a civil engineer in the State 
2. Has experience in temporary structure design or temporary structure construction inspection 
3. Is familiar with the authorized shop drawings and the stresses the members are required to sustain 
4. Will attend at least 1 job site visit with the Engineer and your temporary-structure superintendent to 

discuss the authorized shop drawings 
 
 

Add to list in the 2nd paragraph of section 48-2.01A: 
04-17-20 

5. Includes illumination for vehicular and pedestrian traffic 
 
 

Add to the end of section 48-2.01A: 
04-17-20 

Falsework used as temporary supports must comply with section 48-3. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 86 of 200 

 
Replace section 48-2.01B with: 

04-17-20 
48-2.01B  Definitions 
independent support system: Support system that is in addition to a falsework removal system that 

employs methods of holding falsework from above by winches, hydraulic jacks with prestressing 
steel, HS steel rods, or cranes. 

falsework release: Lowering of falsework to the point that it no longer supports the loads imposed by the 
permanent structure, or any element, that the falsework was designed to support during construction. 
Falsework release includes blowing sand from sand jacks, turning screws on screw jacks, and 
removing wedges. 

falsework removal: Releasing, lowering, and disposing of the falsework. 

 

Replace the last paragraph of section 48-2.01C(1) with: 
04-17-20 

Submit a falsework lighting plan at least 10 days before starting construction on falsework containing 
openings for vehicular traffic, pedestrians, or railroad. 

The plan must include: 

1. Location, spacing, and mounting heights of luminaires 
2. Types of luminaires 
3. Calculations of illumination levels used to determine placement of luminaries 
4. Plot of illumination points used to demonstrate compliance with the illumination levels requirements 
5. Lighting circuit diagrams 
 
 

Replace section 48-2.01C(2) with: 
04-17-20 

48-2.01C(2)  Shop Drawings 
Submit shop drawings and calculations for falsework. 

The falsework shop drawings and calculations must be sealed and signed by the temporary-structure 
engineer for any of the following conditions: 

1. Height of any portion of the falsework measured from the ground line to the soffit of the 
superstructure is more than 14 feet 

2. Any individual falsework clear span is more than 16 feet 
3. Falsework contains openings for vehicular, pedestrian, or railroad traffic 
4. Falsework removal systems support falsework from above by winches, hydraulic jacks with 

prestressing steel, HS rods or cranes 
 
Shop drawings and calculations for falsework piles with a calculated loading capacity greater than 100 
tons must be sealed and signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil or geotechnical engineer in 
the State. 

Falsework shop drawings and calculations must include: 

1. Details of erection and removal activities. 
2. Methods and sequences of erection and removal, including equipment. 
3. Maximum falsework adjustment height. 
4. Details for the stability of falsework during all stages of erection and removal activities. 
5. Superstructure placing diagram showing concrete placing sequence and construction joint locations. 

If a schedule for placing concrete is shown, no deviation is allowed. 
6. Assumed soil bearing values for falsework footings. 
7. Maximum horizontal distance falsework piles may be pulled for placement under caps. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 87 of 200 

 
8. Maximum deviation of falsework piles from vertical. 
9. Anticipated total falsework and formwork settlements, including footing settlement and joint take-up. 
10. Grade, species, and type of any timber or structural composite lumber. Include manufacturer's 

tabulated working stress values for composite lumber. 
11. Design calculations that include stresses and deflections in load carrying members. 
12. Provisions for complying with temporary bracing requirements. 
13. Welding standard used for welded members, including previously welded splices. 
14. The following information for falsework removal systems employing methods of holding falsework 

from above by winches, hydraulic jacks with prestressing steel, HS steel rods, or cranes: 
14.1. Design code used for the analysis of the structural members of the independent support 

system 
14.2. Provisions for complying with current Cal/OSHA requirements 
14.3. Load tests and ratings within 1 year of intended use of hydraulic jacks and winches 
14.4. Location of the winches, hydraulic jacks with prestressing steel, HS steel rods, or cranes 
14.5. Analysis showing that the bridge deck and overhang are capable of supporting all loads at all 

time 
14.6. Analysis showing that winches will not overturn or slide during all stages of loading 
14.7. Location of deck and soffit openings if openings are needed 
14.8. Details of repair for the deck and soffit openings after falsework removal 
 

Submit separate falsework shop drawings and calculations for each: 

1. Single bridge or portion of bridge 
2. Frame for multi-frame bridges 
 
 

Add to section 48-2.01D: 
04-17-20 

48-2.01D(3)  Falsework Lighting 
After the installation of falsework lighting, measure the illumination levels in the presence of the Engineer, 
during the hours of darkness. For pavement and pedestrian walkway lighting, the measurements must be 
taken at ground level with the meter sensor pointing upward. For portal lighting, measurements must be 
taken at the face of the surface areas specified with the meter sensor perpendicular to the surface areas. 

Falsework lighting must comply with the illumination levels shown in the following table: 

Illumination Levels 
Illumination Area Average Illuminance (fc) (Eavg) Uniformity (Eavg/Emin) 

Pavement 0.6 4.0 
Portal 1.0 4.0 
Pedestrian Walkway 2.0 4.0 

 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 48-2.01D(2) with: 
04-17-20 

Except for previously welded splices, welding must comply with AWS D1.1. Welding of bar reinforcement 
must comply with AWS D1.4. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 48-2.02A with: 
04-17-20 

Wood must comply with the NDS. Timber used for falsework construction must be seasoned with 
moisture content not to exceed 19 percent. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 88 of 200 

 
Add to the end of section 48-2.02B(1): 

04-17-20 
Where falsework for multiple level bridges is supported on the deck of a structure: 

1. Falsework must bear directly on either: 
1.1. Girder stems, bent caps, or end diaphragms of the supporting structure. 
1.2. Falsework sills that transmit the load to the girder stems, bent caps, or end diaphragms without 

applying any stress to the deck slab. 
2. Additional falsework must be in place beneath the supporting structure when construction loads are 

imposed on the supporting structure. Design and construct additional falsework to support all 
construction loads imposed on the supporting structure from the upper structure. 

 
Design the falsework lighting, for pavement, portals, and pedestrian walkways at or under falsework 
openings, to illuminate: 

1. Falsework portals during the hours of darkness 
2. Pavement, with portals less than 150 feet apart, during the hours of darkness 
3. Pavement, with portals 150 feet or more apart, 24 hours a day 
4. Pedestrian walkways 24 hours a day 
 
Lighting branch circuits must not exceed 20 A. 

 

Replace the 2nd sentence in the 1st paragraph of section 48-2.02B(2) with: 
04-17-20 

The minimum total design load for any falsework for combined live and dead load is 100 psf, including 
members that support walkways. 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 48-2.02B(2) with: 
10-19-18 

The assumed horizontal load the falsework bracing system must resist must be the sum of the actual 
horizontal loads due to equipment, construction sequence or other causes, and a wind loading. The 
assumed horizontal load in any direction must be at least 2 percent of the total dead load. 

 

Replace the table in the 7th paragraph of section 48-2.02B(2) with: 
04-17-20 

Height zone, H 
(feet above ground) 

Wind pressure value 
Shores or columns adjacent to traffic 

(psf) 
At other locations 

(psf) 
H≤30 20 15 

30<H≤50 25 20 
50<H≤100 30 25 

H>100 35 30 
 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 89 of 200 

 
Replace the table in the 8th paragraph of section 48-2.02B(2) with: 

04-17-20 

 
Height zone, H 

(feet above ground) 

Wind pressure value 
For members over and bents adjacent to traffic opening 

(psf) 
At other locations 

(psf) 
H≤30 2.0 Q 1.5 Q 

30<H≤50 2.5 Q 2.0 Q 
50<H≤100 3.0 Q 2.5 Q 

H>100 3.5 Q 3.0 Q 
NOTE: 

Q = 1 + 0.2W, but not more than 10 
 
where: 
W = width of the falsework system in feet, measured in the direction of the wind force 

 

 

Replace section 48-2.02B(3)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

48-2.02B(3)(b)  Timber 
Design stresses for timber and timber connections must not exceed stresses specified in the current 
NDS. 

Adjustment factors used to determine allowable stresses for timber members and connections must 
comply with NDS for the appropriate condition of use and species. 

Deflection due to concrete loading only must not exceed 1/240 of the span length. 

Pile design load for timber piles must not exceed 45 tons. 

 

Replace the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 48-2.02B(3)(c) with: 
04-17-20 

Except for flexural compressive stresses, the design load for identified grades of steel must not exceed 
the allowable strength specified in the AISC Steel Construction Manual. 

Except for flexural compressive stresses, the design load for unidentified steel must not exceed the 
allowable strength specified for steel complying with ASTM A36/A36M in the AISC Steel Construction 
Manual or as shown in the following table: 

Quality characteristic Requirement 
Tension, axial and flexural (psi) 22,000 
Compression, axial (psi) 16,000 - 0.38(L/r)2a 
Shear on gross section of web of rolled shapes (psi) 14,500 
Web yielding for rolled shapes (psi) 27,000 
Modulus of elasticity (E) (psi) 30 x 106 
NOTES: 

L = unsupported length, inches 
r = radius of gyration of the member, inches 

aL/r must not exceed 120 
 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 90 of 200 

 
Replace the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 48-2.02B(3)(c) with: 

10-19-18 
Quality characteristic Requirement 

Compression, flexural (psi) 12,000,000/[(L x d)/(b x t)]a 
Deflection due to concrete loading only 1/240 of the span 
Modulus of elasticity (E) (psi) 30 x 106 
NOTES: 

L = unsupported length, inches 
d = least dimension of rectangular columns or the width of a square of equivalent cross-sectional area 
for round columns, or the depth of beams, inches 
b = width of the compression flange, inches 
t = thickness of the compression flange, inches 
Fy = specified minimum yield stress in psi 

aNot to exceed (1) 22,000 psi for unidentified steel, (2) 22,000 psi for steel complying with ASTM 
A36/A36M, or (3) 0.6Fy for other identified steel 
 
 

Add to section 48-2.02: 
04-17-20 

48-2.02C  Falsework Lighting 
48-2.02C(1)  General 
A falsework luminaire must: 

1. Be commercially available 
2. Include brackets and locking screws 
 
48-2.02C(2)  Pavement Illumination 
Not Used 

48-2.02C(3)  Portal Illumination 
Portal illumination includes plywood clearance guides 4 feet wide by 8 feet high and luminaires. 

48-2.02C(4)  Pedestrian Walkway Illumination 
Not Used 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 48-2.03A. 

 

Add to section 48-2.03A: 
04-17-20 

During concrete placement, if (1) events occur that the Engineer determines will result in a structure that 
does not comply with the structure as described or (2) settlement variance is greater than 3/8-inch from 
the values shown on shop drawings, stop concrete placement and apply corrective measures. If the 
measures are not provided before initial concrete set occurs, stop concrete placement at the location 
ordered. 

Detour traffic from the lanes over which falsework is being erected, released, adjusted, or removed. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 91 of 200 

 
Replace the 3rd paragraph of the section 48-2.03B with: 

04-17-20 
Falsework piles must be driven and assessed under section 49. The actual nominal driving resistance 
must be at least twice the falsework pile design load. For pile acceptance, the required number of 
hammer blows in the last foot of driving is determined using the formula in 49-2.01A(4)(c). 

 

Add between the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of section 48-2.03C: 
10-19-18 

Falsework erection includes adjustments or removal of components that contribute to the horizontal 
stability of the falsework system. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 8th paragraph of section 48-2.03C. 

 

Replace section 48-2.03D with: 
04-17-20 

48-2.03D  Removal 
Release and remove falsework such that portions of falsework to be removed remain stable. 

Falsework release includes blowing sand from sand jacks, turning screws on screw jacks, and removing 
wedges. 

Except for concrete above the deck, do not release falsework supporting any span of a: 

1. Simple span bridge before 10 days after the last concrete has been placed 
2. Continuous or rigid frame bridge before 10 days after the last concrete has been placed: 

2.1. In that span 
2.2. In adjacent portions of each adjoining span for a length equal to one-half of the span where 

falsework is to be released 
3. Simple span, continuous, or rigid frame bridge until the supported concrete has attained a 

compressive strength of 2,880 psi or 80 percent of the specified strength, whichever is greater 
 
Do not release falsework for prestressed portions of structures until prestressing steel has been 
tensioned. 

Do not release falsework supporting any span of a continuous or rigid frame bridge until all required 
prestressing is complete (1) in that span and (2) in adjacent portions of each adjoining span for a length 
equal to at least one half of the span where falsework is to be released. 

Release falsework supporting spans of CIP girders, slab bridges, or culverts before constructing or 
installing railings or barriers on the spans, unless authorized. 

Release falsework for arch bridges uniformly and gradually. Start at the crown and work toward the 
springing. Release falsework for adjacent arch spans concurrently. 

Do not release falsework that supports overhangs, deck slabs between girders, or girder stems that slope 
45 degrees or more from vertical before 7 days after deck concrete has been placed. 

You may release falsework supporting the sides of girder stems that slope less than 45 degrees from 
vertical before placing deck concrete if you install lateral supports. Lateral supports must be: 

1. Designed to resist rotational forces on the girder stem, including forces due to concrete deck 
placement 

2. Installed immediately after each form panel is removed 
3. Installed before releasing supports for the adjacent form panel 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 92 of 200 

 
Do not release falsework for bent caps supporting steel or PC concrete girders before 7 days after placing 
bent cap concrete. 

Release falsework for structural members subject to bending as specified for simple span bridges. 

Do not release falsework for box culverts and other structures with decks lower than the roadway 
pavement and span lengths of 14 feet or less until the last placed concrete has attained a compressive 
strength of 1,600 psi. Curing of the concrete must not be interrupted. Falsework release for other box 
culverts must comply with the specifications for the release of bridge falsework. 

Do not release falsework for arch culverts sooner than 40 hours after concrete has been placed. 

Remove falsework piling to at least 2 feet below the original ground or streambed. Remove falsework 
piling driven within ditch or channel excavation limits to at least 2 feet below the bottom and side slopes of 
the excavated areas. 

Falsework removal systems employing methods of holding falsework by winches, hydraulic jacks with 
prestressing steel, HS steel rods, or cranes must also be supported by an independent support system 
when the falsework is over vehicular, pedestrian, or railroad traffic openings open to traffic. 

Bridge deck and soffit openings used to facilitate falsework removal activities must: 

1. Have a 6-inch maximum diameter opening. 
2. Be located away from the wheel paths for deck openings. 
3. Be formed with corrugated HDPE pipe complying with section 20-2.07B(3). 
 
Before filling the bridge deck and soffit openings with concrete: 

1. Trim HDPE pipes 1 inch from the exposed surface of the top of deck, bottom overhand, and soffit 
2. Clean and roughen concrete surfaces of opening. Fill the opening with rapid setting concrete 

complying with section 60-3.02B(2) or with a concrete mix of equal or higher strength than the deck. 
Finish surface must comply with section 51-10.3F(2). 

 
Falsework removal over roadways with a vertical traffic opening of less than 20 feet must start within 14 
days after the falsework is eligible to be released and must be completed within 45 days after it is eligible 
to be released. 

 

Replace section 48-2.03E with: 
04-17-20 

48-2.03E  Falsework Lighting 
48-2.03E(1)  General 
Notify the Engineer at least 5 business days before the installation of the falsework lighting. 

Fasten power cables to the supporting structure at a minimum 3-foot intervals and within 12 inches from 
every box. Encase cables within 8 feet of the ground in a minimum 1/2-inch Type 1 conduit. 

Enclose splices in junction boxes. 

Provide power for the falsework lighting under section 87-20. 

Energize lighting circuits immediately after supporting structures have been erected. 

48-2.03E(2)  Pavement Illumination 
Provide pavement illumination on roadways beneath falsework structures. 

Install luminaires: 

1. Along the sides of the opening not more than 4 feet behind or 2 feet in front of the roadway face of 
the temporary railing 

2. 12 to 16 feet above the roadway surface without obstructing the light pattern on the pavement 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 93 of 200 

 
3. Aimed to avoid glare to motorists 
4. Spaced to comply with the illumination levels table 
5. At the ends no more than 10 feet inside portal faces 
 
Measure the illumination levels at a minimum two points per lane, one on each side within one-quarter of 
the lane width from the lane stripe. Use this pattern to start the measurements at both ends of the 
falsework and then at 15-foot intervals through the length of the pavement under the falsework. 

48-2.03E(3)  Portal Illumination 
Provide portal illumination on the sides facing traffic. Install luminaires and clearance guides immediately 
after falsework vertical members are erected. 

Fasten clearance guides: 

1. To the vertical support adjacent to the traveled way, facing traffic 
2. Vertically with the bottom of the clearance guide from 3 to 4 feet above the roadway 
3. With the center located approximately 3 feet horizontally behind the railing face on the roadway side 
 
Paint clearance guides before each installation with not less than 2 applications of flat white paint.  

If ordered, repainting is change order work. 

Install luminaires on the structure directly over the vertical support, approximately 16 feet above the 
pavement and 6 feet in front of the guides. Aim the luminaires to illuminate the exterior falsework beam, 
the clearance guides, and the overhead clearance sign and comply with the illumination levels table. 

Measure the illumination levels at the center and four corners of the clearance guides, at the exterior 
falsework beam, and at the overhead clearance sign. 

48-2.03E(4)  Pedestrian Walkway Illumination 
Provide pedestrian walkway illumination immediately after the protective overhead covering is erected. 

Install the luminaires a minimum 8 feet clearance in the protective overhead covering and center them 
over the pedestrian walkway. Space the luminaires through the pedestrian walkway as needed to comply 
with the illumination levels table. Install luminaires at the ends no more than 7 feet inside the pedestrian 
walkway openings. 

Measure the illumination levels at a minimum two points, one on each side within one-quarter of the 
walkway width from the edge. Use this pattern to start the measurements at both ends of the falsework 
and then at 10-foot intervals through the length of the pedestrian walkway. 

 

Replace item 11 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 48-3.01C(2) with: 
04-17-20 

11. Mitigation plan for jacking the structure if settlement occurs in the temporary supports. 
 
 

10-19-18 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 48-3.01C(2). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 48-3.01D(1) with: 
04-17-20 

Welding, welder qualification, and welding inspection for temporary supports must comply with AWS D1.1 
and section 48-2. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 94 of 200 

 
Replace section 48-3.02B with: 

04-17-20 
48-3.02B  Design Criteria 
The Engineer does not authorize temporary support designs based on allowable stresses or design load 
greater than those specified in section 48-2.02B(3). 

If falsework loads are imposed on temporary supports, the temporary supports must also satisfy the 
deflection criteria in section 48-2.02B(3). 

The temporary support system must support the initial jacking loads and the minimum temporary support 
design loads and forces shown. As a minimum, the horizontal load to be resisted in any direction by the 
temporary support system must be (1) the sum of actual horizontal loads due to equipment, construction 
sequence, or other causes plus an allowance for wind and (2) not less than 5 percent of the total 
supported dead load at the location being considered. Adjust vertical design loads for the weight of the 
temporary supports and jacking system, construction equipment loads, and additional loads imposed by 
jacking activities. Construction equipment loads must be at least 20 psf of deck surface area of the frame 
involved. 

Temporary supports must resist the described lateral design forces applied at the point where the column 
to be removed meets the superstructure. If the temporary support lateral stiffness exceeds the described 
minimum stiffness, increase the lateral design forces to be compatible with the temporary support 
stiffness. 

Place temporary supports, that are resisting transverse lateral loads, within 1/2 of the span length from 
the existing bent. Place temporary supports, that are resisting longitudinal lateral loads, within the frame 
where columns are to be removed. 

You may use the permanent piles as part of the temporary support foundation. Do not move or adjust 
permanent piles from the locations shown. If you install permanent piles longer than described to support 
the temporary supports above the top of the footing and later cut off the piles at their final elevation, you 
must use shear devices adequate to transfer all pile reactions into the footing. 

Design temporary support footings to carry the loads imposed without exceeding the estimated soil 
bearing values or anticipated settlements. You must determine soil bearing values. 

Where temporary supports are placed on the deck of an existing structure: 

1. Temporary supports must bear either: 
1.1. Directly on girder stems, bent caps, or end diaphragms of the supporting structure 
1.2. On falsework sills that transmit the load to the stems, bent cap, or end diaphragms without 

overstressing any member of the new or existing structure 
2. Temporary supports must not induce permanent forces into the completed structure or produce 

cracking. 
3. Place additional temporary supports beneath the existing structure where temporary support loads 

are imposed on the existing structure. Design and construct the additional temporary supports to 
support all loads from the upper structure and construction activities. 

 
Provide additional bracing as required to withstand all imposed loads during each phase of temporary 
support erection and removal. Include wind loads complying with section 48-2.02B(2) in the design of 
additional bracing. 

Mechanically connect (1) the structure to the temporary supports and (2) the temporary supports to their 
foundations. Mechanical connections must be capable of resisting the lateral design forces. Friction 
forces developed between the structure and temporary supports (1) are not considered an effective 
mechanical connection and (2) must not be used to reduce lateral forces. 

Design mechanical connections to accommodate movement resulting from adjustments made to the 
temporary supports. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 95 of 200 

 
If the concrete is to be prestressed, design temporary supports to support changes to the loads caused 
by prestressing forces. 

Temporary supports must comply with the specifications for falsework in section 48-2.02B(4). 

 

Replace section 48-4.01 with: 
04-17-20 

48-4.01  GENERAL 
48-4.01A  Summary 
Section 48-4 includes specifications for temporary decking for joint or deck reconstruction. 

Temporary decking must consist of a steel plate system that spans the incomplete work. 

Concrete anchorage devices and nonskid surface must comply with section 75-3. 

48-4.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

48-4.01C  Submittals 
Submit shop drawings and calculations for temporary decking. 

Shop drawings and calculations for temporary decking must be sealed and signed by an engineer who is 
registered as a civil engineer in the State. 

Temporary decking shop drawings and calculations must include: 

1. Storage location of equipment and materials that allows for 1 shift of work and placement of 
temporary decking within the time allowed 

2. Construction sequence and schedule details 
3. Cure time for concrete to be placed under temporary decking 
4. Details for removing temporary decking and restoring the existing structure 
 
If temporary decking is not shown, shop drawings and calculations must also include: 

1. Design calculations, including the description, location, and value, of all loads 
2. Details of the connection between the temporary decking and the existing or new structure 
 
Submit a certificate of compliance for temporary decking materials. 

Sections 48-1.01C(2), 48-1.01C(3), and 48-1.01D(2) do not apply for temporary decking. 

48-4.01D  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 
 

Replace Not Used in section 48-4.02 with: 
04-17-20 

48-4.02A  General 
Yield strength of steel plate must be greater than or equal to 36 ksi. 

Bolts must comply with ASTM F3125, Grade A325. 

Nuts must comply with ASTM A563/563M. 

Material for temporary tapers must be rapid setting concrete or polyester concrete complying with section 
60-3.02B(2) or 60-3.04B(2). 

48-4.02B  Design Criteria 
If temporary decking is not shown, the temporary decking design must: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 96 of 200 

 
1. Comply with the unfactored permit loads, braking force, and HL93 loads except lane load from the 

current AASHTO LRFD Bridge Design Specifications with California Amendments. 
2. Not exceed the allowable stresses or design loads specified in section 48-2.02B(3). 
3. Have live load deflection not exceeding 1/300 of the temporary decking span for the design load. 
4. Provide for temporary decking with a uniform surface with a coefficient of friction of at least 0.35 when 

measured under California Test 342. 
5. Provide for temporary decking that is mechanically connected to the existing structure and adjacent 

approaches. If a steel plate spans a joint, the mechanical connection must accommodate at least 50 
percent of the movement rating shown for that joint. 

6. Not overstress, induce permanent forces into, or produce cracking in the existing structure. 
 
 

Replace section 48-4.03 with: 
04-17-20 

48-4.03  CONSTRUCTION 
For bolted connections, drill the holes without damaging the adjacent concrete. Do not damage existing 
reinforcement. 

If the temporary decking does not extend the entire width of the roadway, taper the sides of the temporary 
decking at a 12:1 (horizontal: vertical) ratio. 

Cure temporary tapers at least 3 hours before allowing traffic on the temporary decking. 

If unanticipated displacements, cracking, or other damage occurs to the existing structure or to any new 
components installed in or adjacent to the deck, stop work on the deck and perform corrective measures. 

Edges of steel plate systems must be in full contact with the existing deck and the adjacent approach 
slab. If used, shims must be securely attached to the plate. 

Do not allow traffic on deck concrete until it has attained the compressive strength shown. 

When temporary decking is no longer needed, immediately remove temporary decking materials and 
connections from the existing structure. Patch holes with rapid setting concrete complying with section 
60-3.02. Remove modifications to the existing structure except where permanent alterations are shown. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 48-5.01C. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 48-5.02B with: 
10-19-18 

The jacking support system must resist the structure dead load and lateral design forces shown, plus any 
additional loads from jacking equipment and activities. As a minimum, the horizontal load to be resisted in 
any direction for the jacking support system and temporary bracing must be (1) the sum of actual 
horizontal loads due to equipment, construction sequence, or other causes plus an allowance for wind as 
specified in Section 48-2.02B(2) and (2) not less than 2 percent of the total dead load of the structure 
being jacked. You must determine soil bearing values for support footings. If the jacking support stiffness 
exceeds the described minimum stiffness, increase the lateral design forces to be compatible with the 
jacking support lateral stiffness. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 48-5.03 with: 
10-19-18 

Construct the jacking support system under the specifications for falsework in section 48-2.03. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 97 of 200 

 
Add to the end of section 48-6.01C(1): 

04-17-20 
Sections 48-1.01C(2), 48-1.01C(3), and 48-1.01D(2) do not apply for temporary wood poles. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 48-6.01D(1) with: 
04-17-20 

A temporary-structure engineer is not required. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 48-6.02B. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

49  PILING 
04-19-19 

Replace the 6th paragraph of section 49-1.01D(4) with: 
10-19-18 

Except for load test piles and anchor piles, drive the 1st production pile in the control zone. Do not install 
any additional production piles until dynamic monitoring has been performed, and the Engineer provides 
you with the bearing acceptance criteria curves for any piles represented by the dynamically monitored 
piles. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 49-2.01D with: 
10-19-18 

The payment quantity for furnish piling is the length measured along the longest side of the pile from the 
specified tip elevation shown to the plane of pile cutoff, except for dynamically monitored piles. For 
dynamically monitored piles, the payment quantity for furnish piling includes an additional length of 2 
times the largest cross-sectional dimension of the pile plus 2 feet. 

 

Add to the end of section 49-2.02A(2): 
10-19-18 

longitudinal weld length: The length of a continuous longitudinal weld. 

circumferential weld length: The length of a continuous weld around the circumference of the pipe pile. 

spiral weld length: The length of one full 360-degree spiral weld revolution around the circumference of 
the pipe pile. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 49-2.02A(4)(b)(iii)(B) with: 
10-19-18 

For welding performed under AWS D1.1: 

1. Perform NDT on 25 percent of each longitudinal, circumferential, or spiral weld length using RT or 
UT. 

2. If repairs are required in a portion of the tested weld: 
2.1. Perform additional NDT on untested areas on each end of the initial portion tested. The length 

of additional NDT on each end must equal 10 percent of the weld length. If it is not possible to 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 98 of 200 

 
perform 10 percent of the weld length on one end, perform the remaining percentage on the 
other end. 

2.2. After this additional 20 percent of NDT is performed, determine and record the total cumulative 
repair lengths from all NDT for each weld length. If the cumulative weld repair length is equal to 
or more than 10 percent of the weld length, then perform NDT on the entire weld length. 

2.3. Perform NDT on the repaired portion plus 2 inches on each end of the repaired weld 
excavation. 

 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 49-2.02A(4)(b)(iii)(C) with: 
10-19-18 

Perform NDT on 25 percent of the weld length performed by each welder, using RT or UT at locations 
selected by the Engineer. The Engineer may select several locations on a given splice. The cover pass 
must be ground smooth at locations to be tested. 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 49-2.02A(4)(b)(iii)(C) with: 
10-19-18 

If repairs are required in a portion of the tested weld: 

1. Perform additional NDT on untested areas on each end of the initial portion tested. The length of 
additional NDT on each end must equal 10 percent of the pipe's outside circumference. If it is not 
possible to perform 10 percent of the weld length on one end, perform the remaining percentage on 
the other end. 

2. After this additional 20 percent of NDT is performed, determine and record the total cumulative repair 
lengths from all NDT for each weld length. If the cumulative weld repair length is equal to or more 
than 10 percent of the pipe's outside circumference, then perform NDT on the entire weld length. 

3. Perform NDT on the repaired portion plus 2 inches on each end of the repaired weld excavation. 
 
 

Replace the 5th paragraph of section 49-2.02B(1)(b) with: 
04-19-19 

If splicing steel pipe piles using a circumferential weld, the piles must comply with the fit-up requirements 
of clause 9.24.1 of AWS D1.1. 

 

Replace section 49-3.01B(2) with: 
04-19-19 

49-3.01B(2)  Mass Concrete 
Section 49-3.01B(2) applies to CIP concrete piles with a diameter greater than 8 feet. 

For piles with a diameter greater than 8 feet and less than or equal to 14 feet: 

1. The specifications for SCM content in the 4th paragraph of section 90-1.02B(3) do not apply. 
2. The SCM content of the concrete must comply with the following: 

2.1. Any combination of portland cement and fly ash satisfying: 
 

Equation 1: 
 
(12 x FM)/MC  X 
 
where: 
FM = fly ash complying with AASHTO M 295, Class F, with a CaO content of up to 10 percent, 

including the quantity in blended cement, lb/cu yd 
MC = minimum quantity of cementitious material specified, lb/cu yd 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 99 of 200 

 
X = 3.0 for 8 < D ≤ 10, where D = pile diameter in feet 
X = 4.0 for 10 < D ≤ 14, where D = pile diameter in feet 
 
Equation 2: 
 
MC - MSCM - PC  0 
 
where: 
MC = minimum quantity of cementitious material specified, lb/cu yd 
MSCM = minimum sum of SCMs that satisfies equation 1, lb/cu yd 
PC = quantity of portland cement, including the quantity in blended cement, lb/cu yd 
 

2.2. You may replace any portion of the portland cement with any SCM complying with section 90-
1.02B(3) if equations 1 and 2 are satisfied as specified above. 

 
For piles with a diameter greater than 14 feet, the concrete must comply with the specifications for mass 
concrete in section 51-6. 

 

Add to the end of section 49-3.02C(1): 
04-19-19 

You may construct CIDH concrete piles 24 inches in diameter or larger by excavating and depositing 
concrete under slurry. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete the 2nd paragraph of section 49-3.02C(8). 

 

Replace section 49-4.01 with: 
04-19-19 

49-4.01  GENERAL 
49-4.01A  Summary 
Section 49-4 includes specifications for drilling holes and installing steel soldier piles in the holes. 

Steel soldier piles must comply with section 49-2.03. 

49-4.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

49-4.01C  Submittals 
Reserved 

49-4.01D  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

51  CONCRETE STRUCTURES 
04-17-20 

Add to the beginning of section 51-1.01C(1): 
04-19-19 

If ordered, submit concrete form design and materials data for each forming system. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 100 of 200 

 
 

Replace section 51-1.01C(5) with: 
04-17-20 

51-1.01C(5)  Drill and Bond Dowel—Chemical Adhesive 
For each lot or batch of chemical adhesive used for drill and bond dowel chemical-adhesive systems, 
submit the following: 

1. Certificate of compliance, including the material name and lot or batch number 
2. Manufacturer's installation procedures, including the minimum cure time 
3. SDS 
 
For each chemical adhesive, submit 1 test sample for every 100 cartridges or fraction thereof to be used. 
The test sample must consist of 1 cartridge of chemical adhesive, 1 mixing nozzle, and 1 retaining nut. 
Submit test samples to METS at least 25 days before use. 

Each test sample must clearly and permanently show the following: 

1. Manufacturer's name 
2. Material name 
3. Lot or batch number 
4. Expiration date 
5. Evaluation report number 
6. Directions for use 
7. Storage requirements 
8. Warnings or precautions required by State and federal laws and regulations 
 
 

Add to the end of section 51-1.01D(3): 
04-17-20 

51-1.01D(3)(c)  Drill and Bond Dowel—Chemical Adhesive 
The Department will verify the chemical adhesive used in the drill and bond dowel chemical adhesive 
system is chemically consistent with the chemical adhesive material on the Authorized Materials List. 

 

Add to the end of section 51-1.02B: 
10-18-19 

Concrete for concrete bridge decks or PCC deck overlays must contain: 

1. Polymer fibers. Each cubic yard of concrete must contain at least 1 pound of microfibers and at least 
3 pounds of macrofibers. 

2. Shrinkage reducing admixture. Each cubic yard of concrete must contain at least 3/4 gallon of a 
shrinkage reducing admixture. If you use the maximum dosage rate shown on the Authorized Material 
List for the shrinkage reducing admixture, your submitted shrinkage test data does not need to meet 
the shrinkage limitation specified in section 90-1.02A. 

 
 

Replace section 51-1.02D with: 
04-17-20 

51-1.02D  Rapid Strength Concrete 
For bridge decks or PCC deck overlays: 

1. RSC must have a minimum 28-day compressive strength of 4,500 psi 
2. RSC must contain at least 675 pounds of cementitious material per cubic yard 
3. If your RSC shrinkage test results are 0.24 percent or less without the use of a shrinkage reducing 

admixture: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 101 of 200 

 
3.1 Use of shrinkage reducing admixture is not required 
3.2 Fibers are not required 

4. If you use the maximum dosage rate shown on the Authorized Material List for shrinkage reducing 
admixture, your shrinkage test results must be 0.032 percent or less 

 
RSC must have a minimum 28-day compressive strength of 4,000 psi. 

If you use chemical admixtures or SCMs, the same proportions must be used when testing. 

If you use aggregate that is not on the Authorized Material List for innocuous aggregate, the cement in 
your proposed mix design must comply with one of the following: 

1. Any hydraulic cement, with or without any proposed SCM, must have an expansion ratio of less than 
0.10 percent when tested with glass aggregate under ASTM C1260. Test specimens must be 
prepared using proportions of ingredients under ASTM C441. 

2. For Portland cement, the quantity of SCM in your proposed mix design must satisfy equation 1 of 
section 90-1.02B(3). 

 
The specifications for a reduction in the operating range and contract compliance for cleanness value and 
sand equivalent specified in section 90-1.02C(2) and section 90-1.02C(3) for aggregate, do not apply to 
RSC used for a bridge element. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 51-1.02H with: 
04-17-20 

Chemical adhesives for bonding dowels must be on the Authorized Material List for chemical adhesives 
and must be appropriate for the installation conditions of the project. 

 

10-18-19 
Delete the 5th paragraph of section 51-1.03C(2)(b). 

 

Add to the end of section 51-1.03E(1): 
04-17-20 

Repair rejected holes, that will not be encased in concrete, with bonding material complying with section 
51-1.02C. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 51-1.03E(3) with: 
04-17-20 

If reinforcement is encountered during drilling before the specified depth is attained, notify the Engineer. 
Unless coring through the reinforcement is authorized. Drill a new hole adjacent to the rejected hole to the 
depth shown. 

 

Replace section 51-1.03E(5) with: 
04-17-20 

51-1.03E(5)  Drill and Bond Dowel—Chemical Adhesive 
Install dowels for the drill and bond dowel chemical adhesive system under the manufacturer's 
instructions. When installing dowels in new concrete, install after the concrete has cured for at least 28 
days. 

Drill the holes without damaging the adjacent concrete. Remove all loose dust and concrete particles from 
the hole and protect the hole from deleterious materials until the anchor is installed. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 102 of 200 

 
If reinforcement is encountered during drilling before the specified depth is attained, notify the Engineer. 
Unless coring through the reinforcement is authorized. Drill a new hole adjacent to the rejected hole to the 
depth shown. 

Immediately after inserting the dowel into the chemical adhesive, support the dowel as necessary to 
prevent movement until the chemical adhesive has cured the minimum time specified in the 
manufacturer's instructions. Dowels must not be adjusted by bending. The adhesive must be fully cured 
before the dowel is put into service. 

Replace dowels that fail to bond or are damaged. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 51-1.03H with: 
10-18-19 

Cure the top surface of bridge decks by (1) misting and (2) the water method using a curing medium 
under section 90-1.03B(2). After strike-off, immediately and continuously mist the deck with an atomizing 
nozzle that forms a mist and not a spray. Continue misting until the curing medium has been placed and 
the application of water for the water method has started. At the end of the curing period, remove the 
curing medium and apply curing compound on the top surface of the bridge deck during the same work 
shift under section 90-1.03B(3). The curing compound must be curing compound no. 1. 

 

10-18-19 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 51-1.03H. 

 

Add to section 51-1.03: 
10-19-18 

51-1.03J  Temporary Decking 
If you are unable to complete bridge reconstruction activities before the bridge is to be opened to traffic, 
furnish and maintain temporary decking under section 48-4 until that portion of the work is complete. 

 

Add to the end of section 51-2.01A(1): 
10-18-19 

The specifications for (1) shrinkage in section 90-1.02A, (2) shrinkage reducing chemical admixture in 
section 51-1.02B, and (3) polymer fibers in section 51-1.02B do not apply to concrete used to fill blocked-
out recesses for joint seal assemblies. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 51-4.01C(1) with: 
04-19-19 

For PC PS concrete girders and deck panels, submit an erection work plan. The work plan must be 
signed by an engineer who is registered as a civil engineer in the State and include procedures, details, 
and sequences for: 

1. Unloading 
2. Lifting 
3. Erecting 
4. Temporary bracing installation 
 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 51-4.01C(2)(a) with: 
04-19-19 

Submit shop drawings for PC concrete members to the OSD Documents Unit unless otherwise specified. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 103 of 200 

 
 

Replace Reserved in section 51-4.01C(2)(e) with: 
04-19-19 

For PC deck panels, shop drawings must include: 

1. Panel materials, shapes, and dimensions. 
2. Deck panel layout identifying the locations of each panel. 
3. Reinforcing, joint, and connection details. 
4. Complete details of the methods, materials, and equipment used in prestressing and precasting work. 
5. Type of texture and method of forming the textured finish. 
6. Methods and details for lifting, bracing, and erection. 
7. Method of support and grade adjustment. 
8. Methods of sealing against concrete leaks. 
 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 51-4.02B with: 
04-19-19 

Handle, store, transport, and erect PC members in a position such that the points of support and 
directions of the reactions with respect to the member are approximately the same as when the member 
is in its final position. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 51-4.02D(7) with: 
04-19-19 

Clearly label the top surface of each panel with the word TOP as shown on the deck panel layout using 
waterproof paint or other authorized means. 

Apply a coarse texture to at least 90 percent of the deck panel top surface area by brooming with a stiff 
bristled broom or by other suitable devices that results in uniform scoring parallel with the prestressing 
strands. The top surface texture must have a maximum 1/8-inch texture. 

Each camber strip must: 

1. Consist of high density expanded polystyrene with a minimum compressive strength of 55 psi. 
2. Consist of a single layer and extend continuously under each deck panel. 
3. Achieve a height that accounts for roadway profile, cross slope, and girder camber. 
4. Have 1/4-inch v-notches or 1/2 by 1/2-inch slots cut into the top surface on 4-foot centers. 
 
Camber strip dimensions must comply with the following table: 

Polystyrene Camber Strip Dimensions 
Height (H) 
(inches) 

Width (W) 
(inches) 

1 to 2.5 1.5 
Greater than 2.5 and less than or equal to 3.5 1.75 
Greater than 3.5 and less than or equal to 4 2 

 

Chemical adhesive must be suitable for use with concrete and polystyrene. 

For the concrete deck pour, the aggregate must comply with the 1/2-inch maximum or the 3/8-inch 
maximum combined aggregate gradation specified in section 90-1.02C(4)(d). 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 104 of 200 

 
Add between the 5th and 6th paragraphs of section 51-4.03B: 

10-19-18 
Erect steel or PC girders onto the supporting concrete, such as bent caps or abutments, after the 
concrete attains a compressive strength of 2,880 psi or 80 percent of the specified strength, whichever is 
greater. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 51-4.03G with: 
04-19-19 

Construct the deck panel system in the following sequence: 

1. After girders and diaphragms are in place, place each polystyrene camber strip along the top of each 
girder. Apply a continuous bead of chemical adhesive to the top and bottom of each camber strip to 
prevent gaps between the camber strip and concrete members. 

2. Place each deck panel as shown on the deck panel layout such that each panel bears uniformly on 
the camber strips. 

3. Abrasive blast clean deck panel and girder surfaces before placing deck reinforcement. Remove all 
surface laitance, curing compound, and other foreign materials. Thoroughly clean under the edges of 
each panel to ensure removal of construction debris before the stage 1 deck pour. 

4. Place deck reinforcement. 
5. Place deck concrete in a two-stage continuous pour: 

5.1. Place and vibrate stage 1 concrete over the girders by completely filling the area between the 
camber strips in from 15 to 30 feet longitudinal sections ahead of the stage 2 concrete deck 
pour. Check slots or holes in camber strips to ensure removal of air voids and full consolidation 
during concrete placement. 

5.2. Place stage 2 concrete deck over stage 1 concrete and deck panels as to not result in a cold 
joint between the two stages. 

 
If required, install temporary bracing between the ends of each deck panel to prevent transverse panel 
movement that could lead to loss of bearing on the camber strips. 

Loads placed on deck panels during construction must not exceed 50 psf. 

 

Replace the row for Apparent elongation in the table in the 2nd paragraph of section 51-5.02B 
with: 

04-19-19 
Apparent elongation (max, percent) ASTM D4632 35 

 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

52  REINFORCEMENT 
04-17-20 

Replace section 52-1.02E with: 
04-17-20 

52-1.02E  Dowels 
52-1.02E(1)  General 
Reinforcing steel dowels must be deformed bars complying with section 52-1.02B. 

Threaded rods used as dowels must comply with section 75-1.02A. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 105 of 200 

 
52-1.02E(2)  Dowels for Drill and Bond Dowel—Chemical Adhesive 
Dowels for drill and bond dowel chemical-adhesive systems must be one of the following: 

1. Threaded rods complying with ASTM F1554, Grade 36 
2. Deformed bar reinforcement complying with section 52-1.02B 
3. Stainless steel reinforcement complying with ASTM A955/A955M, Grade 60, UNS Designation 

S31653, S32304, S32205, or S31803 
 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

53  SHOTCRETE 
10-18-19 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 53-1.01A with: 
10-18-19 

Section 53-1 includes general specifications for applying shotcrete. 

 

Replace section 53-1.01B with: 
10-18-19 

53-1.01B  Definitions 
shotcrete: Concrete pneumatically projected at high velocity onto a surface to achieve compaction. 

dry-mix shotcrete: Dry aggregates and cementitious materials are mixed before entering the delivery 
hose. Mixing water is added at the nozzle. 

wet-mix shotcrete: Dry aggregates, cementitious materials, and water are mixed before entering the 
delivery hose. If used, accelerator may be added at the nozzle. 

rebound: Aggregate coated with cement paste that ricochets away from the surface against which the 
shotcrete is being applied. 

 

Replace Reserved in section 53-1.01D with: 
10-18-19 

Air pressure and shotcrete supply at the nozzle must be uniform and provide a steady, continuous flow of 
shotcrete. Inspect nozzles and nozzle body components before each work shift. Replace nozzles and 
components under the manufacturer's instructions. 

 

Replace the introductory clause to the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 53-1.02 with: 
10-18-19 

For dry-mix shotcrete: 

 

Replace the introductory clause to the list in the 3rd paragraph of section 53-1.02 with: 
10-18-19 

For wet-mix shotcrete: 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in item 2 in the list in the 3rd paragraph of section 53-1.02 with: 
10-18-19 

2. You may substitute a maximum of 40 percent coarse aggregate for the fine aggregate. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 106 of 200 

 
 
 

Replace section 53-1.03B with: 
10-18-19 

53-1.03B  Preparing Receiving Surfaces 
Evenly grade the receiving surface before applying shotcrete. No point on the graded slope may be 
above the slope plane shown. 

Thoroughly compact the receiving surface. The receiving surface must contain enough moisture to 
provide a firm foundation and prevent excess absorption of water from the shotcrete. The receiving 
surface must be free of surface water. 

Forms must comply with section 51-1.03C(2). Reinforce, secure, and brace forms to maintain form 
alignment against distortion from shotcrete operations. Install and maintain alignment control means at 
corners or offsets not established by forms or shotcrete operations. 

Use ground wires to establish thickness, surface planes, and finish lines. Use temporary coverings to 
protect adjacent surfaces from the nozzle stream. 

 

Replace section 53-1.03C with: 
10-18-19 

53-1.03C  Applying Shotcrete 
Dry-mix or wet-mix shotcrete must be applied by the nozzle. 

Apply shotcrete using small circular motions of the nozzle while building the required thickness. Direct the 
nozzle perpendicular to the receiving surface with the nozzle held at such a distance to produce 
maximum consolidation and full encapsulation of the reinforcement. Shotcrete must completely encase 
reinforcement and other obstructions. 

Apply shotcrete first in corners, voids, and areas where rebound or overspray cannot easily escape. Do 
not incorporate rebound or overspray in the work. 

Before applying subsequent layers of shotcrete: 

1. Allow shotcrete to stiffen sufficiently. Remove hardened overspray and rebound from adjacent 
surfaces, including exposed reinforcement. 

2. Use a cutting rod, compressed air blowpipe, or other authorized methods to remove all loose 
material, overspray, laitance, or other deleterious materials that may compromise the bond of the 
subsequent layers of shotcrete. 

3. Bring the receiving surface to a saturated surface-dry condition immediately before applying 
subsequent layer. 

 
For dry-mix shotcrete: 

1. Adjust air volume, material feed volume, and distance of the nozzle from the work as necessary to 
encase reinforcement. 

2. Maintain uniform water pressure at the nozzle of at least 15 psi greater than the air pressure at the 
machine. 

3. Do not use aggregate and cementitious materials that have been mixed for more than 45 minutes. 
 
For wet-mix shotcrete: 

1. Transport shotcrete under section 90-1.02G(3). 
2. Apply ground wires at approximately 7-foot centers. 
3. Select a slump range that will effectively encapsulate reinforcement within the work but not cause 

shotcrete to sag or slough during application. 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 107 of 200 

 
 

Replace section 53-1.03D with: 
10-18-19 

53-1.03D  Finishing Shotcrete 
Apply shotcrete to the line and grade shown. Leave finished shotcrete surface as gun finish unless 
otherwise described. 

Do not initiate cutting or finishing until the shotcrete has set sufficiently to avoid sloughing or sagging. The 
finished surface must be smooth and uniform for the type of work involved. 

Remove and replace loose areas of shotcrete. 

Cure shotcrete for at least 7 days by any of the methods specified in section 90-1.03B. If the curing 
compound method is used for a gun or roughened surface, apply the curing compound at twice the 
specified rate. If you add a coloring agent to the shotcrete and you use the curing compound method for 
curing the shotcrete, use curing compound no. 6. 

Protect shotcrete under section 90-1.03C. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 53-1.04 with: 
10-18-19 

The Department does not pay for shotcrete applied outside the dimensions shown or to fill low areas of 
receiving surfaces. 

 

Replace the paragraph of section 53-2.01A with: 
10-18-19 

Section 53-2 includes specifications for applying structural shotcrete. Structural shotcrete must be applied 
using wet-mix shotcrete. 

 

Replace qualifications in item 1.1 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 53-2.01C with: 
10-18-19 

certifications 
 

Replace the paragraph of section 53-2.01D(2) with: 
10-18-19 

Nozzlemen performing the work must hold current ACI CPP 660.1-17 certification as a nozzleman for 
wet-mix shotcrete. Nozzlemen performing overhead shotcrete work must hold current qualifying ACI CPP 
660.1-17 certification in the overhead shooting orientation for wet-mix shotcrete. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 53-2.01D(3) with: 
10-18-19 

Each nozzleman performing the work must construct 1 unreinforced test panel and 1 reinforced test panel 
for each proposed mix design. The test panel orientation must match the orientation of the work. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 1st paragraph of section 53-2.01D(4)(b) with: 
10-18-19 

Obtain at least four 3-inch-diameter test cores from each 50 cu yd, or portion thereof, of shotcrete 
applied. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 108 of 200 

 
 

Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 53-2.01D(4)(b): 
10-19-18 

For soil nail walls, do not core through waler bars. 

 

Replace section 53-2.02 with: 
10-18-19 

53-2.02  MATERIALS 
Shotcrete must comply with the specifications for concrete in section 90-1. 

Shotcrete must have a minimum compressive strength of 3,600 psi, unless otherwise described. 

Mortar and alternative filler material must comply with section 60-3.05B(2). 

 

10-18-19 
Delete the 2nd paragraph of section 53-2.03. 

 

Add between the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 53-2.03: 
10-18-19 

Before applying shotcrete, reinforcement must be: 

1. Free from loose rust, oil, curing compound, overspray, or other material deleterious to the bond 
between concrete and steel. 

2. Lapped separated by one of the following: 
2.1. Three times the diameter of the largest reinforcing bar. 
2.2. Three times the maximum size aggregate. 
2.3. Two inches, whichever is least, unless otherwise specified. Lapped bars must be in the same 

plane and parallel to the shooting direction. 
3. Securely tied to minimize movement or vibration. 
 
The temperature of reinforcement and receiving surfaces must be below 90 degrees F before applying 
shotcrete. 

Apply the wet-mix shotcrete continuously removing accumulations of rebound and overspray using a 
compressed air blowpipe. Ensure the nozzleman and the blowpipe operator work together and the 
nozzleman does not get ahead of the blowpipe operator. 

 

10-18-19 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 53-2.03. 

 

Replace the 7th paragraph of section 53-2.03 with: 
10-18-19 

If a finish coat is used, clean the surface before applying the finish coat. Wash receiving surface with an 
air-water blast to remove all loose material, laitance, overspray, or other material that may compromise 
the bond of subsequent layers of shotcrete. 

 

10-18-19 
Delete the 8th paragraph of section 53-2.03. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 109 of 200 

 
Replace the 12th paragraph of section 53-2.03 with: 

10-18-19 
After removing field QC test cores, fill the holes with mortar or alternative filler material. If using mortar, 
apply mortar under section 51-1.03E(2). If using an alternative filler material, apply a bonding epoxy 
before placing the filler material. Apply the alternative filler material under the manufacturer's instructions. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

55  STEEL STRUCTURES 
04-19-19 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 55-1.02E(7)(a) with: 
04-19-19 

Dimensional details and workmanship for welded joints in tubular and pipe connections must comply with 
clause 9 of AWS D1.1. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

56  OVERHEAD SIGN STRUCTURES, STANDARDS, AND POLES 
04-17-20 

Replace section 56-1.01D(2)(b)(i) with: 
04-19-19 

56-1.01D(2)(b)(i)  General 
Perform NDT of steel members under AWS D1.1 and the requirements shown in the following tables: 

Nondestructive Testing for Steel Standards and Poles 
Weld location Weld type Minimum required NDT 

Circumferential splices 
around the perimeter of 
tubular sections, poles, 
and arms 

CJP groove weld with 
backing ring 

100% UT or RT 

Longitudinal seam CJP or PJP groove 
weld 

Random 25% MT 

Longitudinal seam within 6 
inches of a circumferential 
weld 

CJP groove weld 100% UT or RT 

 
Welds attaching base 
plates, flange plates, pole 

CJP groove weld with 
backing ring and 
reinforcing fillet 

t≥ 1/4 inch: 100% UT and 100% MT 
t< 1/4 inch: 100% MT after final weld 

pass 
plates, or mast arm plates 
to poles or arm tubes 

External (top) fillet 
weld for socket-type 
connections 

100% MT 

Hand holes and other 
appurtenances 

Fillet and PJP welds MT full length on random 25% of all 
standards and poles 

Longitudinal seam on the 
telescopic female end, 
designated slip-fit length 
plus 6 inches 

CJP groove weld 100% UT or RT 

NOTE: t = pole or arm thickness 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 110 of 200 

 
Nondestructive Testing for Overhead Sign Structures 

Weld location Weld type Minimum required NDT 

 
Base plate to post 

CJP groove weld 
with backing ring 
and reinforcing fillet 

 
100% UT and 100% MT 

Base plate to gusset plate CJP groove weld 100% UT 

Circumferential splices of pipe 
or tubular sections 

CJP groove weld 
with backing ring 

100% UT or RT 

Split post filler plate welds CJP groove weld 
with backing bar 

100% UT or RT 

Longitudinal seam weld for 
pipe posts 

CJP groove weld t < 1/4 inch: 25% MT 
t ≥ 1/4 inch: 25% UT or RT 

 PJP groove weld Random 25% MT 

Chord angle splice weld CJP groove weld 
with backing bar 

100% UT or RT 

Truss vertical, diagonal, and 
wind angles to chord angles 

Fillet weld Random 25% MT 

Upper junction plate to chord 
(cantilever type truss) 

Fillet weld Random 25% MT 

Bolted field splice plates 
(tubular frame type) 

CJP groove weld 100% UT and 100% MT 

Cross beam connection plates 
(lightweight extinguishable 
message sign) 

 
Fillet weld 

 
Random 25% MT 

Arm connection angles 
(lightweight extinguishable 
message sign) 

 
Fillet weld 

 
100% MT 

Mast arm to arm plate 
(lightweight extinguishable 
message sign) 

CJP groove weld 
with backing ring 

t ≥ 1/4 inch: 100% UT and 100% MT 
t < 1/4 inch: 100% MT after final weld 
pass 

Post angle to post (lightweight 
extinguishable message sign) 

Fillet weld 100% MT 

Hand holes and other 
appurtenances 

Fillet and PJP 
welds 

MT full length on random 25% of all 
sign structures 

NOTE:  t = pole or arm thickness 
 

 

Replace section 56-1.01D(2)(b)(ii) with: 
04-19-19 

56-1.01D(2)(b)(ii)  Ultrasonic Testing 
For UT of welded joints with any members less than 5/16-inch thick or tubular sections less than 24 
inches in diameter, the acceptance and repair criteria must comply with Clause 9.27.1.1 of AWS D1.1. 

When performing UT, use an authorized procedure under AWS D1.1, Annex S. 

For UT of other welded joints, the acceptance and repair criteria must comply with Table 6.3 of AWS D1.1 
for cyclically loaded nontubular connections. 

After galvanization, perform additional inspection for toe cracks along the full length of all CJP groove 
welds at tube-to-transverse base plate connections using UT. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 111 of 200 

 
Replace section 56-2.02F with: 

04-17-20 
56-2.02F  Pipe Posts 
Pipe posts must be welded or seamless steel pipes. The maximum ultimate tensile strength of pipe posts 
must not exceed 90 ksi. Manufactured pipe posts must comply with one of the following: 

1. ASTM A53/A53M, Grade B 
2. ASTM A106/A106M, Grade B 
3. ASTM A1085, Grade A 
4. API Specification 5L PSL2 Grades B, X42R, X42M, X52M or Grade X52N, using nominal pipe sizes 

for threaded end pipe 
 
You may fabricate pipe posts from structural steel complying with ASTM A36/A36M, ASTM A709/A709M, 
Grade 36, or ASTM A572/A572M, Grades 42 or 50. 

Spiral seam welds are not allowed. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

57  WOOD AND PLASTIC LUMBER STRUCTURES 
10-18-19 

Add to section 57-2.02B: 
04-19-19 

HDPE shims must be commercial quality. 

 

Replace section 57-2.02C with: 
10-18-19 

57-2.02C  Construction 
Install lagging members 4 inches thick or less with a 3/8-inch gap between members. Install lagging 
members greater than 4 inches thick with a 1/2-inch gap between members. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 112 of 200 

 
Replace the table in the 4th paragraph of section 57-3.02C with: 

10-19-18 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Density of concrete core 
 (kg/m3, min) 

ASTM D792 1,762 

28-day compressive strength of 
concrete core (psi, min) 

ASTM C579 5,000 

Structural strength of shell: 
Tensile strength, tensile 
modulus (percent loss) 
Flexural strength, flexural 
modulus (percent loss) 

 
ASTM D638 

 
ASTM D790 

 
Less than 10 after UV 

deterioration test specified 
for plastic lumber 

Dry film thickness of coating 
 (mils, min) 

-- 15 

Color change of coating ASTM D4587, 
Test Cycle 2 

No visible color change 
when tested for 800 hours 

Initial adhesion of coating (psi, min) ASTM D4541, 
Test Method D, 

E, or F and 
Protocol 2 

150 

Decrease in initial adhesion of 
coating, decrease (percent) 

ASTM D4541, 
Test Method D, 

E, or F and 
Protocol 2 

ASTM D1183, 
Test Condition Da 

No more than 10 following 
2 exposure cycles 

aUse a low temperature phase at 4 ± 5 °F and high temperature phase at 140 ± 5 °F. 
 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

59  STRUCTURAL STEEL COATINGS 
10-19-18 

Replace the 2nd paragraph in section 59-1.01D with: 
10-19-18 

Measure coating adhesion strength with a self-aligning adhesion tester under ASTM D4541, Test Method 
D, E, or F and Protocol 2. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 59-1.02C with: 
10-19-18 

Coatings selected for use must comply with the volatile organic compound concentration limits specified 
for the air quality district where the coating is applied. The undercoats and finish or final coats selected for 
use must be compatible with each other. 

 

Add after the paragraph of section 59-2.01A(3)(a): 
10-19-18 

If requested by the Engineer, submit documentation from the coating manufacturer verifying the 
compatibility of the undercoats and finish or final coats selected for use. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 113 of 200 

 
^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 

 

60  EXISTING STRUCTURES 
10-18-19 

Replace section 60-2.02B with: 
04-19-19 

60-2.02B  Materials 
Design criteria for temporary support shoring and temporary bracing must comply with section 48-3.02B. 

 

Add to section 60-3.01A: 
10-19-18 

If you are unable to complete bridge reconstruction activities before the bridge is to be opened to traffic, 
furnish and maintain temporary decking under section 48-4 until that portion of the work is complete. 

 

Replace the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 60-3.02C(3) with: 
04-19-19 

Remove asphalt concrete surfacing by cold milling under the following conditions: 

1. If a membrane seal is shown: 
1.1. Remove the seal by cold milling 
1.2. Do not remove more than 1/2 inch of the existing concrete slab 

 

2. If a membrane seal is not shown: 
2.1. Remove asphalt concrete surfacing until a 1/2-inch minimum of surfacing remains on top of 

existing concrete slab 
2.2. Use other authorized means to remove the remaining asphalt concrete without damage to the 

concrete slab 
 

 

Add to section 60-3.02C(3): 
04-19-19 

Where a portion of the asphalt concrete surfacing is to remain, saw cut a 2-inch-deep true line along the 
edge to remain in place before removing asphalt concrete. Remove the asphalt concrete without 
damaging the surfacing to remain in place. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 60-3.04B(3)(a). 

 

Replace the 9th paragraph of section 60-3.04B(3)(c) with: 
04-19-19 

Protect the overlay from moisture and do not allow traffic or equipment on the overlay (1) for a minimum 
of 4 hours cure time after final finishing and (2) until each rebound test result for the final finish shows a 
reading of at least 28 when tested under ASTM C805. The cure time must be extended if ordered. The 
rebound test may not be used to reduce the 4-hour cure time of the overlay. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 114 of 200 

 
Replace the 10th paragraph of section 60-4.09B(2)(a) with: 

10-19-18 
Steel parts must comply with ASTM A36/A36M or A576, Grade 1030 and must not be rimmed or capped 
steel. 

 

Replace section 60-4.10 with: 
10-18-19 

60-4.10  BRIDGE SEAT EXTENDERS FOR RETROFITS 
60-4.10A  General 
60-4.10A(1)  Summary 
Section 60-4.10 includes specifications for fabricating and installing bridge seat extenders. 

Bridge seat extenders must comply with the specifications for miscellaneous bridge metal in section 75-3. 

60-4.10A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

60-4.10A(3)  Submittals 
Submit a work plan showing the method of grouting pipe seat extenders to prevent grout from entering 
the hinge area. 

60-4.10A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Inspect bridge seat extender materials at the fabrication site. 

Notify the Engineer: 

1. When materials have been delivered to the fabrication site 
2. At least 10 days before starting fabrication 
 
60-4.10B  Materials 
60-4.10B(1)  General 
Reserved 

60-4.10B(2)  Pipe Seat Extenders 
Pipe seat extenders must consist of double extra-strong steel pipes, HS threaded rods, nuts, and 
washers. 

Double-extra strong steel pipe must comply with ASTM A53/A53M, Grade B. HS threaded rods, nuts, and 
washers must comply with section 55-1.02D(1). 

Galvanize double-extra strong steel pipe under section 75-1.02B. After galvanizing, any alterations 
resulting in new exposed surfaces, including holes or cut ends, must be coated as specified for repairing 
damaged galvanized surfaces under section 75-1.02B. 

Grout for bonding the pipe to the cored hole must comply with section 60-4.06B(2). Any filler materials or 
seals must not restrict joint movement. 

60-4.09B(3)  Slab Bridge Seat Extenders 
Slab bridge seat extenders must consist of steel plates, support tubes, bolts, bars, nuts, washers, pins, 
and elastomeric bearing pads. 

Slab bridge seat extender must comply with section 55. Elastomeric bearing pads must comply with 
section 51-3.02. The support tubes must comply with ASTM A500/A500M, Grade B. 

Galvanize seat extender under section 75-1.02B. After galvanizing, any alterations resulting in new 
exposed surfaces, including holes or cut ends, must be coated as specified for repairing damaged 
galvanized surfaces under section 75-1.02B. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 115 of 200 

 
Epoxy mortar must consist of a mixture of epoxy binder and aggregate. The epoxy mortar must comply 
with section 95-1.02C. The mix proportions of epoxy mortar must be 1-part binder to 1-part aggregate by 
volume. Aggregate must consist of a combination of 1-part material passing the no. 30 sieve and 3-parts 
material passing the no. 20 sieve. 

60-4.10C  Construction 
60-4.10C(1)  General 
Reserved. 

60-4.10C(2)  Pipe Seat Extenders 
Reserved 

60-4.10C(3)  Slab Bridge Seat Extenders 
Place epoxy mortar under section 95-1.03. 

Place elastomeric bearing pads under section 51-3.02C. Bond elastomeric bearing pads to steel support 
tubes with adhesive complying with Federal Specification MMM-A-121. 

60-4.10D  Payment 
The payment quantity for seat extender does not include the weight of nonmetallic materials used in 
constructing the seat extenders. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VII  DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
Replace section 62 with: 

04-17-20 

62  STORMWATER TREATMENT 
04-17-20 

62-1  GENERAL 
62-1.01  GENERAL 
62-1.01A  Summary 
Section 62-1 includes general specifications for constructing permanent stormwater treatment best 
management practices. 

Earthwork must comply with section 19. 

Concrete and joint seals must comply with section 51. 

Sealant must comply with section 41-5. 

Reinforcement must comply with section 52. 

Underdrain must comply with section 68-2. 

Miscellaneous metal must comply with section 75. 

Cable railing must comply with section 83-2.07. 

62-1.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

62-1.01C  Submittals 
At least 5 business days before placing permeable material, submit a certificate of compliance for the 
gradation of the material from the source. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 116 of 200 

 
No more than 5 business days after placing permeable material, submit: 

1. At least one ASTM D6913 test on permeable material sampled at:  
1.1. Job site 
1.2. Authorized location 

2. Verification that the permeable materials testing results meet the gradation requirements 
 
62-1.01D  Quality Assurance 
Submit verification that the placed material complies with the gradation for the Class 4 and Class 5 
permeable materials. 

Submit verification of the uniformity coefficient for Class 5 permeable material. 

For Department acceptance, the depth of the permeable material will be measured after the in-place 
washing is complete. 

62-1.02  MATERIALS 
62-1.02A  General 
Not Used 

62-1.02B  Class 4 Permeable Material 
Class 4 permeable material must consist of sand, gravel, or crushed stone that is hard, durable, and 
clean. The material must be free from organic material, clay balls, or other deleterious substances. 

The percentage composition by weight of Class 4 permeable material in place must comply with the 
gradation requirements shown in the following table: 

Class 4 Permeable Material Gradation Requirements 
Sieve size Percentage passing 

2" 100 
1-1/2" 95–100 
3/4" 50–100 
3/8" 15–55 
No. 4 0–25 
No. 8 0–5 
No. 100 0 

 

Class 4 permeable material must have a durability index of not less than 40. 

62-1.02C  Class 5 Permeable Material 
Reserved 

62-1.02D  Miscellaneous Metal 
Fabricate the parts shown in the table below from the corresponding materials shown: 

Miscellaneous Metal Parts 
Part Material 

Ladders Steel 
Handrails Steel 
Trash screen Steel 
Components of riser 
support brackets 

Stainless steel complying with ASTM A276, Grade 304 
CIP inserts must be ferrule loop type 

 

62-1.02E  Filter Fabric 
Class D filter fabric must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 117 of 200 

 
Class D Filter Fabric 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Permittivity (min and max, sec-1) ASTM D4491 1.6–1.8 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (min and 
max, US standard sieve size) 

ASTM D4751 60–80 

Grab breaking load, 1-inch grip, in each direction (min, 
lb) 

ASTM D4632 120 

Apparent elongation, in each direction (min, %) ASTM D4632 50 
UV resistance, retained grab breaking load, 500 hours 
(min, %) 

ASTM D4355 70 

 

62-1.02F–62-1.02I  Reserved 
62-1.03  CONSTRUCTION 
62-1.03A  General 
Placing filter fabric must comply with section 68-1.03B. 

62-1.03B  Permeable Material 
62-1.03B(1)  General 
Before placement, wash permeable material: 

1. To remove silt and clay particles 
2. With potable water equal to at least 4 times the volume of the material being placed 
 
After placement, wash permeable material: 

1. With potable water 
2. Until the discharged water has a turbidity reading of: 

2.1. 30 NTU or less for a project within the Tahoe Hydrologic Unit 
2.2. 200 NTU or less for a project outside the Tahoe Hydrologic Unit 
 

Capture the wash water. Handle the wash water by any of the following means: 

1. Dispose of 
2. Use as dust control 
3. Disperse onsite in an authorized location other than the BMP 
 
62-1.03B(2)  Class 5 Permeable Material 
Place Class 5 permeable material: 

1. In a way that does not damage or displace the filter fabric 
2. Using methods that produce a finished surface as shown 
 
62-1.03C–62-1.03H  Reserved 
62-1.04  Payment 
Not Used 

62-2  DESIGN POLLUTION PREVENTION INFILTRATION AREA 
Reserved 

62-3  INFILTRATION TRENCH 
Reserved 

62-4  INFILTRATION BASIN 
Reserved 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 118 of 200 

 
62-5  INFILTRATION GALLERY 

Reserved 

62-6  RESERVED 
62-7  BIORETENTION 

Reserved 

62-8  DETENTION BASIN 
Reserved 

62-9  AUSTIN EARTH BERM 
Reserved 

62-10  AUSTIN VAULT SAND FILTER 
Reserved 

62-11  DELAWARE SAND FILTER 
Reserved 

62-12  GROSS SOLIDS REMOVAL DEVICE 
Reserved 

62-13  MULTI-CHAMBER TREATMENT TRAIN 
Reserved 

62-14  TRACTION SAND TRAP 
Reserved 

62-15–62-24  RESERVED 
62-25  EXISTING STORMWATER TREATMENT 

Reserved 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
64  PLASTIC PIPE 

04-17-20 
Add to section 64-2.01C: 

04-17-20 
If recycled resin is used for corrugated polyethylene pipe, submit the percent of recycled resin. 

 

Replace the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of section 64-2.02C with: 
04-17-20 

Type C and Type S corrugated polyethylene pipe must comply with AASHTO M 294. 

HDPE compounds used in the manufacture of corrugated polyethylene pipe and fittings must comply with 
AASHTO M 294 except the mix must contain from 2 to 4 percent well-dispersed carbon black and at least 
49 percent virgin resin. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 119 of 200 

 
66  CORRUGATED METAL PIPE 

10-19-18 
Replace the 1st paragraph in section 66-1.02D with: 

10-19-18 
Coupling bands for corrugated metal pipe must comply with either section 66-1.02D or section 61-
2.01D(2)(b). 

 

Replace the 6th paragraph in section 66-1.02D with: 
10-19-18 

Joints for siphons and joints for pipes shown as watertight must be watertight under pressure and all 
conditions of expansion, contraction, and settlement, and must comply with section 61-2.01D(2)(a) for 
watertightness. 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 66-2.03 with: 
10-19-18 

Place cement treated structure backfill for slotted corrugated steel pipe as shown and under section 19-
3.02F(3) for soil cement beddings. Cover the completed cement treated structure backfill with a curing 
seal of asphaltic emulsion, Grade SS1 or CSS1. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

71  EXISTING DRAINAGE FACILITIES 
04-17-20 

Replace section 71-3.01A(4)(b) with: 
04-17-20 

71-3.01A(4)(b)  Preconstruction Meetings 
71-3.01A(4)(b)(i)  General 
Reserved 

71-3.01A(4)(b)(ii)  Prerehabilitation Meeting 
Before starting cleaning and preparation work, you must schedule and attend a prerehabilitation meeting 
with the Engineer. Include any subcontractors, manufacturers and other parties involved in the culvert 
work. Provide a meeting facility that is within 5 miles of the job site or at another location accepted by the 
Engineer. 

71-3.01A(4)(b)(iii)  Pregrouting Meeting 
Before starting grouting work, you must schedule and conduct a grouting meeting with the Engineer and 
your personnel involved in the grouting work, including your: 

1. Project superintendent 
2. Supervisory personnel 
3. Grouting foreman 
4. Grouting subcontractors 
 
Provide a meeting facility that is within 5 miles of the job site or at another location accepted by the 
Engineer. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 120 of 200 

 
Replace section 71-3.01A(4)(c) with: 

04-17-20 
71-3.01A(4)(c)  Quality Control 
71-3.01A(4)(c)(i)  General 
Reserved 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(ii)  Annular Space Grouting 
The grout cast density at the point of placement must be from 53 to 68 lb/cu ft and the minimum 
compressive strength must be 300 psi at 28 days. 

Test the grout for compressive strength under ASTM C495 except that specimens must be moist cured 
before the 28-day compressive strength test and not be oven dried. If the grouting plan shows multiple 
stages, the grouting plan must include test results that verify that the grout stiffness is adequate for 
placement of multiple lifts. 

For each batch of grout, perform density and viscosity tests under ASTM C138 and ASTM C939 in the 
presence of the Engineer. Grout density must be within 3 lb/cu ft of the density in the authorized grout 
plan with mix design. The time of efflux (outflow) must not exceed 20 seconds as specified in ASTM C939 
unless otherwise authorized. 

For pipeliners with a stiffness of less than 29 psi, the grout pump's pressure measured at the point of 
injection must not exceed either of the following: 

1. 5 psi 
2. Manufacturer's instruction 
 
For pipeliners with a stiffness of at least 29 psi, the grout pump's pressure measured at the point of 
injection must not exceed 7.25 psi. 

The pipeliner must be able to withstand a static head of grout that is 6 inches above the highest crown 
elevation. The maximum grout pressure for a static grout head must not exceed the grout pump's 
maximum allowable pressure. 

Install a grout pressure gauge and recorder immediately adjacent to each injection port. Continuously 
record on paper with ink the actual grouting pressure versus time. Record grout pressure to an accuracy 
of ±0.5 psi. Attach a gauge to a saddle-type diaphragm seal to prevent clogging with grout. 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(iii)  CCTV Recording 
CCTV recordings must be made and submitted in high quality electronic media such as CD or DVD. 

The CCTV equipment must include: 

1. CCTV camera with articulating head 
2. Transporter adapted for conditions of the culvert 
3. Television monitor 
4. Lighting 
5. Cables and power sources 
 
CCTV equipment must: 

1. Be specifically designed and constructed for pipe inspection 
2. Have camera lighting for minimizing reflective glare 
3. Have an adjustable focal-distance range from 6 inches to infinity 
4. Produce a minimum resolution of 356 lines per inch for both the camera and monitor 
5. Have a remote-reading meter counter accurate to 1 percent over the length of the particular section 

being inspected 
 
Verify the accuracy of the distance meter in the CCTV with a walking meter, roll-a-tape, or other 
authorized device. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 121 of 200 

 
Where human entry is possible for the entire length of the culvert, you may use a handheld video camera 
with lighting as an alternative to CCTV. Video and audio content must comply with the requirements for 
CCTV. Inspect at a rate that is not more than 30 feet per minute. 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(iv)  Photographs 
Use a digital camera and lighting. Lighting and photo quality must be suitable to provide clear and 
focused photographs of the entire culvert surface under all conditions. 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(v)  Monitoring of Annular Space Grouting 
Wherever a pipeliner with annular space grouting is described, monitor the grouting and record pressures 
throughout the grouting process. Verify compliance with the manufacturer's instructions for each phase of 
the grouting process. Gauges must comply with ANSI B40, Grade 2A. The pressure gauges, recorder, 
and field equipment must be calibrated by an independent testing agency. 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(vi)  Pipeliners 
Pipeliners must be continuous over the entire length of the culvert and must have no visual defect such 
as foreign inclusions, concentrated ridges, discoloration, pitting, pin holes, cracking or other deformities. 
The pipeliner must not be over-deflected. There must not be segregation or voids in the grout. 

71-3.01A(4)(c)(vii)  Deflection Testing of Pipeliners 
If a pipeliner with annular space grouting is described, test the pipeliner for deflection. Test after grouting 
and in the presence of the Engineer. 

For pipeliners with a nominal inside diameter of 36 inches or less, either pull a mandrel through the 
pipeliner by hand or use another authorized method. The mandrel must be: 

1. Rigid and nonadjustable 
2. Comprised of at least 9 legs and have an odd number of total legs 
3. Longer than it is wide 
4. Made of steel 
5. Fitted with pulling rings at each end 
6. Stamped or engraved on some segment other than a runner indicating pipeliner material 

specification, nominal size, and mandrel outside diameter (e.g., HDPE F 714-SDR 26- 36" – 31.569") 
7. Furnished in a suitable carrying case labeled with the same data as stamped on the mandrel 
8. Authorized before use 
 
For pipeliners with a nominal inside diameter greater than 36 inches, determine the deflection using a 1-
inch diameter, rigid, nonadjustable metal bar; a minimum-radius rigid template; or other authorized 
method. 

The pipeliner must not be over-deflected. For pipeliners 36 inches or less in nominal diameter, the 
mandrel must pass through the entire pipeliner. For pipeliners greater than 36 inches in nominal diameter, 
the deflection must be the lesser of either of the following: 

1. 5 percent greater than the actual dimension of the pipeliner in place. This actual dimension includes 
the pipe joint system. 

2. 6-1/2 percent of the nominal pipeliner dimension. 
 
If more than 8 percent of the nominal pipeliner dimension is over-deflected, the pipeliner is rejected. If 8 
percent or less of the nominal pipeliner dimension is over-deflected, the pipeliner may remain in place 
and the Department deducts 20 percent of the bid amount for that pipeliner. 

 

Replace item 2 in the list in the first paragraph of section 71-3.01B(2) with: 
04-17-20 

2. Not less than 590 lb of cementitious material per cubic yard 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 122 of 200 

 
Replace section 71-5.03B with: 

04-17-20 
71-5.03B  Frames, Covers, and Grates 
Adjust frames, covers, and grates must comply with section 78-23.03. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 2nd through 5th paragraphs of section 71-5.04. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION VIII  MISCELLANEOUS CONSTRUCTION 
73  CONCRETE CURBS AND SIDEWALKS 

04-17-20 
Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 73-1.02A with: 

04-17-20 
Preformed expansion joint filler must comply with ASTM D1751. As an alternative, a semi-rigid, closed-
cell polypropylene foam, preformed joint filler that complies with ASTM D8139 may be used. 

 

Replace the paragraph of section 73-1.02B with: 
04-17-20 

Detectable warning surface must be on the Authorized Material List for detectable warning surfaces and 
must match yellow color no. 33538 of AMS-STD-595. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

75  MISCELLANEOUS METAL 
04-17-20 

Replace the last paragraph in section 75-3.02B with: 
10-18-19 

Thread-locking systems must (1) consist of a cleaner, primer, and anaerobic thread-locking adhesive and 
(2) be on the Authorized Material List for anaerobic thread-locking systems. Apply all components of the 
system under the manufacturer's instructions. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 75-3.02C(2). 

 

Replace section 75-3.02C(3) with: 
04-17-20 

75-3.02C(3)  Resin Capsule Anchors 
Reserved 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 123 of 200 

 
04-17-20 

Delete the 3rd paragraph of section 75-3.02C(4). 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

78  INCIDENTAL CONSTRUCTION 
04-17-20 

Replace section 78-4.03 with: 
04-19-19 

78-4.03  PAINTING CONCRETE 
78-4.03A  General 
78-4.03A(1)  Summary 
Section 78-4.03 includes specifications for preparing and painting concrete surfaces. 

78-4.03A(2)  Definitions 
Reserved 

78-4.03A(3)  Submittals 
Submit the coating manufacturer's application instructions at least 7 days before use. 

78-4.03A(4)  Quality Assurance 
Reserved 

78-4.03B  Materials 
Coatings for concrete must comply with the specifications for acrylic emulsion paint for exterior masonry 
in section 91-4.02B. 

Coatings must be white. 

78-4.03C  Construction 
78-4.03C(1)  General 
Reserved 

78-4.03C(2)  Surface Preparation 
Before painting, surfaces must be: 

1. At least 28 days old. 
2. Prepared under SSPC-SP 13/NACE no. 6. Pressure rinse the prepared surfaces before applying the 

paint. 
3. Thoroughly dry. You may use artificial drying methods if authorized. 
 
78-4.03C(3)  Application 
Apply at least 2 coats under the manufacturer's instructions and SSPC-PA 7. Protect adjacent surfaces 
during painting using an authorized method. 

78-4.03D  Payment 
Not Used 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 124 of 200 

 
Replace section 78-4.04 with: 

04-19-19 
78-4.04  STAINING CONCRETE AND SHOTCRETE 
78-4.04A  General 
78-4.04A(1)  Summary 
Section 78-4.04 includes specifications for preparing and staining concrete and shotcrete surfaces. 

78-4.04A(2)  Definitions 
acid stain: non-tintable, transparent stain that contains dilute acid. 

water-based stain: semi-transparent or solid water-based coating in an acrylic emulsion vehicle, that can 
be tinted to match an AMS-STD-595 color. 

78-4.04A(3)  Submittals 
78-4.04A(3)(a)  General 
Submit the stain and sealer manufacturer's product data and application instructions at least 7 days 
before starting staining activities. 

78-4.04A(3)(b)  Contractor Qualifications 
Submit the following documentation at least 10 days before the prestaining meeting: 

1. Summary of the staining contractor's experience that demonstrates compliance with section 78-
4.04A(4)(c). 

2. List of at least 3 projects completed in the last 5 years that demonstrate the staining contractor's 
ability to stain surfaces similar to the surfaces for this project. For each project include: 
2.1. Project description 
2.2. Name and phone number of the owner 
2.3. Staining completion date 
2.4. Color photos of the completed stained surface 
 

78-4.04A(3)(c)  Staining Quality Work Plan 
Submit a staining quality work plan at least 10 days before the prestaining meeting. The work plan must 
include details for preparing and staining the surfaces to achieve the required color, and for sealing the 
surfaces, including: 

1. Number of applications that will be used to apply the stain 
2. For each application of the stain, a description of: 

2.1. Manufacturer, color, finish, and percentage strength mixture of the stain that will be applied 
2.2. Proposed methods and tools for applying the stain 

3. Proposed methods for protecting adjacent surfaces during staining 
4. Proposed methods and tools for applying the sealer 
 
For acid stains, the work plan must also include a rinse water collection plan for containing all liquid, 
effluent, and residue resulting from preparing and staining the surfaces. 

78-4.04A(4)  Quality Assurance 
78-4.04A(4)(a)  General 
Reserved 

78-4.04A(4)(b)  Test Panels 
Stain the authorized test panel complying with section 51-1.01D(2)(c) or section 53-3.01D(3). 

The test panel must be: 

1. Stained using the same personnel, materials, equipment, and methods to be used in the work 
2. Accessible for viewing 
3. Displayed in an upright position near the work 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 125 of 200 

 
4. Authorized for staining before starting the staining work 
 
If ordered, construct additional test panels until a satisfactory color is attained. The preparing and staining 
of additional test panels is change order work. 

The Engineer uses the authorized stained test panel to determine the acceptability of the stained surface. 

Dispose of the test panels after the staining work is complete and authorized. Notify the Engineer before 
disposing of the test panels. 

78-4.04A(4)(c)  Contractor Qualifications 
The staining contractor must have experience staining surfaces to simulate the appearance of natural 
rock formations or stone masonry, and must have completed at least 3 projects in the past 5 years 
involving staining of surfaces similar to the surfaces for this project. 

78-4.04A(4)(d)  Prestaining Meeting 
Before starting staining activities, conduct a meeting to discuss the staining quality work plan. Meeting 
attendees must include the Engineer and all staining contractors. 

78-4.04B  Materials 
78-4.04B(1)  General 
Reserved 

78-4.04B(2)  Stain 
78-4.04B(2)(a)  General 
The stain must be: 

1. Commercially available product designed specifically for exterior applications 
2. Specifically manufactured for staining concrete surfaces 
 
78-4.04B(2)(b)  Acid Stain 
Acid stain must: 

1. Contain dilute acid that penetrates and etches the surfaces 
2. Be a water-based solution of inorganic metallic salts 
3. Produce abrasion-resistant color deposits 
 
78-4.04B(2)(c)  Water-based Stain 
Water-based stain must be: 

1. Acrylic emulsion 
2. Non-fading and UV resistant 
3. Capable of producing irregular, mottled tones 
 
78-4.04B(3)  Sealer 
The sealer must be as recommended by the stain manufacturer, clear and colorless, and have a matte 
finish when dry. 

78-4.04B(4)  Joint Sealing Compound 
Reserved 

78-4.04C  Construction 
78-4.04C(1)  General 
At locations where there is exposed metal adjacent to the surfaces to be stained, seal the joint between 
the surfaces to be stained and the exposed metal with a joint sealing compound before applying the stain. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 126 of 200 

 
78-4.04C(2)  Surface Preparation 
Test surfaces for acceptance of the stain before applying the stain. Clean surfaces that resist accepting 
the stain and retest until passing. 

Before staining, the surfaces must be: 

1. At least 28 days old 
2. Prepared under SSPC-SP 13/NACE no. 6 
3. Thoroughly dry 
 
78-4.04C(3)  Application 
78-4.04C(3)(a)  General 
Apply the stain under the manufacturer's instructions. Protect adjacent surfaces during staining. Drips, 
puddles, or other irregularities must be worked into the surface. 

Apply the sealer under the manufacturer's instructions. 

78-4.04C(3)(b)  Acid Stain 
Work the acid stain into the concrete using a nylon bristle brush in a circular motion. 

After the last coat of stain has dried, rinse the stained surfaces with water and wet scrub them with a stiff-
bristle nylon brush until the rinse water runs clear. Collect all rinse water. 

78-4.04D  Payment 
Not Used 

 

Replace section 78-23 with: 
04-17-20 

78-23  ADJUST UTILITY FRAMES, COVERS, AND MANHOLES 
78-23.01  GENERAL 
Section 78-23 includes specifications for adjusting utility access box frames, covers, and manholes. 

Work performed on existing utility frames, covers, grates and manholes must comply with section 15. 

78-23.02  MATERIALS 
Not Used 

78-23.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Lower and raise utility frames, covers, grates and manholes by lowering before cold planing and raising 
after paving or surfacing. Before opening the lane to traffic, either (1) complete permanent paving or 
surfacing or (2) temporarily fill any depressions with HMA. 

Do not adjust to final grade until the adjacent pavement or surfacing is complete. 

For a structure that is to be raised, remove the cover or frame and trim the top of the structure to provide 
a suitable foundation for the new material. 

Instead of using new materials similar in character to those in the existing structure, you may use raising 
devices to adjust a manhole to grade. Before starting paving work, measure and fabricate raising devices. 
Raising devices must: 

1. Comply with the specifications for section 75 except that galvanizing is not required 
2  Have a shape and size that matches the existing frame 
3. Be match marked by painting identification numbers on the device and corresponding structure 
4. Result in an installation that is equal to or better than the existing one in stability, support, and 

nonrocking characteristics 
5. Be fastened securely to the existing frame without projections above the surface of the road or into 

the clear opening 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 127 of 200 

 
 
Where manholes are to be lowered, remove the top portion to 3.5 feet below finished grade or to an 
authorized depth. Adjust the manhole using the taper needed to match the finished grade. 

If a manhole cover is unstable or noisy under traffic, place a coil of asphalt-saturated rope, a plastic 
washer, or asphaltic compound on the cover seat. Before placement, obtain authorization for use of the 
material. 

78-23.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

80  FENCES 
10-18-19 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 80-2.02B with: 
10-18-19 

Line posts must comply with ASTM A702 except packaging of posts is not required. You may omit the 
anchor plate if the post is set in a concrete footing with a minimum cross-sectional dimension of 6 inches 
and a depth equal to the full penetration of the post. 

 

Replace item 3 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 80-2.02D with: 
10-18-19 

3. Be one of the following: 
3.1. 12-1/2 gauge, Class 3 
3.2. 13-1/2 gauge, Class 3 
3.3. 14 gauge, Class 3 
3.4. 15-1/2 gauge, Class 3 
 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 80-3.02B with: 
10-19-18 

Posts and braces must comply with the strength requirements in ASTM F1043 for one of the following: 

1. Group IA, regular grade, for round pipes 
2. Group IC, 50,000 psi yield, for round pipes 
3. Group II-L for roll-formed posts and braces 
 
 

Replace the list in section 80-4.02B(1)(b) with: 
10-19-18 

1. Comply with ASTM A1064 and have a Class 1 zinc coating complying with ASTM A641 
2. Be welded or woven galvanized steel wire fabric 
3. Be made of at least 16-gauge wire 
4. Be 36 inches wide 
 
 

Replace the paragraph in section 80-4.02B(2) with: 
10-19-18 

The materials for a temporary desert tortoise fence must comply with section 80-4.02B(1). 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 128 of 200 

 
 

Replace the 2nd sentence in the 1st paragraph of section 80-4.02C(2) with: 
10-19-18 

Embed the posts at maximum 10-foot intervals into the ground. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION IX  TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 
82  SIGNS AND MARKERS 

04-17-20 
Replace the list in the 1st paragraph of section 82-2.01C with: 

04-19-19 
1. Aluminum sheeting 
2. Retroreflective sheeting 
3. Color imaging methods and film 
4. Protective-overlay film 
 
 

Replace section 82-2.02C with: 
04-17-20 

82-2.02C  Retroreflective Sheeting 
Retroreflective sheeting used for the background and legend must comply with ASTM D4956-13 and 
must be on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation materials. 

Retroreflective sheeting must be Type XI, except for white background signs, it must be Type VIII or IX. 

Warning sign plaques and panels must be retroreflective fluorescent orange or fluorescent yellow 
background. 

Type VIII, IX, and XI retroreflective sheeting must have Class 1, 3, or 4 adhesive backing. Adhesive 
backing must be pressure sensitive and fungus resistant. 

Retroreflective sheeting must be applied to sign panels at the fabrication plant under the retroreflective 
sheeting manufacturer's instructions without appreciable stretching, tearing, or other damage. 

Orientation of the legend must comply with the retroreflective sheeting manufacturer's instructions. 

Retroreflective sheeting on a sign panel with a minor dimension of 48 inches or less must be a single, 
contiguous sheet without splices except for the splices produced during the manufacture of the 
retroreflective sheeting. Sign panel with a minor dimension greater than 48 inches may have 1 horizontal 
splice in the retroreflective sheeting other than the splices produced during the manufacture of the 
retroreflective sheeting. 

Unless the retroreflective sheeting manufacturer's instructions require a different method, splices in the 
retroreflective sheeting must overlap by at least 1 inch. The retroreflective sheeting on either side of a 
splice must not exhibit a color difference under incident and reflected light. 

 

Replace section 82-2.02D with: 
04-19-19 

82-2.02D  Color Imaging Methods and Film 
The material used for color imaging methods, film, and protective-overlay must be recommended by the 
retroreflective sheeting manufacturer. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 129 of 200 

 
Colored retroreflective sheeting must be used for the background. 

Signs with green, red, blue, or brown backgrounds may use reverse-screened-process color on white 
retroreflective sheeting for the background color. The coefficient of retroreflection must be at least 70 
percent of the coefficient of retroreflection specified in ASTM D4956 for the corresponding color of 
retroreflective sheeting. 

The sign must have outdoor weatherability characteristics equivalent to those specified for the 
corresponding color of retroreflective sheeting in ASTM D4956. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 82-3.01A with: 
04-17-20 

Roadside signs include ground-mounted signs and Type N (CA), Type P (CA), and Type R (CA) marker 
panels. 

 

Add to section 82-3.01B: 
04-17-20 

ground-mounted sign: Roadside sign or signs with a wide-flange metal post. 

 

Add to section 82-3.02B: 
04-17-20 

Mounting for a ground-mounted sign must be a wide-flange metal post fabricated from structural steel 
complying with ASTM A36/A36M. Nuts, bolts, and washers for the breakaway connections of a wide-
flange steel post must comply with ASTM A325. 

 

Replace section 82-5.01A with: 
10-19-18 

Section 82-5 includes specifications for fabricating and installing markers, including milepost markers. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph in section 82-5.02E with: 
10-19-18 

A target plate for milepost marker or Type L-1 (CA) or Type L-2 (CA) object marker installed on a metal 
post must be manufactured from an aluminum sheet or zinc-coated steel sheet. 

 

Replace section 82-5.02H with: 
10-19-18 

82-5.02H  Milepost Markers 
Letters and numerals on a milepost marker must be made with opaque black paint or film. The paint and 
film must have an equivalent outdoor weatherability as the retroreflective sheeting specified in ASTM 
D4956. Nonreflective, opaque, black film must be vinyl or acrylic material. 

Film for letters and numerals must be computer cut and have pressure-sensitive adhesive. 

 

Replace the 5th paragraph of section 82-5.03 with: 
10-19-18 

Use stencils to paint letters and numerals on milepost markers. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 130 of 200 

 
 

Add to the end of section 82-9.03: 
04-17-20 

82-9.03F  Installation of Sign Panels on Existing Posts 
Install roadside sign panels on existing posts with fastening hardware under section 82-2.03A. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 82-9.04 with: 
04-17-20 

Payment for furnishing sign panels of any type is not included in the payment for install sign panel on 
existing frame and post. 

Payment for removing existing sign panel is included in the payment for install roadside sign panel on 
existing post. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

83  RAILINGS AND BARRIERS 
04-19-19 

Replace section 83-2.01A(3) with: 
04-19-19 

For midwest guardrail systems and thrie beam barrier, install steel foundation tubes and soil plates in soil. 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 83-2.03C with: 
04-19-19 

If median barrier delineation is shown, match the barrier marker spacing to the raised pavement marker 
spacing on the adjacent median edge line pavement delineation. 

 

Replace the paragraph of section 83-3.03A(11) with: 
04-19-19 

Where concrete barrier markers are shown, cement the markers to the barrier under the manufacturer's 
instructions. Match the barrier marker spacing to the raised pavement marker spacing on the adjacent 
median edge line pavement delineation. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

84  MARKINGS 
10-18-19 

Replace section 84-2 with: 
10-19-18 

84-2  TRAFFIC STRIPES AND PAVEMENT MARKINGS 
84-2.01  GENERAL 
84-2.01A  Summary 
Section 84-2 includes specifications for applying traffic stripes and pavement markings. 

Traffic stripes and pavement markings must comply with ASTM D6628 for daytime and nighttime color. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 131 of 200 

 
Retroreflectivity must be measured under ASTM E1710 and the sampling protocol specified in ASTM 
D7585. 

84-2.01B  Definitions 
10-18-19 

pavement marking: Transverse marking which includes shoulder or gore marking, traffic island marking, 
word or numeral or symbol marking, arrow, limit line, stop line, yield line, crosswalk marking, speed 
measurement marking, speed reduction marking, speed hump marking, parking space marking, and 
route shield marking. 

10-19-18 
traffic stripe: Longitudinal centerline or lane line used for separating traffic lanes in the same direction of 

travel or in the opposing direction of travel or a longitudinal edge line marking the edge of the traveled 
way or the edge of a lane at a gore area separating traffic at an exit or entrance ramp. A traffic stripe 
is shown as a traffic line. 

84-2.01C  Submittals 
For each lot or batch of traffic stripe material, primer, and glass beads, submit: 

1. Certificate of compliance, including the material name, lot or batch number, and manufacture date 
2. METS notification letter stating that the material is authorized for use, except for thermoplastic and 

primer 
3. SDS 
4. Manufacturer's Instructions 
 
For each lot or batch of thermoplastic, submit a manufacturer's certificate of compliance and the following 
test results from the California Test 423: 

1. Brookfield Thermosel viscosity 
2. Hardness 
3. Yellowness index, white only 
4. Daytime luminance factor 
5. Yellow color, yellow only 
6. Glass bead content 
7. Binder content 
 
The date of the test must be within 1 year of use. 

Submit test results for each lot of beads specifying the EPA test methods used and tracing the lot to the 
specific test sample. The testing for lead and arsenic content must be performed by an independent 
testing laboratory. 

Submit the thermoplastic test stripe to the Engineer. 

Submit the retroreflectivity test result within 5 days of testing the traffic stripes and pavement markings. 
The data must include the retroreflectivity, time, date, and GPS coordinates for each measurement. 

84-2.01D  Quality Assurance 
84-2.01D(1)  General 
Reserved 

84-2.01D(2)  Quality Control 
Before starting permanent application of methyl methacrylate and two component paint traffic stripes and 
pavement markings, apply a test stripe on roofing felt or other suitable material in the presence of the 
Engineer. The test stripe section must be at least 50 feet in length. 

Upon request, apply a thermoplastic test stripe on suitable material in the presence of the Engineer 
during the application of thermoplastic traffic stripes or markings. The test stripe must be at least 1 foot in 
length. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 132 of 200 

 
Remove loose glass beads before measuring the retroreflectivity. Obtain authorization to proceed with the 
application of traffic stripes and pavement markings. 

Within 30 days of application, test the traffic stripes and pavement markings under the test methods and 
frequencies shown in the following table: 

Traffic Stripe Testing Frequency 
Quality characteristic Test method Minimum sampling and testing frequency 

Initial retroreflectivity (min, mcd·m-2·lx-1) 
White 
Yellow 

ASTM E1710 ASTM D7585a 

aUse the referee evaluation protocol for project length less than 10 miles. For project lengths greater than 
or equal to 10 miles, add one evaluation for every additional mile. 
 

Verify the glass bead application rate by stabbing the glass bead tank with a calibrated rod. 

84-2.01D(3)  Department Acceptance 
The Engineer will perform a nighttime, drive-through, visual inspection of the retroreflectivity of the traffic 
stripes and pavement markings and notify you of any locations with deficient retroreflectivity. Test the 
retroreflectivity of the deficient areas to confirm striping and pavement markings meets the requirements. 

The thermoplastic test stripe will be tested for yellow color, daytime luminance factor, and yellowness 
index requirements by METS. 

84-2.02  MATERIALS 
84-2.02A  General 
Reserved 

84-2.02B  Glass Beads 
Each lot of glass beads must comply with EPA Test Method 3052 and 6010B or 6010C. Glass beads 
must contain less than 200 ppm each of arsenic and lead. 

Type 1 glass beads must comply with AASHTO M 247. 

Type 2 glass beads must comply with AASHTO M 247. At least 75 percent of the beads by count must be 
true spheres that are colorless and do not exhibit dark spots, air inclusions, or surface scratches when 
viewed under 20X magnification. 

High-performance glass beads must be on the Authorized Material List for high-performance glass beads. 

Large-gradation glass beads must be on the Authorized Material List for two component traffic paint. 

Glass beads for methyl methacrylate must be on the Authorized Material List for methyl methacrylate 
traffic striping and pavement marking. 

Glass beads for paint must comply with State Specification 8010-004. 

Glass beads must be surface treated, according to the bead and the material manufacturer's instructions, 
to promote adhesion with the specified material. 

84-2.02C  Thermoplastic 
Thermoplastic must comply with State Specification PTH-02HYDRO, or PTH-02ALKYD. 

Sprayable thermoplastic must comply with State Specification PTH-02SPRAY. 

Each lot or batch of thermoplastic must be tested under California Test 423. 

84-2.02D  Methyl Methacrylate 
Methyl methacrylate traffic paint must: 

1. Be on the Authorized Material List for methyl methacrylate traffic striping and pavement marking 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 133 of 200 

 
2. Be Category 2 
 
84-2.02E  Traffic Striping and Pavement Marking Tape 
Traffic striping and pavement marking tape must be on the Authorized Material List for signing and 
delineation materials. 

04-19-19 
White tape must have an initial retroreflectivity of a minimum 700 mcd/m2. 

Yellow tape must have an initial retroreflectivity of a minimum 500 mcd/m2. 

10-19-18 
When contrast is required for traffic stripping and pavement marking tape, the tape must be pre-formed 
and retroreflective, consisting of a white film with retroreflective beads and a contrasting black film border. 
The contrasting black border must be a nonreflective film bonded on each side of the white film to form a 
continuous roll. Each black border must be a minimum of 2 inches wide. The width of the tape must be at 
least 4 inches wider than the stripe width. 

84-2.02F  Two-Component Paint 
Two-component traffic paint must be on the Authorized Material List for two component traffic paint. 

84-2.02G  Paint 
Paint must comply with the requirements shown in following table: 

Paint Specifications 
Paint type Color Specification 

Waterborne traffic line White, yellow, and black State Specification PTWB-01R2 
Waterborne traffic line for 
the international symbol of 
accessibility and other 
curb markings 

Blue, red, and green Federal Specification TT-P-1952E 

 

84-2.02H–84-2.02L  Reserved 
84-2.03  CONSTRUCTION 
84-2.03A  General 
Establish the alignment for traffic stripes and the layouts for pavement markings with a device or method 
that will not conflict with other traffic control devices. 

Protect existing retroreflective pavement markers during work activities. 

Remove existing pavement markers that are coated or damaged by work activities and replace with an 
equivalent marker on the Authorized Material List for signing and delineation materials. 

A completed traffic stripe or pavement marking must: 

1. Have well defined edges 
2. Be uniform 
3. Be free from runs, bubbles, craters, drag marks, stretch marks, and debris 
 
A completed traffic stripe must: 

1. Be straight on a tangent alignment 
2. Be a true arc on a curved alignment 
3. Not deviate from the width shown by more than: 

3.1. 1/4 inch on a tangent alignment 
3.2. 1/2 inch on a curved alignment 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 134 of 200 

 
The length of the gaps and individual stripes that form a broken traffic stripe must not deviate by more 
than 2 inches from the lengths shown. The gaps and stripes must be uniform throughout the entire length 
of the traffic stripe. 

Protect newly placed traffic stripes and pavement markings from traffic and work activities until the traffic 
stripes and pavement markings are dry or hard enough to bear traffic. 

Use mechanical methods to remove dirt, contaminants, and loose material from the pavement surface 
before applying the traffic stripe or pavement marking. 

Use abrasive blast cleaning to remove laitance and curing compound from the surface of new concrete 
pavement before applying the traffic stripe or pavement marking. 

Construct recesses as shown in the following table: 

Recess Depth Requirements 

Material Requirement 
Depth (mils) Depth (in) 

Thermoplastic 375 3/8 
Two component traffic paint 250 1/4 
Methyl methacrylate traffic paint 250 1/4 

 

Construct recesses for double traffic stripes in a single pass. 

Before applying the traffic stripes and pavement markings: 

1. Allow wet ground recesses to dry a minimum of 24 hours 
2. Remove all powdery residue from dry recess 
3. Keep the recesses dry and free from debris 
 
Apply traffic stripes and pavement markings before the end of the same work shift. 

84-2.03B  Application of Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings 
84-2.03B(1)  General 
Apply material for a pavement marking with a stencil or a preformed marking. 

Immediately remove drips, overspray, improper markings, or material tracked by traffic, using an 
authorized method. 

Apply a traffic stripe or a pavement marking only to a clean, dry surface during a period when the 
pavement surface temperature is above 50 degrees F. 

Apply traffic stripe or pavement marking and glass beads in a single pass. You may apply the glass 
beads by hand on pavement markings. 

Embed glass beads to a depth of 1/2 their diameters. 

Distribute glass beads uniformly on traffic stripe and pavement markings. 

Glass beads with integral color must match the color of the stripe or pavement marking. 

Apply glass beads with two separate applicator guns when two gradations are specified. 

Allow enough overlap distance between new and existing striping patterns to ensure continuity at the start 
and end of the transition. 

The retroreflectivity of applied traffic stripes and pavement markings must comply with the requirements 
shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 135 of 200 

 
Retroreflectivity Requirements 

Traffic stripe material White (min, mcd·m-2·lx-1) Yellow (min, mcd·m-2·lx-1) 
Paint 250 125 
Thermoplastic 250 125 
Thermoplastic with wet night 
enhanced visibility 

700 500 

Two component 250 125 
Methyl methacrylate 500 300 
Tape 700 500 

 

84-2.03B(2)  Thermoplastic  
84-2.03B(2)(a)  General 
Apply primer or surface preparation adhesive under the manufacturer's instructions: 

1. To all roadway surfaces except for asphaltic surfaces less than 6 months old 
2. At a minimum rate of 1 gallon per 300 square feet 
3. To allow time for the thermoplastic primer to dry and become tacky before application of the 

thermoplastic 
 
Do not thin the primer. 

Preheat thermoplastic using preheaters with mixers having a 360-degree rotation. 

Apply thermoplastic in a single uniform layer by spray or extrusion methods. 

Completely coat and fill voids in the pavement surface with the thermoplastic. 

Apply recessed thermoplastic at a thickness so that the top is 0 to 1/16 inch below the pavement surface. 

84-2.03B(2)(b)  Extruded Thermoplastic  
Apply extruded thermoplastic at a temperature of 400 to 425 degrees F or as recommended by the 
manufacturer. 

Apply extruded thermoplastic for a traffic stripe at a rate of at least 0.36 lb of thermoplastic per foot of 6-
inch-wide solid stripe. The applied traffic stripe must be at least 0.060 inch thick. 

Apply extruded thermoplastic pavement markings at a thickness from 0.100 to 0.150 inch. 

Apply Type 2 glass beads to the surface of the molten thermoplastic at a rate of at least 8 lb of beads per 
100 sq ft. 

84-2.03B(2)(c)  Sprayable Thermoplastic 
Apply sprayable thermoplastic at a temperature of 350 to 400 degrees F. 

Apply sprayable thermoplastic for a traffic stripe at a rate of at least 0.24 lb of thermoplastic per foot of 6-
inch-wide solid stripe. The applied stripe must be at least 0.040 inch thick. 

84-2.03B(2)(d)  Thermoplastic with Enhanced Wet-Night Visibility 
Apply a thermoplastic traffic stripe or pavement marking with enhanced wet-night visibility in a single pass 
and in the following order: 

1. Uniform layer of extruded thermoplastic 
2. Layer of high-performance glass beads 
3. Layer of Type 2 glass beads 
 
Apply thermoplastic with enhanced wet-night visibility at a maximum speed of 8 mph. 

Apply thermoplastic with enhanced wet-night visibility for a traffic stripe at a rate of at least 0.47 lb of 
thermoplastic per foot of 6-inch-wide solid stripe. The applied stripe must be at least 0.090 inch thick. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 136 of 200 

 
Apply thermoplastic with enhanced wet-night visibility for a pavement marking at a rate of at least 1.06 lb 
of thermoplastic per square foot of marking. The applied pavement marking must be at least 0.100 inch 
thick. 

Apply high-performance glass beads at a rate of at least 6 lb of glass beads per 100 sq ft of stripe or 
marking. Apply Type 2, glass beads at a rate of at least 8 lb of glass beads per 100 sq ft of stripe or 
marking. 

84-2.03B(3)  Methyl Methacrylate 
Apply the methyl methacrylate when the pavement surface and atmospheric temperatures are from 40 to 
104 degrees F. 

Apply methyl methacrylate paint at a minimum thickness of 0.090 inch. 

Apply recessed methyl methacrylate paint at a minimum thickness of 0.200 inch. 

Apply the glass beads recommended by the methyl methacrylate manufacturer. 

84-2.03B(4)  Traffic Striping and Pavement Marking Tape 
Do not use traffic stripe and pavement marking tape on existing open graded friction course or chip seal. 

Prepare pavement surface and use primer under the traffic tape manufacturer's written instructions. Apply 
tape to clean and dry pavement surface. Roll or tamp the traffic tape in place. 

84-2.03B(5)  Two-Component Paint 
Apply a two-component painted traffic stripe or pavement marking in a single pass and in the following 
order: 

1. Coat of two-component paint 
2. Application of large gradation glass beads recommended by the two-component paint manufacturer 
3. Application of Type 1 glass beads 
 
Apply two-component paint when the pavement surface temperature is above 39 degrees F and the 
atmospheric temperature is above 36 degrees F. The temperature of the paint must comply with the paint 
manufacturer's instructions. 

Apply two-component paint and glass beads at a maximum speed of 10 mph. 

Apply large-gradation glass beads at a minimum rate of 11.7 lb of beads per gallon of paint. 

Apply Type 1 glass beads at a minimum rate of 8.3 lb of beads per gallon of paint. 

Apply two-component paint for the traffic stripes and pavement markings at the thickness and application 
rates shown in the following table: 

Type of pavement Stripe thickness 
(min, inch) 

Application rate 
(min, sq ft/gal) 

HMA open graded/chip seal 0.025 64 
HMA dense graded 0.020 80 
Concrete 0.020 80 

 

Apply recessed two-component paint at a thickness between 0.020 and 0.025 inch. 

84-2.03B(6)  Paint 
Do not apply paint if: 

1. Fresh paint could become damaged by rain, fog, or condensation 
2. Atmospheric temperature could drop below 50 degrees F during the drying period 
 
Do not thin paint. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 137 of 200 

 
Use mechanical means to paint traffic stripes and pavement markings and to apply glass beads for traffic 
stripes. 

The striping machine must be capable of superimposing successive coats of paint on the 1st coat and on 
existing stripes at a minimum speed of 5 mph. 

Where the configuration or location of a traffic stripe is such that the use of a striping machine is not 
practicable, you may apply the traffic paint and glass beads by other methods and equipment if 
authorized. 

Apply traffic stripes and pavement markings in 1 coat on existing pavement surfaces, at an approximate 
rate of 107 sq ft/gal. 

Apply traffic stripes and pavement markings in 2 coats on a new pavement surface. The 1st coat of paint 
must be dry before applying the 2nd coat. 

Apply 2-coat paint at the approximate rate of 215 sq ft/gal for each coat. 

Paint a 1-coat, 3-inch-wide black stripe between the two 6-inch-wide yellow stripes of a double traffic 
stripe. If the two 6-inch-wide yellow stripes are applied in 2 coats, apply the black stripe concurrently with 
the 2nd coat of the yellow stripes. 

On 2-lane highways: 

1. If the 1st coat of the centerline stripe is applied in the same direction as increasing post miles, use the 
right-hand spray gun of the 3 spray guns to apply a single yellow stripe 

2. If the 1st coat of the centerline stripe is applied in the same direction as decreasing post miles, use 
the left-hand spray gun of the 3 spray guns to apply a single yellow stripe 

3. Apply the 2nd coat of centerline striping in the opposite direction of the 1st coat 
 
Apply glass beads at an approximate rate of 5 lb of beads per gallon of paint. 

Verify the application rate of paint by stabbing the paint tank with a calibrated rod. If the striping machine 
has paint gauges, the Engineer may measure the volume of paint using the gauges instead of stabbing 
the paint tank with a calibrated rod. 

84-2.03B(7)  Contrast Striping 
04-19-19 

Contrast striping consists of black striping placed on each side of a white stripe. 

10-19-18 
You may use permanent tape instead of paint or thermoplastic. 

Apply contrast stripe paint in one coat. 

Do not use glass beads or other reflective elements in contrast striping material. 

04-19-19 
84-2.03B(8)–84-2.03B(10)  Reserved 

10-19-18 
84-2.04  PAYMENT 
The payment quantity for a traffic stripe is the length measured along the line of the traffic stripe without 
deductions for gaps in the broken traffic stripe. 

The payment quantity for a pavement marking is the area covered. 

A double traffic stripe consisting of two-6-inch-wide yellow stripes are measured as 2 traffic stripes except 
for painted traffic stripes and sprayable thermoplastic traffic stripes. 

A double sprayable thermoplastic traffic stripe consisting of two 6-inch-wide yellow stripes are measured 
as single traffic stripe. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 138 of 200 

 
A double painted traffic stripe consisting of two 6-inch-wide yellow stripes separated by a 3-inch-wide 
black stripe is measured as a single traffic stripe. 

The payment quantity for contrast striping is the length measured along the line of the traffic stripe without 
deductions for gaps in the broken traffic stripe. 

 

Replace section 84-9 with: 
10-19-18 

84-9  EXISTING MARKINGS 
84-9.01  GENERAL 
84-9.01A  Summary 
Section 84-9 includes specifications for removing existing markings. 

Work performed on existing markings must comply with section 15. 

84-9.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

04-19-19 
84-9.01C  Submittals 

10-19-18 
Submit your proposed method for removing traffic stripes and pavement markings at least 7 days before 
starting the removal work. Allow 2 business days for the review. 

84-9.02  MATERIALS 
Not Used 

84-9.03  CONSTRUCTION 
84-9.03A  General 
Remove existing traffic stripes before making any changes to the traffic pattern. 

Remove existing traffic stripes and pavement markings before applying the following materials: 

1. Traffic stripe and pavement marking tape 
2. Two component traffic stripes and pavement markings 
3. Methyl methacrylate traffic stripes and pavement markings 
 

04-19-19 
Remove contrast stripes, traffic stripes and pavement markings, including any paint in the gaps, by 
methods that do not remove pavement to a depth of more than 1/8 inch. 

10-19-18 
Remove pavement markings such that the old message cannot be identified. Make any area removed by 
grinding rectangular. Water must not puddle in the ground areas. Fog seal ground areas on asphalt 
concrete pavement. 

Sweep up or vacuum any residue before it can (1) be blown by traffic or wind, (2) migrate across lanes or 
shoulders, or (3) enter a drainage facility. 

84-9.03B  Remove Traffic Stripes and Pavement Markings Containing Lead 
Reserved 

84-9.03C–84-9.03J  Reserved 
84-9.04  PAYMENT 
The payment quantity for remove traffic stripe is the measured length multiplied by: 

1. 0.67 for a single 4-inch-wide traffic stripe 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 139 of 200 

 
2 1.34 for a single 8-inch-wide traffic stripe 
3. 2 for a double traffic stripe 
 
The payment quantity for remove traffic stripe does not include the gaps in broken traffic stripes. Payment 
for removal of paint evident in a gap is included in the payment for remove traffic stripe of the type 
involved. 

10-18-19 
If no bid item is shown on the Bid Item List for remove pavement marking, remove pavement marking is 
paid for as remove traffic stripe of the types shown in the Bid Item List and the payment quantity for 1 
square foot of pavement marking is 2 linear feet. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

DIVISION X  ELECTRICAL WORK 
86  GENERAL 

04-17-20 
Replace section 86-1.01B with: 

10-19-18 
86-1.01B  Definitions 
accessible pedestrian signal: Accessible pedestrian signal as defined in the California MUTCD. 

accessible walk indication: Activated audible and vibrotactile action during the walk interval. 

actuation: Actuation as defined in the California MUTCD. 

ambient sound level: Background sound level in dB at a given location. 

ambient sound sensing microphone: Microphone that measures the ambient sound level in dB and 
automatically adjusts the accessible pedestrian signal speaker's volume. 

audible speech walk message: Audible prerecorded message that communicates to pedestrians which 
street has the walk interval. 

CALiPER: Commercially Available LED Product Evaluation and Reporting. A U.S. Department of Energy 
program that individually tests and provides unbiased information on the performance of commercially 
available LED luminaires and lights. 

controller assembly: Assembly for controlling a system's operations, consisting of a controller unit and 
auxiliary equipment housed in a waterproof cabinet. 

controller unit: Part of the controller assembly performing the basic timing and logic functions. 

correlated color temperature: Absolute temperature in kelvin of a blackbody whose chromaticity most 
nearly resembles that of the light source. 

detector: Detector as defined in the California MUTCD. 

electrolier: Assembly of a lighting standard and luminaire. 

flasher: Device for opening and closing signal circuits at a repetitive rate. 

illuminance gradient: Ratio of the minimum illuminance on a 1-foot square of sign panel to that on an 
adjacent 1-foot square of sign panel. 

inductive loop detector: Detector capable of being actuated by an inductance change caused by a 
vehicle passing or standing over the loop. An inductive loop detector includes a loop or group of loops 
installed in the roadway and a lead-in cable installed and connected inside a controller cabinet. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 140 of 200 

 
junction temperature: Temperature of the electronic junction of the LED device. The junction 

temperature is critical in determining photometric performance, estimating operational life, and 
preventing catastrophic failure of the LED. 

L70: Extrapolated life in hours of the luminaire when the luminous output depreciates 30 percent from the 
initial values. 

lighting standard: Pole and mast arm supporting the luminaire. 

link: Part of a system which provides a data connection between a transmitter and receiver. 

LM-79: Test method from the Illumination Engineering Society of North America specifying the test 
conditions, measurements, and report format for testing solid state lighting devices, including LED 
luminaires. 

LM-80: Test method from the Illumination Engineering Society of North America specifying the test 
conditions, measurements, and report format for testing and estimating the long-term performance of 
LEDs for general lighting purposes. 

luminaire: Assembly that houses the light source and controls the light emitted from the light source. 

mid-span access method: Procedure in which fibers from a single buffer tube are accessed and spliced 
to a multi buffer tube cable without cutting the unused fibers in the buffer tube, or disturbing the 
remaining buffer tubes in the cable. 

National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program: U.S. Department of Energy program that 
accredits independent testing laboratories. 

optical time domain reflectometer: Fiber optic test equipment that is used to measure the total amount 
of power loss between two points and over the corresponding distance. It provides a visual and 
printed display of the relative location of system components such as fiber sections, splices and 
connectors as well as the losses that are attributed to each component and or defects in the fiber. 

pedestrian change interval: Pedestrian change interval as defined in the California MUTCD. 

powder coating: Coating applied electrostatically using exterior-grade, UV-stable, polymer powder. 

power factor: Ratio of the real power component to the complex power component. 

power meter: Portable fiber optic test equipment that, when coupled with a light source, is used to 
perform end-to-end attenuation testing. Its display indicates the amount of power injected by the light 
source at the designed wavelength of the system under testing that arrives at the receiving end of the 
link. 

pretimed controller assembly: Assembly operating traffic signals under a predetermined cycle length. 

programming mechanism: Device to program the accessible pedestrian signal operation. 

pull box: Box with a cover that is installed in an accessible place in a conduit run to facilitate the pulling 
in of wires or cables. 

push button information message: Push button information message as defined in the California 
MUTCD. 

push button locator tone: Push button locator tone as defined in the California MUTCD. 

segment: Continuous cable terminated by 2 splices, 2 connectors or 1 splice and 1 connector. 

signal face: Signal face as defined in the California MUTCD. 

signal head: Signal head as defined in the California MUTCD. 

signal indication: Signal indication as defined in the California MUTCD. 

signal section: Signal section as defined in the California MUTCD. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 141 of 200 

 
signal standard: Pole with or without mast arms carrying 1 or more signal faces. 

street side lumens: Lumens from a luminaire directed to light up areas between the fixture and the 
roadway, such as traveled ways and freeway lanes. 

surge protection device: Subsystem or component that protects equipment against short-duration 
voltage transients in power line. 

total harmonic distortion: Ratio of the rms value of the sum of the squared individual harmonic 
amplitudes to the rms value of the fundamental frequency of a complex waveform. 

traffic-actuated controller assembly: Assembly for operating traffic signals under the varying demands 
of traffic as registered by detector actuation. 

traffic phase: Traffic phase as defined in the California MUTCD. 

vehicle: Vehicle as defined in the California Vehicle Code. 

vibrotactile pedestrian device: Vibrotactile pedestrian device as defined in the California MUTCD. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the 9th and 10th paragraphs of section 86-1.01C(1). 

 

Replace section 86-1.01C(3) with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.01C(3)  Luminaires 
Submit for a luminaire: 

1. Maximum power in watts 
2. Maximum designed junction temperature 
3. Heat sink area in square inches 
4. Designed junction-to-ambient thermal resistance calculation with thermal resistance components 

clearly defined 
5. L70 in hours when extrapolated for the average nighttime operating temperature 
6. Life expectancy based on the junction temperature 
7. Manufacturer's data sheet for the power supply, including the rated life 
 
Submit the manufacturer's QC test data for luminaires as an informational submittal. 

 

Replace section 86-1.01C(4) with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.01C(4)  Reserved 
 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 86-1.02B(1) with: 
04-19-19 

Conduit used for horizontal directional drilling must be high density polyethylene Type IPS, SDR 9 and 
comply with ASTM F2160. 

 

Replace the 8th paragraph of section 86-1.02B(1) with: 
10-19-18 

High density polyethylene for innerduct must: 

1. Comply with ASTM D3485, D3035, D2239, and D2447, and NEMA TC7 and TC2 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 142 of 200 

 
2. Have a minimum tensile yield strength of 3300 psi under ASTM D638 

04-19-19 
3. Have a density of 59.6187 lb/ft3 ± 0.3121 lb/ft3 under ASTM D1505 
 
 

Replace the 9th paragraph of section 86-1.02B(1) with: 
04-19-19 

Tracer wire must be a minimum no. 12 solid copper conductor with orange insulation Type TW, THW, 
RHW, or USE. For direct burial, the tracer wire insulation must be Type UF. 

 

Replace section 86-1.02C with: 
10-18-19 

86-1.02C  Pull Boxes 
86-1.02C(1)  General 
A pull box cover must have a marking on the top that is: 

1. Clearly defined 
2. Uniform in depth 
3. Parallel to the longer side 
4. From 1 to 3 inches in height 
 
The cover marking must include CALTRANS and one of the following: 

1. SERVICE for service circuits from a service equipment enclosure to a subpanel 
2. SERVICE IRRIGATION for circuits from a service equipment enclosure to an irrigation controller 
3. SERVICE BOOSTER PUMP for circuits from a service equipment enclosure to the booster pump 
4. TDC POWER for circuits from a service equipment enclosure to telephone demarcation cabinet 
5. LIGHTING for a lighting system 
6. SIGN ILLUMINATION for a sign illumination system 
7. SIGNAL AND LIGHTING for a signal and lighting system 
8. RAMP METER for a ramp metering system 
9. TMS for a traffic monitoring station 
10. FLASHING BEACON for a flashing beacon system 
11. CMS for a changeable message sign system 
12. INTERCONNECT for an interconnect conduit and cable system 
13. FIBER OPTIC for fiber optic cable system 
14. ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS if more than one system is shared in the same pull box 
 
The cover marking must not include CALTRANS, only the following: 

1. ELECTRICAL SERVICE for circuits from an electrical utility to a service equipment enclosure 
2. TELEPHONE SERVICE for circuits from a telephone utility to a telephone demarcation cabinet 
 
A metal pull box cover must include a fitting for a bonding conductor. 

The hardware must be stainless steel containing 18 percent chromium and 8 percent nickel. 

86-1.02C(2)  Roadway Pull Boxes 
86-1.02C(2)(a)  General 
A pull box cover must have a nonskid surface. 

The pull boxes and covers must not have exposed fibers or reinforcement on the finish surfaces that are 
exposed. 

The load rating must be: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 143 of 200 

 
1. Stenciled or stamped on the inside and outside of the pull box 
2. Stamped on the outside of the cover 
 
If a transformer or other device is to be placed in the pull box, include recesses for a hanger. 

Hold-down bolts must: 

1. Be a Penta Head 1/2-13UNC 
2. Have a thread lock material 
3. Withstand a torque from 55 to 60 ft-lb 
4. Withstand a minimum pull-out strength of 750 lb 
 
The opening in which the cover sets must have length and width dimensions 1/8 inch greater than the 
cover. 

86-1.02C(2)(b)  Nontraffic Pull Boxes 
A nontraffic pull box and cover must comply with ANSI/SCTE 77, "Specification for Underground 
Enclosure Integrity," for Tier 22 load rating and must be gray or brown. 

An extended pull box must be a minimum 22 inches deep and may be a single box or a box with an 
extension made of the same material as the pull box. The extension may be another pull box if the bottom 
edge of the pull box fits into the opening for the cover. 

The hold down bolts, nuts, and washers must be a captive design. 

The pull box must have a 1/2-13 coarse-thread insert with drainage hole, to secure the hold down bolts. 

The cover must have a 1/2 inches by 4 inches pull slot with a 3/16-inch center pin. 

The cover markings must be cast in the mold of the cover or be engraved on a metal or UV resistant ABS 
plate secured to the cover with stainless steel screws. 

86-1.02C(2)(c)  Traffic Pull Boxes 
A traffic pull box and cover must comply with AASHTO HS20-44 and load tested under AASHTO M 306. 

A traffic pull box must be reinforced with a galvanized steel Z bar welded frame. The frame must be 
anchored to the box with 2-1/4-inch-long concrete anchors with a 1/4-inch diameter. The pull box must 
have 4 concrete anchors, one in each corner, and two near the middle one on each of the longer sides, 
except for a no. 3-1/2(T) pull box. 

The frame must have nuts fabricated with the frame or spot welded to the underside of the frame, to 
secure the hold down bolts. 

The nuts must be zinc-plated carbon steel, vibration-resistant, and have a wedge ramp at the root of the 
thread. 

The cover must: 

1. Be steel, reinforced and galvanized post fabrication. 
2. Be countersunk approximately 1/4 inch to accommodate the bolt head. When tightened, the hold 

down bolt head must be no more than 1/8 inch above the top of the cover. 
3. Have a 1/2-inch by 2-inch pull slot with a guard under the cover to prevent entry of more than 3 

inches below the bottom surface of the cover without deflection. 
 
Before galvanizing a steel cover, the manufacturer must apply the cover marking by one of the following 
methods: 

1. Use a cast iron strip at least 1/4-inch thick with letters raised a minimum of 1/16 inch. Fasten the strip 
to the cover with 1/4-inch, flathead, stainless steel machine bolts and nuts. Peen the bolts after 
tightening. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 144 of 200 

 
2. Use a sheet steel strip at least 0.027-inch thick with letters raised a minimum of 1/16 inch. Fasten the 

strip to the cover by spot welding, tack welding, or brazing with 1/4-inch stainless steel rivets or 1/4-
inch, roundhead, stainless steel machine bolts and nuts. Peen the bolts after tightening. 

3. Bead weld the letters on the cover such that the letters are raised a minimum of 3/32 inch. 
 
86-1.02C(2)(d)  Tamper Resistant Pull Boxes 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(i)  General 
Not Used 

86-1.02C(2)(d)(ii)  Tamper-Resistant Nontraffic Pull Box 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(ii)(A)  General 
A tamper resistant nontraffic pull box must include a pull box with one of the following: 

1. Anchored cover 
2. Lockable cover 
3. Pull box insert 
 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(ii)(B)  Anchored Cover 
The anchored cover must: 

1. Be of 1/2-inch-thick mild steel, hot dip galvanized, post fabrication. 
2. Have spikes removed from the galvanized surfaces. 
3. Have a center space for a top lock nut that must be torqued to 200 ft-lb. 
4. Have a center opening for a stainless-steel threaded cap to cover the lock nut. 
5. Weigh a minimum of 85 lb. 
6. Include an all-around security skirt of 1/4-inch thick steel. The skirt must be sized to encase a 

nontraffic pull box or sized to fit within a traffic pull box. 
7. Be welded to the skirt. 
 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(ii)(C)  Lockable Cover 
The lockable cover must: 

1. Be manufactured from minimum 3/16-inch-thick galvanized steel or a polymer of minimum strength 
equal to 3/16-inch steel. 

2. Be secured to the pull box with a locking mechanism of equal or greater strength than the 
manufactured material. 

3. Have 1/2-by-2-inch slot holes for lifting. 
4. Have dimensions complying with one of the following: 

4.1. Department's standards for pull box covers as shown if the lockable cover is secured to the 
inside lip of the pull box. 

4.2. Department's standards for the length and width as shown for pull box covers if the lockable 
cover is secured to the top of the pull box. 

 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(ii)(D)  Pull Box Insert 
The pull box insert must: 

1. Be made of minimum 3/16-inch-thick or 10 gauge mild hot-dipped galvanized steel 
2. Have a minimum of 2 mounting brackets that rest under the side or end wall 
3. Be lockable with a padlock having a minimum 3/8-inch shackle 
4. Have dimensions complying with the Department's standards for the length and width as shown for 

pull box covers 
 
86-1.02C(2)(d)(iii)  Tamper Resistant Traffic Pull Box 
A tamper resistant traffic pull box must include a pull box with an anchored cover. 

86-1.02C(3)  Structure Pull Boxes 
A no. 7 pull box must: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 145 of 200 

 
1 Be 12 by 12 by 12 inches. 
2. Be manufactured with 0.075-inch sheet steel. 
3, Have 3/4-inch flanges on the top and bottom. 
4. Have one 1-inch and one 1-1/2-inch knockouts on each side, except for the covers 
5. Have drilled and taped holes on the top and the bottom flanges for the cover screws. The hole pattern 

and spacing must be the same on the top and bottom. 
6. Have covers that secure to the box with eight 1/4-inch diameter, 20NC brass machine screws. 
 
A no. 8 pull box must: 

1 Be 12 by 12 by 12 inches. 
2. Be manufactured with 0.135-inch sheet steel. 
3. Mount to the structure with three 3/8-inch diameter machine screws per side. 
4. Have 1-1/2-inch knockouts on each side, except the cover. 
5. Have drilled and taped holes on the sides and the bottom for the cover screws. The holes must be 

reinforced with a 1-by-1-by-0.135-inch bar inside the box. 
6. Have a cover with 3/4-inch flanges on the sides and bottom with the corners welded at the bottom. 

The cover must secure to the box with, three 1/4-inch diameter by 1/2-inch long cadmium plated 
brass or stainless steel, machine screws. 

 
A no. 9 pull box must: 

1 Be 24 by 9-1/2 by 6-1/4 inches. 
2. Be manufactured with 0.075-inch sheet steel. 
3. Have a rain tight hood. 
4, Have a 1-1/2-by-4-1/2-by-0.135-inch strap welded to the back of the box at each corner, parallel to 

the long side. The strap must have a 1/4-inch hole on the exposed end. 
5. Have a 1-inch lip around the opening. 
6. Have drilled and taped holes with a minimum 1/4-inch thread length, on the ends of the bottom lip for 

the cover screws. 
7. Have a 3-inch knockout on each side at the bottom and at the center of the bottom. 
8. Have a 2-inch knockout on each side at the top and at both ends of the bottom. 
9. Have an L 5/8-by-7/8-by-0.075-inch formed angle spot welded to the inside of the top on both sides 

and on the bottom. 
10. Have a cover manufactured with 0.125-inch steel, that secures to the box with two 3/8-inch diameter 

by 3/4-inch long stainless-steel flathead screws with 11/16-inch diameter countersink holes. The 
cover must include a 1/16-inch neoprene gasket. 

 
A no. 9A pull box must: 

1 Be 20 by 8 by 8-1/2 inches. 
2. Be manufactured with 0.075-inch sheet steel. 
3. Have 3/4-inch flanges on the top. 
4, Have drilled holes on the short sides for the cover screws. The holes must have a stainless-steel hex 

nut or a 1/4-by-5/8-by-8-inch bar spot welded to the bottom of the flange. 
5. Have a 3-inch knockout on each side at the top and at the center of the bottom. 
6. Have a 2-inch knockout on each side at the bottom and at both ends of the bottom. 
7. Have a cover manufactured with 0.105-inch steel, that secures to the box with four 3/8-inch diameter 

stainless steel hex head cap screws, two on each short side. The cover must have a rain tight hood 
and include a 1/16-inch neoprene gasket. 

 
Pull box corner joints must be lapped and spot welded or riveted. 

Concentric and eccentric multiple size knockouts are not be allowed. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 146 of 200 

 
Replace section 86-1.02D(3) with: 

10-19-18 
86-1.02D(3)  Warning Tape 
Warning tape must be orange color polyolefin film, minimum elongation of 500 percent before breakage, 
water and corrosion resistant, and comply with requirements shown in the following table: 

Warning Tape Requirements 

Quality characteristic Requirement 
Thickness (min, mil) 4 
Width (in) 4 
Tensile strength of 
material (min, psi) 

2800 

Message spacing 
intervals (ft) 

3 

 

The warning tape must have a printed message that reads: CAUTION: CALTRANS FACILITIES BELOW. 

The printed text height and color must be 1 inch, black color text over bright orange background. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02E with: 
10-19-18 

Each sensor must: 

1. Have a dissipation factor less than 0.04 nF when measured in the 20 nF range 
2. Have resistance greater than 20 Megaohms 
3. Be 1/4 inch wide by 6 feet long by 1/16 inch thick 
4. Have a RG-58C/U coaxial screen transmission cable, jacketed with high-density polyethylene, rated 

for direct burial and resistant to nicks and cuts 
5. Operate over a temperature range from -40 to 160 degrees F 
6. Have a signal to noise ratio equal to or greater than 10 to 1 
7. Have an output signal of a minimum 250 mV ± 20 percent for a wheel load of 400 lb at 55 mph and 

70 degrees F 
8. Have an insulation resistance greater than 500 MΩ 
9. Have a life cycle of a minimum 25 million equivalent single axle loadings 
 
 

Replace section 86-1.02F(1) with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.02F(1)  General 
Conductors and cables must be clearly and permanently marked the entire length of their outer surface 
with: 

1. Manufacturer's name or trademark 
2. Insulation-type letter designation 
3. Conductor size 
4. Voltage 
5. Number of conductors for a cable 
 
The minimum insulation thickness and color code requirements must comply with NEC. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 147 of 200 

 
Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02F(2)(a) with: 

10-19-18 
Conductors must be identified as shown in the following table: 

Conductor Identification 
04-17-20 

Circuit 
Signal phase or 

function 

Identification 
Copper 

size 
Insulation color Band 

symbols Base Stripea 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 148 of 200 

 

Signals (vehicle)a,b 

2, 6 Red, yellow, 
brown 

Black 2, 6 14 

4, 8 Red, yellow, 
brown 

Orange 4, 8 14 

1, 5 Red, yellow, 
brown 

None 1, 5 14 

3, 7 Red, yellow, 
brown 

Purple 3, 7 14 

Ramp meter 1 Red, yellow, 
brown 

None No band 
required 

14 

Ramp meter 2 Red, yellow, 
brown 

Black No band 
required 

14 

Pedestrian signals 

2p, 6p Red, brown Black 2p, 6p 14 
4p, 8p Red, brown Orange 4p, 8p 14 
1p, 5p Red, brown None 1p, 5p 14 
3p, 7p Red, brown Purple 3p, 7p 14 

Push button 
assembly or 
accessible 

pedestrian signal 

2p, 6p Blue Black P-2, P-6 14 
4p, 8p Blue Orange P-4, P-8 14 
1p, 5p Blue None P-1, P-5 14 
3p, 7p Blue Purple P-3, P-7 14 

Traffic signal 
controller cabinet 

Ungrounded circuit 
conductor 

Black None CON-1 6 

Grounded circuit 
conductor 

White None CON-2 6 

Highway lighting 
pull box to 
luminaire 

Ungrounded - line 1 Black None No band 
required 

14 

Ungrounded - line 2 Red None No band 
required 

14 

Grounded White None No band 
required 

14 

Multiple highway 
lighting 

Ungrounded - line 1 Black None ML1 10 
Ungrounded - line 2 Red None ML2 10 
Ungrounded - line 3 White None ML3 10 

Lighting control 

Ungrounded - 
Photoelectric unit 

Black None C1 14 

Switching leg from 
Photoelectric unit or 

SM transformer 

Red None C2 14 

Service 

Ungrounded - line 1 
(signals) 

Black None No band 
required 

6 

Ungrounded - line 2 
(lighting) 

Red None No band 
required 

8 

Sign lighting Ungrounded - line 1 Black None SL-1 10 
Ungrounded - line 2 Red None SL-2 10 

Flashing beacons Ungrounded between 
flasher and beacons 

Red or yellow None FB-Location.c 14 

Grounded circuit 
conductor 

Push button 
assembly or 

accessible pedestrian 
signal 

White Black No band 
required 

14 

Signals and multiple 
lighting 

White None No band 
required 

10 

Flashing beacons 
and sign lighting 

White None No band 
required 

12 

Lighting control White None C-3 14 
Service White None No band 14 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 149 of 200 

 
required 

Spares  Black None No band 
required 

14 

Notes: 
aOn overlaps, the insulation is striped for the 1st phase in the designation, e.g., phase (2+3) conductor is 
striped as for phase 2. 
bBand for overlap and special phases as required 
cFlashing beacons having separate service do not require banding. 
 
 

10-19-18 
Delete the 4th paragraph of section 86-1.02F(2)(a). 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02F(2)(c)(ii) with: 
10-19-18 

An equipment grounding conductor must be insulated. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 86-1.02F(3)(d)(ii) with: 
10-19-18 

Cable must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

Cable 
type 

Conductor 
quantity and 

type 

Cable jacket thickness 
(mils) 

Maximum 
nominal 
outside 

diameter 
(inch) 

Conductor color code 

Average Minimum 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 150 of 200 

 
3CSC 3 no. 14 44 36 0.40 Blue/black stripe, 

blue/orange stripe, 
white/black stripe 

5CSC 5 no. 14 44 36 0.50 Red, 
yellow, 
brown, 
black, 
white 

9CSC 1 no. 12 
8 no. 14 

60 48 0.65 No. 12 - white, 
No. 14 - red, 

yellow, 
brown, 
black, 

red/black stripe, 
yellow/black stripe, 
brown/black stripe, 
white/black stripe 

12CSC 1 no. 12 
11 no. 14 

60 48 0.80 No. 12 - white 
No. 14 - red, 

yellow, 
brown, 
black, 

red/black stripe, 
yellow/black stripe, 
brown/black stripe, 

black/red stripe, 
black/white stripe, 
red/white stripe, 

brown/white stripe 
28CSC 1 no. 10 

27 no. 14 
80 64 0.90 No. 10 - white 

No. 14 - red/black stripe, 
yellow/black stripe, 
brown/black stripe, 
red/orange stripe, 

yellow/orange stripe, 
brown/orange stripe, 

red/silver stripe, 
yellow/silver stripe, 
brown/silver stripe, 
red/purple stripe, 

yellow/purple stripe, 
brown/purple stripe, 
red/2 black stripes, 

brown/2 black stripes, 
red/2 orange stripes, 

brown/2 orange stripes, 
red/2 silver stripes, 

brown/2 silver stripes, 
red/2 purple stripes, 

brown/2 purple stripes, 
blue/black stripe, 

blue/orange stripe, 
blue/silver stripe, 
blue/purple stripe, 
white/black stripe, 
black/red stripe, 

black 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 151 of 200 

 
 

 

Replace section 86-1.02F(3)(d)(iv) with: 
04-17-20 

86-1.02F(3)(d)(iv)  Railroad Preemption Cables 
A railroad preemption cable must be a 19-conductor cable having a polyvinyl chloride or polyethylene 
jacket. The cable jacket must be rated for 600 V(ac) and 75 degrees C. 

The railroad preemption cable color code must be as shown in the following table: 

Railroad Preemption Cable Color Code 
Conductor no. Color Code 

1 Black 
2 White 
3 Red 
4 Green 
5 Orange 
6 Blue 
7 White/black stripe 
8 Red/black stripe 
9 Green/black stripe 
10 Orange/black stripe 
11 Blue/black stripe 
12 Black/white stripe 
13 Red/white stripe 
14 Green/white stripe 
15 Blue/white stripe 
16 Black/red stripe 
17 White/red stripe 
18 Orange/red stripe 
19 Blue/red stripe 

 

The individual conductors in the cable must: 

1. Be stranded and comply with ASTM B286 
2. Have Type THW insulation 
3. Be 16 AWG 
 
 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 86-1.02G with: 
10-19-18 

The self-adhesive reflective labels must: 

1. Be from 3 to 5 mils thick 
2. Have all black capital characters on a white background 
3. Extend beyond the character by a minimum of 1/4 inch 
 
 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 86-1.02H with: 
10-19-18 

PVC electrical tape must have a minimum thickness of 6 mils. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 152 of 200 

 
Replace section 86-1.02K with: 

04-17-20 
86-1.02K  Luminaires 
86-1.02K(1)  General 
A luminaire must: 

1. Be self-contained, not requiring assembly. 
2. Comply with UL 1598 for luminaires in wet locations. 
3. Have a power supply with ANSI/IEC 60529 rating of at least IP65. 
4. Weigh less than 35 lb. 
5. Have a minimum 60,000 hours L70 rating under LM-80 and TM-21 at an ambient temperature of 25 

degrees C. 
6. Operate over a temperature range from -40 to 130 degrees F. 
7. Be operationally compatible with photoelectric controls. 
8. Have a nominal correlated color temperature of 3000 K under ANSI C78.377 and a color rendering 

index of 70 or greater. 
9. Have a maximum effective projected area of 1.4 sq ft when viewed from either side or end. 
10. Comply with ANSI C136.31. 
11. Have a power factor of 0.90 or greater. The total harmonic distortion, current, and voltage induced 

into a power line by a luminaire must not exceed 20 percent. Test voltage will be at 120 V(ac), 240 
V(ac), or 480 V(ac). 

12. Comply with the maximum power consumption and isofootcandle curves as shown. 
13. Be on the Authorized Material List for LED luminaires or must be submitted and passed testing for 

addition to the AML. 
 
A luminaire must include a surge protection device to withstand high-repetition noise transients caused by 
utility line switching, lightning strikes, and other interferences. The device must protect the luminaire from 
damage and failure due to transient voltages and currents as defined in Tables 1 and 4 of ANSI/IEEE 
C64.41.2 for location category C-High. The surge protection device must comply with UL 1449 and 
ANSI/IEEE C62.45 based on ANSI/IEEE C62.41.2 definitions for standard and optional waveforms for 
location category C-High. 

The luminaire must operate over the voltage range: 

1. From 95 to 277 V(ac) for luminaires rated 120, 240, or 277 V(ac) 
2. From 347 to 480 V(ac) for luminaires rated 480 V(ac) 
 
The fluctuations of line voltage must have no visible effect on the luminous output. 

The luminaire's housing, external bolts, screws, hinges, hinge pins, and door closure devices must 
withstand a 1008 hour cyclic salt fog spray/UV test under ASTM D5894 and an evaluation under ASTM 
D714 with a blister rating of 8 or greater and no more than medium density. 

The luminaire's housing must be marine-grade alloy with less than 0.2 percent copper or die cast 
aluminum. 

The housing must be designed to prevent the buildup of water on its top surface. Exposed heat sink fins 
must be oriented to allow water to run off the luminaire and carry dust and other accumulated debris away 
from the unit. The optical assembly of the luminaire must be protected against dust and moisture intrusion 
to at least an ANSI/IEC 60529 rating of IP66. The power supply enclosure must be protected to at least 
an ANSI/IEC 60529 rating of IP43. 

If the components are mounted on a down-opening door, the door must be hinged and secured to the 
luminaire's housing separately from other components. The door must be secured to the housing to 
prevent accidental opening. A safety cable must mechanically connect the door to the housing. 

A luminaire must have a barrier-type terminal block secured to the housing to connect field wires. The 
terminal screws must be captive and equipped with wire grips for conductors up to no. 6. 

Terminals must be identified and marked. 

file:///C:/Users/s122282/Desktop/2020%20Electrical%20RSS/Brian%20Chow/email%20Log/GE/191015B_Pete%20Porte%20emails
file:///C:/Users/s122282/Desktop/2020%20Electrical%20RSS/Brian%20Chow/email%20Log/GE/191015B_Pete%20Porte%20emails


RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 153 of 200 

 
If needed, each refractor or lens must be made of UV-inhibiting high-impact plastic, such as acrylic or 
polycarbonate, or heat and impact-resistant glass. The refractor or lens must be resistant to scratching. 
Polymeric materials, except for the lenses of enclosures containing either the power supply or electronic 
components of the luminaire, must be made of UL94 V-0 flame-retardant materials. 

The luminaire must be permanently marked inside the unit and outside of its packaging box. Marking 
consists of: 

1. Manufacturer's name or trademark 
2. Month and year of manufacture 
3. Model, serial, and lot numbers 
4. Rated voltage, wattage, and power in VA 
 
An LED luminaire must: 

1. Comply with Class A emission limits under 47 CFR 15(B) for unintentional radiators. 
2. Have a power supply with: 

2.1. 2 leads to accept standard 0-10 V(dc) control. 
2.2. Dimming control compatible with IEC 60929, Annex E. If the control leads are open or the 

analog control signal is lost, the circuit must default to 100-percent power. 
2.3. Case temperature self-rise of 77 degrees F or less above ambient temperature in free air with 

no additional heat sinks. 
3. Not be cooled by fans or other menchanical devices. 
 
86-1.02K(2)  Roadway Luminaires 
A roadway luminaire must: 

1. Have a housing color that matches a color no. 26152 to 26440, 36231 to 36375, or 36440 of AMS-
STD-595 

2. Have an ANSI C136.41-compliant, locking-type, photocontrol receptacle with dimming connections 
and a watertight shorting cap 

3. Have an uplight rating of "U0" per IES TM-15-11 
4. Have equipment identification character labels outside the unit on the side that will face the road. 

Equipment identification characters consist of: 
4.1. R1 for Roadway 1, R2 for Roadway 2, R3 for Roadway 3, and R4 for Roadway 4 
4.2. Rated wattage 

 
The luminaire's housing must have a slip fitter that must: 

1. Fit on mast arms with outside diameters from 1-5/8 to 2-3/8 inches 
2. Be adjustable to a minimum of ±5 degrees from the axis of the tenon in a minimum of 5 steps: +5, 

+2.5, 0, -2.5, -5 
3. Have clamping brackets that: 

3.1. Are made of corrosion-resistant materials or treated to prevent galvanic reactions 
3.2. Do not bottom out on the housing bosses when adjusted within the designed angular range 
3.3. Do not permanently set more than 1/32 inch when tightened 

 
86-1.02K(3)  Overhead Sign Luminaires 
An overhead sign luminaire must: 

1. Have a uniformity average to minimum ratio of 10:1 for the distribution of light reflected on a 16' wide 
by 12' high sign panel 

2. Not allow more than 2.5 percent of the rated lumens to project above 65 degrees measured up from 
the horizontal plane in the direction of the sign panel 

3. Mount at a maximum height of 12 inches above the top of the mounting rails 
4. Mount directly to the sign structure as shown or with a mounting adapter that meets the material 

requirements of the luminaire's housing 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 154 of 200 

 
Replace section 86-1.02M with: 

10-19-18 
86-1.02M  Photoelectric Controls 
Photoelectric control types are as shown in the following table: 

Photoelectric Control Types 
Control type Description 

I Pole-mounted photoelectric unit. Test switch and a 15-A circuit breaker per 
ungrounded conductor, housed in an enclosure. 

II Pole-mounted photoelectric unit. Contactor, a 15-A circuit breaker per ungrounded 
conductor, and test switch located in a service equipment enclosure. 

III Pole-mounted photoelectric unit. Contactor, a 15-A circuit breaker per ungrounded 
conductor, and a test switch housed in an enclosure. 

IV A photoelectric unit that plugs into a NEMA twist-lock receptacle, integral with the 
luminaire. 

V A photoelectric unit, contactor, a 15-A circuit breaker per ungrounded conductor, and 
test switch located in a service equipment enclosure. 

 

The pole-mounted adaptor for Type I, II, and III photoelectric controls must include a terminal block and 
cable supports or clamps to support the wires. 

Photoelectric unit must: 

1. Have a screen to prevent artificial light from causing cycling. 
2. Have a rating of 60 Hz, 105-130 V(ac), 210-240 V(ac), or 105-240 V(ac). 
3. Operate at a temperature range from -20 to 55 degrees C. 
4. Consume less than 10 W. 
5. Be a 3-prong, twist-lock type with a NEMA IP 65 rating, ANSI C136.10-compliant. 
6. Have a fail-on state. 
7. Fit into a NEMA-type receptacle. 
8. Turn on from 1 to 5 footcandles and turn off from 1.5 to 5 times the turn-on level. Measurements must 

be made by procedures in EEI-NEMA Standards for Physical and Electrical Interchangeability of 
Light-Sensitive Control Devices Used in the Control of Roadway Lighting. 

 
Type I, II, III, and V photoelectric controls must have a test switch to allow manual operation of the lighting 
circuit. Switch must be: 

1. Single-hole mounting, toggle type 
2. 15 A, single pole and single throw 
3. Labeled Auto-Test on a nameplate 
 
Photoelectric control's contactor must be: 

1. Normally open 
2. Mechanical-armature type with contacts of fine silver, silver alloy, or equal or better material 
3. Installed to provide a minimum space of 2-1/2 inches between the contactor terminals and the 

enclosure's sides 
 
The terminal blocks must be rated at 25 A, 600 V(ac), molded from phenolic or nylon material, and be the 
barrier type with plated-brass screw terminals and integral marking strips. 

 

Replace section 86-1.02N with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.02N  Fused Splice Connectors 
The fused splice connector for 240 and 480 V(ac) circuits must simultaneously disconnect both 
ungrounded conductors. The connector must not have exposed metal parts except for the head of the 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 155 of 200 

 
stainless steel assembly screw. The head of the assembly screw must be recessed a minimum of 1/32 
inch below the top of the plastic boss that surrounds the head. 

The connector must protect the fuse from water or weather damage. Contact between the fuse and fuse 
holder must be spring loaded. 

Fuses must: 

1. Be standard, midget, ferrule type 
2. Have a nontime-delay feature 
3. Be 13/32 by 1-1/2 inches 
 
Fuse ratings for luminaires are shown in the following table: 

Fuse Current Rating Requirements 
Circuit 
voltage 

Fuse voltage 
rating 

Soffit and roadway 
luminaires 

120 V(ac) 250 V(ac) 5 A 
240 V(ac) 250 V(ac) 5 A 
480 V(ac) 500-600 V(ac) 5 A 

 

Fuse ratings for transformers are shown in the following table: 

Fuse Current Rating Requirements 
Circuit voltage Fuse voltage 

rating 
Fuse current rating for 

Single phase (two wires) Transformers (primary side) 
1 kVA 2 kVA 3 kVA 

120 V(ac) 250 V(ac) 10 A 20 A 30 A 
240 V(ac) 250 V(ac) 6 A 10 A 20 A 
480 V(ac) 500-600 V(ac) 3 A 6 A 10 A 

 

 

Replace section 86-1.02P(1) with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.02P(1)  General 
The enclosures must be rated NEMA 3R and include a dead front panel and a hasp with a 7/16-inch-
diameter hole for a padlock. 

Except for a service equipment enclosure, an enclosure must: 

1. Be manufactured from steel and either galvanized, cadmium plated, or powder coated 
2. Mount to a standard, pole, post, or sign structural frame 
3. Provide a minimum space of 2-1/2 inches between the internal components and the enclosure's sides 
 
The enclosure's machine screws and bolts must not protrude outside the cabinet wall. 

The fasteners on the exterior of an enclosure must be vandal resistant and not be removable. The 
exterior screws, nuts, bolts, and washers must be stainless steel. 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 86-1.02P(2) with: 
04-19-19 

Service equipment enclosure must: 

1. Comply with the Electric Utility Service Equipment Requirements Committee 
2. Meet the requirements of the service utility 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 156 of 200 

 
3. Be watertight 
4. Be factory wired and manufactured from steel and galvanized or have factory-applied, rust-resistant 

prime and finish coats, except Types II and III 
5. Be marked as specified in NEC to warn of potential electric-arc flash hazards 
 
 

04-19-19 
Delete the 5th paragraph of 86-1.02P(2). 

 

Add between 6th and 7th paragraphs of section 86-1.02P(2): 
10-19-18 

Service equipment enclosure must have the meter view windows located on the front side of the 
enclosure for Types III-AF, BF, CF and DF. 

Service equipment enclosure must have the meter view windows located on the back side of the 
enclosure for Types III-AR, BR, CR and DR. 

 

Replace the 7th paragraph of section 86-1.02P(2) with: 
04-19-19 

The meter area must have a sealable, lockable, weather-tight cover that can be removed without the use 
of tools. 

 

04-19-19 
Delete the 2nd sentence of the 9th paragraph of section 86-1.02P(2). 

 

10-19-18 
Delete section 86-1.02P(3). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 86-1.02Q(2) with: 
04-17-20 

A Department-furnished controller assembly consists of a controller cabinet with a controller unit and all 
auxiliary equipment required to operate the system. The Department does not furnish anchor bolts. 

 

Replace section 86-1.02Q(4)(a) with: 
10-19-18 

86-1.02Q(4)(a)  General 
The doors of a telephone demarcation cabinet must be attached using continuous aluminum steel piano 
hinges. 

 

Add between the 2nd and 3rd paragraphs of section 86-1.02R(2): 
10-19-18 

Bracket arms must be long enough to allow proper alignment of signals and backplate installation. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 157 of 200 

 
Add to the end of section 86-1.02R(3): 

04-17-20 
Backplates for signal and lighting systems must have a 2-inch retroreflective strip on the face around the 
perimeter. The strip must be Type XI fluorescent yellow retroreflective sheeting on the Authorized Material 
List for signing and delineation materials. 

 

Replace item 2 in the list in the 5th paragraph of section 86-1.02R(4)(a)(iii) with: 
10-19-18 

2. Be a black color throughout, including the door, matching color no. 17038, 27038, or 37038 of AMS-
STD-595 

 

Replace section 86-1.02S(3)(c) with: 
04-17-20 

86-1.02S(3)(c)  LED Countdown Pedestrian Signal Face Modules 
An LED countdown PSF module must: 

1. Comply with ITE publication ST-055-E, Pedestrian Traffic Control Signal Indicators: Light Emitting 
Diode (LED) Signal Modules. 

2. Be manufactured with materials that comply with ASTM D3935. 
3. Have circuit boards that comply with TEES, chapter 1, section 6. 
4. Have symbols that are at least 9 inches high and 5-1/4 inches wide each. The 2-digit countdown 

display, Upraised Hand, and Walking Person indications must be electronically isolated from each 
other. The 3 indications must not share a power supply or interconnect circuitry. 

5. Use ultra-bright-type LED rated for 60,000 hours of continuous operation. Individual LEDs must be 
wired such that a loss or failure of 1 LED will not result in a loss of more than 5 percent of the 
module's light output. Failure of an individual LED in a string must not result in a loss of an entire 
string or other indication. 

6. Have a manual control to turn on and off the 2-digit countdown display. 
7. Have the lot number, month, and year of manufacture permanently marked on the back. 
8. Have prominent and permanent vertical markings for accurate indexing and orientation within the 

pedestrian signal housing. Markings must be a minimum of 1 inch in height and include an up arrow 
and the word up or top. 

 
Upon initial testing at 25 degrees C, the module must have at least the luminance values shown in the 
following table: 

Luminance Values 
PSF module symbol Luminance (fL) 

Upraised hand and 2-
digit countdown timer 

1,094 

Walking person 1,547 
 

The module must not exceed the power consumption requirements shown in the following table: 

Maximum Power Consumption Requirements 
PSF module display At 24 ºC At 74 ºC 

Upraised Hand 10.0 W 12.0 W 
Walking Person 9.0 W 12.0 W 

2-digit countdown timer 6.0 W 8.0 W 
 

If the pedestrian change interval is interrupted, then the 2-digit countdown timer and display must reset to 
the full pedestrian change interval before being initiated the next time. The 2-digit countdown display on 
the PSF module must go dark within a second after displaying "0". 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 158 of 200 

 
 

Add to the beginning of section 86-1.02T: 
04-19-19 

Accessible pedestrian signal must be on the Authorized Material List for Accessible Pedestrian Signals. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02T. 

 

Replace the 5th and 6th paragraphs of section 86-1.02T with: 
10-19-18 

The color of a metallic housing must match color no. 33538 of AMS-STD-595. 

The color of a plastic housing must match color no. 17038, 27038, or 37038 of AMS-STD-595. 

 

Replace the 7th paragraph of section 86-1.02T with: 
04-19-19 

Accessible pedestrian signal must: 

1. Have controllable and programmable volume level and messaging 
2. Be weatherproof and shockproof 
 
 

Replace the 11th paragraph of section 86-1.02T with: 
10-19-18 

The cable between the accessible pedestrian signal assembly and the pedestrian signal head must be 
rated for outdoor use and have a: 

1. Minimum four no. 18 stranded or larger tinned copper conductors with a minimum insulation thickness 
of 15 mils 

2. Cable jacket with a minimum thickness of 20 mils and rated for a minimum: 
2.1. 300 V(ac) 
2.2. 80 degrees C 

3. Nominal outside diameter less than 350 mils 
4. Conductor color code of black, white, red and green 
 
 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 86-1.02U with: 
10-19-18 

The housing for a push button assembly must be made of die-cast aluminum, permanent mold-cast 
aluminum, or UV-stabilized self-extinguishing structural plastic. 

The housing must have a uniform color that matches color no. 17038, 27038, or 37038 of AMS-STD-595. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02W(4) with:  
10-19-18 

The cured hot-melt rubberized asphalt sealant must comply with the requirements shown in the following 
table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 159 of 200 

 
Cured Hot-Melt Rubberized Asphalt Sealant Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Cone penetration, 25 °C, 150 g, 5 s (max, 1/10 mm) 

ASTM D5329 
35 

Flow, 60 °C, 5 hr (max, mm) 5 
Resilience, 25 °C (min, %) 25 
Softening point (min, °C) ASTM D36 82 
Ductility, 25 °C, 5 cm/min (min, cm) ASTM D113 30 
Flash point, Cleveland Open Cup (min, °C) ASTM D92 288 
Viscosity, no. 27 spindle, 20 rpm, 190 °C (Pa•s) ASTM D4402 2.5–3.5 
 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 86-1.02Y with: 
10-19-18 

A transformer must be a dry type designed for operation on a 60 Hz supply. The transformer must have a 
decal showing a connection diagram. The diagram must show either color coding or wire tagging with 
primary (H1, H2) or secondary (X1, X2) markers and the primary and secondary voltage and volt-ampere 
rating. A transformer must comply with the electrical requirements shown in the following table: 

Transformer Electrical Requirements 
Quality characteristic Requirement 

Rating (V(ac)) 120/240, 120/480, 240/120, 
240/480, 480/120, or 480/240 

Efficiency (%) > 95 
Secondary voltage regulation and tolerance from half load to full 
load (%) 

±3 

 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

87  ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 
04-17-20 

Replace Reserved in section 87-1.01C with: 
10-19-18 

Submit a digital file for geographic information system mapping for: 

1. Conduit 
2. Pull boxes 
3. Cabinets 
4. Service equipment enclosures 
5. Standards 
 
The digital file must consist of: 

1. Longitudinal and latitude coordinates, under the WGS84 reference coordinate system. The 
coordinates must be in decimal format having 6 significant figures after the decimal point. 
Coordinates must be read at the center of pull boxes, cabinet, standards, and service equipment 
enclosures; and on top of conduit at 20-foot intervals before backfill. 

2. Type, depth and size for conduits. 
3. Type for pull boxes, standards, cabinets, and service equipment enclosures. 
 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 160 of 200 

 
Replace item 4 in the list in the 1st paragraph of section 87-1.01D(2)(a) with: 

10-19-18 
4. Luminaires 
 
 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 87-1.01D(2)(a) with: 
10-18-19 

Submit a sample size as shown in the following table: 

Electrical Material Sampling 
Contract quantity Test sample size 

1–8 1 
9–15 2 

16–25 3 
26–90 5 
91–150 8 
151–280 13 
281–500 20 
501–1200 32 

 

 

Replace section 87-1.01D(2)(d) with: 
10-19-18 

87-1.01D(2)(d)  Piezoelectric Axle Sensors 
Piezoelectric axle sensors test consists of: 

1. Demonstrating for each sensor: 
1.1. Capacitance is within 20 percent of the value shown on the sensor's data sheet 
1.2. Dissipation factor is less than 0.04 nF when measured in the 20 nF range 
1.3. Resistance is greater than 20 Megaohms 

2. Collecting a minimum of 100 vehicle records for each lane and demonstrating: 
2.1. Volume is within ±3 percent accuracy 
2.2. Vehicle classification is within 95 percent accuracy by type 

 
 

Replace the 7th paragraph of section 87-1.03A with: 
10-19-18 

Notify the Engineer immediately if an existing facility is damaged by your activities: 

1. Damaged existing traffic signal systems must be repaired or replaced within 24 hours. If the system 
cannot be fixed within 24 hours or it is located on a structure, provide a temporary system until the 
system can be fixed. 

2. Damaged existing lighting systems must be repaired or replaced by nightfall. If the system cannot be 
fixed by nightfall, provide a temporary system until the system can be fixed. 

 
 

Add to the end of section 87-1.03A: 
10-19-18 

Collect the geographic information system mapping data. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 161 of 200 

 
Replace the 12th paragraph of section 87-1.03B(1) with: 

10-19-18 
For Type 1, 2, and 5 conduits, use threaded bushings and bond them using a jumper. For other types of 
conduit, use nonmetallic bushings or end bell. 

 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 87-1.03B(3)(a) with: 
10-19-18 

Place a minimum of 2 inches of sand bedding in a trench before installing the conduit and 18 inches of 
slurry cement over the conduit before placing additional backfill material. 

10-18-19 
The slurry must be pigmented to match color no. 21105 of AMS-STD-595. 

 

Replace the 1st sentence in the 6th paragraph of section 87-1.03B(3)(c) with: 
10-19-18 

Backfill trench with slurry concrete under section 19-3.02E. 

 

Replace the 9th paragraph of section 87-1.03B(3)(c) with: 
10-19-18 

Install innerducts as one continuous unit between vaults. Innerducts may be interrupted inside pull boxes 
located between vaults and cabinets. 

 

Replace section 87-1.03C with: 
10-18-19 

87-1.03C  Installation of Pull Boxes 
87-1.03C(1)  General 
Install pull boxes no more than 200 feet apart. 

Place the cover on the box when not working in it. 

87-1.03C(2)  Roadway Pull Boxes 
87-1.03C(2)(a)  General 
You may install larger pull boxes than specified or shown and additional pull boxes to facilitate the work 
except in structures. 

Install a pull box on a minimum 6-inch deep bed of crushed rock and grout it before installing conductors. 
The grout must be from 0.5 to 1 inch thick and sloped toward the drain hole. Place a layer of roofing 
paper between the grout and the crushed rock sump. Make a 1-inch drain hole through the grout at the 
center of the pull box. 

Set the pull box such that the top is 1-1/4 inches above the surrounding grade in unpaved areas and 
leveled with the finished grade in sidewalks and other paved areas. 

Grout around conduits that are installed through the sides of the pull box. 

Bond and ground the metallic conduit before installing conductors and cables in the conduit. 

Bond metallic conduits in a nonmetallic pull box using bonding bushings and bonding jumpers. 

Do not install pull boxes in concrete pads, curb ramps, or driveways. 

Reconstruct the sump of a pull box if disturbed by your activities. If the sump was grouted, remove and 
replace the grout. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 162 of 200 

 
87-1.03C(2)(b)  Nontraffic Pull Boxes 
For a buried nontraffic pull box, install the electronic marker and set the box such that the top is from 6 to 
8 inches below the surrounding grade. Place a 20-mil-thick plastic sheet made of HDPE or PVC virgin 
compounds to prevent water from entering the box. 

When a pull box is in a structure, modify the base as required. 

Place mortar between a nontraffic pull box and a pull box extension. 

Where a nontraffic pull box is in the vicinity of a curb in an unpaved area, place the box adjacent to the 
back of the curb if practical. 

Where a nontraffic pull box is adjacent to a post or standard, place the box within 5 feet downstream from 
traffic if practical. 

If you replace the cover on a nontraffic pull box, anchor it to the box. 

Perform the electronic marker test. 

87-1.03C(2)(c)  Traffic Pull Boxes 
Place minor concrete around and under a traffic pull box as shown. 

Bolt the steel cover to the box when not working in it. 

Bond the steel cover to the conduit with a minimum 3-foot-long jumper and bolt it down after installing the 
conductors and cables. 

87-1.03C(2)(d)  Tamper-Resistant Pull Boxes 
Install the tamper-resistant pull boxes under the manufacturer's instructions. 

87-1.03C(3)  Structure Pull Boxes 
Install structure pull boxes parallel to the structure. 

After removing the knockouts, flatten the surrounding area. 

Bond conduit to a structure pull box using locknuts on the inside and outside of the box. 

Cover pull boxes with a 1/4-inch plywood during pouring of PCC. For a no. 9 pull box, the upper edge of 
the plywood must fit against the lower edge of the rain tight hood. 

Install no. 7 pull box with bottom flanges flush with the bottom of the box girder. Place top and bottom 
covers and seal the pull box during PCC pouring. 

For no. 9 and 9A pull boxes: 

1. Form a 1:1 chamfer around the cover 
2. Use the drain hole in the center if the box is horizontal and the low end drain hole if the box is inclined 
3. Mounted in a sloping parapet, drill a 1/2-inch elongated drain hole in the center if the box is horizontal 

or the low end if the box is inclined 
 
 

Replace section 87-1.03D with: 
10-19-18 

87-1.03D  Reserved 
 

Replace section 87-1.03E(2) with: 
04-19-19 

Dig a trench for the electrical conduits or direct burial cables. Do not excavate until the installation of the 
conduit or direct burial cables. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 163 of 200 

 
Place excavated material in a location that will not interfere with traffic or surface drainage. 

After placing the conduit or direct burial cable, backfill the trench. 

Compact the backfill to a minimum relative compaction of: 

1. 95 percent when placed within the hinge points and in areas where pavement is to be constructed 
2. 90 percent when placed outside the hinge points and not under pavement 
 
 

Restore the sidewalks, pavement, and landscaping at a location before starting excavation at another 
location. 

 

Replace section 87-1.03E(3) with: 
10-19-18 

87-1.03E(3)  Concrete Pads, Foundations, and Pedestals 
Construct foundations for standards, poles, metal pedestals, and posts under section 56-3. 

Construct concrete pads, foundations, and pedestals for controller cabinets, telephone demarcation 
cabinets, and service equipment enclosures on firm ground. 

Install anchor bolts using a template to provide proper spacing and alignment. Moisten the forms and 
ground before placing the concrete. Keep the forms in place until the concrete sets for at least 24 hours to 
prevent damage to the surface. 

Use minor concrete for pads, foundations, and pedestals. 

Construct a pad in front of a Type III service equipment enclosure. The pad must be 24 inches in length, 4 
inches in thickness, and must match the width of the foundation. 

In unpaved areas, place the top of the foundation 6 inches above the surrounding grade, except place the 
top: 

1. 1 foot 6 inches above the grade for 336L cabinets 
2. 1 foot 8 inches above the grade for Type C telephone demarcation cabinets 
3. 2 inches above the grade for Type III service equipment enclosures 
 
The pad must be 2 inches above the surrounding grade in unpaved areas. 

In and adjacent to the sidewalk and other paved areas, place the top of the foundation 4 inches above the 
surrounding grade, except place the top: 

1. 1 foot 6 inches above the grade for 336L cabinets 
2. 1 foot 8 inches above the grade for Type C telephone demarcation cabinets 
3. Level with the finished grade for Type G and Type A cabinets and Type III service equipment 

enclosures 
 
The pad must be level with the finished grade in paved areas. 

Apply an ordinary surface finish under section 51-1.03F. 

Allow the foundation to cure for at least 7 days before installing any equipment. 

 

Add between the 3rd and 4th paragraphs of section 87-1.03F(1): 
04-17-20 

Provide conductor and cable slack to comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 164 of 200 

 
Conductor and Cable Slack Requirements 

Location Slack (feet) 
Signal standard 1 
Lighting standard 1 
Signal and lighting standard 1 
Pull box 3 
Splice 3 
Controller cabinet 6 
Standards with slip base 0 

 

 

Replace the last paragraph of section 87-1.03F(1) with: 
04-19-19 

Install a tracer wire. 

 

Replace section 87-1.03F(2) with: 
04-17-20 

87-1.03F(2)  Cables 
87-1.03F(2)(a)  General 
Reserved 

87-1.03F(2)(b)  Communication Cables 
87-1.03F(2)(b)(i)  General 
Terminate the ends of the communication cables as shown. 

87-1.03F(2)(b)(ii)  Category 5E and 6 Cables 
Do not splice category 5E and 6 cables. 

87-1.03F(2)(b)(iii)  Telephone Cables 
Do not splice telephone cables between the telephone demarcation point and the controller cabinet. 

87-1.03F(2)(c)  Copper Cables 
87-1.03F(2)(c)(i)  General 
Reserved 

87-1.03F(2)(c)(ii)  Detector Lead-in Cables 
Install a Type B or C detector lead-in cable in conduit. 

Seal the ends of the lead-in cable before installing it in the conduit to prevent moisture from entering the 
cable. 

Splice loop conductors for each direction of travel for the same phase, terminating in the same pull box, to 
a separate lead-in cable running from the pull box adjacent to the loop detector to a sensor unit mounted 
in the controller cabinet. Install the lead-in cable without splices except at the pull box when connecting to 
loop wire. 

Verify in the presence of the Engineer that the loops are operational before making the final splices 
between loop conductors and the lead-in cable. 

Identify and tag each lead-in cable with the detector designation at the cabinet and pull box adjacent to 
the loops. 

87-1.03F(2)(c)(iii)  Conductors Signal Cables 
Do not splice signal cables except for a 28-conductor cable. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 165 of 200 

 
Provide identification at the ends of terminated conductors in a cable as shown. 

Provide identification for each cable in each pull box showing the signal standard to which it is connected 
except for the 28-conductor cable. 

Connect conductors in a 12-conductor cable as shown in the following table: 

12CSC Color Code and Functional Connection 
Color code Termination Phase 

Red Red signal 2, 4, 6, or 8 
Yellow Yellow signal 2, 4, 6, or 8 
Brown Green signal 2, 4, 6, or 8 
Red/black stripe Red signal 1, 3, 5, or 7 
Yellow/black stripe Yellow signal 1, 3, 5, or 7 
Brown/black stripe Green signal 1, 3, 5, or 7 
Black/red stripe Spare or as required for red or DONT 

WALK 
-- 

Black/white stripe Spare or as required for yellow -- 
Black Spare or as required for green or WALK -- 
Red/white stripe Pedestrian signal DONT WALK -- 
Brown/white stripe Pedestrian signal WALK -- 
White Terminal block Neutral 

 

Provide identification for each 28-conductor cable C1 or C2 in each pull box. The cable labeled C1 must 
be used for signal phases 1, 2, 3, and 4. The cable labeled C2 must be used for signal phases 5, 6, 7, 
and 8. 

Connect conductors in a 28-conductor cable as shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 166 of 200 

 
28CSC Color Code and Functional Connection 

Color code Termination Phase 
Red/black stripe Red signal 2 or 6 
Yellow/black stripe Yellow signal 2 or 6 
Brown/black stripe Green signal 2 or 6 
Red/orange stripe Red signal 4 or 8 
Yellow/orange stripe Yellow signal 4 or 8 
Brown/orange stripe Green signal 4 or 8 
Red/silver stripe Red signal 1 or 5 
Yellow/silver stripe Yellow signal 1 or 5 
Brown/silver stripe Green signal 1 or 5 
Red/purple stripe Red signal 3 or 7 
Yellow/purple stripe Yellow signal 3 or 7 
Brown/purple stripe Green signal 3 or 7 
Red/2 black stripes Pedestrian signal DONT WALK 2 or 6 
Brown/2 black stripes Pedestrian signal WALK 2 or 6 
Red/2 orange stripes Pedestrian signal DONT WALK 4 or 8 
Brown/2 orange stripes Pedestrian signal WALK 4 or 8 
Red/2 silver stripes Overlap A, C OLAa, OLCa 
Brown/2 silver stripes Overlap A, C OLAc, OLCc 
Red/2 purple stripes Overlap B, D OLBa, OLDa 
Brown/2 purple stripes Overlap B, D OLBc, OLDc 
Blue/black stripe Pedestrian push button 2 or 6 
Blue/orange stripe Pedestrian push button 4 or 8 
Blue/silver stripe Overlap A, C OLAb, OLCb 
Blue/purple stripe Overlap B, D OLBb, OLDb 
White/black stripe Pedestrian push button common -- 
Black/red stripe Spare -- 
Black Spare -- 
White Terminal block Neutral 
OL = Overlap; A, B, C, and D = Overlapping phase designation 
aFor red phase designation 
bFor yellow phase designation 
cFor green phase designation 

 

Use the neutral conductor only with the phases associated with that cable. Do not intermix neutral 
conductors from different cables except at the signal controller. 

87-1.03F(2)(c)(iv)  Signal Interconnect Cable 
Do not splice the cable unless authorized. 

If splices are authorized, insulate the conductor splices with heat-shrink tubing and overlap the insulation 
at least 0.6 inch. Cover the splice area of the cable with heat-shrink tubing and overlap the cable jacket at 
least 1-1/2 inches. Provide a minimum of 3 feet of slack at each splice. 

87-1.03F(2)(c)(v)  Railroad Preemption Cables 
Do not splice railroad preemption cable from controller cabinet to railroad cabinet. 

Terminate individual conductors with ferrule connectors in the controller cabinet. 

Provide identification on both ends of the cable and connect the cable end in the controller cabinet as 
shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 167 of 200 

 
Color Code and Functional Connection 

Conductor no. Color Code Controller Cabinet Field 
Terminal Connections 

Conductor Identification 

1 Black Not Used Spare 
2 White Not Used Spare 
3 Red FT8-A145 Health Status DC+ 
4 Green Not Used Spare 
5 Orange FT7-A134 Simultaneous DC- 
6 Blue FT7-A131 Advance DC- 
7 White/black stripe Not Used Spare 
8 Red/black stripe FT8-A144 Gate Down/Island 
9 Green/black stripe Feld Terminal FT8-A142 Advance Pedestrian 

Preemption 
10 Orange/black stripe FT7-A135 Simultaneous Primary 
11 Blue/black stripe FT7-A132 Advance Primary 
12 Black/white stripe Not Used Spare 
13 Red/white stripe FT8-A143 Gate Down/Island DC- 
14 Green/white stripe FT8-A141 Advance Pedestrian 

Preemption DC- 
15 Blue/white stripe FT7-A133 Advance Secondary 
16 Black/red stripe Not Used Spare 
17 White/red stripe FT8-A146 Health Status DC- 
18 Orange/red stripe FT7-A136 Simultaneous 

Secondary 
19 Blue/red stripe Not Used Spare 

 

Keep all exposed conductors the same length and individually insulate spare conductors against each 
other. 

Provide a minimum 6 feet of slack in the pull box adjacent to the railroad cabinet. 

Connect the cable end in the railroad cabinet as directed by the railroad agency representative. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 4th paragraph of 87-1.03F(3)(a). 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 87-1.03F(3)(c)(ii) with: 
10-19-18 

Install a Type 1 or 2 inductive loop conductor except use Type 2 for Type E and F loop detectors. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the last paragraph of section 87-1.03G. 

 

Replace the 4th paragraph of section 87-1.03H(2) with: 
10-19-18 

Use Method B as follows: 

1. Cover the splice area completely with an electrical insulating coating and allow it to dry. 
2. Apply 3 layers of half-lapped, PVC electrical tape. 
3. Apply 2 layers of butyl-rubber, stretchable tape with liner. 
4. Apply 3 layers of half-lapped, PVC, pressure-sensitive, adhesive tape. 
5. Cover the entire splice with an electrical insulating coating and allow it to dry. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 168 of 200 

 
 
 

Replace section 87-1.03N with: 
10-19-18 

87-1.03N  Fused Splice Connectors 
Install a fuse splice connector with a fuse in each ungrounded conductor for luminaires, except for 
overhead sign luminaires. The connector must be located in the pull box adjacent to the luminaires. 

If the pull box for the roadway luminaire is tamper resistant, install a fuse splice connector with 10 A fuse 
in the pull box and an additional fuse splice connector with a 5 A fuse in the handhole. 

Install a fuse splice connector with a fuse on primary side of transformer. 

Crimp the connector terminals onto the ungrounded conductors using a tool under the manufacturer's 
instructions. Insulate the terminals and make them watertight. 

 

Add to the end of section 87-1.03T: 
10-19-18 

When replacing an existing accessible pedestrian signal, the housing color must match the color of the 
existing housing. 

 

Add to the end of section 87-1.03U: 
10-19-18 

When replacing an existing push button assembly, the housing color must match the color of the existing 
housing. 

 

04-17-20 
Delete the 9th paragraph for section 87-1.03V(2). 

 

Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 87-1.03Y: 
04-19-19 

Use a submersible type transformer inside pull boxes. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 87-2.03A with: 
10-19-18 

Tighten the cap screws of the luminaire's clamping bracket to 10 ft-lb for roadway luminaires. 

 

Replace section 87-3 with: 
10-19-18 

87-3  SIGN ILLUMINATION SYSTEMS 
87-3.01  GENERAL 
Section 87-3 includes specifications for constructing sign illumination systems. 

Sign illumination system includes: 

1. Foundations 
2. Pull boxes 
3. Conduit 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 169 of 200 

 
4. Conductors 
5. Overhead sign luminaires 
6. Service equipment enclosure 
7. Photoelectric control 
 
The components of a sign illumination system are shown on the project plans. 

87-3.02  MATERIALS 
Reserved 

87-3.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Perform the conductor test. 

Install overhead sign luminaires under the manufacturer's instructions. 

Do not modify the sign structure or mounting channels. 

Perform the operational tests for the system. 

87-3.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

Replace section 87-4 with: 
04-17-20 

87-4  SIGNAL AND LIGHTING SYSTEMS 
87-4.01  GENERAL 
Section 87-4 includes specifications for constructing signal and lighting systems. 

Signal and lighting system includes: 

1. Foundations 
2. Pull boxes 
3. Conduit 
4. Conductors and cables 
5. Standards 
6. Signal heads 
7. Service equipment enclosure 
8. Department-furnished controller assembly 
9. Detectors 
10. Telephone demarcation cabinet 
11. Accessible pedestrian signals 
12. Push button assemblies 
13. Pedestrian signal heads 
14. Luminaires 
15. Photoelectric control 
16. Fuse splice connectors 
17. Battery backup system 
18. Flashing beacons 
19. Flashing beacon control assembly 
 
The components of a signal and lighting system are shown on the project plans. 

87-4.02  MATERIALS 
87-4.02A  General 
Not used 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 170 of 200 

 
87-4.02B  Railroad Preemption 
A wire jumper for railroad preemption must be: 

1. Stranded 
2. 14 AWG 
3. White with red stripes 
 
87-4.03  CONSTRUCTION 
87-4.03A  General 
Set the foundation for a standard such that the mast arm is perpendicular to the centerline of the 
roadway. 

Tighten the cap screws of the roadway luminaire's clamping bracket to 10 ft-lb. 

Label the month and year of the installation inside the luminaire housing's door. 

Perform the conductor and operational tests for the system. 

87-4.03B  Railroad Preemption 
Connect the C16 harness plug to the C16 socket on the Output File no. 2LX in the controller cabinet. 

Connect the terminated conductors of the C16 harness to terminal block TB9 on input panel no.1 in the 
controller cabinet as shown in the following table: 

Input Panel No. 1 Connections 
Pin Label TB9 
1 J-12D 4 
2 J-12J 5 
3 J-13D 7 
4 J-13J 8 
5 J-14D 10 
6 J-14J 11 

 

Terminate wire jumpers with spade connectors on both ends. 

Connect three wire jumpers approximately 4 feet in length as show in the following table: 

Jumper Connections 
Jumper Bus TB9 

1 DC- 6 
2 DC- 9 
3 DC- 12 

 

Connect three wire jumpers approximately 2 inches in length as show in the following table: 

Jumper Connections 
Jumper Terminal Block Pin Pin 

1 TB-12 5 7 
2 TB-13 5 7 
3 TB-14 5 7 

 

87-4.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 171 of 200 

 
Replace section 87-7.02 with: 

10-19-18 
87-7.02  MATERIALS 
Flashing beacon control assembly includes: 

1. Enclosure. 
2. Barrier-type terminal blocks rated for 25 A, 600 V(ac), made of molded phenolic or nylon material and 

have plated-brass screw terminals and integral marking strips. 
3. Solid state flasher complying with section 8 of NEMA standards publication no. TS 1 for 10 A, dual 

circuits. 
4. 15-A, circuit breaker per ungrounded conductor. 
5. Single-hole-mounting toggle type, single-pole, single-throw switches rated at 12-A, 120 V(ac). 

Switches must be furnished with an indicating nameplate reading Auto - Test. A 15-A circuit breaker 
may be used in place of the toggle switch. 

 
 

Replace 87-8 with: 
10-19-18 

87-8  PEDESTRIAN HYBRID BEACON SYSTEMS 
87-8.01  GENERAL 
87-8.01A  Summary 
Section 87-8 includes specifications for constructing pedestrian hybrid beacon system. 

A pedestrian hybrid beacon system includes: 

1. Foundations 
2. Pull boxes 
3. Conduit 
4. Conductors and cables 
5. Standards 
6. Pedestrian hybrid beacon face 
7. Pedestrian signal heads 
8. Service equipment enclosure 
9. Department-furnished controller assembly 
10. Accessible pedestrian signals 
11. Push button assemblies 
12. Luminaires 
13. Fuse splice connectors 
14. Battery backup system 
 
The components of a pedestrian hybrid beacon system are shown on the project plans. 

87-8.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

87-8.01C  Submittals 
Reserved 

87-8.01D  Quality Assurance 
87-8.01D(1)  General 
Reserved 

87-8.01D(2)  Quality Control 
04-17-20 

Verify the sequence for the pedestrian hybrid beacon system per California MUTCD, Chapter 4F, Figure 
4F-3 "Sequence for a Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon" during the operational test. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 172 of 200 

 
10-19-18 

Test the battery backup system under section 87-1.01D(2)(c). 

87-8.02  MATERIALS 
87-8.02A  General 
The system must comply with California MUTCD, Chapter 4F. 

The battery backup system must comply with section 87-4.02B. 

87-8.02B  Pedestrian Hybrid Beacon Face 
A pedestrian hybrid beacon face consists of three 12-inch signal heads. 

87-8.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Install pedestrian hybrid beacon system under sections 87-4.03A and 87-4.03B. 

87-8.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

Replace the 1st paragraph of section 87-12.03 with: 
10-19-18 

Install changeable message sign on sign structure under section 56-2. 

 

Replace section 87-14.02 with: 
10-19-18 

87-14.02  MATERIALS 
87-14.02A  General 
Vehicle speed feedback sign consists of a housing, display window, and radar unit. 

Sign must: 

1. Comply with the California MUTCD, Chapter 2B 
2. Have an operating voltage of 120 V(ac) for permanent installations 
3. Have a maximum weight of 45 lb 
4. Have a wind load rating of 90 mph 
5. Have an operating temperature range from -34 to 165 degrees F 
6. Have a retroreflective white sheeting background 
 
87-14.02B  Housings 
Housing must: 

1. Be weatherproof (NEMA 3R or better) and vandal resistant 
2. Be made of 0.09-inch-gauge welded aluminum with the outer surfaces being UV resistant 
3. Have the manufacturer's name, model number, serial number, date of manufacture, rated voltage and 

rated current marked inside 
4. Have the internal components easily accessible for field repair without removal of the sign 
 
87-14.02C  Display Windows 
Display window consists of a cover, LED character display, and dimming control. Character display and 
cover must deflect together without damage to the internal electronics and speed detection components. 

Cover must be: 

1. Vandal resistant and shock absorbent 
2. Field replaceable with the removal of external stainless-steel, tamper proof fasteners 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 173 of 200 

 
Cover must be made of a minimum 0.25-inch-thick, shatter-resistant polycarbonate. 

LED character display must: 

04-17-20 
1. Consist of two 7-segment, solid-state, numeric characters, which must: 

1.1. Be a minimum 15 inches in height 
1.2. Be visible from a minimum distance of 1500 feet and legible from a minimum distance of 750 

feet 
1.3. Consist of a minimum 16 LEDs, which must: 

1.3.1. Be amber and have a wavelength from 590 to 600 nm and rated for minimum 60,000 
hours 

1.3.2. Maintain a minimum 85 percent of the initial light output after 48 months of continuous 
use over the temperature range 

10-19-18 
2. Be capable of displaying the detected vehicle speed within 1 second 
3. Remain blank when no vehicles are detected within the radar detection zone 
4. Have the option to flash the pre-set speed limit when the detected vehicle speed is 5 miles higher 

than the pre-set speed 
5. Be viewable only by the approaching traffic 
 
Dimming control must: 

1. Automatically adjust the character light intensity to provide optimum character visibility and legibility 
under all ambient lighting conditions 

2. Have minimum 3 manual dimming modes of different intensities 
 
87-14.02D  Radar Units 
Radar unit must: 

1. Be able to detect up to 3 lanes of approaching traffic 
2. Operate with an internal, low power, 24.159 GHz (K-band) 
3. Be FCC approved Part 15 certified 
4. Have a speed accuracy of ±1 mph 
5 Have a maximum 15 W power consumption 
 
 

Add to the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 87-18.01: 
10-18-19 

4. 12 position terminal block 
 
 

Replace section 87-18.02 with: 
10-18-19 

87-18.02  MATERIALS 
Terminal block must comply with TEES, chapter 1, section 3. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 87-18.03 with: 
10-18-19 

Install the terminal block on the input panel in the controller cabinet. 

Connect the signal interconnect cable to the terminal block as shown on the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 174 of 200 

 
Signal Interconnect Termination 
Terminal Block Color 

1 BLUE 
2 BLACK 
3 RED 
4 BLACK 
5 BROWN 
6 BLACK 
7 GREEN 
8 BLACK 
9 YELLOW 
10 BLACK 
11 WHITE 
12 BLACK 

 

 

Replace 87-19 with: 
10-19-18 

87-19  FIBER OPTIC CABLE SYSTEMS 
87-19.01  GENERAL 
87-19.01A  Summary 
Section 87-19 includes specifications for constructing fiber optic cable systems. 

A fiber optic cable system includes: 

1. Conduit and accessories 
2. Vaults 
3. Warning tape 
4. Fiber optic cables 
5. Fiber optic splice enclosures 
6. Fiber distribution units 
7. Fiber optic markers 
8. Fiber optic connectors and couplers 
 
The components of a fiber optic system are shown on the project plans. 

87-19.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

87-19.01C  Submittals 
At least 15 days before cable installation, submit: 

1. Manufacturer's procedures for pulling fiber optic cable 
2. Test reports from a laboratory accredited to International Standards Organization/International 

Electrotechnical Commission 17025 by the American Association for Laboratory Accreditation (A2LA) 
or the ANSI-ASQ National Accreditation Board (ANAB) for: 
2.1. Water penetration 
2.2. Cable temperature cycling 
2.3. Cable impact 
2.4. Cable tensile loading and fiber strain 
2.5. Cable compressive loading 
2.6. Compound flow 
2.7. Cyclic flexing 

3. Proof of calibration for the test equipment including: 
3.1. Name of calibration facility 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 175 of 200 

 
3.2. Date of calibration 
3.3. Type of equipment, model number and serial number 
3.4. Calibration result 

 
Submit optical time-domain reflectometer data files for each test in a Microsoft Excel format. 

After performing the optical time-domain reflectometer test and the power meter and light source test, 
submit within 4 business days a hard copy and electronic format: 

1. Cable Verification Worksheet 
2. Segment Verification Worksheet 
3. Link Loss Budget Worksheet 
 
The worksheets are available at the Division of Construction website. 

87-19.01D  Quality Assurance 
87-19.01D(1)  General 
Reserved 

87-19.01D(2)  Quality Control 
Notify the Engineer 4 business days before performing field tests. Include exact location of the system or 
components to be tested. Do not proceed with the testing until authorized. Perform each test in the 
presence of the Engineer. 

The optical time-domain reflectometer test consists of: 

1. Inspecting the cable segment for physical damage. 
2. Measuring the attenuation levels for wavelengths of 1310 and 1550 nm in both directions for each 

fiber using the optical time-domain reflectometer. 
3. Comparing the test results with the data sheet provided with the shipment. If there are attenuation 

deviations greater than 5 percent, the test will be considered unsatisfactory and the cable segment 
will be rejected. The failure of any single fiber is a cause for rejection of the entire segment. Replace 
any rejected cable segments and repeat the test. 

 
The power meter and light source test consists of: 

1. Testing each fiber in a link using a light source at one end of the link and a power meter at the other 
end 

2. Measuring and recording the power loss for wavelengths of 1310 and 1550 nm in both directions 
 
Index matching gel is not allowed. 

Installation and splicing of the fiber optic cable system must be performed by a certified fiber optic 
installer. 

The optical time-domain reflectometer test and the power meter and light source test must be performed 
by a certified fiber optic technician. 

The certification for the fiber optic installer and fiber optic technician must be from an organization 
recognized by the International Certification Accreditations Council and must be current throughout the 
duration of the project. 

87-19.02  MATERIALS 
87-19.02A  General 
All metal components of the fiber optic cable system must be corrosion resistant. 

All connectors must be factory-installed and tested. 

Patch cords, pigtails, and connectors must comply with ANSI/TIA-568. 

Pigtails must have a minimum 80 N pull out strength. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 176 of 200 

 
A splice cassette may be used in place of a pigtail and a splice tray. 

Each cable reel must have a weatherproof label or tag with information specified in ANSI/ICEA S-87-640 
including: 

1. Contractor's name 
2. Contract number 
3. Number of fibers 
4. Cable attenuation loss per fiber at 1310 and 1550 nm 
 
The labeled or tagged information must also be in a shipping record in a weatherproof envelope. The 
envelope must be removed only by the Engineer. 

87-19.02B  Vaults 
A vault must: 

1. Comply with section 86-1.02C and AASHTO HS 20-44, and load tested under AASHTO M 306. 
2. Be a minimum: 

2.1. 4 feet wide by 4 feet high by 4 feet long nominal inside dimensions for box type. 
2.2. 4 feet high by 4 feet outside diameter for round type. 

3. Have a minimum access of: 
3.1. 30 inches diameter for round type. 
3.2. 3 feet wide by 3 feet long for box type. 

4. Be precast either modular or monolithic. 
5. Have cable racks installed on the interior sides. A rack must: 

5.1. Be fabricated from ASTM A36 steel plate. 
5.2. Support a minimum of 100 pounds per rack arm. 
5.3. Support a minimum of 4 splice enclosures and a minimum of 4 cables with a minimum slack of 

50 feet each. 
5.4. Be hot-dip galvanized after manufacturing. 
5.5. Be bonded and grounded. 

6. Have a minimum: 
6.1. Two 4-inch diameter knockouts on each side for box type. 
6.2. Two 4-inch diameter knockouts placed every 90 degrees for round type. 

7. Have a minimum 2-inch-diameter drain hole at the center of base. 
 
Entry points for knockouts must not cause the cable to exceed its maximum bend radius. 

The access cover must: 

1. Be a two-piece torsion-assisted sections or a minimum 30-inch-diameter cast iron. 
2. Have inset lifting pull slots. 
3. Have markings CALTRANS and FIBER OPTIC. 
 
87-19.02C  Fiber Optic Cable 
The fiber optic cable must: 

1. Comply with 7 CFR parts 1755.900, 1755.901, and 1755.902, and ANSI/ICEA S-87-640 
2. Be a singlemode, zero-dispersion, and have non-gel loose type buffer tubes 
3. Have no splices 
4. Have a Type H or Type M outer jacket 
5. Be shipped on a reel 
6. Have 10 feet of length on each end of the cable accessible for testing 
 
87-19.02D  Fiber Optic Splice Enclosures 
A fiber optic splice enclosure must: 

1. Not exceed 36 inches in length, 8 inches in width, and 8 inches in height 
2. Be made of thermoplastic material, weather proof, chemical and UV resistant, and re-sealable 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 177 of 200 

 
3. Accommodate a minimum of 8 internal splice trays 
4. Have from 1/4 to 1 inch in diameter cable entry ports 
5. Have brackets, clips and cable ties 
6. Have means to anchor the dielectric member of the fiber optic cable 
7. Include grounding hardware 
 
87-19.02E  Fiber Distribution Units 
The fiber distribution unit consists of a housing, a patch panel, a 12-multicolor pigtail, and a splice tray. 

The fiber distribution unit must be self-contained and pre-assembled. 

The housing must: 

1. Be a 19-inch rack-mountable modular-metal enclosure 
2. Be a one rack unit 
3. Have cable clamps to secure buffer tube to the chassis 
4. Have cable accesses with rubber grommets or similar material to prevent the cable from coming in 

contact with the bare metal 
5. Be weatherproof 
6. Have a hinged top door with a latch or thumbscrew to hold it in the closed position 
 
A patch panel must have a minimum of 12-singlefiber type connector sleeves. 

A pigtail must: 

1. Be a simplex single mode fiber in a 900 µm tight buffer with a 12-inch-outer-diameter PVC jacket 
2. Have a fiber optic connector attached on one end and bare fiber on the other end 
3. Be at least 3 feet in length 
4. Have the manufacturer's part number on the jacket 
 
Pigtails must be single-fiber or ribbon type. 

87-19.02F  Patch Cords 
Patch cords must: 

1. Be a singlemode fiber in a 900 µm tight buffer with a 0.12-inch-outer-diameter PVC jacket 
2. Have fiber optic connectors attached on both ends 
3. Be at least 6 feet in length 
4. Have manufacturer's part number on the jacket 
 
Duplex patch cords must be of round cable structure, and not have zip-cord structure. 

87-19.02G  Splice Trays 
Splice trays must: 

1. Have brackets to spool incoming fibers a minimum of 2 turns. 
2. Have means to secure and protect incoming buffer tubes, pigtails, and a minimum of 12 heat shrink 

fusion splices. 
3. Be stackable. 
4. Have a snap-on or hinged cover. The cover may be transparent. 
 

87-19.02H  Fiber Optic Markers 
Fiber optic markers must be: 

1. Type K-2 (CA) object markers for vaults or pull boxes. 
2. Disk markers for paved areas and transition points from unpaved to paved areas. The disk marker 

must be metallic, lead free and 4 inches in diameter, and must have a mounting stem at the center of 
the disk. The mounting stem must be a minimum 3 inches long and a minimum 0.70 inch in diameter. 

3. Non-reflective Class 1, Type F, flexible post delineators for unpaved areas. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 178 of 200 

 
 
87-19.02I  Fiber Optic Connectors and Couplers 
Connectors must be: 

1. 0.1-inch ceramic ferrule pre-radiused type 
2. Capped when not used 
 
Couplers must be made of the same material as the connector's housing and have ceramic sleeves. 

Singlemode fiber optic connectors must have a yellow strain relief boot or a yellow base. 

87-19.03  CONSTRUCTION 
87-19.03A  General 
Perform the optical time-domain reflectometer test: 

1. On the fiber optic cable upon its arrival to the job site and before its installation. Complete the Cable 
Verification Worksheet. Do not install the fiber optic cable until the Engineer's written approval is 
received. 

2. After the fiber optic cable segments have been pulled, but before breakout and termination. Complete 
the Segment Verification Worksheet. 

3. Once the passive cabling system has been installed and is ready for activation. If the measured 
individual fusion splice losses exceed -0.30 dB, re-splice and retest. At the conclusion of the optical 
time-domain reflectometer test, perform the power meter and light source test. If the measured link 
loss exceeds the calculated link loss, replace the unsatisfactory cable segments or splices and retest. 
Complete the Link Loss Budget Worksheet. 

 
87-19.03B  Vaults Installation 
Install a vault as shown and with the side facing the roadway a minimum of 2 feet from the edge of 
pavement or back of dike, away from traffic. 

Install the top of the vault flush with surrounding grade in paved areas and 2 inches above the 
surrounding grade in unpaved areas. 

Place 6 inches of minor concrete around vaults. In unpaved areas, finish top of concrete at a 2 percent 
slope away from cover. In paved areas, finish top of concrete to match existing slope. 

Bolt the steel cover to the vault when not working in it. 

87-19.03C  Fiber Optic Cable Installation 
Install fiber optic cable by a certified installer or a representative from the fiber optic cable manufacturer 
during installation. 

When using mechanical aids to install fiber optic cable: 

1. Maintain a cable bend radius at least twenty times the outside diameter of the cable 
2. Use cable grips having a ball bearing swivel 
3. Use a pulling force on a cable not to exceed 500 pound-foot or manufacturer's recommended pulling 

tension, whichever is less 
 
When installing the cable using the air blown method, the cable must withstand a static air pressure of 
110 psi. 

Lubricate the cable using a lubricant recommended by the cable manufacturer. 

Install fiber optic cable without splices except where shown. 

Provide a minimum of 65 feet of slack for each fiber optic cable at each vault. Divide the slack equally on 
each side of the splice enclosure. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 179 of 200 

 
04-17-20 

Install tracer wires in the fiber optic conduits and innerducts as shown. Provide a minimum 3 feet of slack 
tracer wire in each pull box and splice vault from each direction. You may splice tracer wire at intervals of 
not less than 500 feet and only inside splice vaults or pull boxes. 

10-19-18 
If a fiber optic cable and tracer wire is installed in an innerduct, pulling a separate fiber optic cable into a 
spare duct to replace damaged fiber will not be allowed. 

Apply a non-hygroscopic filling compound to fiber optic cable openings. 

Seal the ends of conduit and innerducts after cables are installed. 

Install strain relief for fiber optic cable entering a fiber optic enclosure. 

Identify fibers and cables by direct labeling, metal tags, or bands fastened in such a way that they will not 
move. Use mechanical methods for labeling. 

Provide identification on each fiber optic cable or each group of fiber optic cables in each vault and at the 
end of terminated fibers. Fiber optic cable must be identified as shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 180 of 200 

 
Cable Identificationa 

Sequenc
e order 

Description Code Numbers 
of 

characters 
1 Fiber type S: Singlemode 1 
2 Fiber count ###: Example 048 3 
3 Begin point T: TMC 

H: Hub 
V: Video Node 
D: Data Node 
C: Cable Node 
TV: Camera 
CM: CMS 
E: Traffic Signal 
RM: Ramp Meter 
TM: Traffic Monitoring/ Count Station/Vehicle Count Station 
(VDS, TMS) 
HA: Highway Advisory Radio 
EM: Extinguishable Message Sign 
RW: Roadway Weather Information System 
WM: Weigh In Motion 
WS: Weigh-Station Bypass System 
SV: Vault 
SC: Splice Cabinet 

1 or 2 

4 Begin point 
county 
abbreviatio
n 

AA or AAA: Examples: Orange (ORA), San Mateo (SM) 2 or 3 

5 Begin point 
route 
number 

###: Examples: 005, 082, 114 3 

6 Begin point 
post mile 

#####: 02470 (example 024.70): Actual PM value to the 1/100 
value 

5 

7 End Point In the same way as for Begin Point 1 or 2 

8 End point 
county 
abbreviatio
n 

In the same way as for Begin Point County Abbreviation 2 or 3 

9 End point 
route 
number 

In the same way as Begin Point Route Number 3 

10 End point 
post mile 

In the same way as Begin Point Post Mile 5 

aCable identification example: The cable code S 048 SV SM 084 02470 SV SC 082 02510 describes a 
singlemode, 48 strand, cable starting at a fiber optic vault in San Mateo County on Route 84 at post mile 
24.70, and ending at another fiber optic vault in Santa Clara County on Route 82 at post mile 25.10. 

 

Place labels on the cables at the following points: 

1. Fiber optic vault and pull box entrances and exits 
2. Splice enclosures entrance and exit 
3. Fiber distribution unit entrance 
 
Lace fiber optic cable inside controller cabinets and secure to the cage. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 181 of 200 

 
Support the fiber optic cable within 6 inches from a termination and every 2 feet. 

Secure fiber optic cables to the cable racks. Store excess cable in a figure 8 fashion. 

87-19.03D  Fiber Optic Cable Splices 
Use fusion splicing for fiber optic cables. 

Splice single-buffer tube cable to multi-buffer tube cable using the mid-span access method under 
manufacturer's instructions. Any mid-span access splice or fiber distribution unit termination must involve 
only those fibers being spliced as shown. 

Place fiber splices in the splice enclosures installed in the vaults. 

87-19.03E  Splice Enclosures Installation 
Maintain an equal amount of slack on each side of the splice enclosure. 

Secure the fiber optic splices in splice tray. 

Secure the splice trays to the inner enclosure. 

Label cables and buffer tubes. 

Do not seal fiber splice enclosure until authorized and the power meter and light source test is performed. 
Seal the enclosure under manufacturer's instructions. 

Flash test the outer enclosure under manufacturer's instructions in the presence of the Engineer. Visually 
inspect the enclosure. If bubbles are present, identify the locations where the bubbles are present, take 
corrective actions and repeat the flash test until no bubbles are present. 

Attach the splice enclosure to the side wall of a vault or hub with a minimum 2 feet distance between the 
ground and the bottom of the enclosure. 

Secure fiber optic cables to the chassis using cable clamps for fiber optic units. 

Connect a minimum of one bonding conductor to a grounding electrode after mounting the fiber optic 
enclosure to the wall. If there are multiple bonding conductors, organize the conductors in a neat way. 

87-19.03F  Fiber Optic Distribution Unit Installation 
Spool incoming buffer tubes 2 feet in the splice tray and expose 1 foot of individual fibers. 

Maintain a minimum 2-inch-bend radius during and after installation in the splice tray. 

Splice incoming fibers in the splice tray. 

Restrain each fiber in the splice tray. Do not apply stress on the fiber when located in its final position. 

Secure buffer tubes near the entrance of the splice tray. 

Secure splice trays under manufacturer's instructions. 

Label splice tray after splicing is completed. 

Install patch cords in fiber distribution units and patch panels. Permanently label each cord and each 
connector in the panel with the system as shown. 

87-19.03G  Fiber Optic Markers Installation 
Install fiber optic markers at 12-inch offset on the side furthest away from the edge of travel way: 

1. For fiber optic cable at 500 feet apart in areas where the distance between vaults or pull boxes is 
greater than 500 feet 

2. Adjacent to vaults and pull boxes 
3. For fiber optic cable turns at: 

3.1. Beginning of the turn 
3.2. Middle of the arc 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 182 of 200 

 
3.3. End of the turn 
 

When a fiber optic cable crosses a roadway or ramp, install a disk marker over the conduit trench on: 

1. Every shoulder within 6 inches from the edge of pavement 
2. Delineated median 
3. Each side of a barrier 
 
Install markers under section 81 except each retroreflective face must be parallel to the road centerline 
and facing away from traffic. 

87-19.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

Replace section 87-20 with: 
04-17-20 

87-20  TEMPORARY ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS 
87-20.01  GENERAL 
Section 87-20 includes specifications for providing, maintaining, and removing temporary electrical 
systems. 

Temporary systems may be mounted on wood posts or trailers. 

Obtain the Department's authorization for the type of temporary electrical system and its installation 
method. 

A temporary system must operate on a continuous, 24-hour basis. 

A temporary electrical system must have a primary power source and a back-up power source from: 

1. Commercial utility company 
2. Generator system 
3. Photovoltaic system 
 
87-20.02  MATERIALS 
87-20.02A  General 
Temporary wood poles must comply with section 48-6. 

The components of a temporary system are shown on the project plans. 

If you use Type UF-B cable, the minimum conductor size must be no. 12. 

A back-up power source must: 

1. Have an automatic transfer switch 
2. Start automatically and transfer the system load upon reaching the operating voltage in the event of a 

power source failure 
 
A trailer must be equipped with devices to level and plumb the temporary system. 

87-20.02B  Generators 
A generator must: 

1. Be 120 V(ac) or 120/240 V(ac), 60 Hz, 2.5 kW minimum, continuous-duty type 
2. Be powered by a gasoline, LPG, or diesel engine operating at approximately 1,800 rpm with an 

automatic oil feed 
3. Be equipped to provide automatic start-stop operation with a 12 V starting system 
4. Have generator output circuits that have overcurrent protection with a maximum setting of 15 A 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 183 of 200 

 
5. Have a spark arrester complying with Pub Cont Code § 4442 
 
87-20.02C  Automatic Transfer Switches 
An automatic transfer switch must provide: 

1. Line voltage monitoring in the event of a power outage that signals the back-up power source to start 
2. Start delay, adjustable from 0 to 6 seconds, to prevent starting if the power outage is only momentary 

and a stop delay, adjustable from 0 to 8 minutes, to allow the back-up power source to unload 
3. Transfer delay from 0 to 120 seconds to allow the back-up power source to stabilize before 

connecting to the load and retransfer delay from 0 to 32 minutes to allow the line voltage to stabilize 
4. Mechanical interlock to prevent an application of power to the load from both sources and to prevent 

backfeeding from the back-up power source to the primary power source 
 
87-20.02D–87-20.02G  Reserved 
87-20.02H  Temporary Flashing Beacon Systems 
A temporary flashing beacon system consists of a flashing beacon system, wood pole, and a power 
source. 

The system must comply with the specifications for flashing beacon systems in section 87-7. 

87-20.02I  Temporary Lighting Systems 
A temporary lighting system consists of a lighting system, a power source, and wood poles. 

The system must comply with the specifications for lighting systems in section 87-2. 

87-20.02J  Temporary Signal Systems 
A temporary signal system consists of a signal and lighting system, wood poles and posts, and a power 
source. 

The system must comply with the specifications for signal and lighting systems in section 87-4, except 
signal heads may be mounted on a wood pole, mast arm, tether wire, or a trailer. 

87-20.02K  Temporary Radar Speed Feedback Sign Systems 
A temporary radar speed feedback sign system must comply with the specifications for a radar speed 
feedback sign system in section 87-14, except, the LED character display must remain blank when no 
vehicles are detected or when the detected vehicle speed is 10 miles less than the preset speed. 

87-20.03  CONSTRUCTION 
87-20.03A  General 
Provide electrical and telecommunication services for temporary systems. Do not use existing services 
unless authorized. 

Provide power for the temporary electrical systems. 

Commercial power must be 120 V(ac) or 120/240 V(ac) single phase. Make arrangements with the utility 
company for providing service. Protect the power source in a locked enclosure. Provide keys to all locks 
to the Engineer. 

Install conductors and cables in a conduit, suspended from wood poles at least 25 feet above the 
roadway, or use direct burial conductors and cables. 

Install conduit outside the paved area at a minimum of 12 inches below grade for Type 1 and 2 conduit 
and at a minimum of 18 inches below grade for Type 3 conduit. 

Install direct burial conductors and cables outside the paved area at a minimum depth of 24 inches below 
grade. 

Place the portions of the conductors installed on the face of wood poles in either Type 1, 2, or 3 conduit 
between the point 10 feet above grade at the pole and the pull box. The conduit between the pole and the 
pull box must be buried at a depth of at least 18 inches below grade. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 184 of 200 

 
Place conductors across structures in a Type 1, 2, or 3 conduit. Attach the conduit to the outside face of 
the railing. 

Mount the photoelectric unit at the top of the standard or wood post. 

You may abandon in place conductors and cables in sawed slots or in conduit installed below the ground 
surface. 

87-20.03B–87-20.03G  Reserved 
87-20.03H  Temporary Flashing Beacon Systems 
Protect each flashing beacon with a fused splice connector on the line side. Wherever conductors are run 
overhead, install the fused splice connector in the line side outside of the control assembly. 

87-20.03I  Temporary Lighting Systems 
Protect each luminaire with a fused splice connector on the line side. Wherever conductors are run 
overhead, install the fused splice connectors in the line side before entering the mast arm. 

87-20.03J  Temporary Signal Systems 
You may splice conductors that run to a terminal compartment or a signal head on a pole to the through 
conductors of the same phase in a pull box adjacent to the pole. Do not splice conductors or cables 
except in a pull box or in a NEMA 3R enclosure. 

The Department provides the timing for the temporary signal. 

Maintain the temporary signal except for the Department-furnished controller assembly. 

87-20.03K  Reserved 
87-20.04  PAYMENT 
Not Used 

 

Add between the 1st and 2nd paragraphs of section 87-21.03A: 
04-17-20 

Remove foundation under section 56-3.01C(2)(a). 

 

Add to section 87-21.03A: 
04-17-20 

Remove electrical equipment, designated as a hazardous waste. 

 

Replace item 7 in the list in the 2nd paragraph of section 87-21.03B(2) with: 
10-19-18 

7. Camera system 
 
 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 185 of 200 

 
DIVISION XI  MATERIALS 

90  CONCRETE 
10-18-19 

Add to section 90-1.01B: 
10-18-19 

CIP structural concrete members: CIP components of bridge structures, piling, retaining walls, sound 
walls, box culverts, drainage inlets, approach slabs, bridge railing, and bridge barriers. 

 

Replace section 90-1.01C(6) with: 
10-18-19 

90-1.01C(6)  Mix Design 
90-1.01C(6)(a)  General 
Submit the concrete mix design before using the concrete in the work and before changing the mix 
proportions or an aggregate source. 

90-1.01C(6)(b)  Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
For CIP structural concrete members, submit with your mix design results from the tests specified in 90-
1.01D(10)(d) and the results from the tests shown in the following table: 

Quality characteristic Test method 
Specific gravity and absorption of coarse aggregate ASTM C127 
Specific gravity and absorption of fine aggregate ASTM C128 
Durability index for fine aggregate California Test 229 
Soundness California Test 214 
Resistance to degradation ASTM C131 
Organic impurities California Test 213 
Chloride concentration of water for washing aggregates 
and mixing concrete 

California Test 422 

Sulfate concentration of water for washing aggregates 
and mixing concrete 

California Test 417 

Impurities in water for washing aggregates and mixing 
concrete 

ASTM C191 or ASTM C266 
and ASTM C109 

 

 

Replace section 90-1.01C(8) with: 
10-18-19 

90-1.01C(8)  Testing 
90-1.01C(8)(a)  General 
If the concrete is tested for shrinkage, submit the test data with the mix design. 

If prequalification is specified, submit certified test data or trial batch test reports under section 90-
1.01D(5)(b). 

If 56 days are allowed for the concrete to attain the compressive strength described, submit test results 
under section 90-1.01D(5)(a). 

90-1.01C(8)(b)  Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members  
For CIP structural concrete members, submit test results within 3 business days after completing each 
QC test. For submittal of test results, go to: 

http://dime.dot.ca.gov/ 
 

For CIP structural concrete members, include the following with the test results: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 186 of 200 

 
1. Contract number 
2. Mix design number 
3. Test sample identification number 
4. Date and time of test 
5. Batch plant 
6. Batch number 
7. Bridge number and description of element 
8. Supporting data and calculations 
9. Name, certification number, and signature of the QC tester 
 
If additional compressive strength test results are needed for CIP structural concrete members to facilitate 
your schedule, submit a plot of the strength projection curve. 

 

Add to the end of section 90-1.01C: 
10-18-19 

90-1.01C(11)  Quality Control Plan for Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
Section 90-1.01C(11) applies to CIP structural concrete members. 

Submit 3 copies of the QC plan for review. 

Submit an amended QC plan or an addendum to the QC plan when there are any changes to: 

1. Concrete plants 
2. Testing laboratories 
3. Plant certification or laboratory accreditation status 
4. Tester or inspector qualification status 
5. QC personnel 
6. Procedures and equipment 
7. Material sources 
8. Material testing 
 
Allow the Department 5 business days to review an amended QC plan or an addendum to the QC plan. 

90-1.01C(12)  Concrete Materials Quality Control Summary Report for Cast-In-Place Structural 
Concrete Members 
Section 90-1.01C(12) applies to CIP structural concrete members. 

During concrete production for CIP structural concrete members, submit a concrete materials QC 
summary report at least once a month. The report must include: 

1. Inspection reports. 
2. Test results. 
3. Documentation of: 

3.1. Test result evaluation by the QC manager 
3.2. Any discovered problems or deficiencies and the corrective actions taken 
3.3. Any testing of repair work performed 
3.4. Any deviations from the specifications or regular practices with explanation 

4. Certificate of compliance for the structural concrete material signed by the QC manager. The 
certificate must state that the information contained in the report is accurate, the minimum testing 
frequencies specified in section 90-1.01D(10)(d) are met, and the materials comply with the Contract. 

 
90-1.01C(13)  Polymer Fibers 
For concrete used in concrete bridge decks or PCC deck overlays, submit: 

1. Fiber manufacturer's product data and application instructions 
2. Certificate of compliance for each shipment and type of fiber 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 187 of 200 

 
 

Replace the 3rd paragraph of section 90-1.01D(5)(a) with: 
10-18-19 

If the concrete is designated by compressive strength, the strength of concrete that is not steam cured is 
determined from cylinders cured under Method 1 of California Test 540. 

 

Add to the end of section 90-1.01D: 
10-18-19 

90-1.01D(7)  Qualifications for Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
Section 90-1.01D(7) applies to CIP structural concrete members. 

QC laboratory testing personnel must have an ACI Concrete Laboratory Testing Technician, Level 1 
certification or an ACI Aggregate Testing Technician, Level 2 certification, whichever certification includes 
the test being performed. 

QC field testing personnel and field and plant inspection personnel must have an ACI Concrete Field 
Testing Technician, Grade I certification. 

90-1.01D(8)  Certifications for Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
Each concrete plant used for CIP structural concrete members must have a current: 

1. Certification for ready mixed concrete production facilities from the National Ready Mixed Concrete 
Association. Plant Certification Checklist and supporting documentation must be available upon 
request. 

2. Authorization under the Department's MPQP. 
 
Each QC testing laboratory must be an authorized laboratory with current accreditation from the AASHTO 
Accreditation Program for the tests performed. 

90-1.01D(9)  Preconstruction Meeting for Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
Section 90-1.01D(9) applies to CIP structural concrete members. 

Before concrete placement, hold a meeting to discuss the requirements for structural concrete QC. The 
meeting attendees must include the Engineer, the QC manager, and at least 1 representative from each 
concrete plant performing CIP structural concrete activities for the Contract. 

90-1.01D(10)  Quality Control 
90-1.01D(10)(a)  General 
Reserved 

90-1.01D(10)(b)  Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members  
90-1.01D(10)(b)(i)  General 
Section 90-1.01D(10)(b) applies to CIP structural concrete members. 

Develop, implement, and maintain a QC program that includes inspection, sampling, and testing of 
structural concrete materials for CIP structural concrete members. 

Perform all sampling, testing, and inspecting required to control the process and to demonstrate 
compliance with the Contract and the authorized QC plan. 

Provide a QC field inspector at the concrete delivery point while placement activities are in progress. 

Provide a testing laboratory and the testing personnel for QC testing. 

The QC inspector and the QC manager must be fully authorized by the Contractor to reject material. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 188 of 200 

 
QC testers and inspectors must be your employees or must be hired by a subcontractor providing only 
QC services. QC testers and inspectors must not be employed or compensated by a subcontractor or by 
other persons or entities hired by subcontractors who will provide other services or materials for the 
project. 

If lightweight concrete, RSC, or SCC is used as structural concrete, you must also comply with the 
sampling and testing specifications of that section. 

90-1.01D(10)(b)(ii)  Quality Control Plan 
The QC plan must detail the methods used to ensure the quality of the work and provide the controls to 
produce concrete. The QC plan must include: 

1. Names and documentation of certification or accreditation of the concrete plants and testing 
laboratories to be used 

2. Names, qualifications, and copies of certifications for the QC manager and all QC testing and 
inspection personnel to be used 

3. Organization chart showing QC personnel and their assigned QC responsibilities 
4. Example forms, including forms for certificates of compliance, hard copy test result submittals, and 

inspection reports 
5. Methods and frequencies for performing QC procedures, including inspections and material testing 
6. Procedures to control quality characteristics, including standard procedures to address properties 

outside of the specified operating range or limits, and example reports to document nonconformances 
and corrective actions taken 

7. Procedures for verifying: 
7.1. Materials are properly stored during concrete batching operations 
7.2. Batch plants have the ability to maintain the concrete consistency during periods of extreme 

heat and cold 
7.3. Admixture dispensers deliver the correct dosage within the accuracy requirements specified 
7.4. Delivery trucks have a valid National Ready Mixed Concrete Association certification card 

8. Procedures for verifying that the weighmaster certificate for each load of concrete shows: 
8.1. Concrete as batched complies with the authorized concrete mix design weights 
8.2. Moisture corrections are being accurately applied to the aggregates 
8.3. Cementitious materials are from authorized sources 
8.4. Any water that is added after batching at the plant 

9. Procedures for visually inspecting the concrete during discharge operations 
 
Allow the Department 5 business days to review an amended QC plan or an addendum to the QC plan. 

90-1.01D(10)(b)(iii)  Quality Control Manager 
Assign a QC manager. The QC manager must have one of the following qualifications: 

1. Civil engineering license in the State 
2. ACI Concrete Laboratory Testing Technician, Level 1 certification 
3. NICET Level II concrete certification 
4. ICC Reinforced Concrete Special Inspector certification 
5. ASQ Certified Manager of Quality/Organizational Excellence with the qualifying 10 years of 

experience and body of knowledge in the field of concrete 
 
During concrete placement, the QC manager must be at the plant or job site within 3 hours of receiving 
notification from the Engineer. 

90-1.01D(10)(b)(iv)  Quality Control Testing Frequencies 
For each mix design used to produce CIP structural concrete, perform sampling and testing in compliance 
with the following tables: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 189 of 200 

 
Aggregate QC Tests 

Quality characteristic Test method Minimum testing frequency 
Aggregate gradation California Test 202 Once per each day of pour 
Sand equivalent California Test 217 
Cleanness value California Test 227 
Moisture content of fine 
aggregate 

California Test 226 1–2 times per each day of pour, 
depending on conditions 

 

Concrete QC Tests 
Quality characteristic Test method Minimum testing frequency 

Slump ASTM C143/C143M Once per 100 cu yd or each day of 
pour, whichever is more frequent, and 
when requested by the Engineer 

Uniformitya ASTM C143/C143M, California 
Test 533, and California Test 529 

When ordered by the Engineer 

Air content, (freeze-thaw 
area) 

California Test 504b If concrete is air entrained, once per 30 
cu yd or each day of pour, whichever is 
more frequent 

Air content, (non-freeze-
thaw area) 

California Test 504b If concrete is air entrained, once per 
100 cu yd or each day of pour, 
whichever is more frequent 

Temperature California Test 557 Once per 100 cu yd or each day of 
pour, whichever is more frequent Density California Test 518 

Compressive strengthc,d California Test 521 
aAs specified in section 90-1.01D(4). 
bUse ASTM C173/C173M for lightweight concrete. 
cMark each cylinder with the Contract number, the date and time of sampling, and the weighmaster 
certificate number. 
dYou may need additional test samples to facilitate your schedule. 
 

90-1.01D(10)(b)(v)  Inspection Reports 
Document each inspection performed by a QC inspector in an inspection report that includes: 

1. Contract number 
2. Mix design number 
3. Date and time of inspection 
4. Plant location 
5. Concrete placement location 
6. Batch number 
7. Reviewed copies of weighmaster certificates 
8. Description of the inspection performed 
9. Name, certification number, and signature of the QC inspector 
 
90-1.01D(10)(b)(vi)  Rejection of Material 
If any of the QC concrete test results fail to comply with the specified requirements, the batch of concrete 
must not be incorporated in the work. Notify the Engineer. Repeat the QC concrete tests on each 
subsequent batch until the test results comply with the specified requirements. 

If 3 consecutive batches fail to comply with the specified requirements, (1) revise concrete operations as 
necessary to bring the concrete into compliance and (2) increase the frequency of QC testing. The 
revisions must be authorized before resuming production. After production resumes, you must receive 
authorization before returning to the QC testing frequency authorized in the QC plan. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 190 of 200 

 
90-1.01D(11)  Department Acceptance 
90-1.01D(11)(a)  General 
Reserved 

90-1.01D(11)(b)  Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete Members 
The Department accepts concrete incorporated into CIP structural concrete members based on only the 
Department's test results. QC test results will not be used for Department acceptance. 

 

Replace the table in the 1st paragraph of section 90-1.02A with: 
10-18-19 

Type of work 

Maximum length change of laboratory cast 
specimens at 28 days drying (average of 3) 

(percent) 
Paving and approach slab concrete 0.050 
Bridge deck concrete 0.032 

 

 

Add to the end of section 90-1.02A: 
10-18-19 

For new bridge decks or PCC deck overlays, fibers must comply with ASTM D7508. Microfibers must be 
from 1/2 to 2 inches long. Macrofibers must be from 1 to 2-1/2 inches long. 

 

Replace the table in section 90-1.02G(6) with: 
04-19-19 

Type of work 

Nominal Maximum 
Penetration Slump Penetration Slump 

(in) (in) (in) (in) 
Concrete pavement 0–1 -- 1.5 -- 
Nonreinforced concrete members 0–1.5 -- 2 -- 
Reinforced concrete structures with:     

Sections over 12 inches thick 0–1.5 1–3 2.5 5 
Sections 12 inches thick or less 0–2 1–4 3 6 

Concrete placed under water -- 6–8 -- 9 
CIP concrete piles 2.5–3.5 5–7 4 8 
 

 

Replace the introductory clause of the 6th paragraph of section 90-1.02H with: 
04-19-19 

For pavement, the total cementitious material must be composed of one of the following options, by 
weight: 

 

Add after the 6th paragraph of section 90-1.02H: 
04-19-19 

For structures, the total cementitious material must be composed of one of the following options, by 
weight: 

1. 25 percent natural pozzolan or fly ash with a CaO content of up to 10 percent and 75 percent portland 
cement. 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 191 of 200 

 
2. 20 percent natural pozzolan or fly ash with a CaO content of up to 10 percent, 5 percent silica fume, 

and 75 percent portland cement. 
3. 12 percent silica fume, metakaolin, or UFFA, and 88 percent portland cement. 
4. 50 percent GGBFS and 50 percent portland cement. 
5. 25 to 50 percent fly ash with a CaO content of up to 10 percent, and no natural pozzolan. The 

remaining portion of the cementitious material must be portland cement or a combination of portland 
cement and UFFA, metakaolin, GGBFS, or silica fume. 

 
 

Replace section 90-1.03B(2) with: 
04-19-19 

90-1.03B(2)  Water Method 
The water method must consist of keeping the concrete continuously wet by applying water for a curing 
period of at least 7 days after the concrete is placed. 

Keep the concrete surface wet by applying water with an atomizing nozzle that forms a mist until the 
surface is covered with curing media. Do not allow the water to flow over or wash the concrete surface. At 
the end of the curing period, remove curing media. 

Use any of the following curing media to retain moisture: 

1. Mats, rugs, or carpets 
2. Earth or sand blankets 
3. Sheeting materials complying with the durability and water vapor transmission rate specified in 

section 5 of ASTM C171 
 
To ensure proper coverage during curing: 

1. Cover the entire concrete surface with the curing media 
2. Secure the curing media joints to retain moisture 
3. Keep the curing media within 3 inches of the concrete at all points along the surface being cured 
 
Monitor concrete surface temperature during curing. Ensure that surface temperature is maintained at 
140 degrees F or below. If the surface temperature exceeds 140 degrees F, determine cause and provide 
alternative curing methods to the Engineer for authorization. 

 

10-19-18 
Delete the 2nd paragraph of section 90-3.02A. 

 

Replace the 2nd paragraph of section 90-4.01A with: 
10-18-19 

The specifications for (1) shrinkage in section 90-1.02A, (2) shrinkage reducing chemical admixture in 
section 51-1.02B, and (3) polymer fibers in section 51-1.02B do not apply to PC concrete members. 

 

Add to section 90-4.01C(1): 
04-19-19 

Submit your QC test results for the tests performed under section 90-4.01D as an informational submittal. 
The QC test results must be submitted electronically through the Data Interchange for Materials 
Engineering website within 3 business days of completion of each QC test and must include the concrete 
mix design number. 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 192 of 200 

 
94  ASPHALTIC EMULSIONS 

04-17-20 
Replace section 94 with: 

04-17-20 
94-1.01  GENERAL 
94-1.01A  Summary 
Section 94 includes specifications for furnishing asphaltic emulsions. 

94-1.01B  Definitions 
Reserved 

94-1.01C  Submittals 
Submit an SDS for each shipment of asphaltic emulsion to the job site. 

If you use the asphaltic emulsion before the Department's sampling and testing is complete, submit a 
certificate of compliance for each shipment to the job site. The certificate of compliance must include: 

1. Shipment number and date 
2. Source asphalt emulsion plant, consignee, and destination 
3. Type and description of material with specific gravity and quantity 
4. Contract or purchase order number 
5. Signature by the manufacturer of the material 
6. Certified test results 
 
If no certificate of compliance is submitted, do not use asphaltic emulsion until authorized. 

94-1.01D  Quality Assurance 
Sample asphaltic emulsion under AASHTO T 40. 

Store samples in clean and airtight sealed containers. Samples taken must be placed in wide mouth 
plastic containers and taken in the presence of the Engineer. Samples must be stored at temperatures 
from 40 to 120 degrees F until submitted for testing. 

94-1.02  MATERIALS 
94-1.02A  General 
Asphaltic emulsions must be composed of a bituminous material uniformly emulsified with water and an 
emulsifying or a stabilizing agent. Polymer-modified asphaltic emulsion must contain a polymer. 

Rapid-setting asphaltic emulsions must be tested within 7 days after delivery to job site. All other 
asphaltic emulsions must be tested within 14 days of delivery to job site. The asphaltic emulsion must be 
homogeneous after thorough mixing and not separated by freezing. Asphaltic emulsion separated by 
freezing will not be tested. 

94-1.02B  Slow-Setting Anionic Asphaltic Emulsions 
Slow-setting anionic asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 193 of 200 

 
Slow-Setting Anionic Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Grade 
SS-1 

Grade 
SS-1h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59 

20–100 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Cement mixing test (max, %) 2.0 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.10 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)a 57 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) 
Solubility in trichloroethylene (min, %) 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 
AASHTO T 44 

 
100–200 

400 
97.5 

 
40–90 
400 
97.5 

aDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
 

94-1.02C  Slow-Setting Cationic Asphaltic Emulsions 
Slow-setting cationic asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 

Slow-Setting Cationic Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Grade 
CSS-1 

Grade 
CSS-1h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59 

20–100 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Particle chargea Positive 
Cement mixing test (max, %) 2.0 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.10 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)b 57 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) 
Solubility in trichloroethylene (min, %) 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 
AASHTO T 44 

 
100–250 

400 
97.5 

 
40–90 

400 
97.5 

aMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test 
result is inconclusive. 
bDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 

 

94-1.02D  Rapid-Setting Cationic Asphaltic Emulsions 
Rapid-setting cationic asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 194 of 200 

 
Rapid-Setting Cationic Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Grade 
CRS-1 

Grade 
CRS-2 

Grade 
CRS-1h 

Grade 
CRS-2h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 50 °C 
(Saybolt Furol seconds) 

AASHTO T 59 

20–100 100–400 20–100 100–400 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Demulsibility (min, %)a 40 
Particle chargeb Positive 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.10 
Residue from distillation or 
evaporation test (min, %)c 

60 65 60 65 

Tests on residue: 
Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C, 50 mm/minute 
(min, mm) 
Solubility in trichloroethylene 
(min, %) 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 

 
AASHTO T 44 

 
100–250 

400 
 

97.5 

 
40–90 

400 
 

97.5 

aUse 35 ml of 0.8% sodium dioctyl sulfosuccinate solution. 
bMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test result 
is inconclusive. 
cDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 

 

94-1.02E  Cationic Emulsified Recycling Agent 
Cationic emulsified recycling agent for cold-in-place recycling must comply with the requirements shown 
in the following table: 

Cationic Emulsified Asphalt Requirements 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Emulsified recycling agent 
Sieve test (max, %) 

AASHTO T 59 
0.10 

Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)a 63 
Sieve test (max, %) Positive 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) 
 
Creep stiffness: 
Test temperature (°C) 
S-value (max, MPa) 
M-value (min) 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 

 
AASHTO T 313 

 
40–120 

400 
 
 

-12 
300 

0.300 
aDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
bMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test result 
is inconclusive. 

 

94-1.02F  Rapid-Setting Polymer-Modified Asphaltic Emulsions 
Rapid-setting polymer-modified asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the 
following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 195 of 200 

 
Rapid-Setting Polymer-Modified Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Grade 
PMCRS-2 

Grade 
PMCRS-2h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 50 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59e 

100–400 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.30 
Demulsibility (min, %)a 40b 
Particle chargeb Positive 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)c 65 
Tests on residue:  

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) AASHTO T 49 100–200 40–90 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) AASHTO T 51 400 400 
Torsional recovery (min, %)d 
or 
Elastic recovery, 25 °C (min, %)d 

California Test 332 
 

AASHTO T 301 

20 
 

65 

20 
 

65 
Penetration, 4 °C, 200 g for 60 seconds (min, 
dmm) 

AASHTO T 49 6 6 

Ring and Ball Softening Point (min,°C) AASHTO T 53 57 57 
aUse 35 ml of 0.8% sodium dioctyl sulfosuccinate solution. 
bMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test result 
is inconclusive. 
cDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
dElastic recovery is the defining test if there is a conflict with torsional recovery. 
eDistillation temperature of 350 °F. 

 

94-1.02G  Bonded Wearing Course Asphaltic Emulsions 
Bonded wearing course asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following 
table: 

Bonded Wearing Course Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59c 

20–100 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.05 
Particle chargea Positive 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)b 63 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Torsional recovery (min, %)d 

 
AASHTO T 49 

California Test 332 

 
70–150 

40 
aMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test result 
is inconclusive. 
bDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
cDistillation temperature of 350 °F. 
dMeasure the entire arc of recovery at 25 °C. 

 

94-1.02H  Rapid-Setting Polymer-Modified Rejuvenating Asphaltic Emulsions 
Rapid-setting polymer-modified rejuvenating asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements 
shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 196 of 200 

 
Rapid-Setting Polymer-Modified Rejuvenating Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Grade PMRE 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 50 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59d 

50–350 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Sieve (max, %) 0.30 
Oil distillate (max, %) 0.5 
Particle chargea Positive 
Demulsibility (min, %)b 40 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)c 65 
pH ASTM E70 2.0–5.0 
Tests on residue: 

Viscosity, at 60 °C (max, Pa-s) 
Penetration, 4 °C (dmm) 
Elastic recovery, 25 °C (min, %) 

 
AASHTO T 202e, f 

AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 301g 

 
5000 

40–70 
60 

aMust comply with a pH requirement of 6.7 maximum under ASTM E70 if the particle charge test result 
is inconclusive. 
bIf the product is to be diluted, demulsibility is waived. 
cDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
dDistillation temperature of 350 °F. 
eIf it is suspected that a sample may contain solid material, strain the melted sample into the container 
through a No. 50 (300-µm) sieve conforming to Specification E 11. 
fUse an AI- 200 glass capillary tube to run the test. If the viscosity is 4000 or above, use an AI 400 
instead. 
gElastic recovery, hour glass sides, pull to 20 cm, hold 5 minutes then cut, let sit 1 hour. 

 

Rejuvenating agent for rapid-setting polymer-modified rejuvenating asphaltic emulsion must comply with 
the requirements shown in the following table: 

Rejuvenating Agent Requirements 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Tests on rejuvenating agent: 
Viscosity, at 60 °C (cSt) 
Flash point (min, °C) 
Saturate (max, % by weight) 
Asphaltenes (max) 

 
AASHTO T 201 
AASHTO T 48 
ASTM D2007 
ASTM D2007 

 
50–175 

193 
30 
1.0 

Tests on rejuvenating agent Rolling Thin-Film Oven Test residue: 
Weight change (max, %) 
Viscosity ratio (max)a 

 
AASHTO T 240 

 
6.5 
3 

aRolling Thin-Film Oven Test (RTFOT) viscosity divided by the original viscosity. 
 

94-1.02I  Quick-Setting Asphaltic Emulsions 
Quick-setting asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 197 of 200 

 
Quick-Setting Asphaltic Emulsion Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Anionic Cationic 

Grade 
QS-1 

Grade 
QS-1h 

Grade 
CQS-1 

Grade 
CQS-1h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C 
(Saybolt Furol seconds) 

AASHTO T 59 

15–90 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Particle chargea -- Positive 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.30 
Residue from distillation or 
evaporation test (min, %)b 

57 

Tests on residue: 
Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) 
Solubility in trichloroethylene 
(min, %) 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 
AASHTO T 44 

 
100–200 

400 
97.5 

 
40–90 
400 
97.5 

 
100–200 

400 
97.5 

 
40–90 

400 
97.5 

aIf the result of the particle charge test is inconclusive; the asphaltic emulsion must be tested for pH 
under ASTM E70. Grade QS-1h asphaltic emulsion must have a minimum pH of 7.3. Grade CQS-1h 
asphaltic emulsion must have a maximum pH of 6.7. 
bDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 

 

94-1.02J  Quick-Setting Polymer-Modified Cationic Asphaltic Emulsions 
Quick-setting polymer-modified cationic asphaltic emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in 
the following table: 

Quick-Setting Polymer-Modified Cationic Asphaltic Emulsions 
Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 

Grade PMCQS-1h 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59d 

15–90 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.30 
Particle chargea Positive 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)b 60 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Ductility, 25 °C (min, mm) 
Torsional recovery (min, %)c 
or 
Elastic recovery, 25 °C (min, %)c 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 51 

California Test 332 
 

AASHTO T 301 

 
40–90 

400 
18 
 

60 
aIf the result of the particle charge test is inconclusive; the asphaltic emulsion must be tested for pH 
under ASTM E70. 
bDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
cElastic recovery is the defining test if there is a conflict with torsional recovery. 
dDistillation temperature of 350 °F. 

 

94-1.02K  Micro Surfacing Emulsions 
Micro surfacing emulsion must comply with the requirements shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 198 of 200 

 
Micro Surfacing Emulsion Requirements 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Grade MSE 

Saybolt Furol viscosity, at 25 °C (Saybolt Furol 
seconds) 

AASHTO T 59c 

15–90 

Storage stability test, 1 day (max, %) 1 
Sieve test (max, %) 0.30 
Particle chargea Positive 
Residue from distillation or evaporation test (min, %)b 62 
Tests on residue: 

Penetration, 25 °C (dmm) 
Softening point (min, °C) 
Torsional recovery (min, %)d 
or 
Elastic recovery, 25 °C (min, %)d 

 
AASHTO T 49 
AASHTO T 53 

California Test 332 
 

AASHTO T 301 

 
40–90 

57 
20 
 

65 
aIf the result of the particle charge test is inconclusive; the asphaltic emulsion must be tested for pH 
under ASTM E70. 
bDistillation is the defining test if there is a conflict with evaporation. 
cDistillation temperature of 350 °F. 
dElastic recovery is the defining test if there is a conflict with torsional recovery. 

 

94-1.03  CONSTRUCTION 
Not Used 

94-1.04  PAYMENT 
The quantity of asphaltic emulsion is the weight determined before the addition of any water. 

The weight of asphaltic emulsion is determined from volumetric measurements if: 

1. Partial loads are used 
2. Scale is not available within 20 miles 
3. Asphaltic emulsion is delivered in: 

3.1. Trucks with each tank calibrated and accompanied by its measuring stick and calibration card 
3.2. Trucks equipped with a vehicle tank meter and a calibrated thermometer that determines the 

asphalt temperature at delivery 
 

For volumetric measurements, the measured volume of asphaltic emulsion is reduced to the volume the 
material would occupy at 60 degrees F. One ton of asphaltic emulsion at 60 degrees F equals 240 gal. 
One gallon of asphaltic emulsion at 60 degrees F equals 8.33 lb. 

Convert volume to weight using the factors shown in the following table: 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 199 of 200 

 
Conversion Table 

t M t M t M t M 
60 1.00000 83 0.99425 106 0.98850 129 0.98275 
61 0.99975 84 0.99400 107 0.98825 130 0.98250 
62 0.99950 85 0.99375 108 0.98800 131 0.98225 
63 0.99925 86 0.99350 109 0.98775 132 0.98200 
64 0.99900 87 0.99325 110 0.98750 133 0.98175 
65 0.99875 88 0.99300 111 0.98725 134 0.98150 
66 0.99850 89 0.99275 112 0.98700 135 0.98125 
67 0.99825 90 0.99250 113 0.98675 136 0.98100 
68 0.99800 91 0.99225 114 0.98650 137 0.98075 
69 0.99775 92 0.99200 115 0.98625 138 0.98050 
70 0.99750 93 0.99175 116 0.98600 139 0.98025 
71 0.99725 94 0.99150 117 0.98575 140 0.98000 
72 0.99700 95 0.99125 118 0.98550 141 0.97975 
73 0.99675 96 0.99100 119 0.98525 142 0.97950 
74 0.99650 97 0.99075 120 0.98500 143 0.97925 
75 0.99625 98 0.99050 121 0.98475 144 0.97900 
76 0.99600 99 0.99025 122 0.98450 145 0.97875 
77 0.99575 100 0.99000 123 0.98425 146 0.97850 
78 0.99550 101 0.98975 124 0.98400 147 0.97825 
79 0.99525 102 0.98950 125 0.98375 148 0.97800 
80 0.99500 103 0.98925 126 0.98350 149 0.97775 
81 0.99475 104 0.98900 127 0.98325 150 0.97750 
82 0.99450 105 0.98875 128 0.98300 151 0.97725 

t = observed temperature in degrees F 
M = multiplier for reducing volumes to the basis of 60 °F 

 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
95  EPOXY 

04-17-20 
Replace section 95-1.02E with: 

04-17-20 
95-1.02E  Epoxy Adhesive for Pavement Markers 
Epoxy adhesive for bonding pavement markers to concrete and HMA must comply with ASTM 
C881/C881M, Type IV, Grade 3, Class B or C except the gel time for epoxy adhesive may be less than 
30 minutes. 

Use Class B whenever the surface temperature is from 40 to 60 degrees F. Use Class C whenever the 
surface temperature is above 60 degrees F. 

 

Replace section 95-1.02F with: 
04-17-20 

95-1.02F  Reserved 
 

04-17-20 
Delete the 2nd paragraph of section 95-1.02G. 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 200 of 200 

 
Replace section 95-1.02H with: 

04-17-20 
95-1.02H  Epoxy Resin Adhesive for Pressure Injection Grouting of Concrete Pavement 
Epoxy resin pressure injected into concrete must comply with ASTM C881/C881M, Type IV, Grade 1 
except the epoxy must have a minimum bond strength of 3000 psi at 14 days. 

 

^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 
 

96  GEOSYNTHETICS 
04-17-20 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 2nd paragraph of section 96-1.02B 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (max, 
µm(US Sieve)) ASTM D4751 425(40) 250(60) 212(70) 

 

 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 96-1.02E 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (max, µm(US 
Sieve)) ASTM D4751 600(30) 300(50) 

 

 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 96-1.02F 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (max, µm(US Sieve)) ASTM D4751 425(40) 

 

 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 96-1.02G 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (max, µm(US 
Sieve)) ASTM D4751 600(30) 300(50) 

 

 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 1st paragraph of section 96-1.02H 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size, average roll value (max, µm(US 
Sieve)) ASTM D4751 600(30) 300(50) 

 

 



RSS_A04-17-20__2018 
Page 201 of 200 

 
Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 3rd paragraph of section 96-1.02I 

with: 
04-17-20 

Apparent opening size (min and max, 
µm(US Sieve)) ASTM D4751 150(100)–212(70) 150(100)–212(70) 

 

 

Replace the row for Apparent opening size in the table in the 2nd paragraph of section 96-1.02O 
with: 

04-17-20 
Apparent opening size (max, 
µm(US Sieve)) ASTM D4751 300(50) 300(50) 600(30) 300(50) 300(50) 

 

 

 
Replace the 3rd table in the 3rd paragraph of section 96-1.02R with: 

10-19-18 
Cushion Fabric 

Quality characteristic Test method Requirement 
Class 10 Class 12 Class 16 Class 24 Class 32 Class 60 

Mass per unit area (oz/sq yd) ASTM D5261 10 12 16 24 32 60 
Grab tensile break strength (min, lb) ASTM D4632 230 300 370 450 500 630 
Grab tensile break elongation  
(min, %) 

ASTM D4632 50 

Puncture strength (min, lb) ASTM D6241 700 800 900 1100 1700 2400 
Trapezoidal tear strength (min, lb) ASTM D4533 95 115 145 200 215 290 
UV resistance (min, %) ASTM D7238 70 
 



EXHIBIT B 

PLANS 
FOR 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 

BISHOP, CA 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

COUNTY OF INYO

PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE OVER PINE CREEK

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT

TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION STANDARD PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS

(INCLUDING ALL ISSUED AMENDMENTS) DATED 2018
AND THE MOST RECENT VERSION OF THE CALIFORNIA M.U.T.C.D.

1. TITLE SHEET
2. LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS
3. SURVEY CONTROL PLAN
4. TYPICAL SECTIONS
5. LAYOUT
6. PROFILE
7. GRADING PLAN
8. ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1
9. ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2
10. TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL PLAN
11. EROSION CONTROL PLAN
12. ESA FENCING PLAN
13. SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN
14. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN
15. GENERAL PLAN
16. DECK CONTOURS AND GENERAL NOTES
17. FOUNDATION PLAN
18. ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 1
19. ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2
20. ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 1
21. ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2
22. TYPICAL SECTION
23. GIRDER LAYOUT
24. GIRDER DETAILS
25. DECK PANEL DETAILS
26. DIAPHRAGM DETAILS
27. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 1
28. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 2
29. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 3
30. LOG OF TEST BORINGS
31. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - SOIL LEGEND 1
32. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - SOIL LEGEND 2
33. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - ROCK LEGEND

SHEET  INDEX

SITE MAP
NO SCALE

NOTE:
IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH THE LOCAL UTILITY
COMPANIES TO LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
SERVICE LINES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS PRIOR
TO ANY EXCAVATION WORK. UNDERGROUND
SERVICE ALERT OF NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
(800) 642-2444.

INYO COUNTY

TITLE SHEET

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS A CLASS A LICENSE
AT THE TIME OF CONTRACT AWARD

PACIFIC OCEAN

MODOC

LASSEN

SIERRA

NEVADA

PLACER

AL-

MONO

AMADOR

CALAVERAS

TUOLUMNE

MARIP
OSA

EL DORADO

PINE
NEVADA

INYO

SAN BERNARDINO

TULARE

FRESNO

KERN

SANTA

SAN LUIS OBISPO

BARBARA

KINGS

MERCED

MADERA

IMPERIAL

AR
IZ

O
N

A

ANGELES

ORANGE

SAN DIEGO

VENTURA

RIVERSIDE

MEXICO

LOS

PLUMAS

DEL
NORTE

SISKIYOU

OREGON

SHASTA

TEHAMA

TRINITY

HUMBOLD
T

BUTTEGLENN

SUTTER

YOLO

COLUSAMENDOCIN
O

LAKE

NAPA

SO
LA

NO

SANTA

 COSTA
ALAMEDA

CONTRAMARIN

SAN MATEO

SAN FRANCISCO

SONOMA
 CLARA

YU
BA

SACRAMENTO

SAN
JO

AQUIN
STA

NIS
LA

US

SAN BENITOMONTEREY

SANTA CRUZ

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
01

 T
itl

e 
Sh

ee
t.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:2
8p

m
 b

y 
ka

iw
an

g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020

LOCATION MAP
NO SCALE

INYO
COUNTY

VICINITY MAP
NO SCALE

1

1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
APPROVAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Exp. 12/31/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
C 57570

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
BIG PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
BISHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
JUNE LAKE JUNCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
ABERDEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
BERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
SPRINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
OLD SHERWIN GRADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
BIRCHIM LN

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
ALTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
 ROUND VALLEY JOINT  ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
 ROUND VALLEY  ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
PINE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
PRIVATE DRIVE



180

UTILITY NOTES:
LOCATIONS FOR EXISTING UNDERGROUND FACILITIES ARE
APPROXIMATE. EXACT DEPTH AND LOCATIONS ARE
UNKNOWN. FIELD LOCATE PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

**CALL UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT (USA) 811

A3A ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 1 OF 3)
A3B ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 2 OF 3)
A3C ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
A10A LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 1 OF 5)

          A10B LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 2 OF 5)
A10C LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 3 OF 5)
A10D LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 4 OF 5)
A10E LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 5 OF 5)
A20A PAVEMENT MARKERS & TRAFFIC LINES - TYPICAL DETAILS
A20B PAVEMENT MARKERS & TRAFFIC LINES - TYPICAL DETAILS
A62C LIMITS OF PAVEMENT FOR EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL BRIDGE
A73A OBJECT MARKERS

RSP A73B MARKERS
RSP A77Q1 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TYPICAL LAYOUTS FOR STRUCTURE APPROACH
RSP A77Q4 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TYPICAL LAYOUTS FOR STRUCTURE DEPARTURE

A77U1 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - CONNECTIONS TO BRIDGE RAILINGS WITHOUT SIDEWALKS DETAILS NO. 1
A77U2 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - CONNECTIONS TO BRIDGE RAILINGS WITHOUT SIDEWALKS DETAILS NO. 2

RSP A77U4 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TRANSITION RAILING (TYPE WB-31)
T56 TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION CONTROL DETAILS (TEMPORARY FIBER ROLLS)

RSP BO-1 BRIDGE DETAILS
B0-13 BRIDGE DETAILS
B6-21 JOINT SEALS (MAXIMUM MOVEMENT RATING=2")
B7-5 DECK DRAINS

CALTRANS STANDARD PLANS - 2018

LEGEND

EXISTING CONTOUR

SURVEY CONTROL POINTS

LIMITS OF GRADING

ORIGINAL GROUND

CENTERLINE OF ROADWAY

CALTRANS STANDARD PLAN SHEET NO.

DETAIL NO.

PROPOSED CONTOUR

ABBREVIATIONS

1. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE SUBJECT TO TOLERANCES SPECIFIED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS.

GENERAL NOTES:

180

BVCE
BVCS
BW
CL
EX, (E)
EVCE
EVCS
LVC
(N)
PVI
TC
TG
PC
PI
PRC
PT

BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE ELEVATION
BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE STATION
BARBED WIRE
CENTERLINE
EXISTING
END VERTICAL CURVE ELEVATION
END VERTICAL CURVE STATION
LENGTH VERTICAL CURVE
NEW
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION
TOP OF CURB
TOP OF GRADE
POINT OF CURVATURE
POINT OF INTERSECTION
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
POINT OF TANGENCY

LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS

2

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
02

 L
eg

en
d 

& 
Ab

br
ev

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:2

8p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020

RIGHT OF WAY

LIMITS OF RSP

2

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
CP #101

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
L



VARIES 12.0' TO 13.0' VARIES 9.0' TO 13.0'

 6% OR
MATCH (E)PG

0.35' HMA
COMPACT TOP 6" OF EXIST AB TO 95% RELATIVE
COMPACTION. CARE MUST BE TAKEN TO NOT DISTURB
THE UNDERLYING EXIST SUBGRADE MATERIAL

STA 12+40 TO STA 12+59 RT
STA 12+40 TO 12+74 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

 4% OR
MATCH (E)

3.0' TO 6.0'

30.0'R/W 30.0'
ES EP ESEP

R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

3.0' TO 6.0'

 6% OR
MATCH (E)

 2% OR
MATCH (E)

VARIES 14.0' TO 15.0' VARIES 14.0' TO 15.0'
EP

PG

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

3:1 MAX

2.0' TO 6.0'
ESEP

2.0' TO 6.0'
ES

 2%

30.0' 30.0'
R/W R/W

STA 14+54 TO STA 15+29 RT
STA 14+65 TO STA 15+40 LT

SCALE: 1" = 4'

 2% 2%  2%

0.35' HMA
COMPACT TOP 6" OF EXIST AB TO 95% RELATIVE
COMPACTION. CARE MUST BE TAKEN TO NOT DISTURB
THE UNDERLYING EXIST SUBGRADE MATERIAL

VARIES 14.0' TO 12.5' VARIES 14.0' TO 12.5'

 1% OR
MATCH (E)PG

STA 15+29 TO STA 15+93 RT
STA 15+40 TO 15+93 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

3:1 MAX

2.0' TO 4.0'2.0' TO 4.0'

3:1 MAX

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

30.0' 30.0'R/W

ES EP EP ES

R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

0.35' HMA
COMPACT TOP 6" OF EXIST AB TO 95% RELATIVE
COMPACTION. CARE MUST BE TAKEN TO NOT DISTURB
THE UNDERLYING EXIST SUBGRADE MATERIAL

VARIES 13.0' TO 16.0' VARIES 13.0' TO 16.0'

PG

STA 12+59 TO STA 13+34 RT
STA 12+74 TO STA 13+46 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

4.0' TO 6.0'4.0' TO 6.0' ES EP EP ES

 6%
 4%

R/W R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

VARIES 30.0' - 70.0' VARIES 30.0' - 70.0'

 2%

 6%

0.35' HMA
COMPACT TOP 6" OF EXIST AB TO 95% RELATIVE
COMPACTION. CARE MUST BE TAKEN TO NOT DISTURB
THE UNDERLYING EXIST SUBGRADE MATERIAL

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
04

 T
yp

ic
al

 S
ec

tio
ns

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:3

0p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 TYPICAL SECTIONS

4

4

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
L



BEGIN CONSTRUCTION
STA 12+40.00 "R" LINE
SAWCUT TO A NEAT EDGE
AND CONFORM TO (E) WIDTH
AND CROSS SLOPE

CONSTRUCT PINE CREEK BRIDGE NO. 48C-0044
(SEE BRIDGE PLANS FOR DETAILS)

LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

EB, STA 14+43

BB, STA 13+58

(E) R/W

(E) EP

(E) EP
(E) R/W

(E) EP

(P) EP

(P) ES

(E) EP

(P) ES

(P) EP

(P) ES

(P) EP

(P) EP

(P) ES

(E) R/W

PT: 14+21.36

R =700.00'

(E) R/W

(E) R/W

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

END CONSTRUCTION
STA 15+93 "R" LINE

SAWCUT TO A NEAT EDGE
AND CONFORM TO (E) WIDTH

AND CROSS SLOPE

70'

70'

30'

30'

C2

L1

CURVE TABLE - "R" LINE
CURVE #

C2

LENGTH

266.93'

RADIUS

700.00'

DELTA

21° 51' 00"

CHORD DIRECTION

N30° 10' 58.99"W

CHORD LENGTH

265.32

LINE TABLE - "R" LINE

LINE #

L1

LENGTH

187.220

DIRECTION

N19° 15' 30.99"W

START POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401329.9249, 6682537.4894

END POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401506.6680, 6682475.7381

INSTALL MGS TRANSITION RAILING (TYPE WB-31) PER 2018
STANDARD PLANS, DETAIL RSP A77U4, TYP.

KEYNOTES

INSTALL MSKT-SP-MGS (TL4) TERMINAL SYSTEM END TREATMENT
PER STANDARD PLANS RSP A77Q1 AND RSP A77Q4, TYP.

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

REMOVE EXISTING BRIDGE AND GUARDRAIL.

LEGEND

INDICATES LIMITS OF APPROACH ROADWAY RECONSTRUCTION

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
05

 L
ay

ou
t.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
3p

m
 b

y 
ka

iw
an

g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 LAYOUT

5

5

INDICATES LIMITS OF ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
L



4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

50 75 12+00 25 50 75 13+00 25 50 75 14+00 25 50 75 15+00 25 50 75 16+00 25 16+50

-0.14%

BEGIN BRIDGE
STA 13+58.00
ELEV 4682.65

MATCH EXISTING
BEGIN CONSTRUCTION
STA 12+40.00
ELEV 4682.82

END BRIDGE
STA 14+43.00
ELEV 4682.53

MATCH EXISTING
END CONSTRUCTION

STA 15+93.00
ELEV 4682.32

FG

FG

OG

-1.00%

AXIS OF ROTATION
CL  "R" LINE

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%

-2.00%

-3.00%

-4.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%

-1.00%

-2.00%

-3.00%

-4.00%

12+00 13+00

0.00%

14+00

5.00%5.00%

-5.00%-5.00%

15+00 16+00

6.00%

7.00%

-6.00%

-7.00%

-6.00%

6.00%

7.00%

-7.00%

20

SCALE 1"=20' HORIZONTAL

0 40 60

1"=5'   VERTICAL

PROFILE

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
06

 P
ro

fil
e.

dw
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
3p

m
 b

y 
ka

iw
an

g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 PROFILE

6

6

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
LEFT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
RIGHT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
5.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
0.8%

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
L



LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

LIMITS OF RSP, TYP

LIMITS OF RSP, TYP

0+00

1+00

0+00

1+00

1+22

0+00

1+00

1+22

0+00

1+00

0+00

1+00

1+14

0+00

1+00
1+05

STA 13+34.24 "R" LINE, 18.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "D" LINE
(SEE DETAIL D ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+30.00 "R" LINE, 38.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "E" LINE
(SEE DETAIL E ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+30.00 "R" LINE, 58.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "F" LINE
(SEE DETAIL F ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+47.38 "R" LINE, 21.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "C" LINE

(SEE DETAIL C ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 13+52.26 "R" LINE, 33.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "B" LINE

(SEE DETAIL B ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 13+58.11 "R" LINE, 48.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "A" LINE

(SEE DETAIL A ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+42.92 "R" LINE, 58.0' RT =
STA 1+05 "F" LINE
(SEE DETAIL F ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+49.03 "R" LINE, 38.0' RT =
STA 1+14 "E" LINE
(SEE DETAIL E ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+55.15 "R" LINE, 18.0' RT =
STA 1+18 "D" LINE
(SEE DETAIL D ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+67.08 "R" LINE, 21.0' LT =
STA 1+21 "C" LINE
(SEE DETAIL C ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+70.74 "R" LINE, 33.0' LT =
STA1+22 "B" LINE
(SEE DETAIL B ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+75.32 "R" LINE, 48.0' LT =
STA 1+22 "A" LINE
(SEE DETAIL A ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

LEGEND

LIMITS OF GRADING

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
07

 G
ra

di
ng

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:3

4p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 GRADING PLAN

7

7

LIMITS OF RSP
EXIST BW FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
L



4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

FG

OG

OG

STA 0+58.05
ELEV 4668.93

STA 0+39.07
ELEV 4681.95

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.57

STA 1+10.91
ELEV 4670.16

STA 1+17.35
ELEV 4680.00

STA 1+21.50
ELEV 4680.96

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

FG

OG

STA 0+51.13
ELEV 4667.35

STA 0+29.00
ELEV 4682.74

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.26

STA 1+22.00
ELEV 4680.50

STA 0+96.06
ELEV 4670.14

OG

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG OG

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

4.0' STRUCTURE DEPTH

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.39

STA 0+23.24
ELEV 4676.00

STA 0+42.53
ELEV 4666.04

STA 0+90.50
ELEV 4670.00

STA 0+94.79
ELEV 4674.00

STA 1+21.00
ELEV 4683.14STA 1+00.62

ELEV 4678.59

OG

FG

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1

8

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
08

-0
9 

R
SP

 D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

8p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020

10

SCALE 1"=10' HORIZONTAL

0 20 30

1"=10' VERTICAL

RSP DETAIL A - LINE A

RSP DETAIL B - LINE B

RSP DETAIL C - LINE C

8

RSP CONSTRUCTION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
RSP Fabric, (Class 8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
2:1 Max Slope

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
RSP (1/2-ton, Class VII, Method B)

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
RSP (150 lb, Class III,  Method B) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Elev as Shown in Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
L



4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

4.0' STRUCTURE DEPTHFG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

3.0' CLEAR

STA 0+19.59
ELEV 4675.00

STA 0+34.65
ELEV 4666.25

STA 0+87.84
ELEV 4669.08

STA 0+97.61
ELEV 4675.00

STA 1+18.00
ELEV 4681.99

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4681.73

OG

FG

ALIGNMENT - RSP SECTION 05 PROFILE

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL) STA 0+15.99

ELEV 4675.00

STA 0+31.36
ELEV 4665.24

STA 0+87.86
ELEV 4667.41

STA 1+00.00
ELEV 4675.00

STA 1+14.00
ELEV 4678.38

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4680.13

OG

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL) STA 0+14.86

ELEV 4677.00

STA 0+36.52
ELEV 4665.14

STA 0+74.68
ELEV 4666.06

STA 1+05.00
ELEV 4676.78

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4677.90

STA 0+96.35
ELEV 4676.00

OG

FG

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2

9

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
08

-0
9 

R
SP

 D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

7p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020

10

SCALE 1"=10' HORIZONTAL

0 20 30

1"=10' VERTICAL

RSP DETAIL D - LINE D

RSP DETAIL E - LINE E

RSP DETAIL F - LINE F

9

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
L



FIBER ROLLS (TYPE 1), TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

LEGEND
FIBER ROLLS (TYPE 1)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
10

 T
em

p 
EC

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

8p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL PLAN

10

10

NOTE

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE MINIMUM REQUIRED.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TEMPORARY EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED BY THE APPROVED CONTRACTOR
PREPARED WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN OR SWPPP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
L



LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

11

LEGEND

HYDROSEED - 0.06 AC

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
11

 E
C

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

8p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020

11

CONTRACTOR TO HYDROSEED ALL DISTURBED
GROUND USING AN APPROVED SEED MIX, AS
PROVIDED FOR IN THE SPECIFICATIONS

NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
L



TEMPORARY HIGH VISIBILITY FENCE (TYPE ESA)

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

EB, STA 14+43

BB, STA 13+58

STA 11+00.00, 11.01' RT

STA 11+00.00, 30.00' RT

STA 13+30.00, 30.00' RT

STA 13+30.00, 70.00' RT

STA 14+90.00, 70.00' RT

STA 14+90.00, 30.00' RT

STA 16+50.00, 30.00' RT

STA 16+50.00, 12.78' RT

STA 16+50.00 "P" LINE, 11.0' LT

STA 16+50.00 "P" LINE, 30.0' LT

STA 14+90.00, 30.0' LT

STA 14+90.00, 70.0' LT

STA 13+30.00, 70.0' LT

STA 13+30.00, 30.0' LT

STA 11+00.00, 10.8' LT

STA 11+00.00, 30.0' LT

(E) EP

(E) EP

(E) R/W

(E) EP

(E) EP
(E) R/W

(E) R/W

LEGEND

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
12

 E
SA

 F
en

ci
ng

 P
la

n.
dw

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

9p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 ESA FENCING PLAN

12

12

TEMPORARY HIGH-VISIBILITY FENCE (TYPE ESA)

30

SCALE 1"=30'

0 60 90

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
4654

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
4655

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
4692

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
L



CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

BEGIN CL STRIPING
STA 12+40.00 "R" LINE

END CL STRIPING
STA 15+93 "R" LINE

A20A
21

A20A
21

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
13

 S
ig

ni
ng

 S
tri

pi
ng

 P
la

n.
dw

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

ug
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 3
:4

9p
m

 b
y 

ka
iw

an
g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN

13

13

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
L



N ROUND VALLEY ROAD
6+02

8+00

10+00

12+00

14+00

16+00

18+00

PINE CREEK ROAD

1

3

2

2

3

50'

4 5

4 5

1. TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS MUST CONFORM TO THE MUTCD, LATEST EDITION.
2. REMOVE AND DELIVER BARRIERS AND SIGNAGE TO COUNTY AFTER
          IMPLEMENTATION OF APPROVED TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

GENERAL NOTES

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 8/31/2020

R. SENNETT IV 8/31/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
14

 T
ra

ffi
c 

C
on

tro
l P

la
n.

dw
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:4
9p

m
 b

y 
ka

iw
an

g

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

8/31/2020 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

14

14

80

SCALE 1"=80'

0 160 240

SIGN CODE DESCRIPTION

R11-3a
(ALTERNATE)

R11-4 ROAD CLOSED TO THROUGH TRAFFIC

SIGN DESIGNATION

2

3

4 ROAD CLOSED (1000 FT)

5 N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD
(PLAQUE)

R11-2

R11-21
ROAD CLOSED 200 FT AHEAD

(MOUNT ON TYPE III BARRICADES)

BRIDGE CLOSED 500 FT AHEAD

W20-3

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
4654

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
4655

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
4689

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
4688

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
4692

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
L



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

14+00

DATUM ELEV 4640.00

  ELEVATION  
1" = 10'

BB EB

FG, TYP

APPROX OG, TYP

ABUT 1 ABUT 2

24"Ø CIDH PILE, TYP

14+5013+50

L85'-0", MEASURED ALONG  C  NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED     NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

36'-0"

4'-0"

CL

PG

VARIESVARIES

4'
-0

"

CALIFORNIA
ST-75 BRIDGE
RAIL, TYP

1/4" = 1'-0'

 TYPICAL SECTION 

PC/PS CA WF36

2'-0" 2'-0"

TUBULAR
BICYCLE
RAILING, TYP

PC/PS DECK
PANEL, TYP

12'-0" 4'-0"12'-0"

=    BRIDGE ("R" LINE)CL

AT
   

  B
R

G
C L

GENERAL PLAN

  PROFILE GRADE  
NO SCALE

-0.14%

1" = 10'

  PLAN  

 NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

TO PINE CREEK RD

TO BIRCHIM LN

CL N 19°15'31" W
ELEV 4682.53
EB STA 14+43.00

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED

TOE OF SLOPE, TYP

LEGEND:

INDICATES NEW CONSTRUCTION

INDICATES EXISTING STRUCTURE

INDICATES DIRECTION OF FLOW

INDICATES DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

FOR HYDROLOGIC SUMMARY, SEE

"FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

1

CURVE DATA
RADIUS (FT)

700.00

DELTA (°)

21.849°

LENGTH (FT)

266.935

TANGENT (FT)

135.109

1

BB STA 13+58.00
ELEV 4682.65

PI
N

E 
C

R
EE

K

AB
U

T 
2 

TRANSITION RAILING
AND TERMINAL SYSTEM,
TYP, SEE "ROAD PLANS"

CL
AB

U
T 

1 

C L

STA   12+40.00
ELEV 4682.82

STA   15+93.00
ELEV 4682.32 9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:2
3p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020

ROCK SLOPE
PROTECTION
(1/2T, CLASS VII,
METHOD B), TYP

15

TOP OF SLOPE, TYP

22°11'9"
SKEW

15

SKEW

17°0'0"

4'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

DECK DRAIN,
TYPE B, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
R



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

169

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:2
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 DECK CONTOURS AND GENERAL NOTES

GENERAL NOTES

DESIGN:

DEAD LOAD:

SEISMIC DESIGN:

SEISMIC LOAD:

LIVE LOAD:

n = VARIES
CONCRETE:
REINFORCED

f'c = SEE 'CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS' 
fy = 60,000 PSI

AASHTO LRFD BRIDGE DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS, 6TH EDITION AND THE

MAXIMUM MAGNITUDE = 6.89
PEAK GROUND ACCELERATION = 0.678g

 LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN 

INCLUDES 35 PSF FOR FUTURE WEARING SURFACE.

HL93 AND PERMIT DESIGN VEHICLE

CALTRANS SEISMIC DESIGN CRITERIA (SDC) VERSION 1.7, APRIL, 2013

CALTRANS AMENDMENTS, PREFACE, DATED MARCH 2014

SHEAR WAVE VELOCITY, V      = 400 M/S

PRESTRESSING
STEEL:

SEE 'PRESTRESSING NOTES' ON "GIRDER DETAILS" 

S30

SHEET

SP
EC

TR
AL

 A
C

C
EL

ER
AT

IO
N

 (G
)

PERIOD (SEC)

 RESPONSE SPECTRA 

0.0
0.0

1.6

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

5.01.0 2.0 3.0 4.0

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018

A3A ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 1 OF 3)

A3B ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 2 OF 3)

A3C ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 3 OF 3)

A62C LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL - BRIDGE

RSP B0-1 BRIDGE DETAILS

B0-13 BRIDGE DETAILS

B6-21 JOINT SEALS (MAXIMUM MOVEMENT RATING = 2")

B7-5 DECK DRAINS

1" = 10'

 DECK CONTOURS 1. CONTOUR INTERVAL = 0.05 FT 
2. CONTOURS DO NOT INCLUDE CAMBER

NOTES: 

3.     INDICATES 10' STATION INTERVALS  ALONG CENTER LINE

 CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS 
NO SCALE

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE

 LEGEND 

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE FOOTING

f'c = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYS

f ' = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYSc

4682.50

4682.75

4682.25

4682.50

4682.25

PRECAST PRESTESSED GIRDER
f ' = SEE "GIRDER DETAILS" SHEETc

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE (POLYMER FIBER)
f ' = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYSc

16

4682.00

4681.75

4681.50

4683.00

4683.25

4683.50

4682.50

CL
AB

U
T 

1 

CL
AB

U
T 

2

OG

 LIMITS OF PAYMENT - STRUCTURE EXCAVATION & BACKFILL 
NO SCALE

1'-0"
TYP

1'-0"
TYP

ABUT 1 ABUT 2

Elev 4675

- INDICATES LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR
STRUCTURE EXCAVATION (TYPE D)

- INDICATES LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR
STRUCTURE BACKFILL

OG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
R



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

CUT-OFF
ELEVATIONPILE TYPELOCATION

TOTAL PERMANENT

PILE DATA TABLE

(FT)

4662.7524" CIDHABUT 1 1714 1341 1

1" = 10'

 FOUNDATION PLAN 

LOCATION

ABUT 2

SCOUR DATA TABLE

ABUT 1 o 5.11

LONG TERM
(DEGRADATION AND

CONTRACTION)
SCOUR DEPTH (FT)

SHORT TERM
(LOCAL)

SCOUR DEPTH
(FT)

o 5.28

INDICATES 24" CIDH PILE

INDICATES DIRECTION OF FLOW

 LEGEND 

INDICATES BOTTOM OF FOOTING ELEVATIONxxxx.x

 HYDROLOGIC SUMMARY 
DRAINAGE AREA 37 SQUARE MILES

DESIGN FLOOD BASE FLOOD
FREQUENCY (YEARS)

DISCHARGE (CUBIC FEET PER SECOND)

WATER SURFACE (ELEVATION AT BRIDGE)

50

420

4669.40

100

460

4669.50

179

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:2
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 FOUNDATION PLAN

C L
AB

UT
 1

 
N 

87
°4

4'
29

" E

AB
U

T 
2 

C L
N

 8
7°

44
'2

9"
 E

STA 14+40.65
STA 13+60.43

4681

4680

4682

4675

4675

46
80

4666

4670

4665

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED 4662.50

4662.50

46
70

4683

46
8446
85

46
80

46
70

4681

4681

4682

PI
NE

 C
RE

EK

 NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROADCL N 19°15'31" W

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

WW LOL
N 19°15'31" W

WW LOL
N 19°15'31" W

WW LOL

R = 718 FT

WW LOL

R = 682 FT

TOTAL
PERMISSIBLE

SUPPORT
SETTLEMENT

(IN)
COMPRESSION

φ = 0.7

277

TENSION
φ = 0.7

1

COMPRESSION
φ = 1.0

228

TENSION
φ = 1.0

60

STRENGTH EXTREME
DESIGN TIP

ELEVATIONS
(FT)

4618 (a-I)
4645 (b-I)
4627 (a-II)
4639 (b-II)
4629 (c)
TBD (d)

SPECIFIED
TIP

ELEVATIONS
(FT)

4618

NOMINAL RESISTANCE (KIPS)SERVICE-I LIMIT
STATE LOAD PER

SUPPORT
(KIPS)

4662.7524" CIDHABUT 2 1 4618

NOTES:
(1) DESIGN TIP ELEVATIONS ARE CONTROLLED BY: (a-I) COMPRESSION (STRENGTH LIMIT), (b-I) TENSION (STRENGTH LIMIT), (a-II) COMPRESSION (EXTREME EVENT),

(b-II) TENSION (EXTREME EVENT), (c) SETTLEMENT, (d) LATERAL LOAD.
(2) THE SPECIFIC TIP ELEVATION SHALL NOT BE RAISED ABOVE THE DESIGN TIP ELEVATIONS OF TENSION, LATERAL, AND TOLERABLE SETTLEMENT.

4682

4683

46
81

4683

4679

4678

4677

17

4618 (a-I)
4645 (b-I)
4627 (a-II)
4639 (b-II)
4629 (c)
TBD (d)

INDICATES EXISTING STRUCTURE

VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88

1714 1341 277 1 228 60

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
R



FOOTING

24" CIDH CONC PILE, TYP

 FOOTING REINFORCEMENT LAYOUT 

ABUTMENT 1 SHOWN, ABUTMENT 2 SIMILAR.

CL CL

1/2" = 1'-0'

BOTTOM FOOTING REINFTOP FOOTING REINF

FOOTING

PILE

#4      @ 12, TYP

CL

PILECL

#7        T & B

#7        T & B

BOTH WAYS

#4      @ 12, TYP
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12, TYP
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12, TYP#7 @ 12

#7 @ 12

 ABUTMENT 1 PLAN 

19'-5 1/2" 19'-4 3/8"

5'-10 3/4"3'-7 1/4" 9'-6 1/8"9'-6 1/8"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

CL ABUT BRG

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD, TOT 4

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS AS
BEARING, TYP

20'-0", TYP

1'-0"

TYP

2'-0"

TYP

W
W

  LO
L

W
W

  LO
L

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

7 SPACES @ 5'-3", TOTAL 36'-9"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

21'-0"21'-0"

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 1 FOOTING 

CL

A

A

FG 

BEARING PAD, TYP

15'-0" 15'-0"

WEEP HOLE, TYP,
SEE NOTE 3

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

6" CHAMFER, TYP

4" CHAMFER, TYP

10
'-0

"ABUT BRG =

FOOTINGCL

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 1 ELEVATION 

1/4" = 1'-0'

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

C C

13+50

R = 682 ft

R = 700 ft R = 718 ft

3'-9 15/16"

1'-5 1/16"

1'-4 7/8"

3'-10 1/8"

13+50 21°59'13"

N 87°44'29" EN 87°44'29" E

R = 700 ft

1. FOR BEARING PAD DETAILS， SEE "ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2" SHEET.

2. FOR SECTION A-A, SECTION B-B AND SECTION C-C, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO.
1" SHEET.

3. 4" DRAINS AT 15'-0" CENTER TO CENTER.  WEEP HOLES SHALL BE LOCATED 3"
ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

4. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

NOTES:

B

C

GIRDER
TOP OF BRG 4678.03

D
4678.49

C
4678.83

B
4679.09

A

B AD

B

B6-21

-

ELEV 4675.00

ELEV 4675.60

CLALL ELEVATIONS PROVIDED AT     BRG PAD.
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY TOP OF BRG PAD ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO POURING ABUTMENT CONCRETE.

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
0p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 1

18

18

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
R



1. FOR SECTION A-A, SECTION B-B AND SECTION C-C, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO.
1" SHEET.

2. 4" DRAINS AT 15'-0" CENTER TO CENTER.  WEEP HOLES SHALL BE LOCATED 3"
ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

3. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

NOTES:

14+50

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

CL ABUT BRG =

FOOTINGCL

14+50

17°0'0"

7 SPACES @ 5'-3", TOTAL 36'-9"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

21'-0"21'-0"

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 2 FOOTING 

10
'-0

"

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

3'-6 1/2"

1'-8 1/2"

1'-8 1/2"

3'-6 1/2"
N 87°44'29" E

18'-9 7/8"18'-9 7/8"

3'-9"5'-9 1/16" 9'-6 1/16"9'-6 1/16"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

CL ABUT BRG

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD, TOT 4

20'-0", TYP

1'-0"

TYP

W
W

  LO
L

W
W

  LO
L

A

A 6" CHAMFER, TYP

4" CHAMFER, TYP

B N 87°44'29" E

2'-0"

TYP

 ABUTMENT 2 PLAN 

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 2 ELEVATION 

1/4" = 1'-0'

FG 15'-0" 15'-0"

WEEP HOLE, TYP,
SEE NOTE 2

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

BEARING PAD, TYP

C C

B

GIRDER
TOP OF BRG 4678.72

A
4678.61

B
4678.45

C
4678.21

D

CL

A C D

B

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS AS
BEARING, TYP

B6-21

-

ELEV 4676.00

ELEV 4675.00

ALL ELEVATIONS PROVIDED AT     BRG PAD.
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY TOP OF BRG PAD ELEVATIONS
PRIOR TO POURING ABUTMENT CONCRETE.

BRG PADCL

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 ELEVATION 

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
TO MATCH BRG PAD
THICKNESS, TYP

ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD

14 GA (0.079 IN) GALVANIZED
SHEET METAL CENTERED ON
PADS. COAT TOP OF PAD WITH
SILICONE GREASE PRIOR TO
PLACING SHEET METAL

2"

3'-9", LEVEL

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

   PLAN   

BRG PAD =CL

ABUT BRGCL

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD

2"
5"

2"

5"

28" X 13" GALVANIZED SHEET
METAL (0.079" THICK). COAT
TOP OF PAD WITH SILICONE
GREASE PRIOR TO PLACING
SHEET MATEL

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
TO MATCH BRG PAD
THICKNESS, TYP

 BEARING PAD DETAILS 

2"
1'-0"

1'-0"

GIRDERCL

TYP

13-1
B0-13TOP OF BRG

MEASURED NORMAL TO GIRDER

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
1p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2

19

19

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
R



1'-0" 1'-3" 1'-3"

2'
-0

"

CONST JOINT

#5 TOT 2   e

JOINT SEAL
TYPE B,
MR = 1"

B6-21

-

#9, TOT 5

#5            @ 12

FG

1'
-0

"

3" C
LR

DETAIL 3, SEE NOTE 2

DETAIL 2, SEE NOTE 2

ABUTCLBB/EB

2'
-0

"

#5           @ 12   e

3'-6"

6"
 C

LR

1/2" = 1'-0'

  SECTION A-A  

#5 @ 12, TYP

3" EM
BE

D
M

EN
T

2'
-9

"
ABUT

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

#7     @ 12

6'
-9

"

#7          @ 12

#5 @ 12, TYP#7 @ 12

#4      @ 12, 
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12

CL

1'-0"

1/2" = 1'-0'

CONST JT

 SECTION C-C 

WINGWALL

BACKWALL
REINF, TYP

WW REINF, TYP

#4                        , TOT 4

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION B-B 

#5              , TYP

1'
-6

"

#4                        , TYP

#5              , TOT 3

TYP

#5

CONST JT

2" CLR

TYP

WW REINF

 PILE ELEVATION 

3"
1"

PI
TC

H
 O

F 
#4

 S
PI

R
AL

 @
 6

LE
N

G
TH

 F
O

R
 P

AY
M

EN
T

1/2" = 1'-0'

D D

CL PILE
TOP OF FTG

BOT OF FTG

#4
 @

 4

SPECIFIED PILE

TIP ELEVATION

PILE CUT-OFF

ELEVATION

DETAIL 1

2" CLR

EXPANDED
POLYSTYRENE,
TYP

1/2" EXPANSION
JOINT FILLER

1'
-0

"

2"

EXPANDED
POLYSTYRENE

END
DIAPHRAGM

1
1

5'-9"

#5       @ 12  e

#5 @ 12 BOTH FACES

2'-6"

3"
 C

LR

#5 @ 12   e

3"
 C

LR

2"

SEE NOTE 1

AL
LO

W
ED

8'
-0

", 
N

O
 S

PL
IC

E

SEE NOTE 1

1. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

2. FOR DETAIL 2 AND DETAIL 3, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET.

NOTES:

 SECTION D-D 

2'-0"

1" = 1'-0'

3" CLR

INSPECTION
TUBES,
2" ID, TOT 2

#4 SPIRAL

#8 TOT 6

1'
-6

"

#9

#4, Typ

#9, TYP

#5                 @ 8

1'-0"

1
1

#5                 @ 8  e

2'-0"

WW LOL

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION E-E 

#4 TOT 4

2" CLR
TYP

3"
 C

LR

#5 TOT 4   e

1'
-0

"

#4

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

 SPIRAL TERMINATION DETAIL 
1" = 1'-0'

SPIRAL TERMINATIONS TO
HAVE AN EXTRA TURN
WITH HALF THE PITCH IN
ADDITION TO A 90° HOOK
EXTENDED THROUGH PILE
CORE, AS SHOWN

"a"

CONST JT

1'
-0

"

1/2" EXPANSION
JOINT FILLER

ABUT SEAT

BACKWALL

NOTE: FOR DIMENSION "a", 
SEE STANDARD PLAN B6-21

13-1
B0-13

13-2
B0-13

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 DETAIL 1 

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS
AS BRG PAD

3'
-0

"

E

E

#4 @ 18 MAX,
OUTSIDE FACE, TYP

#4                 , TOT 2

#9                   , TOT 2   e

#9 @ 9 MAX,
INSIDE FACE, TYP

#4        @ 18   e , TYP

#5 TOT 4,
OUTSIDE
FACE ONLY

20'-0", ALONG LAYOUT LINE

CL ABUT BRG

 WINGWALL ELEVATION 
1/4" = 1'-0'

* BARRIER NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY
3'

-2
"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
1p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 1

20

20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
R



FF

1'
-0

"
1'-0"

~

10 MIL POLYETHYLENE SHEET

  DETAIL 2  

DRAINS THROUGH
ABUT, TYP

BOND 6" TO WALL CUT
HOLE FOR 3" PIPE

BOND TO GEOCOMPOSITE
DRAIN 3" MIN.

LEVEL OR SLOPED
TOWARD BACKWALL

CEMENT TREATED
PERMEABLE BASE

NO SCALE

 WEEP HOLE AND GEOCOMPOSITE DRAIN 

3"

FILTER FABRIC
WRAP AROUND

BACKFACE OF
ABUTMENT OR
WINGWALL

  DETAIL 3  

1. GEOCOMPOSITE DRAIN, CEMENT TREATED PERMEABLE BASE,   AND 3"Ø SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE CONTINUOUS BEHIND   ABUTMENT & WINGWALLS. CAP ENDS OF
PIPE.   PROVIDE "TEE" CONNECTION AT EACH 4"Ø DRAIN.

NOTES:

WINGWALL OR
RETURN WALL, TYP

CAP TYP

TEE CONNECTION

3" SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

BACKFACE OF
ABUTMENT

4"Ø DRAIN

3/4" = 1'-0"

3" UNSLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

3" MIN

 SECTION F-F  WINGWALL DRAIN ELEVATION VIEW 
1/4" = 1'-0'

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

CL ABUT BRG

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
2p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2

21

21

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
R



DECK PANEL,
TYP

1" C
LR

3"
 M

IN
3 

1 2"
 M

AX

OUTER 3" OF THE TOP
SURFACE OF GIRDER SHALL
BE TROWELED SMOOTH, TYP

CL GIRDER

SEE FABRICATION NOTE 4
ON "DECK PANELS
DETAILS" SHEET

1" MIN
TYP 1 1/2"

TYP2" MIN
TYP 1 1/2" CLR

TYP

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 CAMBER STRIP DETAILS 

3 EQUAL SPACES AT 9'-0", TOTAL = 27'-0" VARIESVARIES

1/2" = 1'-0'

  TYPICAL SECTION  

36'-0"

16'-0"2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD =      BRIDGE

PG
CL GIRDER, TYP

SLOPE VARIES

CALIFORNIA ST-75
BRIDGE RAIL, TYP2 

1/
2"

 C
LR

6"
TYP

3/4" DRIP
GROOVE, TYP

4'
-0

", 
AT

   
  B

R
G8 
1/

2"

SEE NOTE 2

#5 @ 6   e  ,
SEE NOTE 1

DECK PANEL, TYP

TUBULAR BICYCLE
RAILING, TYP

#5 @ 10   e , TYP

VARIES

CL

#5 x 9'-0" @ 6

C L

1" = 1'-0'

 TYPICAL GIRDER SECTION 

R = 2 1/2", TYP

4'-0"

6 
1/

8"
6 

3/
8"

3'-9"

3'
-0

"

3"

1 
3/

4"

R = 2 1/2", TYP

R = 10", TYP

R = 10", TYP

1'-8 3/4"1'-8 3/4"

1'-7 1/4"1'-7 1/4"

1" CLR, TYP
#4, TOT 6, CONTINUOUS

#4, TOT 4, CONTINUOUS

#4, @ 12

#3*                       , SEE NOTE 5

#5         STIRRUP

CL GIRDER

#5 CONT, TOT 8 PER
GIRDER   e , TYP

#5 @ 10   e , TYP

#5                @ 6   e

#5 TOT 10   e , TYP

8"

CL GIRDER
#5 CONT, TOT 4   e

CALIFORNIA ST-75
BRIDGE RAIL

1'-0"1'-0"

VA
R

VA
R

#5                                       @ 12   e 

1" = 1'-0'

 PARTIAL SECTION 

6 1/2"

3/4" CHAMFER, TYP

#4, TOT 2, CONTINUOUS

1. PLACE REINF PARALLEL TO CENTER LINE ABUTMENT.

2. PLACE REINF PARALLEL TO CENTER LINE NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD.

3. FOR STIRRUP SPACING, SEE "GIRDER DETAILS" SHEET.

4. FOR DECK PANEL DETAILS NOT SHOWN, SEE "DECK PANEL DETAILS"
SHEET.

5. SPACING TO MATCH STIRRUPS, SEE GIRDER ELEVATION ON "GIRDER
DETAILS" SHEET.

NOTES:

7"

#4*             e 

1'
-6

"

* MATCH STIRRUP SPACING.

1"
 C

LR DECK PANEL, TYP

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

SEE NOTE 5

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
2p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 TYPICAL SECTION

22

22

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
R



ABUTMENT BACK WALL, TYP

1/4" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER LAYOUT 

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

CL GIRDER A

CL GIRDER B

CL GIRDER C

CL GIRDER D

AB
U

TM
EN

T 
1

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E

C L

AB
U

TM
EN

T 
2

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E

C L

A

B

C

D

N 19°15'31" W

14+00

13+50

IN
TE

R
M

ED
IA

TE
 D

IA
PH

R
AG

M

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E
, S

TA
 1

4+
00

.5
0

C L

EDGE OF DECK, TYP

14+50PT

R = 700'

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

END DIAPHRAGM TYP

INTERMEDIATE DIAPHRAGM

PT

PT

R = 682'-0"

R = 718'-0"

STA 13+75.00, LT 16.08FT,
DECK DRAIN, TYPE B STA 14+15.00, LT 16.08FT,

DECK DRAIN, TYPE B7-3
B7-5

7-3
B7-5

DECK PANEL, TYP2'
-7

1 4"

2'
-7

7 8"

4'
-3

7 8"

3'
-5

7 8"

1'
-4

7 8"

1'
-9

3 8"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
3p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 GIRDER LAYOUT

23

23

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
R



GIRDER LENGTH, L

HORIZONTAL 1/4" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER ELEVATION 

VERTICAL 1" = 1'-0'

3'
-0

"

CL

CENTER OF SPAN1'-2 1/2" 1'-2 5/8"

6" TY
P

"X
"

TY
P

24'-0", TYP

#9                 AT ENDS, TYP

4'-0"

2'
-8

"

G

G

P/S HOLD DOWN LOCATION, TYP

H

HBEARING
CENTER AT
ABUTMENT 1

BEARING
CENTER AT
ABUTMENT 2

    HARPED
STRANDS
CL

    OTHER  THAN
HARPED STRANDS
CL

1'
-0

"

1'
-3

", 
TY

P

1 1/2" DIA HOLE, TYP

CONSTRUCTION JOINT BETWEEN
GIRDER AND DECK SLAB, MINIMUM 1/4"
AMPLITUDE COARSE BROOM FINISH.

"Y
"

#6      STIRRUPS @ 3

3'-0"

@ 6 @ 12 @ 6#5      STIRRUPS

#6      STIRRUPS@ 3

3'-0"

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION H-H 

8 x 2" = 1'-4"

2 
1/

2"

3 
x 

2"
 =

 6
"

1"

CL GIRDER

GIRDER A

GIRDER B

GIRDER C

GIRDER D

LOCATION

82'-7 1/4"

LENGTH

40

STRANDS

NO. OF
0.6" DIA.

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION G-G 

8 x 2" = 1'-4"

3 1/2"

2 
1/

2"

3"
3 

x 
2"

 =
 6

"

1"
1"

CL GIRDER

1758

(KIPS)

JACK
FORCE

2" 2 1/2"

1.57

DECK

MIDSPAN DEFLECTION (IN)

0.05

BARRIER

0.13

WEARING

0.13

0.13

0.13

GIRDER SCHEDULE

1. THE JACKING FORCE, PJACK, IS THE JACKING FORCE REQUIRED AT THE POINT
OF CONTROL ALONG THE SPAN. THE JACKING FORCE DOES NOT INCLUDE
ANY FABRICATION SPECIFIC LOSSES.

2. THE MAXIMUM TEMPORARY TENSILE STRESS (JACKING STRESS) IN THE
PRESTRESSING STEEL SHALL NOT EXCEED 75% OF THE SPECIFIED MINIMUM
ULTIMATE TENSILE STRENGTH OF THE PRESTRESSING STEEL.

3. GIRDER CONCRETE STRENGTH:
f 'ci = 7 KSI        f 'c = 8 KSI

f 'ci IS AT TIME OF INITIAL STRESSING; f 'c IS AT 28 DAYS

4. PRESTRESSING STRAND SHALL BE 270 KSI LOW RELAXATION.

5. FOR THE PRESTRESSING THERE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF TWO HOLD DOWN
PER GIRDER.

6. STRANDS SHALL BE PLACED AS LOW AS POSSIBLE IN THE STRAND TEMPLATE
AND SYMMETRICAL ABOUT THE CENTER LINE OF GIRDER.

7. STRAND LOCATIONS MAY BE ADJUSTED AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

* GIRDER LENGTH IS PLAN LENGTH AND DOES NOT INCLUDE GRADE EFFECTS.

GIRDER

(L)*

4

ROW NO.

-

STRAIGHT

2

STRANDS

NO. OF
HARPED

8 1/2"

"X"

STRAND SCHEDULE
NO. OF

STRANDS

2'-9"

"Y"

3 - 2 6 1/2" 2'-7"

2 14 2 4 1/2" 2'-5"

1 18 2 2 1/2" 2'-3"

#4         TOT 4 VERTICAL,
SPACE WITH STIRRUPS,
ALONG #6             WITHIN
4'-0" FROM ENDS, TYP

#6               TOT 8
VERTICAL, EQUALLY
SPACED, TYP

12'-0"

#9                 AT EACH END

4'-0"

2'
-8

"

PRESTRESSING NOTES:

ROW NO. 1
ROW NO. 2

ROW NO. 3
ROW NO. 4

#4 TOT 2, CONT, TYP

82'-7 1/4"

82'-7 1/4"

82'-7 1/4"

0.05

0.05

0.05

1758

1758

1758

40

40

40

1.57

1.57

1.57

10
"

1/2" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER DETAIL AT ABUTMENT 

ABUT BRGCL

GIRDERCL

BACK WALL

BEARING PAD

1/2" = 1'-0'

 TRANSVERSE REINFORCING SKEWED ENDS 

ABUT BRGCL

GIRDERCL

BACK WALL

6'-0", MATCH STIRRUPS SPACING

3'-0"
MATCH SKEW

SEE GIRDER ELEVATION

ONLY TRANSVERSE REINFORCEMENTS
SHOWN, STIRRUP AND BOTTOM
FLANGE REINFORCEMENTS SIMILAR,
LENGTH OF BARS TOP AND BOTTOM
VARY WITH SKEW.

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
3p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 GIRDER DETAILS

24

24

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION J-J 

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED WIRE MESH

DETAIL 5

#3
3/8"Ø STRANDS

DETAIL 4
9"

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
, 5

'-6
" M

IN
, 7

'-0
" M

AX

6"
 M

IN

#3 TOT 5, EQUAL SPACES

3/8"Ø
PRESTRESS
STRANDS

PANEL WIDTH = 4'-0" MIN, 12'-0" MAX

TY
P

TY
P

CL GIRDER

CL GIRDER

3/8"Ø STRANDS @ 62 1/2" MIN
4" MAX, TYP

9"

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
, 5

'-6
" M

IN
, 7

'-0
" M

AX

6"
 M

IN

3/8"Ø
PRESTRESS
STRANDS

PANEL WIDTH = 4'-0" MIN, 8'-0" MAX

TY
P

CL GIRDER

CL GIRDER

3/8"Ø STRANDS @ 62 1/2" MIN
4" MAX, TYP

#3 TOT 5, EQUAL SPACES

1'-0"

BROOM FINISH, (MIN
1/8" AMPLITUDE)

BROOM FINISH, (MIN
1/8" AMPLITUDE)

SKEWED

ANGLE

1" = 1'-0'

 SKEWED END PANEL 
1" = 1'-0'

 PLAN - TYPICAL PANEL 

JJ

#3

#3 x 2'-6",
TOT 5

1. PANELS: DESIGN SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AASHTO LRFD SPECIFICATIONS
WITH CALTRANS AMENDMENTS AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
CONSTRUCTION LOADS.

2. CONCRETE STRENGTH: PRECAST PRETENSIONED PANELS:
f'c = 5,000 PSI AT 28 DAYS; f'ci = 4,000 PSI AT RELEASE. PRELIMINARY CONCRETE
DECK POUR MATERIAL SHALL USE AN APPROVED MIX DESIGN TO ENSURE
ADEQUATE STRENGTH AND FLOWABILITY FOR DECK PANEL SUPPORT.

3. PRESTRESSING STEEL: ALL STRANDS SHALL BE 3/8" Ø, GRADE 270, SEVEN WIRE
LOW RELAXATION STRANDS CONFORMING TO ASTM A416.  JACKING FORCE = 0.75 x
270 KSI x 0.085 IN2 = 17.2 KIPS/STRAND. WORKING FORCE (AFTER LOSSES) = 15.6
KIPS/STRAND.

4. CAMBER STRIPS: MATERIAL FOR CAMBER STRIPS (SERVING AS PANEL SUPPORT
AND DAMS) SHALL BE CONTINUOUS, HIGH-DENSITY, EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE
STRIPS WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 55 PSI. STRIPS SHALL
CONSIST OF ONE LAYER WITH 1" WIDTH AND HEIGHT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
DIMENSIONS, 1" MINIMUM AND 2" MAXIMUM.

5. WELDED WIRE REINFORCEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A497, GRADE 70.

DESIGN NOTES:

1. PLACE POLYSTYRENE CAMBER STRIPS (PANEL SUPPORT AND DAMS) WITH
ADHESIVE ALONG TOP OF GIRDERS AFTER PLACEMENT OF GIRDERS.

2. PLACE DECK PANELS ON CAMBER STRIPS.

3. PLACE SUPPLEMENTARY U-BARS AND ASSOCIATED REBAR (WHERE REQUIRED).

4. PLACE AND VIBRATE HAUNCH AND DECK CONCRETE IN A CONTINUOUS POUR
ENSURING THAT HAUNCH CONCRETE IS PLACED A MINIMUM OF THREE PANEL
LENGTHS AHEAD OF THE LEADING EDGE OF THE DECK CONCRETE.

DECK PANEL SEQUENCE:

1. PANELS: CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO AVOID APPLYING EXCESSIVE PRETENSIONING
FORCE DURING FABRICATION. A PANEL LAYOUT WHICH IDENTIFIES THE LOCATION
OF EACH PANEL SHALL BE DEVELOPED BY THE FABRICATOR AND SUBMITTED TO
THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL. PANELS SHALL BE PERMANENTLY MARKED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PANEL LAYOUT. PANEL LENGTH SHALL BE SET TO PROVIDE A
BEARING WIDTH OF 2" MINIMUM FOR THE BEDDING MATERIAL. PRESTRESSING
STRANDS SHALL EXTEND 6" MINIMUM OUTSIDE THE PANEL ENDS AND SHALL BE
LOCATED AT THE PANEL CENTROID AT THE REQUIRED SPACING. A MINIMUM OF
90% OF THE PANEL TOP SURFACE AREA SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED TO AN
AMPLITUDE OF 1/8" MINIMUM. FINISH SHALL BE PARALLEL WITH STRAND. PANEL
EDGES PARALLEL TO STRAND SHALL BE BEVELED.

2. CAMBER STRIP: POLYSTYRENE CAMBER STRIPS SHALL
HAVE �1/2" x 1/2�" SLOTS. CAMBER STRIPS SHALL BE CUT AND PLACED TO MATCH

THE REQUIRED PROFILE ALONG THE GIRDERS AND SHALL VARY IN HEIGHT
ACROSS THE GIRDER TO ACCOUNT FOR ROADWAY CROSS SLOPE.

FABRICATION NOTES:

1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STABILITY OF THE CAMBER STRIP
DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

2. THE ATTACHMENT OF THE CAMBER STRIP PER THE DETAILS SHOWN MAY BE
OMITTED PROVIDED THE APPROVED ADHESIVE ATTACHMENT IS STABLE DURING
THE PLACEMENT OF THE DECK POUR.

NOTES:

3 
1/

2"

1"
1"

1/
2"

1/
2"

1/
2"

5/8"

1 1/8"

1 1/4"3/4"

1"

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED
WIRE MESH

1 
3/

4"

#3

3/4"

6" = 1'-0"

 DETAIL 4 

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED
WIRE MESH

#3

6" = 1'-0"

 DETAIL 5 

3 
1/

2"

#3 x 2'-6"

3/4" MIN, 1 1/2" MAX, CLR

END OF WIRE MESH

3/8"Ø STRANDS

TOP OF DECK

3" = 1'-0"

 SECTION AT LONGITUDINAL DECK PANEL JOINT 

TOP OF GIRDER

DECK REINF, TYP

H
AU

N
C

H

PC/PS DECK PANEL

VA
R

IE
S

JOINT SEALED
W/ BACKER ROD

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 DECK PANEL DETAILS

25

25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 DETAIL 4 

#8 x 4'-0" DOWEL
FULLY BONDED

OVERSIZED HOLE, FILL
WITH WITH NON-SHRINK
GROUT OR EPOXY

OUTSIDE FACE
OF GIRDER, TYP

NO SCALE

 INSERT ASSEMBLY 

3"

1" MIN
TYP

1"
CLR

1"Ø x 1'-3" BOLT

1"Ø MALLEABLE IRON
OR STEEL HEX NUT

FACE OF GIRDER, TYP

1/2" = 1'-0'

 END DIAPHRAGM 

K

K
#5                      , TOT 4, EQ SPA, TYP

#8 DOWELS TOT 2, 8'-0" LENGTH, TYP

3'-0"

3'-0"

1'
-6

"

#5                        , TOT 4, EQ SPA1'
-6

"
3'-0"

3'-0" #4                   TOT 2, TYP

SHEAR KEY

CONST JT

2'-6"

CL ABUT BRG

2'-2"

VA
R

IE
S

#8 DOWELS

EXTENT SLAB
LONGITUDINAL REINF
INTO DIAPHRAGM, TYP

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION K-K 

1"
, C

LR

TY
P

#8 DOWELS TOT 2, 6'-0" LENGTH, TYP

#4                   TOT 3

2'-2"

VA
R

IE
S

#5 @ 6                                      e
10'-0"

1'
-0

"

2'-2"

3'
-8

"

#5                   TOT 5 PER BAY   e , EQ SPA, TYP
#5 CONT, TOT 5   e 

DETAIL 4

#5                 , TOT 4, EQ SPA

1'
-6

"

1'-2"

1'-3"

1/2" = 1'-0'

INTERMEDIATE DIAPHRAGM 

L

L

1'
-0

"

#5                        , TOT 21'
-4

"

3'-0"

3'-0"

2"
, C

LR
TY

P

#5                 TOT 5 PER BAY   e , EQ SPA, TYP

#4                   TOT 2, TYP

8"

VA
R

IE
S

#8 TOT 2, 8'-0" LENGTH, TYP

#5                      , TOT 2, TYP
3'-0"

3'-0"

1'
-4

"

TY
P

SLAB REINF, TYP
CL DIAPHRAGM

1'-0"

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION L-L 

#5 TOT 5

#5 TOT 4

#5 

DECK PANEL, TYP

CAMBER STRIP

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

#4, TOT 6

TOP OF INTERMEDIATE
DIAPHRAGM, TYP

1"Ø BOLT WITH INSERT
ASSEMBLY, TYP

1"

#8 DOWELS, PLACED
PARALLEL TO DIAPHRAGM

DECK PANEL, TYP

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 DIAPHRAGM DETAILS

26

26

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
R



2'-0"

3'
-0

"

3/4" = 1'-0"

 ELEVATION 
(APPROACH)

 END BLOCK 

10'-0", TYP

N

N

L

L

2'-0"

6'-0"

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL

R = 2'-0", TYP HSS 3 x 2 x 3/16

CL POST CL POST CL POST

CL POST

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1'-4"

TRANSITION
TYP

BEGIN CURB
TRANSITION TO
VERTICAL, TYP

3
8"

 M
AX

2'
-8

"

FORMED HOLES FOR
THRIE BEAM, TYP

CONCRETE BARRIER END BLOCK

1"
TYP

4
1

A77U1

-

A77U4

-

ALL REINFORCING
SHOWN FOR CLARITY

5" TO BC, TYP M

M

LEGEND
e - INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINF.

#5         @ 6  e

#5                 @ 8  e  , TYP

#5 @ 6  e

(SEE NOTE 5)

END WINGWALL, TYP

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION L-L 
1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION N-N 

2'-0"

1'-0"

#5         @ 6  e

#5                 @ 8  e  , TYP

3'
-0

"

#5 @ 6  e
CONST JT

3
4" Ø STUD WITH NUTS

AND 2" OD WASHERS,
SNUG TIGHT AND THREAD
LOCKING SYSTEM, TYP

6"
10

"
10

"
10

"
6"

3'
-6

"

2'-0"

TUBULAR BICYCLE RAILING
HSS 3 x 2 x 316

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1"

SHIMS AS NEEDED

LEVEL 31
2"

R = 1/2"

ANCHOR BARS. SEE NOTE 4

#5                  @ 6  e

#5 CONT  e , TOT 4

1"Ø x 1'-3" ANCHOR BOLTS WITH
2 NUTS AND 2 WASHERS, SNUG
TIGHT WITH THREAD LOCKING
SYSTEM, TOT 4

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION M-M 

3
4" Ø STUD WITH NUTS

AND 2" OD WASHERS,
SNUG TIGHT AND THREAD
LOCKING SYSTEM, TYP

6"
10

"
10

"
10

"
6"

3'
-6

"

2'-0"

TUBULAR BICYCLE RAILING
HSS 3 x 2 x 316

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1"

SHIMS AS NEEDED

LEVEL 31
2"

R = 1/2"#5 CONT  e , TOT 4

1"Ø x 1'-9" ANCHOR BOLTS WITH
2 NUTS AND 2 WASHERS, SNUG
TIGHT WITH THREAD LOCKING
SYSTEM, TOT 4

ANCHOR BARS.

#5                  @ 8  e

SEE NOTE 4

1/2" = 1'-0'

 PLAN VIEW - END BLOCK 

5"

7" CHAMFER

CONCRETE BARRIER
END BLOCK

CONCRETE CURB

TRAFFIC SIDE

3" = 1'-0'

 RAIL SECTION AT POST 

INDICATES STUD WELD

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

3/4" Ø x 2 1/2" STUD

57
8"

15
16"15

16"

11
4"

21
2"

3" = 1'-0'

 SHIM DETAILS 

SHIMS AS NEEDED BETWEEN
POSTS AND HSS RAIL TUBES.

3
16 MIN THICKNESS

NOTES
1. ALL HORIZONTAL MEMBERS ARE PARALLEL TO

LONGITUDINAL PROFILE GRADE.
2. POSTS ARE NORMAL TO PROFILE GRADE OF

STRUCTURE.
3. POSTS ARE VERTICAL TO THE TRANSVERSE

CROSS SECTION.
4. FOR ANCHOR BAR DETAILS, SEE "ST-75 BRIDGE

RAIL DETAILS NO. 3" SHEET.
5. PLACE EXPANSION SPLICE AT THE BAY NEXT

TO BRIDGE DECK JOINT.

4"

NOTE:

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
5p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 1

27

27

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
R



3" = 1'-0'

 BASE PLATE 

3" = 1'-0'

 POST DETAIL 

L

1/2

10
"

21
8"

10
"

21
8"

73
8"

5
8"

SLOTTED HOLES
1 116" x 1 916", TYP

BAR 4 14  x 3 4 x 8"

BAR 4 14  x 3 4 x 8"

O

O

3" = 1'-0'

 SECTION O-O 

51
4"

41
4"

53
4"

41
4"

55
8"

4"

4"

23
8" 23

8"31
4"

8"

6" 3"

11
2"

3"
1'

-2
1 2"

P  3 4 x 12 x 2'-5 3 8"

TYP

TYP
SEAL WELD

HSS 2 x 2 x 3/16 RAIL TUBE

BAR 3 x 3/8 x 8"

2"
6"

6"
2"

1"

4"
4"

4"
4"

1'
-4

"

5" 1'-2" 5"

2'-0" CURB AT BASE

FACE OF CURB

7" 10" 7"

NOTES
1. ANCHOR BOLTS MAY BE TACK WELDED (SHOP OR FIELD)

TO ANCHORAGE.
2. EACH RAIL LENGTH MUST BE CONTINUOUS OVER A

MINIMUM OF TWO POSTS.
3. THE FABRICATOR MUST CHECK THAT THE TUBULAR

SLEEVE SPLICES CONFORM TO THE DIMENSIONS
INDICATED TO ASSURE PROPER CLEARANCE.

4. EXCEPT FOR EXPANSION SPLICES, NOT MORE THAN
ONE SPLICE PERMITTED PER SAME SIDE OF POST.

1"
LP  5 8 x 1'-2" x 1'-4"

CL POST

LP  5 8 LP  5 8

BAR 3 x 3/8 x 8"

2" 2"

1'-0"

1 14" HOLES

21
4"

6" = 1'-0"

 RAIL CONNECTION DETAILS 

8"

 ELEVATION 

P

P

1
2 Ø x 3 12" CARRIAGE BOLT

WITH NUT, WASHER, AND
THREAD LOCKING SYSTEM

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

HSS 2 x 2 x 316

BAR 3 x 3 8 x 8"

QQ

 SECTION P-P  SECTION Q-Q 

6"

1"
4"

1"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

HSS 2 x 2 x 316

BAR 3 x 3 8 x 8"

HSS 3 x 2 x 3/16

5
8" Ø HOLES

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

11
4" 11

4"

21
2"

LP  3 4 x 12 x 2'-5 3 8"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
5p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 2

28

28

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 STANDARD SPLICE 

1'-8" 1" MIN

6"6"

31
2"31

2"

1'-8"

1" MIN

31
2"31

2"

6"6"

1'-8" 3" MIN

6"

31
2"

1'-8"3" MIN

6"

31
2"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 EXPANSION SPLICE 

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 STANDARD SLEEVE DETAILS 

3 
1/

2"
3 

1/
2"

4" 6" 8" 4"6"

2'-4"

(FOR HSS 3 x 2 x 316 RAIL)

1 
1/

4"
1 

1/
4"

4" 6" 8" 4"6"

2'-4"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 EXPANSION SLEEVE DETAILS 

3 
1/

2"
3 

1/
2"

4" 6"

2'-6"

1 
1/

4"
1 

1/
4"

4" 6"

2'-6"

1'-2"

6"
6"

CL POST

10" 2'-0"2"

5 EQ SPACES AT 4" 2"

NOTCH, R = 12" TYP

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 3'-0"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-4"

1'
-4

"

2"
2"

1 14 Ø HOLE,
TYP

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 ANCHOR BAR DETAILS 

(AT DECK)

6"
6"

10"2"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-4"

1'
-4

"

2"
2"

1 14 Ø HOLE,
TYP

2"

CL POST

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-2"

(AT WINGWALL OR RETURN WALL)

NOTES
1. HS BOLTS WITH NUT AND WASHERS, SNUG

TIGHTENED, AND THREAD LOCKING SYSTEM.
2. USE  12  Ø x 3 516 (HSS 3 x 2 x 316)

USE 3 4  Ø x 5 516 (HSS 8 x 4 x 516)

11
16" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

HSS 2 12 x 1 12 x 316

1" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

11
16" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

1" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

HSS 7 x 3 x 14

( FOR HSS 8 x 4 x 516 RAIL)

(FOR HSS 3 x 2 x 316 RAIL)

HSS 2 12 x 1 12 x 316

HSS 7 x 3 x 14

( FOR HSS 8 x 4 x 516 RAIL)

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 8/31/2020PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  A
ug

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
6p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 8/31/2020

8/31/2020
8/31/2020 ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 3

29

29

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
R



27 30CoRd

8/31/2020



CoRd 28 30

8/31/2020



CoRd 29 30

8/31/2020



CoRd 30 30

8/31/2020



EXHIBIT C 

INFORMATION 
HANDOUT

FOR 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
OVER PINE CREEK PROJECT 

BISHOP, CA 



 

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 
OVER PINE CREEK 

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 

Inyo County, California 
 
 

Information Handout 
 
 
 

August 2020 
 
 
 
 

Prepared For: 
 

County of Inyo 
Department of Public Works 

P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

 
 

Prepared By: 

 
7415 Greenhaven Drive, Suite 100 

Sacramento, CA 95831 
 

  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section 1 - CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program dated January 2020 
Section 2 - Foundation Report (Final Submittal) North Round Valley Road 
Bridge, Round Valley, California Dated August 10, 2020 
Section 3 - As-Built Plans 
Section 4 - Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036, Granting Clean Water Act 
Section 401 Water Quality Certification, North Round Valley Road Bridge 
Replacement Project, Inyo County 
Section 5 - Streambed Alteration Agreement. Notification No. 1600-2020-
0055-R6 
Section 6 - U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permits 14 & 33 
Section 7 – North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge 
Replacement Project Hydrology and Hydraulics Report Dated September 
4, 2020 
 
  



Section 1 

CEQA – Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program dated January 2020 

 

 

  



 

 

 

North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek 
Bridge Replacement Project (Bridge No. 48C0044)  
 
CEQA - Initial Study/MND and Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program 

Prepared for: 

Inyo County Public Works 
Department  

January 2020 

Prepared by:  

Consulting 

Engineers and 

Scientists 



 

North Round Valley Road Bridge 
over Pine Creek Bridge 
Replacement Project  
(Bridge No. 48C0044)  

 
Initial Study/Proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and 
Mitigation Monitoring and 
Reporting Program 

Prepared for: 
CEQA Lead Agency:  
Inyo County Public Works Department 
168 N. Edwards  
P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

Contact:  
Ashley Helms  
Associate Engineer 
(760) 878.0200 

Prepared by: 
GEI Consultants, Inc. 
2868 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 400 
Sacramento, CA 95670 

Contact: 
Ray Weiss 
Project Manager  
(916) 361-4500 

January 2020 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration i Table of Contents 

Table of Contents 

Abbreviations and Acronyms ................................................................................................................................. iii 

Chapter 1. Mitigated Negative Declaration ................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Purpose of the Initial Study.............................................................................................. 1-1 
1.3 Project Information .......................................................................................................... 1-2 
1.4 Environmental Determination .......................................................................................... 1-3 

Chapter 2. Project Description ..................................................................................................................... 2-5 
2.1 Project Location and Site................................................................................................. 2-5 
2.2 Project Background ......................................................................................................... 2-5 
2.3 Existing Bridge and Roadway ......................................................................................... 2-8 
2.4 Purpose and Need ........................................................................................................... 2-8 
2.5 Environmental Setting ..................................................................................................... 2-8 
2.6 Proposed Project ............................................................................................................. 2-9 
2.7 Regulatory Requirements, Permits, and Approvals ...................................................... 2-11 

Chapter 3. Initial Study Checklist ................................................................................................................ 3-1 
3.1 Introduction ...................................................................................................................... 3-1 
3.2 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts .............................................................................. 3-1 
3.3 Aesthetics ........................................................................................................................ 3-3 
3.4 Agriculture and Forestry Resources ................................................................................ 3-5 
3.5 Air Quality ........................................................................................................................ 3-7 
3.6 Biological Resources ....................................................................................................... 3-9 
3.7 Cultural Resources ........................................................................................................ 3-18 
3.8 Energy ........................................................................................................................... 3-20 
3.9 Geology and Soils ......................................................................................................... 3-21 
3.10 Greenhouse Gas Emissions .......................................................................................... 3-24 
3.11 Hazards and Hazardous Materials ................................................................................ 3-26 
3.12 Hydrology and Water Quality ........................................................................................ 3-29 
3.13 Land Use and Planning ................................................................................................. 3-32 
3.14 Mineral Resources ......................................................................................................... 3-33 
3.15 Noise .............................................................................................................................. 3-34 
3.16 Population and Housing ................................................................................................ 3-36 
3.17 Public Services .............................................................................................................. 3-37 
3.18 Recreation ..................................................................................................................... 3-38 
3.19 Transportation ............................................................................................................... 3-39 
3.20 Tribal Cultural Resources .............................................................................................. 3-40 
3.21 Utilities and Service Systems ........................................................................................ 3-46 
3.22 Wildfire ........................................................................................................................... 3-48 
3.23 Mandatory Findings of Significance .............................................................................. 3-50 
 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration ii Table of Contents 

Tables 
Table 2-1. Proposed Construction Work Order and Schedule .................................................................... 2-10 
Table 3-1. Summary Inyo County AB 52 Consultation ................................................................................ 3-41 
 

Figures 
Figure 2-1. Regional Location Map ................................................................................................................. 2-6 
Figure 2-2. Project Location Map .................................................................................................................... 2-7 
Figure 2-3. Cross Section and Design Details for the Proposed Project ...................................................... 2-13 
Figure 2-4. Proposed Project Site Plan (and Area of Potential Effect) ......................................................... 2-14 
 

Appendices  
Appendix A. Biological Survey Letter 
Appendix B.      Comment Letters  
Appendix C.      Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration iii Abbreviations and Acronyms 

Abbreviations and Acronyms 

AASHTO American Association of State Highway and Transportation 
Officials 

ADT Average Daily Traffic  
APE Area of Potential Effect  
BMPs Best Management Practices 
CalOES California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services  
CARB California Air Resources Board  
CCR California Code of Regulations  
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife  
CEQA California Environmental Quality Act  
CH4 Methane 
CNDDB California Natural Diversity Database 
CNPS California Native Plant Society 
County County of Inyo 
CO2 carbon dioxide  
CRHR California Register of Historical Resources  
CRS California Road System 
EIC Eastern Information Center  
EIR Environmental Impact Report   
GHGs Greenhouse gases  
IS/MND Initial Study/proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration  
IPAC Information, Planning, and Conservation System 
MLD Most Likely Descendant  
MPH Miles per Hour  
N2O nitrous dioxide 
NAHC Native American Heritage Commission  
NOX nitrogen oxides  
NPDES National Pollution Discharge Elimination System  
NRHP National Register of Historic Places  
OHWM Ordinary High Water Mark  
PM10 PM equal to or less than 10 micrometers in diameter  
PRC Public Resources Code  
ROG reactive organic gases  
RSP Rock Slope Protection  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration iv Abbreviations and Acronyms 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  
SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District  
SPCP Spill Prevention and Control Plan  
SWPPP Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan  
USACE U.S. Army Corps of Engineers  
USFWS U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service  
USGS U.S. Geologic Survey  
WPCP Water Pollution Control Plan  

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 1-1 Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Chapter 1. Mitigated Negative Declaration  

1.1 Introduction 
The Inyo County Public Works Department (County) has prepared this Initial Study/proposed Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
and the State CEQA Guidelines to address the potentially significant environmental impacts of the 
proposed North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek Bridge Replacement Project (proposed 
project) located within the Rovana, California, U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) 7.5 Minute topographic 
quadrangle map. The County is the lead agency under CEQA. 

To satisfy specific CEQA requirements for the proposed project, this document includes: 

▪ a proposed MND and the environmental determination (see Chapter 1),  
▪ location and description of the proposed project (see Chapter 2),  
▪ initial study checklist (see chapter 3).  

1.2 Purpose of the Initial Study  
This document is an IS/MND prepared in accordance with CEQA (California Public Resources Code, 
Section 21000 et seq.) and the State CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, Section 15000 et seq. of the California 
Code of Regulations [CCR]). The purpose of this IS is to (1) determine whether proposed project 
implementation would result in potentially significant or significant impacts on the physical 
environment; and (2) incorporate mitigation measures into the proposed project design, as necessary, to 
eliminate the proposed project’s potentially significant or significant project impacts or reduce them to a 
less-than-significant level. An MND is prepared if the IS identified potentially significant impacts, but: 
(1) revisions in the proposed project plans or proposals mitigate the impacts to a point where clearly no 
significant impacts would occur; and (2) there is no substantial evidence, considering the whole record 
before the agency, that the proposed project as revised may have a potentially significant or significant 
impact on the physical environment. 

An IS presents environmental analysis and substantial evidence in support of its conclusions regarding 
the significance of environmental impacts. Substantial evidence may include expert opinion based on 
facts, technical studies, or reasonable assumptions based on facts. An IS is neither intended nor required 
to include the level of detail provided in an environmental impact report (EIR). 

CEQA requires that all State and local government agencies consider the potentially significant and 
significant environmental impacts of projects they propose to carry out or over which they have 
discretionary authority, before implementing or approving those projects. The public agency that has the 
principal responsibility for carrying out or approving a proposed project is the lead agency for CEQA 
compliance (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15367). The County has principal responsibility for 
carrying out the proposed project and is therefore the CEQA lead agency for this IS/MND. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 1-2 Mitigated Negative Declaration 

If there is substantial evidence (such as the findings of an IS) that a proposed project, either individually 
or cumulatively, may have a significant or potentially significant impact on the physical environment, 
the lead agency must prepare an EIR (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15064[a]). If the IS 
concludes that impacts would be less than significant, or that mitigation measures committed to by the 
County would clearly reduce impacts to a less-than-significant level, a Negative Declaration or MND 
can be prepared. 

After the required public review of this document is complete, the County will consider all comments 
received on the IS/MND, the entirety of the administrative record for the project, and whether to adopt 
the proposed MND and a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program and approve the 
proposed project. 

1.3 Project Information    
1. Project title: North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek Bridge 

Replacement Project (Bridge No. 48C0044) 

2. Lead agency name and address: Inyo County Public Works Department 
168 N. Edwards  
P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 

3. Contact person and phone number: Ashley Helms, Associate Engineer, (760) 878.0200 

4. Project location: The proposed project site is in northwestern Inyo County, in 
Section 17 of the USGS 7.5-minute Rovana Quadrangle, 
Township 6 South, Range 31 East.  The project site is 
accessible from North Round Valley Road, via Pine Creek 
Road or Birchim Lane.  

5. Project sponsor's name and address: Inyo County Public Works Department  

6. General plan designation: Natural Resource  

7. Zoning: Unclassified  

8. Description of project:  
(Describe the whole action involved, including 
but not limited to later phases of the project, and 
any secondary, support, or off-site features 
necessary for its implementation. Attach 
additional sheets if necessary.) 

Inyo County Department of Public Works (County) proposes 
to replace the existing North Round Valley Road Bridge over 
Pine Creek (Bridge No. 48C0044), which was damaged from 
high-velocity flows in Pine Creek.  
The County proposes to replace the structure with a single-
span, precast/prestressed wide flange girder superstructure 
supported on high cantilever abutments founded on cast-in-
drilled-hole concrete piles, approximately 85 feet in length. 
The existing horizontal and vertical alignments of North 
Round Valley Road will be maintained. No falsework 
(temporary form-work used to support the concrete until it 
develops strength) within locations of the creek channel will 
be required 

9. Surrounding land uses and setting: Briefly 
describe the project's surroundings: 

The project setting is rural in nature and the project site is 
composed of sagebrush scrubland, developed areas 
(roadway), and a perennial stream (Pine Creek). No 
residential land uses are located within the immediate vicinity 
of the project site. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 1-3 Mitigated Negative Declaration 

10. Other public agencies whose approval is 
required (e.g., permits, financing approval, or 
participation agreement.) 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Central Valley 
Regional Water Quality Control Board, State Water 
Resources Control Board, and U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers. 

11. Have California Native American tribes 
traditionally and culturally affiliated with the 
project area requested consultation pursuant to 
Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 
21080.3.1? If so, is there a plan for consultation 
that includes, for example, the determination of 
significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, 
procedures regarding confidentiality, etc.?   
Note: Conducting consultation early in the CEQA 
process allows tribal governments, lead agencies, 
and project proponents to discuss the level of 
environmental review, identify and address 
potential adverse impacts to tribal cultural 
resources, and reduce the potential for delay and 
conflict in the environmental review process. (See 
PRC Section 21080.3.2.) Information may also be 
available from the California Native American 
Heritage Commission’s Sacred Lands File per 
PRC Section 5097.96 and the California Historical 
Resources Information System administered by 
the California Office of Historic Preservation. 
Please also note that PRC Section 21082.3(c) 
contains provisions specific to confidentiality. 

The County has sent letters requesting AB 52 consultation to 
fourteen (14) representatives of several federally recognized 
tribes and California tribes. No responses have been received 
to date.   

1.4 Environmental Determination  
1.4.1 Summary   
The County has prepared an IS to assess the potential effects of the proposed project on the environment 
in the project area. The analysis of potential environmental impacts from the proposed project is based 
on data gathered for this project and other projects within the project vicinity. Chapter 3 of this 
document contains the analysis and discussion of potential environmental impacts of the proposed 
project. Based on the issues evaluated in that chapter, it was determined that: 

The proposed project would result in no impacts on the following issue areas: 

▪ Agriculture and Forestry Resources  
▪ Energy 
▪ Land Use and Planning  
▪ Mineral Resources  
▪ Noise  
▪ Population and Housing  
▪ Recreation  
▪ Public Services/Utilities and Service Systems  
▪ Transportation  

The proposed project would result in less-than-significant impacts on the following issue areas: 

▪ Aesthetics 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 1-4 Mitigated Negative Declaration 

▪ Geology and Soils  
▪ Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

The proposed project would result in less-than-significant impacts after mitigation implementation on 
the following issue areas: 

▪ Air Quality 
▪ Biological Resources 
▪ Cultural Resources 
▪ Hazards/Hazardous Materials and Wildfire  
▪ Hydrology and Water Quality 
▪ Tribal Cultural Resources 

1.4.2 Determination (To be completed by the Lead Agency) 
On the basis of this initial evaluation: 

☐ I find that the proposed project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and 
a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

☒ I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project have been made 
by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will 
be prepared. 

☐ I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

☐ I find that the proposed project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially 
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1) has been 
adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has 
been addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached 
sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the 
effects that remain to be addressed. 

☐ I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment, 
because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or 
mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or 
mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required. 

   
Signature  Date 

Ashley Helms   Associate Engineer  
Print Name  Title 

Inyo County Public Works Department    
Agency   



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-5 Project Description 

Chapter 2. Project Description 

This chapter provides additional details on the proposed project, including the project location, 
background, project objectives, proposed construction activities, and a summary of discretionary actions 
and approvals that may be required to implement the project.  

2.1 Project Location and Site  
The project site is located in Inyo County and accessible from North Round Valley Road, via Pine Creek 
Road or Birchim Lane. The site is west of U.S. Route 395, which provides regional access (see Figures 
2-1 and 2-2). Bishop is the nearest incorporated city, located approximately 10 miles to the southeast. 
The project site encompasses 2.85 acres and is in Section 17 of the USGS 7.5-minute Rovana 
Quadrangle, Township 6 South, Range 31 East. Natural features include Pine Creek, which the proposed 
project crosses.  

2.2 Project Background 
The Pine Creek drainage basin delineated at Round Valley 
Road discharges approximately 37 square miles. The creek is 
primarily fed by snow melt and is also subject to high flows 
during high intensity precipitation events. On October 27, 
2017, a state of emergency was declared in Inyo and Mono 
Counties, as a result of severe winter storms and exceptional 
snowfall, leading to snowmelt that damaged critical 
infrastructure. These runoff conditions and high-velocity 
flows in Pine Creek also resulted in failure of the North 
Round Valley Road Bridge.  

On October 27, 2017, the Governor of the State of California signed a Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency for both Inyo and Mono Counties, due to these severe winter storms and the resultant 
damage to critical roadway and bridge infrastructure. In anticipation of this emergency proclamation, the 
Inyo County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution #2017-15 (dated March 28, 2017 and amended 
June 27, 2017) which also proclaimed the threatened existence of a local emergency resulting from the 
run-off potential of near-record snowpack in the Eastern 
Sierra. While the proposed project is consistent with the 
intent of this County resolution and meets the Statutory 
Exemption (Article 18) requirements consistent with CEQA 
Guidelines 15269 for Emergency Projects, the County has 
determined that preparation of this IS/MND is still necessary 
to disclose the environmental impacts of the proposed 
project, consistent with CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project will also comply with all other state, local or federal 
laws that may be applicable to the project (see “Required 
Regulatory Permits” below). 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-6 Project Description 

Figure 2-1. Regional Location Map 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-7 Project Description 

Figure 2-2. Project Location Map 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-8 Project Description 

2.3 Existing Bridge and Roadway  
The existing North Round Valley Road Bridge (Bridge Number 48C0044), built in 1987, is a single-
span, cast-in-place, reinforced concrete slab superstructure supported on cantilever abutments and 
spread footings. The bridge provides a clear hydraulic opening of approximately 21’-5”. The structure 
has a total length of 25’-6 3/4” and a clear roadway width of 32-feet between metal tube bridge railings.  

The bridge is currently closed due to high velocity flows that occurred in June and July of 2017 that 
eroded approximately 50-feet of the south approach roadway behind the abutment. In addition to the 
eroded south approach, both existing abutment foundations were undermined due to scour, as native soil 
at this location is highly erodible. Pine Creek now flows behind the south abutment where the approach 
roadway was washed out. To reduce the future risk of the embankments eroding from high velocity 
flows, the replacement bridge will need to be significantly longer than the existing bridge. In addition, 
rock slope protection (RSP) will be used to armor both abutment embankments. The replacement of the 
existing bridge is being funding through the State of California Governor’s Office of Emergency 
Services (CalOES). 

North Round Valley Road is a paved road and according to the California Road System (CRS) Maps, it 
is designated as a Minor Collector Road. Prior to the roadway closure, average daily traffic (ADT) was 
likely less than 500 vehicles.     

2.4 Purpose and Need  
Specific objectives of the proposed project are to replace the existing flood-damaged North Round 
Valley Road Bridge with a new structure that:   

▪ Accommodates safe vehicular travel and pedestrian access;  

▪ Provides a slightly longer structure to accommodate the widened creek conditions and to protect the 
replacement structure against future instability; and   

▪ Minimizes environmental impacts to local resources.   

2.5 Environmental Setting 
Topography on the project site slopes gently toward the east. Elevation at the project site is 
approximately 4,670 feet above mean sea level. Natural features include Pine Creek, which the proposed 
project crosses. Pine Creek headwaters are located high in the Sierra Nevada, east of Royce Peak and 
southwest of the project site. Pine Creek confluences with Pleasant Valley Reservoir, an impoundment 
of the Owens River, east of U.S. Route 395.  

2.5.1 Surrounding Land Uses  
Land uses surrounding the project site are comprised of open space uses (comprised primarily of 
sagebrush scrubland), developed areas (i.e., Round Valley Road and Bridge), and a perennial stream 
(Pine Creek). No residential land uses are located adjacent or near the project site. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-9 Project Description 

2.5.2 Land Use Designations and Zoning    
The project site is designated as Natural Resource and zoned as unclassified under the Inyo County 
General Plan. No lands in the study area are designated or zoned for Agriculture Preserve, Timber 
Lands, or are associated with an executed Williamson Act contract.    

2.6 Proposed Project 
2.6.1 Bridge Design  
The replacement structure will be a single-span, precast/prestressed wide flange girder superstructure on 
high cantilever abutments founded on cast-in-drilled-hole concrete piles, approximately 85 feet in length 
(see Figure 2-3). The existing horizontal and vertical alignments of North Round Valley Road will be 
maintained. Bridge barriers proposed consist of California Department of Transportation standard 
California ST-75 open bridge railing. No falsework (temporary form-work used to support the concrete 
until it develops strength) will be required within locations of the creek channel.   

2.6.2 Bridge Abutments  
Construction of the new bridge abutments will require two relatively deep excavations. Excavations may 
need to be stabilized with temporary shoring and will likely need to be de-watered for footing concrete 
placement. Abutment footing areas are estimated to be approximately 40 feet long by 12 feet wide by 3 
feet thick. 

2.6.3 Vertical Profile  
Water surface elevations are low enough that the existing profile grade of the bridge will not need to be 
raised. The California Department of Transportation’s Highway Design Manual requires the fifty-year 
(Q50) event to pass under the soffit with a minimum 2-feet of freeboard and pass the 100-year (Q100) 
event. The proposed bridge exceeds the freeboard requirements for both the 50-year and 100-year 
events.   

2.6.4 Roadway Approaches, Railing, and Bridge Width 
The existing approach roadway widths vary from approximately 22 to 24-feet. Approach roadways will 
be tapered down from the 32-foot clear bridge width to match existing roadway widths on each side of 
the bridge (see Figure 2-3). As the proposed project maintains the existing profile grades, the approach 
roadway work will be limited to reconstructing portions of both approach roadways (roughly 120 feet in 
each direction) from the bridge. All four corners of the bridge will require California Department of 
Transportation standard transition railings and terminal systems as the bridge clear width is less than 40-
feet. Road improvements will be designed to at least meet the American Association of State Highway 
and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)’s Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets 
(Greenbook) as well as AASHTO’s Guidelines for Geometric Design of Very Low-Volume Local 
Roads (ADT<400). 

2.6.5 Utilities  
Overhead telephone and power lines are located approximately 150 to 170-feet east of the existing 
roadway centerline, and thus will not interfere with the proposed construction, as they are located 
outside the project’s area of direct impact. No utilities are required to be carried on the proposed project.  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-10 Project Description 

2.6.6 Right of Way  
Existing information indicates that north of the bridge the right-of-way is 60-feet wide versus a 40-foot 
wide right-of-way south of the bridge. Some permanent right-of-way acquisition will be required on the 
east and west side of the bridge due to the placement of rock slope protection materials. Temporary 
construction easements will be needed to allow contractor access into the channel. 

2.6.7 Construction Approach, Staging Areas, and Traffic Diversion  
Overall, project construction activities are anticipated to occur during the summer and fall months when 
water levels are at their lowest levels. Table 2-1 (see below) identifies the anticipated timing and 
duration of the primary construction activities anticipated with this project. Construction staging areas 
will be located on the bridge approaches (see Figure 2-4). Traffic will continue to be detoured around 
the bridge site on North Round Valley Road during construction. Existing detour signs will be 
maintained for the duration of construction.  

It is anticipated that excavators, dozers, cranes, pavers, dump trucks, concrete trucks, and concrete 
pumps may be required to demolish and construct the proposed project. 

Table 2-1. Proposed Construction Work Order and Schedule 

Activity Approximate Duration Estimated Dates 

Clearing and grubbing 1 week May 

Install environmental fencing 1 week June 

Water diversion (if necessary) 1 week June 

Remove bridge 1 week June 

Construct bridge  

Mid to Late Summer 
Footing construction at abutments 2 weeks 

Abutment construction 4 weeks 

Place precast/prestressed CA wide flange girder superstructure 1 weeks 

Finish bridge deck and complete barriers 8 weeks  

Install erosion control/scour countermeasures 2 weeks Early Fall 

Reconstruct approaches 3 weeks Late Summer/Early Fall 

2.6.8 In Channel Work and Temporary Creek Diversion 
Implementation of the proposed project will not involve permanent modifications to the Pine Creek 
channel. However, bridge demolition and new bridge construction will require temporary access to the 
creek channel to remove the existing bridge pier/abutments, installation of new bridge abutments, and 
for the placement of new rock slope protection at the abutments. Creek access will be limited to 80 feet 
in each direction from the roadway centerline. Depending on creek flows, a temporary creek diversion 
system may be necessary during both demolition of the existing bridge and the construction of the new 
bridge. The water diversion system may include sump pumps to remove water from the abutment 
excavations and a temporary pipe or culvert (plastic or metal covered with gravel) network through the 
site (50 to 60 feet in length) to route flow through and around the immediate work area, maintain 
dewatered conditions, and return flow to the downstream channel network without causing harm to 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-11 Project Description 

biological resources or affecting water quality. Sand bags and plastic sheeting would be used to direct 
creek water to the culvert network. Impacted waters located in the work area would either be treated per 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP)/Water Pollution Control Plan (WPCP) requirements or 
disposed of per Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) requirements. 

2.6.9 Scour Counter Measures 
The geotechnical investigation prepared for the proposed project indicates that soils within the study 
area are highly susceptible to scour, with high channel velocities at the bridge crossing expected to result 
in bank and abutment scour in exceedance of 5 feet. Revetment (such as rock slope protection) will be 
installed around both sides of the bridge abutments (see Figure 2-3), extending approximately 30 feet 
upstream and 40 feet downstream of the edges of the bridge, to prevent loss of bank material.    

2.6.10 Erosion Control  
The contractor would be required to install temporary BMPs to control any runoff or erosion from the 
project site into the surrounding waterways. These temporary BMPs would be installed prior to any 
construction operations and would remain in place for the duration of the construction period. The 
removal of these BMPs would be the final operation, along with project site cleanup and restoration.   

2.7 Regulatory Requirements, Permits, and Approvals 
As the lead agency under CEQA, the County has the principal responsibility for approving and carrying 
out the proposed project and for ensuring that CEQA requirements and all other applicable regulations 
are met. Other agencies that may have permitting approval or review authority over portions of the 
proposed project are listed below:  

▪ California Department of Fish and Wildlife—Section 1602 streambed alteration agreement; 
California Endangered Species Act compliance 

▪ Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board—Clean Water Act Section 401 
Certification; and Clean Water Act Section 402 National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
storm water permit for general construction  

▪ U.S. Army Corps of Engineers—Department of the Army, Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit for 
discharge of fill to Waters of the U.S. 

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-12 Project Description 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-13 Project Description 

Figure 2-3. Cross Section and Design Details for the Proposed Project    

 
Source: Prepared by MGE Engineering, Inc., 2019   



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 2-14 Project Description 

Figure 2-4. Proposed Project Site Plan (and Area of Potential Effect)    

 
Source: Prepared by MGE Engineering, Inc., 2019   



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-1 Initial Study Checklist 

Chapter 3. Initial Study Checklist 

3.1 Introduction  
In compliance with the CEQA Guidelines, the County has prepared the following initial study checklist 
to analyze the environmental impacts of the proposed project. This checklist uses Appendix G of the 
CEQA Guidelines to provide a basis for the analysis of the resource areas addressed. An evaluation of 
potential impacts and mitigation measures to reduce potentially significant impacts is presented in the 
analysis.  

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, involving at 
least one impact that is a "Potentially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following 
pages. However, all impacts would be mitigated to a less than significant level as indicated on the 
following pages. 

☐ Aesthetics ☐ Agriculture and Forestry 
Resources 

☒ Air Quality 

☒ Biological Resources ☒ Cultural Resources ☐ Energy 
☐ Geology/Soils ☐ Greenhouse Gas Emissions ☒ Hazards and Hazardous 

Materials 
☒ Hydrology/Water Quality ☐ Land Use/Planning ☐ Mineral Resources 
☐ Noise ☐ Population/Housing ☐ Public Services 
☐ Recreation ☐ Transportation ☒ Tribal Cultural Resources 
☐ Utilities/Service Systems ☒ Wildfire ☐ Mandatory Findings of 

Significance 

3.2 Evaluation of Environmental Impacts 
1) A brief explanation is required for all answers except "No Impact" answers that are adequately 

supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the parentheses following each 
question. A "No Impact" answer is adequately supported if the referenced information sources 
show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., the project 
falls outside a fault rupture zone). A "No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based 
on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not expose sensitive 
receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

2) All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site, 
cumulative as well as project-level, indirect as well as direct, and construction as well as 
operational impacts. Operations and maintenance impacts of the proposed project are routine, 
minimal, and essentially the same as current operations and maintenance of the existing 
facilities. There is no potential for a significant impact to any resource category from project 
operations and maintenance of the existing and proposed facilities. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-2 Initial Study Checklist 

3) Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur, then the 
checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially significant, less than significant 
with mitigation, or less than significant. "Potentially Significant Impact" is appropriate if there is 
substantial evidence that an effect may be significant. If there are one or more "Potentially 
Significant Impact" entries when the determination is made, an EIR is required. “Beneficial 
impact” is also identified where appropriate to provide full disclosure of any benefits from 
implementing the proposed project. 

4) "Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated" applies where the incorporation of 
mitigation measures has reduced an effect from "Potentially Significant Impact" to a "Less-than-
Significant Impact." The lead agency must describe the mitigation measures, and briefly explain 
how they reduce the effect to a less-than-significant level (mitigation measures from "Earlier 
Analyses," as described in (5) below, may be cross-referenced). 

5) Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other CEQA 
process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or negative declaration (Section 
15063[c][3][D]). In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following: 

a) Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review. 

b) Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist were 
within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to 
applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were addressed by mitigation 
measures based on the earlier analysis. 

c) Mitigation Measures. For effects that are a "Less-than-Significant Impact with Mitigation 
Measures Incorporated," describe the mitigation measures which were incorporated or 
refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they address site-specific 
conditions for the project. 

6) Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to information sources 
for potential impacts (e.g., general plans, zoning ordinances). Reference to a previously prepared 
or outside document should, where appropriate, include a reference to the page or pages where 
the statement is substantiated. 

7) Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources used or 
individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion. 

8) This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats; however, lead 
agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist that are relevant to a project's 
environmental effects in whatever format is selected. 

9) The explanation of each issue should identify: 

a) the significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and 

b) the mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than significance. 

Significance thresholds are identified for certain resources, but others are not explicitly identified 
because there is clearly no impact or the checklist question itself serves as the significance threshold. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-3 Initial Study Checklist 

3.3 Aesthetics 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

I. AESTHETICS.  

Except as provided in PRC Section 21099, 
would the project: 

     

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a 
scenic vista? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
State scenic highway? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially 
degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of public views of the site and its 
surroundings? (Public views are those that 
are experienced from a publicly accessible 
vantage point.) If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict 
with applicable zoning and other regulations 
governing scenic quality? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

d) Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.3.1 Discussion 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

Implementation of the proposed project will require the removal of some vegetation along Pine 
Creek; however, replanting (using native vegetation) and erosion control measures (see Section 
3.6 “Biological Resources”) would be completed as part of the project to restore the 
construction site to pre-project conditions. While the project will result in short-term, 
construction-related visual impacts (i.e., dust, equipment, construction vehicles), no vertical 
features (such as cellular towers, storage tanks, or utility lines) or new sources of lighting are 
included with the project that would result in permanent negative effects to existing open space 
views in the study area. Therefore, the project will not result in a negative adverse impact to a 
scenic vista or the visual character of the site. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, 
with no additional mitigation measures required. 

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a State scenic highway? 

The project site is not located on or near a state designated scenic highway and will not result in 
damage to scenic resources within a state scenic highway. Consequently, no impact would occur. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-4 Initial Study Checklist 

c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or 
quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those 
that are experienced from publicly accessible vantage point.) If the project is in 
an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other 
regulations governing scenic quality? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day 
or nighttime views in the area? 

See checklist Item “a” above. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-5 Initial Study Checklist 

3.4 Agriculture and Forestry Resources 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

II. AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY 
RESOURCES. 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural 
resources are significant environmental effects, 
lead agencies may refer to the California 
Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site 
Assessment Model (1997, as updated) prepared 
by the California Department of Conservation as 
an optional model to use in assessing impacts 
on agriculture and farmland. In determining 
whether impacts to forest resources, including 
timberland, are significant environmental effects, 
lead agencies may refer to information compiled 
by the California Department of Forestry and 
Fire Protection regarding the State’s inventory of 
forest land, including the Forest and Range 
Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy 
Assessment project; and forest carbon 
measurement methodology provided in Forest 
Protocols adopted by the California Air 
Resources Board. Would the project: 

     

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, 
or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract?  

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in PRC 
Section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by 
PRC Section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by 
Government Code Section 51104(g))? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.4.1 Discussion 
a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance 

(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-6 Initial Study Checklist 

and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural 
use? 

The project site does not contain any Important Farmlands as identified by the California 
Department of Conservation’s Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, parcels with an 
active Williamson Act contract, or lands designated as Forest or Timberlands. Additionally, the 
project would replace an existing bridge, with construction activities concentrated within and 
directly adjacent to the existing roadway, thus remaining consistent with existing development 
and current zoning and land use designations. Therefore, the project will not result in the 
conversion of Important Farmland, Timberland/Forest resources or is expected to encourage the 
non-renewal or cancellation of Williamson Act contracted lands. Consequently, no impact would 
occur. 

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?  

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 
Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by PRC Section 
4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government 
Code Section 51104(g))? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

See checklist Item “a” above.   

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-7 Initial Study Checklist 

3.5 Air Quality 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

III. AIR QUALITY. 

Where available, the significance criteria 
established by the applicable air quality 
management district or air pollution control 
district may be relied on to make the following 
determinations. Would the project: 

     

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which 
the project region is non-attainment under 
an applicable Federal or State ambient air 
quality standard? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Result in other emissions (such as those 
leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

3.5.1 Discussion 
a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

This impact is determined based on whether the proposed project would conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable air quality plan and/or applicable portions of the State 
Implementation Plan, which would lead to increases in the frequency or severity of existing air 
quality violations. As a bridge replacement project (with the primary objective of maintaining 
public safety, the proposed project would not increase roadway capacity or service capabilities 
that would induce unplanned growth, remove an existing obstacle to growth, or lead to 
permanent increases in vehicle miles travelled by existing motorists. Therefore, the proposed 
project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan. 
Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, with no mitigation measures required. 

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for 
which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable Federal or State 
ambient air quality standard? 

The project site is in a region designated as nonattainment for ozone and particulate matter equal 
to or less than 10 micrometers in diameter (PM10) under state standards and nonattainment for 
PM10 under federal standards. While air quality estimates or modelling were not generated for 
this project, it is assumed that combustion-related emissions, some of which are precursors to 
ozone, would be well below South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) 
significance thresholds and would have minimal impact on ambient air quality at the project site 
or in the region, based on a review of similar bridge replacement projects in the County. 
However, the proposed project may generate construction-related diesel exhaust and dust that 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-8 Initial Study Checklist 

could impact air quality in the region. Fugitive dust would also be generated from use of vehicles 
and equipment as well as during earth-moving activities. Impacts to air quality from emissions 
generated during construction would be relatively short and limited to the 5/6-month 
construction period; however, the proposed project’s contribution of fugitive dust and ozone 
precursors to the region, which is in nonattainment may be potentially significant. 
Implementation of Mitigation Measure AIR-1 requires implementation of dust and engine 
emissions control measures, which would reduce the impact to less than significant. Therefore, 
the proposed project would have a less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

Mitigation Measure AIR-1: Dust and Engine Emissions Control Measures 
Inyo County shall ensure that the construction contractor will comply with District Rule 401 
regulations. In addition to reasonable precautions outlined in Rule 401, the following measures 
shall be incorporated during the demolition and installation of the bridge and realigned roadway 
approaches: 

1. Water or dust palliatives shall be applied on dirt roads, material stockpiles, and other 
surfaces that could give rise to airborne dust and are subject to disturbance. 

2. Water or dust palliatives shall be applied to prevent particulate matter from becoming 
airborne during the transportation or stockpiling of dusty materials. 

3. Trucks hauling material shall be covered during transit. 

4. Roadways shall be maintained in a clean condition. 

5. Vehicles shall be limited to 15 miles per hour (mph) on unpaved roads, to the extent 
feasible. 

6. Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or 
reducing the maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the California airborne 
toxics control measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). 

7. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with 
manufacturer ‘s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible 
emissions evaluator. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities 

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

No sensitive receptors are located near the project site or would be exposed to substantial 
pollutant concentrations. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

No objectionable odors would be generated from project construction activities or from use of 
the proposed bridge. Consequently, no impact would occur.  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-9 Initial Study Checklist 

3.6 Biological Resources 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES.  

Would the project: 

     

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on 
any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local 
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or 
by the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, or regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on State 
or Federally protected wetlands (including, 
but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, 
coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, 
hydrological interruption, or other means? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a 
tree preservation policy or ordinance? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or State habitat 
conservation plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.6.1 Discussion 
a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, 

on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special-status species in 
local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

A Biological Resources Technical Report (GEI, 2019a) and a Preliminary Delineation of Waters 
of the United States, Including Wetlands Report (GEI, 2019b) were prepared for the County to 
evaluate site conditions and potential impacts to sensitive habitats, biological, and botanical 
species from project activities. Other primary references consulted include species lists and 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-10 Initial Study Checklist 

information gathered using United States Fish and Wildlife Service’s (USFWS), Information, 
Planning, and Conservation System (IPAC), California Department of Fish and Wildlife’s 
(CDFW) Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB), the California Native Plant Society’s (CNPS) 
list of rare and endangered plants, and literature review. The conclusions of the reports are the 
result of field survey findings and research to determine the potential of special-status species to 
occur within the study area, and/or if these species could be impacted by project activities. The 
following information is summarized from the Biological Resources Technical Report and the 
report is included as Appendix A.  

Implementing the proposed project would not result in tree removal or permanent conversion of 
sagebrush habitat. Developed road shoulders and adjacent sagebrush scrubland are areas where 
equipment and materials may be temporarily staged. Impacts of the proposed project on 
biological resources could result from vegetation removal and grading during construction. In-
water work could result in temporary disturbance to aquatic biological resources. In general, 
terrestrial impacts are anticipated to be relatively minor, because project implementation would 
be restricted to the developed surfaces along North Round Valley Road and sagebrush scrub 
habitat located adjacent to the road.  

In-water construction would be restricted to periods of low-flow, most likely beginning in June. 
In-water construction activities include removing the existing failed bridge and constructing new 
abutments in the Pine Creek channel. Because Pine Creek is a perennial channel, dewatering is 
required to complete project construction.  

Special-status Species – Birds  
Four special-status bird species––golden eagle, bald eagle, Swainson’s hawk, and bank swallow–
–have low or moderate potential to occur on or adjacent to the project site (see Table 2, 
Biological Resources Technical Report, Appendix A). All of these species are known or likely 
to occur in the general region, but potential for most of them to occur onsite is likely limited to 
foraging and/or roosting. The project site and immediately adjacent areas provide limited 
potential nesting habitat for large raptors; only two large-diameter Cottonwood trees are present 
along the north bank of Pine Creek, and few large trees are present along other nearby portions 
of the creek. Stick nests were not observed in trees on or near the project site during the 
December field survey, when trees were devoid of leaves and nests would have been readily 
observable. In the unlikely event an active Swainson’s hawk nest is present on or adjacent to the 
project site during demolition and construction activities, nesting birds could be disturbed to an 
extent that results in nest failure. The CNDDB contains few records for the species nesting in 
Inyo County, indicating that the population is small, and the loss of a single nest would result in 
a substantial adverse effect on the species. Implementation of Mitigation Measure BIO-1 
requires implementation of preconstruction and species avoidance measures, which would 
reduce the impact to less than significant. Therefore, the proposed project would have a less-

than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

Mitigation Measure BIO-1: Avoid and Minimize Effects to Nesting Swainson’s Hawk.  
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement the following measures to avoid 
and minimize potential adverse effects on nesting Swainson’s hawk during project construction. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-11 Initial Study Checklist 

1. Preconstruction surveys for active Swainson’s hawk nests shall be conducted by a 
qualified biologist in all areas of suitable nesting habitat within 0.25-mile of project 
disturbance. A minimum of one survey shall be conducted no more than 14 days before 
project activities commence.  

2. Appropriate buffers shall be established and maintained around active nest sites to avoid 
nest failure from project activities. The appropriate size and shape of the buffers shall be 
determined by a qualified biologist and may vary depending on the nest location, nest 
stage, and construction activity. The buffers may be adjusted if a qualified biologist 
determines it would not be likely to adversely affect the nest. Monitoring shall be 
conducted to confirm that project activities are not resulting in detectable adverse effects 
on nesting birds or their young. No project activities shall commence within the buffer 
areas until a qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest site is 
otherwise no longer in use.  

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities 

The project site and vicinity lack suitable nesting habitat for bank swallow. Implementation of 
the proposed project would result in the loss of a very small amount of temporal foraging habitat 
loss for one season but would not substantially reduce the overall populations or distribution of 
any special-status bird species. However, it is recommended that Mitigation Measure BIO-2 be 
implemented to avoid and minimize destruction of active bird nests and potential violation of 
FGC Section 3503 during project construction.  Implementation of the construction worker 
awareness training practices, revegetation measures, and invasive plant avoidance measures 
identified in Mitigation Measures BIO-3, BIO-4, and BIO-5 are also recommended to 
minimize related species and habitat impacts.   

Mitigation Measure BIO-2: Pre-Construction Bird Surveys 

Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement the following measures to avoid 
and minimize destruction of active bird nests and potential violation of FGC Section 3503 during 
project construction: 

1. If vegetation removal must occur during the migratory bird nesting season (March 15 
through July 31), surveys for active bird nests shall be conducted by a qualified biologist 
in areas of suitable nesting vegetation designated for removal. If active nests are found, 
removal of vegetation in which the nests are located will be delayed until a qualified 
biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest site is otherwise no longer in 
use. 

2. Preconstruction surveys for active nests of common raptor species shall be conducted by 
a qualified biologist. Surveys for raptor nests shall include suitable habitat within up to 
300 feet of areas subject to project disturbance, depending on the potential extent of 
indirect impact. Surveys shall be conducted within 14 days before commencement of any 
construction activities that occur during the raptor nesting season (March 15 to July 31) 
in a given area.  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-12 Initial Study Checklist 

3. If any active nests, or behaviors indicating active nests are present, are observed, 
appropriate buffers around the nest sites shall be determined by a qualified biologist to 
avoid nest failure resulting from project activities. Buffer size shall depend on the 
species, nest location, nest stage, and specific construction activities to be performed 
while the nest is active. The buffers may be adjusted if a qualified biologist determines it 
would not be likely to adversely affect the nest. If buffers are adjusted, monitoring shall 
be conducted to confirm that project activity is not resulting in detectable adverse effects 
on nesting birds or their young. No project activity shall commence within the buffer 
areas until a qualified biologist determines that the young have fledged, or the nest site is 
otherwise no longer in use. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities 

Mitigation Measure BIO-3: Conduct Environmental Awareness Training Regarding 
Special-status Species and Sensitive Habitats prior to Construction 

Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor will implement the following actions before 
and during construction activities: 

Before any work occurs in the proposed project footprint, including grading and equipment 
staging, all construction personnel shall participate in an environmental awareness training 
regarding special-status species and sensitive habitats present in the project limits. The training 
shall describe sensitive resources (i.e., waters of the U.S. and state, riparian habitat, special-status 
species and habitat, nesting birds/raptors) to be avoided during project construction and 
applicable permit conditions identified by state and federal agencies to protect these resources. If 
new construction personnel are added to the project, they must receive the mandatory training 
before starting work. After being trained, each construction person shall sign-in to document 
they received the training. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities 

Mitigation Measure BIO-4: Return Temporarily Disturbed Areas to Pre-Project 
Conditions 

The County shall ensure the construction contractor will implement the following actions before 
and during construction activities: 

All temporarily disturbed areas shall be returned to pre-project conditions within one year 
following completion of construction/maintenance. These areas shall be properly protected from 
washout and erosion using appropriate erosion control devices including coir netting, 
hydroseeding, and revegetation. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  During and After Construction Activities 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-13 Initial Study Checklist 

Mitigation Measure BIO-5: Avoid the Spread of Invasive Plant Species 

The County shall ensure the following mitigation measures shall be implemented, as appropriate, 
to avoid the spreading of invasive plant species throughout the project site during construction 
and maintenance activities, particularly in riparian areas: 

1. All hay, straw, hay bales, straw bales, seed, mulch, or other material used for erosion 
control or landscaping on the project site, and all material brought to the site, including 
rock, gravel, road base, sand, and top soil, shall be free of noxious weed seeds and 
propagules. Noxious weeds are defined in Title 3, Division 4, Chapter 6, Section 4500 of 
the California Code of Regulations and the California Quarantine Policy – Weeds. (Food 
and Agriculture Code, Sections 6305, 6341 and 6461) 

2. All equipment brought to the project site for construction shall be thoroughly cleaned of 
all dirt and vegetation prior to entering the site to prevent importing noxious weeds. 
(Food and Agriculture Code, Section 5401) 

         Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
         Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities  

Special-status Species – Mammals  
Three special-status bat species––pallid bat, Townsend big-eared bat, and spotted bat have the 
potential to forage over the project site, but roosting habitat is absent from the project site and 
immediate vicinity. Foraging activities are unlikely to be disturbed by construction activities. 
Areas of rock outcrops near the toe slope of Wheeler Mountain may support colonial bat roost 
sites, but project activities are unlikely to create enough disturbance to disrupt bats that may 
roost in such areas, located over 3 miles away. The existing failed bridge structure is concrete 
slab and lacks cracks or openings on the underside of the bridge deck that could serve as bat 
rooting habitat. Existing mature trees on the project site are unlikely to provide habitat for 
roosting colonies due to the limited amount of habitat present, but they could be used as 
temporary roost sites for small numbers of individuals. Potential disturbance of small numbers of 
roosting bats that may be present onsite would not result in a substantial adverse effect to local or 
regional populations of either species. Therefore, the proposed project would have a less-than-

significant impact on special-status bats.  

Western white-tailed jackrabbit and Sierra Nevada bighorn sheep utilize high elevations in the 
summer months and migrate down the eastern slope of the Sierra Nevada during winter months. 
These species are not likely to be present on the project site or vicinity when the project is 
implemented during summer and fall months. The proposed project would not result in a 
permanent loss of sagebrush scrubland habitat and therefore would not result in the loss of 
foraging habitat for these species. The proposed project would have no impact on western white-
tailed jackrabbit and Sierra Nevada bighorn sheep.   

Sierra Nevada red fox are typically found at elevations above 7,000 feet and have been extirpated 
from much of the Sierra Nevada. One potential occurrence of this subspecies has been reported 
from several miles upstream along Pine Creek, but the identification cannot be confirmed. The 
project site includes a narrow band of sagebrush scrub habitat adjacent to North Round Valley 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-14 Initial Study Checklist 

Road, which could provide suitable dispersal and foraging habitat for Sierra Nevada red fox. The 
proposed project would not result in a permanent loss of sagebrush scrubland habitat and 
therefore would not result in the loss of dispersal/foraging habitat for this species. Project 
implementation would not impede the movement of this species, if an individual were present at 
the time of construction. The proposed project would have no impact on Sierra Nevada red fox.       

Special-status Species – Fish  
Owens sucker and Owens speckled dace were determined to have moderate potential to occur in 
the waters of Pine Creek. The proposed project would result in temporary dewatering of Pine 
Creek in the construction footprint (approximately 50 to 60 linear feet) to complete in-channel 
construction activities including the removal of the existing failed bridge structure and the 
construction of two new bridge abutments. Channel dewatering would result in a temporary loss 
of foraging habitat for fish species. The construction of new bridge abutments would require 
excavation in the creek bed to construct the cast-in-drilled-hole piles and modification of the 
channel bank in the immediate vicinity of the abutment. Each new abutment would measure 
approximately 40 feet long by 12 feet wide by 3 feet deep. Temporary shoring may be required 
to stabilize the abutment excavation and localized dewatering may be required to ensure that the 
area surrounding the footing concrete remains dry. Uncured cement has a high pH and can 
rapidly change stream chemistry if the area is not isolated. Degradation of downstream water 
quality could result in mortality of aquatic species downstream of construction and could result 
in mortality of individuals of special-status fish downstream, if present. This would be a 
potentially significant impact on special-status fisheries. Implementation of Mitigation 
Measure BIO-6 and BIO-7 requires implementation of dewatering and water quality measures, 
which would reduce the impact to less than significant. Therefore, the proposed project would 
have a less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

Scour counter measures are required because the soils within the project site are highly 
susceptible to erosion and therefore it is anticipated that rip rap would be placed 30 feet upstream 
and 40 downstream of abutments. Placement of rip rap would result in the permanent 
modification of channel slopes in the immediate vicinity of the bridge resulting in the loss of a 
fraction of a percent of available spawning habitat within Pine Creek, since most scour counter 
measures would be placed along the streambank. Up to 70 linear feet of spawning habitat 
represents a minor loss of the overall amount of spawning habitat present in Pine Creek and 
therefore this impact would be less-than-significant. 

Mitigation Measure BIO-6: Avoid and Minimize Effects to Special-status Fish. 

Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement the following measures to avoid 
and minimize adverse impact on special-status fish species. 

1. The construction contractor shall prepare a dewatering plan, which shall be reviewed by a 
qualified fisheries biologist retained by Inyo County.  

2. A qualified biologist shall be present during dewatering activities and shall relocate fish 
downstream to flowing waters outside the project site, if necessary.  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-15 Initial Study Checklist 

3. No refueling, storage, servicing, or maintenance of equipment shall take place on the 
shore within 100 feet of the Ordinary High-Water Mark (OHWM) of Pine Creek.  

4. All machinery used during project construction shall be properly maintained and cleaned 
to prevent spills and leaks that could contaminate soil or water. Secondary containment 
for stationary machinery used to dewater, such as pumps or generators, shall be used.  

5. All pumps used to conduct dewatering activities shall be screened to prevent fish 
entrainment.  

6. The area surrounding concrete abutment footings shall remain dry until cement is fully 
cured. Any waters that make contact with wet cement shall be disposed of outside of the 
active channel of Pine Creek.  

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities  

Mitigation Measure BIO-7: Avoid and Minimize Effects to waters of the United 
States/waters of the State. 

Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement the following measures to avoid 
and minimize direct fill of waters of the United States in Pine Creek. Pine Creek is also a water 
of the state, regulated under Section 401 of the CWA, and subject to regulation by CDFW under 
Section 1600 of the California Fish and Game Code.   

1. Ground disturbance shall be limited to construction areas, including necessary access 
routes and staging areas. The total area of the project activity shall be limited to the 
minimum necessary. When possible, existing access routes and points shall be used. All 
roads, staging areas, and other facilities shall be placed to avoid and limit disturbance to 
Pine Creek when feasible.  

2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) or a Water Pollution Control Plan 
(for disturbance areas less than an acre) that identifies specific best management practices 
(BMPs) to avoid and minimize impacts on water quality during construction activities 
shall be prepared and implemented. BMPs may include: 

3. Erosion control measures that minimize soil or sediment from entering waterways and 
wetlands shall be installed, monitored for effectiveness, and maintained throughout 
construction activities.  

4. Precautions to minimize turbidity/siltation shall be implemented during construction. 
This may require placing barriers (e.g., silt curtains) to prevent silt and/or other 
deleterious materials from entering downstream reaches.  

5. Petroleum products, chemicals, fresh cement, and construction by-products containing, or 
water contaminated by, any such materials shall not be allowed to enter flowing waters 
and shall be collected and transported to an authorized upland disposal area.  

6. A written spill prevention and control plan (SPCP) shall be prepared and implemented. 
The SPCP and all material necessary for its implementation shall be accessible on-site 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-16 Initial Study Checklist 

prior to initiation of project construction and throughout the construction period. The 
SPCP shall include a plan for the emergency cleanup of any spills of fuel or other 
material. Employees/construction workers shall be provided the necessary information 
from the SPCP to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants from construction 
activities to waters and to use the appropriate measures should a spill occur. In the event 
of a spill, work shall stop immediately and CDFW, Lahontan Regional Water Quality 
Control Board (RWQCB), and United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) shall be 
notified within 24 hours.  

7. Before the commencement of construction activities, high-visibility fencing shall be 
erected to protect areas of Pine Creek that are located adjacent to construction areas, but 
can be avoided, from encroachment of personnel and equipment. The fencing shall be 
inspected before the start of each work day and shall be removed only when the 
construction within a given area is completed. Limits of waters of the United States shall 
be incorporated into project bid specifications, along with a requirement for contractors 
to avoid these areas. 

8. A qualified biologist shall monitor the start of in-water construction activities to ensure 
that avoidance and minimization measures are being properly implemented and no 
unauthorized activities occur.  

9. Project implementation would result in the need to obtain regulatory permits from 
USACE, RWQCB, and CDFW for direct impacts to Pine Creek. All measures developed 
through consultation with the respective regulatory agencies shall be implemented. 

10. Section 404: Before any ground-disturbing project activities begin in Pine Creek, a 
qualified biologist shall conduct a formal delineation of waters of the United States for 
Clean Water Act Section 404 permitting. The findings shall be documented in a detailed 
report and submitted to USACE for verification as part of the Section 404 wetland 
delineation process. Authorization for fill of jurisdictional waters of the United States 
shall be secured from USACE via the Section 404 permitting process before project 
construction. Any measures determined necessary during the 404 permitting process shall 
be implemented during project construction.  

11. Section 401: Water quality certification pursuant to Section 401 of the Clean Water Act 
shall be obtained from the Lahontan RWQCB before starting project construction in any 
areas that may contain waters of the State. Any measures required as part of the issuance 
of water quality certification shall be implemented.  

12. Section 1602: A CDFW lake and streambed alteration agreement shall be obtained under 
Section 1602 of the California Fish and Game Code for all work below the top of bank of 
Pine Creek. Any conditions of issuance of the lake and streambed alteration agreement 
shall be implemented as part of project implementation. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before, During and After Construction Activities  

b)  Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive 
natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations or 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-17 Initial Study Checklist 

by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service? 

See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on State or Federally protected wetlands 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct 
removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

 See checklist Item “a” above. 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish 
or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife 
corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites? 

 See checklist Item “a” above. 

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, 
such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance? 

No local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy 
or ordinance, apply to the project site. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or State habitat 
conservation plan? 

 No impact would occur.  

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-18 Initial Study Checklist 

3.7 Cultural Resources 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES.  

Would the project: 

     

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource pursuant 
to California Code of Regulations (CCR) 
Section 15064.5? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to CCR Section 15064.5? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Disturb any human remains, including 
remains interred outside of dedicated 
cemeteries? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

3.7.1 Discussion 
a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource 

pursuant to in California Code of Regulations Section 15064.5? 

A Cultural Resources Inventory Report (GEI, 2019c) was prepared for the County to evaluate 
site conditions and potential impacts to cultural resources. The report (available for review at the 
Inyo County Public Works office) is summarized below and has been conducted to comply with 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (Section 106) and the 
California Environmental Quality Act and its implementing guidelines (CEQA) as pertaining to 
cultural resources.  

The cultural resources investigation included a records search conducted at the Eastern 
Information Center (EIC) of the California Historical Information System located at the 
University of California, Riverside and a pedestrian survey of the Area of Potential Effects 
(APE). The records search at the EIC did not identify any previously reported cultural resources 
within the APE. One previously unidentified, prehistoric archaeological resource was found 
during the archaeological field survey. Given the temporary designation RV-1 until the EIC can 
assign a resource number and trinomial to the site, it consists of a moderately sized lithic scatter 
predominantly containing debitage but also some stone tools including bifaces, flake tools, and 
projectile points; two artifact concentrations were also noted. 

There is insufficient data regarding RV-1 to determine if it is eligible for listing in either the 
National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or the California Register of Historic Resources 
(CRHR). While RV-1 is outside of the project’s area of direct impact, a portion of RV-1 is 
located within the APE. However, project activities would be focused on construction staging 
and limited to the existing roadway. To ensure no adverse effects to the resource, implementation 
of resource avoidance measures provided in Mitigation Measure CR-1 and CR-2 would reduce 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-19 Initial Study Checklist 

the impact to less than significant. Therefore, the proposed project would have a less-than-

significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

Mitigation Measure CR-1: Install Environmentally Sensitive Area Fencing Around 
Portions of Resource RV-1 

To ensure no adverse effects to the resource, Inyo County will ensure that the construction 
contractor install Environmentally Sensitive Area fencing around portions of the RV-1 resource 
near the roadway limits to clearly depict the limits of the resource. The fencing would provide a 
visual reference, so construction personnel can clearly recognize the resource limits on the 
ground and ensure no adverse effects to RV-1. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities  

Mitigation Measure CR-2: Accidental Finding of Human Remains   

1. If human remains are found, the California Health and Safety Code requires that 
excavation be halted in the immediate area and that the Inyo County Coroner be notified 
to determine the nature of the remains. The Coroner is required to examine all discoveries 
of human remains within 48 hours of receiving notice of a discovery on private of State 
lands (California Health and Safety Code, Section 7050.5[b]). If the Coroner determines 
that the remains are those of a Native American, he or she must contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) by telephone within 24 hours of making that 
determination (California Health and Safety Code, Section 7050.5[c]). 

2. Once notified by the Coroner, the NAHC shall identify the person it believes it the Most 
Likely Descendant (MLD) of the Native American remains. With permission of the legal 
landowner(s), the MLD may visit the site and make recommendations regarding the 
treatment and disposition of the human remains and any associated grave goods. This 
visit should be conducted with 48 hours of the MLD’s notification by the NAHC 
(California Public Resources Code [PRC], Section 5097.98[a]). If a satisfactory 
agreement for treatment of the remains cannot be reached, any of the parties may request 
mediation by the NAHC (California PRC, Section 5097.94[k]). Should mediation fail, the 
landowner or landowner’s representative must reinter the remains and associated items 
with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface 
disturbance (California PRC, Section 5097.98[b]).  

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  During Construction Activities  

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological 
resource pursuant to California Code of Regulations Section 15064.5? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Disturb any human remains, including remains interred outside of dedicated 
cemeteries? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.    



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-20 Initial Study Checklist 

3.8 Energy 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

VI. ENERGY. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Result in potentially significant 
environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of 
energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Conflict with or obstruct a State or local plan 
for renewable energy or energy efficiency? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.8.1 Discussion 
a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, 

or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or 
operation? 

Fuel use would be consistent with typical construction and manufacturing practices and would 
not require excessive or wasteful use of energy. Construction activities would not reduce or 
interrupt existing fuel or electricity delivery systems due to insufficient supply. The proposed 
bridge replacement project would not result in a potentially significant environmental impact due 
to wasteful, inefficient, or the unnecessary consumption of energy resources. Consequently, no 

impact would occur. 

b) Conflict with or obstruct a State or local plan for renewable energy or energy 
efficiency? 

The proposed bridge replacement project would not conflict with or obstruct a plan for 
renewable energy or energy efficiency. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-21 Initial Study Checklist 

3.9 Geology and Soils 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

VII. GEOLOGY AND SOILS. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

i)  Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as 
delineated on the most recent Alquist-
Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map 
issued by the State Geologist for the 
area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? (Refer to 
California Geological Survey Special 
Publication 42.) 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 
iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including 

liquefaction? 
☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

iv) Landslides? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 
b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss 

of topsoil? 
☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as 
a result of the project, and potentially result 
in on or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(1994, as updated),), creating substantial 
direct or indirect risks to life or property? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.9.1 Discussion 
a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the 

risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 

i)  Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-22 Initial Study Checklist 

for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? (Refer 
to California Geological Survey Special Publication 42.) 

Implementation of the proposed project would adhere to construction recommendations 
in the California Department of Transportation’s Design Manual and the current design 
parameters of the Structural Engineers of California Uniform Building Code. Therefore, 
the project would not expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects 
involving the rupture of a known earthquake fault, and no impact would occur. 
Furthermore, the proposed project would be designed to withstand seismic loading. 
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking? 

  See checklist Item “ai” above.   

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

  See checklist Item “ai” above.   

iv) Landslides? 

The project site and surrounding area is flat and has a low potential for landslides. 
Construction and operation of the proposed project would result in no additional exposure 
of people to landslides. Therefore, there would be no increased hazard from landslides 
and no impact. 

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

Construction activities associated with the project would involve grading and excavation 
activities within the project site. These activities could expose barren soils to sources of wind or 
water, resulting in the potential for erosion and sedimentation on and off the project site. The 
County plans to complete construction in the dry season, such that any surfaces disturbed during 
construction would be paved or re-vegetated before the raining season, keeping the potential for 
erosion low. Furthermore, the County would employ appropriate sediment and erosion control 
BMPs to minimize the potential for erosion and sedimentation as part of a SWPPP (or as part of 
a WPCP in accordance with the construction specifications and prepared by a QSP) in 
accordance with contract specification and with NPDES General Permit for Storm Water 
Discharges associated with construction activity. Additionally, the implementation of the erosion 
prevention measures/water quality best management practices provided under Mitigation 
Measure BIO-7 (more fully described above under Section 3.6 “Biological Resources”), would 
serve to further minimize the project’s impacts to soil loss and substantial soil erosion. 
Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant. 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become 
unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on or off-site 
landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

 See checklist Item “ai” above.   

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-23 Initial Study Checklist 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building 
Code (1994, as updated), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or 
property? 

 See checklist Item “ai” above.   

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water? 

Portable toilets would be used for construction workers. The proposed project would not require 
or include the construction of wastewater disposal systems of any kind. Thus, there would be no 

impact related to the ability of project site soils to support the use of septic systems. 

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature? 

The proposed bridge replacement project would not destroy a unique geologic feature.  
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

 

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-24 Initial Study Checklist 

3.10 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

VIII. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse 
gases? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

3.10.1 Discussion 
a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a 

significant impact on the environment?     

Project construction-related activities would generate a variety of greenhouse gases, such as 
carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), and nitrous dioxide (N2O) from the exhaust of 
equipment and the exhaust of vehicles for employees, visitors, and construction hauling trips. 
The project would also result in the short-term generation of aerosols from diesel particulate 
matter exhaust. Aerosols are short-lived greenhouse gases, as they remain in the atmosphere for 
approximately one week. The project would emit nitrogen oxides (NOx) and reactive organic 
gases (ROG), which are ozone precursors. Ozone is a greenhouse gas. However, unlike the other 
greenhouse gases, ozone in the troposphere is relatively short-lived and is being reduced in the 
troposphere daily. Overall, these emissions are considered temporary or short-term. 

As previously described above in Section 3.5 “Air Quality”, the proposed project would not 
increase roadway capacity or service capabilities that would induce unplanned growth or remove 
an existing obstacle to growth that would contribute additional long-term sources of ROG or 
NOx. The proposed project would generate temporary and short-term construction-related 
emissions of ROG or NOX; however, Mitigation Measure AIR-1 (more fully described above 
in Section 3.5 “Air Quality”) requires implementation of engine emissions control measures 
which would further minimize the project’s greenhouse gas emission impacts. Therefore, the 
proposed project would have a less-than-significant impact. 

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

The California Air Resources Board (CARB) Scoping Plan provides an outline of actions to 
reduce California’s GHG emissions. The Scoping Plan requires CARB and other state agencies 
to adopt regulations and other initiatives to reduce Greenhouse Gases (GHGs). At this time, there 
are no applicable local plans, mandatory GHG regulations, or finalized agency guidelines that 
would apply to this project. As such, the proposed project does not conflict with any local plans. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-25 Initial Study Checklist 

Additionally, the proposed project would generate very minimal GHG emissions compared to 
GHG thresholds that have been developed by SCAQMD to meet compliance with AB32 
requirements. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, with no mitigation measures 
required. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-26 Initial Study Checklist 

3.11 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

IX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials 
into the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter 
mile of an existing or proposed school? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a 
list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 
significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, would the project result 
in a safety hazard or excessive noise for 
people residing or working in the project 
area? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

f) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

g) Expose people or structures, either directly 
or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, 
injury or death involving wildland fires? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 
3.11.1 Discussion 
a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine 

transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

Hazardous materials present during project construction may include gasoline, diesel fuel, 
hydraulic oils, equipment coolants, and any generated wastes that may include these materials. 
Fueling of equipment and vehicle would be performed on-site. Construction equipment and 
vehicles would use a minimal amount of hazardous materials. Gasoline and diesel fuel would be 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-27 Initial Study Checklist 

stored in small quantities at the staging yards during construction. Although very few individuals 
live and work in the area, a hazard to the public or the environment could occur through the 
transport and use of gasoline and diesel fuel on the project site. Spill response and control would 
be addressed in the project-specific SWPPP or WPCP (more fully described above under Section 
3.6 “Biological Resources”). Compliance with the spill control and response measures in the 
SWPPP or WPCP would reduce the risk to the public and environment from transport and use of 
hazardous materials. The impact to the public or the environment from use, disposal, or transport 
of hazardous materials during construction would be less-than-significant. 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous 
materials into the environment? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

The Round Valley Joint Elementary School is located near the project site.  However, 
construction related activities would occur during the summer months to minimize impacts to the 
school. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites 
compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it 
create a significant hazard to the public or the environment? 

The project site is not located on a site included on a list of hazardous materials sites. The project 
would result in no impacts associated with emissions from hazardous materials sites. 
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not 
been adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the 
project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working 
in the project area? 

The project site is not located within an airport use plan or within 2 miles of a public airport or 
public use airport. The project would have no impacts associated with airport hazards. 
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation plan? 

The existing bridge is currently not in use, with no through vehicle traffic on this portion of 
North Round Valley Road. Use of the new bridge would allow for safer passage of larger 
emergency response vehicles and easier evacuation, if needed. The project would have no impact 
on emergency response. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of 
loss, injury or death involving wildland fires? 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-28 Initial Study Checklist 

Heavy equipment used during project construction has the potential to start a fire on surrounding 
open space areas near the project site. Vegetation removal activities resulting from the project 
will help to reduce the potential of wildland fires by providing a clearing, reducing fire fuels and 
removing fire sustaining litter. In addition, during construction, spark arrestors or turbo chargers 
(which eliminate sparks in exhaust) and fire extinguishers would be required for all heavy 
equipment pursuant to Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 that would serve to further minimize wild 
land fire impacts. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant with mitigation 
incorporated.  

Mitigation Measure HAZ-1: Implement BMPs for Wildland Fire Prevention.  

Inyo County shall ensure that the construction contractor will clear dried vegetation or other 
materials that could serve as fuel for combustion from construction or building areas. To the 
extent feasible, the contractor shall keep these areas clear of combustible materials to maintain a 
firebreak. Construction contractors shall ensure that any construction equipment that normally 
includes a spark arrester shall be equipped with an arrester in good working order. This includes, 
but is not limited to, vehicles, heavy equipment, and chainsaws. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities  

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-29 Initial Study Checklist 

3.12 Hydrology and Water Quality 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

X. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements or otherwise 
substantially degrade surface or ground 
water quality? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) Substantially decrease groundwater 
supplies or interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that the project 
may impede sustainable groundwater 
management of the basin? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river or through the addition of impervious 
surfaces, in a manner which would:  

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

i) result in substantial erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site;  

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

ii) substantially increase the rate or amount 
of surface runoff in a manner which 
would result in flooding on- or offsite;  

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

iii) create or contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of existing or 
planned stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff; or  

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

iv) impede or redirect flood flows? ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 
d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, 

risk release of pollutants due to project 
inundation? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a 
water quality control plan or sustainable 
groundwater management plan? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 

3.12.1 Discussion 
a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise 

substantially degrade surface or ground water quality? 

Construction-related activities resulting from the proposed project would require ground- 
disturbing work within and adjacent to Pine Creek. Construction and staging areas would be 
disturbed by vehicles and various work activities (e.g., grading) that would make these areas 
susceptible to erosion by stormwater runoff. Sediment-laden stormwater runoff could increase 
turbidity in Pine Creek within the immediate project area, resulting in a temporary adverse effect 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-30 Initial Study Checklist 

on water quality. However, the County plans to complete construction in the dry season, such 
that any surfaces disturbed during construction would be paved or re-vegetated before the rainy 
season, keeping the potential for erosion low. Additionally, impacts to runoff water quality could 
potentially result from leaks or spills of fuel or hydraulic fluid used in construction equipment; 
outdoor storage of construction materials; or spills of paints, solvents, or other potentially 
hazardous materials commonly used in construction. 

As previously described above in Sections 3.6 “Biological Resources” and 3.9 “Geology and 
Soils”, a SWPPP (or WPCP prepared in accordance with the contract specifications and by a 
QSP), in accordance with contract specifications and with California National Pollution 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit for Storm Water Discharges (associated 
with construction activity) would be implemented as part of the project. The SWPPP (or WPCP) 
would require the implementation of appropriate construction BMPs and would ensure no water 
quality standards or waste discharge requirements would be violated. In addition, the project is 
subject to the water quality and erosion prevention provisions outlined under the Clean Water 
Act Sections 401 and 404 and a CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreement. 

Prior to in-channel construction activities, the County will complete the Section 404 Clean Water 
Act Nationwide Permitting Process, complete RWQCB certification, and obtain a Streambed 
Alteration Agreement with California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Conditions of Approval 
outlined in the respective permits would help to alleviate any potential water quality impacts 
resulting from bridge replacement activities occurring within Pine Creek. Additionally, the 
implementation of the erosion prevention measures/water quality best management practices 
provided under Mitigation Measure BIO-7 (more fully described above under Section 3.6 
“Biological Resources”), would serve to further minimize the project’s impacts to soil and 
substantial soil erosion. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, with no further 
mitigation required.   

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with 
groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater 
management of the basin? 

The proposed project would not require the use of groundwater or substantially interfere with 
groundwater recharge. The proposed project is located within an area where groundwater levels 
vary seasonally and are highly influenced by precipitation, drainage, soil texture, and profile. 
Replacement of the bridge would not result in new amounts of impervious surfaces that would 
affect local groundwater levels or the production rates of nearby water wells. Therefore, the 
project would not substantially deplete groundwater supplies and would not affect groundwater 
recharge such that a net deficit would occur. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, 
with no mitigation required.   

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including 
through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of 
impervious surfaces, in a manner which would: 

i)  Result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; 

ii) Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in flooding on- or offsite; 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-31 Initial Study Checklist 

iii) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of 
existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

iv) Impede or redirect flood flows? 

The project site naturally drains into Pine Creek. The proposed bridge and road widening would 
not add a significant amount of new impervious surfaces and would not substantially alter the 
existing topography or drainage pattern of the creek channel. While there may be a temporary 
alteration of flow during installation of the proposed bridge, any water diversion structures 
utilized would be in place over a short-term period and are not anticipated to significantly alter 
the existing drainage pattern of the site in a way that would result in substantial erosion or 
siltation on- or offsite. In addition, standard construction erosion control measures, permit 
Conditions of Approval, as well as the SWPPP (or WPCP) would be implemented as a part of 
the project and would ensure that potential construction erosion and siltation would not affect 
drainages. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant, with no mitigation required.   

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project 
inundation? 

There are no large water bodies in the vicinity of the project site and the surrounding area is in a 
flat valley area, not subject to mudflow risks. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or 
sustainable groundwater management plan? 

 See checklist Item “b” above.   

 

 
  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-32 Initial Study Checklist 

3.13 Land Use and Planning 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XI. LAND USE AND PLANNING. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Physically divide an established community? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
b) Cause a significant environmental impact 

due to a conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose 
of avoiding or mitigating an environmental 
effect? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.13.1 Discussion 
a) Physically divide an established community? 

The proposed project would replace an existing storm damaged bridge and would not result in a 
physical division or barrier to an established community. Land uses in the immediate project 
vicinity consist of open space with scattered rural residential uses. The project is designed to 
improve public safety, connectivity, and circulation for residents in the project vicinity and any 
short term-construction-related impacts to local vehicle travel would be minimal. Consequently, 
implementation of the proposed project would not physically divide an established community 
and improve public safety by replacing the existing storm damaged bridge, resulting in a 
beneficial impact.  

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

The proposed replacement of an existing bridge would occur within the County’s existing right-
of-way and the proposed project would remain consistent with the existing site land use and 
surrounding land use designations, requiring no further change or amendment to the General 
Plan land use designation or zoning assigned by the County. Therefore, the project would not 
conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction 
over the project. Consequently, No impact would occur. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-33 Initial Study Checklist 

3.14 Mineral Resources 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XII. MINERAL RESOURCES. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to 
the region and the residents of the State? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally 
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.14.1 Discussion 
a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of 

value to the region and the residents of the State? 

No mineral extraction activities exist on the project site and mineral extraction is not included as 
a part of the project. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery 
site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

 
  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-34 Initial Study Checklist 

3.15 Noise 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XIII. NOISE. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels 
in the vicinity of the project in excess of 
standards established in the local general 
plan or noise ordinance, or in other 
applicable standards of other agencies? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, 
where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within 2 miles of a public airport or public 
use airport, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.15.1 Discussion 
a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise 

levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local 
general plan or noise ordinance, or in other applicable standards of other 
agencies? 

Implementation of the proposed project would result in potential noise impacts from short-term 
construction activities. Regarding long-term or operational noise impacts, implementation of the 
proposed project would not result in added travel lanes along the project alignment, nor would it 
move travel lanes substantially closer to any sensitive receptor in the project vicinity. In addition, 
implementation of the proposed project would not result in any increase in traffic volumes along 
the project alignment. As such, the project would not result in any new long-term operational 
noise sources, nor would it move existing operational noise sources (i.e., traffic) closer to 
existing sensitive land uses. No long-term or operational noise impacts are associated with the 
project and this topic is not addressed further. 

Construction activities necessary to complete the bridge replacement would generate a 
considerable amount of noise in the immediate project vicinity. Noise from vehicles, earth-
moving operations, and heavy equipment would result in elevated ambient and intermittent noise 
levels. Noise impacts from construction depend on the noise generated by various pieces of 
equipment, timing and duration of noise-generating activities, and the distance between 
construction noise sources and noise-sensitive receptors, and the noise environment in which the 
proposed project would be constructed. Noise generated during the construction period would 
vary on a day-to-day basis, depending on the specific activities being 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-35 Initial Study Checklist 

undertaken at any given time. Construction traffic and equipment resulting from the proposed 
project is not anticipated beyond the limits of the project site. Consequently, construction noise 
would not exceed County noise standards. No residential land uses are located near the project 
site and construction-related activities would occur during the summer months to minimize 
construction noise to the Round Valley Joint Elementary School. Consequently, no impact 
would occur. 

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) For a project located within-the vicinity of a private airstrip or-an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise levels? 

The project site is not located within 2 miles of an airport or within an existing or projected 
airport land use plan. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-36 Initial Study Checklist 

3.16 Population and Housing 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XIV. POPULATION AND HOUSING. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Induce substantial unplanned population 
growth in an area, either directly (for 
example, by proposing new homes and 
businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
people or housing, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.16.1 Discussion 
a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for 

example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other infrastructure)? 

The proposed project would not directly or indirectly induce growth in the area. The new bridge 
would restore connectivity and safely accommodate existing traffic volumes by replacing the 
existing storm damaged bridge. The new bridge and roadway would not provide an extension to 
new destinations beyond the current extent of the existing road. Construction is expected to last 
up to 20 weeks utilizing a construction crew of 12 workers. Adequate temporary housing 
(including local hotels or campgrounds) is available for construction workers and 
implementation of the proposed project would not require new or additional housing. 
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing elsewhere? 

Replacing the storm damaged bridge with a similar structure does not involve the construction, 
displacement, or demolition of any existing housing structures. Consequently, no impact would 
occur. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-37 Initial Study Checklist 

3.17 Public Services 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES. 

Would the project: 
a) Result in substantial adverse physical 

impacts associated with the provision of new 
or physically altered governmental facilities, 
or the need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times, or other 
performance objectives for any of the public 
services: 

     

Fire protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Police protection? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Schools? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Parks? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Other public facilities? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

 

3.17.1 Discussion 
a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of 

new or physically altered governmental facilities, or the need for new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, 
response times, or other performance objectives for any of the public services: 

Fire protection? 

Police protection? 

Schools? 

Parks? 

Other public facilities? 

Implementing the proposed project would not create new housing or other structures and, 
therefore, would not require additional public services (including fire or police protection 
facilities, schools, or parks). Furthermore, replacement of the existing storm damaged bridge 
would improve circulation patterns and benefit emergency response within the local area. 
Consequently, implementation of the proposed project would result in a beneficial impact.   



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-38 Initial Study Checklist 

3.18 Recreation 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XVI. RECREATION.  

Would the project: 

     

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood 
and regional parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be 
accelerated? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Include recreational facilities or require the 
construction or expansion of recreational 
facilities that might have an adverse 
physical effect on the environment? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.18.1 Discussion 
a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other 

recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility 
would occur or be accelerated? 

As previously described, the proposed project does not include the development of any new 
residential uses or include other land development that would directly induce additional 
population growth affecting existing recreation facilities or opportunities. Employment 
opportunities from the construction phase of the project would not induce any additional 
population growth in Inyo County. Therefore, the project would not cause physical deterioration 
of existing recreational facilities from increased usage or result in the need for new or expanded 
recreational facilities. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

b) Include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities that might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-39 Initial Study Checklist 

3.19 Transportation 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XVII. TRANSPORTATION. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or 
policy addressing the circulation system, 
including transit, roadway, bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision 
(b)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves 
or dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

 

3.19.1 Discussion 
a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation 

system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities? 

The proposed project complies with multiple circulation system improvement plans and 
initiatives, and replacement of the existing storm damaged bridge would improve circulation 
patterns and benefit emergency response within the local area. Consequently, implementation of 
the proposed project would result in a beneficial impact. 

b) Conflict or be inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision 
(b)? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp 
curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

No hazards due to design features would occur through implementation of the proposed project, 
as the replacement bridge structure and associated roadway approaches would conform to 
County standards. In addition, replacement of the storm damaged bridge will be designed to 
increase safety. Therefore, the project would not substantially increase hazards due to a design 
feature or incompatible use. Consequently, no impact would occur. 

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.    



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-40 Initial Study Checklist 

3.20 Tribal Cultural Resources 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XVIII. TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES. 

Would the project cause a substantial adverse 
change in the significance of a tribal cultural 
resource, defined in PRC Section 21074 as 
either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape 
that is geographically defined in terms of the size 
and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or 
object with cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

     

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a 
local register of historical resources as 
defined in PRC Section 5020.1(k), or 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, 
in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of PRC 
Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set 
forth in subdivision (c) of PRC Section 
5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a California 
Native American tribe. 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

 

3.20.1 Discussion 
a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 

tribal cultural resource, defined in PRC Section 21074 as either a site, feature, 
place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and 
scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California 
Native American tribe, and that is listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as 
defined in PRC Section 5020.1(k)? 

Under PRC section 21080.3.1 and 21082.3, the County must consult with tribes traditionally and 
culturally affiliated with the project area that have requested formal notification and responded 
with a request for consultation. The parties must consult in good faith. Consultation is deemed 
concluded when the parties agree to measures to mitigate or avoid a significant effect on a tribal 
cultural resource when one is present or when a party concludes that mutual agreement cannot be 
reached. Mitigation measures agreed on during the consultation process must be recommended 
for inclusion in the environmental document. 

Inyo County sent letters requesting AB 52 consultation to representatives of several federally 
recognized tribes and California tribes, as shown in Table 3-1, below. The letters provided a 
brief description of the project, the project location, and an invitation to engage in consultation 
regarding the project. The letters were sent in the first week of March 2019 with return receipts 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-41 Initial Study Checklist 

dated between three and six days after being sent. Responses were due back from the tribes 
during the second week of April 2019; due dates for the responses were based on the CEQA 
requirement that tribes be given 30 days to respond from receipt of requests for consultation. As 
shown in Table 3-1, none of the tribal contacts has responded back to the information request.   

Table 3-1. Summary Inyo County AB 52 Consultation 

Contact Tribe Date Sent 
Return 
Receipt Received By Response Due Response 

Mary Wuester, 
Chairperson 

Lone Pine Paiute-
Shoshone Tribe 

3/6/2019 3/12/2019 Jennifer Naylor 4/11/2019 None 

Carl Dahlberg, 
Chairperson 

Fort Independence 
Indian Community 
of Paiutes 

3/6/2019 3/12/2019 Brianne Bent 4/11/2019 None 

George Gholson, 
Chairperson 

Timbisha 
Shoshone Tribe 

3/6/2019 3/11/2019 Margaret C. 4/10/2019 None 

Danelle Guiterrez, 
Tribal Historic 
Preservation 
Officer 

Big Pine Paiute 
Tribe of the Owens 
Valley 

3/6/2019 3/11/2019 G. Lewis 4/10/2019 None 

Genevieve Jones, 
Chairperson 

Big Pine Paiute 
Tribe of the Owens 
Valley 

3/7/2019 3/11/2019 G. Lewis 4/10/2019 None 

Jill Paydon, Tribal 
Administrator 

Big Pine Paiute 
Tribe of the Owens 
Valley 

3/6/2019 3/11/2019 G. Lewis 4/10/2019 None 

Allen Summers 
Sr, Chairperson 

Bishop Paiute Tribe 3/6/2019 3/11/2019 Teresa Martinez 4/10/2019 None 

Gloriana Bailey, 
Tribal 
Administrator 

Bishop Paiute Tribe 3/6/2019 3/11/2019 Teresa Martinez 4/10/2019 None 

Monty Bengochia, 
Tribal Historic 
Preservation 
Officer 

Bishop Paiute Tribe 3/6/2019 3/11/2019 Teresa Martinez 4/10/2019 None 

Michael Mirelez, 
Cultural Resource 
Coordinator 

Torres Martinez 
Desert Cahuilla 
Indians 

3/6/2019 3/11/2019 Jones 4/10/2019 None 

Darrell Mike, 
Tribal Chairperson 

Twenty-Nine Palms 
Band of Mission 
Indians 

3/6/2019 3/9/2019 E. Reyes 4/8/2019 None 

Anthony Madrigal, 
Jr., Tribal Grants 
Administrator 

Twenty-Nine Palms 
Band of Mission 
Indians 

3/6/2019 3/9/2019 E. Reyes 4/8/209 None 

Doug Todd 
Welmas 

Cabazon Band of 
the Mission Indians 

3/6/2019 3/9/2019 Frank Quincnez 4/8/2019 None 

Jacquelyn 
Barnum, 
Environmental 
Director 

Cabazon Band of 
the Mission Indians 

3/6/2019 3/9/2019 Frank Quincnez 4/8/2019 None 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-42 Initial Study Checklist 

While no responses have been received to date, portions of the proposed project area may be 
sensitive for the presence of tribal cultural resources. However, no tribal cultural resources as 
defined in Public Resources Code 21074 have been identified in or adjacent to the proposed 
project area. Consequently, the proposed project is not anticipated to result in an adverse change 
in the significance of a tribal cultural resource pursuant to Public Resources Code 21074. While 
unlikely, construction of the proposed project could result in the inadvertent discovery of 
undocumented tribal cultural resources such as Native American archaeological sites, Native 
American human remains and associated objects and materials, features, sacred places or objects 
with value to a Tribe that is culturally or traditionally affiliated with the proposed project, and 
the disturbance or destruction of these resources. Therefore, the proposed project could result in 
potentially significant impact on tribal cultural resources. To ensure no adverse effects to the 
resource, implementation of resource avoidance measures provided in Mitigation Measure CR-
2 and CR-3 would reduce the impact to less than significant. Therefore, the proposed project 
would have a less-than-significant impact with mitigation incorporated. 

Mitigation Measure CR-2: Accidental Finding of Human Remains   

1. If human remains are found, the California Health and Safety Code requires that 
excavation be halted in the immediate area and that the Inyo County Coroner be notified 
to determine the nature of the remains. The Coroner is required to examine all discoveries 
of human remains within 48 hours of receiving notice of a discovery on private of State 
lands (California Health and Safety Code, Section 7050.5[b]). If the Coroner determines 
that the remains are those of a Native American, he or she must contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) by telephone within 24 hours of making that 
determination (California Health and Safety Code, Section 7050.5[c]). 

2. Once notified by the Coroner, the NAHC shall identify the person it believes it the Most 
Likely Descendant (MLD) of the Native American remains. With permission of the legal 
landowner(s), the MLD may visit the site and make recommendations regarding the 
treatment and disposition of the human remains and any associated grave goods. This 
visit should be conducted with 48 hours of the MLD’s notification by the NAHC 
(California Public Resources Code [PRC], Section 5097.98[a]). If a satisfactory 
agreement for treatment of the remains cannot be reached, any of the parties may request 
mediation by the NAHC (California PRC, Section 5097.94[k]). Should mediation fail, the 
landowner or landowner’s representative must reinter the remains and associated items 
with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface 
disturbance (California PRC, Section 5097.98[b]).  

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  During Construction Activities  

Mitigation Measure CR-3: In the Event that Tribal Cultural Resources or Cultural 
Resources Are Discovered During Construction, Implement Avoidance and Minimization 
Measures and Procedures to Evaluate Resources. 

If cultural resources or tribal cultural resources (such as Native American archaeological 
materials, sacred objects, unusual amounts of bone or shell, artifacts, or human remains and 
associated objects and materials) are encountered at the project site during construction, work 
shall be suspended within 100 feet of the find (based on the apparent distribution of cultural 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-43 Initial Study Checklist 

materials), and the construction contractor shall immediately notify the project’s County 
representative. Avoidance and preservation in place is the preferred manner of mitigating 
impacts to cultural resources or tribal cultural resources. This will be accomplished, if feasible, 
by several alternative means, including: 

• Recommendations for avoidance of cultural resources or tribal cultural resources will be 
reviewed by the County representative, interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes 
and other appropriate agencies, considering factors such as costs, logistics, feasibility, design, 
technology and social, cultural and environmental considerations, and the extent to which 
avoidance is consistent with project objectives. Avoidance and design alternatives may 
include realignment within the project site to avoid cultural resources or tribal cultural 
resources, modification of the design to eliminate or reduce impacts to tribal cultural 
resources or modification or realignment to avoid highly significant features within a cultural 
resource or tribal cultural resource. 

• Native American representatives from interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes 
will be invited to review and comment on these analyses and shall have the opportunity to 
meet with the County representative and its representatives who have technical expertise to 
identify and recommend feasible avoidance and design alternatives, so that appropriate and 
feasible avoidance and design alternatives can be identified. 

• If the discovered cultural resource or tribal cultural resource can be avoided, the construction 
contractor(s), will install protective fencing outside the site boundary, including a 100-foot 
buffer area, before construction restarts. The boundary of a tribal cultural resource will be 
determined in consultation with interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes and 
tribes will be invited to monitor the installation of fencing. Use of temporary and permanent 
forms of protective fencing will be determined in consultation with Native American 
representatives from interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes. 

• The construction contractor(s) will maintain the protective fencing throughout construction to 
avoid the site during all remaining phases of construction. The area will be demarcated as an 
“Environmentally Sensitive Area”. 

If a cultural resource or tribal cultural resource cannot be avoided, the following performance 
standard shall be met prior to continuance of construction and associated activities that may 
result in damage to or destruction of tribal cultural resources: 

• Each resource will be evaluated for California Register of Historical Resources- (CRHR) 
eligibility through application of established eligibility criteria (California Code of 
Regulations 15064.636), in consultation with consulting Native American Tribes, as 
applicable. 

If a cultural resource or tribal cultural resource is determined to be eligible for listing in the 
CRHR, the County will avoid damaging effects to the resource in accordance with California 
PRC Section 21084.3, if feasible. The County shall coordinate the investigation of the find with a 
qualified archaeologist (meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications 
Standards for Archeology) approved by the County and with interested culturally affiliated 
Native American tribes that respond to the County’s invitation. As part of the site investigation 
and resource assessment, the County and the archaeologist shall consult with interested culturally 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-44 Initial Study Checklist 

affiliated Native American tribes to assess the significance of the find, make recommendations 
for further evaluation and treatment as necessary and provide proper management 
recommendations should potential impacts to the resources be determined by the County to be 
significant. A written report detailing the site assessment, coordination activities, and 
management recommendations shall be provided to the County representative by the qualified 
archaeologist. These recommendations will be documented in the project record. For any 
recommendations made by interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes that are not 
implemented, a justification for why the recommendation was not followed will be provided in 
the project record. 

Native American representatives from interested culturally affiliated Native American Tribes and 
the County representative will also consult to develop measures for long-term management of 
any discovered Native American cultural resources or tribal cultural resources. Consultation will 
be limited to actions consistent with the jurisdiction of the County and considering ownership of 
the subject property. To the extent that the County has jurisdiction, routine operation and 
maintenance within tribal cultural resources retaining tribal cultural integrity shall be consistent 
with the avoidance and minimization standards identified in this mitigation measure. 

If the County determines that the project may cause a significant impact to a cultural resource or 
tribal cultural resource, and measures are not otherwise identified in the consultation process, the 
following are examples of mitigation capable of avoiding or substantially lessening potential 
significant impacts to a tribal cultural resource or alternatives that would avoid significant 
impacts to the resource. These measures may be considered to avoid or minimize significant 
adverse impacts and constitute the standard by which an impact conclusion of less-than 
significant may be reached: 

• Avoid and preserve resources in place, including, but not limited to, planning construction to 
avoid the resources and protect the cultural and natural context, or planning greenspace, 
parks, or other open space, to incorporate the resources with culturally appropriate protection 
and management criteria. 

• Treat the resource with culturally appropriate dignity considering Tribal cultural values and 
meaning of the resource, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Protect the cultural character and integrity of the resource. 

• Protect the traditional use of the resource. 

• Protect the confidentiality of the resource. 

• Establish permanent conservation easements or other interests in real property, with 
culturally appropriate management criteria for the purposes of preserving or using the 
resources or places. 

• Protect the resource. 

Responsibility: County of Inyo / Construction Contractor  
Timing:  Before and During Construction Activities  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-45 Initial Study Checklist 

b) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 
tribal cultural resource, defined in PRC Section 21074 as either a site, feature, 
place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and 
scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California 
Native American tribe, and that is a resource determined by the lead agency, in its 
discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of PRC Section 5024.1.  

See checklist Item “a” above.   

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-46 Initial Study Checklist 

3.21 Utilities and Service Systems 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XIX. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or storm water 
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the 
construction or relocation of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably 
foreseeable future development during 
normal, dry, and multiple dry years? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider that serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to 
serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the capacity 
of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair 
the attainment of solid waste reduction 
goals? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

e) Comply with Federal, State, and local 
management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.21.1 Discussion 
a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, 

wastewater treatment or storm water drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

Replacement of the existing storm damaged bridge would not generate any new housing, 
businesses, or other changes that would increase the demand for utilities or related service 
systems beyond their current capacity. Therefore, the proposed project would not require or 
result in the construction of new or upgraded utility systems. Consequently, no impact would 
occur. 

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably 
foreseeable future development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years? 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-47 Initial Study Checklist 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider that serves or 
may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s 
projected demand in addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in excess of the 
capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste 
reduction goals? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

e) Comply with Federal, State, and local management and reduction statutes and 
regulations related to solid waste? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-48 Initial Study Checklist 

3.22 Wildfire 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XX. WILDFIRE. 

If located in or near State responsibility areas or 
lands classified as very high fire hazard severity 
zones, would the project: 

     

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other 
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and 
thereby expose project occupants to, 
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ 

c) Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, 
fuel breaks, emergency water sources, 
power lines, or other utilities) that may 
exacerbate fire risk or that may result in 
temporary or ongoing impacts to the 
environment? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

d) Expose people or structures to significant 
risks, including downslope or downstream 
flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, 
post-fire slope instability, or drainage 
changes? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.22.1 Discussion 
a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency 

evacuation plan? 

Replacement of the existing storm damaged bridge would improve local circulation patterns by 
restoring connectivity to North Round Valley Road, resulting in a benefit to emergency response 
within the local area. No short or long-term impacts are anticipated to local emergency response 
plans. Consequently, implementation of the proposed project would result in a beneficial impact. 

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and 
thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

Heavy equipment used during project construction has the potential to start a fire on surrounding 
open space areas near the project site. However, implementation of Mitigation Measure HAZ-1 
(more fully described above in Section 3.11 “Hazards and Hazardous Materials”) would 
reduce the potential for construction-related wildland fires by providing a clearing, reducing fire 
fuels and removing fire sustaining litter. In addition, during construction, spark arrestors or turbo 
chargers (which eliminate sparks in exhaust) and fire extinguishers would be required for all 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-49 Initial Study Checklist 

heavy equipment. Consequently, this impact is less-than-significant with mitigation 
incorporated.  

c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as 
roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines, or other utilities) that 
may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the 
environment? 

 See checklist Item “a” above.   

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or 
downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope 
instability, or drainage changes? 

Replacement of the existing storm damaged bridge does not include any project features that 
would expose people or structures to significant wildlife, flooding, or landslide risks, as the 
replacement bridge would be similar in size and occur within the same project footprint. 
Consequently, no impact would occur. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-50 Initial Study Checklist 

3.23 Mandatory Findings of Significance 

Environmental Issue 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less-than-
Significant 
Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less-than-
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 
Beneficial 

Impact 

XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
SIGNIFICANCE. 

Would the project: 

     

a) Have the potential to substantially degrade 
the quality of the environment, substantially 
reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife population to 
drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal community, 
substantially reduce the number or restrict 
the range of an endangered, rare, or 
threatened species, or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of California 
history or prehistory? 

☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ ☐ 

b) Have impacts that are individually limited, 
but cumulatively considerable? 
("Cumulatively considerable" means that the 
incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in connection 
with the effects of past projects, the effects 
of other current projects, and the effects of 
probable future projects)? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

c) Have environmental effects which will cause 
substantial adverse effects on human 
beings, either directly or indirectly? 

☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ ☐ 

 

3.23.1 Discussion 
a) Would the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the 

environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a 
fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or 
restrict the range of an endangered, rare, or threatened species, or eliminate 
important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

As discussed in the Air Quality, Biological Resources, Cultural Resources, Geology and Soils, 
Hazards, Hydrology and Water Quality, and Tribal Cultural Resources sections, any potentially 
significant impacts related to the quality of the environment, plant, fish, or wildlife habitat or 
populations, special-status species, and important historical or cultural resources would be 
reduced to a less-than-significant level through implementation of avoidance and minimization 
measures and by incorporating mitigation measures. No known cultural resources would be 
affected by the proposed project and if unidentified resources are encountered during 
construction, mitigation measures are in place to ensure that impacts would be less than 

significant. 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-51 Initial Study Checklist 

b) Would the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? (“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects 
of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future 
projects.) 

There are no past, present, or probably future projects in the vicinity of the proposed project. No 
cumulative impact would occur. 

c) Would the project have environmental effects that will cause substantial adverse 
effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

As discussed throughout this IS, construction and operation of the proposed project would not 
cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly. The proposed 
project is being implemented for the specific purpose of restoring circulation and public safety. 
Furthermore, mitigation measures are provided as necessary to reduce the proposed project’s 
potentially significant effects on air quality, biological resources, cultural resources, geology and 
soils, hazards, hydrology and water quality, and tribal cultural resources to less-than-significant 
levels. Thus, construction and operation of the proposed project would not cause substantial 
adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly. Replacement of the existing storm 
damaged bridge would actually improve local circulation patterns by restoring connectivity to 
North Round Valley Road, resulting in a benefit to emergency response within the local area. 
There would be no cumulative impact. 

  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration 3-52 Initial Study Checklist 

 

This page intentionally left blank. 

 
 



 

 

Appendix A. Biological Survey Letter 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-1 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-2 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-3 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-4 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-5 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-6 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-7 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-8 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-9 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-10 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-11 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-12 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-13 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-14 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-15 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-16 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-17 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-18 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-19 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-20 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-21 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-22 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-23 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-24 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-25 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-26 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-27 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-28 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-29 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-30 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-31 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-32 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-33 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-34 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-35 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-36 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-37 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-38 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-39 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-40 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-41 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-42 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-43 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-44 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-45 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-46 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-47 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-48 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-49 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-50 Appendix A 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-51 Appendix A 

 
  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration A-52 Appendix A 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-1 Appendix B 

Appendix B. Comment Letters 
 
This appendix includes the comment letters received during the agency/public review period for the 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (from November 8, 2019 to December 9, 2019). A 
summary of the comment letters (along with responses) is provided below in Table B-1. 

Table B-1.  Summary of Comment Letters  
Letter Date Commenter  Comment Summary  Response  

December 5, 2019 California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife  

The commenter summarizes 
the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife’s role as a 
Trustee Agency over the 
project and provides 
recommendations on the 
timing for pre-construction 
nesting bird surveys. The 
commenter also agrees with 
the IS/MND’s conclusions 
that the project will require 
compliance with the Lake 
and Streambed Alteration 
Program.   

In response to the comments 
provided, Mitigation Measures BIO-
1: “Avoid and Minimize Effects to 
Nesting Swainson’s Hawk” and   
BIO-2: “Pre-Construction Bird 
Surveys” (more fully described on 
pages 3-10 through 3-12 of Section 
3.6 “Biological Resources”) will be 
modified to ensure pre-construction 
bird surveys are conducted as close to 
the construction start date as possible 
(no more than 3 days prior to the 
commencement of onsite vegetation 
clearing) to ensure no bird species are 
missed. The updated mitigation 
measures are provided in Appendix C 
“Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program” of this initial study.   

December 9, 2019 Los Angeles Department of Water 
and Power 

The commenter requests 
that the County right-of-way 
limits for the project be 
confirmed. The commenter 
indicates that the proposed 
construction start date 
(May) may not be possible 
due to stream runoff 
conditions. The commenter 
also requests that the 
implementation of any 
biological resource 
mitigation measures (i.e., 
dewatering, pre-
construction surveys, etc.) 
which encroach on LADWP 
lands be coordinated with 
LADWP staff. This includes 
providing the LADWP with 
copies of the regulatory 
permits requiring the 
surveys, a map of the areas 
to be surveyed, and the 
survey results. 

Comments are noted. The County will 
coordinate as appropriate for obtaining 
access to LADWP lands, if necessary, 
during the construction process.  

     

 
  



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-2 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-3 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-4 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-5 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-6 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-7 Appendix B 

 
 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration B-8 Appendix B 

 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-1 Appendix C 

Appendix C. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program  

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the Inyo County Department of 
Public Works (County) prepared an initial study/proposed mitigated negative declaration (IS/MND) in 
2019 to provide the public and responsible and trustee agencies with information regarding the potential 
environmental impacts associated with implementation of the North Round Valley Road Bridge over 
Pine Creek Replacement Project, (hereafter referred to as the “project”). 

The IS/MND concludes that implementation of the proposed project would generate significant and 
potentially significant adverse effects on the environment. The IS/MND identifies feasible mitigation 
measures that avoid, mitigate, or reduce these impacts to a less-than-significant level.  

Section 21081.6(a)(1) of the California Public Resources Code (PRC) and Section 15097 of the State 
CEQA Guidelines require a public agency to adopt a reporting and monitoring program on the revisions 
which it has required in the project and the measures it has imposed to mitigate or avoid significant 
environmental impacts on the physical environment.  

This Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) provided below in Table C-1 will be used 
by the County to ensure that mitigation measures identified in the MND are implemented as described in 
the MND and that their implementation is documented. The MMRP may be modified by the County 
during project implementation, as necessary, in response to changing conditions or other refinements. 

In responding to comments received on the IS/MND, Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2 were 
modified to ensure pre-construction nesting bird surveys are conducted as close to the construction start 
date as possible (no more than 3 days prior to the commencement of onsite vegetation clearing) to ensure 
no bird species are missed. These minor edits to Mitigation Measures BIO-1 and BIO-2 are identified 
below (underline and strikeout text) in Table C-1.   

The MMRP is presented in tabular format. The table columns contain the following information: 

▪ Mitigation Number: Lists the mitigation measures by number, as designated in the MND. 

▪ Mitigation Measure: Provides the text of the mitigation measures, each of which has been adopted 
and incorporated into the project. 

▪ Timing/Schedule: Lists the time frame in which the mitigation measure is expected to take place.  

▪ Implementation Responsibility: Identifies the entity responsible for implementing the mitigation 
measure. 

▪ Completion of Implementation: The County is responsible for reporting on implementation of the 
mitigation measures. The “Completion of Implementation” column is to be used by the County to 
indicate when implementation of a mitigation measure has been completed. The County, at its 
discretion, may delegate implementation responsibility or portions thereof to qualified consultants or 
contractors. 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-2 Appendix C 

 
Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 

Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

AIR QUALITY  

AIR-1 Dust and Engine Emissions Control Measures  
Inyo County shall ensure that the construction contractor will 
comply with District Rule 401 regulations. In addition to 
reasonable precautions outlined in Rule 401, the following 
measures shall be incorporated during the demolition and 
installation of the bridge and realigned roadway approaches: 

1. Water or dust palliatives shall be applied on dirt roads, 
material stockpiles, and other surfaces that could give 
rise to airborne dust and are subject to disturbance. 

2. Water or dust palliatives shall be applied to prevent 
particulate matter from becoming airborne during the 
transportation or stockpiling of dusty materials. 

3. Trucks hauling material shall be covered during 
transit. 

4. Roadways shall be maintained in a clean condition. 

5. Vehicles shall be limited to 15 miles per hour (mph) 
on unpaved roads, to the extent feasible. 

6. Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting 
equipment off when not in use or reducing the 
maximum idling time to 5 minutes (as required by the 
California airborne toxics control measure Title 13, 
Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations 
[CCR]). 

7. All construction equipment shall be maintained and 
properly tuned in accordance with manufacturer ‘s 
specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a 
certified visible emissions evaluator. 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

BIO-1 Avoid and Minimize Effects to Nesting Swainson’s Hawk   
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement 
the following measures to avoid and minimize potential 
adverse effects on nesting Swainson’s hawk during project 
construction. 

1. Preconstruction surveys for active Swainson’s hawk 
nests shall be conducted by a qualified biologist in all 
areas of suitable nesting habitat within 0.25-mile of 
project disturbance. A minimum of one survey shall be 
conducted no more than 3 14 days before project 
activities commence.  

2. Appropriate buffers shall be established and 
maintained around active nest sites to avoid nest 
failure from project activities. The appropriate size and 
shape of the buffers shall be determined by a qualified 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-3 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

biologist and may vary depending on the nest 
location, nest stage, and construction activity. The 
buffers may be adjusted if a qualified biologist 
determines it would not be likely to adversely affect 
the nest. Monitoring shall be conducted to confirm that 
project activities are not resulting in detectable 
adverse effects on nesting birds or their young. No 
project activities shall commence within the buffer 
areas until a qualified biologist determines that the 
young have fledged, or the nest site is otherwise no 
longer in use.  

BIO-2 Pre-Construction Bird Surveys  
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement 
the following measures to avoid and minimize destruction of 
active bird nests and potential violation of FGC Section 3503 
during project construction: 

1. If vegetation removal must occur during the migratory 
bird nesting season (March 15 through July 31), 
surveys for active bird nests shall be conducted by a 
qualified biologist in areas of suitable nesting 
vegetation designated for removal. If active nests are 
found, removal of vegetation in which the nests are 
located will be delayed until a qualified biologist 
determines that the young have fledged, or the nest 
site is otherwise no longer in use. 

2. Preconstruction surveys for active nests of common 
raptor species shall be conducted by a qualified 
biologist. Surveys for raptor nests shall include 
suitable habitat within up to 300 feet of areas subject 
to project disturbance, depending on the potential 
extent of indirect impact. Surveys shall be conducted 
within 3 14 days before commencement of any 
construction activities that occur during the raptor 
nesting season (March 15 to July 31) in a given area. 

3. If any active nests, or behaviors indicating active 
nests are present, are observed, appropriate buffers 
around the nest sites shall be determined by a 
qualified biologist to avoid nest failure resulting from 
project activities. Buffer size shall depend on the 
species, nest location, nest stage, and specific 
construction activities to be performed while the nest 
is active. The buffers may be adjusted if a qualified 
biologist determines it would not be likely to adversely 
affect the nest. If buffers are adjusted, monitoring 
shall be conducted to confirm that project activity is 
not resulting in detectable adverse effects on nesting 
birds or their young. No project activity shall 
commence within the buffer areas until a qualified 
biologist determines that the young have fledged, or 
the nest site is otherwise no longer in use. 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

BIO-3 Conduct Environmental Awareness Training Regarding 
Special-status Species and Sensitive Habitats prior to 
Construction 
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor will 
implement the following actions before and during construction 
activities: 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-4 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

Before any work occurs in the proposed project footprint, 
including grading and equipment staging, all construction 
personnel shall participate in an environmental awareness 
training regarding special-status species and sensitive habitats 
present in the project limits. The training shall describe 
sensitive resources (i.e., waters of the U.S. and state, riparian 
habitat, special-status species and habitat, nesting 
birds/raptors) to be avoided during project construction and 
applicable permit conditions identified by state and federal 
agencies to protect these resources. If new construction 
personnel are added to the project, they must receive the 
mandatory training before starting work. After being trained, 
each construction person shall sign-in to document they 
received the training. 

BIO-4 Return Temporarily Disturbed Areas to Pre-Project 
Conditions  
The County shall ensure the construction contractor will 
implement the following actions before and during construction 
activities: 

All temporarily disturbed areas shall be returned to pre-project 
conditions within one year following completion of 
construction/maintenance. These areas shall be properly 
protected from washout and erosion using appropriate erosion 
control devices including coir netting, hydroseeding, and 
revegetation. 

During and After 
Construction 

Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

BIO-5 Avoid the Spread of Invasive Plant Species  
The County shall ensure the following mitigation measures 
shall be implemented, as appropriate, to avoid the spreading of 
invasive plant species throughout the project site during 
construction and maintenance activities, particularly in riparian 
areas: 

1. All hay, straw, hay bales, straw bales, seed, mulch, or 
other material used for erosion control or landscaping 
on the project site, and all material brought to the site, 
including rock, gravel, road base, sand, and top soil, 
shall be free of noxious weed seeds and propagules. 
Noxious weeds are defined in Title 3, Division 4, 
Chapter 6, Section 4500 of the California Code of 
Regulations and the California Quarantine Policy – 
Weeds. (Food and Agriculture Code, Sections 6305, 
6341 and 6461) 

2. All equipment brought to the project site for 
construction shall be thoroughly cleaned of all dirt and 
vegetation prior to entering the site to prevent 
importing noxious weeds. (Food and Agriculture 
Code, Section 5401) 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

BIO-6 Avoid and Minimize Effects to Special-status Fish 
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement 
the following measures to avoid and minimize adverse impact 
on special-status fish species. 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-5 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

1. The construction contractor shall prepare a 
dewatering plan, which shall be reviewed by a 
qualified fisheries biologist retained by Inyo County.  

2. A qualified biologist shall be present during 
dewatering activities and shall relocate fish 
downstream to flowing waters outside the project site, 
if necessary.  

3. No refueling, storage, servicing, or maintenance of 
equipment shall take place on the shore within 100 
feet of the Ordinary High-Water Mark (OHWM) of Pine 
Creek.  

4. All machinery used during project construction shall 
be properly maintained and cleaned to prevent spills 
and leaks that could contaminate soil or water. 
Secondary containment for stationary machinery used 
to dewater, such as pumps or generators, shall be 
used.  

5. All pumps used to conduct dewatering activities shall 
be screened to prevent fish entrainment.  

6. The area surrounding concrete abutment footings 
shall remain dry until cement is fully cured. Any 
waters that make contact with wet cement shall be 
disposed of outside of the active channel of Pine 
Creek.  

BIO-7 Avoid and Minimize Effects to waters of the United 
States/waters of the State 
Inyo County shall ensure the construction contractor implement 
the following measures to avoid and minimize direct fill of 
waters of the United States in Pine Creek. Pine Creek is also a 
water of the state, regulated under Section 401 of the CWA, 
and subject to regulation by CDFW under Section 1600 of the 
California Fish and Game Code.   

1. Ground disturbance shall be limited to construction 
areas, including necessary access routes and staging 
areas. The total area of the project activity shall be 
limited to the minimum necessary. When possible, 
existing access routes and points shall be used. All 
roads, staging areas, and other facilities shall be 
placed to avoid and limit disturbance to Pine Creek 
when feasible.  

2. A Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) or 
a Water Pollution Control Plan (for disturbance areas 
less than an acre) that identifies specific best 
management practices (BMPs) to avoid and minimize 
impacts on water quality during construction activities 
shall be prepared and implemented. BMPs may 
include: 

Before, During, 
and After 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-6 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

3. Erosion control measures that minimize soil or 
sediment from entering waterways and wetlands shall 
be installed, monitored for effectiveness, and 
maintained throughout construction activities.  

4. Precautions to minimize turbidity/siltation shall be 
implemented during construction. This may require 
placing barriers (e.g., silt curtains) to prevent silt 
and/or other deleterious materials from entering 
downstream reaches.  

5. Petroleum products, chemicals, fresh cement, and 
construction by-products containing, or water 
contaminated by, any such materials shall not be 
allowed to enter flowing waters and shall be collected 
and transported to an authorized upland disposal 
area.  

6. A written spill prevention and control plan (SPCP) 
shall be prepared and implemented. The SPCP and 
all material necessary for its implementation shall be 
accessible on-site prior to initiation of project 
construction and throughout the construction period. 
The SPCP shall include a plan for the emergency 
cleanup of any spills of fuel or other material. 
Employees/construction workers shall be provided the 
necessary information from the SPCP to prevent or 
reduce the discharge of pollutants from construction 
activities to waters and to use the appropriate 
measures should a spill occur. In the event of a spill, 
work shall stop immediately and CDFW, Lahontan 
Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB), and 
United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 
shall be notified within 24 hours.  

7. Before the commencement of construction activities, 
high-visibility fencing shall be erected to protect areas 
of Pine Creek that are located adjacent to 
construction areas, but can be avoided, from 
encroachment of personnel and equipment. The 
fencing shall be inspected before the start of each 
work day and shall be removed only when the 
construction within a given area is completed. Limits 
of waters of the United States shall be incorporated 
into project bid specifications, along with a 
requirement for contractors to avoid these areas. 

8. A qualified biologist shall monitor the start of in-water 
construction activities to ensure that avoidance and 
minimization measures are being properly 
implemented and no unauthorized activities occur.  

9. Project implementation would result in the need to 
obtain regulatory permits from USACE, RWQCB, and 
CDFW for direct impacts to Pine Creek. All measures 
developed through consultation with the respective 
regulatory agencies shall be implemented. 

10. Section 404: Before any ground-disturbing project 
activities begin in Pine Creek, a qualified biologist 
shall conduct a formal delineation of waters of the 
United States for Clean Water Act Section 404 
permitting. The findings shall be documented in a 
detailed report and submitted to USACE for 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-7 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

verification as part of the Section 404 wetland 
delineation process. Authorization for fill of 
jurisdictional waters of the United States shall be 
secured from USACE via the Section 404 permitting 
process before project construction. Any measures 
determined necessary during the 404 permitting 
process shall be implemented during project 
construction.  

11. Section 401: Water quality certification pursuant to 
Section 401 of the Clean Water Act shall be obtained 
from the Lahontan RWQCB before starting project 
construction in any areas that may contain waters of 
the State. Any measures required as part of the 
issuance of water quality certification shall be 
implemented.  

12. Section 1602: A CDFW lake and streambed alteration 
agreement shall be obtained under Section 1602 of 
the California Fish and Game Code for all work below 
the top of bank of Pine Creek. Any conditions of 
issuance of the lake and streambed alteration 
agreement shall be implemented as part of project 
implementation.  

CULTURAL RESOURCES AND TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES  

CR-1 Install Environmentally Sensitive Area Fencing Around 
Portions of Resource RV-1  
To ensure no adverse effects to the resource, Inyo County will 
ensure that the construction contractor install Environmentally 
Sensitive Area fencing around portions of the RV-1 resource 
near the roadway limits to clearly depict the limits of the 
resource. The fencing would provide a visual reference, so 
construction personnel can clearly recognize the resource limits 
on the ground and ensure no adverse effects to RV-1.  

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-8 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

CR-2 Accidental Finding of Human Remains   
1. If human remains are found, the California Health and 

Safety Code requires that excavation be halted in the 
immediate area and that the Inyo County Coroner be 
notified to determine the nature of the remains. The 
Coroner is required to examine all discoveries of 
human remains within 48 hours of receiving notice of 
a discovery on private of State lands (California Health 
and Safety Code, Section 7050.5[b]). If the Coroner 
determines that the remains are those of a Native 
American, he or she must contact the Native 
American Heritage Commission (NAHC) by telephone 
within 24 hours of making that determination 
(California Health and Safety Code, Section 
7050.5[c]). 

2. Once notified by the Coroner, the NAHC shall identify 
the person it believes it the Most Likely Descendant 
(MLD) of the Native American remains. With 
permission of the legal landowner(s), the MLD may 
visit the site and make recommendations regarding 
the treatment and disposition of the human remains 
and any associated grave goods. This visit should be 
conducted with 48 hours of the MLD’s notification by 
the NAHC (California Public Resources Code [PRC], 
Section 5097.98[a]). If a satisfactory agreement for 
treatment of the remains cannot be reached, any of 
the parties may request mediation by the NAHC 
(California PRC, Section 5097.94[k]). Should 
mediation fail, the landowner or landowner’s 
representative must reinter the remains and 
associated items with appropriate dignity on the 
property in a location not subject to further subsurface 
disturbance (California PRC, Section 5097.98[b]).  

During 
Construction 

Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

CR-3 In the Event that Tribal Cultural Resources or Cultural 
Resources Are Discovered During Construction, 
Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures and 
Procedures to Evaluate Resources 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

If cultural resources or tribal cultural resources (such as Native 
American archaeological materials, sacred objects, unusual 
amounts of bone or shell, artifacts, or human remains and 
associated objects and materials) are encountered at the 
project site during construction, work shall be suspended within 
100 feet of the find (based on the apparent distribution of 
cultural materials), and the construction contractor shall 
immediately notify the project’s County representative. 
Avoidance and preservation in place is the preferred manner of 
mitigating impacts to cultural resources or tribal cultural 
resources. This will be accomplished, if feasible, by several 
alternative means, including: 

• Recommendations for avoidance of cultural resources 
or tribal cultural resources will be reviewed by the 
County representative, interested culturally affiliated 
Native American tribes and other appropriate 
agencies, considering factors such as costs, logistics, 
feasibility, design, technology and social, cultural and 
environmental considerations, and the extent to which 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-9 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

avoidance is consistent with project objectives. 
Avoidance and design alternatives may include 
realignment within the project site to avoid cultural 
resources or tribal cultural resources, modification of 
the design to eliminate or reduce impacts to tribal 
cultural resources or modification or realignment to 
avoid highly significant features within a cultural 
resource or tribal cultural resource. 

• Native American representatives from interested 
culturally affiliated Native American tribes will be 
invited to review and comment on these analyses and 
shall have the opportunity to meet with the County 
representative and its representatives who have 
technical expertise to identify and recommend feasible 
avoidance and design alternatives, so that appropriate 
and feasible avoidance and design alternatives can be 
identified. 

• If the discovered cultural resource or tribal cultural 
resource can be avoided, the construction 
contractor(s), will install protective fencing outside the 
site boundary, including a 100-foot buffer area, before 
construction restarts. The boundary of a tribal cultural 
resource will be determined in consultation with 
interested culturally affiliated Native American tribes 
and tribes will be invited to monitor the installation of 
fencing. Use of temporary and permanent forms of 
protective fencing will be determined in consultation 
with Native American representatives from interested 
culturally affiliated Native American tribes. 

• The construction contractor(s) will maintain the 
protective fencing throughout construction to avoid the 
site during all remaining phases of construction. The 
area will be demarcated as an “Environmentally 
Sensitive Area”. 

If a cultural resource or tribal cultural resource cannot be 
avoided, the following performance standard shall be met prior 
to continuance of construction and associated activities that 
may result in damage to or destruction of tribal cultural 
resources: 

• Each resource will be evaluated for California Register 
of Historical Resources- (CRHR) eligibility through 
application of established eligibility criteria (California 
Code of Regulations 15064.636), in consultation with 
consulting Native American Tribes, as applicable. 

If a cultural resource or tribal cultural resource is determined to 
be eligible for listing in the CRHR, the County will avoid 
damaging effects to the resource in accordance with California 
PRC Section 21084.3, if feasible. The County shall coordinate 
the investigation of the find with a qualified archaeologist 
(meeting the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional 
Qualifications Standards for Archeology) approved by the 
County and with interested culturally affiliated Native American 
tribes that respond to the County’s invitation. As part of the site 
investigation and resource assessment, the County and the 
archaeologist shall consult with interested culturally affiliated 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-10 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

Native American tribes to assess the significance of the find, 
make recommendations for further evaluation and treatment as 
necessary and provide proper management recommendations 
should potential impacts to the resources be determined by the 
County to be significant. A written report detailing the site 
assessment, coordination activities, and management 
recommendations shall be provided to the County 
representative by the qualified archaeologist. These 
recommendations will be documented in the project record. For 
any recommendations made by interested culturally affiliated 
Native American tribes that are not implemented, a justification 
for why the recommendation was not followed will be provided 
in the project record. 
Native American representatives from interested culturally 
affiliated Native American Tribes and the County representative 
will also consult to develop measures for long-term 
management of any discovered Native American cultural 
resources or tribal cultural resources. Consultation will be 
limited to actions consistent with the jurisdiction of the County 
and considering ownership of the subject property. To the 
extent that the County has jurisdiction, routine operation and 
maintenance within tribal cultural resources retaining tribal 
cultural integrity shall be consistent with the avoidance and 
minimization standards identified in this mitigation measure. 
If the County determines that the project may cause a 
significant impact to a cultural resource or tribal cultural 
resource, and measures are not otherwise identified in the 
consultation process, the following are examples of mitigation 
capable of avoiding or substantially lessening potential 
significant impacts to a tribal cultural resource or alternatives 
that would avoid significant impacts to the resource. These 
measures may be considered to avoid or minimize significant 
adverse impacts and constitute the standard by which an 
impact conclusion of less-than significant may be reached: 

• Avoid and preserve resources in place, including, but 
not limited to, planning construction to avoid the 
resources and protect the cultural and natural context, 
or planning greenspace, parks, or other open space, 
to incorporate the resources with culturally appropriate 
protection and management criteria. 

• Treat the resource with culturally appropriate dignity 
considering Tribal cultural values and meaning of the 
resource, including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Protect the cultural character and integrity of the 
resource. 

• Protect the traditional use of the resource. 
• Protect the confidentiality of the resource. 
• Establish permanent conservation easements or other 

interests in real property, with culturally appropriate 
management criteria for the purposes of preserving or 
using the resources or places. 

• Protect the resource. 
 



 

Inyo County Public Works Department   GEI Consultants Inc. 
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration C-11 Appendix C 

Table C-1. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the North Round Valley 
Road Bridge over Pine Creek Replacement Project. 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measure Timing/Schedule 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Completion of 
Implementation 

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS AND WILDFIRES 

HAZ-1 Implement BMPs for Wildland Fire Prevention   
Inyo County shall ensure that the construction contractor will 
clear dried vegetation or other materials that could serve as 
fuel for combustion from construction or building areas. To the 
extent feasible, the contractor shall keep these areas clear of 
combustible materials to maintain a firebreak. Construction 
contractors shall ensure that any construction equipment that 
normally includes a spark arrester shall be equipped with an 
arrester in good working order. This includes, but is not limited 
to, vehicles, heavy equipment, and chainsaws. 

Before and 
During 

Construction 
Activities 

County / 
Construction 
Contractor 

 

 

 
 



 

Section 2 

Foundation Report (Final Submittal) North Round Valley Road 
Bridge, Round Valley, California Dated August 10, 2020 

 

 

  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060  August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder   R 

3731 West Ashcroft Ave, Fresno, CA 3722    p| 559-486-0750      f| 559-442-5081 

 
 
 

 
August 10, 2020 
File No.: 20191324.001 
 
 
Mr. Robert Sennett 
MGE Engineering, Inc. 
7415 Greenhaven Drive 
Sacramento, California 95831 
Phone: (916) 421-1000 
Email: rsennett@mgeeng.com 
 
 
SUBJECT: Foundation Report (Final Submittal) 

North Round Valley Road Bridge 
Round Valley, California 

 
Dear Mr. Sennett: 
 
The attached foundation report presents the results of the geotechnical study for the North Round 
Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek in Round Valley, California. This report describes our study 
and provides conclusions and recommendations for use in foundation design. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide geotechnical engineering services to Inyo County and 
other project designers during the design phase of the project. We trust this information meets 
your current needs. If there are any questions concerning the information presented in this report, 
please contact this office at your convenience. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
KLEINFELDER, INC.  
  

Adam AhTye, EIT  Stephen P. Plauson, P.E., G.E. 
Staff Engineer  Principal Geotechnical Professional 
 
AA;SPP:crt 

mailto:rsennett@mgeeng.com


 

 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder 

All Rights Reserved 
 

ONLY THE CLIENT OR ITS DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES MAY USE THE DOCUMENT AND ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC 
PROJECT FOR WHICH THIS REPORT WAS PREPARED. 

 
20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 i August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOUNDATION REPORT (Final Submittal) 
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 A report prepared for: 
 
 MGE Engineering, Inc. 
 7415 Greenhaven Drive 
 Sacramento, California 95831 
 
 
  Report prepared by: 
 
 
  Kleinfelder, Inc 
  3731 West Ashcroft Avenue 
  Fresno, California 93722 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 August 10, 2020 
   
 
 File No.: 20191324.001A 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 ii August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
 
 
Prepared For: 
MGE Engineering, Inc. 
7415 Greenhaven Drive 
Sacramento, California 95831 
 
 
 
FOUNDATION REPORT (Final Submittal) 
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 
ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 
 
Kleinfelder Job No.: 20191324.001A 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
  
Adam AhTye, EIT 
Staff Engineer 
 
 
 
 
 
  
Stephen P. Plauson, P.E., G.E. 
Principal Geotechnical Engineer 
 
 
 
KLEINFELDER  
3731 West Ashcroft Avenue 
Fresno, California 93722 
(559) 486-0750 
 
 
 
 
August 10, 2020 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 iii August 20, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Chapter Page 

1 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................. 1 
1.1 GENERAL .................................................................................................. 1 
1.2 SCOPE OF WORK .................................................................................... 1 

1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ......................................................................... 2 
1.4 POLICY EXCEPTIONS.............................................................................. 4 

2 FIELD AND LABORATORY PROGRAMS .......................................................... 5 
2.1 INVESTIGATION AND TESTING .............................................................. 5 
2.2 LABORATORY TESTING PROGRAM ...................................................... 5 

3 SITE GEOLOGY AND CONDITIONS .................................................................. 7 
3.1 CONDITIONS AND TOPOGRAPHY ......................................................... 7 

3.2 REGIONAL GEOLOGY ............................................................................. 7 

3.3 EARTH MATERIALS ................................................................................. 7 
3.4 GROUNDWATER ...................................................................................... 8 
3.5 CHANNEL SCOUR/DEGRADATION......................................................... 8 

4 CORROSION POTENTIAL .................................................................................. 9 

5 SEISMIC RECOMMENDATIONS ...................................................................... 10 

5.1 LOCAL FAULTING .................................................................................. 10 
5.2 SEISMIC DESIGN CRITERIA .................................................................. 10 

5.2.1 Deterministic Response Spectrum ................................................ 12 

5.2.2 Probabilistic Response Spectrum ................................................. 12 

5.2.3 Design Response Spectrum ......................................................... 12 
5.2.4 References .................................................................................... 12 

5.3 LIQUEFACTION POTENTIAL ................................................................. 12 

5.3.1 General ......................................................................................... 12 

6 FOUNDATION CONSIDERATIONS .................................................................. 14 

6.1 GENERAL ................................................................................................ 14 
6.2 PILE FOUNDATIONS .............................................................................. 14 

6.2.1 Axial Capacity ............................................................................... 14 
6.2.1 Foundation Construction Considerations ...................................... 16 
6.2.2 Lateral Capacity ............................................................................ 16 

6.3 DYNAMIC LOADING ............................................................................... 17 
6.3.1 Abutment Dynamic Lateral Resistance ......................................... 17 

6.4 EARTH RETAINING SYSTEMS .............................................................. 18 
6.5 EARTHWORK ......................................................................................... 20 

6.6 PAVEMENTS ........................................................................................... 20 
6.6.1 Design R-Value ............................................................................. 20 
6.6.2 HMA Pavements ........................................................................... 21 

7 CLOSURE .......................................................................................................... 22 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 iv August 20, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

FIGURE 1 – EXPLORATION LOCATION PLAN AND VICINITY MAP 
 
APPENDIX A – LOG OF TEST BORINGS 
APPENDIX B – LABORATORY TESTING SUMMARY 
APPENDIX C – LABORATORY TESTING RESULTS 
 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 1 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder   

1 INTRODUCTION 

  

1.1 GENERAL 

This report presents results of the geotechnical evaluation for the North Round Valley Road 
Bridge over Pine Creek in Round Valley, California.  
 
1.2 SCOPE OF WORK 

The purpose of the Foundation Report is to provide geotechnical recommendations and opinions 
to aid in design of the project. The scope of services consisted of field exploration, laboratory 
testing, engineering analysis, and preparation of this written report. The report provides the 
following: 
 

• A description of the proposed project; 

• Discussion of the field and laboratory testing programs; 

• Comments on the corrosion potential of foundation soil;  

• Comments on the regional geology and site engineering seismology, including the 
potential for liquefaction, seismically induced settlement, and lateral spreading; 

• Discussion of potential scour; 

• Recommended peak ground acceleration and ARS curve based on Caltrans Seismic 
Design Criteria 1.7;  

• Recommendations for pile foundations, including design and specified tip elevations; 

• Recommended LPILE parameters for use in evaluating the pile response to lateral loads; 

• Comments on initial soil stiffness and ultimate equivalent lateral pressure by Caltrans 
procedures for abutment endwalls; Recommended pavement structural section, using 
Caltrans guidelines for roadway improvements; 

• Earthwork recommendations to supplement Caltrans Standard Specifications;  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 2 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder   

• Recommended pavement structural section, using Caltrans guidelines for roadway 
improvements; and 

• Log of Test Borings (LOTB) 

 
1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The existing bridge structure on N. Round Valley Road over Pine Creek consists of a single lane 
reinforced concrete box culvert with concrete wingwalls.  The existing bridge suffered irreparable 
flood damage causing the need for replacement.  The bridge will be replaced with a new single-
span reinforced concrete bridge structure.  The total bridge length will be about 80.3 feet and will 
consist of standard precast-prestressed “I”-Girders with composite reinforced concrete deck slab, 
supported on cantilever seat type abutments. The structure will be supported 24-inch Cast-in-
Drilled Hole (CIDH) piles at the abutments.  
 
The hydraulic analysis by others indicated the scour depth is 12 feet, therefore, pile capacity is to 
neglect the available skin friction resistance above elevation 4650.75 feet.   
 
Tables 1.2-1 and 1.2-2 present foundation design data and foundation design loads used for this 
geotechnical evaluation. The data in Tables 1.2-1 and 1.2-2 are based on information provided 
by MGE Engineering, Inc.  
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 3 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

 
TABLE 1.2-1 

PILE FOUNDATION DESIGN DATA SHEET 

Support Station Pile Type Cut-off 
Elev. (ft) 

Pile Cap Size (ft) 

Sp(1) 
No. Piles 

Per 
Support 

B L 

Abut 1 13+58.00 24 in CIDH 4662.5 10 42 1 16 

Abut 2 14+43.00 24 in CIDH 4662.5 10 42 1 16 

Note: (1) Permissible settlement under service limit load.  
 

TABLE 1.2-2 
PILE FOUNDATION DESIGN LOADS 

Support Pile 
Type 

Service Limit State (kips) Strength Limit State (kips) Extreme Event Limit State (kips) 

Total Load Permanent 
Loads Compression Tension Compression Tension 

Per 
Support 

Max 
Per 
Pile 

Per 
Support 

Per 
Support 

Max Per 
Pile 

Max Per 
Pile 

Per 
Support  

Max Per 
Pile 

Max Per 
Pile 

Abut 1 24 in 
CIDH 1714 182 1341 2211 277 1 1341 228 60 

Abut 2 24 in 
CIDH 1714 182 1341 2211 277 1 1341 228 60 

 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 4 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

1.4 POLICY EXCEPTIONS 

Abutment slopes will have a maximum gradient of 1.5H:1V, with rock slope protection.   
 
No other known exceptions to Caltrans policy were made in the geotechnical evaluation for the 
foundations for this project. 
 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 5 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

2 FIELD AND LABORATORY PROGRAMS 

  

2.1 INVESTIGATION AND TESTING 

The field exploration for the project was performed on August 15 and 16, 2018. The field survey 
consisted of a site reconnaissance by a staff engineer and the drilling of five (5) test borings. Two 
test borings were drilled along the existing roadway and two test boring were performed in the 
shoulder of the roadway with a track mounted drill rig using solid flight auger, mud rotary, and 
rock coring techniques and one test boring was performed in the Pine Creek channel with a hand 
auger. Borings extended to depths of 3 and 71.5 feet below the existing ground surface, 
respectively. The Log of Testing Borings drawing is provided in Appendix A. 
 
The earth materials encountered in the test borings were visually classified in the field and a 
continuous log was recorded. In-place samples of soil units were collected from the test borings 
at selected depths by driving a 2.5-inch I.D. split barrel sampler containing brass liners into the 
undisturbed soil with a 140-pound automatic safety hammer free falling a distance of 30-inches. 
The automatic hammer had a measured energy efficiency rating of 83%. In addition, an ASTM 
D1586 standard penetrometer (SPT) without liners (barrel I.D. of 1.5 inches) was driven 18-inches 
in the same manner. This latter sampling procedure generally conformed to the ASTM D1586 test 
procedure. Resistance to sampler penetration over the last 12-inches is noted on the Log of Test 
Borings. The blow counts listed on the Log of Test Borings have not been corrected for the effects 
of overburden pressure, sampler size, rod length, or hammer efficiency. In addition, bulk samples 
were obtained from auger cuttings at selected borings. 
 
Penetration rates determined in general accordance with ASTM D1586 were used to aid in 
evaluating the consistency, compression, and strength characteristics of the foundation soils. 
 
2.2 LABORATORY TESTING PROGRAM 

Laboratory tests were performed on selected samples to evaluate certain engineering properties. 
The laboratory testing program was designed with emphasis on the evaluation of geotechnical 
properties of foundation materials as they pertain to the proposed project. The laboratory testing 
program included performing the following tests: 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 6 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

• Unit Weight (ASTM D2937) 
• Moisture Content (ASTM D2216) 
• Direct Shear (ASTM D3080) 
• Grain Size Distribution (ASTM D 422, without hydrometer) 
• Soluble Sulfates and Chlorides (California Test Method Nos. 417 and 422) 
• pH and Minimum Resistivity (California Test Method No. 643) 
• Resistance Value (California Test Method No. 301) 

 
The soluble sulfate and chloride results are presented in Section 4.0 (“Corrosion Potential”). 
Remaining test results are provided in Appendix B. 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 7 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

3 SITE GEOLOGY AND CONDITIONS 

  

3.1 CONDITIONS AND TOPOGRAPHY 

The project site is located just north of Round Valley in Inyo County.  The existing Round Valley 

Road is a 2-lane asphalt concrete paved road with a single lane reinforced concrete bridge at 

Pine Creek.  At the time of investigation, the approach to the south abutment was scoured 

preventing access across the bridge and the water in Pine Creek was low, approximately 12 feet 

below the roadway and flowing around the damaged structure.  The general topography along 

the alignment is relatively flat on either side of Pine Creek.  The creek invert is presently estimated 

at 4667 feet.   

 
3.2 REGIONAL GEOLOGY 

The project site is located within the Sierra Nevada physiographic province.  The Sierra Nevada 
is a tilted fault block nearly 400 miles long.  Its east face is a high, rugged multiple scarp, 
contrasting with the gentle western slope that disappears under sediments of the Great Valley.  
Deep river canyons are cut into the western slope.  Their upper courses are modified by glacial 
sculpturing, forming such scenic features as Yosemite Valley (California Department of 
Conservation, California Geological Survey, 2002).  The local geology at the site consists primarily 
of Quaternary aged alluvium deposits.   
 
3.3 EARTH MATERIALS 

The natural earth material profile consists of Holocene Age recent younger alluvial fan deposits.  
Deposits include laterally discontinuous layers of silty sand and gravel in the upper 10 to 12 feet, 
underlain by poorly graded gravel with varying amounts of cobble and sand to a depth of 70 feet 
below ground surface (bgs).  Cobbles ranged in size from 3 inches to 11 inches and boring B-1 
encountered one boulder approximately 16 inches in diameter.  Additionally, boring B-2 
encountered two interbedded layers of sand and clayey sand at depths of approximately 32 feet 
and 68 feet bgs.  The borings generally depict the typical deposits in the Owens Valley, with the 
exception that few boulders were encountered in the borings, therefore, construction should 
anticipate encountering additional random boulders.  The granular soils generally had a relative 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 8 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

consistency of dense to very dense and the fine-grained soils had a relative consistency of hard.  
A detailed earth material profile is provided on the LOTB in Appendix A. 
 
3.4 GROUNDWATER  

Groundwater was not encountered within a depth of 10 feet utilizing the solid flight auger.  The 
depth to groundwater depth was not measured during the rock coring; however, at the time of 
drilling Pine Creek was flowing with the water level surface approximately 12 feet below the 
elevation of N. Round Valley Road.  Based on the proximity of the borings to the creek channel it 
is assumed that groundwater levels in the borings is equivalent to Pine Creek’s flow level of 
approximately 12 feet below the street grade of N. Round Valley Road.  It is possible that regional 
groundwater conditions at the site could change some time in the future due to variations in 
rainfall, groundwater withdrawal, flow or recency of flow in Pine Creek, construction activities, or 
other factors not apparent.   
 
3.5 CHANNEL SCOUR/DEGRADATION 

A review of the hydraulic report for the project indicated potential scour at the supports. A 
summary of the design scour is presented in Table 3.5-1. 
 

TABLE 3.5-1 
DESIGN SCOUR DATA 

Support Reference 
Elev. (ft) 

Long Term 
(Degradation and 

Contraction) Scour 
Elev. (ft) 

Short Term (Local) 
Scour Depth (ft) 

Abut 1 4662.5 NA 5.11 

Abut 2 4662.5 NA 5.28 

 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 9 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

4 CORROSION POTENTIAL 

  

Samples obtained from the borings were tested to evaluate the pH, minimum resistivity, and 
soluble sulfate and chloride content. Test results are presented in Table 4.1-1. 

 
TABLE 4.1-1 

CORROSION TESTING 

Boring No. Sample 
Depth (ft) 

Soluble 
Sulfate 
(mg/kg) 

Soluble 
Chloride 
(mg/kg) 

pH 
Minimum 

Resistivity 
(ohm-cm) 

B-2 0 – 3 170 5.5 7.74 2010 

 
These test values are outside the Caltrans threshold limits. Consequently, the site soils would be 
considered to be a non-corrosive environment with respect to foundations. Corrosion is 
dependent upon a complex variety of conditions, which are beyond the geotechnical practice. 
Consequently, a qualified corrosion engineer should be consulted if the owner or designer desires 
more specific recommendations and material types and/or mitigation. 
 
 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 10 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

5 SEISMIC RECOMMENDATIONS 

  

5.1 LOCAL FAULTING 

The project site is not presently located in an Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone, as defined by 
Special Publication 42 (revised 2018) published by the California Geological Survey (CGS). 
Numerous faults and shear zones within the region could influence the project site.  
 
5.2 SEISMIC DESIGN CRITERIA 

Seismic design parameters were developed in accordance with the Caltrans Seismic Design 
Criteria Version 1.7. 
 
The project site is located in a region with the potential for relatively low to moderate seismic 
activity. The more significant faults that could influence the project site include the Round Valley 
Fault (Fault ID No. 147), the Unnamed Faults in Volcanic Tablelands (Fault ID No. 143), and the 
Owens Valley Keough Hot Springs Fault (Fault ID No. 155). According to the Caltrans fault 
database, the Round Valley Fault is a normal fault with a dip angle of 50 degrees towards the 
east and assigned Maximum Magnitude (MMax) of 7.0; the Unnamed Faults in Volcanic Tablelands 
is a normal fault with a dip angle of 90 degrees and assigned Maximum Magnitude (MMax) of 6.7, 
and the Owens Valley Keough Hot Springs Fault is a normal fault with a dip angle of 50 degrees 
to the east with and assigned Maximum Magnitude (MMax) of 7.2.  The characteristics of these 
three faults are summarized in Table 5.2-1. 
 
Based on the data from the borings and Caltrans SDC, the site can be classified as Soil Profile 
Type C.  A Vs30 of 400 m/s was determined and used for the evaluation.  The site is not located 
within a California deep soil basin region, as defined by Caltrans, so Z1.0 and Z2.5 were not 
considered applicable.  Site characteristics and governing deterministic faults are summarized in 
Table 5.2-1.   
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 11 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

TABLE 5.2-1 
SITE CHARACTERISTICS AND  

GOVERNING DETERMINISTIC FAULTS PARAMETERS 
Site Coordinates Lat = 37.4213 deg, Long = -118.5884 deg 
Shear Wave Velocity 400 m/s 
Depth to Vs=1.0 km/s, Z1.0 N/A 
Depth to Vs=2.5 km/s, Z2.5 N/A 
Fault Name and ID Number Round Valley Fault, No. 147 
Maximum Magnitude (MMax) 7.0 
Fault Type Normal 
Fault Dip 50 degrees 
Dip Direction East 
Bottom of Rupture Plane 13.00 km 
Top of Rupture Plane (Ztor) 0 km 
RRUP1  3.868 km 
RjB2  0 km 
RX3  5.050 km 
Fnorm (1 for normal, 0 for others) 1 
Frev (1 for reverse, 0 for others) 0 
Fault Name and ID Number Unnamed Faults in Volcanic Tablelands, No. 143 
Maximum Magnitude (MMax) 6.7 
Fault Type Normal 
Fault Dip 90 degrees 
Dip Direction Vertical 
Bottom of Rupture Plane 13.00 km 
Top of Rupture Plane (Ztor) 0 km 
RRUP1  4.729 km 
RjB2  4.729 km 
RX3  4.694 km 
Fnorm (1 for normal, 0 for others) 1 
Frev (1 for reverse, 0 for others) 0 
Fault Name and ID Number Owens valley Keough Hot Springs, No. 155 
Maximum Magnitude (MMax) 7.2 
Fault Type Normal 
Fault Dip 50 degrees 
Dip Direction East 
Bottom of Rupture Plane 13.50 km 
Top of Rupture Plane (Ztor) 0 km 
RRUP1  18.549 km 
RjB2  18.549 km 
RX3  17.249 km 
Fnorm (1 for normal, 0 for others) 1 
Frev (1 for reverse, 0 for others) 0 
Notes: 
1RRUP = Closest distance from the site to the fault rupture plane. 
2RJB = Joyner-Boore distance; the shortest horizontal distance to the surface projection of the rupture 
area. 
3RX = Horizontal distance from the site to the fault trace or surface projection of the top of the rupture 
plane.   

  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 12 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

 Deterministic Response Spectrum  

The deterministic response spectrum was developed using the ARS Online. The deterministic 
response spectrum for the Minimum Spectrum for California governed.  
 

 Probabilistic Response Spectrum  

The probabilistic response spectrum was developed using the ARS Online.  
 

 Design Response Spectrum  

The upper envelope of the deterministic and probabilistic spectral values determines the design 
response spectrum.  The deterministic response spectra were found to govern for periods except 
period 0.1s. Period 0.1s was found to be governed by the probabilistic response spectra.  The 
recommended acceleration and displacement design response spectra is provided in Appendix C.  
 

 References 

Caltrans. Caltrans ARS Online (version 2.3.09), http://dap3.dot.ca.gov/ARS_Online/index.php   

Caltrans. Geotechnical Services Manual  

Caltrans. Seismic Design Criteria (version 1.7), Appendix B Design Spectrum  

USGS.     https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/ 
 
5.3 LIQUEFACTION POTENTIAL 

5.3.1 General 

In order for liquefaction of soils due to ground shaking to occur, it is generally accepted that four 
conditions will exist: 
 

❑ The subsurface soils are in a relatively loose state, 

❑ The soils are saturated, 

❑ The soils are non-plastic, and 

https://earthquake.usgs.gov/hazards/interactive/


 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 13 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

❑ Ground motion is of sufficient intensity to act as a triggering mechanism. 
 

According to Caltrans Geotechnical Manual (2017), liquefaction and lateral spread analyses should 
use peak horizontal ground acceleration (PHGA) and earthquake magnitude associated with higher 
of the 5 percent probability of exceedance in 50 years (return period of about 975 years) and 
deterministic results. Using USGS Unified Hazard tool, a PHGA of 0.678g and earthquake 
magnitude of 6.89 are estimated for this site which is higher than the deterministic value. Based on 
the groundwater elevation, average relative density (N-values in boring B-2 exceeded 100 for 
depths greater than 10 feet), soil type, and anticipated ground shaking at the site, liquefaction or 
seismically induced settlement or bearing loss is considered unlikely.   
 
 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 14 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 20120 Kleinfelder   

6 FOUNDATION CONSIDERATIONS 

  

6.1 GENERAL 

Considering the degradation that has occurred within Pine Creek along with damage to the previous 
bridge structure loss due to bank washout and scour, pile foundations were considered the most 
suitable type for new foundations.  Due to the potential for significant variability and difficulty with 
pile driving, CIDH piles are considered the most appropriate pile type. Design utilized 24-inch 
diameter CIDH piles at the abutments.  Axial capacity was derived from skin friction and neglects 
end bearing due to strain incompatibility.   
 
6.2 PILE FOUNDATIONS 

 Axial Capacity 

Table 6.2-1 provide the recommended design and specified tip elevations for the abutments. 
Analysis for the axial capacity utilized the beta method (AASHTO LRFD Bridge design 
Specifications, 8th Edition, 2017).  The design channel scour provided in Table 5.3-1 has been 
considered in evaluating the design and specified tip elevations. Based on the evaluation, the 
design tip elevations are governed by the design scour.  
 

   



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 15 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

TABLE 6.2-1 
FOUNDATION RECOMMENDATIONS 

Support Pile 
Cut-off 
Elev. 
(ft) 

Service Limit State 
Total Load (kips) per 

Support SP 

Required Factored Nominal Resistance 
per Pile (kips) 

Design Tip 
Elev.(1) 

(ft) 

Specified 
Tip 

Elev.(2) (ft) 

Strength Limit Extreme Event 

Total Perm. Comp.  
(=0.7) 

Tens. 
(=0.7) 

Comp. 
(=1) 

Tens. 
(=1) 

Abut 1 24 in 
CIDH 4662.5 1714 1341 1” 277 1 228 60 

4618 (a-I),  
4645 (b-I),  
4627 (a-II),  
4639 (b-II), 

4629 (c) 
TBD (d) 

4618 

Abut 2 24 in 
CIDH 4662.5 1714 1341 1” 277 1 228 60 

4618 (a-I),  
4645 (b-I),  
4627 (a-II),  
4639 (b-II), 

4629 (c) 
TBD (d) 

4618 

Notes: (1) Design tip elevations are controlled by: (a-I) Compression (Strength Limit), (b-I) Tension (Strength Limit), (a-II) Compression (Extreme 
Event), (b-II) Tension (Extreme Event), (c) Settlement, (d) Lateral Load. 

(2) The specific tip elevation shall not be raised above the design tip elevations of tension, lateral, and tolerable settlement. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 16 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
6.2.1 Foundation Construction Considerations 

Drilled piles will likely encounter poorly graded sand, gravel, cobbles and boulder layers and may 
penetrate ground water. Slurry assisted (wet method) drilling techniques and temporary casing 
will likely be required to advance the borings and prevent caving of the saturated granular 
sediments. Casing could be rotated, pushed, or driven as the pile boring is advanced. Pile boring 
operations should not extend beyond the casing tip. Use of a casing oscillator is acceptable. 
 
6.2.2 Lateral Capacity 

The lateral response of pile foundations can be evaluated using LPILE Plus Version 5.0, or 
greater, for Windows (computer software developed by Ensoft Inc.). The geotechnical parameters 
summarized in Table 6.2-3 can be used for evaluation of lateral loading of piles at Abutment 1 
and Abutment 2.  
 

TABLE 6.2-3 
LPILE PARAMETERS, ABUTMENT 1 and 2 

Elevation (ft) 
P-Y 

Curve 
Soil Type 

Effective 
Unit 

Weight 
(pcf) 

Friction 
Angle 
(deg) 

K (pci) 

From  To 

4662.5 4606 Sand 70 42 150 

 
When considering the lateral capacity of a pile group, it will be necessary to reduce the single pile 
capacity of trailing piles. The reduction in capacity due to the effects of shaft interaction will be 
dependent upon the center-to-center (CTC) pile spacing. It is recommended that the capacity of 
individual trailing piles in a laterally loaded group (perpendicular to bridge) be reduced according 
to the data in Table 6.2-4. Capacities for longitudinally loaded group piles need not be reduced.  
The P-multiplier values for intermediate pile spacing can be determined by linear interpolation.   
 
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 17 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

TABLE 6.2-4 
GROUP EFFECT FOR LATERALLY LOADED PILE 

Pile Spacing (c-c) 
Design P-multiplier, Pm 

Row 1 Row 2 Row 3 and higher 

2.0B 0.6 0.35 0.25 

3.0B 075 0.55 0.4 

5.0B 1.0 0.85 0.7 
Note:  B is pile width 

 
6.3 DYNAMIC LOADING 

 Abutment Dynamic Lateral Resistance 

For backfill at abutments constructed in accordance with applicable provisions of the Caltrans 
Standard Specifications (2018), an initial abutment soil stiffness of 50 kip/in/ft is recommended. 
The ultimate lateral resistance that may be applied against abutments to resist seismic loading 
will be dependent on the deflection that occurs (which mobilizes shear resistance in the soil). 
Figure 6.3-1 presents the ultimate equivalent uniform lateral soil resistance as a function of 
horizontal strain (deflection/height) for the abutments. The maximum resistance for strain in 
excess of 1.0% is 5.0 ksf, when the height of the wall that is buried below the horizontal ground 
surface is equal to, or greater than, 5.5 ft. When the abutment height is less than 5.5 ft, the 
maximum equivalent uniform lateral soil resistance shall be reduced proportionately by H/5.5, 
where H is the endwall height in feet. 
 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 18 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

FIGURE 6.3-1 
UNFACTORED NOMINAL LATERAL BEARING FOR SEISMIC LOADING AT ABUTMENTS 

If required, Kleinfelder can provide dynamic stiffness parameters for horizontal and vertical 
translation, torsion, and rocking. 
 
6.4 EARTH RETAINING SYSTEMS 

The lateral earth pressure against abutment end walls and wing walls will be dependent upon the 
ability of the wall to deflect.  Presented in Table 6.4-1 are the active and at-rest lateral earth 
pressures.  The active pressure is applicable to walls able to translate/rotate 0.004 radians.  The 
at-rest soil pressure is applicable to walls that are fully fixed against both rotation and translation.   
 
  

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5

Horizontal Strain (%)

E
ff

ec
tiv

e 
U

ni
fo

rm
 S

oi
l R

es
is

ta
nc

e 
(k

sf
)

Maximum 5.0 ksf 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 19 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

TABLE 6.4-1 
LATERAL EARTH PRESSURES 

Loading Conditions Earth Pressures 
(psf/ft) 

Earth Pressure 
Coefficient 

Active Pressure (psf/ft) 32 0.27 

At-Rest Pressure (psf/ft) 55 0.42 

Dynamic Increment (psf/ft) 31 -- 

 
Approach fills and backfill at abutments, when constructed in accordance with Section 6.5 of this 
report, will have an active earth pressure of less than 34 psf/ft.  This value is consistent with the 
design data for Caltrans Standard Plans and Caltrans Bridge Standard Details Sheets for 
retaining structures (e.g. abutment endwalls wingwalls or retaining walls).  Consequently, the use 
of Caltrans standard walls would be appropriate. The above recommended values consider 
saturated soil conditions; however, they do not include the lateral pressures due to hydrostatic 
forces.  Therefore, wall backfill should be adequately drained. 
 
Should retaining walls be influenced by surcharge loads, the surcharge against the walls can be 
evaluated by multiplying the surcharge pressure by the earth pressure coefficient.  Surcharge 
loads should be modeled as a uniform pressure against the wall by multiplying the surcharge load 
by the earth pressure coefficient.   
 
For site specific design, appropriate load factors should be applied to the active pressure and 
dynamic increment. The factored dynamic increment would be added to the factored active 
pressure for Extreme Event consideration. Caltrans approach to seismic design considers the 
distribution of the dynamic increment to be an upright triangle (similar to the active pressure). 
Consequently, the resultant load for the active pressure and dynamic increment would both be 
applied at 0.33 H from the base, where H is the total retained height. The effect of wall friction 
would allow the resultant lateral earth pressure to be directed downward at an angle of 20 degrees 
from the horizontal. The dynamic increment is based on the Mononobe/Okabe method using a 
design ground acceleration of one-half the PHGA.    
 
Static lateral loads applied to foundations can be resisted by a combination of passive lateral 
bearing and base friction.  Allowable and factored nominal passive pressures and frictional 
coefficients for Service Limit, Strength Limit, and Extreme Event loads at piers are presented in 
Table 6.4-2 for saturated conditions.  The tables present the passive pressures for descending 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 20 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

slope and level backfill conditions. The passive pressure considers a conservative value of wall 
friction () equal to one-half the angle of internal friction (), to allow for formed foundations. 
 

TABLE 6.4-2 
LATERAL RESISTANCE OF FOUNDATION SOILS (SATURATED CONDITION) 

Mode of Resistance Strength 
=0.80 

Extreme 
=1.0 

Frictional Coefficient 0.56 0.70 

Mode of Resistance Strength 
=0.5 

Extreme 
=1.0 

Passive Pressure(1) 
(psf/ft of depth) 445 890 

Passive Pressure(2) 
(psf/ft of depth) 58 116 

Lateral translation needed to develop passive 
pressure(3) 0.008D 0.04D 

Notes: (1) Passive pressure is presented for a level adjacent ground surface.  
 (2) Passive pressure is presented for a 1.5H:1V adjacent descending ground surface. 
 (3) D is depth of footing below adjacent grade.  Lateral translation will be in same units as D. 
 
If the deflection resulting from the strain necessary to develop the passive pressure is within 
structural tolerance, the passive pressure and frictional resistance can be used in combination.  
Otherwise, additional passive pressure values could be provided based on tolerable deflection.  
It is suggested this strain compatibility approach be considered instead of an arbitrary reduction 
in passive pressure. 
 
6.5 EARTHWORK 

Planned earthwork will be minimal (abutment backfill and roadway subgrade). In general, any 
required fill or backfill should be constructed in accordance with the latest Caltrans Standard 
Specifications.   
 
6.6 PAVEMENTS 

 Design R-Value 

The subgrade Resistance-value (R-value) for the proposed roadway subgrade was evaluated in 
the laboratory based on near surface soil samples obtained from the project site.  Testing was in 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 21 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

conformance with American Society of Testing Materials ASTM D2844.  Test results are 
summarized in Table 6.6-1. Considering very high R-values can be significantly affected by subtle 
variations in gradation and fines content, a design R-value of 50 is recommended.  
 

TABLE 6.6-1 
R-VALUE TEST RESULTS 

Boring Depth (ft) Soil Type R-Value 
B-4 0 - 3 Silty Sand with Gravel 83 
B-5 0 - 3 Silty Sand with Gravel 81 

 
Considering very high R-values can be significantly affected by subtle variations in gradation and 
fines content, a design R-value of 50 is recommended.  
 

 HMA Pavements 

Preliminary flexible pavement sections have been determined for a design Traffic Index (TI) of 
7.0.  Estimated structural sections for asphalt concrete (HMA) are provided in Table 6.6-2.  The 
preliminary pavement design recommendations presented are based upon the California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) design procedures, including the gravel equivalent safety 
factor on the wearing surface.  
 

TABLE 6.6-2 
PRELIMINARY PAVEMENT SECTIONS  

TI Design R-value Pavement Structural Section  
7.0 50 0.35’ HMA / 0.40’AB 

 
The HMA should conform to, and be placed in accordance with, Section 39 of the latest revision 
of the CSS.  Class 2 aggregate base (AB) should be in conformance with Section 26 of the CSS.  
AB and at least the upper 0.65 feet of subgrade should be compacted to 95% of maximum density 
in accordance with Section 19 of the CSS.   
  



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060 Page 22 of 22 August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

7 CLOSURE 

  

The conclusions and recommendations in this report are for the 100% design of the N. Round 

Valley Road over Pine Creek Bridge Road bridge replacement, as described in the text of this 

report.  The findings, conclusions, and recommendations presented in this report were prepared 

in accordance with generally accepted geotechnical engineering practice.  No warranty, express 

or implied, is made.  The field exploration program and this report were based on the proposed 

project information provided to Kleinfelder.  If any change (i.e., structure type, location, etc.) is 

implemented which materially alters the project, additional geotechnical services may be required, 

which could include revisions to the recommendations given herein. 

 

This report is intended for use by Inyo County and MGE Engineering, Inc., within a reasonable 

time from its issuance.  Noncompliance with the recommendations of the report or misuse of the 

report will release Kleinfelder from any liability. 

 

The scope of the geotechnical services did not include an environmental site assessment for the 

presence or absence of hazardous/toxic materials in the soil, groundwater or atmosphere, or the 

presence of wetlands. 



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060  August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
FIGURE 1 – EXPLORATION LOCATION PLAN AND VICINITY MAP 

 
  



N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE
N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA

EXPLORATION LOCATION PLAN
AND VICINITY MAP

FIGURE

1

20191324

-

08-08-2019

AAhTye

1 " = 100 SCALE IN FEET

0 200100

SITE

!*

NOT TO SCALEVICINITY MAPN

PROJECT NO.

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

DATE:

REVISED:

The information included on this graphic representation has been compiled from a 
variety of sources and is subject to change without notice. Kleinfelder makes no 
representations or warranties, express or implied, as to accuracy, completeness, 
timeliness, or rights to the use of such information. This document is not intended 
for use as a land survey product nor is it designed or intended as a construction 
design document.  The use or misuse of the information contained on this graphic
representation is at the sole risk of the party using or misusing the information.

% SOIL BORING

LEGEND

£

S. Plauson

G
IS

 F
IL

E 
PA

TH
: \

\a
zr

gi
ss

to
rp

01
\W

or
ki

ng
\_

cl
ie

nt
s\

_A
ut

om
at

ed
_E

xp
lo

ra
tio

n 
Pl

an
s

PL
O

TT
ED

: 8
/8

/2
01

9 
6:

35
:4

1 
AM

  B
Y:

 A
Ah

Ty
e

NOTE:
BASE MAPPING AND VICINITY MAP CREATED FROM LAYERS
COMPILED BY ESRI PRODUCTS AND 2019 MICROSOFT CORPORATION.
COORDINATE SYSTEM: NAD 1983 2011 STATEPLANE CALIFORNIA IV FIPS 0404



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060  August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
APPENDIX A – LOG OF TEST BORINGS 

  



14+00
13+50

14+50

PT, 14+21.36

B-1
B-2

 NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROADCL

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED

PI
N

E 
C

R
EE

K

TO PINE CREEK RD

TO BIRCHIM LN

TOE OF SLOPE, TYP

C L
AB

U
T 

1 

C L
AB

U
T 

2 

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

C
AD

D
\C

AD
D

 2
01

9\
20

19
13

24
\2

01
91

32
4_

LO
TB

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  F

eb
 0

5,
 2

02
0 

- 1
:0

6p
m

 b
y 

D
Fa

hr
ne

y

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300
Riverside, CA 92501
PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING

30

30

 PROFILE 

 PLAN 



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

C
AD

D
\C

AD
D

 2
01

9\
20

19
13

24
\2

01
91

32
4_

LO
TB

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  F

eb
 0

5,
 2

02
0 

- 1
:0

9p
m

 b
y 

D
Fa

hr
ne

y

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300
Riverside, CA 92501
PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - SOIL LEGEND 1

31

31



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

C
AD

D
\C

AD
D

 2
01

9\
20

19
13

24
\2

01
91

32
4_

LO
TB

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  F

eb
 0

5,
 2

02
0 

- 1
:0

9p
m

 b
y 

D
Fa

hr
ne

y

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300
Riverside, CA 92501
PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - SOIL LEGEND 2

32

32



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 U
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

C
AD

D
\C

AD
D

 2
01

9\
20

19
13

24
\2

01
91

32
4_

LO
TB

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  F

eb
 0

5,
 2

02
0 

- 1
:1

0p
m

 b
y 

D
Fa

hr
ne

y

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300
Riverside, CA 92501
PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - ROCK LEGEND 

33

33



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060  August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
APPENDIX B – LABORATORY TESTING SUMMARY 

  



B-2 0.0 - 3.0 SILTY SAND pH= 7.74

Resistivity= 20100

Sulfates= 170

Chlorides= 5.5

B-2 5.0 - 6.5 SILTY SAND 1.7 108.8

B-3 0.0 - 3.0 POOORLY GRADED GRAVEL 48 31 29

B-4 0.0 - 3.0 SILTY SAND R-Value= 83

B-5 0.0 - 3.0 SILTY SAND R-Value= 81

LABORATORY TEST
RESULT SUMMARY

B-1

P
as

si
n

g
 3

/4
"

Sieve Analysis (%)

P
as

si
n

g
 #

4

P
as

si
n

g
 #

20
0

P
la

st
ic

it
y 

In
d

ex

Depth
(ft.)

Atterberg Limits

L
iq

u
id

 L
im

it

Sample Description

P
la

st
ic

 L
im

it

W
at

er
 C

o
n

te
n

t 
(%

)

D
ry

 U
n

it
 W

t.
 (

p
cf

)

Exploration
ID Additional Tests

Refer to the Geotechnical Evaluation Report or the
supplemental plates for the method used for the testing
performed above.
NP = NonPlastic

FIGURE

N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE
N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA

gINT FILE:  Klf_gint_master_2017                              PROJECT NUMBER:  20191324.001A                              OFFICE FILTER:  FRESNO

gINT TEMPLATE:  E:KLF_STANDARD_GINT_LIBRARY_2017.GLB   [LAB SUMMARY TABLE - SOIL] PLOTTED:  10/17/2018  12:30 PM  BY:  AAhTye

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

REVISED: -

DATE:

PROJECT NO.: 20191324



 

20191324.001A/FRE20R115060  August 10, 2020 
Copyright 2020 Kleinfelder    

 
APPENDIX C – LABORATORY TESTING RESULTS 

 
 



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

0.0010.010.1110100

3/8 3 10024 16 301 2006 10

   

Sample Description LL PL PI

%SiltCu %ClayCcExploration ID Depth (ft.)

C-1

SIEVE ANALYSIS

   

50
HYDROMETERU.S. SIEVE OPENING IN INCHES U.S. SIEVE NUMBERS

1403 4 20 40

B
O

U
L

D
E

R

6 601.5 8

D60 D30 D10D100
Passing

3/4"
Passing

#4
Passing

#200

NMNM NM

0.3 NM0 - 3 314875 NM

Exploration ID Depth (ft.)

P
E

R
C

E
N

T
 F

IN
E

R
 B

Y
 W

E
IG

H
T

GRAIN SIZE IN MILLIMETERS

medium fine

GRAVEL SAND
COBBLE

coarse coarse
CLAYSILT

fine

Coefficients of Uniformity - Cu = D60 / D10

Coefficients of Curvature - CC = (D30)
2 / D60 D10

D60 = Grain diameter at 60% passing

D30 = Grain diameter at 30% passing

D10 = Grain diameter at 10% passing

0 - 3B-3

B-3 42.073

POOORLY GRADED GRAVEL

NM NM

FIGURE

143/4 1/212

Sieve Analysis and Hydrometer Analysis testing performed in general accordance
with ASTM D422.
NP = Nonplastic
NM = Not Measured

29 NM

N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE
N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA
DATE:

DRAWN BY: AA

REVISED: -

PROJECT NO.: 20191324

CHECKED BY: SPP

P
LO

T
T

E
D

:  
10

/1
6/

20
1

8 
 1

1
:2

8 
A

M
  B

Y
:  

A
A

hT
ye

gI
N

T
 F

IL
E

:  
K

lf_
gi

nt
_m

as
te

r_
20

17
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:  

20
19

13
24

.0
01

A
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
O

F
F

IC
E

 F
IL

T
E

R
:  

F
R

E
S

N
O

gI
N

T
 T

E
M

P
LA

T
E

:  
E

:K
LF

_S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

_G
IN

T
_L

IB
R

A
R

Y
_2

01
7

.G
LB

   
[_

K
LF

_S
IE

V
E

 A
N

A
LY

S
IS

]



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800

FIGURE

C-2

R-VALUE

Exploration ID Depth (ft.) R-Value @ 300 psi
Exudation PressureSample Description

Corrected
Resistance

Value
Exudation Pressure (psi)Expansion Pressure (psi)Dry Unit Weight (pcf)

R
-V

A
LU

E

EXUDATION PRESSURE (psi)

83

1

2

3

125.9

125.5

126.5

403

62

221

8.2

9.0

8.6

84

78

82

0

0

0

Moisture at Time of Test (%)Specimen No.

B-4 SILTY SAND0 - 3

Testing performed in general accordance with ASTM D2844.

N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE
N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA
DATE:

DRAWN BY: AA

REVISED: -

PROJECT NO.: 20191324

CHECKED BY: SPP

P
LO

T
T

E
D

:  
10

/1
6/

20
1

8 
 1

1
:3

1 
A

M
  B

Y
:  

A
A

hT
ye

gI
N

T
 F

IL
E

:  
K

lf_
gi

nt
_m

as
te

r_
20

17
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:  

20
19

13
24

.0
01

A
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
O

F
F

IC
E

 F
IL

T
E

R
:  

F
R

E
S

N
O

gI
N

T
 T

E
M

P
LA

T
E

:  
E

:K
LF

_S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

_G
IN

T
_L

IB
R

A
R

Y
_2

01
7

.G
LB

   
[_

K
LF

_R
-V

A
LU

E
]



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800

FIGURE

C-3

R-VALUE

Exploration ID Depth (ft.) R-Value @ 300 psi
Exudation PressureSample Description

Corrected
Resistance

Value
Exudation Pressure (psi)Expansion Pressure (psi)Dry Unit Weight (pcf)

R
-V

A
LU

E

EXUDATION PRESSURE (psi)

81

1

2

3

128.6

127.5

129.3

53

466

224

8.5

7.6

8.0

76

82

80

0

0

0

Moisture at Time of Test (%)Specimen No.

B-5 SILTY SAND0 - 3

Testing performed in general accordance with ASTM D2844.

N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE
N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD

ROUND VALLEY, CALIFORNIA
DATE:

DRAWN BY: AA

REVISED: -

PROJECT NO.: 20191324

CHECKED BY: SPP

P
LO

T
T

E
D

:  
10

/1
6/

20
1

8 
 1

1
:3

1 
A

M
  B

Y
:  

A
A

hT
ye

gI
N

T
 F

IL
E

:  
K

lf_
gi

nt
_m

as
te

r_
20

17
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

U
M

B
E

R
:  

20
19

13
24

.0
01

A
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
   

  
O

F
F

IC
E

 F
IL

T
E

R
:  

F
R

E
S

N
O

gI
N

T
 T

E
M

P
LA

T
E

:  
E

:K
LF

_S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

_G
IN

T
_L

IB
R

A
R

Y
_2

01
7

.G
LB

   
[_

K
LF

_R
-V

A
LU

E
]



SITE DATA
Latitude: 37.4213 Shear Wave Velocity 400 m/s
Longitude: -118.5884 Depth to Vs = 1.0 km/s: N/A

Depth to Vs = 2.5 km/s: N/A

Period (s) SA (g) SD (in)
0.01 (PGA) 0.627 0.00

0.05 0.870 0.13
0.1 1.105 0.68
0.15 1.304 1.80
0.2 1.404 3.45
0.25 1.405 5.40
0.3 1.368 7.57
0.4 1.285 12.64
0.5 1.189 18.28
0.6 1.100 24.35
0.7 1.032 31.10
0.85 0.938 41.68

1 0.858 52.76
1.2 0.713 63.14
1.5 0.556 76.93
2 0.359 88.31
3 0.179 99.07
4 0.112 110.20
5 0.085 130.68

PROJECT NO 20191324 ATTACHMENT

DRAWN: 10/10/18

DRAWN BY: A. AhTye

CHECKED BY:

CALTRANS ARS CURVES     

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE 
ROUND VALLEY, CA

C1
www.kleinfelder.com

0.0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2.0

0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

Sp
ec

tr
al

 A
cc

el
er

at
io

n 
(g

)

Period (seconds)

Design Spectrum

Deterministic Spectrum

Min. Deterministic Spectrum

Probabilistic Spectrum

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0

Sp
ec

tr
al

 D
is

pl
ac

em
en

t (
in

)

Period (seconds)

Design Spectrum

Deterministic Spectrum

Min. Deterministic Spectrum

Probabilistic Spectrum

http://www.kleinfelder.com/


Section 3 

As-Built Plans 
 

 

  













Section 4 

Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036, Granting Clean Water Act 
Section 401 Water Quality Certification, North Round Valley Road 

Bridge Replacement Project, Inyo County 
 

 

  



 

 

 
 

 

Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board 
 
July 2, 2020 WDID 6B142004001 
                401 WQC 
 
Ashley Helms, Planner 
Inyo County Department of Public Works  
168 North Edwards Street,  
P.O. Box Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
 
Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036, Granting Clean Water Act Section  
401 Water Quality Certification, North Round Valley Road Bridge 
Replacement Project, Inyo County  
 
The Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) has received project 
information from Inyo County Department of Public Works (Applicant) and an application 
filing fee to complete an application for Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 401 Water 
Quality Certification (WQC) for the North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement 
Project (Project). The application was deemed complete on May 2, 2020. This Order for 
WQC is based upon the information provided in the application, and subsequent 
correspondence received in support of the application. 
  
Any person aggrieved by this action of the Water Board may petition the State Water 
Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to review the action in accordance with 
California Water Code (CWC), section 13320, and California Code of Regulations 
(CCR), title 23, sections 2050 and following. The State Water Board must receive the 
petition by 5:00 p.m., 30 days after the date of this Order, except that if the 30th day 
following the date of this Order falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or state holiday, the petition 
must be received by the State Water Board by 5:00 p.m. on the next business day.  
Copies of the law and regulations applicable to filing petitions may be found on the 
internet at: http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/public_notices/petitions/water_quality, or will 
be provided upon request.  
  
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
  
This WQC is based upon the information provided by the Applicant. Project details are 
summarized in the following table.  

 

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/public_notices/petitions/water_quality


 
Ashley Helms                                          - 2 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 
Table of Project Information: 
WDID Number 6B142004001 
Applicant Inyo County Department of Public Works 
Project Name North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project 
Project Purpose and 
Description 

The purpose of the Project is to replace the existing bridge over 
Pine Creek. The proposed bridge replacement structure will be 
an 85-foot single span, precast/prestressed wide flange 
girder superstructure on high cantilever abutments founded on 
cast-in-drilled-hole concrete piles (Enclosure 1). The new bridge 
design includes placement of new riprap, which will result in 
permanent impacts to waters. 

Project Type Transportation, Roads, and Highways 
Project Address or other 
Locating Information 

The Project is located 1.7 miles west of Pine Creek Road, which 
is 10.7 miles north of Bishop, Inyo County.  

Latitude/Longitude Latitude: 37.421372, Longitude: -118.58842 (Center)  
Hydrologic Unit(s) Owens Hydrologic Unit 603.00, Upper Owens Hydrologic Area 

(603.20)  
Project Area 0.61 Acre 
Receiving Water(s) 
Name Pine Creek  

Water Body Type(s) Perennial Stream 
Designated Beneficial 
Uses 

MUN, AGR, IND, GWR, FRSH, POW, REC-1, REC-2, COMM, 
COLD, WILD, SPWN 

Potential Water Quality 
Impacts to Waters of the 
United States (WOUS) 

Hydrogeomorphic changes in the flow regime on the Project site 
may result in downstream erosion, sedimentation, and/or 
siltation. 

Project Impacts 
(Excavation) to WOUS 

 

W
at

er
bo

dy
 

Ty
pe

 

Permanent Temporary 
Physical Loss of 

Area 

Degradation of 
Ecological 
Condition 

Acre Linear 
Feet 

Cubic 
Yard Acre Linear 

Feet 
Cubic 
Yard Acre Linear 

Feet 
Cubic 
Yard 

Stream 0 0 0 0 1370 1300 0.02 60  10 
Federal Permit(s) The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) will regulate the 

Project under Nationwide Permit 14, Linear Transportation 
Projects, pursuant to section 404 of the CWA.  

Non-Compensatory 
Mitigation 

During construction, the Applicant will follow Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) including construction storm water controls 
designed to minimize the short-term degradation of water 
quality. All temporary impacts will be restored to pre-project 
conditions. 

Compensatory Mitigation The Project design will restore 0.02 acres of Waters of the State 
by removing the existing bridge abutments from the stream 
channel and by removing some of the existing excess riprap.   

Applicable Fees $1,949 (Low Impact Discharge) 
Fees Received $1,949  



 
Ashley Helms                                          - 3 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 
Table of Project Information: 
Estimated Annual Fee1 $1,638 (an annual fee will be assessed each fiscal year or 

portion of a fiscal year until the Project is complete and the 
Water Board issues a Notice of Completion of Discharges Letter 
to the Applicant) 

1The actual Annual Fee will be calculated using the fee schedule in effect at the time the 
annual fee is assessed per California Code of Regulations, title 23, section 2200(a)(3). It is 
the Applicant’s responsibility to inform Water Board staff when the Project is complete. 

 
CEQA COMPLIANCE  
 
The Inyo County Department of Public Works prepared an Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for the Project.  The IS/MND was prepared pursuant to 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA Public Resources Code 21000, et seq.) 
and circulated under State Clearinghouse No. 2019119037. The IS/MND was certified 
on January 28, 2020, following public review.   
   
The Water Board, acting as a CEQA Responsible Agency in compliance with CCR,    
title 14, section 15096, has considered the EIR for the Project and the potential water 
quality impacts.  As a result of the analysis, the Water Board finds potential water quality 
impacts are less than significant. 
 
CALIFORNIA ECOATLAS 
  
It has been determined through regional, state, and national studies that tracking of 
mitigation/restoration projects must be improved to better assess the performance of these 
projects, following monitoring periods that last several years. In addition, to effectively 
carry out the State’s Wetlands Conservation Policy of no net loss to wetlands, the State 
needs to closely track both aquatic habitat losses and mitigation/restoration project 
successes. Therefore, we require that the Applicant provide Project information related to 
impacts and mitigation/restoration measures (see Additional Condition No. 1 of this WQC 
Order) to EcoAtlas using the Project Tracker website:http://ptrack.ecoatlas.org. 
Instructions and how to request a username and password can also be found at the 
Project Tracker website.  
 
More information about the Water Board’s requirement can be found at: 
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/clean_water_act_401/in
dex.shtml. More information about EcoAtlas can be found at: www.ecoatlas.org.  
  
SECTION 401 WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION 
 
Authority 
 
CWA, section 401 (33 United State Code [USC], paragraph 1341), requires that any 
applicant for a CWA, section 404 permit, who plans to conduct any activity that may result 
in discharge of dredged or fill materials to WOUS, shall provide to the permitting agency a 
certification that the discharge will be in compliance with applicable water quality 

http://ptrack.ecoatlas.org/
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/clean_water_act_401/index.shtml
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/programs/clean_water_act_401/index.shtml
http://www.ecoatlas.org/


 
Ashley Helms                                          - 4 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 
standards of the state in which the discharge will originate. No section 404 permit may be 
granted (or valid) until such certification is obtained. The Applicant submitted a complete 
application and the fees required for WQC under section 401 of the CWA for the Project.  
The USACE will regulate the Project under Nationwide Permit No. 14, Linear 
transportation Projects, pursuant to section 404 of the CWA. CCR, title 23, section 
3831(e) grants the Executive Officer the authority to grant or deny WQC for projects in 
accordance with CWA section 401. The proposed Project qualifies for such WQC. 
 
Standard Conditions 
 
Pursuant to CCR, title 23, section 3860, the following standard conditions are 
requirements of this WQC:  
 

1. This WQC action is subject to modification or revocation upon administrative or 
judicial review, including review and amendment pursuant to CWC, section 13330 
and CCR, title 23, section 3867. 
 

2. This WQC action is not intended and must not be construed to apply to any 
discharge from any activity involving a hydroelectric facility requiring a Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) license unless the pertinent certification 
application was filed pursuant to CCR, title 23, section 3855(b) and the application 
specifically identified that a FERC license or amendment to a FERC license for a 
hydroelectric facility was being sought. 
 

3. The validity of any non-denial WQC action must be conditioned upon total 
payment of the full fee required under CCR, title 23, section 3833, unless 
otherwise stated in writing by the certifying agency. 

 
4. Neither Project construction activities nor operation of the Project may cause a 

violation of the Water Quality Control Plan for the Lahontan Region (Basin Plan), 
may cause a condition or threatened condition of pollution or nuisance, or cause 
any other violation of the CWC. 
 

5. The Project must be constructed and operated in accordance with the Project 
described in the application for WQC that was submitted to the Water Board. 
Deviation from the Project description constitutes a violation of the conditions 
upon which the certification was granted. Any significant changes to this Project 
that would have a significant or material effect on the findings, conclusions, or 
conditions of this WQC, including Project operation, must be submitted to the 
Executive Officer for prior review and written approval. 

 
6. This WQC is subject to the acquisition of all local, regional, state, and federal 

permits and approvals, as required by law. Failure to meet any conditions 
contained herein or any conditions contained in any other permit or approval 
issued by the State of California or any subdivision thereof may result in the 
revocation of this WQC and civil or criminal liability. 
 



 
Ashley Helms                                          - 5 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 

7. The Water Board may add to or modify the conditions of this WQC, as 
appropriate, to implement any new or revised water quality standards and 
implementation plans adopted or approved pursuant to the CWC or section 303 of 
the CWA, or as appropriate to coordinate the operations of this Project with other 
projects where coordination of operations is reasonably necessary to achieve 
water quality standards or to protect the beneficial uses of water. Notwithstanding 
any more specific conditions in this WQC, the Project must be constructed and 
operated in a manner consistent with all water quality standards and 
implementation plans adopted or approved pursuant to the CWC or section 303 of 
the CWA. 

 
8. This WQC does not authorize any act which results in the taking of a threatened 

or endangered species or any act which is now prohibited, or becomes prohibited 
in the future, under the California Endangered Species Act (Fish and Wildlife 
Code, section 2050 et seq.) or the federal Endangered Species Act (16 USC, 
section 1531 et seq.). If a "take" will result from any act authorized under this 
certification, the Applicant must obtain authorization for the take prior to 
construction or operation of the Project. The Applicant is responsible for meeting 
all requirements of the applicable Endangered Species Act for the Project 
authorized under this WQC. 

 
Additional Conditions  
 
Pursuant to CCR, title 23, section 3859, subdivision (a), the following additional 
conditions are required with this WQC: 
 

1. Thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of this Order for WQC, the Applicant is 
required to upload Project information (all information fields required by EcoAtlas), 
including a Project map (either using upload or draw polygon features) to the 
following website: http://ptrack.ecoatlas.org/. Amendments to and monitoring 
reports associated with the Project must be updated on EcoAtlas (using the “Files 
and Links” tab under “Projects” in EcoAtlas) in addition to any other reporting 
required as part of this WQC Order. 
 

2. The Applicant proposes to remove the existing concrete piles from and reduce the 
volume of existing riprap in the channel of Pine Creek as compensatory mitigation 
for the Project’s permanent impacts to waters of the State. This mitigation will 
result in 0.02 acres of waters being restored and will be performed concurrent with 
the Project implementation. 
 

3. All excess sediment excavated from the site that is not used on-site will be 
removed from the site and stockpiled in an upland location so as to not be 
transported by wind or water into surface water. An adequate combination of 
sediment and erosion control BMPs must be implemented and maintained, as 
needed, to temporarily stabilize stockpiled soils until such time that they are 
reused and/or permanently stabilized. 
 

http://ptrack.ecoatlas.org/
http://ptrack.ecoatlas.org/


 
Ashley Helms                                          - 6 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 

4. Work in the stream channel is authorized only during dry weather conditions. 
Should inclement weather occur, all work within the channel must stop and all 
equipment and materials must be removed to upland areas.   
 

5. To document the completion of the Project, the Applicant must submit a Project 
Completion Report to the Water Board within 60 days following completion of 
the Project, including successful completion of all required mitigation and 
associated monitoring and reporting, if applicable. The Project Completion Report 
should include the following, at minimum: a summary of the Project activities, 
including the date(s) those activities were performed; identification of work 
locations (tabulated with latitude/longitude and corresponding map with photo 
documentation); the area of temporary and permanent disturbance to WOUS; a 
summary of the activities related to construction storm water controls and the 
BMPs used; and a summary of any mitigation activities as well as activities that 
deviated from those described in the original application and supporting 
documents.    
 

6. An “Annual Fee” will be assessed each year this Order remains in “Active” status. 
The actual Annual Fee will be calculated using the fee schedule in effect at the 
time the annual fee is assessed per California Code of Regulations, title 23, 
section 2200(a)(3). The Annual Fee will apply each fiscal year or portion of fiscal 
year until the Applicant submits a Project Completion Report (see Additional 
Condition No. 4 above) and the Water Board issues a Notice of Completion of 
Discharges Letter to the Applicant.   
 

7. This Order does not authorize emergency repair activities. The Applicant is 
required to apply for separate authorization to perform emergency repairs should 
that be necessary.  
 

8. No debris, cement, concrete (or wash water there from), oil, or petroleum products 
must be allowed to enter into or be placed where it may be washed from the 
Project site by rainfall or runoff into surface waters.  
 

9. An emergency spill kit must be at the Project site at all times during the Project. 
 

10. Construction vehicles and equipment must be monitored for leaks and proper BMPs 
must be implemented should leaks be detected or the vehicles/equipment must be 
removed from service, if necessary, to protect water quality. 

 
11. The Applicant must permit Water Board staff or their authorized representative(s) 

upon presentation of credentials: 
 
a. Entry onto Project premises, including all areas on which fill, excavation or 

mitigation is located or in which records are kept; 
 

b. Access to copy any record required to be kept under the terms and conditions 
of this WQC; 



 
Ashley Helms                                          - 7 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 

 
c. Inspection of any treatment equipment, monitoring equipment, or monitoring 

method required by this WQC; and  
 
d. Sampling of any discharge or surface water covered by this WQC. 

 
12. The Applicant must maintain at the Project site a copy of this Order and a copy of 

the complete WQC application provided to the Water Board so as to be available 
at all times to site operating personnel and agencies.  
 

13. The Applicant is responsible for informing any contractors of the specific 
conditions contained in this WQC Order.  

 
Enforcement 
 
1. In the event of any violation or threatened violation of the conditions of this WQC, the 

violation or threatened violation will be subject to any remedies, penalties, processes or 
sanctions, as provided for under state law. For purposes of CWA, section 401(d), the 
applicability of any state law authorizing remedies, penalties, processes or sanctions for 
the violation or threatened violation constitutes a limitation necessary to assure 
compliance with the water quality standards and other pertinent requirements 
incorporated into this WQC. 

 
2. In response to a suspected violation of any condition of this WQC, the State Water Board 

or the Water Board may require the holder of any permit or license subject to this WQC to 
furnish, under penalty of perjury, any technical or monitoring report that the State Water 
Board or Water Board deems appropriate, provided that the burden, including costs, of 
the reports must be in reasonable relationship to the need for the reports and the benefits 
to be obtained from the reports. 

 
3. In response to any violation of the conditions of this WQC, the Water Board may add to or 

modify the conditions of this certification, as appropriate, to ensure compliance. 
 

Section 401 Water Quality Certification Requirements Granted 
 
I hereby issue this Order certifying that any discharge from the referenced Project will comply 
with the applicable provisions of CWA, sections 301 (Effluent Limitations), 302 (Water Quality 
Related Effluent Limitations), 303 (Water Quality Standards and Implementation Plans),    
306 (National Standards of Performance), and 307 (Toxic and Pretreatment Effluent 
Standards), and with other applicable requirements of state law. This discharge is also 
regulated under State Water Board Order No. 2003-0017-DWQ, "General Waste Discharge 
Requirements for Dredge and Fill Discharges That Have Received State Water Quality 
Certification," which requires compliance with all conditions of this WQC. A copy of State 
Water Board Order No. 2003-0017-DWQ is enclosed for your reference (Enclosure 2). 
 
Except insofar as may be modified by any preceding conditions, all WQC actions are 
contingent on (a) the discharge being limited and all proposed mitigation being completed in 



 
Ashley Helms                                          - 8 -                 Board Order No. R6V-2020-0036 
 
strict compliance with the Applicant’s Project description and the terms specified in this WQC 
Order, and (b) compliance with all applicable requirements of the Basin Plan. 
 
We look forward to working with you in your efforts to protect water quality. If you have any 
questions regarding this matter, please contact me at (530) 542-5414 
(patty.kouyoumdjian@waterboards.ca.gov) or Tiffany Steinert, Engineering Geologist, at 
(760) 241-7305 (tiffany.steinert@waterboards.ca.gov).  
 
Please send all future correspondence regarding this Project to the Water Board’s email 
address at Lahontan@waterboards.ca.gov and be sure to include the WDID No. in the 
subject line. 

  
 
 
 

 PATTY Z. KOUYOUMDJIAN  
EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
 
Enclosures:  (1) Site Plan 

(2) SWRCB Order No. 2003-0017-DWQ 
 
cc: Nick Tomera, GEI Consultants  

Emma Ross, USACE  
Melissa Scianni, USEPA Region 9  

  Alyssa Marquez, Dept. of Fish and Wildlife  
  Tiffany Steinert, Lahontan Water Board   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

mailto:patty.kouyoumdjian@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:tiffany.steinert@waterboards.ca.gov
mailto:Lahontan@waterboards.ca.gov


 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ENCLOSURE 1 
 

Site Plan



 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                         ENCLOSURE 2 
 

SWRCB Order No. 2003-0017-DWQ 



  

   
 

    
 

  

 
 

 
   

 
    

 

  
  

 
 

   

 
 

     

 

                                                          
 

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 

WATER QUALITY ORDER NO. 2003 - 0017 - DWQ 

STATEWIDE GENERAL WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
  DREDGED OR FILL DISCHARGES THAT HAVE RECEIVED  

STATE WATER QUALITY CERTIFICATION (GENERAL WDRs) 

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) finds that: 

1. Discharges eligible for coverage under these General WDRs are discharges of dredged or fill 
material that have received State Water Quality Certification (Certification) pursuant to 
federal Clean Water Act (CWA) section 401. 

2. Discharges of dredged or fill material are commonly associated with port development, stream 
channelization, utility crossing land development, transportation water resource, and flood 
control projects.  Other activities, such as land clearing, may also involve discharges of 
dredged or fill materials (e.g., soil) into waters of the United States. 

3. CWA section 404 establishes a permit program under which the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(ACOE) regulates the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States. 

4. CWA section 401 requires every applicant for a federal permit or license for an activity that 
may result in a discharge of pollutants to a water of the United States (including permits under 
section 404) to obtain Certification that the proposed activity will comply with State water 
quality standards. In California, Certifications are issued by the Regional Water Quality 
Control Boards (RWQCB) or for multi-Region discharges, the SWRCB, in accordance with 
the requirements of California Code of Regulations (CCR) section 3830 et seq.  The SWRCB’s 
water quality regulations do not authorize the SWRCB or RWQCBs to waive certification, and 
therefore, these General WDRs do not apply to any discharge authorized by federal license or 
permit that was issued based on a determination by the issuing agency that certification has 
been waived.  Certifications are issued by the RWQCB or SWRCB before the ACOE may 
issue CWA section 404 permits.  Any conditions set forth in a Certification become conditions 
of the federal permit or license if and when it is ultimately issued. 

5. Article 4, of Chapter 4 of Division 7 of the California Water Code (CWC), commencing with 
section 13260(a), requires that any person discharging or proposing to discharge waste, other than 
to a community sewer system, that could affect the quality of the waters of the State,1 file a report 
of waste discharge (ROWD).  Pursuant to Article 4, the RWQCBs are required to prescribe waste 
discharge requirements (WDRs) for any proposed or existing discharge unless WDRs are waived 
pursuant to CWC section 13269.  These General WDRs fulfill the requirements of Article 4 for 
proposed dredge or fill discharges to waters of the United States that are regulated under the 
State’s CWA section 401 authority. 

1 “Waters of the State” as defined in CWC Section 13050(e) 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

     

 

6. These General WDRs require compliance with all conditions of Certification orders to ensure 
that water quality standards are met.  

7. The U.S. Supreme Court decision of Solid Waste Agency of Northern Cook County v. 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 531 U.S. 159 (2001) (the SWANCC decision) called into 
question the extent to which certain “isolated” waters are subject to federal jurisdiction.  The 
SWRCB believes that a Certification is a valid and enforceable order of the SWRCB or 
RWQCBs irrespective of whether the water body in question is subsequently determined not 
to be federally jurisdictional.  Nonetheless, it is the intent of the SWRCB that all 
Certification conditions be incorporated into these General WDRs and enforceable hereunder 
even if the federal permit is subsequently deemed invalid because the water is not deemed 
subject to federal jurisdiction. 

8. The beneficial uses for the waters of the State include, but are not limited to, domestic and 
municipal supply, agricultural and industrial supply, power generation, recreation, aesthetic 
enjoyment, navigation, and preservation and enhancement of fish, wildlife, and other aquatic 
resources. 

9. Projects covered by these General WDRs shall be assessed a fee pursuant to Title 23, 
CCR section 3833. 

10. These General WDRs are exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
because (a) they are not a “project” within the meaning of CEQA, since a “project” results     
in a direct or indirect physical change in the environment (Title 14, CCR section 15378); and 
(b) the term “project” does not mean each separate governmental approval (Title 14,         
CCR section 15378(c)). These WDRs do not authorize any specific project.  They recognize 
that dredge and fill discharges that need a federal license or permit must be regulated under 
CWA section 401 Certification, pursuant to CWA section 401 and Title 23, CCR section 
3855, et seq. Certification and issuance of waste discharge requirements are overlapping 
regulatory processes, which are both administered by the SWRCB and RWQCBs.  Each 
project subject to Certification requires independent compliance with CEQA and is regulated 
through the Certification process in the context of its specific characteristics.  Any effects on 
the environment will therefore be as a result of the certification process, not from these 
General WDRs.  (Title 14, CCR section 15061(b)(3)). 

11. Potential dischargers and other known interested parties have been notified of the intent to 
adopt these General WDRs by public hearing notice. 

12. All comments pertaining to the proposed discharges have been heard and considered at the 
November 4, 2003 SWRCB Workshop Session. 

13. The RWQCBs retain discretion to impose individual or General WDRs or waivers of WDRs in 
lieu of these General WDRs whenever they deem it appropriate. Furthermore, these General 
WDRs are not intended to supersede any existing WDRs or waivers of WDRs issued by a 
RWQCB. 

-2-



    
 

      
 

  

 

 

  
 

  
 

 
  

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that WDRs are issued to all persons proposing to discharge dredged or 
fill material to waters of the United States where such discharge is also subject to the water quality 
certification requirements of CWA section 401 of the federal Clean Water Act (Title 33 United 
States Code section 1341), and such certification has been issued by the applicable RWQCB or the 
SWRCB, unless the applicable RWQCB notifies the applicant that its discharge will be regulated 
through WDRs or waivers of WDRs issued by the RWQCB. In order to meet the provisions 
contained in Division 7 of CWC and regulations adopted thereunder, dischargers shall comply with 
the following: 

1. Dischargers shall implement all the terms and conditions of the applicable CWA section 401 
Certification issued for the discharge.  This provision shall apply irrespective of whether the 
federal license or permit for which the Certification was obtained is subsequently deemed invalid 
because the water body subject to the discharge has been deemed outside of federal jurisdiction.   

2. Dischargers are prohibited from discharging dredged of fill material to waters of the 
United States without first obtaining Certification from the applicable RWQCB or SWRCB. 

CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned, Clerk to the Board, does hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and 
correct copy of an order duly and regularly adopted at a meeting of the State Water Resources 
Control Board held on November 19, 2003. 

AYE: Arthur G. Baggett, Jr. 
Peter S. Silva

 Richard Katz 
Gary M. Carlton 
Nancy H. Sutley 

NO: None. 

ABSENT: None. 

ABSTAIN: None. 

-3-



Section 5 

Streambed Alteration Agreement. Notification No. 1600-2020-
0055-R6 

 

 

  



 

Ver. 5/28/2019 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE 
INLAND DESERTS REGION 
3602 INLAND EMPIRE BOULEVARD, SUITE-220 
ONTARIO, CA, 91764 
 
STREAMBED ALTERATION AGREEMENT  
NOTIFICATION NO. 1600-2020-0055-R6 
 
INYO COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 

 
 
This Streambed Alteration Agreement (Agreement) is entered into between the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the Inyo County Public Works 
Department (Permittee) or as represented by Ashely Helms (designated representative) 
acting on behalf of Permittee.  

    
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Fish and Game Code section 1602, Permittee notified CDFW 
on April 15, 2020 that Permittee intends to complete the Project described herein.  
  
WHEREAS, pursuant to Fish and Game Code section 1603, CDFW has determined 
that the Project could substantially adversely affect existing fish or wildlife resources 
and has included measures in the Agreement necessary to protect those resources. 

 
WHEREAS, Permittee has reviewed the Agreement and accepts its terms and 
conditions, including the measures to protect fish and wildlife resources. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, Permittee agrees to complete the Project in accordance with the 
Agreement. 

 
PROJECT LOCATION 
 
The Project is located at Pine Creek along North Round Valley Road about 1 mile east 
of the unincorporated community of Rovana, in the County of Inyo, State of California; 
Latitude: 37.421372, -118.58842, Section 17, Township 6S, Range 31E, United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) map Rovana.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The proposed Project is limited to the removal and replacement of the existing North 
Round Valley Road Bridge (Bridge No. 48C0044) that was damaged during high flows 
in Pine Creek in 2017 (Exhibit A. Project Site Map). The proposed Project will replace 
the existing bridge with an approximately 85-foot (ft) single-span, precast/prestressed 
wide flange girder superstructure on high cantilever abutments founded on cast-in-
drilled-hole concrete piles. The proposed bridge barriers are California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) standard California ST-75 open bridge railings. Installation of 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 2 of 20 
 

 
the new bridge abutments will require two deep excavations (40-ft long by 12-ft wide) 
that may need to be stabilized with temporary shoring, requiring dewatering for 
placement of the concrete footings. Water will be temporarily diverted around the 
construction site to a downstream location below the construction site, where energy 
dissipators (i.e., rocks) will be placed before water is released back into Pine Creek. 
The water diversion will be scheduled during low-flow periods (between June and 
October). The existing horizontal and vertical alignments of the North Round Valley 
Road will be maintained, and the new bridge will meet Caltrans’ Highway Manual 
freeboard requirements for 50-year (Q50) and 100-year (Q100) events. Equipment that 
will be used to demolish the existing bridge and construct the new bridge include 
excavators, dozers, cranes, pavers, dump trucks, concrete trucks, and concrete pumps. 
 
The Project will include: (1) clearing and grubbing; (2) installing temporary BMPs; (3) 
constructing a temporary water diversion; (4) removal of the existing bridge; (5) 
construction of the new bridge; (6) construction of abutments; (7)  placement of 
precast/prestressed CA wide flange girder superstructure; (8) construction of bridge 
deck and barriers; (9) installation of permanent erosion control/scour BMPs; and (10) 
reconstruction of road approaches. 
 
PROJECT IMPACTS 
 
Existing fish or wildlife resources the Project could substantially adversely affect include:  
 
Mammals: Mammals may be affected by direct mortality, the removal or reduced quality 
of foraging habitat and disturbance during breeding season. Special-status mammal 
species (e.g., species of special concern, rare, threatened, endangered, candidate) that 
may be impacted include: Townsend’s big-eared bat (Corynorhimus townsendii), 
western small-footed myotis (Myotis cilliolabrum), fringed myotis (Myostis thysanodes), 
and long-eared myotis (Myotis evotis). Other mammal species that may be impacted 
include: California ground squirrel (Otospermophilus beecheyi), desert kit fox (Vulpes 
macrotis arsipus), mule deer (Odocoileus hemionus inyoensis), black-tailed jackrabbit 
(Lepus californicus), Nuttall’s cottontail (Sylvilagus nuttallii), desert cottontail (Sylvilagus 
audobonii), western spotted skunk (Spilogale gracilis), striped skunk (Mephitis 
mephitis), coyote (Canis latrans), bobcat (Lynx rufus), least chipmunk (Tamias 
minimus), Botta’s Pocket Gopher (Thomomys bottae), vagrant shrew (Sorex vagrans), 
Inyo shrew (Sorex tenellus), Merriam’s Shrew (Sorex merriami), kangaroo rats 
(Dipodomys spp.) and American badger (Taxidea taxus). 
 
Birds: Birds may be affected by the removal of nesting, roosting, or foraging habitat, 
disturbance during nesting seasons, loss of migratory habitat, and reduced ability of 
individual birds to communicate, detect prey and avoid predators due to increased noise 
and vibration. Special-status bird species that may be impacted include: southwestern 
willow flycatcher (Empidonax traillii extimus), Swainson’s hawk (Buteo swainsoni), 
northern harrier (Circus hudsonius), loggerhead shrike (Lanius ludovicianus), Le 
Conte’s thrasher (toxostoma lecontei), yellow-headed blackbird (Xanthocephalus 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 3 of 20 
 

 
xanthocephalus), yellow warbler (Dendrioca petechia), and golden eagle (Aquila 
chrysaetos). Other bird species that may be impacted include: common raven (Corvus 
corax), Bell’s sparrow (Artemisiospiza belli), black-billed Magpie (Pica hudsonia), red-
tailed hawk (Buteo jamaicensis), violet-green swallow (Tachycineta thalassina), 
northern rough-winged swallow (Stelgidopteryx serripennis), cliff swallow (Petrochelidon 
pyrrhonota), barn swallow (Hirundo rustica) and common poorwill (Phalaenoptilus 
nuttallii).  
 
Reptiles: Reptiles may be affected by direct mortality, the removal of foraging habitat, 
the removal of denning sites, interference with foraging activities, and reduced food 
availability from increased exotic plant species. Reptiles that could be impacted include: 
southern desert horned lizard (Phrynosoma platyrhinos calidiarum), desert banded 
gecko (Coleonyx variegatus variegatus), great basin collared lizard (Crotaphytus 
bicinctores), western side-blotched lizard (Uta stansburiana elegeans), long-nosed 
leopard lizard (Gambelia wislizenii), great basin whiptail (Aspidoscelis tigris tigris), red 
racer (Coluber flagellum piceus), Mohave patch-nosed snake (Salvadora hexalepis 
mojavensis), great basin gophersnake (Pituophis catenifer deseticola), long-nosed 
snake (Rhinocheilus lecontei), California kingsnake (Lampropeltis californiae), and 
northern desert nightsnake (Hypsiglena chlorophaea deserticola). 
 
Amphibians: Amphibians may be affected by direct mortality, the removal of foraging 
habitat, the removal of denning sites and interference with foraging activities. 
Amphibians that may be impacted include: tree frogs (Pseudacris spp.). 
 
Plants: Plants may be impacted by crushing, complete or partial removal, soil 
disturbance, and competition from introduced exotic species. Special-status pant 
species (e.g., species of special concern, rare, threatened, endangered, candidate) that 
may be impacted include: Owens valley checkerbloom (Sidalcea covillei). Other plant 
species that may be impacted include: pacific willow (Salix lasiandra), narrowleaf willow 
(Salix exigua), white alder (Alnus rhombifolia), Fremont’s cottonwood (Populus 
fremontii), , sedges (Carex spp.), California sagebrush (Artemisia californica), silver 
sagebrush (Artemisia cana) and California rose (Rosa californica). 
 
Fish: Fish may be impacted by increased sedimentation, change in water quality, water 
temperature, pH, and through barriers to fish passage. Fish that may be impacted 
include: Owens sucker (Catostomus fumeiventris), Owens speckled dace (Rhinichthys 
osculus spp. 2), brown trout (Salmo trutta) and rainbow trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss).  
 
The adverse effects the Project could have on the fish or wildlife resources identified 
above include: direct mortality to wildlife during construction from clearing and grubbing, 
excavation, filling, equipment movement, equipment, vehicle and material staging; 
indirect impacts to wildlife and it’s habitat from construction noise, light, vibration and 
dust and increased human disturbance; removal and/or reduced quality of foraging and 
migration habitat; reduced ability of individuals to communicate, detect prey and avoid 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 4 of 20 
 

 
predators due to increased noise and vibration; and introduction and/or increased 
spread of exotic species due to soil disturbance and construction activities.  
 
This Agreement authorizes impacts to Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources 
including: 0.04 acres of permanent impacts to Fish and Game Code section 1602 
resources through excavating (1,068 cubic yards of structure and roadway excavation), 
filling (278 cubic yards of structure backfill) and grading of the bed, bank and channel of 
Pine Creek, installation of bridge abutments, and placement of 1,815 cubic yards of 
rock-slope-protection (RSP) in the bed, bank and channel; 0.03 acres of temporary 
impacts to Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources through the placement of 
water diversions, temporary access for construction equipment ingress and egress. 
Within Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources this Agreement authorizes the 
removal of approximately 10 willows over 4 inches in Diameter at Breast Height (DBH). 
 
MEASURES TO PROTECT FISH AND WILDLIFE RESOURCES  
 
1. Administrative Measures 
 
Permittee shall meet each administrative requirement described below.  

 
 Documentation at Project Site. Permittee shall make the Agreement, any 

extensions and amendments to the Agreement, and all related notification 
materials and California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) documents, readily 
available to CDFW personnel, or personnel from another state, federal, or local 
agency at the Project site at all times upon request.   
 

 Providing Agreement to Persons at Project Site. Permittee shall provide copies of 
the Agreement and any extensions and amendments to the Agreement to all 
persons who will be working on the Project at the Project site on behalf of 
Permittee, including but not limited to contractors, subcontractors, inspectors, and 
monitors.  
 

 Notification of Conflicting Provisions. Permittee shall notify CDFW if Permittee 
determines or learns that a provision in the Agreement might conflict with a 
provision imposed on the Project by another local, state, or federal agency. In that 
event, CDFW shall contact Permittee to resolve any conflict.  
 

 Project Site Entry. Permittee agrees that CDFW personnel may enter the Project 
site at any time to verify compliance with the Agreement. 

 
 Additional Project Impacts. Permittee shall submit to CDFW a request to amend 

this Agreement if any additional impacts to Fish and Game Code section 1602 
resources not identified in this Agreement are anticipated. No additional impacts to 
Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources are authorized unless the impacts 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 5 of 20 
 

 
and/or activities are expressly authorized by CDFW by amendment to this 
Agreement.      

 Compliance with other Agencies. The Agreement does not relieve the Permittee of 
responsibility for compliance with applicable federal, state, or local laws, 
ordinances or grant conditions. 
 

 Take of Listed Species. The issuance of this Agreement does not authorize the 
take of any state- or federally listed threatened, endangered, or fully protected 
species. Take of any California Endangered Species Act (CESA) listed species is 
prohibited except as authorized by state law (Fish and G. Code § 2080 & 2085). 
Consequently, if a Project, including Project construction or any Project related 
activity during the life of the Project, results in take of CESA-listed species, CDFW 
recommends that the Permittee seek appropriate authorization prior to Project 
implementation.  

 
 Take of Nesting Birds. Fish and Game Code section 3503 makes it unlawful to 

take, possess, or needlessly destroy the nest or eggs of any bird, except as 
otherwise provided by Fish and Game Code or any regulation made pursuant 
thereto. Fish and Game Code section 3503.5 makes it unlawful to take, possess, 
or destroy any birds in the orders Falconiformes or Strigiformes (birds-of-prey), to 
take, possess, or destroy the nest or eggs of any such bird except as otherwise 
provided by Fish and Game Code or any regulation adopted pursuant thereto. Fish 
and Game Code section 3513 makes it unlawful to take or possess any migratory 
nongame bird except as provided by the rules and regulations adopted by the 
Secretary of the Interior under provisions of the Migratory Bird Treaty Act of 1918, 
as amended (16 U.S.C. § 703 et seq.). The issuance of this Agreement does not in 
any way exempt or excuse compliance with these statutes. 

 
 Reporting of Violations. Permittee shall report any violations of the Agreement, 

whether committed by Permittee or any person acting on behalf of Permittee, to 
the CDFW contact identified below within 48 hours of the violation occurring. 

 
 Correspondence with CDFW.  Any other required reports, survey results, and other 
Project documentation shall be submitted via e-mail to Alyssa Marquez, 
Environmental Scientist at Alyssa.Marquez@wildlife.ca.gov and to the CDFW 
regional office, at: R6LSAReporting@wildlife.ca.gov. Any other communications 
may also be submitted via email to Alyssa Marquez, Environmental Scientist, and 
through phone at 760-873-7452 or 760-567-0332. For all correspondence please 
reference Agreement No. 1600-2020-0055-R6 in the subject line. 
 

2. Avoidance and Minimization Measures 
 
To avoid or minimize adverse impacts to fish and wildlife resources identified above, 
Permittee shall implement each measure listed below. 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 6 of 20 
 

 
 

 Designated Biologist. Permittee shall have a full-time, CDFW-approved Designated 
Biologist (DB) present onsite throughout the entirety of the Project site and during 
all Project activities within Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources. No less 
than 30 calendar days prior to initiation of any Project activities (including 
construction and/or site preparation), Permittee shall submit to CDFW via 
email the name, qualifications, business address, and contact information of 
a DB for review and approval. Permittee shall ensure that the DB(s) is 
knowledgeable and experienced in the biology, natural history, collecting, and 
handling of appropriate species. The DB shall ensure that all avoidance and 
minimization measures in the Agreement are implemented and maintained, 
including, but not limited to: conduct pre-activity surveys, present Worker 
Environmental Awareness Training (WEAT), monitor all dewatering activities, 
conduct fish salvage, monitor all construction activities in Fish and Game Code 
section 1602 resources (i.e., ensuring the prescribed access routes and work 
areas are respected), monitor any active bird nests, perform necessary pre-activity 
surveys within all areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 and within all 
sensitive habitats, and ensure impacts to wildlife habitat are minimized. The DB 
shall submit weekly construction monitoring logs during construction in 
areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 to CDFW via email every 
Friday. All pre-activity survey results or photographs shall be submitted to 
CDFW via email prior to construction start and as part of the Annual Report 
as described in Measure 4.1.  
 

 Designated Biologist Authority. To ensure compliance with the measures of this 
Agreement, the DB shall have the authority to immediately halt any activity that 
does not comply with this Agreement, and/or to order any reasonable measure to 
avoid the violation of or compliance with any measure of this Agreement. The DB 
shall not have the authority to handle any special-status species (e.g., 
species of special concern, rare, threatened, endangered, and candidate species) 
except as may be provided in a Scientific Collecting Permit or Incidental Take 
Permit and must halt construction and notify CDFW immediately (within 24 hours) 
if any special-status species is identified within or adjacent to the Project site. If 
compliance with any measure of this Agreement fails or if the measures of this 
Agreement are violated, DB shall notify CDFW Alyssa Marquez immediately (within 
24 hours of non-compliance or violation). 

 
 Worker Environmental Awareness Training. The DB shall provide a Worker 

Environmental Awareness Training (WEAT) to all employees, representatives, 
agents, contractors, and subcontractors, including truck drivers and vendors, on 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement prior to starting work under the 
Agreement. The DB shall provide interpretation for non-English speaking workers, 
and the same instruction shall be provided to any new workers before they are 
authorized to perform work in the Project site. Upon completion of the WEAT, 
employees shall sign a sign-in sheet stating they attended the program and 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 7 of 20 
 

 
understand all protection measures. The WEAT shall be repeated at least once 
annually until this Agreement expires. The WEAT shall not be presented as a 
prerecorded presentation. Permittee shall provide a copy of the WEAT 
presentation materials and a trainee sign-in sheet to CDFW via email prior to 
initiation of any Project activities. 

 
 Nesting Bird Protection. The permittee shall comply with the following: 

2.4.1 Nesting Bird Plan. No less than 30 calendar days prior to initiation of 
any Project activities, Permittee shall submit to CDFW via email a 
Nesting Bird Plan (NBP) for review that includes Project specific 
avoidance and minimization measures, including active nesting bird 
monitoring protocols, to ensure that impacts to nesting birds do not occur 
and that the Project complies with all applicable laws related to nesting birds 
and birds of prey. The NBP measures shall at a minimum include: 1) Project 
phasing and timing; 2) Nesting Bird Pre-Activity Surveys (Measure 2.4.2) 
timing and duration; 3) ESA fencing of an appropriately sized work 
exclusion zone around active nests; 4) monitoring of Project-related noise 
and all established buffers 5) the creation, maintenance, and weekly 
submittal via email to CDFW of a nesting-bird logbook every Friday 
during construction in areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 
1602; 6) monitoring of active nests by an DB experienced in the behavior of 
the nesting bird until the DB determines the young have fledged; and 7) 
shutting down of Project activities by the DB if the nesting bird exhibits 
agitated behavior, such as defensive flights at intruders, getting up from a 
brooding position, or flying off the nest.  
 

2.4.2 Nesting Bird Pre-Activity Surveys. Nesting birds and raptors are protected 
under Fish and Game Code Sections 3503, 3503.5, and 3513 and the 
Federal Migratory Bird Treaty Act. Permittee may not perform Project 
activities that will disturb woody vegetation or the ground from February 15 
to September 31 where nesting birds could be adversely affected unless an 
DB surveys the entirety of the Project site and the buffer zone specified in 
the approved NBP for both diurnal and nocturnal nesting birds and 
determines no nesting birds are present. Surveys shall be conducted 14-21 
days prior to and again no more than 24 hours prior to commencing any 
Project activities, shall be conducted at the appropriate time(s) of day, shall 
include surveys of nesting bird habitat adjacent to the Project site (upland 
and riparian) including bridges, culverts, and overhangs, and shall identify 
and map for avoidance any nesting birds and their active nests. 
Documentation of surveys and findings shall be submitted to CDFW 
via email prior to initiation of any Project activities and in the Annual 
Report (Measure 4.1). If an active bird nest is located, the DB shall 
immediately (within 24 hours) notify CDFW and shall implement and monitor 
specific avoidance and minimization measures as specified in the CDFW-



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 8 of 20 
 

 
approved NBP (Measure 2.4.1). 

 
 Wildlife and Special-Status Species Pre-Activity Surveys. The DB shall survey the 

Project site for wildlife and special-status species, and any habitat, dens, burrows, 
nests, etc. capable of supporting wildlife and/or a special-status species 14-21 
days prior to and again no more than 24 hours prior to initiating Project activities. 
The DB shall ensure that the methods used to locate, identify, map, avoid, and 
buffer individuals or habitat are appropriate and effective, including the surveyors  
attaining 100% visual coverage of the entirety of the potential impact areas, 
including all areas not previously surveyed, and an appropriate buffer surrounding 
those areas. Results of the surveys shall be submitted to CDFW via email 
prior to initiation of any Project activities and in the Annual Report (Measure 
4.1). Special-status species that could occur in or around the Project site include 
but are not limited to: Owen’s valley checkerbloom, Townsend’s big-eared bat, 
Swainson’s hawk, southwestern willow flycatcher, northern harrier, and golden 
eagle. If any special-status species (or sign of presence) is identified within 
or adjacent to the Project site, Permittee shall immediately (within 24 hours) 
notify and submit via email to CDFW, species-specific avoidance, 
minimization and mitigation measures. If full avoidance cannot be 
accomplished, Permittee shall postpone the Project, and contact CDFW to discuss 
an appropriate path forward. 
 

 Bat Protection - Bridges.  Prior to work commencing at any bridge-including 
removal of the existing damaged bridge-, the bridge shall be surveyed for bats by 
the DB.  If bats are found on the bridge, operations shall cease. Bats shall not be 
disturbed without specific notice to and consultation with CDFW. CDFW 
reserves the right to provide additional provisions to this Agreement designed to 
protect nesting/roosting bats. Impact minimization measures shall be implemented 
prior to beginning Project activities, including removal of the existing damaged 
bridge. If bats are found on the bridge, the new bridge design shall incorporate a 
CDFW approved design for bat habitat. 

 Delineate Work Area Boundary. In consultation with the DB, Permittee shall clearly 
delineate the outer perimeter of the work areas and access routes with appropriate 
fencing, signage, and/or flagging to prevent damage to adjacent habitats. The 
delineation materials shall be in place during all periods of operation and all 
persons employed or otherwise working on the Project site shall be instructed 
about the restrictions. DB shall monitor the delineation materials daily, and shall 
ensure that they are maintained, repaired, or replaced immediately if the materials 
are damaged, lost, stolen, or become ineffective in any way. The DB shall ensure 
the delineation materials do not create a barrier to wildlife movement and will not 
pose a risk to wildlife safety.  

 No Work in Flowing Water. Work within Fish and Game Code section 1602 
resources shall be restricted to periods of no stream flow except for CDFW 
approved water diversions. 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 9 of 20 
 

 
 

 Temporary Stream Diversion. To facilitate construction activities covered under this 
Agreement, flows shall be diverted and bypasses around work areas identified in 
this Agreement when necessary to safely and efficiently complete Project 
Activities. The Permittee shall comply with the following measures to protect 
aquatic life. 

2.9.1 Diversion Plan. No less than 30 calendar days prior to initiation of any 
Project activities, Permittee shall submit to CDFW via email a final 
diversion plan for review and approval.  

 
2.9.2 Maintain Water Quality. Permittee shall divert flow in a manner that prevents 

turbidity, siltation, or pollution, and provides uninterrupted flows to 
downstream reaches. Flows to reaches below the construction area shall be 
provided during all times that the natural flow would have supported aquatic 
life, without diminution of quality and quantity, including the use of energy 
dissipators (i.e., placement of rocks at the diversion system inlet and outlet), 
to support fish and other aquatic life below the diversion. Bypassed flow 
shall be of sufficient quality and quantity, and of appropriate temperature to 
support fish and other aquatic life both above and below the diversion (Fish 
& G. Code § 5937 and 5946). Temporary diversion structures shall be 
removed to restore flow to the affected stream reach immediately upon 
completion of work in the channel. 

 
2.9.3 Stranded Aquatic Life. Prior to diverting waterways, the DB shall use hand 

tools (e.g. rake) to remove and check submerged aquatic vegetation for 
stranded aquatic life from the area that will be dewatered. The DB shall 
check for stranded aquatic life as the water level in the dewatered area 
drops and in the settling basin. All reasonable efforts shall be made to 
capture and move all stranded aquatic life observed in the dewatered areas 
and the settling basin. Capture methods may include backpack 
electrofishing, fish landing nets, dip nets, buckets and by hand. Captured 
aquatic life shall be released in the creek immediately downstream of the 
water diversion outlet. A summary of any such activities, including 
species and number of aquatic life rescued, shall be submitted to 
CDFW weekly on Fridays as part of the weekly construction 
monitoring log and as described in Measure 2.1. 

 
 Limited Ingress/Egress. Permittee shall make every effort to access all work areas 
using existing ingress/egress routes. If alternative ingress/egress routes are 
required, Permittee shall submit the alternate route prior to construction activities 
for CDFW approval, if the new access route includes activities subject to Fish and 
Game Code section 1602. 

 Pollution and Litter. Permittee shall comply with all litter and pollution laws, 
including Fish and Game Code section 5650. All contractors, subcontractors, and 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 10 of 20 
 

 
employees shall also obey these laws and it shall be the responsibility of Permittee 
to ensure compliance. 

2.11.1 Permittee shall not allow water containing mud, silt, or other pollutants from 
grading, aggregate washing, or other activities to enter areas subject to Fish 
and Game Code section 1602 or be placed in locations that may be 
subjected to high storm flows. 

 
2.11.2 Spoil sites shall not be located within areas subject to Fish and Game Code 

section 1602 or locations that may be subjected to high storm flows, where 
spoil could be washed back into areas subject to Fish and Game Code 
section 1602 where it will impact streambed habitat and aquatic or riparian 
vegetation. 
 

2.11.3 Raw cement/concrete or washings thereof, asphalt, paint, or other coating 
material, oil or other petroleum products, or any other substances which 
could be hazardous to fish and wildlife resources resulting from Project 
related activities shall be prevented from contaminating the soil and/or 
entering areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602. These 
materials, placed within or where they may enter a lake, streambed, or 
flowing stream by Permittee or any party working under contract or with the 
permission of Permittee, shall be removed immediately. 

 
2.11.4 No broken concrete, cement, debris, soil, silt, sand, bark, slash, sawdust, 

trash, or washings thereof, oil or petroleum products, or other organic or 
earthen material from any construction or associated activity of whatever 
nature shall be allowed to enter into or be placed where it may be washed 
by rainfall or runoff into areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602. 
When operations are completed, any excess materials or debris shall be 
removed from the work area. None of these materials shall be deposited 
within one hundred and fifty (150) feet of areas subject to Fish and Game 
Code section 1602. 

 
 Waste Collection and Disposal. Permittee shall pick up and contain in a closed 

container all debris and waste generated by the Project daily at the Project site. 
Collected waste and debris shall be disposed of off-site. Upon completion of 
Project activities, Permittee shall remove from the Project site and properly 
dispose of all temporary fill and construction refuse, including, but not limited to, 
broken equipment parts, wrapping material, cords, cables, wire, rope, strapping, 
twine, buckets, metal or plastic containers, and boxes. 

 Staging Areas: All Project-related parking areas, storage areas, laydown sites, 
equipment storage, burrow sites shall not be located within one hundred and fifty 
(150) feet of areas subject to Fish and Game Code section and, to the extent 
possible, shall use previously disturbed areas. 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 11 of 20 
 

 
 Equipment and Vehicles. Permittee shall comply with the following: 

2.14.1 Any equipment or vehicles driven and/or operated while conducting a 
Project activity shall be checked daily and maintained as needed to 
prevent leaks of materials that could be deleterious to aquatic and 
terrestrial life or riparian habitat. Prior to working within a stream bed, 
bank, or channel, all equipment shall be closely examined for oil and fuel 
discharges. Any contaminants shall be cleaned prior to any work within a 
streambed. In addition, equipment being moved between watersheds 
(i.e., equipment used in a previous Project at a different watershed) shall 
be cleaned by Permittee to ensure non-native invasive species are not 
introduced or spread throughout waterways.    
 

2.14.2 All heavy equipment that will conduct a Project activity shall be cleaned 
by Permittee at a staging or maintenance area prior to entry into areas 
subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 to prevent discharge of 
materials deleterious to aquatic life including oil, grease, hydraulic fluid, 
soil and other debris.  

 
2.14.3 No equipment maintenance or fueling shall be done within 150 feet of 

areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 where petroleum 
products or other pollutants from the equipment could enter these areas.  

 
2.14.4 Staging and storage areas for equipment, materials, fuels, lubricants and 

solvents, shall be located 150 feet outside of areas subject to Fish and 
Game Code section 1602 where material could wash into a stream.  

 
2.14.5 All equipment shall carry suitable spill containment equipment to handle a 

catastrophic spill/leak. This may include oil absorbent pads, booms, or 
skimmers, as appropriate.  
 

2.14.6 Permittee shall begin the cleanup of all spills immediately. Permittee shall 
notify CDFW immediately (within 24 hours) of any spills that occur 
because of activities covered under this Agreement and shall consult with 
CDFW regarding cleanup procedures. Permittee shall have all spill clean-
up equipment on site during construction. 

 
 Check for Wildlife in Pipes and Construction Materials: The DB shall visually 

check every culvert, pipe, and other construction materials for the presence of 
wildlife sheltering within them prior to the start of Project activities and prior to 
pipe or culverts being placed in a trench.  

 Escape Ramps. The DB shall visually check all open trenches and other 
construction materials daily for the presence of wildlife sheltering within them. All 
trenches and open pits shall be covered at the end of each workday to prevent 
wildlife from entering. If wildlife is encountered in open trenches or pits, DB shall 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 12 of 20 
 

 
place an escape ramp at each end of the open trench or pit to allow any animals 
that may have become entrapped to climb out. The ramp may be constructed of 
dirt, fill, wood planking or other suitable material that is placed at an angle no 
greater than 30 degrees. 

 Native Vegetation Removal. Permittee shall not disturb or remove vegetation 
along waterways in excess of what is authorized under this Agreement. If 
additional removal or disturbance of vegetation is required, Permittee shall obtain 
approval from CDFW prior to vegetation removal. Precautions shall be taken to 
avoid damage to non-target vegetation by people or equipment. Where 
appropriate, roots and stumps may be left to facilitate regrowth. 

 Restoration of Original Gradient. If the gradient of any area subject to Fish and 
Game Code section 1602 is altered during work activities, Permittee shall return 
its contours as close as possible to pre-project conditions. Pre-project condition 
shall be defined by engineered plans established prior to commencement of 
Project activities. Permittee shall be liable for restoration of contours to pre-
project conditions if subsequent erosion is caused by the work conducted. 

 Best Management Practices (BMPs). Permittee shall implement BMPs that will 
successfully prevent erosion and the discharge of sediment and pollutants into 
Pine Creek during Project activities. BMPs shall be monitored daily by the DB 
and repaired or replaced immediately if necessary, to ensure maximum erosion, 
sediment, and pollution control. If a type of BMP is found to not fully protect areas 
subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 from erosion, sedimentation and 
pollution, the DB, in consultation with CDFW shall select a new type of BMP to 
ensure all areas subject to Fish and Game Code section 1602 are fully protected. 
Permittee shall prohibit the use of erosion control materials potentially harmful to 
fish and wildlife species, such as welded-weave mono-filament netting (erosion 
control matting) or similar material, within and adjacent to areas subject to Fish 
and Game Code section 1602. All fiber rolls, straw wattles, and/or hay bales 
utilized within and adjacent to the Project site shall be certified free of nonnative 
plant materials. Fiber rolls or erosion control mesh shall be made of loose-weave 
mesh that is not fused at the intersections of the weave, such as jute, or coconut 
(coir) fiber, or other products without welded weaves. Non-welded weaves 
reduce entanglement risks to wildlife by allowing animals to push through the 
weave, which expands when spread. 

 Invasive Species Prevention. Permittee shall conduct Project activities in a 
manner that prevents the introduction, transfer, and spread of invasive species, 
including plants, animals, and microbes (e.g., algae, fungi, parasites, bacteria, 
etc.) from one Project site and/or waterbody to another (Fish & G. code § 702 & 
2300). Prevention BMPs and guidelines for invasive plants can be found on the 
California Invasive Plant Council’s website at: http://www.cal-
ipc.org/ip/prevention/index.php and for invasive mussels and aquatic species 

http://www.cal-ipc.org/ip/prevention/index.php
http://www.cal-ipc.org/ip/prevention/index.php


Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 13 of 20 
 

 
can be found at the stop Aquatic Hitchhikers websites: 
http://www.protectyourwaters.net/. 

3. Compensatory Measures  
To compensate for adverse impacts to fish and wildlife resources identified above that 
cannot be avoided or minimized, Permittee shall implement each measure listed below.   
 

 Habitat Mitigation and Monitoring Plan. The Permittee shall be responsible for 
restoring any fish and wildlife resources that are damaged or impaired as a direct 
or indirect result of performing activities permitted under this Agreement or as a 
result of the Permittees failure to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. Impacts to the riparian vegetation corridor along areas subject to Fish 
and Game Code section 1602 will require mitigation in the form of on-site 
mitigation planting, plant establishment and mitigation monitoring and reporting. No 
less than 60 days prior to the initiation of any Project activities, the Permittee 
shall submit to CDFW for review and approval a Habitat Mitigation and 
Monitoring Plan (HMMP) designed to restore fish and wildlife resources that are 
damaged or impaired as a direct or indirect result of performing activities permitted 
under this Agreement. At a minimum the HMMP shall include the following 
information: (a) restoration activities, including those identified in Measure 3.2; (b) 
a description of the existing physical conditions of each mitigation site; (c) a map 
that identifies the location of the mitigation sites; (d) a plan for the preparation of 
each mitigation site; (e) a list of all native plants in any proposed revegetation seed 
mix(s); (f) a location map of where willow planting will occur; (g) the procedures to 
ensure that nonnative plants are controlled and removed within the mitigation site; 
and (h) success criteria for seed mix and tree planting mitigation determined using 
baseline quantitative vegetation data (species distribution, composition and cover).  
The CDFW-approved HMMP shall be implemented in the time frame identified in 
the HMMP.   

 Protection of Riparian Trees. All native trees removed with a DBH equal to or 
greater than 4-inches shall require mitigation. Where native trees or woody riparian 
vegetation split into several trunks close to ground level, the DBH shall be 
measured for each trunk and calculated as one tree. Permittee shall mitigate for 
adverse impacts to native tree species greater than 4-inches DBH by planting a 
replacement-to-impact minimum ratio of 3:1. If native trees greater or equal to 12-
inches DBH are removed, they shall be replaced by native tree species planted at 
a 10:1 minimum ratio. Removal of approximately 10 willows shall be mitigated at a 
3:1 ratio by planting locally sourced, one-gallon willow seedlings. 

4. Reporting Measures  
Permittee shall meet each reporting requirement described below.  
 

 Annual Report. By December 31 during years that the Project is under 
construction, the Permittee shall submit an Annual Report (AR) to CDFW that 

http://www.protectyourwaters.net/


Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 14 of 20 
 

 
includes but is not limited to: (1) a summary of Project activities completed 
during the calendar year; (2) results from any biological surveys including photos; 
(3) a summary of Project impacts to Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources; 
(4) any re-contouring that occurred; (5) a summary of any oil spills that occurred; 
(6) a list of plant and wildlife species that were observed during monitoring; (7) a 
list of sensitive species encountered; (7) before and after construction photos; (8) 
results of stranded aquatic life rescue; (9) a copy of the nesting bird logbook, (10) 
all weekly construction monitoring logs, (11) final tree removal numbers by species 
and DBH; and (12) a summary of minimization and avoidance measures that were 
implemented. The first AR is due to CDFW at the end of the calendar year for each 
year in which construction occurred. The AR shall be sent via email to CDFW. 

 Annual Mitigation Monitoring Report. An Annual Mitigation Monitoring Report 
(AMMR) shall be submitted to CDFW by December 31 of each calendar year 
following the completion of mitigation activities, or until CDFW determines 
mitigation plantings on the mitigation sites have met the success criteria 
required under this Agreement as described in the HMMP. At a minimum, the 
AMMR shall include the following information: (1) a description of the replanting 
establishment and any other restoration efforts conducted during the previous 
year, including: (a) an overview of the planting effort including size, type and 
number of species planted; (b) a re-planting map; (c) the number by species of 
plants naturally recruited; and (d) when the activities were conducted; (2) current 
site conditions, including: (a) the percent survival, percent cover, and height of both 
tree and shrub species; and (b) the methods used to assess these parameters; (3) 
a list of wildlife species observed at the mitigation site during monitoring surveys 
including sensitive species and/or listed species; and (4) photos from designated 
photo stations. The first AMMR is due to CDFW the end of the calendar year in 
which mitigation planting was undertaken. This report shall be sent via email to 
CDFW. 

 CNDDB Reporting. If any sensitive species are observed on or in proximity to the 
Project site, Permittee shall submit California Natural Diversity Data Base 
(CNDDB) forms and maps to the CNDDB within five (5) working days of the 
sightings, and provide the regional CDFW office with copies of the CNDDB forms 
and survey maps. The CNDDB form is available online at: 
www.dfg.ca.gov/whdab/pdfs/natspec.pdf. This information shall be mailed within 
five (5) days to: California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Natural Diversity Data 
Base, 1807 13th Street, Suite 202, Sacramento, CA 95814, Phone (916) 324-
3812. A copy of this information shall also be mailed within five (5) days to the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife Region 6, 787 North Main Street, Suite 220, 
Bishop, CA 93514 Attn: Alyssa Marquez. Please reference SAA # 1600-2020-
0055-R6. 

 Construction Notification. The Permittee shall notify CDFW in writing at least five 
(5) days prior to the commencement and five (5) days after the completion of 
Project activities in Fish and Game Code section 1602 resources. The notification 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 15 of 20 
 

 
shall be sent to CDFW Inland Deserts Region at the address below under Contact 
Information. Please reference SAA # 1600-2020-0055-R6 and send via email to 
CDFW. 

              Reporting Table 
Measures Submittal Timeline 

2.1 Designated Biologist 
(Approval) 

No less than 30 calendar days prior to 
initiation of any Project activities 

2.1 Designated Biologist 
(Construction Monitoring 
Logs) 

Weekly submittal every Friday during 
construction in areas subject to Fish and 
Game Code section 1602 

2.3 Worker Environmental 
Awareness Training 
(WEAT) 

Prior to initiation of any Project activities 

2.4.1 Nesting Bird Plan No less than 30 calendar days prior to 
initiation of any Project activities 

2.4.1 Nesting-Bird Log-Book Weekly submittal every Friday during 
construction in areas subject to Fish and 
Game Code section 1602. 

2.4.2 Nesting Bird Pre-activity 
Survey 

Submit prior to initiation of any Project 
activities and with Annual Report (4.1) 

2.5 Wildlife and Special-
Status Species Pre-
Activity Surveys 

Notify CDFW within 24 hrs. of special-
status species identification within or 
near the Project site and submit with 
Annual Report (4.1) 

2.6 Bat Protection - Bridges Bats shall not be disturbed without 
specific notice to and consultation with 
CDFW 

2.9.1 Diversion Plan No less than 30 calendar days prior to 
initiation of any Project activities 

2.9.3 Stranded Aquatic Life Weekly submittal on Fridays as part of 
the weekly construction monitoring log 
during construction in areas subject to 
Fish and Game Code section 1602. (2.1) 
and with the Annual Report (4.1) 

3.1 Habitat Mitigation and 
Monitoring Plan 

No less than 60 calendar days prior to 
initiation of any Project activities 

4.1 Annual Report By December 31 each year the Project is 
under construction 

4.2 Annual Mitigation 
Monitoring Report 

By December 31 of each calendar year 
following the completion of mitigation 
activities 

4.3 CNDDB Reporting Within 5 working days of sensitive 
species sightings 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 16 of 20 
 

 
4.4 Construction Notification No less than 5 days prior to the 

commencement and 5 days after the 
completion of Project activities in areas 
subject to Fish and Game Code section 
1602 

 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Any communication that Permittee or CDFW submits to the other shall be in writing and 
any communication or documentation shall be delivered to the address below by U.S. 
mail or email, or to such other address as Permittee or CDFW specifies by written 
notice to the other. 
 

To Permittee: 
 
Ashley Helms 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
168 North Edwards Street, P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, CA 93526 
ahelms@inyocounty.us 
  
To CDFW: 
 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
Inland Deserts Region  
3602 Inland Empire Blvd., Suite C-220 
Ontario, CA 91764  
Attn: Lake and Streambed Alteration Program – Alyssa Marquez 
Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6 
Alyssa.Marquez@Wildlife.ca.gov 

 
LIABILITY 
 
Permittee shall be solely liable for any violations of the Agreement, whether committed 
by Permittee or any person acting on behalf of Permittee, including its officers, 
employees, representatives, agents or contractors and subcontractors, to complete the 
Project or any activity related to it that the Agreement authorizes. 

 
This Agreement does not constitute CDFW’s endorsement of, or require Permittee to 
proceed with the Project. The decision to proceed with the Project is Permittee’s alone. 
 
SUSPENSION AND REVOCATION  
 
CDFW may suspend or revoke in its entirety the Agreement if it determines that 
Permittee or any person acting on behalf of Permittee, including its officers, employees, 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 17 of 20 
 

 
representatives, agents, or contractors and subcontractors, is not in compliance with the 
Agreement.  
 
Before CDFW suspends or revokes the Agreement, it shall provide Permittee written 
notice by certified or registered mail that it intends to suspend or revoke. The notice 
shall state the reason(s) for the proposed suspension or revocation, provide Permittee 
an opportunity to correct any deficiency before CDFW suspends or revokes the 
Agreement, and include instructions to Permittee, if necessary, including but not limited 
to a directive to immediately cease the specific activity or activities that caused CDFW 
to issue the notice.  
 
ENFORCEMENT 
 
Nothing in the Agreement precludes CDFW from pursuing an enforcement action 
against Permittee instead of, or in addition to, suspending or revoking the Agreement. 
 
Nothing in the Agreement limits or otherwise affects CDFW's enforcement authority or 
that of its enforcement personnel. 
 
OTHER LEGAL OBLIGATIONS  
 
This Agreement does not relieve Permittee or any person acting on behalf of Permittee, 
including its officers, employees, representatives, agents, or contractors and 
subcontractors, from complying with, or obtaining any other permits or authorizations 
that might be required under, other federal, state, or local laws or regulations before 
beginning the Project or an activity related to it. For example, if the Project causes take 
of a species listed as threatened or endangered under the Endangered Species Act 
(ESA), such take will be unlawful under the ESA absent a permit or other form of 
authorization from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service or National Marine Fisheries 
Service. 

  
This Agreement does not relieve Permittee or any person acting on behalf of Permittee, 
including its officers, employees, representatives, agents, or contractors and 
subcontractors, from complying with other applicable statutes in the Fish and Game 
Code including, but not limited to, Fish and Game Code sections 2050 et seq. 
(threatened and endangered species), section 3503 (bird nests and eggs), section 
3503.5 (birds of prey), section 5650 (water pollution), section 5652 (refuse disposal into 
water), section 5901 (fish passage), section 5937 (sufficient water for fish), and section 
5948 (obstruction of stream).  
 
Nothing in the Agreement authorizes Permittee or any person acting on behalf of 
Permittee, including its officers, employees, representatives, agents, or contractors and 
subcontractors, to trespass. 
 
AMENDMENT  



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 18 of 20 
 

 
 
CDFW may amend the Agreement at any time during its term if CDFW determines the 
amendment is necessary to protect an existing fish or wildlife resource. 
 
Permittee may amend the Agreement at any time during its term, provided the 
amendment is mutually agreed to in writing by CDFW and Permittee. To request an 
amendment, Permittee shall submit to CDFW a completed CDFW “Request to Amend 
Lake or Streambed Alteration” form and include with the completed form payment of the 
corresponding amendment fee identified in CDFW’s current fee schedule (see Cal. 
Code Regs., tit. 14, § 699.5). Submit the form and fee to the CDFW regional office that 
serves the area where the Project is located.  
 
TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT  
 
This Agreement may not be transferred or assigned to another entity, and any purported 
transfer or assignment of the Agreement to another entity shall not be valid or effective, 
unless the transfer or assignment is requested by Permittee in writing, as specified 
below, and thereafter CDFW approves the transfer or assignment in writing. 

  
The transfer or assignment of the Agreement to another entity shall constitute a minor 
amendment, and therefore to request a transfer or assignment, Permittee shall submit 
to CDFW a completed CDFW “Request to Amend Lake or Streambed Alteration” form 
and include with the completed form payment of the minor amendment fee identified in 
CDFW’s current fee schedule (see Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 699.5). Submit the form 
and fee to the CDFW regional office that serves the area where the Project is located. 
 
EXTENSIONS  
 
In accordance with Fish and Game Code section 1605, subdivision (b), Permittee may 
request one extension of the Agreement, provided the request is made prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement’s term. To request an extension, Permittee shall submit to 
CDFW a completed CDFW “Request to Extend Lake or Streambed Alteration” form and 
include with the completed form payment of the extension fee identified in CDFW’s 
current fee schedule (see Cal. Code Regs., tit. 14, § 699.5). CDFW shall process the 
extension request in accordance with Fish and Game Code section 1605, subdivisions 
(b) through (e). 
 
If Permittee fails to submit a request to extend the Agreement prior to its expiration, 
Permittee must submit a new notification and notification fee before beginning or 
continuing the Project the Agreement covers (Fish & G. Code § 1605, subd. (f)). Submit 
the form and fee to the CDFW regional office that serves the area where the Project is 
located. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE 
 



Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 19 of 20 
 

 
The Agreement becomes effective on the date of CDFW’s signature, which shall be: 1) 
after Permittee’s signature; 2) after CDFW complies with all applicable requirements 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and 3) after payment of the 
applicable Fish and Game Code section 711.4 filing fee listed at 
https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/CEQA/Fees. 

 
TERM 
 
This Agreement shall expire on June 22, 2025 unless it is terminated or extended 
before then. All provisions in the Agreement shall remain in force throughout its term. 
Permittee shall remain responsible for implementing any provisions specified herein to 
protect fish and wildlife resources after the Agreement expires or is terminated, as Fish 
and Game Code section 1605, subdivision (a)(2) requires.   
  
EXHIBITS  
 
The documents listed below are included as exhibits to the Agreement and incorporated 
herein by reference.  

 
Exhibit A: Project Site Map 

 
AUTHORITY 
 
If the person signing the Agreement (signatory) is doing so as a representative of 
Permittee, the signatory hereby acknowledges that he or she is doing so on Permittee’s 
behalf and represents and warrants that he or she has the authority to legally bind 
Permittee to the provisions herein. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
This Agreement authorizes only the Project described herein. If Permittee begins or 
completes a Project different from the Project the Agreement authorizes, Permittee may 
be subject to civil or criminal prosecution for failing to notify CDFW in accordance with 
Fish and Game Code section 1602.  
 
CONCURRENCE 
 
The undersigned accepts and agrees to comply with all provisions contained herein. 
 
FOR CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

  

 
 

  

Ashley Helms  Date 

https://www.wildlife.ca.gov/Conservation/CEQA/Fees


Notification #1600-2020-0055-R6  
Streambed Alteration Agreement 
Page 20 of 20 
 

 

Associate Engineer   
 
 

  

FOR DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE   
 
 

  

Scott Wilson  Date 
Environmental Program Manager   
   

 
Prepared by: Alyssa Marquez 
                      Environment Scientist  
 
        



AMarquez
Typewriter
Exhibit A. Project Site Maps





Section 6 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide Permits 14 & 33 
 

 

  



DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

LOS ANGELES DISTRICT 
60 S CALIFORNIA STREET, SUITE 201 

VENTURA, CA 93001-2598 

September 21, 2020 
 
 
 
SUBJECT: Nationwide Permit (NWP) Verification 
 
 
Ashely Helms 
Inyo County Public Works Department 
168 North Edwards Street P.O. Drawer Q 
Independence, California 93526 
 
Dear Ms. Helms: 
 

I am responding to your request (SPL-2020-00271-EBR) for a Department of the Army 
permit for your proposed project, North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement.  The proposed 
project is located within the city of Independence, Inyo County, California (lat.: 37.4213,  
long.: -118.5884). 

 
Because this project would result in a discharge of fill material into waters of the U.S., a 

Department of the Army permit is required pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 
USC 1344; 33 CFR parts 323 and 330). 

 
I have determined construction of your proposed project, if constructed as described in your 

application, would comply with NWP 14 Linear Transportation Projects. Specifically, and as 
shown in the enclosed figure, you are authorized to permanently impact 0.03 acres and 
temporarily impact 0.02 acres, in order to replace the North Round Valley Road Bridge with a 
new structure. 
 

For this NWP verification letter to be valid, you must comply with all of the terms and 
conditions in Enclosure 1.  Furthermore, you must comply with the non-discretionary Special 
Conditions listed below:  
 

1. Within 45 calendar days of completion of authorized work in waters of the U.S., the 
Permittee shall submit to the Corps Regulatory Division a post-project implementation 
memorandum including the following information: 

A)  Date(s) work within waters of the U.S. was initiated and completed; 
B) Summary of compliance status with each special condition of this permit (including any 
noncompliance that previously occurred or is currently occurring and corrective actions 
taken or proposed to achieve compliance); 
C) Color photographs (including map of photopoints) taken at the project site before and 
after construction for those aspects directly associated with permanent impacts to waters of 
the U.S. such that the extent of authorized fills can be verified;  



- 2 - 
 
 
 
 

 

D) One copy of "as built" drawings for the entire project.  Electronic submittal (Adobe PDF 
format) is preferred.  All sheets must be signed, dated, and to-scale.  If submitting paper 
copies, sheets must be no larger than 11 x 17 inches; and 
E) Signed Certification of Compliance (attached as part of this permit package). 

 
2. Pursuant to 36 C.F.R. section 800.13, in the event of any discoveries during construction 
within waters within the Corps Permit Area (PM insert permit area/APE map) of either human 
remains, archaeological deposits, or any other type of historic property, the Permittee shall 
notify the Corps Regulatory Project Manager (insert PM at insert PM Phone number) and the 
Corps' Regulatory Archaeology Staff (Daniel Grijalva at 760-520-4736) within 24 hours. The 
Permittee shall immediately suspend all work in any area(s) where potential cultural resources 
are discovered. The Permittee shall not resume construction in the area surrounding the potential 
cultural resources until the Corps Regulatory Division re-authorizes project construction, per 36 
C.F.R. Section 800.13.  

 
This verification is valid through March 18, 2022.  If on March 18, 2022 you have 

commenced or are under contract to commence the permitted activity you will have an additional 
twelve (12) months to complete the activity under the present NWP terms and conditions.  
However, if I discover noncompliance or unauthorized activities associated with the permitted 
activity I may request the use of discretionary authority in accordance with procedures in 33 
CFR part 330.4(e) and 33 CFR part 330.5(c) or (d) to modify, suspend, or revoke this specific 
verification at an earlier date.  Additionally, at the national level the Chief of Engineers, any time 
prior to March 18, 2022, may choose to modify, suspend, or revoke the nationwide use of a 
NWP after following procedures set forth in 33 CFR part 330.5.  It is incumbent upon you to 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of this NWP verification and to remain informed of 
any change to the NWPs. 
 

A NWP does not grant any property rights or exclusive privileges.  Additionally, it does not 
authorize any injury to the property, rights of others, nor does it authorize interference with any 
existing or proposed Federal project.  Furthermore, it does not obviate the need to obtain other 
Federal, state, or local authorizations required by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



- 3 -

Thank you for participating in the Regulatory Program.  If you have any questions, please 
contact Emma Ross at (805) 585-2149 or via email at Emma.B.Ross@usace.army.mil.  Please 
help me to evaluate and improve the regulatory experience for others by completing the customer 
survey form at http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=regulatory_survey. 

Sincerely, 

Crystal Huerta
Senior Project Manager
North Coast Branch 
Regulatory Division 

Enclosures 

http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=regulatory_survey
http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=regulatory_survey
http://corpsmapu.usace.army.mil/cm_apex/f?p=regulatory_survey


 

 

LOS ANGELES DISTRICT 
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 
DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY NATIONWIDE PERMIT 

 
 
Permit Number:   SPL-2020-00271-EBR 
 
Name of Permittee:  Inyo County Public Works Department; Ashely Helms 
 
Date of Issuance: September 21, 2020 
 
 

Upon completion of the activity authorized by this permit and the mitigation required by this 
permit, sign this certificate, and return it by ONE of the following methods: 
 
 1)  Email a digital scan of the signed certificate to  

Emma.B.Ross@usace.army.mil 
 
 I hereby certify that the authorized work and any required compensatory mitigation has been 
completed in accordance with the NWP authorization, including all general, regional, or activity-
specific conditions.  Furthermore, if credits from a mitigation bank or in-lieu fee program were 
used to satisfy compensatory mitigation requirements I have attached the documentation required 
by 33 CFR 332.3(l)(3) to confirm that the appropriate number and resource type of credits have 
been secured. 
 
 
___________________________________ ________________________________ 
Signature of Permittee       Date 
 



Z:\Projects\1803488_RoundValleyBridge\1803488_G017_TopoCultural_20200702.mxd
 02-Jul-2020      RS

Area of Potential Effects

0 2,000 4,0001,000

Feet H± Data Source: USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Quadrangles, MGE 2019

DRAFT
Figure Source: GEI Consultants, Inc. 2020.

1803488_G017_TopoCultural
Topography
Round Valley Bridge Replacement
Inyo County, California



Flake Concentration 1

Flake Concentration 2

RV1

Pine C
reek R

d

N Round Valley Rd

1803488_G001_APE
Area of Potential Effects Map
North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project
Inyo County, California

 02-Jul-2020      Z:\Projects\1803488_RoundValleyBridge\1803488_G001_APE_20200702.mxd      RS
Figure Source: GEI Consultants, Inc. 2020.

Pine Creek
Area of Direct Impact (ADI)
Right of Way (ROW)
Area of Potential Effects
Historic Site
Bridge and Roadway Improvements
Potential Staging Area

0 100 20050

Feet

H ± DRAFT
Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community, MGE 2019.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

COUNTY OF INYO

PROJECT PLANS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE OVER PINE CREEK

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT PROJECT

TO BE SUPPLEMENTED BY CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION STANDARD PLANS & SPECIFICATIONS

(INCLUDING ALL ISSUED AMENDMENTS) DATED 2018
AND THE MOST RECENT VERSION OF THE CALIFORNIA M.U.T.C.D.

1. TITLE SHEET
2. LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS
3. SURVEY CONTROL PLAN
4. TYPICAL SECTIONS
5. LAYOUT
6. PROFILE
7. GRADING PLAN
8. ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1
9. ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2
10. TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL PLAN
11. EROSION CONTROL PLAN
12. ESA FENCING PLAN
13. SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN
14. TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN
15. GENERAL PLAN
16. DECK CONTOURS AND GENERAL NOTES
17. FOUNDATION PLAN
18. ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 1
19. ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2
20. ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 1
21. ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2
22. TYPICAL SECTION
23. GIRDER LAYOUT
24. GIRDER DETAILS
25. DECK PANEL DETAILS
26. DIAPHRAGM DETAILS
27. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 1
28. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 2
29. ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 3
30. LOG OF TEST BORINGS
31. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - SOIL LEGEND 1
32. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - SOIL LEGEND 2
33. LOG OF TEST BORINGS - ROCK LEGEND

SHEET  INDEX

SITE MAP
NO SCALE

90% SUBMITTAL
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

NOTE:
IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE
CONTRACTOR TO WORK WITH THE LOCAL UTILITY
COMPANIES TO LOCATE ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITY
SERVICE LINES WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS PRIOR
TO ANY EXCAVATION WORK. UNDERGROUND
SERVICE ALERT OF NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
(800) 642-2444.

INYO COUNTY

TITLE SHEET

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL POSSESS A CLASS A LICENSE
AT THE TIME OF CONTRACT AWARD

PACIFIC OCEAN

MODOC

LASSEN

SIERRA

NEVADA

PLACER

AL-

MONO

AMADOR

CALAVERAS

TUOLUMNE

MARIP
OSA

EL DORADO

PINE
NEVADA

INYO

SAN BERNARDINO

TULARE

FRESNO

KERN

SANTA

SAN LUIS OBISPO

BARBARA

KINGS

MERCED

MADERA

IMPERIAL

AR
IZ

O
N

A

ANGELES

ORANGE

SAN DIEGO

VENTURA

RIVERSIDE

MEXICO

LOS

PLUMAS

DEL
NORTE

SISKIYOU

OREGON

SHASTA

TEHAMA

TRINITY

HUMBOLD
T

BUTTEGLENN

SUTTER

YOLO

COLUSAMENDOCIN
O

LAKE

NAPA

SO
LA

NO

SANTA

 COSTA
ALAMEDA

CONTRAMARIN

SAN MATEO

SAN FRANCISCO

SONOMA
 CLARA

YU
BA

SACRAMENTO

SAN
JO

AQUIN
STA

NIS
LA

US

SAN BENITOMONTEREY

SANTA CRUZ

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
01

 T
itl

e 
Sh

ee
t.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:4
1p

m
 b

y 
br

ei
ch

el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

LOCATION MAP
NO SCALE

INYO
COUNTY

VICINITY MAP
NO SCALE

1

1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
APPROVAL DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
Exp. 12/31/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
C 57570

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
Q

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
BIG PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2186
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_2187
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2188
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_2189
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2190
168

AutoCAD SHX Text_2191
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2192
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2193
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2194
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2195
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2196
DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2197
BISHOP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2198
JUNE LAKE JUNCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_2199
ABERDEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2200
BERTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_2201
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2202
ROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2203
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2204
VALLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2205
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2206
SPRINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2207
395

AutoCAD SHX Text_2208
p

AutoCAD SHX Text_2209
OLD SHERWIN GRADE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2210
BIRCHIM LN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2211
ALTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2212
VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2213
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2214
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2215
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2216
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2217
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2218
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2219
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2220
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2221
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2222
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2223
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2224
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2225
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2226
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2227
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2228
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2229
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2230
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2231
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2232
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2233
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2234
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2235
PROJECT SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2236
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2237
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2238
PINE CREEK RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2239
N ROUND VALLEY RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2240
 ROUND VALLEY JOINT  ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2241
 ROUND VALLEY  ELEMENTARY  SCHOOL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2242
PINE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2243
PRIVATE DRIVE



180

UTILITY NOTES:
LOCATIONS FOR EXISTING UNDERGROUND FACILITIES ARE
APPROXIMATE. EXACT DEPTH AND LOCATIONS ARE
UNKNOWN. FIELD LOCATE PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

**CALL UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT (USA) 811

A3A ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 1 OF 3)
A3B ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 2 OF 3)
A3C ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
A10A LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 1 OF 5)

          A10B LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 2 OF 5)
A10C LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 3 OF 5)
A10D LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 4 OF 5)
A10E LINES AND SYMBOLS (SHEET 5 OF 5)
A20A PAVEMENT MARKERS & TRAFFIC LINES - TYPICAL DETAILS
A20B PAVEMENT MARKERS & TRAFFIC LINES - TYPICAL DETAILS
A62C LIMITS OF PAVEMENT FOR EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL BRIDGE
A73A OBJECT MARKERS

RSP A73B MARKERS
A77Q1 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TYPICAL LAYOUTS FOR STRUCTURE APPROACH

RSP A77Q4 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TYPICAL LAYOUTS FOR STRUCTURE DEPARTURE
A77U1 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - CONNECTIONS TO BRIDGE RAILINGS WITHOUT SIDEWALKS DETAILS NO. 1
A77U2 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - CONNECTIONS TO BRIDGE RAILINGS WITHOUT SIDEWALKS DETAILS NO. 2

RSP A77U4 MIDWEST GUARDRAIL SYSTEM - TRANSITION RAILING (TYPE WB-31)
T56 TEMPORARY WATER POLLUTION CONTROL DETAILS (TEMPORARY FIBER ROLLS)

RSP BO-1 BRIDGE DETAILS
B0-13 BRIDGE DETAILS
B6-21 JOINT SEALS (MAXIMUM MOVEMENT RATING=2")
B7-5 DECK DRAINS

CALTRANS STANDARD PLANS - 2018

LEGEND

EXISTING CONTOUR

SURVEY CONTROL POINTS

LIMITS OF GRADING

ORIGINAL GROUND

CENTERLINE OF ROADWAY

CALTRANS STANDARD PLAN SHEET NO.

DETAIL NO.

PROPOSED CONTOUR

ABBREVIATIONS

1. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE SUBJECT TO TOLERANCES SPECIFIED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS.

GENERAL NOTES:

180

BVCE
BVCS
BW
CL
EX, (E)
EVCE
EVCS
LVC
(N)
PVI
TC
TG
PC
PI
PRC
PT

BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE ELEVATION
BEGIN VERTICAL CURVE STATION
BARBED WIRE
CENTERLINE
EXISTING
END VERTICAL CURVE ELEVATION
END VERTICAL CURVE STATION
LENGTH VERTICAL CURVE
NEW
POINT OF VERTICAL INTERSECTION
TOP OF CURB
TOP OF GRADE
POINT OF CURVATURE
POINT OF INTERSECTION
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
POINT OF TANGENCY

LEGEND AND ABBREVIATIONS

2

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
02

 L
eg

en
d 

& 
Ab

br
ev

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

1p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

RIGHT OF WAY

LIMITS OF RSP

2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2244
CP #101

AutoCAD SHX Text_2245
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2246
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2247
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2248
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2249
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2250
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2251
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2252
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2253
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2254
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2255
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2256
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2257
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2258
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2259
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2260
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2261
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2262
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2263
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2264
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2265
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2266
L



PT. 2005

PT. 2001

PT. 2006

PT. 3294

PT. 2002

PT. 2003

PT. 2045 PT. 2044

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

PINE CREEK ROAD

18+48

7+00

8+00

9+00

10+00

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

17+00

18+00

BP: 6+01.75

PC: 16+08.58

PT: 14+21.36

PRC: 11+54.42

C1

C2

L1

C3

PI:

PT. 3317

CURVE TABLE - "R" LINE
CURVE #

C1

C2

C3

LENGTH

552.67'

266.93'

239.50'

RADIUS

15600.00'

700.00'

900.00'

DELTA

2° 01' 50"

21° 51' 00"

15° 14' 50"

CHORD DIRECTION

N40° 05' 33.23"W

N30° 10' 58.99"W

N26° 52' 55.99"W

CHORD LENGTH

552.65

265.32

238.80

LINE TABLE - "R" LINE

LINE #

L1

LENGTH

187.220

DIRECTION

N19° 15' 30.99"W

START POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401329.9249, 6682537.4894

END POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401506.6680, 6682475.7381

POINT#

PT. 2001

PT. 2002

PT. 2003

PT. 2005

PT. 2006

PT. 2044

PT. 2045

PT. 3294

PT. 3317

2400637.38, 6683099.10

2400807.16, 6682893.32

2401195.99, 6682586.49

2400667.65, 6683069.42

2400840.35, 6682892.64

2401268.92, 6682587.99

2401291.48, 6682509.56

2400951.32, 6682747.17

2400667.65, 6680444.04

CONTROL POINT TABLE DATA

4671.06

4677.41

4683.27

4672.60

4677.98

4681.52

4681.60

4683.79

4802.24

2.5" DISK

1/2" REBAR

MAG

PKS

MAG

SET SPK

SET SPK

5/8" REBAR

2" IP

NORTHING, EASTINGELEVATION DESCRIPTION

PT. # CONTROL POINT

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PRESERVATION AND/OR PERPETUATION OF ALL
EXISTING MONUMENTS WHICH CONTROL SUBDIVISIONS, TRACTS, BOUNDARIES,
STREETS, HIGHWAYS, OR OTHER RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENTS, OR PROVIDE SURVEY
CONTROL WHICH WILL BE DISTURBED OR REMOVED DUE TO CONTRACTOR'S WORK.
CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 10 WORKING DAYS NOTICE TO BOTH THE
CIVIL ENGINEER AND THE COUNTY'S RESIDENT ENGINEER PRIOR TO DISTURBANCE OR
REMOVAL OF EXISTING MONUMENTS. THE CONTRACTOR'S CIVIL ENGINEER OR
SURVEYOR IN RESPONSIBLE CHARGE OF THE WORK SHALL COORDINATE WITH
CONTRACTOR TO RESET MONUMENTS OR PROVIDE PERMANENT WITNESS MONUMENTS
AND FILE THE REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION WITH THE COUNTY SURVEYOR PURSUANT
TO BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE SECTION 8771.

LEGEND

SURVEY NOTES:

PRESERVATION OF SURVEY MONUMENTS

PT. #2001 TO CP #2005: DISTANCE = 42.39', COURSE = N44°26'41"W
PT. #2005 TO CP #3317: DISTANCE = 2625.28', COURSE = N89°48'09"W
PT. #3317 TO CP #3294: DISTANCE = 2319.45', COURSE = N83°11'56"E
PT. #3294 TO CP #2006: DISTANCE = 182.97', COURSE = S52°39'40"E
PT. #2006 TO CP #2005: DISTANCE = 247.14', COURSE = S45°40'07"E

TRACKING DATA:

BASIS OF BEARINGS: NAD83 CALIFORNIA COORDINATE SYSTEM ZONE 4 PER
REFERENCED RECORD OF SURVEY NO. 04-005 FILED FOR RECORD APRIL 2, 2008 IN THE
OFFICE OF RECORDER, INYO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA AS DOCUMENT NO. 2008-0001087.

COORDINATES AND MEASURED DISTANCES ARE AT GROUND USING A COMBINED SCALE
FACTOR: 1.00020012 (PER REFERENCED RECORD OF SURVEY) WITH A SCALED BASE
POINT OF 0,0.

NORTH 89°48'09" WEST, BEING THE NORTHEAST ONE-QUARTER (NE1/4) LINE OF SECTION
20, T.6S., R.31E., M.D.M. WAS MEASURED BETWEEN FOUND MONUMENTS AS SHOWN TO
REPLICATE REFERENCED RECORD OF SURVEY NO. 04-005.

LINE AND CURVE TABLES - "R" LINE

SURVEY CONTROL PLAN

3

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
03

 S
ur

ve
y 

C
on

tro
l.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:4
1p

m
 b

y 
br

ei
ch

el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2267
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2268
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2269
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2270
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2271
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2272
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2273
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2274
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2275
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2276
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2277
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2278
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2279
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2280
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2281
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2282
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2283
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2284
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2285
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2286
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2287
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2288
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2289
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2290
4654

AutoCAD SHX Text_2291
4655

AutoCAD SHX Text_2292
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2293
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2294
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2295
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2296
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2297
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2298
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2299
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2300
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2301
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2302
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2303
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2304
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2305
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2306
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2307
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2308
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2309
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2310
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2311
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2312
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2313
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2314
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2315
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2316
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2317
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2318
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2319
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2320
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2321
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2322
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2323
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2324
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2325
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2326
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2327
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2328
4689

AutoCAD SHX Text_2329
4688

AutoCAD SHX Text_2330
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text_2331
4692

AutoCAD SHX Text_2332
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2333
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2334
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2335
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2336
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2337
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2338
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2339
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2340
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2341
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2342
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2343
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2344
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2345
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2346
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2347
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2348
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2349
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2350
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2351
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2352
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2353
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2354
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2355
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2356
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2357
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2358
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2359
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2360
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2361
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2362
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2363
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2364
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2365
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2366
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2367
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2368
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2369
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2370
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2371
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2372
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2373
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2374
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2375
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2376
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2377
PINE CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2378
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_2379
SCALE 1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2380
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2381
120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2382
180

AutoCAD SHX Text_2383
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2384
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2385
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2386
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2387
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2388
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2389
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2390
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2391
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2392
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2393
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2394
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2395
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2396
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2397
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2398
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2399
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2400
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2401
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2402
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2403
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2404
L



VARIES 12.0' TO 13.0' VARIES 9.0' TO 13.0'

 6% OR
MATCH (E)PG

0.30' HMA
1.00' CLASS 2 AB
1.00' COMPACTED SUBGRADE,
95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

STA 12+40 TO STA 12+59 RT
STA 12+40 TO 12+74 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

 4% OR
MATCH (E)

3.0' TO 6.0'

30.0'R/W 30.0'
ES EP ESEP

R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

3.0' TO 6.0'

 6% OR
MATCH (E)

 2% OR
MATCH (E)

VARIES 14.0' TO 15.0' VARIES 14.0' TO 15.0'
EP

PG

0.30' HMA
1.00' CLASS 2 AB
1.00' COMPACTED SUBGRADE,
95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

3:1 MAX

2.0' TO 6.0'
ESEP

2.0' TO 6.0'
ES

 2%

30.0' 30.0'
R/W R/W

STA 14+54 TO STA 15+29 RT
STA 14+65 TO STA 15+40 LT

SCALE: 1" = 4'

 2% 2%  2%

VARIES 14.0' TO 12.5' VARIES 14.0' TO 12.5'

 1% OR
MATCH (E)PG

0.30' HMA
1.00' CLASS 2 AB
1.00' COMPACTED SUBGRADE,
95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

STA 15+29 TO STA 15+93 RT
STA 15+40 TO 15+93 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

3:1 MAX

2.0' TO 4.0'2.0' TO 4.0'

3:1 MAX

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

30.0' 30.0'R/W

ES EP EP ES

R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

 1% OR
MATCH (E)

VARIES 13.0' TO 16.0' VARIES 13.0' TO 16.0'

PG

0.30' HMA
1.00' CLASS 2 AB
1.00' COMPACTED SUBGRADE,
95% RELATIVE COMPACTION

STA 12+59 TO STA 13+34 RT
STA 12+74 TO STA 13+46 LT

CL N ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

4.0' TO 6.0'4.0' TO 6.0' ES EP EP ES

 6%
 4%

R/W R/W

SCALE: 1" = 4'

VARIES 30.0' - 70.0' VARIES 30.0' - 70.0'

 2%

 6%

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
04

 T
yp

ic
al

 S
ec

tio
ns

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

2p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

TYPICAL SECTIONS

4

4

AutoCAD SHX Text_2405
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2406
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2407
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2408
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2409
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2410
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2411
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2412
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2413
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2414
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2415
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2416
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2417
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2418
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2419
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2420
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2421
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2422
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2423
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2424
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2425
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2426
L



BEGIN CONSTRUCTION
STA 12+40.00 "R" LINE
SAWCUT TO A NEAT EDGE
AND CONFORM TO (E) WIDTH
AND CROSS SLOPE

CONSTRUCT PINE CREEK BRIDGE NO. 48C-0044
(SEE BRIDGE PLANS FOR DETAILS)

LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

EB, STA 14+43

BB, STA 13+58

(E) R/W

(E) EP

(E) EP
(E) R/W

(E) EP

(P) EP

(P) ES

(E) EP

(P) ES

(P) EP

(P) ES

(P) EP

(P) EP

(P) ES

(E) R/W

PT: 14+21.36

R =700.00'

(E) R/W

(E) R/W

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

END CONSTRUCTION
STA 15+93 "R" LINE

SAWCUT TO A NEAT EDGE
AND CONFORM TO (E) WIDTH

AND CROSS SLOPE

70'

70'

30'

30'

C2

L1

CURVE TABLE - "R" LINE
CURVE #

C2

LENGTH

266.93'

RADIUS

700.00'

DELTA

21° 51' 00"

CHORD DIRECTION

N30° 10' 58.99"W

CHORD LENGTH

265.32

LINE TABLE - "R" LINE

LINE #

L1

LENGTH

187.220

DIRECTION

N19° 15' 30.99"W

START POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401329.9249, 6682537.4894

END POINT
(NORTHING, EASTING)

2401506.6680, 6682475.7381

INSTALL MGS TRANSITION RAILING (TYPE WB-31) PER 2018
STANDARD PLANS, DETAIL A77U4, TYP.

KEYNOTES

INSTALL MSKT-SP-MGS (TL4) TERMINAL SYSTEM END TREATMENT
PER STANDARD PLANS A77Q1 AND A77Q4, TYP.

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

REMOVE EXISTING BRIDGE AND GUARDRAIL.

LEGEND

INDICATES LIMITS OF APPROACH ROADWAY RECONSTRUCTION

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
05

 L
ay

ou
t.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:4
2p

m
 b

y 
br

ei
ch

el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

LAYOUT

5

5

INDICATES LIMITS OF ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_2427
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2428
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2429
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2430
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2431
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2432
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2433
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2434
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2435
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2436
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2437
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2438
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2439
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2440
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2441
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2442
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2443
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2444
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2445
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2446
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2447
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2448
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2449
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2450
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2451
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2452
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2453
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2454
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2455
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2456
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2457
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2458
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2459
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2460
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2461
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2462
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2463
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2464
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2465
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2466
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2467
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2468
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2469
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2470
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2471
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2472
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2473
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2474
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2475
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2476
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2477
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2478
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2479
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2480
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2481
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2482
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2483
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2484
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2485
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2486
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2487
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2488
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2489
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2490
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2491
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2492
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2493
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2494
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2495
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2496
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2497
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2498
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2499
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2500
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2501
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2502
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2503
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2504
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2505
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2506
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2507
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2508
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_2509
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_2510
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2511
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2512
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2513
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2514
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2515
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2516
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2517
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2518
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2519
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2520
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2521
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2522
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2523
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2524
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2525
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2526
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2527
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2528
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2529
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2530
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2531
L



4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

50 75 12+00 25 50 75 13+00 25 50 75 14+00 25 50 75 15+00 25 50 75 16+00 25 16+50

-0.14%

BEGIN BRIDGE
STA 13+58.00
ELEV 4682.65

MATCH EXISTING
BEGIN CONSTRUCTION
STA 12+40.00
ELEV 4682.82

END BRIDGE
STA 14+43.00
ELEV 4682.53

MATCH EXISTING
END CONSTRUCTION

STA 15+93.00
ELEV 4682.32

FG

FG

OG

-1.00%

AXIS OF ROTATION
CL  "R" LINE

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%

-2.00%

-3.00%

-4.00%

4.00%

3.00%

2.00%

1.00%

0.00%

-1.00%

-2.00%

-3.00%

-4.00%

12+00 13+00

0.00%

14+00

5.00%5.00%

-5.00%-5.00%

15+00 16+00

6.00%

7.00%

-6.00%

-7.00%

-6.00%

6.00%

7.00%

-7.00%

20

SCALE 1"=20' HORIZONTAL

0 40 60

1"=5'   VERTICAL

PROFILE

SUPERELEVATION DIAGRAM

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
06

 P
ro

fil
e.

dw
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:4
2p

m
 b

y 
br

ei
ch

el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

PROFILE

6

6

AutoCAD SHX Text_2532
LEFT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2533
RIGHT LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2534
5.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_2535
0.8%

AutoCAD SHX Text_2536
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2537
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2538
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2539
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2540
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2541
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2542
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2543
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2544
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2545
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2546
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2547
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2548
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2549
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2550
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2551
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2552
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2553
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2554
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2555
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2556
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2557
L



LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

LIMITS OF RSP, TYP

LIMITS OF RSP, TYP

0+00

1+00

0+00

1+00

1+22

0+00

1+00

1+22

0+00

1+00

0+00

1+00

1+14

0+00

1+00
1+05

STA 13+34.24 "R" LINE, 18.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "D" LINE
(SEE DETAIL D ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+30.00 "R" LINE, 38.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "E" LINE
(SEE DETAIL E ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+30.00 "R" LINE, 58.0' RT =
STA 0+00 "F" LINE
(SEE DETAIL F ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 13+47.38 "R" LINE, 21.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "C" LINE

(SEE DETAIL C ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 13+52.26 "R" LINE, 33.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "B" LINE

(SEE DETAIL B ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 13+58.11 "R" LINE, 48.0' LT =
STA 0+00 "A" LINE

(SEE DETAIL A ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+42.92 "R" LINE, 58.0' RT =
STA 1+05 "F" LINE
(SEE DETAIL F ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+49.03 "R" LINE, 38.0' RT =
STA 1+14 "E" LINE
(SEE DETAIL E ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+55.15 "R" LINE, 18.0' RT =
STA 1+18 "D" LINE
(SEE DETAIL D ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET)

STA 14+67.08 "R" LINE, 21.0' LT =
STA 1+21 "C" LINE
(SEE DETAIL C ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+70.74 "R" LINE, 33.0' LT =
STA1+22 "B" LINE
(SEE DETAIL B ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

STA 14+75.32 "R" LINE, 48.0' LT =
STA 1+22 "A" LINE
(SEE DETAIL A ON "ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1" SHEET)

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

LEGEND

LIMITS OF GRADING

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
07

 G
ra

di
ng

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

2p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

GRADING PLAN

7

7

LIMITS OF RSP
EXIST BW FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2558
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2559
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2560
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2561
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2562
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2563
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2564
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2565
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2566
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2567
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2568
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2569
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2570
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2571
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2572
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2573
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2574
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2575
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2576
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2577
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2578
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2579
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2580
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2581
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2582
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2583
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2584
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2585
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2586
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2587
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2588
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2589
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2590
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2591
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2592
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2593
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2594
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2595
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2596
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2597
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2598
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2599
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2600
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2601
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2602
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2603
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2604
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2605
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2606
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2607
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2608
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2609
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2610
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2611
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2612
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2613
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2614
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2615
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2616
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2617
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2618
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2619
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2620
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2621
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2622
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2623
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2624
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2625
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2626
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2627
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2628
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2629
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2630
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2631
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2632
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2633
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2634
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2635
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2636
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2637
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2638
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2639
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2640
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2641
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2642
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2643
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2644
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2645
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2646
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2647
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2648
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2649
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2650
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2651
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2652
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2653
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2654
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2655
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2656
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2657
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2658
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2659
L



4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

FG

OG

OG

STA 0+58.05
ELEV 4668.93

STA 0+39.07
ELEV 4681.95

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.57

STA 1+10.91
ELEV 4670.16

STA 1+17.35
ELEV 4680.00

STA 1+21.50
ELEV 4680.96

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

FG

OG

STA 0+51.13
ELEV 4667.35

STA 0+29.00
ELEV 4682.74

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.26

STA 1+22.00
ELEV 4680.50

STA 0+96.06
ELEV 4670.14

OG

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG OG

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

4.0' STRUCTURE DEPTH

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4683.39

STA 0+23.24
ELEV 4676.00

STA 0+42.53
ELEV 4666.04

STA 0+90.50
ELEV 4670.00

STA 0+94.79
ELEV 4674.00

STA 1+21.00
ELEV 4683.14STA 1+00.62

ELEV 4678.59

OG

FG

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 1

8

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
08

-0
9 

R
SP

 D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  A

pr
 0

1,
 2

02
0 

- 1
2:

08
pm

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

10

SCALE 1"=10' HORIZONTAL

0 20 30

1"=10' VERTICAL

RSP DETAIL A - LINE A

RSP DETAIL B - LINE B

RSP DETAIL C - LINE C

8

RSP CONSTRUCTION DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2660
RSP Fabric, (Class 8)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2661
2:1 Max Slope

AutoCAD SHX Text_2662
RSP (Class VII, Method B)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2663
RSP (Class III,  Method B) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2664
FG

AutoCAD SHX Text_2665
Elev as Shown in Section

AutoCAD SHX Text_2666
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2667
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2668
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2669
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2670
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2671
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2672
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2673
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2674
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2675
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2676
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2677
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2678
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2679
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2680
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2681
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2682
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2683
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2684
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2685
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2686
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2687
L



4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4695

4700
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

FACE OF NEW ABUTMENT

4.0' STRUCTURE DEPTHFG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL)

3.0' CLEAR

STA 0+19.59
ELEV 4675.00

STA 0+34.65
ELEV 4666.25

STA 0+87.84
ELEV 4669.08

STA 0+97.61
ELEV 4675.00

STA 1+18.00
ELEV 4681.99

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4681.73

OG

FG

ALIGNMENT - RSP SECTION 05 PROFILE

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL) STA 0+15.99

ELEV 4675.00

STA 0+31.36
ELEV 4665.24

STA 0+87.86
ELEV 4667.41

STA 1+00.00
ELEV 4675.00

STA 1+14.00
ELEV 4678.38

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4680.13

OG

FG

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690

4655

4660

4665

4670

4675

4680

4685

4690
-0+10 0+00 25 50 75 1+00 1+25

-05 0+00 05 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 1+00 05 10 15 20 1+25

FG

OG

(END OF
WINGWALL)

(END OF
WINGWALL) STA 0+14.86

ELEV 4677.00

STA 0+36.52
ELEV 4665.14

STA 0+74.68
ELEV 4666.06

STA 1+05.00
ELEV 4676.78

STA 0+00.00
ELEV 4677.90

STA 0+96.35
ELEV 4676.00

OG

FG

ROCK SLOPE PROTECTION DETAILS NO. 2

9

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
08

-0
9 

R
SP

 D
et

ai
ls

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

2p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

10

SCALE 1"=10' HORIZONTAL

0 20 30

1"=10' VERTICAL

RSP DETAIL D - LINE D

RSP DETAIL E - LINE E

RSP DETAIL F - LINE F

9

AutoCAD SHX Text_2688
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2689
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2690
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2691
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2692
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2693
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2694
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2695
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2696
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2697
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2698
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2699
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2700
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2701
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2702
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2703
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2704
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2705
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2706
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2707
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2708
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2709
L



FIBER ROLLS (TYPE 1), TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

LEGEND
FIBER ROLLS (TYPE 1)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
10

 T
em

p 
EC

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

3p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL PLAN

10

10

NOTE

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES ARE MINIMUM REQUIRED.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL TEMPORARY EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES REQUIRED BY THE APPROVED CONTRACTOR
PREPARED WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLAN OR SWPPP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2710
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2711
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2712
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2713
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2714
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2715
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2716
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2717
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2718
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2719
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2720
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2721
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2722
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2723
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2724
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2725
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2726
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2727
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2728
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2729
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2730
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2731
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2732
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2733
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2734
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2735
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2736
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2737
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2738
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2739
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2740
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2741
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2742
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2743
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2744
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2745
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2746
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2747
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2748
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2749
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2750
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2751
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2752
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2753
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2754
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2755
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2756
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2757
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2758
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2759
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2760
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2761
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2762
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2763
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2764
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2765
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2766
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2767
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2768
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2769
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2770
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2771
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2772
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2773
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2774
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2775
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2776
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2777
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2778
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2779
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2780
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2781
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2782
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2783
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2784
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2785
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2786
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2787
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2788
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2789
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2790
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2791
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2792
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2793
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2794
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2795
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2796
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2797
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2798
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2799
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2800
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2801
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2802
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2803
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2804
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2805
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2806
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2807
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2808
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2809
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2810
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2811
L



LIMITS OF GRADING, TYP

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

EROSION CONTROL PLAN

11

LEGEND

HYDROSEED - 0.06 AC

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
11

 E
C

.d
w

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

3p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

11

CONTRACTOR TO HYDROSEED ALL DISTURBED
GROUND USING AN APPROVED SEED MIX, AS
PROVIDED FOR IN THE SPECIFICATIONS

NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2812
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2813
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2814
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2815
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2816
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_2817
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2818
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2819
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2820
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2821
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2822
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2823
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2824
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2825
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2826
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2827
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2828
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2829
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2830
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2831
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2832
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2833
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2834
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2835
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2836
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2837
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2838
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2839
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2840
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2841
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2842
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2843
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2844
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2845
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2846
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2847
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2848
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2849
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2850
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2851
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2852
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2853
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2854
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2855
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2856
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2857
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2858
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2859
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2860
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2861
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2862
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2863
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2864
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2865
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2866
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2867
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2868
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2869
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2870
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2871
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2872
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2873
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2874
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2875
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2876
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2877
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2878
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2879
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2880
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2881
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2882
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2883
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2884
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2885
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2886
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2887
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2888
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2889
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2890
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2891
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2892
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2893
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2894
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_2895
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2896
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2897
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_2898
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_2899
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2900
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_2901
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_2902
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_2903
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2904
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_2905
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2906
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2907
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_2908
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2909
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2910
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_2911
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_2912
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_2913
L



TEMPORARY HIGH VISIBILITY FENCE (TYPE ESA)

CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

11+00

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

EB, STA 14+43

BB, STA 13+58

STA 11+00.00, 11.01' RT

STA 11+00.00, 30.00' RT

STA 13+30.00, 30.00' RT

STA 13+30.00, 70.00' RT

STA 14+90.00, 70.00' RT

STA 14+90.00, 30.00' RT

STA 16+50.00, 30.00' RT

STA 16+50.00, 12.78' RT

STA 16+50.00 "P" LINE, 11.0' LT

STA 16+50.00 "P" LINE, 30.0' LT

STA 14+90.00, 30.0' LT

STA 14+90.00, 70.0' LT

STA 13+30.00, 70.0' LT

STA 13+30.00, 30.0' LT

STA 11+00.00, 10.8' LT

STA 11+00.00, 30.0' LT

(E) EP

(E) EP

(E) R/W

(E) EP

(E) EP
(E) R/W

(E) R/W

LEGEND

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
12

 E
SA

 F
en

ci
ng

 P
la

n.
dw

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

3p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

ESA FENCING PLAN

12

12

TEMPORARY HIGH-VISIBILITY FENCE (TYPE ESA)

30

SCALE 1"=30'

0 60 90

AutoCAD SHX Text_2914
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2915
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_2916
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2917
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2918
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2919
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_2920
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2921
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2922
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2923
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2924
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2925
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2926
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2927
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2928
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2929
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2930
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2931
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_2932
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2933
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2934
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2935
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2936
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2937
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_2938
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_2939
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_2940
4654

AutoCAD SHX Text_2941
4655

AutoCAD SHX Text_2942
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_2943
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_2944
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2945
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_2946
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2947
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2948
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_2949
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_2950
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2951
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2952
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_2953
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_2954
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_2955
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_2956
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_2957
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_2958
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2959
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2960
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2961
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2962
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2963
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2964
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2965
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2966
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2967
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2968
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2969
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2970
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2971
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2972
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2973
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text_2974
4692

AutoCAD SHX Text_2975
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2976
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2977
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2978
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2979
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_2980
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_2981
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_2982
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_2983
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2984
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2985
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_2986
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2987
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2988
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2989
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_2990
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_2991
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_2992
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_2993
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_2994
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_2995
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_2996
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_2997
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_2998
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_2999
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3000
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3001
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3002
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3003
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3004
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3005
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3006
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3007
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3008
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3009
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_3010
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_3011
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3012
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3013
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3014
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3015
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3016
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3017
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3018
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3019
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_3020
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3021
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3022
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3023
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3024
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3025
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3026
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_3027
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3028
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3029
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3030
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3031
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3032
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3033
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3034
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3035
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3036
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3037
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3038
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3039
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3040
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_3041
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3042
L



CL N RO
UND VALLEY RO

AD = "R" LINE

12+00

13+00

14+00

15+00

16+00

BEGIN CL STRIPING
STA 12+40.00 "R" LINE

END CL STRIPING
STA 15+93 "R" LINE

A20A
21

A20A
21

20

SCALE 1"=20'

0 40 60

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
13

 S
ig

ni
ng

 S
tri

pi
ng

 P
la

n.
dw

g
La

st
 O

pe
ne

d:
  M

ar
 3

1,
 2

02
0 

- 4
:4

3p
m

 b
y 

br
ei

ch
el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

SIGNING AND STRIPING PLAN

13

13

AutoCAD SHX Text_3043
FENCE LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_3044
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3045
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3046
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3047
60' RIGHT-OF-WAY PER BK. 1, PG. 42

AutoCAD SHX Text_3048
SET MAG NAIL N:2401195.99' E:6682586.49' ELEV:4683.27'

AutoCAD SHX Text_3049
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3050
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3051
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3052
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3053
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3054
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3055
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3056
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3057
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3058
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3059
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3060
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3061
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3062
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_3063
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3064
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3065
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3066
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_3067
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_3068
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_3069
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_3070
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_3071
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_3072
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_3073
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3074
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3075
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3076
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3077
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3078
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3079
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3080
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3081
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3082
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_3083
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_3084
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_3085
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_3086
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3087
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3088
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3089
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_3090
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3091
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3092
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3093
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3094
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3095
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_3096
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3097
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_3098
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3099
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3100
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_3101
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3102
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3103
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3104
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3105
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3106
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_3107
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_3108
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3109
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3110
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3111
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3112
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3113
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3114
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3115
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3116
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3117
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3118
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3119
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3120
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3121
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_3122
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3123
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3124
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3125
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3126
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3127
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3128
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_3129
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3130
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3131
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3132
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3133
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3134
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3135
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3136
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3137
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3138
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3139
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3140
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3141
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3142
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_3143
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3144
L



N ROUND VALLEY ROAD
6+02

8+00

10+00

12+00

14+00

16+00

18+00

PINE CREEK ROAD

1

3

2

2

3

50'

4 5

4 5

1. TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS MUST CONFORM TO THE MUTCD, LATEST EDITION.
2. REMOVE AND DELIVER BARRIERS AND SIGNAGE TO COUNTY AFTER
          IMPLEMENTATION OF APPROVED TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

GENERAL NOTES

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

J. HELM 3/17/2020PREPARED FOR THE
COUNTY OF INYO

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
S. HAWKINS 3/17/2020

R. SENNETT IV 3/17/2020

DATE

DATE 33

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

 OVER PINE CREEK
BRIDGE NO. 48C0044

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\P
ro

du
ct

io
n\

Pl
ts

he
et

s\
14

 T
ra

ffi
c 

C
on

tro
l P

la
n.

dw
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 3
1,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:4
3p

m
 b

y 
br

ei
ch

el

FED PROJ NO.: XXXX(XXX)

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

14

14

80

SCALE 1"=80'

0 160 240

SIGN CODE DESCRIPTION

R11-3a
(ALTERNATE)

R11-4 ROAD CLOSED TO THROUGH TRAFFIC

SIGN DESIGNATION

2

3

4 ROAD CLOSED (1000 FT)

5 N. ROUND VALLEY ROAD
(PLAQUE)

R11-2

R11-21
ROAD CLOSED 200 FT AHEAD

(MOUNT ON TYPE III BARRICADES)

BRIDGE CLOSED 500 FT AHEAD

W20-3

AutoCAD SHX Text_3145
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3146
A.P.N. 09-120-03

AutoCAD SHX Text_3147
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3148
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_3149
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3150
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3151
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_3152
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3153
CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text_3154
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3155
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3156
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3157
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3158
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3159
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3160
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3161
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3162
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3163
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3164
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3165
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3166
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3167
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3168
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3169
4664

AutoCAD SHX Text_3170
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3171
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3172
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3173
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_3174
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_3175
4658

AutoCAD SHX Text_3176
4657

AutoCAD SHX Text_3177
4656

AutoCAD SHX Text_3178
4654

AutoCAD SHX Text_3179
4655

AutoCAD SHX Text_3180
4659

AutoCAD SHX Text_3181
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_3182
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3183
4661

AutoCAD SHX Text_3184
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3185
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3186
4663

AutoCAD SHX Text_3187
4662

AutoCAD SHX Text_3188
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3189
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3190
4665

AutoCAD SHX Text_3191
4666

AutoCAD SHX Text_3192
4667

AutoCAD SHX Text_3193
4668

AutoCAD SHX Text_3194
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_3195
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3196
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3197
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3198
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_3199
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_3200
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_3201
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_3202
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3203
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3204
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3205
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3206
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_3207
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3208
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3209
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3210
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3211
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3212
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3213
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3214
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_3215
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3216
4689

AutoCAD SHX Text_3217
4688

AutoCAD SHX Text_3218
4690

AutoCAD SHX Text_3219
4692

AutoCAD SHX Text_3220
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3221
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3222
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3223
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3224
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3225
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_3226
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3227
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_3228
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3229
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3230
4676

AutoCAD SHX Text_3231
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3232
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3233
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3234
4675

AutoCAD SHX Text_3235
4671

AutoCAD SHX Text_3236
4672

AutoCAD SHX Text_3237
4673

AutoCAD SHX Text_3238
4674

AutoCAD SHX Text_3239
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3240
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3241
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3242
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3243
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3244
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3245
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3246
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3247
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3248
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3249
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_3250
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3251
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3252
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3253
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3254
4684

AutoCAD SHX Text_3255
4686

AutoCAD SHX Text_3256
4683

AutoCAD SHX Text_3257
4682

AutoCAD SHX Text_3258
4681

AutoCAD SHX Text_3259
4680

AutoCAD SHX Text_3260
4679

AutoCAD SHX Text_3261
4678

AutoCAD SHX Text_3262
4677

AutoCAD SHX Text_3263
4685

AutoCAD SHX Text_3264
4669

AutoCAD SHX Text_3265
PINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_3266
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3267
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3268
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3269
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3270
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3271
C80306

AutoCAD SHX Text_3272
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_3273
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3274
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3275
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3276
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3277
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3278
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3279
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3280
.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3281
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3282
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3283
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3284
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3285
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_3286
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3287
L



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

14+00

DATUM ELEV 4640.00

  ELEVATION  
1" = 10'

BB EB

FG, TYP

APPROX OG, TYP

ABUT 1 ABUT 2

24"Ø CIDH PILE, TYP

14+5013+50

L85'-0", MEASURED ALONG  C  NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED     NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

36'-0"

4'-0"

CL

PG

VARIESVARIES

4'
-0

"

CALIFORNIA
ST-75 BRIDGE
RAIL, TYP

1/4" = 1'-0'

 TYPICAL SECTION 

PC/PS CA WF36

2'-0" 2'-0"

TUBULAR
BICYCLE
RAILING, TYP

PC/PS DECK
PANEL, TYP

12'-0" 4'-0"12'-0"

=    BRIDGE ("R" LINE)CL

AT
   

  B
R

G
C L

GENERAL PLAN

  PROFILE GRADE  
NO SCALE

-0.14%

1" = 10'

  PLAN  

 NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

TO PINE CREEK RD

TO BIRCHIM LN

CL N 19°15'31" W
ELEV 4682.53
EB STA 14+43.00

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED

TOE OF SLOPE, TYP

LEGEND:

INDICATES NEW CONSTRUCTION

INDICATES EXISTING STRUCTURE

INDICATES DIRECTION OF FLOW

INDICATES DIRECTION OF TRAFFIC

FOR HYDROLOGIC SUMMARY, SEE

"FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET

12
'-0

"
12

'-0
"

1

CURVE DATA
RADIUS (FT)

700.00

DELTA (°)

21.849°

LENGTH (FT)

266.935

TANGENT (FT)

135.109

1

BB STA 13+58.00
ELEV 4682.65

PI
N

E 
C

R
EE

K

AB
U

T 
2 

TRANSITION RAILING
AND TERMINAL SYSTEM,
TYP, SEE "ROAD PLANS"

CL
AB

U
T 

1 

C L

STA   12+40.00
ELEV 4682.82

STA   15+93.00
ELEV 4682.32 9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
9,

 2
02

0 
- 9

:4
8a

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20

ROCK SLOPE
PROTECTION
(1/2T, CLASS VII,
METHOD B), TYP

15

TOP OF SLOPE, TYP

22°11'9"
SKEW

15

SKEW

17°0'0"

4'
-0

"
4'

-0
"

DECK DRAIN,
TYPE B, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text_3288
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3289
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3290
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3291
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3292
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3293
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3294
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3295
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3296
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3297
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3298
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3299
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3300
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3301
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3302
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3303
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3304
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3305
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3306
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3307
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3308
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3309
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3310
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3311
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3312
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3313
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3314
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3315
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3316
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3317
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3318
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3319
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3320
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3321
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3322
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3323
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3324
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3325
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3326
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3327
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3328
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3329
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3330
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3331
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3332
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3333
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3334
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3335
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3336
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3337
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3338
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3339
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3340
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3341
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3342
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3343
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3344
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3345
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3346
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3347
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3348
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3349
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3350
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3351
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3352
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3353
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3354
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3355
R



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

169

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
6,

 2
02

0 
- 1

1:
32

am
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
DECK CONTOURS AND GENERAL NOTES

GENERAL NOTES

DESIGN:

DEAD LOAD:

SEISMIC DESIGN:

SEISMIC LOAD:

LIVE LOAD:

n = VARIES
CONCRETE:
REINFORCED

f'c = SEE 'CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS' 
fy = 60,000 PSI

AASHTO LRFD BRIDGE DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS, 6TH EDITION AND THE

MAXIMUM MAGNITUDE = 6.89
PEAK GROUND ACCELERATION = 0.678g

 LOAD AND RESISTANCE FACTOR DESIGN 

INCLUDES 35 PSF FOR FUTURE WEARING SURFACE.

HL93 AND PERMIT DESIGN VEHICLE

CALTRANS SEISMIC DESIGN CRITERIA (SDC) VERSION 1.7, APRIL, 2013

CALTRANS AMENDMENTS, PREFACE, DATED MARCH 2014

SHEAR WAVE VELOCITY, V      = 400 M/S

PRESTRESSING
STEEL:

SEE 'PRESTRESSING NOTES' ON "GIRDER DETAILS" 

S30

SHEET

SP
EC

TR
AL

 A
C

C
EL

ER
AT

IO
N

 (G
)

PERIOD (SEC)

 RESPONSE SPECTRA 

0.0
0.0

1.6

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

5.01.0 2.0 3.0 4.0

STANDARD PLANS DATED 2018

A3A ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 1 OF 3)

A3B ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 2 OF 3)

A3C ABBREVIATIONS (SHEET 3 OF 3)

A62C LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL - BRIDGE

RSP B0-1 BRIDGE DETAILS

B0-13 BRIDGE DETAILS

B6-21 JOINT SEALS (MAXIMUM MOVEMENT RATING = 2")

B7-5 DECK DRAINS

1" = 10'

 DECK CONTOURS 1. CONTOUR INTERVAL = 0.05 FT 
2. CONTOURS DO NOT INCLUDE CAMBER

NOTES: 

3.     INDICATES 10' STATION INTERVALS  ALONG CENTER LINE

 CONCRETE STRENGTH AND TYPE LIMITS 
NO SCALE

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE

 LEGEND 

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE FOOTING

f'c = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYS

f ' = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYSc

4682.50

4682.75

4682.25

4682.50

4682.25

PRECAST PRESTESSED GIRDER
f ' = SEE "GIRDER DETAILS" SHEETc

STRUCTURAL CONCRETE, BRIDGE (POLYMER FIBER)
f ' = 4.0 KSI AT 28 DAYSc

16

4682.00

4681.75

4681.50

4683.00

4683.25

4683.50

4682.50

C L
AB

U
T 

1 

C L
AB

U
T 

2

OG

 LIMITS OF PAYMENT - STRUCTURE EXCAVATION & BACKFILL 
NO SCALE

1'-0"
TYP

1'-0"
TYP

ABUT 1 ABUT 2

Elev 4675

Elev 4675

- INDICATES LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR
STRUCTURE EXCAVATION (TYPE D)

- INDICATES LIMITS OF PAYMENT FOR
STRUCTURE BACKFILL

OG

AutoCAD SHX Text_3356
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3357
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3358
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3359
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3360
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3361
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3362
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3363
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3364
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3365
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3366
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3367
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3368
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3369
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3370
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3371
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3372
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3373
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3374
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3375
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3376
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3377
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3378
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3379
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3380
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3381
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3382
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3383
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3384
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3385
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3386
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3387
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3388
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3389
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3390
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3391
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3392
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3393
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3394
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3395
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3396
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3397
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3398
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3399
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3400
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3401
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3402
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3403
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3404
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3405
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3406
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3407
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3408
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3409
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3410
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3411
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3412
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3413
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3414
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3415
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3416
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3417
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3418
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3419
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3420
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3421
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3422
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3423
R



14+00

13+50
14+50

PT, 14+21.36

CUT-OFF
ELEVATIONPILE TYPELOCATION

TOTAL PERMANENT

PILE DATA TABLE

(FT)

4662.7524" CIDHABUT 1 1714 1341 1

1" = 10'

 FOUNDATION PLAN 

LOCATION

ABUT 2

SCOUR DATA TABLE

ABUT 1 o 5.11

LONG TERM
(DEGRADATION AND

CONTRACTION)
SCOUR DEPTH (FT)

SHORT TERM
(LOCAL)

SCOUR DEPTH
(FT)

o 5.28

INDICATES 24" CIDH PILE

INDICATES DIRECTION OF FLOW

 LEGEND 

INDICATES BOTTOM OF FOOTING ELEVATIONxxxx.x

 HYDROLOGIC SUMMARY 
DRAINAGE AREA 37 SQUARE MILES

DESIGN FLOOD BASE FLOOD
FREQUENCY (YEARS)

DISCHARGE (CUBIC FEET PER SECOND)

WATER SURFACE (ELEVATION AT BRIDGE)

50

420

4669.40

100

460

4669.50

179

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
G

Ps
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 1

:1
1p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
FOUNDATION PLAN

CL
AB

UT
 1

 
N 

87
°4

4'
29

" E

AB
U

T 
2 

C L
N

 8
7°

44
'2

9"
 E

STA 14+40.65
STA 13+60.43

4681

4680

4682

4675

4675

46
80

4666

4670

4665

EXISTING BRIDGE
TO BE REMOVED 4662.50

4662.50

46
70

4683

46
8446
85

46
80

46
70

4681

4681

4682

PI
NE

 C
RE

EK

 NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROADCL N 19°15'31" W

18
'-0

"
18

'-0
"

WW LOL
N 19°15'31" W

WW LOL
N 19°15'31" W

WW LOL

R = 718 FT

WW LOL

R = 682 FT

TOTAL
PERMISSIBLE

SUPPORT
SETTLEMENT

(IN)
COMPRESSION

φ = 0.7

277

TENSION
φ = 0.7

1

COMPRESSION
φ = 1.0

228

TENSION
φ = 1.0

60

STRENGTH EXTREME
DESIGN TIP

ELEVATIONS
(FT)

4633 (a)
4632 (a-I)
4646 (c)
4633 (d)

SPECIFIED
TIP

ELEVATIONS
(FT)

4632

NOMINAL RESISTANCE (KIPS)SERVICE-I LIMIT
STATE LOAD PER

SUPPORT
(KIPS)

4662.7524" CIDHABUT 2 1 4632

NOTES:
(1) DESIGN TIP ELEVATIONS ARE CONTROLLED BY: (A) COMPRESSION (SERVICE LIMIT), (A-I) COMPRESSION (STRENGTH LIMIT), (B-I) TENSION (STRENGTH
      LIMIT), (A-II) COMPRESSION (EXTREME EVENT), (B-II) TENSION (EXTREME EVENT), (C) SETTLEMENT, (D) LATERAL LOAD.
(2) THE SPECIFIC TIP ELEVATION SHALL NOT BE RAISED ABOVE THE DESIGN TIP ELEVATIONS OF TENSION, LATERAL, AND TOLERABLE SETTLEMENT.

4682

4683

46
81

4683

4679

4678

4677

17

4633 (a)
4632 (a-I)
4646 (c)
4633 (d)

INDICATES EXISTING STRUCTURE

VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88

1714 1341 277 1 228 60

AutoCAD SHX Text_3424
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3425
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3426
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3427
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3428
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3429
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3430
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3431
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3432
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3433
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3434
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3435
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3436
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3437
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3438
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3439
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3440
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3441
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3442
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3443
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3444
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3445
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3446
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3447
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3448
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3449
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3450
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3451
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3452
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3453
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3454
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3455
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3456
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3457
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3458
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3459
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3460
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3461
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3462
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3463
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3464
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3465
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3466
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3467
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3468
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3469
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3470
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3471
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3472
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3473
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3474
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3475
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3476
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3477
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3478
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3479
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3480
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3481
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3482
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3483
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3484
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3485
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3486
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3487
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3488
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3489
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3490
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3491
R



FOOTING

24" CIDH CONC PILE, TYP

 FOOTING REINFORCEMENT LAYOUT 

ABUTMENT 1 SHOWN, ABUTMENT 2 SIMILAR.

CL CL

1/2" = 1'-0'

BOTTOM FOOTING REINFTOP FOOTING REINF

FOOTING

PILE

#4      @ 12, TYP

CL

PILECL

#7        T & B

#7        T & B

BOTH WAYS

#4      @ 12, TYP
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12, TYP
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12, TYP#7 @ 12

#7 @ 12

 ABUTMENT 1 PLAN 

19'-5 1/2" 19'-4 3/8"

5'-10 3/4"3'-7 1/4" 9'-6 1/8"9'-6 1/8"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

CL ABUT BRG

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD, TOT 4

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS AS
BEARING, TYP

20'-0", TYP

1'-0"

TYP

2'-0"

TYP

W
W

  LO
L

W
W

  LO
L

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

7 SPACES @ 5'-3", TOTAL 36'-9"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

21'-0"21'-0"

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 1 FOOTING 

CL

A

A

FG 

BEARING PAD, TYP

15'-0" 15'-0"

WEEP HOLE, TYP,
SEE NOTE 3

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

6" CHAMFER, TYP

4" CHAMFER, TYP

10
'-0

"ABUT BRG =

FOOTINGCL

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 1 ELEVATION 

1/4" = 1'-0'

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

C C

13+50

R = 682 ft

R = 700 ft R = 718 ft

3'-9 15/16"

1'-5 1/16"

1'-4 7/8"

3'-10 1/8"

13+50 21°59'13"

N 87°44'29" EN 87°44'29" E

R = 700 ft

1. FOR BEARING PAD DETAILS， SEE "ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2" SHEET.

2. FOR SECTION A-A, SECTION B-B AND SECTION C-C, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO.
1" SHEET.

3. 4" DRAINS AT 15'-0" CENTER TO CENTER.  WEEP HOLES SHALL BE LOCATED 3"
ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

4. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

NOTES:

B

C

GIRDER
TOP OF BRG 4678.03

D
4678.49

C
4678.83

B
4679.09

A

ALL ELEVATIONS PROVIDED AT     BRG PAD.CL

B AD

B

B6-21

-

ELEV 4675.00

ELEV 4675.60

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 1
0,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:5
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 1

18

18

AutoCAD SHX Text_3492
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3493
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3494
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3495
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3496
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3497
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3498
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3499
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3500
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3501
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3502
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3503
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3504
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3505
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3506
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3507
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3508
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3509
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3510
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3511
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3512
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3513
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3514
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3515
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3516
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3517
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3518
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3519
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3520
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3521
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3522
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3523
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3524
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3525
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3526
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3527
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3528
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3529
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3530
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3531
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3532
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3533
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3534
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3535
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3536
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3537
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3538
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3539
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3540
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3541
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3542
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3543
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3544
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3545
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3546
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3547
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3548
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3549
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3550
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3551
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3552
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3553
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3554
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3555
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3556
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3557
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3558
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3559
R



1. FOR SECTION A-A, SECTION B-B AND SECTION C-C, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO.
1" SHEET.

2. 4" DRAINS AT 15'-0" CENTER TO CENTER.  WEEP HOLES SHALL BE LOCATED 3"
ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

3. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

NOTES:

14+50

3'
-0

"
3'

-0
"

CL ABUT BRG =

FOOTINGCL

14+50

17°0'0"

7 SPACES @ 5'-3", TOTAL 36'-9"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

21'-0"21'-0"

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 2 FOOTING 

10
'-0

"

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

3'-6 1/2"

1'-8 1/2"

1'-8 1/2"

3'-6 1/2"
N 87°44'29" E

18'-9 7/8"18'-9 7/8"

3'-9"5'-9 1/16" 9'-6 1/16"9'-6 1/16"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

CL ABUT BRG

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD, TOT 4

20'-0", TYP

1'-0"

TYP

W
W

  LO
L

W
W

  LO
L

A

A 6" CHAMFER, TYP

4" CHAMFER, TYP

B N 87°44'29" E

2'-0"

TYP

 ABUTMENT 2 PLAN 

1/4" = 1'-0'

 ABUTMENT 2 ELEVATION 

1/4" = 1'-0'

FG 15'-0" 15'-0"

WEEP HOLE, TYP,
SEE NOTE 2

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD

BEARING PAD, TYP

C C

B

GIRDER
TOP OF BRG 4678.28

A
4678.47

B
4678.51

C
4678.33

D

ALL ELEVATIONS PROVIDED AT     BRG PAD.CL

A C D

B

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS AS
BEARING, TYP

B6-21

-

ELEV 4676.00

ELEV 4675.00

BRG PADCL

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 ELEVATION 

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
TO MATCH BRG PAD
THICKNESS, TYP

ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD

14 GA (0.079 IN) GALVANIZED
SHEET METAL CENTERED ON
PADS. COAT TOP OF PAD WITH
SILICONE GREASE PRIOR TO
PLACING SHEET METAL

2"

3'-9", LEVEL

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

   PLAN   

BRG PAD =CL

ABUT BRGCL

24" x 10" x 2", STEEL
REINF ELASTOMERIC
BEARING PAD

2"
5"

2"

5"

28" X 13" GALVANIZED SHEET
METAL (0.079" THICK). COAT
TOP OF PAD WITH SILICONE
GREASE PRIOR TO PLACING
SHEET MATEL

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
TO MATCH BRG PAD
THICKNESS, TYP

 BEARING PAD DETAILS 

2"
1'-0"

1'-0"

GIRDERCL

TYP

13-1
B0-13TOP OF BRG

MEASURED NORMAL TO GIRDER

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
6,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
6p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ABUTMENT LAYOUT NO. 2

19

19

AutoCAD SHX Text_3560
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3561
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3562
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3563
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3564
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3565
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3566
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3567
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3568
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3569
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3570
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3571
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3572
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3573
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3574
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3575
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3576
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3577
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3578
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3579
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3580
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3581
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3582
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3583
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3584
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3585
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3586
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3587
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3588
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3589
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3590
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3591
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3592
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3593
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3594
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3595
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3596
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3597
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3598
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3599
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3600
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3601
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3602
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3603
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3604
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3605
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3606
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3607
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3608
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3609
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3610
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3611
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3612
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3613
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3614
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3615
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3616
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3617
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3618
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3619
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3620
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3621
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3622
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3623
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3624
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3625
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3626
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3627
R



1'-0" 1'-3" 1'-3"

2'
-0

"

CONST JOINT

#5 TOT 2   e

JOINT SEAL
TYPE B,
MR = 1"

B6-21

-

#9, TOT 5

#5            @ 12

FG

1'
-0

"

3" C
LR

DETAIL 3, SEE NOTE 2

DETAIL 2, SEE NOTE 2

ABUTCLBB/EB

2'
-0

"

#5           @ 12   e

3'-6"

6"
 C

LR

1/2" = 1'-0'

  SECTION A-A  

#5 @ 12, TYP

3" EM
BE

D
M

EN
T

2'
-9

"
ABUT

24" CIDH CONC
PILE, TYP

#7     @ 12

6'
-9

"

#7          @ 12

#5 @ 12, TYP#7 @ 12

#4      @ 12, 
BOTH WAYS

#5 @ 12

CL

1'-0"

1/2" = 1'-0'

CONST JT

 SECTION C-C 

WINGWALL

BACKWALL
REINF, TYP

WW REINF, TYP

#4                        , TOT 4

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION B-B 

#5              , TYP

1'
-6

"

#4                        , TYP

#5              , TOT 3

TYP

#5

CONST JT

2" CLR

TYP

WW REINF

 PILE ELEVATION 

3"
1"

PI
TC

H
 O

F 
#4

 S
PI

R
AL

 @
 6

LE
N

G
TH

 F
O

R
 P

AY
M

EN
T

1/2" = 1'-0'

D D

CL PILE
TOP OF FTG

BOT OF FTG

#4
 @

 4

SPECIFIED PILE

TIP ELEVATION

PILE CUT-OFF

ELEVATION

DETAIL 1

2" CLR

EXPANDED
POLYSTYRENE,
TYP

1/2" EXPANSION
JOINT FILLER

1'
-0

"

2"

EXPANDED
POLYSTYRENE

END
DIAPHRAGM

1
1

5'-9"

#5       @ 12  e

#5 @ 12 BOTH FACES

2'-6"

3"
 C

LR

#5 @ 12   e

3"
 C

LR

2"

SEE NOTE 1

AL
LO

W
ED

8'
-0

", 
N

O
 S

PL
IC

E

SEE NOTE 1

1. SEE "FOUNDATION PLAN" SHEET FOR SPECIFIED TIP ELEVATIONS.

2. FOR DETAIL 2 AND DETAIL 3, SEE "ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2" SHEET.

NOTES:

 SECTION D-D 

2'-0"

1" = 1'-0'

3" CLR

INSPECTION
TUBES,
2" ID, TOT 2

#4 SPIRAL

#8 TOT 6

1'
-6

"

#9

#4, Typ

#9, TYP

#5                 @ 8

1'-0"

1
1

#5                 @ 8  e

2'-0"

WW LOL

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION E-E 

#4 TOT 4

2" CLR
TYP

3"
 C

LR

#5 TOT 4   e

1'
-0

"

#4

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

 SPIRAL TERMINATION DETAIL 
1" = 1'-0'

SPIRAL TERMINATIONS TO
HAVE AN EXTRA TURN
WITH HALF THE PITCH IN
ADDITION TO A 90° HOOK
EXTENDED THROUGH PILE
CORE, AS SHOWN

"a"

CONST JT

1'
-0

"

1/2" EXPANSION
JOINT FILLER

ABUT SEAT

BACKWALL

NOTE: FOR DIMENSION "a", 
SEE STANDARD PLAN B6-21

13-1
B0-13

13-2
B0-13

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 DETAIL 1 

EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE,
SAME THICKNESS
AS BRG PAD

3'
-0

"

E

E

#4 @ 18 MAX,
OUTSIDE FACE, TYP

#4                 , TOT 2

#9                   , TOT 2   e

#9 @ 9 MAX,
INSIDE FACE, TYP

#4        @ 18   e , TYP

#5 TOT 4,
OUTSIDE
FACE ONLY

20'-0", ALONG LAYOUT LINE

CL ABUT BRG

 WINGWALL ELEVATION 
1/4" = 1'-0'

* BARRIER NOT SHOWN FOR CLARITY
3'

-2
"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
6,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:1
9p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 1

20

20

AutoCAD SHX Text_3628
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3629
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3630
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3631
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3632
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3633
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3634
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3635
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3636
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3637
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3638
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3639
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3640
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3641
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3642
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3643
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3644
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3645
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3646
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3647
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3648
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3649
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3650
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3651
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3652
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3653
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3654
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3655
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3656
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3657
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3658
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3659
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3660
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3661
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3662
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3663
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3664
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3665
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3666
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3667
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3668
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3669
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3670
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3671
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3672
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3673
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3674
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3675
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3676
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3677
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3678
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3679
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3680
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3681
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3682
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3683
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3684
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3685
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3686
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3687
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3688
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3689
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3690
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3691
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3692
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3693
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3694
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3695
R



FF

1'
-0

"
1'-0"

~

10 MIL POLYETHYLENE SHEET

  DETAIL 2  

DRAINS THROUGH
ABUT, TYP

BOND 6" TO WALL CUT
HOLE FOR 3" PIPE

BOND TO GEOCOMPOSITE
DRAIN 3" MIN.

LEVEL OR SLOPED
TOWARD BACKWALL

CEMENT TREATED
PERMEABLE BASE

NO SCALE

 WEEP HOLE AND GEOCOMPOSITE DRAIN 

3"

FILTER FABRIC
WRAP AROUND

BACKFACE OF
ABUTMENT OR
WINGWALL

  DETAIL 3  

1. GEOCOMPOSITE DRAIN, CEMENT TREATED PERMEABLE BASE,   AND 3"Ø SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE CONTINUOUS BEHIND   ABUTMENT & WINGWALLS. CAP ENDS OF
PIPE.   PROVIDE "TEE" CONNECTION AT EACH 4"Ø DRAIN.

NOTES:

WINGWALL OR
RETURN WALL, TYP

CAP TYP

TEE CONNECTION

3" SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

BACKFACE OF
ABUTMENT

4"Ø DRAIN

3/4" = 1'-0"

3" UNSLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

3" MIN

 SECTION F-F  WINGWALL DRAIN ELEVATION VIEW 
1/4" = 1'-0'

1'-0"

1'
-0

"

SLOTTED
PLASTIC PIPE

CL ABUT BRG

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:0
7p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ABUTMENT DETAILS NO. 2

21

21

AutoCAD SHX Text_3696
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3697
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3698
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3699
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3700
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3701
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3702
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3703
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3704
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3705
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3706
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3707
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3708
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3709
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3710
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3711
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3712
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3713
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3714
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3715
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3716
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3717
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3718
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3719
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3720
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3721
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3722
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3723
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3724
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3725
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3726
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3727
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3728
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3729
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3730
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3731
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3732
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3733
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3734
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3735
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3736
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3737
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3738
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3739
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3740
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3741
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3742
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3743
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3744
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3745
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3746
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3747
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3748
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3749
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3750
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3751
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3752
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3753
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3754
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3755
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3756
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3757
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3758
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3759
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3760
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3761
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3762
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3763
R



DECK PANEL,
TYP

1" C
LR

3"
 M

IN
3 

1 2"
 M

AX

OUTER 3" OF THE TOP
SURFACE OF GIRDER SHALL
BE TROWELED SMOOTH, TYP

CL GIRDER

SEE FABRICATION NOTE 4
ON "DECK PANELS
DETAILS" SHEET

1" MIN
TYP 1 1/2"

TYP2" MIN
TYP 1 1/2" CLR

TYP

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 CAMBER STRIP DETAILS 

3 EQUAL SPACES AT 9'-0", TOTAL = 27'-0" VARIESVARIES

1/2" = 1'-0'

  TYPICAL SECTION  

36'-0"

16'-0"2'-0" 16'-0" 2'-0"

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD =      BRIDGE

PG
CL GIRDER, TYP

SLOPE VARIES

CALIFORNIA ST-75
BRIDGE RAIL, TYP2 

1/
2"

 C
LR

6"
TYP

3/4" DRIP
GROOVE, TYP

4'
-0

", 
AT

   
  B

R
G8 
1/

2"

SEE NOTE 2

#5 @ 6   e  ,
SEE NOTE 1

DECK PANEL, TYP

TUBULAR BICYCLE
RAILING, TYP

#5 @ 10   e , TYP

VARIES

CL

#5 x 9'-0" @ 6

C L

1" = 1'-0'

 TYPICAL GIRDER SECTION 

R = 2 1/2", TYP

4'-0"

6 
1/

8"
6 

3/
8"

3'-9"

3'
-0

"

3"

1 
3/

4"

R = 2 1/2", TYP

R = 10", TYP

R = 10", TYP

1'-8 3/4"1'-8 3/4"

1'-7 1/4"1'-7 1/4"

1" CLR, TYP
#4, TOT 6, CONTINUOUS

#4, TOT 4, CONTINUOUS

#4, @ 12

#3*                       , SEE NOTE 5

#5         STIRRUP

CL GIRDER

#5 CONT, TOT 8 PER
GIRDER   e , TYP

#5 @ 10   e , TYP

#5                @ 6   e

#5 TOT 10   e , TYP

8"

CL GIRDER
#5 CONT, TOT 4   e

CALIFORNIA ST-75
BRIDGE RAIL

1'-0"1'-0"

VA
R

VA
R

#5                                       @ 12   e 

1" = 1'-0'

 PARTIAL SECTION 

6 1/2"

3/4" CHAMFER, TYP

#4, TOT 2, CONTINUOUS

1. PLACE REINF PARALLEL TO CENTER LINE ABUTMENT.

2. PLACE REINF PARALLEL TO CENTER LINE NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD.

3. FOR STIRRUP SPACING, SEE "GIRDER DETAILS" SHEET.

4. FOR DECK PANEL DETAILS NOT SHOWN, SEE "DECK PANEL DETAILS"
SHEET.

5. SPACING TO MATCH STIRRUPS, SEE GIRDER ELEVATION ON "GIRDER
DETAILS" SHEET.

NOTES:

7"

#4*             e 

1'
-6

"

* MATCH STIRRUP SPACING.

1"
 C

LR DECK PANEL, TYP

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

SEE NOTE 5

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
9,

 2
02

0 
- 1

0:
15

am
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
TYPICAL SECTION

22

22

AutoCAD SHX Text_3764
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3765
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3766
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3767
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3768
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3769
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3770
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3771
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3772
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3773
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3774
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3775
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3776
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3777
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3778
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3779
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3780
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3781
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3782
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3783
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3784
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3785
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3786
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3787
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3788
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3789
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3790
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3791
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3792
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3793
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3794
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3795
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3796
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3797
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3798
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3799
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3800
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3801
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3802
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3803
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3804
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3805
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3806
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3807
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3808
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3809
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3810
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3811
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3812
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3813
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3814
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3815
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3816
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3817
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3818
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3819
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3820
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3821
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3822
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3823
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3824
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3825
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3826
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3827
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3828
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3829
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3830
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3831
R



ABUTMENT BACK WALL, TYP

1/4" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER LAYOUT 

CL NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD = "R" LINE

CL GIRDER A

CL GIRDER B

CL GIRDER C

CL GIRDER D

AB
U

TM
EN

T 
1

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E

C L

AB
U

TM
EN

T 
2

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E

C L

A

B

C

D

N 19°15'31" W

14+00

13+50

IN
TE

R
M

ED
IA

TE
 D

IA
PH

R
AG

M

N
 8

7°
44

'2
9"

 E
, S

TA
 1

4+
00

.5
0

C L

EDGE OF DECK, TYP

14+50PT

R = 700'

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

N 21°03'16" W

END DIAPHRAGM TYP

INTERMEDIATE DIAPHRAGM

PT

PT

R = 682'-0"

R = 718'-0"

STA 13+75.00, LT 16.08FT,
DECK DRAIN, TYPE B STA 14+15.00, LT 16.08FT,

DECK DRAIN, TYPE B7-3
B7-5

7-3
B7-5

DECK PANEL, TYP2'
-7

1 4"

2'
-7

7 8"

4'
-3

7 8"

3'
-5

7 8"

1'
-4

7 8"

1'
-9

3 8"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 3

:3
5p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
GIRDER LAYOUT

23

23

AutoCAD SHX Text_3832
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3833
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3834
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3835
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3836
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3837
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3838
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3839
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3840
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3841
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3842
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3843
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3844
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3845
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3846
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3847
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3848
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3849
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3850
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3851
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3852
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3853
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3854
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3855
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3856
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3857
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3858
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3859
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3860
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3861
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3862
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3863
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3864
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3865
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3866
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3867
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3868
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3869
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3870
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3871
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3872
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3873
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3874
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3875
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3876
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3877
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3878
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3879
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3880
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3881
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3882
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3883
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3884
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3885
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3886
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3887
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3888
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3889
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3890
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3891
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3892
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3893
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3894
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3895
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3896
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3897
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3898
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3899
R



GIRDER LENGTH, L

HORIZONTAL 1/4" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER ELEVATION 

VERTICAL 1" = 1'-0'

3'
-0

"

CL

CENTER OF SPAN1'-2 1/2" 1'-2 5/8"

6" TY
P

"X
"

TY
P

24'-0", TYP

#9                 AT ENDS, TYP

4'-0"

2'
-8

"

G

G

P/S HOLD DOWN LOCATION, TYP

H

HBEARING
CENTER AT
ABUTMENT 1

BEARING
CENTER AT
ABUTMENT 2

    HARPED
STRANDS
CL

    OTHER  THAN
HARPED STRANDS
CL

1'
-0

"

1'
-3

", 
TY

P

1 1/2" DIA HOLE, TYP

CONSTRUCTION JOINT BETWEEN
GIRDER AND DECK SLAB, MINIMUM 1/4"
AMPLITUDE COARSE BROOM FINISH.

"Y
"

#6      STIRRUPS @ 3

3'-0"

@ 6 @ 12 @ 6#5      STIRRUPS

#6      STIRRUPS@ 3

3'-0"

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION H-H 

8 x 2" = 1'-4"

2 
1/

2"

3 
x 

2"
 =

 6
"

1"

CL GIRDER

GIRDER A

GIRDER B

GIRDER C

GIRDER D

LOCATION

82'-7 1/4"

LENGTH

40

STRANDS

NO. OF
0.6" DIA.

1" = 1'-0'

 SECTION G-G 

8 x 2" = 1'-4"

3 1/2"

2 
1/

2"

3"
3 

x 
2"

 =
 6

"

1"
1"

CL GIRDER

1758

(KIPS)

JACK
FORCE

2" 2 1/2"

1.57

DECK

MIDSPAN DEFLECTION (IN)

0.05

BARRIER

0.13

WEARING

0.13

0.13

0.13

GIRDER SCHEDULE

1. THE JACKING FORCE, PJACK, IS THE JACKING FORCE REQUIRED AT THE POINT
OF CONTROL ALONG THE SPAN. THE JACKING FORCE DOES NOT INCLUDE
ANY FABRICATION SPECIFIC LOSSES.

2. THE MAXIMUM TEMPORARY TENSILE STRESS (JACKING STRESS) IN THE
PRESTRESSING STEEL SHALL NOT EXCEED 75% OF THE SPECIFIED MINIMUM
ULTIMATE TENSILE STRENGTH OF THE PRESTRESSING STEEL.

3. GIRDER CONCRETE STRENGTH:
f 'ci = 7 KSI        f 'c = 8 KSI

f 'ci IS AT TIME OF INITIAL STRESSING; f 'c IS AT 28 DAYS

4. PRESTRESSING STRAND SHALL BE 270 KSI LOW RELAXATION.

5. FOR THE PRESTRESSING THERE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF TWO HOLD DOWN
PER GIRDER.

6. STRANDS SHALL BE PLACED AS LOW AS POSSIBLE IN THE STRAND TEMPLATE
AND SYMMETRICAL ABOUT THE CENTER LINE OF GIRDER.

7. STRAND LOCATIONS MAY BE ADJUSTED AS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

* GIRDER LENGTH IS PLAN LENGTH AND DOES NOT INCLUDE GRADE EFFECTS.

GIRDER

(L)*

4

ROW NO.

-

STRAIGHT

2

STRANDS

NO. OF
HARPED

8 1/2"

"X"

STRAND SCHEDULE
NO. OF

STRANDS

2'-9"

"Y"

3 - 2 6 1/2" 2'-7"

2 14 2 4 1/2" 2'-5"

1 18 2 2 1/2" 2'-3"

#4         TOT 4 VERTICAL,
SPACE WITH STIRRUPS,
ALONG #6             WITHIN
4'-0" FROM ENDS, TYP

#6               TOT 8
VERTICAL, EQUALLY
SPACED, TYP

12'-0"

#9                 AT EACH END

4'-0"

2'
-8

"

PRESTRESSING NOTES:

ROW NO. 1
ROW NO. 2

ROW NO. 3
ROW NO. 4

#4 TOT 2, CONT, TYP

82'-7 1/4"

82'-7 1/4"

82'-7 1/4"

0.05

0.05

0.05

1758

1758

1758

40

40

40

1.57

1.57

1.57

10
"

1/2" = 1'-0'

 GIRDER DETAIL AT ABUTMENT 

ABUT BRGCL

GIRDERCL

BACK WALL

BEARING PAD

1/2" = 1'-0'

 TRANSVERSE REINFORCING SKEWED ENDS 

ABUT BRGCL

GIRDERCL

BACK WALL

6'-0", MATCH STIRRUPS SPACING

3'-0"
MATCH SKEW

SEE GIRDER ELEVATION

ONLY TRANSVERSE REINFORCEMENTS
SHOWN, STIRRUP AND BOTTOM
FLANGE REINFORCEMENTS SIMILAR,
LENGTH OF BARS TOP AND BOTTOM
VARY WITH SKEW.

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:1
4p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
GIRDER DETAILS

24

24

AutoCAD SHX Text_3900
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3901
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3902
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3903
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3904
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3905
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3906
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3907
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3908
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3909
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3910
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3911
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3912
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3913
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3914
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3915
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3916
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3917
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3918
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3919
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3920
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3921
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3922
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3923
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3924
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3925
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3926
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3927
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3928
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3929
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3930
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3931
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3932
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3933
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3934
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3935
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3936
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_3937
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_3938
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3939
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3940
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3941
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3942
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3943
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3944
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3945
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3946
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3947
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3948
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3949
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3950
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3951
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3952
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_3953
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3954
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3955
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3956
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3957
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3958
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_3959
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_3960
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3961
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3962
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3963
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3964
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3965
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3966
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3967
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION J-J 

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED WIRE MESH

DETAIL 5

#3
3/8"Ø STRANDS

DETAIL 4
9"

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
, 5

'-6
" M

IN
, 7

'-0
" M

AX

6"
 M

IN

#3 TOT 5, EQUAL SPACES

3/8"Ø
PRESTRESS
STRANDS

PANEL WIDTH = 4'-0" MIN, 12'-0" MAX

TY
P

TY
P

CL GIRDER

CL GIRDER

3/8"Ø STRANDS @ 62 1/2" MIN
4" MAX, TYP

9"

PA
N

EL
 L

EN
G

TH
, 5

'-6
" M

IN
, 7

'-0
" M

AX

6"
 M

IN

3/8"Ø
PRESTRESS
STRANDS

PANEL WIDTH = 4'-0" MIN, 8'-0" MAX

TY
P

CL GIRDER

CL GIRDER

3/8"Ø STRANDS @ 62 1/2" MIN
4" MAX, TYP

#3 TOT 5, EQUAL SPACES

1'-0"

BROOM FINISH, (MIN
1/8" AMPLITUDE)

BROOM FINISH, (MIN
1/8" AMPLITUDE)

SKEWED

ANGLE

1" = 1'-0'

 SKEWED END PANEL 
1" = 1'-0'

 PLAN - TYPICAL PANEL 

JJ

#3

#3 x 2'-6",
TOT 5

1. PANELS: DESIGN SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH AASHTO LRFD SPECIFICATIONS
WITH CALTRANS AMENDMENTS AND STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR
CONSTRUCTION LOADS.

2. CONCRETE STRENGTH: PRECAST PRETENSIONED PANELS:
f'c = 5,000 PSI AT 28 DAYS; f'ci = 4,000 PSI AT RELEASE. PRELIMINARY CONCRETE
DECK POUR MATERIAL SHALL USE AN APPROVED MIX DESIGN TO ENSURE
ADEQUATE STRENGTH AND FLOWABILITY FOR DECK PANEL SUPPORT.

3. PRESTRESSING STEEL: ALL STRANDS SHALL BE 3/8" Ø, GRADE 270, SEVEN WIRE
LOW RELAXATION STRANDS CONFORMING TO ASTM A416.  JACKING FORCE = 0.75 x
270 KSI x 0.085 IN2 = 17.2 KIPS/STRAND. WORKING FORCE (AFTER LOSSES) = 15.6
KIPS/STRAND.

4. CAMBER STRIPS: MATERIAL FOR CAMBER STRIPS (SERVING AS PANEL SUPPORT
AND DAMS) SHALL BE CONTINUOUS, HIGH-DENSITY, EXPANDED POLYSTYRENE
STRIPS WITH A MINIMUM COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 55 PSI. STRIPS SHALL
CONSIST OF ONE LAYER WITH 1" WIDTH AND HEIGHT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
DIMENSIONS, 1" MINIMUM AND 2" MAXIMUM.

5. WELDED WIRE REINFORCEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A497, GRADE 70.

DESIGN NOTES:

1. PLACE POLYSTYRENE CAMBER STRIPS (PANEL SUPPORT AND DAMS) WITH
ADHESIVE ALONG TOP OF GIRDERS AFTER PLACEMENT OF GIRDERS.

2. PLACE DECK PANELS ON CAMBER STRIPS.

3. PLACE SUPPLEMENTARY U-BARS AND ASSOCIATED REBAR (WHERE REQUIRED).

4. PLACE AND VIBRATE HAUNCH AND DECK CONCRETE IN A CONTINUOUS POUR
ENSURING THAT HAUNCH CONCRETE IS PLACED A MINIMUM OF THREE PANEL
LENGTHS AHEAD OF THE LEADING EDGE OF THE DECK CONCRETE.

DECK PANEL SEQUENCE:

1. PANELS: CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO AVOID APPLYING EXCESSIVE PRETENSIONING
FORCE DURING FABRICATION. A PANEL LAYOUT WHICH IDENTIFIES THE LOCATION
OF EACH PANEL SHALL BE DEVELOPED BY THE FABRICATOR AND SUBMITTED TO
THE ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL. PANELS SHALL BE PERMANENTLY MARKED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PANEL LAYOUT. PANEL LENGTH SHALL BE SET TO PROVIDE A
BEARING WIDTH OF 2" MINIMUM FOR THE BEDDING MATERIAL. PRESTRESSING
STRANDS SHALL EXTEND 6" MINIMUM OUTSIDE THE PANEL ENDS AND SHALL BE
LOCATED AT THE PANEL CENTROID AT THE REQUIRED SPACING. A MINIMUM OF
90% OF THE PANEL TOP SURFACE AREA SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED TO AN
AMPLITUDE OF 1/8" MINIMUM. FINISH SHALL BE PARALLEL WITH STRAND. PANEL
EDGES PARALLEL TO STRAND SHALL BE BEVELED.

2. CAMBER STRIP: POLYSTYRENE CAMBER STRIPS SHALL HAVE  1/2" x 1/2 " SLOTS.
CAMBER STRIPS SHALL BE CUT AND PLACED TO MATCH THE REQUIRED PROFILE
ALONG THE GIRDERS AND SHALL VARY IN HEIGHT ACROSS THE GIRDER TO
ACCOUNT FOR ROADWAY CROSS SLOPE.

FABRICATION NOTES:

1. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE STABILITY OF THE CAMBER STRIP
DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.

2. THE ATTACHMENT OF THE CAMBER STRIP PER THE DETAILS SHOWN MAY BE
OMITTED PROVIDED THE APPROVED ADHESIVE ATTACHMENT IS STABLE DURING
THE PLACEMENT OF THE DECK POUR.

NOTES:

3 
1/

2"

1"
1"

1/
2"

1/
2"

1/
2"

5/8"

1 1/8"

1 1/4"3/4"

1"

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED
WIRE MESH

1 
3/

4"

#3

3/4"

6" = 1'-0"

 DETAIL 4 

6 x 6 - D4 x D4
WELDED
WIRE MESH

#3

6" = 1'-0"

 DETAIL 5 

3 
1/

2"

#3 x 2'-6"

3/4" MIN, 1 1/2" MAX, CLR

END OF WIRE MESH

3/8"Ø STRANDS

TOP OF DECK

3" = 1'-0"

 SECTION AT LONGITUDINAL DECK PANEL JOINT 

TOP OF GIRDER

DECK REINF, TYP

H
AU

N
C

H

PC/PS DECK PANEL

VA
R

IE
S

JOINT SEALED
W/ BACKER ROD

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:2
8p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
DECK PANEL DETAILS

25

25

AutoCAD SHX Text_3968
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3969
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3970
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_3971
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3972
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3973
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3974
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3975
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3976
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_3977
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3978
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3979
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3980
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3981
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3982
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_3983
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_3984
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3985
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3986
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3987
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3988
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_3989
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3990
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_3991
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3992
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_3993
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_3994
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_3995
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_3996
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_3997
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_3998
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_3999
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4000
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4001
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4002
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4003
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4004
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4005
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4006
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4007
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4008
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4009
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4010
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4011
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4012
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4013
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4014
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4015
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4016
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4017
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4018
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4019
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4020
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_4021
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4022
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4023
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4024
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4025
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4026
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_4027
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_4028
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4029
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4030
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4031
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4032
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4033
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4034
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4035
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 DETAIL 4 

#8 x 4'-0" DOWEL
FULLY BONDED

OVERSIZED HOLE, FILL
WITH WITH NON-SHRINK
GROUT OR EPOXY

OUTSIDE FACE
OF GIRDER, TYP

NO SCALE

 INSERT ASSEMBLY 

3"

1" MIN
TYP

1"
CLR

1"Ø x 1'-3" BOLT

1"Ø MALLEABLE IRON
OR STEEL HEX NUT

FACE OF GIRDER, TYP

1/2" = 1'-0'

 END DIAPHRAGM 

K

K
#5                      , TOT 4, EQ SPA, TYP

#8 DOWELS TOT 2, 8'-0" LENGTH, TYP

3'-0"

3'-0"

1'
-6

"

#5                        , TOT 4, EQ SPA1'
-6

"
3'-0"

3'-0" #4                   TOT 2, TYP

SHEAR KEY

CONST JT

2'-6"

CL ABUT BRG

2'-2"

VA
R

IE
S

#8 DOWELS

EXTENT SLAB
LONGITUDINAL REINF
INTO DIAPHRAGM, TYP

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION K-K 

1"
, C

LR

TY
P

#8 DOWELS TOT 2, 6'-0" LENGTH, TYP

#4                   TOT 3

2'-2"

VA
R

IE
S

#5 @ 6                                      e
10'-0"

1'
-0

"

2'-2"

3'
-8

"

#5                   TOT 5 PER BAY   e , EQ SPA, TYP
#5 CONT, TOT 5   e 

DETAIL 4

#5                 , TOT 4, EQ SPA

1'
-6

"

1'-2"

1'-3"

1/2" = 1'-0'

INTERMEDIATE DIAPHRAGM 

L

L

1'
-0

"

#5                        , TOT 21'
-4

"

3'-0"

3'-0"

2"
, C

LR
TY

P

#5                 TOT 5 PER BAY   e , EQ SPA, TYP

#4                   TOT 2, TYP

8"

VA
R

IE
S

#8 TOT 2, 8'-0" LENGTH, TYP

#5                      , TOT 2, TYP
3'-0"

3'-0"

1'
-4

"

TY
P

SLAB REINF, TYP
CL DIAPHRAGM

1'-0"

1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION L-L 

#5 TOT 5

#5 TOT 4

#5 

DECK PANEL, TYP

CAMBER STRIP

e       INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINFORCEMENT

LEGEND:

#4, TOT 6

TOP OF INTERMEDIATE
DIAPHRAGM, TYP

1"Ø BOLT WITH INSERT
ASSEMBLY, TYP

1"

#8 DOWELS, PLACED
PARALLEL TO DIAPHRAGM

DECK PANEL, TYP

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
9,

 2
02

0 
- 1

0:
20

am
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
DIAPHRAGM DETAILS

26

26

AutoCAD SHX Text_4036
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4037
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4038
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_4039
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4040
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4041
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4042
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4043
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4044
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4045
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4046
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4047
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4048
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4049
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4050
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4051
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4052
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4053
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4054
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4055
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4056
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4057
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4058
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4059
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4060
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4061
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4062
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4063
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4064
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4065
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4066
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4067
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4068
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4069
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4070
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4071
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4072
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4073
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4074
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4075
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4076
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4077
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4078
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4079
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4080
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4081
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4082
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4083
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4084
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4085
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4086
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4087
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4088
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_4089
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4090
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4091
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4092
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4093
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4094
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_4095
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_4096
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4097
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4098
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4099
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4100
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4101
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4102
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4103
R



2'-0"

3'
-0

"

3/4" = 1'-0"

 ELEVATION 
(APPROACH)

 END BLOCK 

10'-0", TYP

N

N

L

L

2'-0"

6'-0"

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL

R = 2'-0", TYP HSS 3 x 2 x 3/16

CL POST CL POST CL POST

CL POST

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1'-4"

TRANSITION
TYP

BEGIN CURB
TRANSITION TO
VERTICAL, TYP

3
8"

 M
AX

2'
-8

"

FORMED HOLES FOR
THRIE BEAM, TYP

CONCRETE BARRIER END BLOCK

1"
TYP

4
1

A77U1

-

A77U4

-

ALL REINFORCING
SHOWN FOR CLARITY

5" TO BC, TYP M

M

LEGEND
e - INDICATES EPOXY COATED REINF.

#5         @ 6  e

#5                 @ 8  e  , TYP

#5 @ 6  e

(SEE NOTE 5)

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION L-L 
1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION N-N 

2'-0"

1'-0"

#5         @ 6  e

#5                 @ 8  e  , TYP

3'
-0

"

#5 @ 6  e
CONST JT

3
4" Ø STUD WITH NUTS

AND 2" OD WASHERS,
SNUG TIGHT AND THREAD
LOCKING SYSTEM, TYP

6"
10

"
10

"
10

"
6"

3'
-6

"

2'-0"

TUBULAR BICYCLE RAILING
HSS 3 x 2 x 316

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1"

SHIMS AS NEEDED

LEVEL 31
2"

R = 1/2"

ANCHOR BARS. SEE NOTE 4

#5                  @ 6  e

#5 CONT  e , TOT 4

1"Ø x 1'-3" ANCHOR BOLTS WITH
2 NUTS AND 2 WASHERS, SNUG
TIGHT WITH THREAD LOCKING
SYSTEM, TOT 4

1 1/2" = 1'-0'

 SECTION M-M 

3
4" Ø STUD WITH NUTS

AND 2" OD WASHERS,
SNUG TIGHT AND THREAD
LOCKING SYSTEM, TYP

6"
10

"
10

"
10

"
6"

3'
-6

"

2'-0"

TUBULAR BICYCLE RAILING
HSS 3 x 2 x 316

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

1"

SHIMS AS NEEDED

LEVEL 31
2"

R = 1/2"#5 CONT  e , TOT 4

1"Ø x 1'-9" ANCHOR BOLTS WITH
2 NUTS AND 2 WASHERS, SNUG
TIGHT WITH THREAD LOCKING
SYSTEM, TOT 4

ANCHOR BARS.

#5                  @ 8  e

SEE NOTE 4

1/2" = 1'-0'

 PLAN VIEW - END BLOCK 

5"

7" CHAMFER

CONCRETE BARRIER
END BLOCK

CONCRETE CURB

TRAFFIC SIDE

3" = 1'-0'

 RAIL SECTION AT POST 

INDICATES STUD WELD

HSS 8 x 4 x 5/16

3/4" Ø x 2 1/2" STUD

57
8"

15
16"15

16"

11
4"

21
2"

3" = 1'-0'

 SHIM DETAILS 

SHIMS AS NEEDED BETWEEN
POSTS AND HSS RAIL TUBES.

3
16 MIN THICKNESS

NOTES
1. ALL HORIZONTAL MEMBERS ARE PARALLEL TO

LONGITUDINAL PROFILE GRADE.
2. POSTS ARE NORMAL TO PROFILE GRADE OF

STRUCTURE.
3. POSTS ARE VERTICAL TO THE TRANSVERSE

CROSS SECTION.
4. FOR ANCHOR BAR DETAILS, SEE "ST-75 BRIDGE

RAIL DETAILS NO. 3" SHEET.
5. PLACE EXPANSION SPLICE AT THE BAY NEXT

TO BRIDGE DECK JOINT.

4"

NOTE:

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
9,

 2
02

0 
- 1

0:
22

am
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 1

27

27

AutoCAD SHX Text_4104
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4105
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4106
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_4107
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4108
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4109
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4110
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4111
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4112
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4113
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4114
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4115
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4116
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4117
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4118
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4119
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4120
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4121
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4122
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4123
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4124
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4125
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4126
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4127
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4128
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4129
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4130
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4131
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4132
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4133
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4134
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4135
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4136
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4137
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4138
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4139
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4140
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4141
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4142
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4143
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4144
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4145
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4146
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4147
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4148
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4149
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4150
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4151
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4152
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4153
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4154
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4155
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4156
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_4157
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4158
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4159
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4160
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4161
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4162
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_4163
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_4164
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4165
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4166
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4167
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4168
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4169
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4170
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4171
R



3" = 1'-0'

 BASE PLATE 

3" = 1'-0'

 POST DETAIL 

L

1/2

10
"

21
8"

10
"

21
8"

73
8"

5
8"

SLOTTED HOLES
1 116" x 1 916", TYP

BAR 4 14  x 3 4 x 8"

BAR 4 14  x 3 4 x 8"

O

O

3" = 1'-0'

 SECTION O-O 

51
4"

41
4"

53
4"

41
4"

55
8"

4"

4"

23
8" 23

8"31
4"

8"

6" 3"

11
2"

3"
1'

-2
1 2"

P  3 4 x 12 x 2'-5 3 8"

TYP

TYP
SEAL WELD

HSS 2 x 2 x 3/16 RAIL TUBE

BAR 3 x 3/8 x 8"

2"
6"

6"
2"

1"

4"
4"

4"
4"

1'
-4

"

5" 1'-2" 5"

2'-0" CURB AT BASE

FACE OF CURB

7" 10" 7"

NOTES
1. ANCHOR BOLTS MAY BE TACK WELDED (SHOP OR FIELD)

TO ANCHORAGE.
2. EACH RAIL LENGTH MUST BE CONTINUOUS OVER A

MINIMUM OF TWO POSTS.
3. THE FABRICATOR MUST CHECK THAT THE TUBULAR

SLEEVE SPLICES CONFORM TO THE DIMENSIONS
INDICATED TO ASSURE PROPER CLEARANCE.

4. EXCEPT FOR EXPANSION SPLICES, NOT MORE THAN
ONE SPLICE PERMITTED PER SAME SIDE OF POST.

1"
LP  5 8 x 1'-2" x 1'-4"

CL POST

LP  5 8 LP  5 8

BAR 3 x 3/8 x 8"

2" 2"

1'-0"

1 14" HOLES

21
4"

6" = 1'-0"

 RAIL CONNECTION DETAILS 

8"

 ELEVATION 

P

P

1
2 Ø x 3 12" CARRIAGE BOLT

WITH NUT, WASHER, AND
THREAD LOCKING SYSTEM

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

HSS 2 x 2 x 316

BAR 3 x 3 8 x 8"

QQ

 SECTION P-P  SECTION Q-Q 

6"

1"
4"

1"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

HSS 2 x 2 x 316

BAR 3 x 3 8 x 8"

HSS 3 x 2 x 3/16

5
8" Ø HOLES

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 6"

11
4" 11

4"

21
2"

LP  3 4 x 12 x 2'-5 3 8"

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:5
8p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 2

28

28

AutoCAD SHX Text_4172
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4173
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4174
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_4175
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4176
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4177
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4178
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4179
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4180
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4181
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4182
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4183
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4184
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4185
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4186
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4187
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4188
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4189
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4190
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4191
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4192
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4193
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4194
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4195
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4196
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4197
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4198
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4199
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4200
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4201
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4202
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4203
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4204
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4205
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4206
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4207
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4208
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4209
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4210
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4211
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4212
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4213
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4214
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4215
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4216
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4217
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4218
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4219
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4220
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4221
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4222
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4223
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4224
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_4225
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4226
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4227
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4228
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4229
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4230
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_4231
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_4232
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4233
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4234
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4235
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4236
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4237
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4238
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4239
R



1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 STANDARD SPLICE 

1'-8" 1" MIN

6"6"

31
2"31

2"

1'-8"

1" MIN

31
2"31

2"

6"6"

1'-8" 3" MIN

6"

31
2"

1'-8"3" MIN

6"

31
2"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 EXPANSION SPLICE 

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 STANDARD SLEEVE DETAILS 

3 
1/

2"
3 

1/
2"

4" 6" 8" 4"6"

2'-4"

(FOR HSS 3 x 2 x 316 RAIL)

1 
1/

4"
1 

1/
4"

4" 6" 8" 4"6"

2'-4"

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 EXPANSION SLEEVE DETAILS 

3 
1/

2"
3 

1/
2"

4" 6"

2'-6"

1 
1/

4"
1 

1/
4"

4" 6"

2'-6"

1'-2"

6"
6"

CL POST

10" 2'-0"2"

5 EQ SPACES AT 4" 2"

NOTCH, R = 12" TYP

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 3'-0"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-4"

1'
-4

"

2"
2"

1 14 Ø HOLE,
TYP

1 1/2" = 1'-0"

 ANCHOR BAR DETAILS 

(AT DECK)

6"
6"

10"2"

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-4"

1'
-4

"

2"
2"

1 14 Ø HOLE,
TYP

2"

CL POST

BAR 2 12 x 3 8 x 1'-2"

(AT WINGWALL OR RETURN WALL)

NOTES
1. HS BOLTS WITH NUT AND WASHERS, SNUG

TIGHTENED, AND THREAD LOCKING SYSTEM.
2. USE  12  Ø x 3 516 (HSS 3 x 2 x 316)

USE 3 4  Ø x 5 516 (HSS 8 x 4 x 516)

11
16" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

HSS 2 12 x 1 12 x 316

1" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

11
16" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

1" x 3 12" SLOT, TYP

HSS 7 x 3 x 14

( FOR HSS 8 x 4 x 516 RAIL)

(FOR HSS 3 x 2 x 316 RAIL)

HSS 2 12 x 1 12 x 316

HSS 7 x 3 x 14

( FOR HSS 8 x 4 x 516 RAIL)

9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

CoRd N/A 33

POST MILES
TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET
NO.

TOTAL
SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

P. ZHAO 01FEB20PREPARED FOR THE
INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
            

W. SENNETT

DATE

DATE

SHEET

SHEETSD
ra

w
in

g 
N

am
e:

 P
:\5

74
 N

or
th

 R
ou

nd
 V

al
le

y 
R

d 
Br

id
ge

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 In

yo
 C

ou
nt

y\
06

 C
AD

\S
tru

ct
ur

e\
57

4 
D

ET
AI

LS
.d

w
g

La
st

 O
pe

ne
d:

  M
ar

 0
3,

 2
02

0 
- 4

:5
9p

m
 b

y 
Pe

te
r

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)
PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - CIVIL

MGE ENGINEERING, INC.

7415 GREENHAVEN DRIVE, SUITE 100
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95831
TEL: (916) 421-1000

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT
NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

OVER PINE CREEK
 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044 33

Y. DENG 01FEB20

01FEB20
ST-75 BRIDGE RAIL DETAILS NO. 3

29

29

AutoCAD SHX Text_4240
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4241
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4242
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_4243
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4244
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4245
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4246
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4247
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4248
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4249
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4250
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4251
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4252
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4253
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4254
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4255
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4256
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4257
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4258
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4259
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4260
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4261
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4262
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4263
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4264
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4265
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4266
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4267
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4268
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4269
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4270
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4271
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4272
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4273
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4274
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4275
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4276
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4277
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4278
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4279
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4280
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4281
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4282
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4283
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4284
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4285
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4286
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4287
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4288
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4289
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4290
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4291
M.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4292
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_4293
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4294
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4295
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4296
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4297
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4298
82031

AutoCAD SHX Text_4299
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_4300
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4301
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4302
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4303
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4304
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4305
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4306
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4307
R



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES

TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET

NO.

TOTAL

SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE

INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETS

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK

 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044
www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300

Riverside, CA 92501

PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING

30

30

 PROFILE 

 PLAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4308
Elev 4666.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4309
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4310
8-15-18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4311
73

AutoCAD SHX Text_4312
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4313
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4314
AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4315
3-6 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4316
3-4 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4317
3-4 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4318
3-5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4319
3-4 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4320
08-15-18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4321
Terminated at Elev ~4606.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_4322
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_4323
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4324
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4325
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4326
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4327
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4328
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4329
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4330
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_4331
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_4332
4650

AutoCAD SHX Text_4333
4640

AutoCAD SHX Text_4334
4630

AutoCAD SHX Text_4335
4620

AutoCAD SHX Text_4336
4610

AutoCAD SHX Text_4337
B-2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4338
Depth, ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4339
Elevation, ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4340
~Elev. 4,678.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_4341
Elev 4666.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4342
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4343
8-14-18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4344
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_4345
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_4346
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_4347
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4348
AGGREGATE BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4349
3-6 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4350
3-5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4351
3 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4352
3-11 inch Cobbles, One 16 inch Diameter Boulder

AutoCAD SHX Text_4353
3-5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4354
3-6.5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4355
3-8.5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4356
08-16-18

AutoCAD SHX Text_4357
Terminated at Elev ~4606.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_4358
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_4359
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4360
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4361
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4362
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_4363
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4364
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4365
70

AutoCAD SHX Text_4366
4670

AutoCAD SHX Text_4367
4660

AutoCAD SHX Text_4368
4650

AutoCAD SHX Text_4369
4640

AutoCAD SHX Text_4370
4630

AutoCAD SHX Text_4371
4620

AutoCAD SHX Text_4372
4610

AutoCAD SHX Text_4373
B-1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4374
Depth, ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4375
Elevation, ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4376
~Elev. 4,678.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_4377
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4378
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4379
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4380
C/L N. Round Valley Rd.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4381
1' Rt. Sta. 0+91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4382
C/L N. Round Valley Rd.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4383
1' Lt. Sta. 1+87

AutoCAD SHX Text_4384
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4385
REC=36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4386
REC=6"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4387
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4388
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4389
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4390
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4391
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4392
REC=24"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4393
REC=24"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4394
REC=48"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4395
REC=35"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4396
REC=40"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4397
REC=24"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4398
REC=45"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4399
REC=24"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4400
REC=47"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4401
REC=46"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4402
REC=39"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4403
REC=19"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4404
REC=32"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4405
REC=24"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4406
REC=48"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4407
REC=51"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4408
REC=46"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4409
REC=33"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4410
REC=47"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4411
REC=29"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4412
REC=48"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4413
REC=25"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4414
REC=18"

AutoCAD SHX Text_4415
SANDY SILT (ML); hard; brown; moist; with fine sand, trace fine gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4416
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; few subrounded COBBLES; mostly fine to coarse subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-3.5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4417
fine to coarse-grained; very dense; with fine to medium gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4418
SILTY SAND (SM); fine to medium-grained; dense; brown; moist; trace fine gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4419
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP); very dense; gray; wet; little subrounded COBBLES; little fine to coarse subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-6 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4420
mostly subrounded COBBLES; 3-7 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4421
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; little subrounded COBBLES; mostly fine to coarse subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-6 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4422
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; some subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-4 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4423
CLAYEY SAND (SC); fine to medium-grained; olive brown; moist; low plasticity

AutoCAD SHX Text_4424
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; some subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-8 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4425
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP); very dense; gray; wet; some subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4426
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; little subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-6 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4427
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL (GP); very dense; gray; wet; mostly subrounded COBBLES; little subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-8 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4428
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; little subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4429
SILTY SAND (SM); fine to coarse-grained; brown; moist; trace fine gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4430
POORLY GRADED GRAVEL with SAND (GP); fine to coarse-grained; very dense; gray; wet; little subrounded COBBLES; some subangular to subrounded GRAVEL; 3-4.5 inch Cobbles

AutoCAD SHX Text_4431
SILTY GRAVEL (GM); very dense; brown; moist; mostly subangular to subrounded GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4432
SILTY SAND (SM); fine to medium-grained; very dense; brown; moist; with fine gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4433
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4434
Exp.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4435
David L. Pearson

AutoCAD SHX Text_4436
12/31/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4437
674

AutoCAD SHX Text_4438
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4439
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4440
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4441
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4442
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4443
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4444
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4445
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4446
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4447
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4448
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4449
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4450
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4451
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4452
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4453
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4454
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4455
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4456
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4457
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4458
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4459
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4460
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4461
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4462
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4463
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4464
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4465
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4466
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4467
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4468
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4469
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4470
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4471
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4472
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4473
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4474
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4475
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4476
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4477
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4478
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4479
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4480
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4481
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4482
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4483
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4484
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4485
GEOTECHNICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4486
NOTES: 1.  1.5-INCH DIAMETER SAMPLES WERE TAKEN USING A STANDARD 1.5-INCH DIAMETER SAMPLES WERE TAKEN USING A STANDARD PENETRATION TEST (SPT) SPLIT BARREL SAMPLER WITH AN INSIDE DIAMETER (ID) OF 1.5 INCHES AND AN OUTSIDE DIAMETER (OD) OF 2.0 INCHES. 2.  2.5-INCH DIAMETER RING SAMPLES WERE TAKEN USING A 2.5-INCH DIAMETER RING SAMPLES WERE TAKEN USING A CALIFORNIA SPLIT BARREL SAMPLER WITH AN ID OF 2.5 INCHES SPLIT BARREL SAMPLER WITH AN ID OF 2.5 INCHES AND AN OD OF 3.0 INCHES.  3.  ALL DRIVE SAMPLES WERE DRIVEN WITH 140 LB HAMMER WITH A ALL DRIVE SAMPLES WERE DRIVEN WITH 140 LB HAMMER WITH A FALLING HEIGHT OF 30 INCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4487
SCALE: 1"=10' HORIZONTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4488
SCALE: 1"=10'  VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4489
SCALE: 1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_4490
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4491
4



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES

TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET

NO.

TOTAL

SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE

INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETS

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK

 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044
www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300

Riverside, CA 92501

PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - SOIL LEGEND 1

31

31

AutoCAD SHX Text_4492
UU

AutoCAD SHX Text_4493
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_4494
UW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4495
i

AutoCAD SHX Text_4496
ROTARY BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4497
Description of material

AutoCAD SHX Text_4498
Hole I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4499
Field & Lab Tests

AutoCAD SHX Text_4500
Material change

AutoCAD SHX Text_4501
Estimated material change

AutoCAD SHX Text_4502
Soil/Rock boundary

AutoCAD SHX Text_4503
SPT N-Value (per ASTM 1586-99), P = push sample, or as noted 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4504
Casing driven

AutoCAD SHX Text_4505
Top Hole El.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4506
Location 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4507
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4508
1.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4509
Date measured

AutoCAD SHX Text_4510
Elev.       

AutoCAD SHX Text_4511
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4512
Boring Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_4513
Hammer Energy Ratio (ER ) =   %

AutoCAD SHX Text_4514
Top Hole El.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4515
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4516
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4517
500

AutoCAD SHX Text_4518
(S)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4519
(S)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4520
Date measured

AutoCAD SHX Text_4521
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4522
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4523
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4524
Elev. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4525
Location 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4526
Hole I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4527
Pulled Pipe

AutoCAD SHX Text_4528
Ground water

AutoCAD SHX Text_4529
surface

AutoCAD SHX Text_4530
materials

AutoCAD SHX Text_4531
Sample

AutoCAD SHX Text_4532
taken

AutoCAD SHX Text_4533
Description of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4534
Refusal

AutoCAD SHX Text_4535
Boring Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_4536
HAND BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4537
GWS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4538
NC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4539
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4540
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4541
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4542
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4543
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4544
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4545
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_4546
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_4547
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_4548
91

AutoCAD SHX Text_4549
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_4550
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_4551
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4552
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_4553
113

AutoCAD SHX Text_4554
154

AutoCAD SHX Text_4555
Location 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4556
Top Hole El.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4557
Elev.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4558
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_4559
180/

AutoCAD SHX Text_4560
0-

AutoCAD SHX Text_4561
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_4562
200

AutoCAD SHX Text_4563
Date measured

AutoCAD SHX Text_4564
Hole I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4565
DYNAMIC CONE PENETRATION BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4566
Pushed

AutoCAD SHX Text_4567
Test Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_4568
No count recorded 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4569
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4570
on tip element

AutoCAD SHX Text_4571
Hole I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4572
Location 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4573
Top Hole El.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4574
Test Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_4575
Friction Ratio (%)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4576
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_4577
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4578
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4579
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_4580
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_4581
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_4582
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_4583
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4584
Pressure measured along sleeve friction element (34.88 in area) divided by  pressure measured on tip element. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4585
Pressure measured

AutoCAD SHX Text_4586
(2.33 in  area)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4587
Terminated at Elev

AutoCAD SHX Text_4588
Terminated at Elev

AutoCAD SHX Text_4589
Size of Sampler  (inches) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4590
Weak

AutoCAD SHX Text_4591
Moderate

AutoCAD SHX Text_4592
Strong

AutoCAD SHX Text_4593
Criteria

AutoCAD SHX Text_4594
CEMENTATION OF SOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4595
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4596
Crumbles or breaks with handling or  little finger pressure. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4597
Crumbles or breaks with considerable  finger pressure. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4598
Will not crumble or break with finger  pressure. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4599
CONSISTENCY OF COHESIVE SOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4600
Very Soft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4601
Soft

AutoCAD SHX Text_4602
Medium Stiff

AutoCAD SHX Text_4603
Stiff

AutoCAD SHX Text_4604
Very Stiff

AutoCAD SHX Text_4605
Hard

AutoCAD SHX Text_4606
1 - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4607
2 - 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4608
0.12 - 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4609
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4610
Terminated at Elev

AutoCAD SHX Text_4611
Terminated at Elev

AutoCAD SHX Text_4612
Dynamic Cone Penetration Boring

AutoCAD SHX Text_4613
Note: Size in inches.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4614
Symbol

AutoCAD SHX Text_4615
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4616
A 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4617
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4618
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4619
Hole Type 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4620
BOREHOLE IDENTIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_4621
Size

AutoCAD SHX Text_4622
Size

AutoCAD SHX Text_4623
Size

AutoCAD SHX Text_4624
CPT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4625
HD  HA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4626
Hand driven (1-inch soil tube) Hand Auger 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4627
Rotary drilled diamond core 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4628
R 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4629
Other (note on LOTB) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4630
Auger Boring (hollow or solid stem  bucket) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4631
Size

AutoCAD SHX Text_4632
R  RW RC P 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4633
Rotary drilled boring (conventional) Rotary drilled with self-casing wire-line Rotary core with continuously-sampled, self-casing wire-line Rotary percussion boring (air)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4634
Less than 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4635
Less than 0.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4636
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4637
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4638
Shear Strength (tsf) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4639
0.12 - 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4640
Less than 0.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4641
Blows per 12 in. (Using 28 lb hand  hammer with a 12 in. drop or as noted) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4642
Driving rate in blows per 10cm interval using a Wildcat Dynamic Cone Penetrometer with a 35 pound hammer falling 15 inches and driving a 10 sq.cm. cone.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4643
Cone Penetration Test (ASTM D 5778)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4644
0.25 - 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4645
0.5 - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4646
1 - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4647
Greater than 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4648
0.25 - 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4649
0.5 - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4650
Greater than 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4651
0.25 - 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4652
0.5 - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4653
1 - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4654
Greater than 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4655
0.12 - 0.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_4656
Less than 0.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4657
0.25 - 0.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4658
0.5 - 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_4659
1 - 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4660
Greater than 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_4661
REFERENCE:  CALTRANS SOIL & ROCK LOGGING, CLASSIFICATION, AND PRESENTATION MANUAL (2010)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4662
CONE PENETRATION TEST (CPT) BORING

AutoCAD SHX Text_4663
Pocket Penetrometer Measurement, PP, (tsf) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4664
Torvane Measurement, TV, (tsf) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4665
Vane Shear Measurement, VS, (tsf) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4666
Tip Bearing (Tsf)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4667
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4668
Exp.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4669
David L. Pearson

AutoCAD SHX Text_4670
12/31/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4671
674

AutoCAD SHX Text_4672
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4673
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4674
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4675
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4676
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4677
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4678
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4679
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4680
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4681
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4682
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4683
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4684
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4685
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4686
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4687
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4688
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4689
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4690
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4691
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4692
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4693
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4694
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4695
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4696
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4697
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4698
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4699
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4700
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4701
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4702
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4703
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4704
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4705
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4706
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4707
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4708
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4709
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4710
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4711
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4712
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4713
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4714
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4715
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4716
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4717
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4718
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4719
GEOTECHNICAL



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES

TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET

NO.

TOTAL

SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE

INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETS

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK

 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044
www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300

Riverside, CA 92501

PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - SOIL LEGEND 2

32

32

AutoCAD SHX Text_4720
ORGANIC SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4721
ORGANIC SOIL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4722
ORGANIC SOIL with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4723
SANDY ORGANIC SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4724
SANDY ORGANIC SOIL with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4725
GRAVELLY ORGANIC SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4726
GRAVELLY ORGANIC SOIL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4727
SILTY CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4728
SILTY CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4729
SILTY CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4730
SANDY SILTY CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4731
SANDY SILTY CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4732
GRAVELLY SILTY CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4733
GRAVELLY SILTY CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4734
SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4735
SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4736
SANDY SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4737
SANDY SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4738
Group Names

AutoCAD SHX Text_4739
Group Names

AutoCAD SHX Text_4740
GROUP SYMBOLS AND NAMES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4741
GRAVELLY SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4742
GRAVELLY SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4743
SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4744
ORGANIC SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4745
ORGANIC SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4746
SANDY ORGANIC SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4747
SANDY ORGANIC SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4748
GRAVELLY ORGANIC SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4749
GRAVELLY ORGANIC SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4750
ORGANIC SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4751
COBBLES and BOULDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4752
BOULDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4753
SAND (or SILTY CLAY and SAND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4754
(or SILTY CLAY and SAND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4755
SILTY GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4756
CLAYEY GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4757
SILTY, CLAYEY GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4758
SILTY SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4759
CLAYEY SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4760
PEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4761
SILTY, CLAYEY SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4762
(or SILTY CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4763
(or SILTY CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4764
SILTY, CLAYEY SAND with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4765
CLAYEY SAND with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4766
SILTY SAND with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4767
GRAVEL (or SILTY CLAY and GRAVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4768
(or SILTY CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4769
(or SILTY CLAY and GRAVEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4770
COBBLES

AutoCAD SHX Text_4771
SILTY, CLAYEY GRAVEL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4772
CLAYEY GRAVEL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4773
SILTY GRAVEL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4774
(or SILTY CLAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4775
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4776
SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4777
GW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4778
GW-GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4779
PT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4780
SC-SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4781
GW-GC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4782
GP-GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4783
GP-GC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4784
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4785
GC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4786
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4787
GC-GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4788
SP-SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4789
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4790
SP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4791
SW-SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4792
SW-SC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4793
SP-SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4794
Graphic/Symbol

AutoCAD SHX Text_4795
OL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4796
OL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4797
CH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4798
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4799
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4800
OL/OH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4801
OH

AutoCAD SHX Text_4802
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4803
CL-ML

AutoCAD SHX Text_4804
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text_4805
Graphic/Symbol

AutoCAD SHX Text_4806
SANDY lean CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4807
SANDY lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4808
GRAVELLY lean CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4809
SANDY ORGANIC lean CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4810
GRAVELLY ORGANIC lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4811
GRAVELLY ORGANIC lean CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4812
GRAVELLY lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4813
ORGANIC lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4814
ORGANIC lean CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4815
ORGANIC lean CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4816
SANDY ORGANIC lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4817
SANDY ORGANIC fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4818
SANDY ORGANIC fat CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4819
GRAVELLY ORGANIC fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4820
GRAVELLY ORGANIC fat CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4821
SANDY fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4822
SANDY fat CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4823
GRAVELLY fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4824
GRAVELLY fat CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4825
ORGANIC fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4826
ORGANIC fat CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4827
ORGANIC fat CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4828
ORGANIC elastic SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4829
ORGANIC elastic SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4830
SANDY ORGANIC elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4831
SANDY ORGANIC elastic SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4832
GRAVELLY ORGANIC elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4833
GRAVELLY ORGANIC elastic SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4834
ORGANIC elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4835
SANDY elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4836
GRAVELLY elastic SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4837
SANDY elastic SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4838
GRAVELLY elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4839
Well-graded GRAVEL with CLAY and SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4840
Well-graded GRAVEL with SILT and SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4841
Well-graded GRAVEL with SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4842
Well-graded SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4843
Well-graded SAND with SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4844
Well-graded GRAVEL with CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4845
Well-graded GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4846
Well-graded SAND with SILT and GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4847
Well-graded SAND with CLAY and GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4848
Well-graded GRAVEL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4849
Well-graded SAND with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4850
Well-graded SAND with CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4851
Lean CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4852
Lean CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4853
Lean CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4854
Fat CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4855
Fat CLAY with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4856
Fat CLAY with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4857
Elastic SILT with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4858
Elastic SILT with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4859
Elastic SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4860
CP

AutoCAD SHX Text_4861
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_4862
UU

AutoCAD SHX Text_4863
CU

AutoCAD SHX Text_4864
CR

AutoCAD SHX Text_4865
EI

AutoCAD SHX Text_4866
PI

AutoCAD SHX Text_4867
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_4868
OC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4869
SE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4870
UW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4871
DS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4872
SG

AutoCAD SHX Text_4873
PL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4874
SL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4875
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4876
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4877
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text_4878
PA

AutoCAD SHX Text_4879
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4880
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text_4881
Pressure Meter

AutoCAD SHX Text_4882
FIELD AND LABORATORY TESTING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4883
Consolidation (ASTM D 2435)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4884
Collapse Potential (ASTM D 5333)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4885
Compaction Curve (CTM 216)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4886
Corrosivity Testing  (CTM 643, CTM 422, CTM 417) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4887
Consolidated Undrained  Triaxial (ASTM D 4767) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4888
Direct Shear (ASTM D 3080)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4889
Expansion Index (ASTM D 4829)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4890
Moisture Content (ASTM D 2216)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4891
Organic Content-% (ASTM D 2974) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4892
Permeability (CTM 220)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4893
Particle Size Analysis (ASTM D 422)  

AutoCAD SHX Text_4894
Plasticity Index (AASHTO T 90)  Liquid Limit (AASHTO T 89) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4895
Point Load Index (ASTM D 5731)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4896
R-Value (CTM 301)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4897
Sand Equivalent (CTM 217)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4898
Specific Gravity (AASHTO T 100)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4899
Shrinkage Limit (ASTM D 427)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4900
Swell Potential (ASTM D 4546)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4901
Unconsolidated Undrained  Triaxial (ASTM D 2850) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4902
Unit Weight (ASTM D 4767)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4903
UC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4904
Unconfined Compression-Soil (ASTM D 2166) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4905
Unconfined Compression-Rock (ASTM D 2938) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4906
PERCENT OR PROPORTION OF SOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4907
Criteria

AutoCAD SHX Text_4908
5% - 10%

AutoCAD SHX Text_4909
15% - 25%

AutoCAD SHX Text_4910
30% - 45%

AutoCAD SHX Text_4911
50% - 100%

AutoCAD SHX Text_4912
Trace

AutoCAD SHX Text_4913
Few

AutoCAD SHX Text_4914
Little

AutoCAD SHX Text_4915
Some

AutoCAD SHX Text_4916
Mostly

AutoCAD SHX Text_4917
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4918
Particles are present but estimated to  be less than 5% 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4919
APPARENT DENSITY OF COHESIONLESS SOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text_4920
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4921
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_4922
MOISTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4923
Criteria

AutoCAD SHX Text_4924
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4925
Dry

AutoCAD SHX Text_4926
Moist

AutoCAD SHX Text_4927
Wet

AutoCAD SHX Text_4928
No discernable moisture 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4929
Moisture present, but no free water

AutoCAD SHX Text_4930
Visible free water 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4931
PARTICLE SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text_4932
Boulder

AutoCAD SHX Text_4933
Cobble

AutoCAD SHX Text_4934
Gravel

AutoCAD SHX Text_4935
Sand

AutoCAD SHX Text_4936
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_4937
Coarse

AutoCAD SHX Text_4938
Fine

AutoCAD SHX Text_4939
Coarse

AutoCAD SHX Text_4940
Medium

AutoCAD SHX Text_4941
Fine

AutoCAD SHX Text_4942
Size (in.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4943
Greater than 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4944
3 - 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_4945
3/4 - 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_4946
1/16 - 1/5

AutoCAD SHX Text_4947
1/64 - 1/16

AutoCAD SHX Text_4948
1/300 - 1/64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4949
SPT N   (Blows / 12 in.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4950
Silt and Clay

AutoCAD SHX Text_4951
1/300 - 1/64

AutoCAD SHX Text_4952
Less than 1/300

AutoCAD SHX Text_4953
1/5 - 3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text_4954
REFERENCE:  CALTRANS SOIL & ROCK LOGGING, CLASSIFICATION, AND PRESENTATION MANUAL (2010)

AutoCAD SHX Text_4955
5 10 30 50 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4956
0 5 10 30 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4957
- - - - 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4958
Greater than 50

AutoCAD SHX Text_4959
Very Loose Loose Medium Dense Dense Very Dense 

AutoCAD SHX Text_4960
Poorly-graded GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4961
Poorly-graded GRAVEL with SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4962
Poorly-graded GRAVEL with SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4963
Poorly-graded GRAVEL with SILT and SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4964
Poorly-graded GRAVEL with CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4965
Poorly-graded GRAVEL with CLAY and

AutoCAD SHX Text_4966
Poorly-graded SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_4967
Poorly-graded SAND with GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4968
Poorly-graded SAND with SILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4969
Poorly-graded SAND with SILT and GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text_4970
Poorly-graded SAND with CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4971
Poorly-graded SAND with CLAY and

AutoCAD SHX Text_4972
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4973
Exp.

AutoCAD SHX Text_4974
David L. Pearson

AutoCAD SHX Text_4975
12/31/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_4976
674

AutoCAD SHX Text_4977
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4978
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4979
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_4980
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4981
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4982
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_4983
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4984
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4985
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4986
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_4987
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_4988
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_4989
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4990
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_4991
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_4992
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4993
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_4994
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_4995
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_4996
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_4997
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_4998
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_4999
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5000
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5001
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_5002
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5003
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5004
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5005
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5006
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5007
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_5008
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_5009
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5010
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_5011
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5012
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5013
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5014
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_5015
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5016
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_5017
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5018
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5019
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5020
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5021
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5022
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5023
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5024
GEOTECHNICAL



9

DIST.

INY

COUNTY ROUTE

N/A N/A 33

POST MILES

TOTAL

PROJECT

SHEET

NO.

TOTAL

SHEETS

REV DESCRIPTION

DATE

CHECKED

DRAWN

BY DATE

0F

RECOMMENDED

D. FAHRNEY 10/2018PREPARED FOR THE

INYO COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

A. AhTye 10/2018

S. PLAUSON 10/2018

DATE

DATE 33

SHEET

SHEETS

C.R. XXXA, M.P. 0.00FED PROJ NO.: XXX(YYY)

PLANS APPROVAL DATE

REGISTERED ENGINEER - GEOTECHNICAL

BRIDGE REPLACEMENT

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE

ON PINE CREEK

 BRIDGE NO. 48C0044
www.kleinfelder.com

2280 Market Street, Suite 300

Riverside, CA 92501

PH. 951.801.3681  FAX. 951.682.0192

LOG OF TEST BORING - ROCK LEGEND 

33

33

AutoCAD SHX Text_5025
IGNEOUS ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5026
LEGEND OF ROCK MATERIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5027
SEDIMENTARY ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5028
METAMORPHIC ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5029
WEATHERING DESCRIPTORS FOR INTACT ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_5030
Body of Rock

AutoCAD SHX Text_5031
Texture

AutoCAD SHX Text_5032
Decomposed

AutoCAD SHX Text_5033
Fresh

AutoCAD SHX Text_5034
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_5035
Resembles a soil, partial or complete remnant rock structure may be preserved; leaching of soluble minerals usually complete. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5036
Complete separation of grain boundaries (disaggregated). 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5037
Soluble min- erals may be mostly leached. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5038
Partial separation of boundaries visible. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5039
Texture altered by chemical disintegra- tion (hy- dration, argillation). 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5040
Leaching of  soluble min- erals may be complete. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5041
No visible separation, intact (tight). 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5042
No separation, intact (tight). 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5043
No discoloration or oxidation. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5044
No discoloration, not  oxidized. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5045
Discoloration or oxida- tion is limited to sur- face of, or short dis- tance from, fractures; some feldspar crystals are dull. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5046
Discoloration or oxida- tion extends from frac- tures usually through- out; Fe-Mg minerals are "rusty," feldspar  crystals are "cloudy." 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5047
Discolored or oxidized throughout, but resis- tant minerals such as quartz may be unaltered; all feldspars and Fe-Mg minerals are completely altered to clay. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5048
Fracture  Surfaces 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5049
General Characteristics 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5050
Hammer rings when crystalline  rocks are struck.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5051
Hammer rings when crystalline  rocks are struck. Body of  rock not weakened.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5052
Hammer does not ring when  rock is struck. Body of rock  is slightly weakened.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5053
Dull sound when struck with  hammer, usually can be broken  with moderate to heavy manual  pressure or by light hammer  blow without reference to  planes of weakness such as  incipient or hairline frac- tures, or veinlets. Rock is  significantly weakened. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5054
Can be granulated by hand. Resistant minerals such as  quartz may be present as  "stringers" or "dikes." 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5055
Slightly Weathered 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5056
Moderately Weathered 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5057
Intensely Weathered 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5058
Minor to complete  discoloration or  oxidation of most  surfaces. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5059
All fracture surfaces  are discolored or oxidized. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5060
All fracture surfaces  are discolored or  oxidized, surfaces  friable. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5061
Partial separation, rock  is friable; in semiarid  conditions granitics are disaggregated. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5062
Discoloration or oxi- dation throughout; all feldspars and Fe-Mg minerals are altered to clay to some extent;  or chemical alteration  produces in-situ dis- aggregation, see grain  boundary conditions. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5063
FRACTURE DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5064
Observed Fracture Density

AutoCAD SHX Text_5065
Unfractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5066
No fractures.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5067
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_5068
PERCENT CORE RECOVERY (REC) & ROCK QUALITY DESIGNATION (RQD)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5069
x 100%

AutoCAD SHX Text_5070
REC =

AutoCAD SHX Text_5071
RQD =

AutoCAD SHX Text_5072
x 100%

AutoCAD SHX Text_5073
>

AutoCAD SHX Text_5074
Top Hole El.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5075
Boring  location 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5076
Hole I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5077
REC=100% RQD=50% 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5078
REC=100% RQD=80% 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5079
REC=88% RQD=0% 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5080
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_5081
Thickness / Spacing

AutoCAD SHX Text_5082
Massive

AutoCAD SHX Text_5083
Greater than 10 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5084
Laminated  

AutoCAD SHX Text_5085
BEDDING SPACING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5086
Less than 1/4 in.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5087
ROCK HARDNESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_5088
Criteria

AutoCAD SHX Text_5089
Very Soft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5090
Soft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5091
Hard

AutoCAD SHX Text_5092
Very Hard

AutoCAD SHX Text_5093
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text_5094
Extremely Hard 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5095
Moderately Soft 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5096
Moderately Hard 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5097
Texture and Leaching

AutoCAD SHX Text_5098
Leaching

AutoCAD SHX Text_5099
No leaching

AutoCAD SHX Text_5100
No change

AutoCAD SHX Text_5101
Preserved

AutoCAD SHX Text_5102
Generally preserved 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5103
3 ft - 10 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5104
1 ft - 3 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5105
4 in. - 1 ft

AutoCAD SHX Text_5106
1 in. - 4 in.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5107
1/4 in. - 1 in.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5108
Length of the recovered core pieces (in.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5109
Total length of core run (in.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5110
Length of intact core pieces   4 in.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5111
Total length of core run (in.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5112
REFERENCE:  CALTRANS SOIL & ROCK LOGGING, CLASSIFICATION, AND PRESENTATION MANUAL (2010)

AutoCAD SHX Text_5113
Cannot be scratched with a pocketknife or sharp pick. Can only be chipped  with repeated heavy hammer blows. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5114
Cannot be scratched with a pocketknife or sharp pick. Breaks with repeated  heavy hammer blows. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5115
Can be scratched with a pocketknife or sharp pick with difficulty (heavy pressure). Breaks with heavy hammer blows. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5116
Can be scratched with pocketknife or sharp pick with light or moderate  pressure. Breaks with moderate hammer blows. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5117
Can be grooved 1/16 in. deep with a pocketknife or sharp pick with moderate  or heavy pressure. Breaks with light hammer blow or heavy manual pressure. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5118
Can be grooved or gouged easily by a pocketknife or sharp pick with light pressure, can be scratched with fingernail. Breaks with light to moderate manual pressure.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5119
Can be readily indented, grooved or gouged with fingernail, or carved with a  pocketknife. Breaks with light manual pressure. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5120
Core lengths greater than 3 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5121
Core lengths mostly from 1 to 3 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5122
Core lengths mostly from 4 in. to 1 ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5123
Core lengths mostly from 1 to 4 in.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5124
Mostly chips and fragments.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5125
Minor leaching of some solu- ble minerals. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5126
Mechanical Weathering- Grain Boundary Condi- tions (Disaggregation) Primarily for Granitics and Some Coarse-Grained Sediments 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5127
Diagnostic Features

AutoCAD SHX Text_5128
Chemical Weathering-Discoloration and/or Oxidation 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5129
Very Slightly Fractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5130
Slightly Fractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5131
Moderately Fractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5132
Intensely Fractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5133
Very Intensely Fractured

AutoCAD SHX Text_5134
Very Thickly Bedded

AutoCAD SHX Text_5135
Thickly Bedded

AutoCAD SHX Text_5136
Moderately Bedded

AutoCAD SHX Text_5137
Thinly Bedded

AutoCAD SHX Text_5138
Very Thinly Bedded

AutoCAD SHX Text_5139
Begin/End drilled interval (typ) 

AutoCAD SHX Text_5140
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5141
Exp.

AutoCAD SHX Text_5142
David L. Pearson

AutoCAD SHX Text_5143
12/31/19

AutoCAD SHX Text_5144
674

AutoCAD SHX Text_5145
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5146
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5147
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_5148
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5149
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_5150
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_5151
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5152
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5153
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5154
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_5155
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_5156
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5157
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5158
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5159
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5160
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_5161
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_5162
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5163
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5164
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5165
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5166
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_5167
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5168
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5169
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_5170
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5171
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5172
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5173
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5174
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5175
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_5176
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_5177
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5178
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_5179
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5180
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5181
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5182
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_5183
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5184
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_5185
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5186
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_5187
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_5188
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_5189
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_5190
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_5191
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_5192
GEOTECHNICAL



Enclosure 1: NATIONWIDE PERMIT NUMBER(S) NWP 14 Linear Transportation Projects  
  
1. Nationwide Permit(s) NWP 14 Linear Transportation Projects Terms: 
 
14. Linear Transportation Projects. Activities required for crossings of waters of the United States associated 
with the construction, expansion, modification, or improvement of linear transportation projects (e.g., roads, 
highways, railways, trails, airport runways, and taxiways) in waters of the United States. For linear 
transportation projects in non-tidal waters, the discharge cannot cause the loss of greater than 1/2-acre of waters 
of the United States. For linear transportation projects in tidal waters, the discharge cannot cause the loss of 
greater than 1/3-acre of waters of the United States. Any stream channel modification, including bank 
stabilization, is limited to the minimum necessary to construct or protect the linear transportation project; such 
modifications must be in the immediate vicinity of the project.  This NWP also authorizes temporary structures, 
fills, and work, including the use of temporary mats, necessary to construct the linear transportation project. 
Appropriate measures must be taken to maintain normal downstream flows and minimize flooding to the 
maximum extent practicable, when temporary structures, work, and discharges, including cofferdams, are 
necessary for construction activities, access fills, or dewatering of construction sites. Temporary fills must 
consist of materials, and be placed in a manner, that will not be eroded by expected high flows. Temporary fills 
must be removed in their entirety and the affected areas returned to pre-construction elevations. The areas 
affected by temporary fills must be revegetated, as appropriate.  This NWP cannot be used to authorize non-
linear features commonly associated with transportation projects, such as vehicle maintenance or storage 
buildings, parking lots, train stations, or aircraft hangars.   Notification: The permittee must submit a pre-
construction notification to the district engineer prior to commencing the activity if: (1) the loss of waters of the 
United States exceeds 1/10-acre; or (2) there is a discharge in a special aquatic site, including wetlands. (See 
general condition 32.) (Authorities: Sections 10 and 404)  Note 1:  For linear transportation projects crossing a 
single waterbody more than one time at separate and distant locations, or multiple waterbodies at separate and 
distant locations, each crossing is considered a single and complete project for purposes of NWP authorization. 
Linear transportation projects must comply with 33 CFR 330.6(d).  Note 2: Some discharges for the 
construction of farm roads or forest roads, or temporary roads for moving mining equipment, may qualify for an 
exemption under section 404(f) of the Clean Water Act (see 33 CFR 323.4).  Note 3: For NWP 14 activities that 
require pre-construction notification, the PCN must include any other NWP(s), regional general permit(s), or 
individual permit(s) used or intended to be used to authorize any part of the proposed project or any related 
activity, including other separate and distant crossings that require Department of the Army authorization but do 
not require pre-construction notification (see paragraph (b) of general condition 32). The district engineer will 
evaluate the PCN in accordance with Section D, Â¿District EngineerÂ¿s Decision.Â¿ The district engineer may 
require mitigation to ensure that the authorized activity results in no more than minimal individual and 
cumulative adverse environmental effects (see general condition 23). 
 
2.  General Conditions: The following general conditions must be followed in order for any authorization by 
an NWP to be valid: 
  

1. Navigation. (a) No activity may cause more than a minimal adverse effect on navigation. 
 
(b) Any safety lights and signals prescribed by the U.S. Coast Guard, through regulations or otherwise, 

must be installed and maintained at the permittee's expense on authorized facilities in navigable waters of the 
United States. 

 



(c) The permittee understands and agrees that, if future operations by the United States require the 
removal, relocation, or other alteration, of the structure or work herein authorized, or if, in the opinion of the 
Secretary of the Army or his authorized representative, said structure or work shall cause unreasonable 
obstruction to the free navigation of the navigable waters, the permittee will be required, upon due notice from 
the Corps of Engineers, to remove, relocate, or alter the structural work or obstructions caused thereby, without 
expense to the United States. No claim shall be made against the United States on account of any such removal 
or alteration. 

 
2. Aquatic Life Movements. No activity may substantially disrupt the necessary life cycle movements of 

those species of aquatic life indigenous to the waterbody, including those species that normally migrate through 
the area, unless the activity's primary purpose is to impound water.  All permanent and temporary crossings of 
waterbodies shall be suitably culverted, bridged, or otherwise designed and constructed to maintain low flows to 
sustain the movement of those aquatic species.  If a bottomless culvert cannot be used, then the crossing should 
be designed and constructed to minimize adverse effects to aquatic life movements.    

 
3. Spawning Areas. Activities in spawning areas during spawning seasons must be avoided to the 

maximum extent practicable. Activities that result in the physical destruction (e.g., through excavation, fill, or 
downstream smothering by substantial turbidity) of an important spawning area are not authorized. 

 
4. Migratory Bird Breeding Areas. Activities in waters of the United States that serve as breeding areas 

for migratory birds must be avoided to the maximum extent practicable. 
 
5. Shellfish Beds. No activity may occur in areas of concentrated shellfish populations, unless the 

activity is directly related to a shellfish harvesting activity authorized by NWPs 4 and 48, or is a shellfish 
seeding or habitat restoration activity authorized by NWP 27. 

 
6. Suitable Material. No activity may use unsuitable material (e.g., trash, debris, car bodies, asphalt, 

etc.). Material used for construction or discharged must be free from toxic pollutants in toxic amounts (see 
section 307 of the Clean Water Act). 

 
7. Water Supply Intakes. No activity may occur in the proximity of a public water supply intake, except 

where the activity is for the repair or improvement of public water supply intake structures or adjacent bank 
stabilization. 

 
8. Adverse Effects From Impoundments. If the activity creates an impoundment of water, adverse 

effects to the aquatic system due to accelerating the passage of water, and/or restricting its flow must be 
minimized to the maximum extent practicable. 

 
9. Management of Water Flows. To the maximum extent practicable, the pre-construction course, 

condition, capacity, and location of open waters must be maintained for each activity, including stream 
channelization, storm water management activities, and temporary and permanent road crossings, except as 
provided below. The activity must be constructed to withstand expected high flows. The activity must not 
restrict or impede the passage of normal or high flows, unless the primary purpose of the activity is to impound 
water or manage high flows. The activity may alter the pre-construction course, condition, capacity, and 
location of open waters if it benefits the aquatic environment (e.g., stream restoration or relocation activities). 

 



10. Fills Within 100-Year Floodplains. The activity must comply with applicable FEMA-approved state 
or local floodplain management requirements. 

 
11. Equipment. Heavy equipment working in wetlands or mudflats must be placed on mats, or other 

measures must be taken to minimize soil disturbance. 
 
12. Soil Erosion and Sediment Controls. Appropriate soil erosion and sediment controls must be used 

and maintained in effective operating condition during construction, and all exposed soil and other fills, as well 
as any work below the ordinary high water mark or high tide line, must be permanently stabilized at the earliest 
practicable date. Permittees are encouraged to perform work within waters of the United States during periods 
of low-flow or no-flow, or during low tides. 

 
13. Removal of Temporary Fills. Temporary fills must be removed in their entirety and the affected 

areas returned to pre-construction elevations. The affected areas must be revegetated, as appropriate. 
 
14. Proper Maintenance. Any authorized structure or fill shall be properly maintained, including 

maintenance to ensure public safety and compliance with applicable NWP general conditions, as well as any 
activity-specific conditions added by the district engineer to an NWP authorization. 

 
15. Single and Complete Project. The activity must be a single and complete project. The same NWP 

cannot be used more than once for the same single and complete project.   

16. Wild and Scenic Rivers.  (a) No NWP activity may occur in a component of the National Wild and 
Scenic River System, or in a river officially designated by Congress as a “study river” for possible inclusion in 
the system while the river is in an official study status, unless the appropriate Federal agency with direct 
management responsibility for such river, has determined in writing that the proposed activity will not adversely 
affect the Wild and Scenic River designation or study status.  

 
(b) If a proposed NWP activity will occur in a component of the National Wild and Scenic River 

System, or in a river officially designated by Congress as a “study river” for possible inclusion in the system 
while the river is in an official study status, the permittee must submit a pre-construction notification (see 
general condition 32). The district engineer will coordinate the PCN with the Federal agency with direct 
management responsibility for that river.  The permittee shall not begin the NWP activity until notified by the 
district engineer that the Federal agency with direct management responsibility for that river has determined in 
writing that the proposed NWP activity will not adversely affect the Wild and Scenic River designation or study 
status.  

 
(c) Information on Wild and Scenic Rivers may be obtained from the appropriate Federal land 

management agency responsible for the designated Wild and Scenic River or study river (e.g., National Park 
Service, U.S. Forest Service, Bureau of Land Management, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service). Information on 
these rivers is also available at: http://www.rivers.gov/. 

 
17. Tribal Rights. No NWP activity may cause more than minimal adverse effects on tribal rights 

(including treaty rights), protected tribal resources, or tribal lands.   
 
18. Endangered Species. (a) No activity is authorized under any NWP which is likely to directly or 

indirectly jeopardize the continued existence of a threatened or endangered species or a species proposed for 



such designation, as identified under the Federal Endangered Species Act (ESA), or which will directly or 
indirectly destroy or adversely modify the critical habitat of such species. No activity is authorized under any 
NWP which “may affect” a listed species or critical habitat, unless ESA section 7 consultation addressing the 
effects of the proposed activity has been completed. Direct effects are the immediate effects on listed species 
and critical habitat caused by the NWP activity. Indirect effects are those effects on listed species and critical 
habitat that are caused by the NWP activity and are later in time, but still are reasonably certain to occur. 

 
(b) Federal agencies should follow their own procedures for complying with the requirements of the 

ESA. If pre-construction notification is required for the proposed activity, the Federal permittee must provide 
the district engineer with the appropriate documentation to demonstrate compliance with those requirements. 
The district engineer will verify that the appropriate documentation has been submitted. If the appropriate 
documentation has not been submitted, additional ESA section 7 consultation may be necessary for the activity 
and the respective federal agency would be responsible for fulfilling its obligation under section 7 of the ESA. 

 
(c) Non-federal permittees must submit a pre-construction notification to the district engineer if any 

listed species or designated critical habitat might be affected or is in the vicinity of the activity, or if the activity 
is located in designated critical habitat, and shall not begin work on the activity until notified by the district 
engineer that the requirements of the ESA have been satisfied and that the activity is authorized. For activities 
that might affect Federally-listed endangered or threatened species or designated critical habitat, the pre-
construction notification must include the name(s) of the endangered or threatened species that might be 
affected by the proposed activity or that utilize the designated critical habitat that might be affected by the 
proposed activity. The district engineer will determine whether the proposed activity “may affect” or will have 
“no effect” to listed species and designated critical habitat and will notify the non-Federal applicant of the 
Corps’ determination within 45 days of receipt of a complete pre-construction notification. In cases where the 
non-Federal applicant has identified listed species or critical habitat that might be affected or is in the vicinity of 
the activity, and has so notified the Corps, the applicant shall not begin work until the Corps has provided 
notification that the proposed activity will have “no effect” on listed species or critical habitat, or until ESA 
section 7 consultation has been completed. If the non-Federal applicant has not heard back from the Corps 
within 45 days, the applicant must still wait for notification from the Corps. 

 
(d) As a result of formal or informal consultation with the FWS or NMFS the district engineer may add 

species-specific permit conditions to the NWPs. 
 
(e) Authorization of an activity by an NWP does not authorize the “take” of a threatened or endangered 

species as defined under the ESA. In the absence of separate authorization (e.g., an ESA Section 10 Permit, a 
Biological Opinion with “incidental take” provisions, etc.) from the FWS or the NMFS, the Endangered Species 
Act prohibits any person subject to the jurisdiction of the United States to take a listed species, where "take" 
means to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture, or collect, or to attempt to engage in any 
such conduct. The word “harm” in the definition of “take'' means an act which actually kills or injures wildlife. 
Such an act may include significant habitat modification or degradation where it actually kills or injures wildlife 
by significantly impairing essential behavioral patterns, including breeding, feeding or sheltering. 

 
(f) If the non-federal permittee has a valid ESA section 10(a)(1)(B) incidental take permit with an 

approved Habitat Conservation Plan for a project or a group of projects that includes the proposed NWP 
activity, the non-federal applicant should provide a copy of that ESA section 10(a)(1)(B) permit with the PCN 
required by paragraph (c) of this general condition.  The district engineer will coordinate with the agency that 



issued the ESA section 10(a)(1)(B) permit to determine whether the proposed NWP activity and the associated 
incidental take were considered in the internal ESA section 7 consultation conducted for the ESA section 
10(a)(1)(B) permit.  If that coordination results in concurrence from the agency that the proposed NWP activity 
and the associated incidental take were considered in the internal ESA section 7 consultation for the ESA 
section 10(a)(1)(B) permit, the district engineer does not need to conduct a separate ESA section 7 consultation 
for the proposed NWP activity.  The district engineer will notify the non-federal applicant within 45 days of 
receipt of a complete pre-construction notification whether the ESA section 10(a)(1)(B) permit covers the 
proposed NWP activity or whether additional ESA section 7 consultation is required.  

 
(g) Information on the location of threatened and endangered species and their critical habitat can be 

obtained directly from the offices of the FWS and NMFS or their world wide web pages at http://www.fws.gov/ 
or http://www.fws.gov/ipac and http://www.nmfs.noaa.gov/pr/species/esa/ respectively. 

 
19. Migratory Birds and Bald and Golden Eagles. The permittee is responsible for ensuring their action 

complies with the Migratory Bird Treaty Act and the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act. The permittee is 
responsible for contacting appropriate local office of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service to determine applicable 
measures to reduce impacts to migratory birds or eagles, including whether “incidental take” permits are 
necessary and available under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act or Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act for a 
particular activity. 

 
20. Historic Properties. (a) In cases where the district engineer determines that the activity may have the 

potential to cause effects to properties listed, or eligible for listing, in the National Register of Historic Places, 
the activity is not authorized, until the requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act 
(NHPA) have been satisfied. 

 
(b) Federal permittees should follow their own procedures for complying with the requirements of 

section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. If pre-construction notification is required for the 
proposed NWP activity, the Federal permittee must provide the district engineer with the appropriate 
documentation to demonstrate compliance with those requirements. The district engineer will verify that the 
appropriate documentation has been submitted.  If the appropriate documentation is not submitted, then 
additional consultation under section 106 may be necessary. The respective federal agency is responsible for 
fulfilling its obligation to comply with section 106. 

 
(c) Non-federal permittees must submit a pre-construction notification to the district engineer if the 

NWP activity might have the potential to cause effects to any historic properties listed on, determined to be 
eligible for listing on, or potentially eligible for listing on the National Register of Historic Places, including 
previously unidentified properties.  For such activities, the pre-construction notification must state which 
historic properties might have the potential to be affected by the proposed NWP activity or include a vicinity 
map indicating the location of the historic properties or the potential for the presence of historic properties. 
Assistance regarding information on the location of, or potential for, the presence of historic properties can be 
sought from the State Historic Preservation Officer, Tribal Historic Preservation Officer, or designated tribal 
representative, as appropriate, and the National Register of Historic Places (see 33 CFR 330.4(g)). When 
reviewing pre-construction notifications, district engineers will comply with the current procedures for 
addressing the requirements of section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The district engineer shall 
make a reasonable and good faith effort to carry out appropriate identification efforts, which may include 
background research, consultation, oral history interviews, sample field investigation, and field survey.  Based 



on the information submitted in the PCN and these identification efforts, the district engineer shall determine 
whether the proposed NWP activity has the potential to cause effects on the historic properties. Section 106 
consultation is not required when the district engineer determines that the activity does not have the potential to 
cause effects on historic properties (see 36 CFR 800.3(a)).  Section 106 consultation is required when the 
district engineer determines that the activity has the potential to cause effects on historic properties.  The district 
engineer will conduct consultation with consulting parties identified under 36 CFR 800.2(c) when he or she 
makes any of the following effect determinations for the purposes of section 106 of the NHPA: no historic 
properties affected, no adverse effect, or adverse effect.  Where the non-Federal applicant has identified historic 
properties on which the activity might have the potential to cause effects and so notified the Corps, the non-
Federal applicant shall not begin the activity until notified by the district engineer either that the activity has no 
potential to cause effects to historic properties or that NHPA section 106 consultation has been completed.   

 
(d)  For non-federal permittees, the district engineer will notify the prospective permittee within 45 days 

of receipt of a complete pre-construction notification whether NHPA section 106 consultation is required.  If 
NHPA section 106 consultation is required, the district engineer will notify the non-Federal applicant that he or 
she cannot begin the activity until section 106 consultation is completed. If the non-Federal applicant has not 
heard back from the Corps within 45 days, the applicant must still wait for notification from the Corps. 

 
(e)  Prospective permittees should be aware that section 110k of the NHPA (54 U.S.C. 306113) prevents 

the Corps from granting a permit or other assistance to an applicant who, with intent to avoid the requirements 
of section 106 of the NHPA, has intentionally significantly adversely affected a historic property to which the 
permit would relate, or having legal power to prevent it, allowed such significant adverse effect to occur, unless 
the Corps, after consultation with the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP), determines that 
circumstances justify granting such assistance despite the adverse effect created or permitted by the applicant.  
If circumstances justify granting the assistance, the Corps is required to notify the ACHP and provide 
documentation specifying the circumstances, the degree of damage to the integrity of any historic properties 
affected, and proposed mitigation.  This documentation must include any views obtained from the applicant, 
SHPO/THPO, appropriate Indian tribes if the undertaking occurs on or affects historic properties on tribal lands 
or affects properties of interest to those tribes, and other parties known to have a legitimate interest in the 
impacts to the permitted activity on historic properties. 

 
21.  Discovery of Previously Unknown Remains and Artifacts.  If you discover any previously unknown 

historic, cultural or archeological remains and artifacts while accomplishing the activity authorized by this 
permit, you must immediately notify the district engineer of what you have found, and to the maximum extent 
practicable, avoid construction activities that may affect the remains and artifacts until the required coordination 
has been completed. The district engineer will initiate the Federal, Tribal, and state coordination required to 
determine if the items or remains warrant a recovery effort or if the site is eligible for listing in the National 
Register of Historic Places. 

 
22. Designated Critical Resource Waters. Critical resource waters include, NOAA-managed marine 

sanctuaries and marine monuments, and National Estuarine Research Reserves. The district engineer may 
designate, after notice and opportunity for public comment, additional waters officially designated by a state as 
having particular environmental or ecological significance, such as outstanding national resource waters or state 
natural heritage sites. The district engineer may also designate additional critical resource waters after notice 
and opportunity for public comment.  

 



(a) Discharges of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States are not authorized by NWPs 7, 
12, 14, 16, 17, 21, 29, 31, 35, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 49, 50, 51, and 52 for any activity within, or directly affecting, 
critical resource waters, including wetlands adjacent to such waters. 

 
(b) For NWPs 3, 8, 10, 13, 15, 18, 19, 22, 23, 25, 27, 28, 30, 33, 34, 36, 37, 38, and 54, notification is 

required in accordance with general condition 32, for any activity proposed in the designated critical resource 
waters including wetlands adjacent to those waters. The district engineer may authorize activities under these 
NWPs only after it is determined that the impacts to the critical resource waters will be no more than minimal. 

 
23. Mitigation. The district engineer will consider the following factors when determining appropriate 

and practicable mitigation necessary to ensure that the individual and cumulative adverse environmental effects 
are no more than minimal: 

 
(a) The activity must be designed and constructed to avoid and minimize adverse effects, both temporary 

and permanent, to waters of the United States to the maximum extent practicable at the project site (i.e., on site). 
 
(b) Mitigation in all its forms (avoiding, minimizing, rectifying, reducing, or compensating for resource 

losses) will be required to the extent necessary to ensure that the individual and cumulative adverse 
environmental effects are no more than minimal. 

 
(c) Compensatory mitigation at a minimum one-for-one ratio will be required for all wetland losses that 

exceed 1/10-acre and require pre-construction notification, unless the district engineer determines in writing that 
either some other form of mitigation would be more environmentally appropriate or the adverse environmental 
effects of the proposed activity are no more than minimal, and provides an activity-specific waiver of this 
requirement. For wetland losses of 1/10-acre or less that require pre-construction notification, the district 
engineer may determine on a case-by-case basis that compensatory mitigation is required to ensure that the 
activity results in only minimal adverse environmental effects.  

 
(d) For losses of streams or other open waters that require pre-construction notification, the district 

engineer may require compensatory mitigation to ensure that the activity results in no more than minimal 
adverse environmental effects.  Compensatory mitigation for losses of streams should be provided, if 
practicable, through stream rehabilitation, enhancement, or preservation, since streams are difficult-to-replace 
resources (see 33 CFR 332.3(e)(3)).  

 
(e) Compensatory mitigation plans for NWP activities in or near streams or other open waters will 

normally include a requirement for the restoration or enhancement, maintenance, and legal protection (e.g., 
conservation easements) of riparian areas next to open waters. In some cases, the restoration or 
maintenance/protection of riparian areas may be the only compensatory mitigation required. Restored riparian 
areas should consist of native species. The width of the required riparian area will address documented water 
quality or aquatic habitat loss concerns. Normally, the riparian area will be 25 to 50 feet wide on each side of 
the stream, but the district engineer may require slightly wider riparian areas to address documented water 
quality or habitat loss concerns. If it is not possible to restore or maintain/protect a riparian area on both sides of 
a stream, or if the waterbody is a lake or coastal waters, then restoring or maintaining/protecting a riparian area 
along a single bank or shoreline may be sufficient. Where both wetlands and open waters exist on the project 
site, the district engineer will determine the appropriate compensatory mitigation (e.g., riparian areas and/or 
wetlands compensation) based on what is best for the aquatic environment on a watershed basis. In cases where 



riparian areas are determined to be the most appropriate form of minimization or compensatory mitigation, the 
district engineer may waive or reduce the requirement to provide wetland compensatory mitigation for wetland 
losses. 

 
(f) Compensatory mitigation projects provided to offset losses of aquatic resources must comply with 

the applicable provisions of 33 CFR part 332. 
 
(1) The prospective permittee is responsible for proposing an appropriate compensatory mitigation 

option if compensatory mitigation is necessary to ensure that the activity results in no more than minimal 
adverse environmental effects. For the NWPs, the preferred mechanism for providing compensatory mitigation 
is mitigation bank credits or in-lieu fee program credits (see 33 CFR 332.3(b)(2) and (3)). However, if an 
appropriate number and type of mitigation bank or in-lieu credits are not available at the time the PCN is 
submitted to the district engineer, the district engineer may approve the use of permittee-responsible mitigation.  

 
(2) The amount of compensatory mitigation required by the district engineer must be sufficient to ensure 

that the authorized activity results in no more than minimal individual and cumulative adverse environmental 
effects (see 33 CFR 330.1(e)(3)). (See also 33 CFR 332.3(f)).   

 
(3) Since the likelihood of success is greater and the impacts to potentially valuable uplands are reduced, 

aquatic resource restoration should be the first compensatory mitigation option considered for permittee-
responsible mitigation. 

 
(4) If permittee-responsible mitigation is the proposed option, the prospective permittee is responsible 

for submitting a mitigation plan. A conceptual or detailed mitigation plan may be used by the district engineer 
to make the decision on the NWP verification request, but a final mitigation plan that addresses the applicable 
requirements of 33 CFR 332.4(c)(2) through (14) must be approved by the district engineer before the permittee 
begins work in waters of the United States, unless the district engineer determines that prior approval of the 
final mitigation plan is not practicable or not necessary to ensure timely completion of the required 
compensatory mitigation (see 33 CFR 332.3(k)(3)).  

 
(5) If mitigation bank or in-lieu fee program credits are the proposed option, the mitigation plan only 

needs to address the baseline conditions at the impact site and the number of credits to be provided. 
 
(6) Compensatory mitigation requirements (e.g., resource type and amount to be provided as 

compensatory mitigation, site protection, ecological performance standards, monitoring requirements) may be 
addressed through conditions added to the NWP authorization, instead of components of a compensatory 
mitigation plan (see 33 CFR 332.4(c)(1)(ii)). 

 
(g) Compensatory mitigation will not be used to increase the acreage losses allowed by the acreage 

limits of the NWPs. For example, if an NWP has an acreage limit of 1/2-acre, it cannot be used to authorize any 
NWP activity resulting in the loss of greater than 1/2-acre of waters of the United States, even if compensatory 
mitigation is provided that replaces or restores some of the lost waters. However, compensatory mitigation can 
and should be used, as necessary, to ensure that an NWP activity already meeting the established acreage limits 
also satisfies the no more than minimal impact requirement for the NWPs. 

 



(h) Permittees may propose the use of mitigation banks, in-lieu fee programs, or permittee-responsible 
mitigation. When developing a compensatory mitigation proposal, the permittee must consider appropriate and 
practicable options consistent with the framework at 33 CFR 332.3(b).  For activities resulting in the loss of 
marine or estuarine resources, permittee-responsible mitigation may be environmentally preferable if there are 
no mitigation banks or in-lieu fee programs in the area that have marine or estuarine credits available for sale or 
transfer to the permittee. For permittee-responsible mitigation, the special conditions of the NWP verification 
must clearly indicate the party or parties responsible for the implementation and performance of the 
compensatory mitigation project, and, if required, its long-term management. 

 
(i) Where certain functions and services of waters of the United States are permanently adversely 

affected by a regulated activity, such as discharges of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States 
that will convert a forested or scrub-shrub wetland to a herbaceous wetland in a permanently maintained utility 
line right-of-way, mitigation may be required to reduce the adverse environmental effects of the activity to the 
no more than minimal level. 

 
24.  Safety of Impoundment Structures. To ensure that all impoundment structures are safely designed, 

the district engineer may require non-Federal applicants to demonstrate that the structures comply with 
established state dam safety criteria or have been designed by qualified persons. The district engineer may also 
require documentation that the design has been independently reviewed by similarly qualified persons, and 
appropriate modifications made to ensure safety. 

 
25. Water Quality. Where States and authorized Tribes, or EPA where applicable, have not previously 

certified compliance of an NWP with CWA section 401, individual 401 Water Quality Certification must be 
obtained or waived (see 33 CFR 330.4(c)). The district engineer or State or Tribe may require additional water 
quality management measures to ensure that the authorized activity does not result in more than minimal 
degradation of water quality. 

 
26. Coastal Zone Management. In coastal states where an NWP has not previously received a state 

coastal zone management consistency concurrence, an individual state coastal zone management consistency 
concurrence must be obtained, or a presumption of concurrence must occur (see 33 CFR 330.4(d)). The district 
engineer or a State may require additional measures to ensure that the authorized activity is consistent with state 
coastal zone management requirements. 

 
27. Regional and Case-By-Case Conditions. The activity must comply with any regional conditions that 

may have been added by the Division Engineer (see 33 CFR 330.4(e)) and with any case specific conditions 
added by the Corps or by the state, Indian Tribe, or U.S. EPA in its section 401 Water Quality Certification, or 
by the state in its Coastal Zone Management Act consistency determination. 

 
28. Use of Multiple Nationwide Permits. The use of more than one NWP for a single and complete 

project is prohibited, except when the acreage loss of waters of the United States authorized by the NWPs does 
not exceed the acreage limit of the NWP with the highest specified acreage limit. For example, if a road 
crossing over tidal waters is constructed under NWP 14, with associated bank stabilization authorized by NWP 
13, the maximum acreage loss of waters of the United States for the total project cannot exceed 1/3-acre. 

 
29. Transfer of Nationwide Permit Verifications. If the permittee sells the property associated with a 

nationwide permit verification, the permittee may transfer the nationwide permit verification to the new owner 



by submitting a letter to the appropriate Corps district office to validate the transfer. A copy of the nationwide 
permit verification must be attached to the letter, and the letter must contain the following statement and 
signature: 

 
“When the structures or work authorized by this nationwide permit are still in existence at the time the 

property is transferred, the terms and conditions of this nationwide permit, including any special conditions, will 
continue to be binding on the new owner(s) of the property. To validate the transfer of this nationwide permit 
and the associated liabilities associated with compliance with its terms and conditions, have the transferee sign 
and date below.” 

 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
(Transferee) 
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
(Date) 
 
30. Compliance Certification. Each permittee who receives an NWP verification letter from the Corps 

must provide a signed certification documenting completion of the authorized activity and implementation of 
any required compensatory mitigation.   The success of any required permittee-responsible mitigation, including 
the achievement of ecological performance standards, will be addressed separately by the district engineer. The 
Corps will provide the permittee the certification document with the NWP verification letter.  The certification 
document will include: 

 
(a) A statement that the authorized activity was done in accordance with the NWP authorization, 

including any general, regional, or activity-specific conditions; 
 
(b) A statement that the implementation of any required compensatory mitigation was completed in 

accordance with the permit conditions. If credits from a mitigation bank or in-lieu fee program are used to 
satisfy the compensatory mitigation requirements, the certification must include the documentation required by 
33 CFR 332.3(l)(3) to confirm that the permittee secured the appropriate number and resource type of credits; 
and 

 
(c) The signature of the permittee certifying the completion of the activity and mitigation. 
 
The completed certification document must be submitted to the district engineer within 30 days of 

completion of the authorized activity or the implementation of any required compensatory mitigation, 
whichever occurs later.   

31. Activities Affecting Structures or Works Built by the United States.  If an NWP activity also 
requires permission from the Corps pursuant to 33 U.S.C. 408 because it will alter or temporarily or 
permanently occupy or use a U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) federally authorized Civil Works project 
(a “USACE project”), the prospective permittee must submit a pre-construction notification. See paragraph 
(b)(10) of general condition 32.  An activity that requires section 408 permission is not authorized by NWP 
until the appropriate Corps office issues the section 408 permission to alter, occupy, or use the USACE project, 



and the district engineer issues a written NWP verification.   
 
32. Pre-Construction Notification. (a) Timing. Where required by the terms of the NWP, the prospective 

permittee must notify the district engineer by submitting a pre-construction notification (PCN) as early as 
possible. The district engineer must determine if the PCN is complete within 30 calendar days of the date of 
receipt and, if the PCN is determined to be incomplete, notify the prospective permittee within that 30 day 
period to request the additional information necessary to make the PCN complete. The request must specify the 
information needed to make the PCN complete. As a general rule, district engineers will request additional 
information necessary to make the PCN complete only once. However, if the prospective permittee does not 
provide all of the requested information, then the district engineer will notify the prospective permittee that the 
PCN is still incomplete and the PCN review process will not commence until all of the requested information 
has been received by the district engineer. The prospective permittee shall not begin the activity until either: 

 
(1) He or she is notified in writing by the district engineer that the activity may proceed under the NWP 

with any special conditions imposed by the district or division engineer; or 
 
(2) 45 calendar days have passed from the district engineer’s receipt of the complete PCN and the 

prospective permittee has not received written notice from the district or division engineer. However, if the 
permittee was required to notify the Corps pursuant to general condition 18 that listed species or critical habitat 
might be affected or are in the vicinity of the activity, or to notify the Corps pursuant to general condition 20 
that the activity might have the potential to cause effects to historic properties, the permittee cannot begin the 
activity until receiving written notification from the Corps that there is “no effect” on listed species or “no 
potential to cause effects” on historic properties, or that any consultation required under Section 7 of the 
Endangered Species Act (see 33 CFR 330.4(f)) and/or section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act 
(see 33 CFR 330.4(g)) has been completed. Also, work cannot begin under NWPs 21, 49, or 50 until the 
permittee has received written approval from the Corps. If the proposed activity requires a written waiver to 
exceed specified limits of an NWP, the permittee may not begin the activity until the district engineer issues the 
waiver. If the district or division engineer notifies the permittee in writing that an individual permit is required 
within 45 calendar days of receipt of a complete PCN, the permittee cannot begin the activity until an individual 
permit has been obtained. Subsequently, the permittee’s right to proceed under the NWP may be modified, 
suspended, or revoked only in accordance with the procedure set forth in 33 CFR 330.5(d)(2). 

 
(b) Contents of Pre-Construction Notification: The PCN must be in writing and include the following 

information: 
 
(1) Name, address and telephone numbers of the prospective permittee; 
 
(2) Location of the proposed activity; 
 
(3) Identify the specific NWP or NWP(s) the prospective permittee wants to use to authorize the 

proposed activity; 
 
(4) A description of the proposed activity; the activity’s purpose; direct and indirect adverse 

environmental effects the activity would cause, including the anticipated amount of loss of wetlands, other 
special aquatic sites, and other waters expected to result from the NWP activity, in acres, linear feet, or other 
appropriate unit of measure; a description of any proposed mitigation measures intended to reduce the adverse 



environmental effects caused by the proposed activity; and any other NWP(s), regional general permit(s), or 
individual permit(s) used or intended to be used to authorize any part of the proposed project or any related 
activity, including other separate and distant crossings for linear projects that require Department of the Army 
authorization but do not require pre-construction notification. The description of the proposed activity and any 
proposed mitigation measures should be sufficiently detailed to allow the district engineer to determine that the 
adverse environmental effects of the activity will be no more than minimal and to determine the need for 
compensatory mitigation or other mitigation measures.  For single and complete linear projects, the PCN must 
include the quantity of anticipated losses of wetlands, other special aquatic sites, and other waters for each 
single and complete crossing of those wetlands, other special aquatic sites, and other waters. Sketches should be 
provided when necessary to show that the activity complies with the terms of the NWP. (Sketches usually 
clarify the activity and when provided results in a quicker decision. Sketches should contain sufficient detail to 
provide an illustrative description of the proposed activity (e.g., a conceptual plan), but do not need to be 
detailed engineering plans); 

 
(5) The PCN must include a delineation of wetlands, other special aquatic sites, and other waters, such 

as lakes and ponds, and perennial, intermittent, and ephemeral streams, on the project site. Wetland delineations 
must be prepared in accordance with the current method required by the Corps. The permittee may ask the 
Corps to delineate the special aquatic sites and other waters on the project site, but there may be a delay if the 
Corps does the delineation, especially if the project site is large or contains many wetlands, other special aquatic 
sites, and other waters. Furthermore, the 45 day period will not start until the delineation has been submitted to 
or completed by the Corps, as appropriate; 

 
(6) If the proposed activity will result in the loss of greater than 1/10-acre of wetlands and a PCN is 

required, the prospective permittee must submit a statement describing how the mitigation requirement will be 
satisfied, or explaining why the adverse environmental effects are no more than minimal and why compensatory 
mitigation should not be required. As an alternative, the prospective permittee may submit a conceptual or 
detailed mitigation plan. 

 
(7) For non-Federal permittees, if any listed species or designated critical habitat might be affected or is 

in the vicinity of the activity, or if the activity is located in designated critical habitat, the PCN must include the 
name(s) of those endangered or threatened species that might be affected by the proposed activity or utilize the 
designated critical habitat that might be affected by the proposed activity.  For NWP activities that require pre-
construction notification, Federal permittees must provide documentation demonstrating compliance with the 
Endangered Species Act;  

 
(8) For non-Federal permittees, if the NWP activity might have the potential to cause effects to a historic 

property listed on, determined to be eligible for listing on, or potentially eligible for listing on, the National 
Register of Historic Places, the PCN must state which historic property might have the potential to be affected 
by the proposed activity or include a vicinity map indicating the location of the historic property. For NWP 
activities that require pre-construction notification, Federal permittees must provide documentation 
demonstrating compliance with section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act;  

 
(9) For an activity that will occur in a component of the National Wild and Scenic River System, or in a 

river officially designated by Congress as a “study river” for possible inclusion in the system while the river is 
in an official study status, the PCN must identify the Wild and Scenic River or the “study river” (see general 
condition 16); and 



 
(10) For an activity that requires permission from the Corps pursuant to 33 U.S.C. 408 because it will 

alter or temporarily or permanently occupy or use a U.S. Army Corps of Engineers federally authorized civil 
works project, the pre-construction notification must include a statement confirming that the project proponent 
has submitted a written request for section 408 permission from the Corps office having jurisdiction over that 
USACE project.  

 
(c) Form of Pre-Construction Notification: The standard individual permit application form (Form ENG 

4345) may be used, but the completed application form must clearly indicate that it is an NWP PCN and must 
include all of the applicable information required in paragraphs (b)(1) through (10) of this general condition. A 
letter containing the required information may also be used.  Applicants may provide electronic files of PCNs 
and supporting materials if the district engineer has established tools and procedures for electronic submittals. 

 
(d) Agency Coordination: (1) The district engineer will consider any comments from Federal and state 

agencies concerning the proposed activity’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the NWPs and the 
need for mitigation to reduce the activity’s adverse environmental effects so that they are no more than minimal. 

 
(2) Agency coordination is required for: (i) all NWP activities that require pre-construction notification 

and result in the loss of greater than 1/2-acre of waters of the United States; (ii) NWP 21, 29, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 
50, 51, and 52 activities that require pre-construction notification and will result in the loss of greater than 300 
linear feet of stream bed; (iii) NWP 13 activities in excess of 500 linear feet, fills greater than one cubic yard 
per running foot, or involve discharges of dredged or fill material into special aquatic sites; and (iv) NWP 54 
activities in excess of 500 linear feet, or that extend into the waterbody more than 30 feet from the mean low 
water line in tidal waters or the ordinary high water mark in the Great Lakes.   

 
(3) When agency coordination is required, the district engineer will immediately provide (e.g., via e-

mail, facsimile transmission, overnight mail, or other expeditious manner) a copy of the complete PCN to the 
appropriate Federal or state offices (FWS, state natural resource or water quality agency, EPA, and, if 
appropriate, the NMFS). With the exception of NWP 37, these agencies will have 10 calendar days from the 
date the material is transmitted to notify the district engineer via telephone, facsimile transmission, or e-mail 
that they intend to provide substantive, site-specific comments. The comments must explain why the agency 
believes the adverse environmental effects will be more than minimal. If so contacted by an agency, the district 
engineer will wait an additional 15 calendar days before making a decision on the pre-construction notification. 
The district engineer will fully consider agency comments received within the specified time frame concerning 
the proposed activity’s compliance with the terms and conditions of the NWPs, including the need for 
mitigation to ensure the net adverse environmental effects of the proposed activity are no more than minimal. 
The district engineer will provide no response to the resource agency, except as provided below. The district 
engineer will indicate in the administrative record associated with each pre-construction notification that the 
resource agencies’ concerns were considered. For NWP 37, the emergency watershed protection and 
rehabilitation activity may proceed immediately in cases where there is an unacceptable hazard to life or a 
significant loss of property or economic hardship will occur. The district engineer will consider any comments 
received to decide whether the NWP 37 authorization should be modified, suspended, or revoked in accordance 
with the procedures at 33 CFR 330.5. 

 
(4) In cases of where the prospective permittee is not a Federal agency, the district engineer will provide 

a response to NMFS within 30 calendar days of receipt of any Essential Fish Habitat conservation 



recommendations, as required by section 305(b)(4)(B) of the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and 
Management Act.  

 
(5) Applicants are encouraged to provide the Corps with either electronic files or multiple copies of pre-

construction notifications to expedite agency coordination. 

3. Regional Conditions for the Los Angeles District:   
 
1. For all activities in waters of the U.S. that are suitable habitat for federally listed fish species, including 

designated critical habitat for such species, the permittee shall design all new or substantially reconstructed 
linear transportation crossings (e.g. roads, highways, railways, trails, bridges, culverts) to ensure that the 
passage and/or spawning of fish is not hindered.  In these areas, the permittee shall employ bridge designs 
that span the stream or river, including pier- or pile-supported spans, or designs that use a bottomless arch 
culvert with a natural stream bed, unless determined to be impracticable by the Corps. 

 
2. Nationwide Permits (NWP) 3, 7, 12-15, 17-19, 21, 23, 25, 29, 35, 36, or 39-46, 48-54 cannot be used to 

authorize structures, work, and/or the discharge of dredged or fill material that would result in the "loss" of 
wetlands, mudflats, vegetated shallows or riffle and pool complexes as defined at 40 CFR Part 230.40-45.  
The definition of "loss" for this regional condition is the same as the definition of "loss of waters of the 
United States" used for the Nationwide Permit Program.  Furthermore, this regional condition applies only 
within the State of Arizona and within the Mojave and Sonoran (Colorado) desert regions of California.  
The desert regions in California are limited to four USGS Hydrologic Unit Code (HUC) accounting units 
(Lower Colorado -150301, Northern Mojave-180902, Southern Mojave-181001, and Salton Sea-181002). 

 
3. When a pre-construction notification (PCN) is required, the Los Angeles District shall be notified in 

accordance with General Condition 32 using either the South Pacific Division PCN Checklist or a signed 
application form (ENG Form 4345) with an attachment providing information on compliance with all of the 
General and Regional Conditions.  The PCN Checklist and application form are available at: 
http://www.spl.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PermitProcess.aspx.  In addition, unless specifically 
waived by the Los Angeles District, the PCN shall include: 
 

a. A written statement describing how the activity has been designed to avoid and minimize adverse 
effects, both temporary and permanent, to waters of the United States; 
 

b. Drawings, including plan and cross-section views, clearly depicting the location, size and 
dimensions of the proposed activity as well as the location of delineated waters of the U.S. on the 
site. The drawings shall contain a title block, legend and scale, amount (in cubic yards) and area (in 
acres) of fill in Corps jurisdiction, including both permanent and temporary fills/structures. The 
ordinary high water mark or, if tidal waters, the mean high water mark and high tide line, should be 
shown (in feet), based on National Geodetic Vertical Datum (NGVD) or other appropriate 
referenced elevation. All drawings shall follow the Updated Map and Drawing Standards for the 
South Pacific Division Regulatory Program (Feb 2016), or most recent update (available at the South 
Pacific Division website at: 
http://www.spd.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PublicNoticesandReferences.aspx/ );  
 

http://www.spl.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PermitProcess.aspx
http://www.spd.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/PublicNoticesandReferences.aspx/


c. Numbered and dated pre-project color photographs showing a representative sample of waters 
proposed to be impacted on the project site, and all waters proposed to be avoided on and 
immediately adjacent to the project site. The compass angle and position of each photograph shall be 
documented on the plan-view drawing required in subpart b of this regional condition. 
 

d. Delineation of aquatic resources in accordance with the current Los Angeles District’s Minimum 
Standards for Acceptance of Aquatic Resources Delineation Reports (available at: 
http://www.spl.usace.army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Jurisdictional-Determination/). 

 
4. Submission of a PCN pursuant to General Condition 32 and Regional Condition 3 shall be required for 

specific regulated activities in the following locations:  
 

a. All perennial waterbodies and special aquatic sites throughout the Los Angeles District as well as 
intermittent waters within the State of Arizona for any regulated activity that would result in a loss 
of waters of the United States.  The definition of “loss of waters of the United States” for this 
regional condition is the same as the definition used for the Nationwide Permit Program.  
 

b. All areas designated as Essential Fish Habitat (EFH) by the Pacific Fishery Management Council, 
and that would result in an adverse effect to EFH, in which case the PCN shall include an EFH 
assessment and extent of proposed impacts to EFH. EFH Assessment Guidance and other supporting 
information can be found at: 
http://www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/fish_habitat/efh_consultations_go.html. 
 

c. All watersheds in the Santa Monica Mountains in Los Angeles and Ventura counties bounded by 
Calleguas Creek on the west, by Highway 101 on the north and east, and by Sunset Boulevard and 
Pacific Ocean on the south. 
 

d. The Santa Clara River watershed in Los Angeles and Ventura counties, including but not limited to 
Aliso Canyon, Agua Dulce Canyon, Sand Canyon, Bouquet Canyon, Mint Canyon, South Fork of 
the Santa Clara River, San Francisquito Canyon, Castaic Creek, Piru Creek, Sespe Creek and the 
main-stem of the Santa Clara River. 
 

e. The Murrieta and Temecula Creek watersheds in Riverside County, California for any regulated 
activity that would result in a loss of waters of the U.S.  The definition of “loss of waters of the 
United States” for this regional condition is the same as the definition used for the Nationwide 
Permit Program. 
 

f. All waterbodies designated by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality as Outstanding 
Arizona Waters (OAWs), within 1600 meters (or 1 mile) upstream and/or 800 meters (1/2 mile) 
downstream of a designated OAW, and on tributaries to OAWs within 1600 meters of the OAW (see 
http://www.azdeq.gov/index.html). 
 

http://www.westcoast.fisheries.noaa.gov/habitat/fish_habitat/efh_consultations_go.html
http://www.azdeq.gov/index.html


g. All waterbodies designated by the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality as 303(d)-impaired 
surface waters, within 1600 meters (or 1 mile) upstream and/or 800 meters (1/2 mile) downstream of 
a designated impaired surface water, and on tributaries to impaired waters within 1600 meters of the 
impaired water (see http://www.azdeq.gov/index.html). 

 
5. Individual Permits shall be required for all discharges of fill material in jurisdictional vernal pools, with the 

exception that discharges for the purpose of restoration, enhancement, management or scientific study of 
vernal pools may be authorized under NWPs 5, 6, and 27 with the submission of a PCN in accordance with 
General Condition 32 and Regional Condition 3. 

 
6. Within the Murrieta Creek and Temecula Creek watersheds in Riverside County the use of NWPs 29, 39, 42 

and 43, and NWP 14 combined with any of those NWPs shall be restricted. The loss of waters of the U.S. 
cannot exceed 0.25 acre. The definition of “loss of waters of the United States” for this regional condition is 
the same as the definition used for the Nationwide Permit Program.  
 

7. Individual Permits (Standard Individual Permit or 404 Letter of Permission) shall be required in San Luis 
Obispo Creek and Santa Rosa Creek in San Luis Obispo County for bank stabilization projects, and in 
Gaviota Creek, Mission Creek and Carpinteria Creek in Santa Barbara County for bank stabilization 
projects and grade control structures. 

 
8. In conjunction with the Los Angeles District's Special Area Management Plans (SAMPs) for the San Diego 

Creek Watershed and San Juan Creek/Western San Mateo Creek Watersheds in Orange County, California, 
the Corps' Division Engineer, through his discretionary authority has revoked the use of the following 26 
selected NWPs within these SAMP watersheds:  03, 07, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 25, 27, 29, 31, 33, 39, 
40, 41, 42, 43, 44, 46, 49, and 50.  Consequently, these NWPs are no longer available in those watersheds to 
authorize impacts to waters of the United States from discharges of dredged or fill material under the Corps' 
Clean Water Act section 404 authority. 

 
9. Any requests to waive the applicable linear foot limitations for NWPs 13, 21, 29, 39, 40 and 42, 43, 44, 51, 

52, and 54, must include the following: 
 

a.  A narrative description of the affected aquatic resource. This should include known information on: 
volume and duration of flow; the approximate length, width, and depth of the waterbody and 
characters observed associated with an Ordinary High Water Mark (e.g. bed and bank, wrack line, or 
scour marks) or Mean High Water Line; a description of the adjacent vegetation community and a 
statement regarding the wetland status of the associated vegetation community (i.e. wetland, non-
wetland); surrounding land use; water quality; issues related to cumulative impacts in the watershed, 
and; any other relevant information. 

b. An analysis of the proposed impacts to the waterbody in accordance with General Condition 32 and 
Regional Condition 3; 

 
c. Measures taken to avoid and minimize losses, including other methods of constructing the proposed 

project; and 
 
d. A compensatory mitigation plan describing how the unavoidable losses are proposed to be 

compensated, in accordance with 33 CFR Part 332. 

http://www.azdeq.gov/index.html


 
10. The permittee shall complete the construction of any compensatory mitigation required by special 

condition(s) of the NWP verification before or concurrent with commencement of construction of the 
authorized activity, except when specifically determined to be impracticable by the Corps.  When mitigation 
involves use of a mitigation bank or in-lieu fee program, the permittee shall submit proof of payment to the 
Corps prior to commencement of construction of the authorized activity. 

 
4. Further information: 

1. Congressional Authorities:  You have been authorized to undertake the activity described above 
pursuant to: 

( )  Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act of 1899 (33 U.S.C. 403). 
(x)  Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1344). 
( )  Section 103 of the Marine Protection, Research and Sanctuaries Act of 1972 (33 U.S.C. 1413). 

 
2. Limits of this authorization. 

(a) This permit does not obviate the need to obtain other Federal, state, or local authorizations 
required by law. 

(b) This permit does not grant any property rights or exclusive privileges. 
(c) This permit does not authorize any injury to the property or rights of others. 
(d) This permit does not authorize interference with any existing or proposed Federal project. 

 
3. Limits of Federal Liability.  In issuing this permit, the Federal Government does not assume any liability 

for the following: 
(a) Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of other permitted or unpermitted 
activities or from natural causes. 
(b) Damages to the permitted project or uses thereof as a result of current or future activities 

undertaken by or on behalf of the United States in the public interest. 
(c) Damages to persons, property, or to other permitted or unpermitted activities or structures caused 

by the activity authorized by this permit. 
(d) Design or construction deficiencies associated with the permitted work. 
(e) Damage claims associated with any future modification, suspension, or revocation of this permit. 

 
4. Reliance on Applicant's Data:  The determination of this office that issuance of this permit is not 

contrary to the public interest was made in reliance on the information you provided. 
 

5. Reevaluation of Permit Decision.  This office may reevaluate its decision on this permit at any time the 
circumstances warrant.  Circumstances that could require a reevaluation include, but are not limited to, 
the following: 

(a) You fail to comply with the terms and conditions of this permit. 
(b) The information provided by you in support of your permit application proves to have been false, 

incomplete, or inaccurate (See 4 above). 
(c) Significant new information surfaces which this office did not consider in reaching the original 

public interest decision. 
Such a reevaluation may result in a determination that it is appropriate to use the suspension, 
modification, and revocation procedures contained in 33 CFR 330.5 or enforcement procedures such as 
those contained in 33 CFR 326.4 and 326.5.  The referenced enforcement procedures provide for the 



issuance of an administrative order requiring you to comply with the terms and conditions of your 
permit and for the initiation of legal action where appropriate.  You will be required to pay for any 
corrective measure ordered by this office, and if you fail to comply with such directive, this office may 
in certain situations (such as those specified in 33 CFR 209.170) accomplish the corrective measures by 
contract or otherwise and bill you for the cost. 

 
6. This letter of verification is valid for a period not to exceed two years unless the nationwide permit is 

modified, reissued, revoked, or expires before that time.  
 

7. You must maintain the activity authorized by this permit in good condition and in conformance with the 
terms and conditions of this permit.  You are not relieved of this requirement if you abandon the 
permitted activity, although you may make a good faith transfer to a third party in compliance with 
General Condition H below.  Should you wish to cease to maintain the authorized activity or should you 
desire to abandon it without a good faith transfer, you must obtain a modification of this permit from 
this office, which may require restoration of the area. 

 
8. You must allow representatives from this office to inspect the authorized activity at any time deemed 

necessary to ensure that it is being or has been accomplished with the terms and conditions of your 
permit. 



Section 7 

North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge 
Replacement Project Hydrology and Hydraulics Report Dated 

September 4, 2020 
 



Prepared for: 

Prepared by: 
 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

North Round Valley Round with failed south abutment (looking west/upstream) 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Project Location



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Project Site with channel centerline



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Downstream Face with Grade Control prior to Failure, 2008 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Failed South Abutment, 2018



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Drainage Basin



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Design Flows (cubic feet per second)



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Results of Proposed Condition (Upstream Bridge Face)



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Results of Scour Analysis for 100-year return (feet)



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

RSP for Banks and Abutment Protection for 200-year



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement

Summary Table



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road Crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



Hydrology and Hydraulic Report  North Round Valley Road crossing Pine Creek Bridge Replacement 



County of Inyo

Board of Supervisors
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Supervisor Jeff Griffiths 
 
SUBJECT:  Letter Requesting Reopening of John Muir Wilderness 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve a letter to Inyo National Forest Supervisor Lesley Yen requesting the reopening of the 
John Muir Wilderness Area, and authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
On October 2, 2020, Inyo National Forest Supervisor John "Pancho" Smith issued Forest Order No. 05-04-50-20-
18, effective October 3, 2020 through December 1, 2020. The Order essentially closed roads, trails, and lands in 
Reds Meadow Valley and the Hoover, Ansel Adams, Owens River Headwaters, John Muir, Golden Trout, and 
South Sierra wilderness areas. 

The closures were prompted by hot and dry conditions creating a significant fire hazard, wildfire activity 
throughout the State and in close proximity to these wilderness areas, and continued firefighting resources 
limitations.

With decreased fire activity and cooler temperatures throughout the Sierra, it seems appropriate now for the 
Forest Service to consider rescinding some of the forest closures - particularly in the John Muir Wilderness which 
is not close to any current wildfire activity and would not pose significant fire risk.

Reopening the John Muir Wilderness Area would benefit Inyo County economically, but also help provide 
residents and visitors much-needed relief from the constant smoke choking the valley and the stress and anxiety 
being endured during the COVID-19 pandemic.

A letter to new Inyo National Forest Supervisor Lesley Yen has been drafted, and the Board is asked to approve 
its contents, authorize the Chairperson to sign it, and direct staff to mail it.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board may revise the letter, or vote not to approve it. 
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

Inyo National Forest
 
FINANCING:
There are no fiscal impacts to the County associated with sending this letter.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Letter to Lesley Yen 10.27.20
 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 10/23/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 10/23/2020



 

 

 

 

October 27, 2020 

Lesley Yen 

Forest Supervisor  

Inyo National Forest  

351 Pacu Ln., Ste. 200 

Bishop, CA 93514  

Dear Ms. Yen, 

Welcome to the Inyo National Forest, and thank you for your service as the new Forest Supervisor.  The Inyo 

County Board of Supervisors is writing to recommend a modification to Forest Order No. 05-04-50-20-18 and 

for you to reopen John Muir Wilderness Area.  Access to the wilderness is a vital component to our 

local recreation economy and serves as a recreational outlet to Inyo County residents. It is very important 

for the mental and physical health of the people of Inyo County who have suffered under the strain of 

COVID-19 and wildfire smoke to have access to the benefits that wilderness recreation provide. 

We understand that the demands on forest personnel are somewhat overwhelming at this time and that the 

closure is intended to prevent any additional strain on the forest and to decrease the risk from wildfire. 

However, closures from Mount Whitney to Rock Creek do not appear to be close to current fires and 

reopening these areas would pose significant risk of additional ignitions.   

Thank you for considering making a change to Forest Order No.05-04-50-20-18. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Kingsley, Chair 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

cc: Randy Moore, District 5 Regional Forester 

MEMBERS  OF T HE  BOARD

DAN TOTHEROH 

JEFF GRIFFITHS 

RICK PUCCI

MARK TILLEMANS  

M ATT  KINGS LEY  

CLINT G. QUILTER    

Clerk of the Board 

DARCY ELLIS 

Assistant Clerk of the Board 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
COUNTY OF INYO 

P. O. BOX N   INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526 

TELEPHONE (760) 878-0373 

e-mail: dellis@inyocounty.us



County of Inyo

Sheriff
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Office of the Sheriff 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval to pay annual invoice with ONSOLVE, LLC for CodeRED Emergency Notification System / 
Integrated Public Alert Warning System (IPAWS) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare ONSOLVE LLC of Ormand Beach, FL a sole-source provider of 
CodeRED Emergency Notification System/Integrated Public Alert Warning System (IPAWS); and B) ratify and 
approved payment to ONSOLVE LLC of Ormand Beach, FL in the amount of $12,500 for CodeRED Emergency 
Notification System/IPAWS.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The County of Inyo has contracted with ONSOLVE, LLC (and its predecessor ECN West) since 2009 to provide 
CodeRED - Emergency Notification System services. The CodeRED system provides the County with the ability 
to quickly deliver messages to targeted areas or the entire County during emergencies. CodeRED is an opt-in 
geographically enabled alerting system, meaning that local residents and business owners must sign-up with 
CodeRED to receive these alerting messages. The IPAWS Module is an add-on feature that compliments 
CodeRED; it allows public safety officials to send critical messages electronically within a designated geographic 
area. Anyone that is within that designated area will receive an IPAWS alert.

The Board is also being requested to approve ONSOLVE, LLC as a Sole Source provider. The following provides 
Sole Source justification: the digital infrastructure has already been built and the CodeRED users have already 
been trained. Many County residents and business owners have already enrolled in the CodeRED system and 
they use and rely on the services that are provided through the CodeRED system. In addition, our neighboring 
County of Mono also uses CodeRED and the IPAWS Module add-on feature. There have been several times 
when Inyo County dispatchers have had to send Mono County CodeRED alerts due to compromised power lines. 
Alternatively, Mono County can assist in alerting our residents and business owners if we experience downed 
lines. This alerting redundancy is invaluable for public safety.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve ONSOLVE, LLC as a sole-source provider, but this is strongly opposed. 
Any incident or situation where Inyo County is without a robust alerting system, and personnel trained to initiate
such a system, can be considered a threat to public safety.



Agenda Request 
Page 2

 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
City of Bishop, County of Mono, Cal OES
 
FINANCING:
This expenditure is included in the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Board Approved Budget #623719, Object Code #5265
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. ONSOLVE CodeRED Invoice
 
APPROVALS:
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 10/8/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/12/2020
Riannah Reade Approved - 10/12/2020
Carma Roper Approved - 10/13/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/13/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/13/2020
Jeffrey Hollowell Final Approval - 10/13/2020



Invoice
INV54661826877

780 W Granada Blvd
Ormond Beach, FL 32174
(866) 939-0911

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
 

Remittance Slip
 

Customer Inyo County, CA
Invoice # INV54661826877
Amount Due (USD) $ 12,500.00
Amount Paid ________________

Bank/Wire Information:
Please Remit Check Payment To:

Wells Fargo Bank
Account Name: OnSolve, LLC
Routing: 063107513 (ACH) / 121000248 (Wires)
Account Number: 5231692129
SWIFT Code: WFBIUS6S

P.O. Box 865672
Orlando, FL 32886-5672

 
To Pay By Credit Card, Please Call The Phone # Above
 
Sales Rep: Medvick, Joseph
 
 
 

Bill To Ship To
Attn: Carma Roper 
Inyo County, CA
PO BOX S
Independence CA 93526
United States

 

Invoice Date Terms Due Date Group ID PO #

9/30/2020 Net 30 10/30/2020

Item Start Date End Date Qty Rate Amount

CodeRED Standard 10/15/2020 10/14/2021 1 10,000.00 10,000.00

IPAWS 10/15/2020 10/14/2021 1 2,500.00 2,500.00

Total: $ 12,500.00



County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Fiscal
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Melissa Best-Baker 
 
SUBJECT:  Ratify Amendment #4 to the Contract with County of Mono for ESAAA Services to seniors 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 4 to the four-year agreement with the County of Mono for the 
provision of Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) services to Mono County eligible residents, in the 
total amount not to exceed $144,421 for the period beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 and not 
exceeding the total four-year amount of $429,388 for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In mid-April, HHS received notification from the California Department of Aging (CDA) that PSA 16 would be 
receiving $29,835 from the Families First COVID Relief fund.  CDA also provided direction on what categories 
those monies were to be used in and determined, based on the approved formula, that Mono County would 
receive $1,432 for C-1 Congregate meals and $3,044 for C-2 Home Delivered meals.  HHS inadvertently did not 
add those funds to the contract and take an amendment back to our respective Board of Supervisors.  The 
Department is requesting the Board ratify and approve Contract Amendment #4 with the County of Mono for the 
FY 19/20 contract for an increase of $4,476 and authorize payment of those funds.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Board could choose not to approve this request. This is not recommended as this could result in Mono County 
invoicing for an amount that is higher than the actual allocation available.
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Department of Aging
 
FINANCING:
Funding for this contract comes from California Department of Aging State and Federal Funds. This is budgeted 
in the ESAAA Budgets (683000) in Other County Contributions (5539). No County General Funds.
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. ESAAA Mono Amendment No. 4
 
APPROVALS:
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 10/14/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/14/2020
Marilyn Mann Approved - 10/15/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 10/15/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/15/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/21/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 10/22/2020



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No. _______ 
Page 1 
 062912            

   

AMENDMENT NUMBER __________ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  

____________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES  

 

 
 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and 
______________________________________, of ______________________________________ 
(hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Independent  
Contractor  Services dated   _________________________________, on County of Inyo Standard 
Contract No. ______, for  the term from ______________________   to  ______________________.  
 
 WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is ______________________________. 
 

 All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.  
 
  
 

116

Mono County Social Services

July 1, 2016 June 30, 2020

                                               County of Mono

116

County of Mono

July 1, 2019

      4

February 7, 2017



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No. _______ 
Page 2 

  
 062912 

 

AMENDMENT NUMBER __________ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO  AND  

____________________________________________________ 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  SERVICES  
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
______  DAY OF  _________________________,  __________. 
 
 
 

COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ____________________________________              By: __________________________________ 
                Signature  

Dated:_________________________________         
             ___________________________________ 
                 Type or Print  

        
       Dated: ________________________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  

                                              County of Mono

Oct 12, 2020

        4

116

Stacy Corless

https://monocounty.na2.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA9kG40HsQe4bXuLZlvIlvyxXgqE5ifaa3


County of Inyo

Health & Human Services - Social Services
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Marilyn Mann 
 
SUBJECT:  Approve the MOU between Life Remedies and Celebrations and SEIU Local 2015, which includes a 
supplement to minimum wage for IHSS providers beginning January 1, 2021. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratify and approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo's contracted 
non-profit consortium, Life Remedies & Celebrations, and SEIU Local 2015, the In Home Supportive Services 
providers bargaining representative, which includes a negotiated supplement of $.50 above minimum wage 
effective January 1, 2021 (or as soon as possible thereafter) and an additional $.25 supplement effective July 1, 
2021 (bringing the total supplement to $.75 above minimum wage) for the period of September 20, 2021 through 
September 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) program provides in-home assistance to eligible aged, blind and disabled 
individuals as an alternative to out-of-home care, allowing recipients to remain safely in their own homes. The 
administration of IHSS is a complex partnership that includes the program recipients, who hire their caregivers; 
the California Department of Social Services (CDSS), who establishes the governing regulations for eligibility 
determination and service authorization; Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), who funds the services 
through the Medi-Cal program; the county, who conducts both Medi-Cal and IHSS eligibility determination, 
authorizes service hours, and is responsible for approving any negotiated wage increase; public 
authorities/nonprofit consortiums, who act as the Employer-of-Record and are responsible for negotiating on 
behalf of the county with the provider union; program advocates; and providers and SEIU Local 2015, the 
provider's union.   

The last negotiated MOU was between LRC and California United Healthcare Workers (previous union 
representative), which expired October 22, 2017.  Since that period, union representation transferred to SEIU 
Local 2015. Efforts to engage SEIU in local negotiations began last year and negotiations were initiated earlier 
this year.  Based upon direction from your Board, the LRC and SEIU Local 2015 came to a tentative agreement 
on or about October 7, 2020.  The Department, on behalf of LRC, is respectfully requesting your Board approve 
the attached MOU, which includes the wage negotiation outlined above.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 



Agenda Request 
Page 2

NA
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the MOU, resulting in LRC being directed to reinitiate negotiations.  
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Life Remedies and Celebrations, SEIU Local 2015, California Department of Health Care Services, and 
California Department of Social Services.
 
FINANCING:
Federal and State Social Services funding and Social Services Realignment. These costs are budgeted in Social 
Services (055800) in Support and Care (5501). No County General Fund.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. LRC MOU
 
APPROVALS:
Marilyn Mann Created/Initiated - 10/14/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 10/16/2020
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 10/16/2020
Marshall Rudolph Approved - 10/23/2020
Amy Shepherd Approved - 10/23/2020
Marilyn Mann Final Approval - 10/23/2020































County of Inyo

Clerk of the Board
 

DEPARTMENTAL - ACTION REQUIRED
 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve the minutes of the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of October 20, 2020.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, www.inyocounty.us.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
N/A
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:

 
APPROVALS:
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 10/21/2020
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 10/21/2020



Capital Asset Leasing Corporation AGENDA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      October 27, 2020

County of Inyo
Capital Asset Leasing Corporation

Board of Supervisors Room
County Administrative Center

224 North Edwards
Independence, California

October 27, 2020

11:30 a.m. A) Election of Officers – The Board will elect a President, Secretary and Treasurer for the 
Corporation.

B) Approval of Minutes – The Board will consider approval of the October 15, 2019 Capital Asset 
Leasing Corporation meeting minutes.

C) Financial Report – Inyo County Treasurer-Tax Collector Alisha McMurtrie will present a 
Financial Report on the Corporation.



Capital Asset Leasing Corporation MINUTES                                                                                                  October 15, 2019

County of Inyo
CAPITAL ASSET LEASING 

CORPORATION
October 15, 2019

The Board of Directors of the Capital Asset Leasing Corporation of the County of Inyo, State of California, met at the hour of 
12:05 p.m., on October 15, 2019, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the 
following Supervisors present:  Supervisors Dan Totheroh, Jeff Griffiths, Rick Pucci, Mark Tillemans and Matt Kingsley.  

Election of 
Officers

Chairperson Pucci recessed the Board of Supervisors meeting at 12:05 p.m., to convene as the 
Capital Asset Leasing Corporation to conduct the Corporation’s Annual Meeting. He called for 
nominations for President, Secretary and Treasurer. 

Moved by Director Kingsley and seconded by Director Tillemans to nominate and elect Director Pucci 
as President, Director Tillemans as Secretary, and Director Griffiths as Treasurer. Motion carried 
unanimously.

Minute Approval Moved by Director Tillemans and seconded by Director Kingsley to approve the minutes of the 
October 16, 2018 meeting of the Capital Asset Leasing Corporation. Motion carried unanimously.

Financial Update Inyo County Treasurer-Tax Collector Alisha McMurtrie provided in advance a history of the 
corporation’s activities in lieu of a traditional financial report. She explained that the corporation exists 
should the County choose to issue debt for financing purposes. McMurtrie noted that the corporation is 
not being used to finance the Consolidated Office Building project, and currently no debt is being 
issued by the corporation. She also commended the Board for its efforts during the Fiscal Year 2019-
2020 Budget process to boost the County’s reserves, which should help strengthen the County’s credit 
rating in the future.

Adjournment President Pucci adjourned the meeting of the Capital Asset Leasing Corporation at 12:10 p.m. 

_______________________________________________
President, Inyo County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation

Attest:   C l i n t  G .  Q u i l t e r
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d  

         by:       _____________________________________
                           Darcy Ellis, Assistant



Inyo County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation
Annual Financial Report

For the meeting of
October 27, 2020

   
History:
In 1990, the Inyo County Capital Asset Leasing Corporation issued 
Certificates of Participation (COPs) in the total amount of $5,000,000.00 for 
the primary purpose of financing a new County Jail and Juvenile Detention 
Facility.  In 1999, the County paid down the outstanding COP principal by 
$900,000.00, and issued refunding COPs in the amount of $2,940,000.00 in 
order to take advantage of lower interest rates, and thereby reduce the 
County’s interest costs and annual debt (lease) payments. The County posted 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 002-133-02 (new County Jail land and 
improvements) as collateral on the 1999 Refunding COPs.

Cash Assets:
On February 1, 2011, the final payment on the financing for the County Jail 
and Juvenile Facility was made, effectively bringing the Reserve fund to a 
zero balance and closing the account.  There are currently no cash assets.

Current Standing:
The Capital Asset Leasing Corporation currently has no issuances.  The 
Corporation remains in effect and positioned to provide services for any 
future debt service financing the County may enter into.

Bond Rating:
Over the life of the financing, Moody’s Investor Service rated the County’s 
1999 Refunding COPs at Baa1.  This rating has since been reaffirmed.  This 
issue was discussed at a Financial Advisory Committee meeting and the 
previous County Administrator indicated that the County was going to seek 
an updated financial review and obtain a current rating.  I am not aware of 
the status of that update.

Prepared by: Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector

COUNTY OF INYO
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR

168 NORTH EDWARDS STREET
POST OFFICE DRAWER O

INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526-0614
(760) 878-0312  (760) 878-0311 FAX

inyottc@inyocounty.us

ALISHA McMURTRIE

TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR

 

mailto:inyottc@inyocounty.us


DEPARTMBNT OF PUBLIC WORKS
P.O. DRAWER Q

INDEPENDENCE,CA93526
PHoNE: (760) 878-0201
FAX: (760) 878-2001

SOUTHERN INYO AIRPORT ADVISORY COMMITTEE
MEETING AGENDA

COUNTY
OF

INYOMike Enante, Public Works Director
Chris Cash, Deputy Director

MEETING DATE: October 28,2020 7:00 A.M.
LOCATION: Lone Pine Death Valley Terminal Building

I. Callto order

Approval of minutes from the July 22,2020 zoom meeting

Business

. COVID-l9 Update
o Introduction of Deputy Director of Public Works Airports
r Possible Rental of Open Hangar to Jeff Montgomery

ry. Report from Public Works

A. BudgetReview: Existingfunds as of 9130120

Lone Pine Death Vallev Airport

Operating $58,303
Significant expenditures excluding payroll:
*Revenue is listed on attached Account Director's Reports*

$300 Preferred Septic (Portable Toilet)
$808 Ascent Aviation (Fuel Truck Lease)
$2,190,77 (Utilities: Frontier, MCI & LADWP)

Special Aviation $24,934
Significant Expenditures excluding payroll

$1,696,25 (CSAC Liability Insurance)
$500 (LADWP Lease)

il.

m.

July - Sept. 2020

July - Sept. 2020

Board Clerk



Independence Airport

Operating $26,953
Signifi cant Expenditures excluding payroll

$300 Preferred Septic (Portable Toilets)

Special Aviation $25,33 I
Significant Expenditures excluding payroll:

$ 194.3 I (Utilities: LADWP)
$1,017.75 (CSAC Liability Insurance)

B. Report from Steve Loven, Airport Operations Supervisor
(Steve Loven is unable to attend)

Adjourn Meeting, the next meeting is January 27,2021

July -Sept. 2020

July- Sept. 2020

V



a

Southern lnyo Airport Advisory Committee

Meeting Minutes
luly 22,2O2O

7:00 AM

Zoom Attendees: Mike Errante, Steve Loven, Jeff Montgomery, Travis Powell, Martin Powell,

Lynne Bunn, NeilWoodruff, Matt Kingsley, Aaron Holmberg

7:00 AM Zoom Meeting called to order

Minutes approved from January 22,2020 meeting

Topics Discussed:

Mike Errante gave a lnyo County COVID Update

Talked about Special Use Permit for Jeff Montgomery upcoming events

Discussed why lnyo County was paying for a Portable Toilet

Discussed why the old outside toilets are not functional and working

Adjourn meeting at 7:55 AM

Next Meeting: October 28,2020

a

a



CoIINTY oF INYo Verbose [Account Direccors' Report with Encumbrance] O't/Of/2o2o-09/30/2o2o page 1
THU, OCT 22,2020,10:30 AM --req: CT0353----1eg: GL ----Ioc: PWD-------job:2790855,14059----prog: GL5O8 <1.?3>--report id: GLPDEFOI

SORT ORDER; OB.JECT WilhiN NEW OB.] WithiN BUDUNIT Wit,hiN FUND

SELECT
BUDGET

F'UND

15 03

OB.JECT

rNDY AIRPORT OPERATING

OBJECT Trans Desc- Date

BITDGET UNIT: 150300,150400.150500,150500 ; OB,IECT: 431-1-4401
WORKING; OB.JECT and Budgets shown

FUI\T,D TiLle BUDUNIT BIIDUNIT Title

RENTS

REt\]:|S

SPECIAI EVENTS

SPECIAI EVEMIS

AIITO PARKING

AUTO PARKING

IIANGER RENT

HANGAR REI'I1I

TIE DOWN FEES

TlE DOWN FEES

STATE AID FOR AVIATI

STATE AID FOR AVIATI

** TOTAI, REVENUE **

1s0300

Primary Ref

Prior

TOTAI,*

Pri-or

TOTAL*

Prior

TOTA],*

Prior

TOTAI,*

Prior

TOTAL*

Prior

TOTAL*

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT
Income
E)q)ense Encumbrances

0.00* 0 .00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0 .00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0-00*

0.00

0.00*

0. 00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0-00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0-00*

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0 .00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0-00*

0.00*

Account Director

WORKTNG

Budget

t4,4OO

a4,4O0

00

00*

3,120.00

3,120.00*

150.00

150.00*

Budget Minus ? Of
Acct-To-Date Budget Note

14, 400. 00

14,400.00 *

3, 1"20. 00

3. 120.00 *

1s0.00

150.00 *

Account
to Date

43rL

43rr

43 15

43L5

433 1

433r

4333

4333

4334

4334

44 01

4404

07 / oL/ 20

NEW OBJ

07/aT/20

NEW OBJ

o'7 / 0a/20

NEW OBJ

o'1 /0L/20

NEW OB.J

o7 / or/ 20

NEW OB.}

o7 / 0L/20

NEW OBJ

INDY AIRPORT OPERATI FUND REVENUE TOTAI,*

I7 ,67O.OO* 17,670.00 *

0.00* a7 ,670 .o0* 17,670.00 *



COIJNTY OF INYO Verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encurn]crancel 07/0L/2020-09/30/2020 Page 2
THU. OCT 22,2020,10:30 AM --req: CT0353----Ieg: GL ----Loc: PWD-------job:2790855 J4069----prog: GL508 <1.73>--report id: GLPDEFoI

SORT ORDER: OBJECT within NEW OBJ within BUDI'NIT within FUND

SELECT BIIDGET UNIT: L50300,150400,150500,150600 ; OBJECT: 4311-4401
BUDGET: WORKING; OBJECT and Budgets shown

FUND FUND Tirle BUDUNIT BUDUNIT Title Account Director

1504

OB,JECT

4401

440r

INDY AIRPORT SPECTAI AVIATION 1504OO

OB,JECT Trans Desc. Date Primary Ref

STATE ArD FOR AVTATT 07/Oa/2O PT-ior

STATE AID FOR AVIATI NEW OB.J TOTAL*

** TOTAL REVENUE **

INDY AIRPORT SPECIAI, FI]ND REVENUE TOTAI,*

INDEPENDENCE AIRPORT - SPECIAL
Income Account
Expense EncuTnlcrances to Date

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00+

WORKING
Budget

10, 000. 00

10,000.00*

10, 000.00*

10,000.00*

Budget Minus Z of
Acct-To-Date BudgeL NoLe

10, 000.00

10,000.00 *

10,000.00 *

10, 000.00 *0-00* 0-00* 0.00*



cotlNTY oF TNYo verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encumbrance] o7/oi,/2020-09/3o/2o2o page 3
THU, ocT 22, 2020, 10:30 AM --req: cT0353----Leg: cL ----loc: PWD-------job:2'190855,f4069----prog: GL508 <1-?3>--report id: GLPDEFoI

SORT ORDER: OBJECT within NEW OBJ within BUDUNIT within FUND

SELECT BLIDGET LINIT: 150300,150400,150500.150500 ; OBJECT: 43LI-440I
BUDGET: WORKING; OB.TECT and BudgeLs shown

FUND FUND Title BUDI]NIT

150500

Date Prj"mary Ref

O7/O1-/20 Prior

NEW OB.J TOTAI,*

07/oL/20 Prior

NEW OBJ TOTAIJ*

O7/0r/20 Prjor
o7/rs/20 JF,36992

NEW OBJ TOTAI,*

Prior
cR118751
cRll-8914
cR11 8 9 14
cRl18914
cRl18962
cR119005
cR119072
cR119899
cR120244
cRr20327
ckr20327

NEW OBJ TOTAL*

O7 / 0't / 20 P].j-or
09/02/20 CR119S57

NEW OBJ TOTAI,*

o7/01/20 Prior

NEW OBJ TOTAL*

o7/or/20 PTj.or

NEW OBJ TOTALI

BUDI]NIT Title

LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIRPORT
Income Account

Encumbrances to DateExpense

0.00

Account Director

WORKING
Budget

Budget Minus ? Of
Acct-To-Date Budget Note

300

300

00

15 05

OB.]ECT

4311

43 11

43 15

43'J-5

433L

433t

43 33

4333

4334

4334

4338

4338

440!

4401

LPIDV AIRPPORT

OB,JECT Trans Desc

REM| S

RENTS

SPECIAL EVENTS

SPECIAL EVENTS

AUTO PARKING
JE T#649 JUL-SEPT2O

AUTO PARKING

HANGER RENT
cR R#5?6444-445
cR R#575474 M.LONG
CR R#575473 K.TOHIDI
CR R#576472 MARSHALI,
cR R#575479 ,f.MONTGO
CR R#575489 L.KELLER
cR R# s75493 r#648/2
CR R#500923 G.RITCHI
CR R#600943 C.REGAN
CR R#6OO95O F MYER F
CR R#600948 ITEFFREY

HANGAR RENT

TIE DOWN FEES
cR e/r-3t/2o vARrous

TIE DOWN FEES

RAMP FEES

CALIFORNIA AIR C}{ART

STATE AID FOR AVIATT

STATE AID FOR AVIATI

** TOTAL REVENUE **

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0. o0

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00 2,500.00 2, 500.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

300.00

300. 00* 00 *

00 * t6-2

0.00
405.00

07 / 0r/ 20
o7 / oL/ 20
o7 /to/20
07 /1-0/20
07/L0/20
o7 /L4/20
07 /t5/20
o7 /21"/20
oe/04/20
09 /24/ 20
oe /30 /20
09 /30 / 20

0.00
840.00
420.OO
420 . OO

420 . OO

420.00
2. 100.00

840.00
420.00
420.OO
42Q.OO
420.O0

405.00*

?.1_40.00*

405.00*

0.00

2,500.00*

26 ,47O . OO

26 ,47O

1,000

00*

2,095

26,47O 00

19,330.00 * 27.O

1,000.00

861.00 * i-3 .9

00
00

0
139

139.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0 .00*

7,684-0O*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

7,L40

0

139

0

0

0

0

7 ,644

7 ,684

00*

00

00*

00

00*

00

00*

00*

00*

00

1.000.00*

30,270.OO* 22,586 -OO * 25.4

30,270.00* 22,586-OO * 25.4LPIDV AIRPPORT FUND REVENUE TOTAL* 7.684.00*



coUNTY oF INYo Verbose lAccount Directors' Report with Encumbrance] O7/oi,/2o2\-og/3T/2T2o page 4
THU, OCT 22,2020, l-0:30 AM --req: CT0353----1eg: GL ----1oc: PWD-------job:2790855,J4069----prog: cL508 <1.73>--report id: cLpDEFol

SORT ORDER: OB,JECT within NEW OB,J $rithin BIIDUNIT within FUND

SELECT BUDGET UIdIT; 150300,150400.150500,1-50600 ; OB,IECT: 4311-4401
BIJDGETT WORKING' OB,JECT and Budgets shown

FI]ND FT]ND Title BI]DI'NIT BUDUNIT Tit,1e Account Director

15os LPIDV ATRPPORT 15 050 0

OB.IECT OB,TECT Trans Desc. Date Primary Ref
WORKTNG

Budget
Budget Minus Z Of
Acct-To-DaLe Budget Note

LONE PINE/DEATH VAIJLEY AIRPORT
IRcome Account
Expense Encumbrances to Date



COUNTY OF INYO
THU, OCT 22,

SORT ORDER:

verbose lAccount Directors' ReporE with EncuTn]crarlcel o7 / or / 2020 - 09 / 3 o / 2o2o
2O2O, L0;30 AIil --req: CT0353----1eg: GL ----1oc: PWD-------job:2?90855,J4059----prog: GL508 <1.73>--report id

OBfiCT r^rithin NEW OBJ within BUDUNIT within FUND

BITDGET UNIT: l-50300,150400,1.50500. 150600 ; OBJECT: 431,!-4401
WORKING; OB.IECT and Budgets shot/in

FUND Title BUDUNIT BUDUNIT TitlE Account Director

LONE PINE/DE,ATH VALLEY AIR.SPC 1506OO LONE PINE/DEATH VALLEY AIR-SP
Account

Encunbrances to Date

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0 .00*

Page 5

GLPDEFOl

Budget Minus ? of
Acct-To-Date Budgets Note

10,000.00

10,000.00 *

10, 000 .00 *

10,000.00* 10. 000.00 *

SELECT
BUDGET

FUND

15 06

OBJECT
Income
Expense

44 01

440]-

OB,JECT Trans Desc. Date Primary Ref.

STATE ArD FOR AVIATI 07/01/20 Prior

STATE AID FOR AVIATI NEW OB.f TOTAI,*

*I TOTAI] REVENUE *t

I,ONE PINE/DEATH VALL FI'ND REVENUE TOTAI,*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00

0.00*

0.00*

0.00*

WORKING
Budget

10,000.00

10, 000 . 00*

10,000.00*

0.00*



County of Inyo

Treasurer-Tax Collector
 

CORRESPONDENCE - INFORMATIONAL - NO 
ACTION REQUIRED

 
MEETING:  October 27, 2020 

FROM:  Moana Chapman 
 
SUBJECT:  Treasury Status Report for Quarter Ending September 30, 2020 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Review Treasury Status Report for the Quarter Ending September 30, 2020 and direct any questions to the 
County Treasurer.
 
SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION:
The report is provided pursuant to the provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code. The primary 
purposes of the report are to disclose the following:

 the investments and deposits of the treasury;
 the cost basis and market values of the investments;
 compliance to the County Investment Policy;
 the weighted average of the investments; and 
 the projected ability of the treasury to meet the expected expenditure requirements of the treasury's 

pooled participants for the next six months

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS: 
N/A
 
ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
N/A
 
OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Pursuant to Section 53646(g) of the Government Code, copies of this report, while no longer mandated, will 
continue to be provided to the members of the Treasury Oversight Committee.
 
FINANCING:
N/A
 
ATTACHMENTS:



Agenda Request 
Page 2

1. 09-30-2020 Treasury Status Report
 
APPROVALS:
Moana Chapman Created/Initiated - 9/24/2020
Darcy Ellis Approved - 9/29/2020
Moana Chapman Approved - 10/15/2020
Alisha McMurtrie Final Approval - 10/15/2020



POST OFFICE DRAWER O INDEPENDENCE, CALIFORNIA 93526-0614

TO: Honorable Members of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors
FROM: Alisha McMurtrie, Treasurer-Tax Collector
SUBJECT: Report of the Status of the Inyo County Treasury as of: September 30, 2020
DATE: October 15, 2020

The following status report of the County Treasury as of 09-30-2020 is provided pursuant to the
provisions of Section 53646(b) of the Government Code.

The attached copy of the “Treasurer’s Daily Reconciliation” provides a breakdown of the dollar
amount of the Treasury assets by depository for monetary assets and by issuer for securities.

The attached copy of the custody statement from TRACKER, a Division of C2, LLC reflects,
among other things, the following information regarding each security held: issuer, maturity date;
CUSIP number; face amount; cost basis; and market value (calculated by Merrill Lynch).

The weighted average maturity of the investments of the Treasury was 942 days.

The latest PARS/OPEB investment statement is attached for reference.

It is anticipated that the County Treasury will be able to meet the liquidity requirements of its
pooled participants for the next six months.

The investment portfolio is in compliance with the Inyo County Treasury Investment Policy.

NOTES: Regarding Inyo County’s monetary assets held outside the County Treasury:
 Various Inyo County Departments and treasury pool participants maintain and

administer bank checking accounts outside the County Treasury.
 Inyo County’s PARS relationship for our OPEB investment began in June 2010. To

date: the PARS balance as of:09-30-2020 was $7,983,089.55 (Principal: $8,121,440.62
plus Interest: $-136,346.48 less Fees: $-2,004.59)

C: Members of the Inyo County Treasury Oversight Committee

ALISHA MCMURTRIE
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR

(P) 760-878-0312
(F) 760-878-0311

inyottc@inyocounty.us

JOEY PETERSON

ASSISTANT TREASURER-

TAX COLLECTOR

Moana chapman

OFFICE TECHNICIAN iii

Fabiola isidro

OFFICE TECHNICIAN iii

COUNTY OF INYO
TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR







First Service Bank AR 1.5 11/12/2020 33640VBG2 02/12/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/12/2020 43

Maple City Savings TX 1.5 12/7/2020 56511PAC2 12/07/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 12/07/2020 68

HSBC Bank VA Step 12/9/2020 40434AE62 12/09/2015 2.353 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 12/09/2020 70

BMW Bank NA UT 2.25 12/18/2020 05580ADM3 12/18/2015 2.250 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 12/18/2020 79

Bank Hapoalin NY 2.05 1/15/2021 06251AL40 01/15/2016 2.050 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 01/15/2021 107

Community Financial Services KY 1.6 2/17/2021 20364ABA2 02/17/2016 1.600 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 02/17/2021 140

Investors Community Bank WI 1.8 2/26/2021 46147USN1 02/27/2017 1.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 02/26/2021 149

BMO HARRIS BANK NA 1.05 4/23/2021 05581W7G4 04/24/2020 1.050 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 04/23/2021 205

Privatebank & Trust 1.5 5/26/2021 74267GVG9 05/26/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 05/26/2021 238

UBS Bank UT 1.65 6/7/2021 90348JAR1 06/07/2016 1.650 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 06/07/2021 250

Mercantil Commercial FL 1.65 6/24/2021 58733ACY3 06/24/2016 1.650 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 06/24/2021 267

Apex Bank 1.5 10/12/2021 03753XAQ3 10/12/2016 1.500 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 10/12/2021 377

Discover Bank DE 1.75 11/2/2021 254672M39 11/02/2016 1.750 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 11/02/2021 398

Jefferson Financial LA 2.2 11/22/2021 474067AJ4 11/22/2017 2.200 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/22/2021 418

State Bank India NY 2.35 2/24/2022 8562846J8 02/24/2017 2.350 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 02/24/2022 512

United Community Bank GA 2.05 3/1/2022 90984P5A9 03/01/2017 2.050 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 03/01/2022 517

Belmont Savings Bank MA 2.15 3/21/2022 080515BV0 03/20/2017 2.150 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 03/21/2022 537

American Express UT 2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 04/05/2017 2.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 04/05/2022 552

TOWNBANK 1.15 4/29/2022 89214PCQ0 04/29/2020 1.150 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 04/29/2022 576

BERKSHIRE BANK 1 10/20/2022 084601XL2 04/24/2020 1.000 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 10/20/2022 750

MERRICK BANK 1.75 11/29/2022 59013KEA0 11/29/2019 1.750 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/29/2022 790

Mountain America UT 2.4 11/30/2022 62384RAD8 11/30/2017 2.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/30/2022 791

ALLY BANK 0.9 3/13/2023 02007GMY6 03/12/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 03/13/2023 894

GREENSTATE CREDIT UNION 0.4 8/18/2023 39573LAP3 08/18/2020 0.400 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/18/2023 1,052

Description CUSIP
Settlement 

Date
YTM Face Amount Cost Value Market Value

Maturity 

Date

Days To 

Maturity

Average  By:  Face  Amount /  Shares

Portfolio /  Report  Group:  All  Portfolios

As of 9/30/2020

Certficate of Deposit - 30 %

Inyo  County

Portfolio  Holdings

Compliance  Report | by  Investment  Policy

Report  Format:  By  Transaction

Group  By:  Asset  Category



ENERBANK USA 1.8 11/22/2023 29278TMN7 11/27/2019 1.800 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/22/2023 1,148

Citibank National SD 3.4 1/9/2024 17312QZ36 01/09/2019 3.400 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 01/09/2024 1,196

AMERICAN COMMERCE BANK 0.9 3/27/2024 02519TBA3 03/27/2020 0.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 03/27/2024 1,274

MEDALLION BANK 1.2 4/30/2024 58404DGU9 04/30/2020 1.200 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 04/30/2024 1,308

MORGAN STANLEY PRIVATE BANK NA 1.9 11/20/2024 61760A3B3 11/27/2019 1.900 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/20/2024 1,512

LIVE OAK BANKING COMPANY 1.85 11/27/2024 538036GU2 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 1,519

VIRIVA FCU 1.85 11/27/2024 92823NAA9 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 1,519

CELTIC BANK 1.85 11/27/2024 15118RTC1 11/27/2019 1.850 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 11/27/2024 1,519

SOMERSET TRUST CO 1 3/19/2025 835104BZ2 03/19/2020 1.000 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 03/19/2025 1,631

FLAGSTAR BANK 1.15 4/29/2025 33847E3D7 04/29/2020 1.150 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 04/29/2025 1,672

CENTERSTATE BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 15201QDE4 04/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 04/30/2025 1,673

PACIFIC WETERN BANK 1.25 4/30/2025 69506YRL5 04/30/2020 1.250 250,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 04/30/2025 1,673

LUANA SAVINGS BANK 0.6 5/8/2025 549104PQ4 05/08/2020 0.600 245,000.00 245,000.00 245,000.00 05/08/2025 1,681

EAST BOSTON SAVINGS BANK 0.45 8/12/2025 27113PDP3 08/12/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/12/2025 1,777

1ST FINANCIAL BANK USA 0.45 8/19/2025 32022RNT0 08/19/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/19/2025 1,784

FIRST CAROLINA BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 31944MBB0 08/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/20/2025 1,785

NORTHEAST COMMUNITY BANK 0.45 8/20/2025 664122AF5 08/20/2020 0.450 248,000.00 248,000.00 248,000.00 08/20/2025 1,785

Sub Total / Average Certficate of Deposit - 30 % 1.556 10,410,000.00 10,410,000.00 10,410,000.00 883

MUFG BANK LTD 0 11/17/2020 62479LLH6 04/23/2020 0.794 3,000,000.00 2,986,306.67 3,000,000.00 11/17/2020 48

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP 0 3/12/2021 89233GQC3 06/16/2020 0.341 3,000,000.00 2,992,378.33 3,000,000.00 03/12/2021 163

Sub Total / Average Commercial Paper - 15 % 0.567 6,000,000.00 5,978,685.00 6,000,000.00 106

FHLMC 1.7 12/22/2020 3134GBSA1 06/22/2017 1.700 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 12/22/2020 83

FNMA 1.25 5/6/2021 3135G0K69 05/16/2016 1.418 2,000,000.00 1,983,900.00 2,000,000.00 05/06/2021 218

FNMA 1.5 5/26/2021 3136G3PR0 05/26/2016 1.500 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 05/26/2021 238

FHLB 1.875 11/29/2021 3130AABG2 11/30/2016 2.115 2,000,000.00 1,977,324.00 2,000,000.00 11/29/2021 425

FFCB 2.8 12/17/2021 3133EJ3B3 12/17/2018 2.800 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 12/17/2021 443

FFCB 1.6 2/10/2023-21 3133ELMD3 02/10/2020 1.600 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 02/10/2023 863

FHLMC 1.75 5/18/2023-20 3134GUPP9 11/18/2019 1.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 05/18/2023 960

FFCB 2.3 6/7/2023-21 3133EKNY8 06/07/2019 2.300 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 06/07/2023 980

FFCB 0.48 6/15/2023-20 3133ELJ21 06/15/2020 0.480 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 06/15/2023 988

FFCB 1.68 11/22/2023-21 3133ELAN4 11/22/2019 1.680 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 11/22/2023 1,148

Certficate of Deposit - 30 %

Federal Agencies - 100 %

Description CUSIP
Settlement 

Date
YTM

Commercial Paper - 15 %

Face Amount Cost Value Market Value
Maturity 

Date

Days To 

Maturity



FFCB 0.59 3/25/2024-20 3133ELP57 06/25/2020 0.590 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 03/25/2024 1,272

FFCB 1.2 4/1/2024-21 3133ELVA9 04/01/2020 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 04/01/2024 1,279

FHLB 0.74 4/29/2024-21 3130AJJR1 04/29/2020 0.740 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 04/29/2024 1,307

FHLMC 0.5 6/24/2024-21 3134GV2J6 06/24/2020 0.500 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 06/24/2024 1,363

FHLB 0.55 7/30/2024-20 3130AJUN7 07/30/2020 0.550 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 07/30/2024 1,399

FHLMC 2 11/18/2024-20 3134GURP7 11/19/2019 2.000 4,775,000.00 4,775,000.00 4,775,000.00 11/18/2024 1,510

FHLMC 1.92 1/6/2025-21 3134GUF21 01/06/2020 1.920 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 01/06/2025 1,559

FFCB 1.2 3/25/2025-21 3133ELUK8 03/25/2020 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 03/25/2025 1,637

FHLB 1.2 3/25/2025-21 3130AJF79 03/25/2020 1.200 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 03/25/2025 1,637

FHLMC 1.2 4/16/2025-20 3134GVKQ0 04/17/2020 1.200 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 04/16/2025 1,659

FHLB 1.18 4/23/2025-20 3130AJHC6 04/23/2020 1.180 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 04/23/2025 1,666

FNMA 0.75 6/11/2025-21 3136G4WG4 06/11/2020 0.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 06/11/2025 1,715

FHLMC 0.75 6/30/2025-20 3134GVZ84 06/30/2020 0.750 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 06/30/2025 1,734

FNMA 0.7 7/21/2025-21 3136G4ZG1 07/21/2020 0.700 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 07/21/2025 1,755

FNMA 0.625 7/21/2025-22 3136G4ZJ5 07/21/2020 0.625 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 07/21/2025 1,755

FHLMC 0.68 7/21/2025-21 3134GV2N7 07/21/2020 0.680 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 07/21/2025 1,755

FFCB 0.53 8/12/2025-22 3133EL3P7 08/12/2020 0.530 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 08/12/2025 1,777

FHLMC 0.58 8/19/2025-21 3134GWQN9 08/19/2020 0.580 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 08/19/2025 1,784

FNMA 0.56 8/21/2025-23 3136G4N74 08/21/2020 0.560 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 08/21/2025 1,786

FFCB 0.55 9/16/2025-21 3133EL7K4 09/16/2020 0.550 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/16/2025 1,812

FHLMC 0.58 9/23/2025-20 3134GWP75 09/23/2020 0.580 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/23/2025 1,819

FHLMC 0.6 9/30/2025-21 3134GWTG1 09/30/2020 0.600 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 09/30/2025 1,826

Sub Total / Average Federal Agencies - 100 % 1.104 98,775,000.00 98,736,224.00 98,775,000.00 1,385

LAIF LGIP LAIF4000 09/30/2018 0.685 38,000,000.00 38,000,000.00 38,000,000.00 N/A 1

Sub Total / Average Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M 0.685 38,000,000.00 38,000,000.00 38,000,000.00 1

UBS Financial MM MM9591 06/30/2018 0.010 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 N/A 1

Sub Total / Average UBS Money Market - 10 % 0.010 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1

Total / Average 0.994 155,685,000.00 155,624,909.00 155,685,000.00 942

Federal Agencies - 100 %

Cost Value Market Value
Maturity 

Date

Days To 

Maturity
Description CUSIP

Settlement 

Date
YTM Face Amount

Local Agency Investment Fund - $ 50M

UBS Money Market - 10 %



COUNTY OF INYO

PARS OPEB Trust Program 9/1/2020 to 9/30/2020
 

Clint Quilter

County Administrative Officer

County of Inyo

P.O. Drawer N

Independence, CA 93526

Source 9/1/2020 Contributions Earnings Expenses Distributions Transfers 9/30/2020

OPEB 1001 $8,121,440.62 $0.00 -$136,346.48 $2,004.59 $0.00 $0.00 $7,983,089.55

Totals $8,121,440.62 $0.00 -$136,346.48 $2,004.59 $0.00 $0.00 $7,983,089.55

Source

OPEB

Source

OPEB

Source 1-Month 3-Months 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

OPEB -1.68% 4.66% 8.01% 6.36% 7.57% 7.19% 6/16/2010

Information as provided by US Bank, Trustee for PARS;  Not FDIC Insured;  No Bank Guarantee;  May Lose Value

                                            Headquarters - 4350 Von Karman Ave., Suite 100, Newport Beach, CA 92660     800.540.6369     Fax 949.250.1250     www.pars.org

Account balances are inclusive of Trust Administration, Trustee and Investment Management fees

Annualized Return

Investment Return:  Annualized rate of return is the return on an investment over a period other than one year multiplied or divided to give a comparable one-year return.

Past performance does not guarantee future results.  Performance returns may not reflect the deduction of applicable fees, which could reduce returns.  Information is deemed reliable but may be subject to change.

Investment Return

Account Report for the Period

Beginning Balance 

as of 

Investment Selection

Account Summary

Moderate HighMark PLUS

Ending                

Balance as of

The dual goals of the Moderate Strategy are growth of principal and income. It is expected that dividend and interest income will comprise a 

significant portion of total return, although growth through capital appreciation is equally important. The portfolio will be allocated between equity 

and fixed income investments.

Plan's Inception Date

Investment Objective



Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control

+lMg+rroN FoR ALCOHOLTC BEVERAGE LTCENSE(S)
ABC2tt(6/99)

State of California

T0: Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control
48OO STOCKDALE HWY
STE 2I3
BAKERSFIELD, CA 93309
(66r) 39s-2731

DISTRICT S ERVTNC LOCATION:

First Olvner:

Name of Business:

Location of Business:

County:

Is Premises inside city limits?

Mai ling Address : (If different
from
premises address)

Type of license(s):

Transferor's I icense/name :

File Nnmber: 621520
ReceiptNumber: 2653906
Geographical Code: 1400
Copies Mailed Date: October 13,2020
Issued Date:

BAKERSFIELD

CARDINAL VILLAGE OPERATIONS, INC.
CARDINAL VILLAGE RESORT

321 CARDINAL RI)
BISHOP, CA 9351,1

INYO

No { Censns Tract:

::. _

.a

t -,]
i]

':-.3

r..i

4l Dropping Partner: Yes_
489190 / CLUFF, KENNETH ZANE

N+r
License T.vpe Transaction RE
4l - On-Sale Beer And lVine - Eating P FID

Master Secondary LT And Count
Y

License DE
Application Fee

Transaction Description
FIDUCIARY TRANSFER

Dup
0NA

Fee Code Date
t0n3t20

Fee
$ 100.00

Total $r00.00

Have you ever been convicted of a felony? No
Have you ever violated any provisions of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Act, or regulations of the
Department pertaining to the Act? No

STAIE OF CALIFORNIA

Applicant Name(s)

County of INYO

CARDINAL VILLAGE OPERATIONS, INC

Date: October 13,2020


	 Call to Order
	1. PUBLIC COMMENT (Join meeting via Zoom here)

	 Closed Session
	2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGA
	3. CONFERENCE WITH COUNTY’S LABOR NEGOTIATORS [Pursua
	4. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE EVALUATION [Pursuant to Government

	 Open Session
	5. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	6. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION AS REQUIRED BY LAW.
	7. PUBLIC COMMENT
	8. COUNTY DEPARTMENT REPORTS (Reports limited to two 
	9. COVID-19 STAFF UPDATE
	10. PRESENTATION - Assemblyman Devon Mathis will prese
	Thaddeus Warsaw Taylor III


	 Departmental - Personnel Actions
	11. Request Board:
A) approve job description for Seni
	Agenda Request Form
	Contract with Dana Crom
	Contract with David Christensen
	Proposed Job Description: Sr. Deputy District Attorney


	 Consent Agenda
	12. Request Board authorize payment to Granicus in an
	Agenda Request Form
	Granicus Invoice 127537
	Granicus Operating Agreement and Assignment

	13. Request Board: A) receive the 2020 Conflict of Int
	Agenda Request Form
	Big Pine Community Service District
	Big Pine Fire Protection District
	Big Pine Unified School District
	Darwin Community Service District
	Independence Fire Protection District
	Indian Creek Westridge Community Service District
	Lone Pine Fire Protection
	Lone Pine Unified School District
	Mt. Whitney Cemetery District
	Northern Inyo Healthcare District
	Owens Valley Unified School District
	Pioneer Cemetery District
	Sierra Highlands Community Service District
	Southern Inyo Healthcare District
	Starlite Community Service District

	14. Request Board: A) authorize acceptance of the Inyo
	Agenda Request Form
	CalOES Approval Letter Part 1 of 2 Dated 9.18.20
	CalOES Approval Letter Part 2 of 2 Dated 9.18.20

	15. Request Board approve the contract between the Iny
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County Environmental Health - LADWP Subcontract

	16. Request Board approve the plans and specifications
	Agenda Request Form
	North Round Valley Bridge Bid Package


	 Departmental
	17. Request Board approve a letter to Inyo National Fo
	Agenda Request Form
	Letter to Lesley Yen 10.27.20

	18. Request Board: A) declare ONSOLVE LLC of Ormand Be
	Agenda Request Form
	ONSOLVE CodeRED Invoice

	19. Request Board ratify and approve Amendment No. 4 t
	Agenda Request Form
	ESAAA Mono Amendment No. 4

	20. Request Board ratify and approve the Memorandum of
	Agenda Request Form
	LRC MOU

	21. Request Board approve the minutes of the regular B
	Agenda Request Form


	 Timed Items
	22. 11:30 A.M. - CAPITAL ASSET LEASING CORPORATION - T
	10-27-20 Agenda
	10-15-19 Minutes
	2020-21 CALC Annual Financial Statement


	 Comment
	23. PUBLIC COMMENT

	 Board Members and Staff Reports
	 Correspondence - Informational
	24. Inyo County Public Works - Agenda for the Southern
	SIAAC 10.28.20 Agenda

	25. Inyo County Treasurer-Tax Collector - Treasury Sta
	Agenda Request Form
	09-30-2020 Treasury Status Report

	26. California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Contro
	ABC Application - Cardinal Village

	27. California Fish and Game Commission - Notice of Pr


	topmostSubform.Page1.TextField1: The first sentence of Paragraph 3.D. Limit upon Amount Payable Under this Agreement, of the Agreement is amended to read as follows:

The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed $429,388 (hereinafter referred to as “contract limit”).  County expressly reserves the right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed which is in excess of the contract limit.


SCHEDULE OF FEES:

3.  The total contract amount for July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020 is approximately $429,388.00; the 2016/17 allocation and One Time Only funds are $101,459.00; the 2017/18 allocation and One Time Only funds are $88,696.00; the 2018/19 allocation and One Time Only funds are $94,812; and the 19/20 allocation, One Time Only and Adjustment and Families First Coronavirus Response Act Emergency Funding are $144,421.

 

		2020-10-13T12:19:20-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Sign




